
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
` 

SCV WATER AGENCY  
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

 

Tuesday, March 7, 2023 
Meeting Begins at 6:00 PM 

 

Members of the public may attend by the following options:  

In Person By Phone  Virtually 

Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency 
Rio Vista Water Treatment Plant 

Boardroom 
27234 Bouquet Canyon Road 

Santa Clarita, CA 91350 

Toll Free: 
 

1-(833)-568-8864 
Webinar ID: 160 829 2845 

Please join the meeting from your 
computer, tablet or smartphone: 

 

https://scvwa.zoomgov.com/j/1608292845 

     
   

Have a Public Comment?  
 

Members of the public unable to attend this meeting may submit comments either in writing to 
ajacobs@scvwa.org or by mail to April Jacobs, Board Secretary, Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency, 27234 

Bouquet Canyon Road, Santa Clarita, CA 91350. All written comments received before 4:00 PM the day of the 
meeting will be distributed to the Board members and posted on the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency website 
prior to the start of the meeting. Anything received after 4:00 PM the day of the meeting will be made available 
at the meeting, if practicable, and posted on the SCV Water website the following day. All correspondence with 

comments, including letters or emails, will be posted in their entirety. 
(Public comments take place during Item 3 of the Agenda and before each Item is considered. Please see the Agenda for details.) 

 
------------- 

 
This meeting will be recorded and the audio recording for all Board meetings will be posted to yourscvwater.com within 3 
business days from the date of the Board meeting.  

 
Disclaimer: Attendees should be aware that while the Agency is following all applicable requirements and guidelines regarding 
COVID-19, the Agency cannot ensure the health of anyone attending a Board meeting. Attendees should therefore use their own 
judgment with respect to protecting themselves from exposure to COVID-19. 

 

 
 
 
 

Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency 
Rio Vista Water Treatment Plant  
27234 Bouquet Canyon Road  
Santa Clarita, CA  91350 
(661) 297-1600 

1

http://www.yourscvwater.com/


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

2



 

 

27234 BOUQUET CANYON ROAD •  SANTA CLARITA,  CALIFORNIA 91350-2173 •  661 297•1600 •  FAX 661 297•1611 
webs i t e  address :  www.yourscvwate r . com 

  
 
 

SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY  
REGULAR BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

 
RIO VISTA WATER TREATMENT PLANT 

BOARDROOM  
27234 BOUQUET CANYON ROAD 

SANTA CLARITA, CA 91350 
 

TUESDAY, MARCH 7, 2023, AT 6:00 PM 
 

IMPORTANT NOTICES  
 

5:15 PM DISCOVERY ROOM OPEN TO THE PUBLIC 
Dinner for Directors and staff in the Discovery Room.  

There will be no discussion of Agency business taking place prior to the  
Call to Order at 6:00 PM. 

 
This meeting will be conducted in person at the address listed above. As a convenience to the 

public, members of the public may also participate virtually by using the Agency’s Call-In 
Number 1-(833)-568-8864, Webinar ID: 160 829 2845 or Zoom Webinar by clicking on the 
link https://scvwa.zoomgov.com/j/1608292845. Any member of the public may listen to the 

meeting or make comments to the Board using the call-in number or Zoom Webinar link above.  
However, in the event there is a disruption of service which prevents the Agency from 

broadcasting the meeting to members of the public using either the call-in option or internet-
based service, this meeting will not be postponed or rescheduled but will continue without 

remote participation. The remote participation option is being provided as a convenience to the 
public and is not required. Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting in person.   

 
Attendees should be aware that while the Agency is following all applicable requirements and 
guidelines regarding COVID-19, the Agency cannot ensure the health of anyone attending a 
Board meeting. Attendees should therefore use their own judgment with respect to protecting 

themselves from exposure to COVID-19. 
 

Members of the public unable to attend this meeting may submit comments either in writing to 
ajacobs@scvwa.org or by mail to April Jacobs, Board Secretary, Santa Clarita Valley Water 

Agency, 27234 Bouquet Canyon Road, Santa Clarita, CA 91350. All written comments received 
before 4:00 PM the day of the meeting will be distributed to the Board members and posted on 

the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency website prior to the start of the meeting. Anything 
received after 4:00 PM the day of the meeting, will be made available at the meeting, if 

practicable, and will be posted on the SCV Water website the following day. All correspondence 
with comments, including letters or emails, will be posted in their entirety. 

 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER  
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
 
 

3

tel:+18668994679,,963232301
tel:+18668994679,,660724405


 
March 7, 2023 
Page 2 of 4 
 

 

3.  PUBLIC COMMENTS – Members of the public may comment as to items within the 
subject matter jurisdiction of the Agency that are not on the Agenda at this time. Members 
of the public wishing to comment on items covered in this Agenda may do so at the time 
each item is considered. (Comments may, at the discretion of the Board’s presiding 
officer, be limited to three minutes for each speaker.)  
 

4. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
 

5. CONSENT CALENDAR        PAGE 
 
5.1   * Approve the Minutes of the February 21, 2023 Santa Clarita 

Valley Water Agency Regular Board of Directors Meeting 7 
5.2   * Adopt a Resolution to Declare Intent to Reimburse Capital 

Expenditures for a Groundwater Treatment Project Using 
Incentive Grant and Loan Funds from the State Water 
Resources Control Board to Comply with Internal Revenue 
Service Regulations 11 

5.3   * Approve a Revised Debt Management Policy 31 
 

6. ACTION ITEMS FOR APPROVAL              PAGE 
 
6.1  * Approve Adopting (1) a Resolution Approving the Addendum to 

the Mission Village Environmental Impact Report, Approving 
the Backcountry Reservoir and Backcountry Pump Station 
Projects, and Adopting the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting 
Program Under the California Environmental Quality Act 
Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15164 for the 
Backcountry Pump Station and Backcountry Reservoir 
Projects; and ((2) a Resolution Authorizing a Purchase Order 
to Cannon Corp. for Final Design Services for the Backcountry 
Pump Station Project and a Purchase Order to Michael Baker 
International, Inc. for Final Design Services for the Backcountry 
Reservoir Project 47 

6.2   * Approve Receiving and Filing of December 2022 Monthly and 
Mid-Year Budget Review (FY 2022/23 Q2 Oct – Dec 2022) –  463 

 https://www.yourscvwater.com/sites/default/files/SCVWA/departments/finance/Check-
Register-December-2022.pdf    

6.3   * Discussion of AB 2449 – Brown Act and Possible Amendment 
to the SCV Water Board Policies and Procedures Manual 573 

6.4   * Discussion and Consideration of Amending the SCV Water 
Board Policies and Procedures Manual, Directors 
Compensation and Expense Reimbursement, Section IV(G)(2 
and 3) – Category 2, Single-Day Events 579 

 
7. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT ON ACTIVITIES, PROJECTS AND PROGRAMS 

 
 
 
 
 

4

https://www.yourscvwater.com/sites/default/files/SCVWA/departments/finance/Check-Register-December-2022.pdf
https://www.yourscvwater.com/sites/default/files/SCVWA/departments/finance/Check-Register-December-2022.pdf


 
March 7, 2023 
Page 3 of 4 
 

 

8. COMMITTEE MEETING RECAP REPORTS FOR INFORMATIONAL                      
PURPOSES ONLY      PAGE 
 
8.1   * February 8, 2023 Water Resources and Watershed Committee 

Meeting Recap Report  585 
8.2   * February 16, 2023 Public Outreach and Legislation Committee 

Meeting Recap Report 591 
8.3   * February 27, 2023 Rescheduled Finance and Administration 

Committee Meeting Recap Report   595 
 

9. WRITTEN REPORTS FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES ONLY  PAGE 
 
9.1   * Engineering Services Section Report 601 
9.2   * Finance, Administration and Information Technology Services 

Section Report 613 
9.3   * Treatment, Distribution, Operations and Maintenance Section 

Report 621 
9.4   * Water Resources and Outreach Section Report  631 
9.5   * Committee Planning Calendars 643 

 
10. PRESIDENT’S REPORT 

 
11. AB 1234 WRITTEN AND VERBAL REPORTS   

 
11.1 * February 22-24, 2023 Urban Water Institute Board Meeting 

and 2023 Spring Conference – President Martin 659 
11.2  Other AB 1234 Reports  

 
12. DIRECTOR REPORTS  

 
13. DIRECTOR REQUESTS FOR APPROVAL FOR EVENT ATTENDANCE 

    
14. ADJOURNMENT 

 
*    Indicates Attachment 
   Indicates Handout 
 

Note: The Board reserves the right to discuss or take action or both on all of the above 
Agenda items. 
 

NOTICES 
 
Any person may make a request for a disability-related modification or accommodation needed 
for that person to be able to participate in the public meeting by telephoning April Jacobs, 
Secretary to the Board of Directors, at (661) 297-1600, or in writing to Santa Clarita Valley 
Water Agency at 27234 Bouquet Canyon Road, Santa Clarita, CA 91350. Requests must 
specify the nature of the disability and the type of accommodation requested. A telephone 
number or other contact information should be included so that Agency staff may discuss 
appropriate arrangements. Persons requesting a disability-related accommodation should make 
the request with adequate time before the meeting for the Agency to provide the requested 
accommodation. 

5



 
March 7, 2023 
Page 4 of 4 
 

 

 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.5, non-exempt public records that relate to open 
session agenda items and are distributed to a majority of the Board less than seventy-two (72) 
hours prior to the meeting will be available for public inspection at the Santa Clarita Valley 
Water Agency, located at 27234 Bouquet Canyon Road, Santa Clarita, CA 91350, during 
regular business hours. When practical, these public records will also be made available on the 
Agency’s Internet Website, accessible at http://www.yourscvwater.com.  
 
Posted on March 1, 2023.  

6

http://www.yourscvwater.com/
ajacobs
Matt Stone



  

Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Santa Clarita Valley Water 
Agency – February 21, 2023 
              
      
A regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency was held 
at Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency, 27234 Bouquet Canyon Road, Santa Clarita, CA 91350 
at 6:00 PM on Tuesday, February 21, 2023. A copy of the Agenda is inserted in the Minute 
Book of the Agency preceding these minutes. 
 
DIRECTORS PRESENT: Kathye Armitage, Beth Braunstein, William Cooper, Maria Gutzeit, 

Dirk Marks, Gary Martin and Piotr Orzechowski.   
 
DIRECTORS ABSENT:   Ed Colley and Ken Petersen.  
   
Also present: Assistant General Manager Steve Cole, Board Secretary April Jacobs, Chief 
Engineer Courtney Mael, Chief Financial and Administrative Officer Rochelle Patterson, Chief 
Operating Officer Keith Abercrombie, Communications Manager Kathie Martin, Director of 
Water Resources Ali Elhassan, General Counsel Tom Bunn, General Manager Matthew Stone, 
Information Technology Technician I Jonathan Thomas, as well as additional SCV Water 
Agency staff and members of the public. 
   
President Martin called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM. A quorum was present. 
 
There were no changes to the February 21, 2023 Board Agenda and it was accepted as shown 
(Item 4).  
 

-------------- 
 

President Martin and the Board acknowledged and congratulated the Valencia High School 
Associated Student Body for their fundraising event that took place last year. The 
students at Valencia High School teamed up with Gravity Water to spread awareness of the 
Global Water Crisis. Gravity Water is a non-profit that turns rain into safe drinking water for 
schools in need around the world.   
 
The Associated Student Body set a goal to fund a water system at a primary school in Vietnam. 
The school they chose relies on spring and well water, which are often contaminated and 
unsafe for consumption, so each student has to pay for bottled water. The ASB students raised 
$2,900, exceeding their goal by $400.  
 
Because they share our mission to provide reliable and safe drinking water, the Board 
presented the Valencia High School ASB with a Certificate of Recognition for their efforts in the 
Global Water Crisis (Item 5.1).  
 

-------------- 
 
Upon motion of Director Cooper, seconded by Director Marks and carried, the Board approved 
the Consent Calendar including Resolution No. SCV-333 by the following roll call votes (Item 
6):  
 
Director Armitage   Yes   Director Braunstein   Yes 
Director Colley   Absent   Director Cooper   Yes  
Vice President Gutzeit  Yes   Director Marks   Yes 
President Martin   Yes    Vice President Orzechowski  Yes 

7

ajacobs
Draft

ajacobs
Item 5.1



Minutes of February 21, 2023 
Page 2 of 4 
 
 
Director Petersen   Absent 
 

RESOLUTION NO. SCV-333 
 

JOINT RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE COUNTY OF LOS 
ANGELES ACTING IN BEHALF OF LOS ANGELES COUNTY GENERAL FUND, LOS 

ANGELES COUNTY CONSOLIDATED FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT, LOS ANGELES 
COUNTY FLOOD CONTROL, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SANTA CLARITA 
VALLEY SANITATION DISTRICT OF LOS ANGELES COUNTY, AND THE GOVERNING 

BODIES OF THE GREATER LOS ANGELES COUNTY VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT, CITY 
OF SANTA CLARITA, SANTA CLARITA LIBRARY AND SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER 
AGENCY APPROVING AND ACCEPTING NEGOTIATED EXCHANGE OF PROPERTY TAX 

REVENUES RESULTING FROM ANNEXATION TO SANTA CLARITA VALLEY SANITATION 
DISTRICT ANNEXATION NO. 1115 

 
https://www.yourscvwater.com/sites/default/files/SCVWA/approved-

resolutions/scv/SCV-Water-Approved-Resolution-022123-Resolution-SCV-333.pdf 
 

-------------- 
 
Upon motion of Vice President Orzechowski, seconded by Vice President Gutzeit and carried, 
the Board (1) approved Resolution No. SCV-334 authorizing a deposit to Metropolitan Water 
District of Southern California and (2) approved a purchase order to Metropolitan Water District 
of Southern California for planning and engineering services for the Foothill Feeder Service 
Connection CLWA-01 Pipe Repair project which is exempt from CEQA pursuant to CEQA 
Guidelines Section 15301, and alternatively, Section 15303, and authorized approval of the 
deposit by the following roll call votes (Item 7.1):  
 
Director Armitage   No   Director Braunstein   Yes 
Director Colley   Absent   Director Cooper   Yes  
Vice President Gutzeit  Yes   Director Marks   Yes 
President Martin   Yes    Vice President Orzechowski  Yes 
Director Petersen   Absent  
 

RESOLUTION NO. SCV-334 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY 

AUTHORIZING THE DEPOSIT OF FUNDS TO METROPOLITAN WATER DISTRICT OF 
SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA FOR THE FOOTHILL FEEDER TURNOUT CLWA-01 REPAIRS 

PROJECT, WHICH IS EXEMPT FROM CEQA UNDER CEQA GUIDELINES SECTION 15301, 
AND ALTERNATIVELY, SECTION 15303, AND  

AUTHORIZING THE DEPOSIT 
 
https://www.yourscvwater.com/sites/default/files/SCVWA/approved-resolutions/scv/SCV-

Water-Approved-Resolution-022123-Resolution-SCV-334%28R%29.pdf 
 

-------------- 
 
 
 

8

https://www.yourscvwater.com/sites/default/files/SCVWA/approved-resolutions/scv/SCV-Water-Approved-Resolution-022123-Resolution-SCV-333.pdf
https://www.yourscvwater.com/sites/default/files/SCVWA/approved-resolutions/scv/SCV-Water-Approved-Resolution-022123-Resolution-SCV-333.pdf
https://www.yourscvwater.com/sites/default/files/SCVWA/approved-resolutions/scv/SCV-Water-Approved-Resolution-022123-Resolution-SCV-334%28R%29.pdf
https://www.yourscvwater.com/sites/default/files/SCVWA/approved-resolutions/scv/SCV-Water-Approved-Resolution-022123-Resolution-SCV-334%28R%29.pdf


Minutes of February 21, 2023 
Page 3 of 4 
 
 
General Manager’s Report on Activities, Projects and Programs (Item 8). 
 
General Manager Stone reported on the following:  
 
He advised the Board that he will be attending the Urban Water Institute Spring Conference in 
Palm Springs this week. He will be participating on a panel with other water agency general 
managers discussing various takes on the question "How they set priorities around what needs 
to be changed, and how to effect changes." 
 
He updated the Board on his meeting with a group of about 20 water agency managers from 
around the State to discuss climate change and water supply reliability. This is an ongoing 
dialogue aimed at establishing the nature and scale of the challenge, developing a vision for 
making "generational" scale water investments, collaborating with key stakeholders, and 
addressing the pace of progress, as well as barriers. He stated it was a good chance to hear 
some of the perspectives as well as some of the initiatives that are underway.  
 
He informed the Board that he attended the State Water Contractors meetings last week. Some 
highlights from that meeting was the Governors Executive Order, as well as the Department of 
Water Resources filing a Temporary Urgency Change Petition with the State Water Resources 
Control Board requesting a temporary variance from the "X2" Delta salinity requirement.   
 
Lastly, he noted that he had a chance this weekend to visit Bridgeport Park and take a peek 
over the fence at our pocket park project which is now under construction. He encouraged 
everyone to take a peek if they happen to be at the park.  
 
To hear the full report please click on the following link at 
https://www.yourscvwater.com/sites/default/files/SCVWA/board-
meetings/2023/scv/February-21-2023-SCV-Water-Regular-Board-Meeting.mp3. 
 

-------------- 
 
Committee Meeting Recap Report for Informational Purposes Only (Item 9). 
 
Director Armitage listened in on the February 2, 2023 Engineering and Operations Committee 
meeting and enjoyed the Quarterly Safety Presentation presented by Environmental Health and 
Safety Supervisor Rebecca Lustig. She thought Ms. Lustig did a fantastic job presenting a very 
detailed report. To hear Director Armitage’s full comments, please refer to the Board recording 
at https://www.yourscvwater.com/sites/default/files/SCVWA/board-
meetings/2023/scv/February-21-2023-SCV-Water-Regular-Board-Meeting.mp3. 
 
There were no other comments on the recap report. 
 

-------------- 
 
President’s Report (Item 10). 
 
The President updated the Board on upcoming community meetings and conferences, and 
upcoming Board and Committee meetings.  
 

-------------- 
 

9

https://www.yourscvwater.com/sites/default/files/SCVWA/board-meetings/2023/scv/February-21-2023-SCV-Water-Regular-Board-Meeting.mp3
https://www.yourscvwater.com/sites/default/files/SCVWA/board-meetings/2023/scv/February-21-2023-SCV-Water-Regular-Board-Meeting.mp3
https://www.yourscvwater.com/sites/default/files/SCVWA/board-meetings/2023/scv/February-21-2023-SCV-Water-Regular-Board-Meeting.mp3
https://www.yourscvwater.com/sites/default/files/SCVWA/board-meetings/2023/scv/February-21-2023-SCV-Water-Regular-Board-Meeting.mp3


Minutes of February 21, 2023 
Page 4 of 4 
 
 
AB 1234 Written and Verbal Reports (Item 11). 
 
Written reports were submitted by President Martin which were posted on the SCV Water 
website and are part of the record. 
 
Director Armitage reported that she virtually attended the ACWA Water Quality Committee 
meeting held on February 15, 2023 and virtually attended the Executive Committee Meeting of 
the Special Districts Association of North Los Angeles County on February 16, 2023. 
 
Director Cooper reported that he virtually attended both the ACWA Groundwater Committee and 
ACWA Water Quality Committee meetings held on February 15, 2023. 
 
There were no other AB 1234 Reports. 
 

-------------- 
 

Director Requests for Future Agenda Items (Item 12). 
 
Director Braunstein asked the Board to consider opening Board meetings with a land 
acknowledgement that the Agency is sitting on Tataviam land.   
 
There were no other requests for future Agenda Items. 
 

-------------- 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:17 PM (Item 13). 
 
 
 
              
         April Jacobs, Board Secretary 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
     
President of the Board 
 

10



BOARD MEMORANDUM 

SUMMARY 

The State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) offers incentive funds to public water 
systems (PWS) to encourage the consolidation of small community water systems (SCWS) into 
public water systems, and especially for SCWS that serve disadvantaged communities. 
Because SCV Water has executed a financing agreement with the SWRCB to consolidate two 
(2) disadvantaged communities – Los Angeles Residential Community (LARC) and Lily of the 
Valley Mobile Village (LOV) – both of which are not currently served by a PWS, the SWRCB 
informed SCV Water that it is eligible to receive a combination of grant and loan funds as 
follows: up to $1.1 million in Incentive Grant Funds, $5 million in Emerging Contaminants (EC) 
Grant Funds, up to $10 million in zero percent (0%) interest loans, and low interest Drinking 
Water State Revolving Fund (SRF) funds (no cap) that may be used for one or more eligible 
project(s) chosen by SCV Water. SCV Water staff has selected the T7, U4, and U6 wells PFAS 
treatment and disinfection project as one of the eligible incentive projects, and is preparing a 
Financial Assistance Application pursuant to authorizing Resolution SCV-240 (Attachment 1). 
The SWRCB has informed SCV Water that the application must include an adopted 
Reimbursement Resolution (Attachment 2) that applies the use of loan funds for the project in 
order to comply with certain Internal Revenue Service regulations.

DISCUSSION 

Project Scope and Background: LARC and LOV both operate community water systems for 
their residents. Due to extended drought conditions in Southern California and lack of 
groundwater recharge in the Bouquet Canyon Creek area, LARC has been unable operate its 
wells and has been forced to haul water to meet the needs of its residents. LOV’s water 
supply could face similar constraints. SCV Water will construct a new pipeline that will extend 
over one and three-quarter miles along Bouquet Canyon Road to the LARC and LOV 
properties.  

LARC and LOV have formally requested, by respective resolutions, to consolidate with SCV 
Water via master meter consolidations and to relinquish their water supply permits. Under the 
terms of the master meter consolidation and associated water service agreements, LARC and 
LOV will continue to own and be responsible for the operation and maintenance of the onsite 
distribution system downstream of the master meter(s), including necessary backflow 
prevention devices. SCV Water’s only responsibility will be to provide water to the LARC and 
LOV properties at the master water meter(s). LARC and LOV properties are within the existing 
SCV Water service area. 

DATE: February 28, 2023 

TO: Board of Directors 

FROM: Rochelle Patterson, Chief Financial and Administrative Officer 
Courtney Mael, P.E., Chief Engineer 

SUBJECT: Adopt a Resolution to Declare Intent to Reimburse Capital Expenditures for a 
Groundwater Treatment Project Using Incentive Grant and Loan Funds from 
the State Water Resources Control Board to Comply with Internal Revenue 
Service Regulations 

11

ajacobs
Item 5.2

ajacobs
Rochelle Patterson

ajacobs
Courteny Mael



 

 
Consolidation Project Funds: SCV Water executed a financing agreement with the SWRCB 
for grant funds on behalf of LARC and LOV, pursuant to SCV Water resolution SCV-245 to 
consolidate LARC and LOV with SCV Water and to construct a new 8-inch diameter pipeline 
sized to serve LARC and LOV. SCV Water has opted to upsize the pipeline to 12-inch 
diameter to allow other existing developed areas (e.g., ranches, businesses) that currently rely 
on private wells to connect to the pipeline, subject to payment of connection fees and 
construction of new services. The marginal cost to upsize the pipeline would initially be funded 
from the SCV Water Capital Improvement Program currently approved in the FY 2022/23 CIP 
budget.  
 
Incentive Funds: Since SCV Water will receive grant funds to consolidate LARC and LOV with 
SCV Water, the SWRCB has informed SCV Water that it is eligible to receive $1.1 million in 
Incentive Grant Funds, up to $5 million in EC grant funds, up to $10 million in zero percent (0%) 
interest loans, and low interest SRF loan funds (no cap). The SWRCB has informed SCV Water 
that these Incentive Funds may be used for one or more eligible construction projects chosen by 
SCV Water.  
 
SCV Water submitted an initial General Application on June 30, 2021 to the SWRCB to earmark 
$24 million dollars for Groundwater Contamination Treatment projects. SCV Water has selected 
two PFAS treatment projects to receive Incentive Funds from the SWRCB and will restore 
inactive wells to service: Project 1 is for T7, U6, and U7 PFAS treatment and disinfection, and 
Project 2 is for S6, S7, and S8 PFAS treatment and disinfection. SCV Water will submit a 
financial assistance application to the SWRCB for each Project based on their respective 
construction schedules. Project 1 is expected to start construction in fourth quarter 2023 and be 
completed by first quarter 2025. Project 2 is expected to start construction in second quarter 
2024 and be completed by first quarter 2026. SCV Water staff will seek approval for the 
financial assistance agreement for each Project following SWRCB approvals. The total financial 
assistance from the SWRCB is expected to be approximately $28.5M as described in the 
financial considerations below. The SWRCB is earmarking the additional funds for Groundwater 
Contamination Treatment Projects to reflect the additional $4.5M.  
 
SCV Water staff have submitted the financial assistance application for Project 1 for SWRCB 
review, including general, environmental, technical, and financial packages. An application for 
Project 2 will be prepared and submitted to the SWRCB by fourth quarter 2023. 
 
The SWRCB has informed SCV Water that a Reimbursement Resolution must be adopted 
and submitted along with the Project 1 financial assistance application for SWRCB review to 
comply with certain Internal Revenue Service (IRS) regulations. The IRS regulations prescribe 
certain requirements, including a declaration of official intent to reimburse expenditures paid 
prior to issuance of the bond(s), by which proceeds of tax-exempt bonds used to reimburse 
advances made for capital expenditures paid before the issuance of such bonds may be 
deemed “spent” and therefore, not further subject to any other requirements or restrictions 
under certain sections of the Internal Revenue Code.  
 
CEQA CONSIDERATIONS 
 
SCV Water adopted the Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND) and Mitigation Monitoring and 
Reporting Program (MMRP) for the proposed consolidation project to construct the proposed 
pipeline in Bouquet Canyon Road by Resolution 3158 on March 8, 2017.  
 

12



 

The Incentive Project 1 is categorically exempt under CEQA Guidelines 15301 because the 
project construction is a minor alteration of existing facilities within the Agency’s existing 
property. A Notice of Exemption was filed with the County of Los Angeles on July 29, 2021.  
 
The SWRCB informed SCV Water that a cultural and biological study must be performed for 
Incentive Project 1 to qualify for certain SWRCB funds to comply with federal cross-cutting 
requirements. SCV Water has completed these studies and submitted them to the SWRCB as 
part of the environmental package for review.   
 
On February 27, 2023, the Finance and Administration Committee considered staff’s 
recommendation to adopt a resolution to declare intent to reimburse capital expenditures for a 
groundwater treatment project using incentive grant and loan funds from the State Water 
Resources Control Board to comply with Internal Revenue Service regulations. 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN NEXUS 
 
This project helps meet SCV Water’s Strategic Plan Objective “E.1 – Increase focus on forward 
looking financial information” by pursing grant and loan funds from the SWRCB to fund a project 
that meets Strategic Objective “D.2 – Proactively install, operate, and maintain groundwater 
treatment infrastructure to avoid impacts on water supply reliability.”  
 
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 
None. Project action is to pursue incentive project funds associated with the consolidation of 
LARC and LOV with SCV Water.   
 
The total cost for Project 1 is estimated to be $16,649,966 for planning, design, and construction 
and will be covered by a combination of grant and loan funds as follows: SWRCB Funds for 
$15,136,104 broken down as Incentive Grant ($1.1M), EC Grant ($5M), and zero percent (0%) 
loan ($9,036,104); and Department of Water Resources (DWR) Grant ($1,513,862) from the 
Proposition 1 Integrated Regional Water Management (IRWM) Round 2 Implementation Grant 
program.  
 
The total cost for Project 2 is estimated to be $18,400,000 for planning, design, and 
construction. SCV Water anticipates funds for this project will be a combination of grant and 
loan funds as follows: SWRCB funds for $13,400,000 broken down as zero percent (0%) loan 
($963,896) and low interest SRF loan ($12,436,104); and DWR Grant ($5M) from the 
WaterSmart Drought Response Program.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Finance and Administration Committee recommends that the Board of Directors adopt the 
attached resolution that declares its official intent to reimburse capital expenditures paid prior to 
approval by the State Water Resources Control Board for the Groundwater Treatment Incentive 
Project 1 (PFAS Treatment and Disinfection for T7, U4, and U6 wells) using incentive grant and 
loan funds from the State Water Resources Control Board to comply with Treasury Regulation 
Section 1.150-2 and other Internal Revenue Service regulations. 
 
Attachments 

13

ajacobs
Matt Stone



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

14



15

edill
Attachment 1



16



RESOLUTION NO. ____ 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY 

TO DECLARE INTENT TO REIMBURSE CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 
FOR A GROUNDWATER TREATMENT PROJECT 
USING INCENTIVE GRANT AND LOAN FUNDS 

FROM THE STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD 
TO COMPLY WITH INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE REGULATIONS 

WHEREAS, it is the intent of the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) to 
promote consolidation where appropriate and feasible, especially for small community 
water systems (SCWS) serving severely disadvantaged communities (SDACs) and 
disadvantaged communities (DACs); and 

WHEREAS, the SWRCB has determined that the Los Angeles Residential Community 
(LARC) is a SDAC and is eligible for grant funding to consolidate its water system with 
Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency (SCV Water or Agency) via a “Master Meter 
Consolidation,” and 

WHEREAS, the SWRCB has determined that the Royce Lily of the Valley LLC dba Lily 
of the Valley Mobile Village (LOV) is a DAC and is eligible for grant funding to 
consolidate its water system with SCV Water via a “Master Meter Consolidation,” and  

WHEREAS, LARC and LOV are located within the service boundary of SCV Water; 
however, SCV Water’s infrastructure does not currently extend to the LARC or LOV 
properties; and 

WHEREAS, the SWRCB issued an Agreement for a Drinking Water Construction Grant 
and Loan, AGREEMENT NO. SWRCB0000000000D2002059, by and between SCV 
Water and the SWRCB to fund the Project (Agreement), and the Agreement has been 
duly executed pursuant to Resolution SCV-245; and 

WHEREAS, the SWRCB offers incentive funding to encourage the consolidation of 
SCWS with public water systems (PWS), especially for SCWS that serve SDACs and 
DACs and are not currently served by a PWS; and these incentive funds are in addition 
to funding for the consolidation project(s); and 

WHEREAS, because SCV Water has executed a Financing Agreement with the 
SWRCB to consolidate the LARC and LOV communities, which are not currently served 
by a PWS, via “Master Meter Consolidations,” the SWRCB has informed SCV Water that 
it is eligible to receive incentive funds as follows: up to $1.1 million in grant funds, and up 
to $10 million in zero percent (0%) interest rate financing (Incentive Funding). The 
SWRCB has informed SCV Water that Incentive Funding may be used for one or more 
eligible construction project(s) chosen by SCV Water, e.g., groundwater contamination 
treatment projects (Incentive Project). In addition to this Incentive Funding, the SWRCB 
has informed SCV Water that Incentive Funding may be combined with other DWSRF 
financing options to fully fund an Incentive Project; and 

ATTACHMENT 2

17



 

WHEREAS, the SCV Water Agency Board of Directors adopted Resolution SCV-240 to 
apply for the Incentive Funding associated with the consolidation project(s) for 
Groundwater Treatment Projects; and 
 
WHEREAS, in order to earmark Incentive Funds, the SWRCB required that SCV Water 
submit a DWSRF General Application before execution of the funding agreement for the 
associated consolidation project(s). SCV Water submitted the DWSRF General 
Application to the SWRCB for the Incentive Funding on June 30, 2021 prior to executing 
the funding agreement for the Master Meter Consolidation projects for LARC and LOV in 
February 2022 pursuant to Resolution SCV-245. The General Application requested up 
to $24 million for groundwater contamination treatment projects needed to restore 
certain currently inactive water supply wells to active use; and 
 
WHEREAS, SCV Water is preparing a Financial Assistance Application for a financing 
agreement with the SWRCB for the planning, design, and construction of groundwater 
treatment for the T7, U4, and U6 wells designated as Project 1 of the Incentive Funding 
program; and 
 
WHEREAS, the SWRCB has informed SCV Water that it must submit a stand-alone 
Reimbursement Resolution for the portion of the Incentive  Funding covered by SWRCB 
loans as part of the Financial Assistance Application; and  
 
WHEREAS, SCV Water desires to finance the costs of constructing and/or 
reconstructing certain public facilities and improvements relating to its water system, 
including certain treatment facilities, pipelines, and other infrastructure (the Project); and 
 
WHEREAS, the Agency intends to finance the construction and/or reconstruction of the 
Project or portions of the Project with moneys (Project Funds) provided by the State of 
California, acting by and through the SWCB; and 
 
WHEREAS, the SWRCB may fund the Project Funds with proceeds from the sale of 
obligations the interest upon which is excluded from gross income for federal income tax 
purposes (the "Obligations"), and 
 
WHEREAS, prior to either the issuance of the Obligations or the approval by the 
SWRCB of the Project Funds the Agency desires to incur certain capital expenditures 
(the "Expenditures") with respect to the Project from available moneys of the Agency; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the Agency has determined that those moneys to be advanced on and after 
the date hereof to pay the Expenditures are available only for a temporary period and it 
is necessary to reimburse the Agency for the Expenditures from the proceeds of the 
Obligations. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY DOES 
HEREBY RESOLVE, ORDER AND DETERMINE AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1.  The Agency hereby states its intention and reasonably expects to 
reimburse Expenditures paid prior to the issuance of the Obligations or the approval by 
the SWCB of the Project Funds. 
 

18



 

SECTION 2.  The reasonably expected maximum principal amount of the Project 
Funds is $15,136,104. 
 
SECTION 3.  This resolution is being adopted no later than 60 days after the date on 
which the Agency will expend moneys for the construction portion of the Project costs to 
be reimbursed with Project Funds. 
 
SECTION 4.  Each Agency expenditure will be of a type properly chargeable to a 
capital account under general federal income tax principles. 
 
SECTION 5.  To the best of our knowledge, this Agency is not aware of the previous 
adoption of official intents by the Agency that have been made as a matter of course for 
the purpose of reimbursing expenditures and for which tax-exempt obligations have not 
been issued. 
 
SECTION 6.  This resolution is adopted as official intent of the Agency in order to 
comply with Treasury Regulation §1.150-2 and any other regulations of the Internal 
Revenue Service relating to the qualification for reimbursement of Project costs. 
 
SECTION 7.  All the recitals in this Resolution are true and correct, and this Agency so 
finds, determines, and represents. 
 

19



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

20



In
te

nt
 t

o 
Re

im
bu

rs
e 

Ca
pi

ta
l 

Ex
pe

nd
it

ur
es

 f
or

 G
ro

un
dw

at
er

 
Tr

ea
tm

en
t 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

U
si

ng
 In

ce
nt

iv
e 

G
ra

nt
 

an
d 

Lo
an

 F
un

ds
 f

ro
m

 S
W

RC
B 

M
ar

ch
 7

, 
20

23

Bo
ar

d 
of

 D
ir

ec
to

rs
 M

ee
ti

ng

21



O
ve

rv
ie

w
 o

f 
M

as
te

r 
M

et
er

 C
on

so
lid

at
io

n 
Pr

oj
ec

ts

•
SC

V 
W

at
er

 w
ill

 b
ui

ld
 9

,6
00

 f
ee

t 

of
 1

2-
in

ch
 d

uc
ti

le
 ir

on
 p

ip
el

in
e 

to
 

se
rv

e 
LO

V/
LA

RC
 (

an
d 

ot
he

rs
 

al
on

g 
th

e 
pi

pe
lin

e 
ro

ut
e)

•
SC

V 
W

at
er

 w
ill

 s
up

pl
y 

w
at

er
 t

o 

LA
RC

 a
nd

 L
O

V 
vi

a 
M

as
te

r 
M

et
er

s

•
LA

RC
 a

nd
 L

O
V 

w
ill

 c
on

ti
nu

e 
to

 

o w
n 

an
d 

m
ai

nt
ai

n 
on

-s
it

e 

di
st

ri
bu

ti
on

 s
ys

te
m

s

2

22



In
ce

nt
iv

e 
Fu

nd
in

g 
is

 A
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

w
it

h 
Co

ns
ol

id
at

io
n 

Pr
oj

ec
ts

•
Co

ns
ol

id
at

io
n 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

w
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 
sa

fe
 a

nd
 r

el
ia

bl
e 

w
at

er
 s

up
pl

y 
fo

r 
LO

V 
an

d 
LA

RC
 c

om
m

un
it

ie
s 

 

•
St

at
e 

of
fe

rs
 In

ce
nt

iv
e 

Fu
nd

in
g 

to
 

en
co

ur
ag

e 
co

ns
ol

id
at

io
n 

of
 s

m
al

l 
co

m
m

un
it

y 
w

at
er

 s
ys

te
m

s 
w

it
h 

pu
bl

ic
 w

at
er

 s
ys

te
m

s

•
In

ce
nt

iv
e 

Fu
nd

s 
ar

e 
in

 a
dd

it
io

n 
to

 
co

ns
ol

id
at

io
n 

gr
an

t 
fu

nd
s

3

23



Fi
na

nc
ia

l A
ss

is
ta

nc
e 

Av
ai

la
bl

e 
fo

r 
Co

ns
ol

id
at

io
n 

an
d 

In
ce

nt
iv

e 
Pr

oj
ec

ts
•

Co
ns

ol
id

at
io

n 
G

ra
nt

 f
un

ds
 w

ill
 c

ov
er

 a
ll 

pr
oj

ec
t 

co
st

s 
fo

r 
LA

RC
 a

nd
 L

O
V 

po
rt

io
n

•
~ 

$3
.9

 M
ill

io
n 

fo
r 

8-
in

ch
 p

ip
el

in
e 

(s
iz

ed
 f

or
 L

AR
C 

&
 L

O
V 

on
ly

)

•
SC

V 
W

at
er

 w
ill

 p
ay

 f
or

 p
ip

el
in

e 
up

si
ze

 t
o 

12
-i

nc
h

•
~ 

$1
,5

00
,0

00
 -

FY
 2

02
2/

23
 C

IP

•
SC

V 
W

at
er

 q
ua

lif
ie

s 
fo

r 
fu

nd
in

g 
fo

r 
“I

nc
en

ti
ve

” 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

LA
RC

/L
O

V 
co

ns
ol

id
at

io
n

•
$1

.1
 M

ill
io

n 
G

ra
nt

•
$1

0 
M

ill
io

n,
 0

% 
Lo

an

•
In

ce
nt

iv
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

Fu
nd

in
g 

m
ay

 b
e 

co
m

bi
ne

d 
w

it
h 

ot
he

r 
Dr

in
ki

ng
 W

at
er

 S
ta

te
 R

ev
ol

vi
ng

 F
un

ds
 

(D
W

SR
F)

 a
nd

 a
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

fu
nd

s 
to

 c
ov

er
 t

ot
al

 c
os

t 
of

 in
ce

nt
iv

e 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 

•
$5

 M
ill

io
n 

G
ra

nt
 f

ro
m

 E
m

er
gi

ng
 C

on
ta

m
in

an
ts

 

•
Cu

rr
en

tl
y 

no
 c

ap
 o

n 
ad

di
ti

on
al

 lo
w

 in
te

re
st

 lo
an

 f
ro

m
 D

W
SR

F

4

24



In
ce

nt
iv

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
1 

–
PF

A
S 

Tr
ea

tm
en

t 
an

d 
D

is
in

fe
ct

io
n 

fo
r 

T7
, 

U
4 

an
d 

U
6 

W
el

ls

•T
ot

al
 C

os
t 

~ 
$1

6.
7 

M
ill

io
n

•D
es

ig
n 

Ph
as

e 
@

 9
0%

•S
ta

rt
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

by
 4

th

Q
ua

rt
er

 2
02

3
•C

om
pl

et
e 

Co
ns

tr
uc

ti
on

 b
y 

1s
t

Q
ua

rt
er

 2
02

5

25



In
ce

nt
iv

e 
Pr

oj
ec

ts
 &

 F
un

di
ng

 S
ou

rc
es

   
 

•
In

ce
nt

iv
e 

Fu
nd

in
g 

m
ay

 b
e 

us
ed

 f
or

 o
ne

 o
r 

m
or

e 
el

ig
ib

le
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

ch
os

en
 b

y 
SC

V 
W

at
er

 

•
SC

V 
W

at
er

 h
as

 s
el

ec
te

d 
2 

el
ig

ib
le

 P
FA

S 
Tr

ea
tm

en
t 

an
d 

di
si

nf
ec

ti
on

 p
ro

je
ct

s:

•
Pr

oj
ec

t 
1:

 C
en

tr
al

iz
ed

 P
FA

S 
tr

ea
tm

en
t 

an
d 

di
si

nf
ec

ti
on

 f
or

 w
el

ls
 T

7,
 U

4 
an

d 
U

6 
($

16
.6

 M
ill

io
n)

 

•
SW

RC
B 

Fi
na

nc
in

g

•
In

ce
nt

iv
e 

G
ra

nt
 …

 $
1.

1 
M

ill
io

n

•
Em

er
gi

ng
 C

on
ta

m
in

an
ts

 G
ra

nt
 …

 $
5 

M
ill

io
n

•
Ze

ro
 (

0%
) 

lo
an

 …
 ~

 $
9 

M
ill

io
n

•
DW

R 
G

ra
nt

 …
 ~

 $
1.

5 
M

ill
io

n 

•
Pr

oj
ec

t 
2:

 C
en

tr
al

iz
ed

 P
FA

S 
tr

ea
tm

en
t 

an
d 

di
si

nf
ec

ti
on

 f
or

 W
el

ls
 S

6,
 S

7 
an

d 
S8

 (
$1

8.
4 

M
ill

io
n)

•
DW

R 
G

ra
nt

 …
 $

5 
M

ill
io

n

•
SW

RC
B 

Fi
na

nc
in

g 
(T

BD
)

•
In

ce
nt

iv
e 

fu
nd

in
g 

co
ve

rs
 p

la
nn

in
g,

 d
es

ig
n 

an
d 

co
ns

tr
uc

ti
on

•
Ap

pr
ov

ed
 f

un
di

ng
 is

 r
et

ro
ac

ti
ve

 t
o 

in
cl

ud
e 

pl
an

ni
ng

 a
nd

 d
es

ig
n 

pe
rf

or
m

ed
 p

ri
or

 t
o 

SW
RC

B 
ap

pr
ov

al

6

26



St
ep

s 
&

 S
ch

ed
ul

e 
fo

r 
Fi

na
nc

ia
l A

ss
is

ta
nc

e 
A

pp
lic

at
io

n 
&

 A
pp

ro
va

l f
or

 P
ro

je
ct

 1

•
SC

V 
W

at
er

 m
us

t 
ap

pl
y 

fo
r 

In
ce

nt
iv

e 
Fu

nd
s,

 a
s 

fo
llo

w
s:


Su

bm
it

 a
n 

in
it

ia
l G

en
er

al
 A

pp
lic

at
io

n 
to

 e
ar

m
ar

k 
fu

nd
s 

(c
om

pl
et

ed
 J

un
e 

30
, 

20
21

) 


Pr

ov
id

e 
Au

th
or

iz
in

g 
Re

so
lu

ti
on

 f
ro

m
 S

CV
 W

at
er

 B
oa

rd
 (

co
m

pl
et

ed
 N

ov
em

be
r 

2,
 2

02
1)

•
Su

bm
it

 F
un

di
ng

 A
pp

lic
at

io
n(

s)
 (

G
en

er
al

, 
En

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l,

 T
ec

hn
ic

al
, 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l P
ac

ka
ge

s)


Su

bm
it

te
d 

Fu
nd

in
g 

Ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

fo
r 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

1 
(F

eb
ru

ar
y 

13
, 

20
23

)

•
Su

bm
it

 R
ei

m
bu

rs
em

en
t 

Re
so

lu
ti

on
 f

or
 P

ro
je

ct
 1

 (
M

ar
ch

 2
02

3)

•
Pl

an
 t

o 
su

bm
it

 F
un

di
ng

 A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

fo
r 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

2 
(F

ou
rt

h 
qu

ar
te

r 
20

23
)

•
Ex

ec
ut

e 
Fi

na
nc

in
g 

Ag
re

em
en

t 
fo

r 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
1 

~ 
Ju

ly
 2

02
3 

(T
BD

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
SW

RC
B 

re
vi

ew
)

•
M

us
t 

co
m

pl
et

e 
co

ns
tr

uc
ti

on
 o

f 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
1 

w
it

hi
n 

3 
ye

ar
s 

of
 e

xe
cu

ti
ng

 f
in

an
ci

ng
 a

gr
ee

m
en

t

7

27



LA
RC

/L
O

V 
Co

ns
ol

id
at

io
n 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

U
pd

at
e 

 

•
Fi

na
liz

e 
Ag

re
em

en
ts

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
by

 S
W

RC
B 

fo
r 

fu
nd

in
g 

ap
pr

ov
al

 
o

W
at

er
 S

er
vi

ce
 A

gr
ee

m
en

t 
be

tw
ee

n 
SC

V 
W

at
er

 a
nd

 L
AR

C 
(R

ea
dy

)

o
W

at
er

 S
er

vi
ce

 A
gr

ee
m

en
t 

be
tw

ee
n 

SC
V 

W
at

er
 a

nd
 L

O
V 

(P
en

di
ng

)

•
Pr

oj
ec

t 
Co

ns
tr

uc
ti

on

o
Fi

na
liz

e 
de

si
gn

 p
la

ns
 a

nd
 b

id
 d

oc
um

en
ts

 (
Se

co
nd

 Q
ua

rt
er

 2
02

3)

o
Ad

ve
rt

is
e 

fo
r 

Bi
ds

 (
Su

m
m

er
 2

02
3)

o
Aw

ar
d 

Pi
pe

lin
e 

Co
ns

tr
uc

ti
on

 (
SC

V 
W

at
er

 B
oa

rd
 A

pp
ro

va
l,

 T
hi

rd
 Q

ua
rt

er
 2

02
3)

o
Co

m
pl

et
e 

Pi
pe

lin
e 

Co
ns

tr
uc

ti
on

 (
by

 y
ea

r 
en

d 
20

24
)

8

28



In
ce

nt
iv

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
Fu

nd
in

g 
Re

co
m

m
en

da
ti

on
  

Th
at

 t
he

 B
oa

rd
 o

f 
D

ir
ec

to
rs

:

•
Ad

op
t 

a 
re

so
lu

ti
on

 t
ha

t 
de

cl
ar

es
 it

s 
of

fi
ci

al
 in

te
nt

 t
o 

re
im

bu
rs

e 
ca

pi
ta

l e
xp

en
di

tu
re

s 

pa
id

 p
ri

or
 t

o 
ap

pr
ov

al
 b

y 
th

e 
St

at
e 

W
at

er
 R

es
ou

rc
es

 C
on

tr
ol

 B
oa

rd
 f

or
 t

he
 

G
ro

un
dw

at
er

 T
re

at
m

en
t 

In
ce

nt
iv

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
1 

(P
FA

S 
Tr

ea
tm

en
t 

an
d 

Di
si

nf
ec

ti
on

 f
or

 T
7,

 

U
4 

an
d 

U
6 

w
el

ls
) 

us
in

g 
in

ce
nt

iv
e 

gr
an

t 
an

d 
lo

an
 f

un
ds

 f
ro

m
 t

he
 S

W
RC

B 
to

 c
om

pl
y 

w
it

h 
Tr

ea
su

ry
 R

eg
ul

at
io

n 
Se

ct
io

n 
1.

15
0-

2 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

In
te

rn
al

 R
ev

en
ue

 S
er

vi
ce

 

re
gu

la
ti

on
s.

9

29



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

30



BOARD MEMORANDUM 
 
 
 
DATE:  February 28, 2023 
 
TO:   Board of Directors 
 
FROM:  Rochelle Patterson 
  Chief Financial and Administrative Officer 
 
SUBJECT: Approve a Revised Debt Management Policy 
              
 
SUMMARY 
 
Management recommends approval of the attached (Attachment 1) revised Debt Management 
Policy for the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
The revised Debt Management Policy adds guidelines, which will assist staff to determine 
if/when new issuances of debt are appropriate and also expands the definition of debt 
financings, to include federal or state credit programs or loans, such as the credit program 
through the US Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), Water Infrastructure and Finance 
Innovation Act (WIFIA) or the Clean Water State Revolving Fund (CWSRF) loan program.  
 
Major Capital Improvement Projects (CIP) have traditionally been debt-financed both to address 
fluctuations in Facility Capacity Fee revenues and to address generational equity for projects 
with a useful life of more than 10 years. The revised policy requires that a project is determined 
to be of major, non-recurring items for improvements with a minimum of 20-30 years of useful 
life. This is to ensure that the useful life of the CIP project will have a useful life that is consistent 
with the repayment terms. Debt financings spreads the cost of capital improvements out over 
time and allows each generation to pay for what it uses. The projects currently being 
recommended for debt financing (Attachment 2) have useful lives of 20 to 50 years. Each of 
these projects is allocated to future and existing users and the associated debt service identified 
as future users is paid by Facility Capacity Fees.  
 
In addition, Section 4.12 was added to comply with Government Code Section 8855(k), which 
requires that the Agency submit annual debt transparency reports for every outstanding debt, 
until the debt is no longer outstanding and Government Code Section 5852.1 which requires the 
Agency to provide good faith estimates in a public meeting, prior to the issuance of debt. 
 
No new debt would be issued without thorough review with, and approval of the Board of 
Directors as stated in the Debt Management Policy. 
 
On February 27, 2023, the Finance and Administration Committee considered staff’s 
recommendation to approve the attached revised Debt Management Policy. 
 
 

31

ajacobs
Item 5.3

ajacobs
Rochelle Patterson



STRATEGIC PLAN NEXUS 
 
The revision of this policy supports SCV Water’s Strategic Plan Strategy E.1: Increase focus on 
forward looking financial information. 
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 
None at this time. 
 
RECOMMENDATION  
 
The Finance and Administration Committee recommends that the Board of Directors approve 
the attached revised Debt Management Policy. 
 
RP 
 
Attachments 

32

ajacobs
Matt Stone



 

 
POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS 

 
Title:    DEBT MANAGEMENT POLICY 

Approval Date: April 2018March 
2023 

Effective Date: April 2018March 
2023 

Approved By: Board of Directors DMS #14890 
 

 

 

DEBT MANAGEMENT POLICY April 2018March 2023 1 of 11 

DEBT MANAGEMENT POLICY 
 
1.0 INTRODUCTION 

The Agency’s overriding goal in issuing debt is to respond to, and provide for, the 
infrastructure, capital project and other financing needs the Agency’s water system while 
ensuring that debt is issued and managed prudently in order to maintain a sound fiscal 
position and protect credit quality.   

 
The issuance of long-term debt is a valuable funding resource for the Agency. Used 
appropriately and prudently, long-term debt can stabilize the Agency’s charges and rates 
over time. Debt can provide an equitable means of financing projects for customers of 
the Agency and provide access to new capital needed for infrastructure and project 
needs.  
 
1.1 Debt may be used to meet financing needs if Long-term debt financings are 

appropriate when the following conditions exist: 
• When unrestricted cash and cash reserves fall below 80% of target levels 
• When the project (i) it meets the goals of equitable treatment of all Agency 

customers, respectively, both current and future 
• When total debt outstanding does not constitute an unreasonable burden to 

the Agency and its ratepayers 
• When, (ii) it is the most cost-effective means available to the Agency, (iii) it is 

fiscally prudent, responsible, and diligent under the prevailing economic 
conditions, and (iv) if 

• When the debt is used to refinance outstanding debt in order to generate debt 
service savings or to realize the benefits of a debt restructuring 

• If the projects are determined to be of major, non-recurring items or 
improvements with a minimum of 20-30 years of useful life 

• If there are other important policy reasons thereof. 
 

1.2 Long-term debt financings will not be considered appropriate for current 
operating expenses and routine maintenance expenses 

 
1.3 The Agency may use long-term debt financings subject to the following 
conditions: 

• The project to be financed must be approved by the Agency Board of 
Directors 

• The Agency estimates that sufficient revenues will be available to service 
debt through its maturity 

33

edill
Attachment 1



 

 
POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS 

 
Title:    DEBT MANAGEMENT POLICY 

Approval Date: April 2018March 
2023 

Effective Date: April 2018March 
2023 

Approved By: Board of Directors DMS #14890 
 

 

 

DEBT MANAGEMENT POLICY April 2018March 2023 2 of 11 

• The Agency has determined that assets being acquired have a long useful 
life and the Agency wants to allocate or distribute the cost of the asset among 
both current and future users 

• The availability of significant, incremental and typically discretionary 
revenues, including capital reserves for the replacement of capital assets is 
limited or restricted 

• The Agency determines that the issuance of the debt will comply with the 
applicable state and federal law. 

• The Agency determines that the issuance of debt will comply with the existing 
financial covenants 

 
2.0 STATEMENT OF PURPOSE 

The Agency may utilize reasonable debt financing as an acceptable and appropriate 
approach to fund long-term facility investments and thus ensure that existing and future 
users pay their fair share. If able to do so, the Agency may use the pay-as-you-go 
method of using current revenues to pay for long-term infrastructure and other projects. 
This method is preferred when sufficient discretionary revenues and or reserves are 
available and long-term borrowing rates are higher than expected. For growth-related 
projects, debt financing may be utilized, as needed, to better match the cost of 
anticipated facility needs with timing of expected new connections to the system and 
spread the costs evenly over time. 

 
2.1 Purposes and Use of Debt 

The Agency will utilize reasonable debt financing as an acceptable and 
appropriate approach to fund long-term investments and thus ensure that 
existing and future users pay their fair share. Long-term capital investments 
include the acquisition of land, facilities, works, improvements and supplies of 
water; and enhancements or enlargements to existing capacity and facilities for 
obtaining, importing, transporting and delivering additional quantities of 
water.  These investments are typically included in the Agency’s Capital 
Improvement Program and Data Document. Bond proceedsDebt financings can 
be issued to fund the planning, design, land acquisition, construction, attached 
fixtures or equipment and movable pieces or equipment, or other costs as 
permitted by law. Bond proceedsDebt financings can also be used to refinance 
obligations of the wholesale systemAgency. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

34



 

 
POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS 

 
Title:    DEBT MANAGEMENT POLICY 

Approval Date: April 2018March 
2023 

Effective Date: April 2018March 
2023 

Approved By: Board of Directors DMS #14890 
 

 

 

DEBT MANAGEMENT POLICY April 2018March 2023 3 of 11 

2.2 Purpose of Policy 
The purpose of a debt management policy is to:  

 
• Establish parameters for issuing debt 
• Provide guidance to decision makers: 

o With respect to all options available to finance infrastructure, capital 
projects, and other financing needs 

o So that the most prudent, equitable and cost effective method of 
financing can be chosen 

• Document the objectives to be achieved by staff both prior to issuance and 
subsequent to issuance 

• Promote objectivity in the decision-making process  
• Facilitate the financing process by establishing important policy decisions in 

advance 
 

The Agency will adhere to the following legal requirements for the issuance of 
public debt:  
 
• The state law which authorizes the issuance of the debt 
• The federal and state laws which govern the eligibility of the debt for tax-

exempt status 
• The federal and state laws which govern the issuance of tax-exempt debt 
• The federal and state laws, which govern disclosure, sale, and trading of the 

debt 
 

3.0 GENERAL PROVISIONS 
The Agency will provide for a periodic review of its financial performance, and review its 
performance relative to the financial policies outlined herein. These financial policies will 
be taken into account during the capital planning, budgeting, and rate setting process. 

 
Necessary appropriations for annual debt service requirements will be routinely included 
in the Agency’s annual budget. 

 
The Agency will maintain proactive communication with the investment community, 
including rating agencies, credit enhancers and investors, to ensure future capital market 
access at the lowest possible interest rates. 

 
The Agency’s Debt Management Policy, Reserve Policy and the Statement of 
Investment Policy are integrated into the decision-making framework utilized in the 

35



 

 
POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS 

 
Title:    DEBT MANAGEMENT POLICY 

Approval Date: April 2018March 
2023 

Effective Date: April 2018March 
2023 

Approved By: Board of Directors DMS #14890 
 

 

 

DEBT MANAGEMENT POLICY April 2018March 2023 4 of 11 

budgeting and capital improvement planning process. As such, the following principles 
outline the Agency’s approach to debt management. 

 
• The Agency will issue debt only in the case where there is an identified source of 

repayment. Bonds Debt will be issued incurred to the extent that (i) projected 
existing revenues are sufficient to pay for the proposed debt service together with 
all existing debt service covered by such existing revenues, or (ii) additional 
projected revenues have been identified as a source of repayment in an amount 
sufficient to pay for the proposed debt. That is, the maximum amount of a debt 
issue will be determined in part by conditions (i) and (ii) above. 
 

• The Agency will not issue debt to finance operating needs except in case of an 
extreme financial emergency which is beyond its control or reasonable ability to 
forecast, and unless specifically approved by the Board of Directors. 

 
• Debt issuance for a capital project will not be considered unless such project has 

been incorporated into the Agency’s capital planning process, or as otherwise 
approved by the Board of Directors. 

 
4.0 CONDITIONS FOR DEBT ISSUANCE 

The following guidelines formally establish parameters for evaluating, issuing, and 
managing the Agency’s debt. The guidelines outlined below are not intended to serve as 
a list of rules to be applied to the Agency’s debt issuance process, but rather to serve as 
a set of practices to promote sound financial management. 
 
In issuing debt, the Agency’s objectives will be to: 

 
• Achieve the lowest cost of capital 
• Ensure ratepayer equity for the Agency’s customers 
• Maintain the adopted credit rating strategy and access to credit enhancement 
• Preserve financial flexibility 

 
4.1 Standards for Use of Debt Financing 

When appropriate, the Agency will use long-term debt financing to achieve an 
equitable allocation of capital costs/charges between current and future 
system users, to provide more manageable rates in the near and medium 
term and to minimize rate volatility. 

 

36



 

 
POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS 

 
Title:    DEBT MANAGEMENT POLICY 

Approval Date: April 2018March 
2023 

Effective Date: April 2018March 
2023 

Approved By: Board of Directors DMS #14890 
 

 

 

DEBT MANAGEMENT POLICY April 2018March 2023 5 of 11 

The Agency shall not construct or acquire a facility if it is unable to 
adequately provide for the subsequent annual operation and maintenance 
costs of the facility throughout its expected life. 

 
Capital projects financed through debt issuance will not be financed for a 
term longer than the expected useful life of the project. 

 
4.2 Types of Debt 

Revenue bonds, federal or state credit programs or loans, Ccertificates of 
pParticipation, refunding revenue bonds, commercial paper, capital leases and 
lease-purchase financing will be treated as debt and subject to these same 
policies. 

 
4.3 Debt Capacity 

There is no specific provision within the California Government Code that limits 
the amount of debt that may be issued by the Agency. The Agency’s borrowing 
capability is limited by the debt coverage ratio required by the existing bond debt 
covenants.   

 
4.4 Financing Criteria 

Each debt issuance should be evaluated on an individual basis within the context 
of the Agency’s overall financing objectives and current market conditions. 

 
The Agency will evaluate alternative debt structures (and timing considerations) 
to ensure the most cost-efficient financing under prevailing market conditions.  

 
4.4.1 Credit Enhancement – the Agency will consider the use of credit 

enhancement on a case-by-case basis.  Only when clearly demonstrable 
savings can be realized shall credit enhancement be utilized. 
 

4.4.2 Cash-Funded Reserve vs. Surety – If the issuance of debt requires a 
cash-funded Debt Service Reserve Fund, then the Agency may purchase 
a surety policy or replace an existing cash-funded Debt Service Reserve 
Fund when deemed prudent and advantageous.  The Agency may permit 
the use of guaranteed investment agreements for the investment of 
reserve funds pledged to the repayment of any of the Agency’s debt when 
it is approved by the Board of Directors. 
 

4.4.3 Call Provisions – In general, the Agency’s securities should include 
optional call provisions.  The Agency will avoid the sale of non-callable, 

37



 

 
POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS 

 
Title:    DEBT MANAGEMENT POLICY 

Approval Date: April 2018March 
2023 

Effective Date: April 2018March 
2023 

Approved By: Board of Directors DMS #14890 
 

 

 

DEBT MANAGEMENT POLICY April 2018March 2023 6 of 11 

long-term fixed rate bonds, absent careful evaluation of the value of the 
call option. 
 
 
 

4.4.4 Additional Bonds Test/Rate Covenants – The amount and timing of debt 
will be planned to comply with the additional bonds tests and rate 
covenants outlined in the appropriate legal and financing documents, and 
this policy. 

 
4.4.5 Short-Term Debt – The Agency may utilize short-term borrowing to serve 

as a bridge for anticipated revenues, construction financing or future 
bonding capacity. 

 
4.4.6 Variable Rate Debt – Variable rate debt products are priced at the short-

end of the yield curve at low interest rates, but subject to various risks. 
Variable rate debt may be appropriate for the Agency’s portfolio, 
depending on market conditions and a careful consideration of the risks 
involved. Variable rate debt products include variable rate demand 
obligations, commercial paper, and other obligations which have interest 
rates adjusting periodically. The Agency may consider the use of variable 
rate debt products to achieve a lower cost of borrowing or for short-term 
borrowing. In determining whether or not to use variable rate debt, the 
Agency will analyze the risk associated with the variable rate debt and the 
impact on the Agency’s overall portfolio. The principal amount of variable 
rate debt products, including those synthetically fixed through the use of 
derivative products, shall not exceed 25% of total Agency outstanding 
debt.   

 
4.4.7 Derivatives – The use of derivatives is covered by the Agency’s 

Derivatives Policy. This policy states that is has been developed to guide 
the Agency in its use of interest rate risk mitigation products such as 
interest rate swaps and other such financing techniques. These financing 
products can increase Agency financial flexibility and provide 
opportunities for interest rate savings or enhanced investment yields. 
Careful monitoring of such products is required to preserve Agency credit 
strength and budget flexibility. Derivatives will not be used to speculate on 
perceived movements in interest rates. The notional amount of derivative 
products shall not exceed 15% of total Agency outstanding debt. The 
notional principal amount, in a derivative project, is the predetermined 
dollar amount on which the exchanged payments are based. The notional 

38



 

 
POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS 

 
Title:    DEBT MANAGEMENT POLICY 

Approval Date: April 2018March 
2023 

Effective Date: April 2018March 
2023 

Approved By: Board of Directors DMS #14890 
 

 

 

DEBT MANAGEMENT POLICY April 2018March 2023 7 of 11 

principal never changes hands in the transaction, which is why it is 
considered notional, or theoretical. Neither party pays nor receives the 
notional principal amount at any time; only interest rate payments change 
hands. More detailed information is contained in the Derivatives Policy. 

 
4.4.8 Upper Santa Clara Valley Joint Powers Authority – The Agency is a 

member of the Upper Santa Clara Valley Joint Powers Authority. The 
Agency will consider issuing revenue bonds, or federal or state loan 
programs through the Authority on a case-by-case basis. The Agency will 
only issue revenue bondsdebt through the Authority only when clearly 
demonstrable savings can be realized. 

 
4.4.9 Investment of Bond Proceeds - Bond proceeds will be invested in 

accordance with the permitted investment language outlined in the bond 
documents for each transaction, unless further restricted or limited in the 
Agency’s Statement of Investment Policy. The Agency will seek to 
maximize investment earnings within the investment parameters set forth 
in the respective debt financing documentation. The reinvestment of bond 
proceeds will be incorporated into the evaluation of each financing 
decision; specifically addressing arbitrage/rebate position, and evaluating 
alternative debt structures and refunding savings on a “net” debt service 
basis, where appropriate. 

 
4.5 Refinancing Outstanding Debt 

The Treasurer shall have the responsibility to evaluate potential refunding 
opportunities. The Agency will consider the following issues when analyzing 
potential refinancing opportunities: 

 
Debt Service Savings – The Agency shall establish a target savings level equal 
to 3% for current refundings and 5% for advance refundings of the par of debt 
refunded on a net present value (NPV) basis. The target savings levels serve 
only as a guidelines and the Agency may determine that different savings targets 
are appropriate; the Agency shall evaluate each refunding opportunity on a case-
by-case basis. In addition to the savings guideline, the following shall be taken 
into consideration:  

 
• Remaining time to maturity 
• Size of the issue 
• Current interest rate environment 
• Annual cash flow savings 

39



 

 
POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS 

 
Title:    DEBT MANAGEMENT POLICY 

Approval Date: April 2018March 
2023 

Effective Date: April 2018March 
2023 

Approved By: Board of Directors DMS #14890 
 

 

 

DEBT MANAGEMENT POLICY April 2018March 2023 8 of 11 

• The value of the call option 
 

The decision to take all savings upfront or on a deferred basis must be 
explicitly approved by the Board of Directors.  

 
 

4.5.1 Restructuring – The Agency may seek to refinance a bond issue on a 
non-economic basis, in order to restructure debt, to mitigate irregular debt 
service payments, accommodate revenue shortfalls, release reserve 
funds, or comply with and/or eliminate rate/bond covenants. 

 
4.5.2 Term/Final Maturity – The Agency may consider the extension of the final 

maturity of the refunding bonds in order to achieve a necessary outcome, 
provided that such extension is legal. The term of the bonds should not 
extend beyond 120% of the reasonably expected useful life of the asset 
being financed. The Agency may also consider shortening the final 
maturity of the bonds. The remaining useful life of the assets and the 
concept of inter-generational equity will guide these decisions.  

 
4.5.3 Economic versus Legal Defeasance - When evaluating an economic 

versus legal defeasance, the Agency shall take into consideration both 
the financial impact on a net present value basis as well as the 
rating/credit impact. The Agency shall take all necessary steps to 
optimize the yield on its refunding escrows investments and avoid 
negative arbitrage. 

 
4.6 Outstanding Debt Limitations 

Prior to issuance of new debt, the Agency shall consider and review the latest 
credit rating agency reports and guidelines to ensure the Agency’s credit 
ratings and financial flexibility remain at levels consistent with the most highly 
rated comparable public agencies. 

 
4.7 Method of Issuance 

The Agency will determine, on a case-by-case basis, whether to sell its bonds 
competitively or through negotiation. 

 
4.7.1 Competitive Sale – In a competitive sale, the Agency’s bonds shall be 

awarded to the bidder providing the lowest true interest cost (TIC), as 
long as the bid adheres to the requirements set forth in the official notice 
of sale. 

 

40



 

 
POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS 

 
Title:    DEBT MANAGEMENT POLICY 

Approval Date: April 2018March 
2023 

Effective Date: April 2018March 
2023 

Approved By: Board of Directors DMS #14890 
 

 

 

DEBT MANAGEMENT POLICY April 2018March 2023 9 of 11 

4.7.2 Negotiated Sale – The Agency recognizes that some bond issues are 
best sold through negotiation with a selected underwriter. The Agency 
has identified the following circumstances below in which this would likely 
be the case: 

 
 

• Issuance of variable rate or taxable bonds 
 

• Complex structures or credit considerations (such as non-rated 
bonds), which require a strong pre-marketing effort. Significant par 
value, which may limit the number of potential bidders, 
unique/proprietary financing mechanism (such as a financing 
pool), or specialized knowledge of financing mechanism or 
process 
  

• Market volatility, such that the Agency would be better served by 
flexibility in the timing of its sale, such as in the case of a 
refunding issue wherein the savings target is sensitive to interest 
rate fluctuations, or in a changing interest rate environment 
 

• When an underwriter has identified new financing opportunities or 
presented alternative structures that financially benefit the Agency 
 

• As a result of an underwriter’s familiarity with the project/financing, 
that enables the Agency to take advantage of efficiency and timing 
considerations 
 

4.7.3 Private Placement – From time to time the Agency may elect to issue 
debt on a private placement basis. Such method shall be considered if it 
is demonstrated to result in cost savings or provide other advantages 
relative to other methods of debt issuance, or if it is determined that 
access to the public market is unavailable and timing considerations 
require that a financing be completed. 

 
4.8 Internal Controls 

The Agency will maintain segregation of duties and will provide reconciliation and 
documentation controls. 
 
To ensure bond proceeds from bond sales are used in accordance with legal 
requirements, invoices are submitted by the appropriate Project Manager and are 

41



 

 
POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS 

 
Title:    DEBT MANAGEMENT POLICY 

Approval Date: April 2018March 
2023 

Effective Date: April 2018March 
2023 

Approved By: Board of Directors DMS #14890 
 

 

 

DEBT MANAGEMENT POLICY April 2018March 2023 10 of 11 

approved for payment by the appropriate Department Manager and/or delegated 
staff/supervisor, the Controller and the General Manager for payment. In the 
case of an issuance of bonds for which the proceeds will be used by a 
government entity other than the Agency, the Agency may rely upon a 
certification by such other governmental entity that it has adopted the policies 
described in SB 1029. 
 
A separate fund and/or account will be setup to hold proceeds from bond sales to 
ensure only properly approved invoices are paid as permitted per legal 
requirements. 
 
Debt issuance transactions are approved by the Board of Directors. 
 
Responsibility for general ledger reconciliations and records is segregated from 
the invoice processing, cash receipting and cash disbursement functions. 
 

4.9 Market Communication, Debt Administration and Reporting Requirements 
Rating Agencies – The Treasurer shall be responsible for maintaining the 
Agency’s relationships with Standard & Poor's Ratings ServicesS&P Global 
Ratings, Fitch Ratings, and Moody’s Investors Service, to the extent the Agency 
has ratings from such firms. The Agency shall from time to time, maintain 
relationships with these agencies as circumstances dictate. The Agency may 
choose based upon market conditions the number of ratings to obtain for any 
individual debt issuance. In addition to general communication, the Treasurer 
should attempt to meet (either in person or via phone or email) with credit 
analysts at least once each fiscal year. The Treasurer shall prior to each 
competitive or negotiated sale, offer conference calls or meeting(s) with rating 
agency analysts in connection with the planned sale. 

 
4.10 Observance of Debt Covenants – The Treasurer will periodically ensure that the 

Agency is in compliance with all legal covenants for each debt issue.  
 
4.11 Continuing Disclosure – The Treasurer will periodically confirm that all debt 

issued is in compliance with Rule 15c2-12(b)(5) by required filing as covenanted 
in each debt issue’s Continuing Disclosure Agreement. 

 
4.12 State Reporting Requirements – Pursuant to Government Code Section 8855(k), 

the Agency will submit annual debt transparency reports for any debt for which it 
has submitted a report of final sale on or after January 21, 2017 every year until 
the later date on which the debt is no longer outstanding and the proceeds have 
been fully spent. The Agency shall comply with Government Code Section 

42



 

 
POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS 

 
Title:    DEBT MANAGEMENT POLICY 

Approval Date: April 2018March 
2023 

Effective Date: April 2018March 
2023 

Approved By: Board of Directors DMS #14890 
 

 

 

DEBT MANAGEMENT POLICY April 2018March 2023 11 of 11 

5852.1 by disclosing specified good faith estimates in a public meeting prior to 
the authorization of the issuance of debt. 

 
4.13 Record Keeping – A copy of all debt-related records shall be retained at the 

Agency’s offices or in an approved storage facility. At minimum, these records 
shall include all official statements, bid documents, bond documents/transcripts, 
resolutions, trustee statements, leases, and title reports for each financing (to the 
extent available). To the extent possible, the Agency shall retain an electronic 
copy of each document, preferably in PDF or CD-ROM format. 
 

4.1314 Arbitrage Rebate – The use of bond proceeds and their investments must be 
monitored to ensure compliance with all Internal Revenue Code Arbitrage Rebate 
Requirements. The Treasurer shall ensure that all bond proceeds and 
investments are tracked in a manner that facilitates accurate calculation; if a 
rebate payment is due, such payment is made in a timely manner. 

 
4.1415 Policy Review – This policy should be reviewed periodically by the Board and 

updated as needed. This policy is intended to comply with SB 1029. 
 
(Originally Adopted April 2018; revised March 2023) 

43



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

44



Debt Financed Projects

FY 2023 through FY 2032

Capital Project Description

FY 2022/23 

Revised

10 Year                           

FY 2024 -          

FY 2033

Useful 

Life

As-Needed Regulatory Support for Non-Potable Recycled Water Permitting 100,000$       50,000$            N/A
New Water Banking Program (AVEK/Mid Valley/Rosedale) 2,300,000$    27,000,000$     20
Sites Reservoir 1,000,000$    19,900,000$     20
Castaic Conduit 4,200,000$    13,120,000$     50
Honby Parallel 100,000$       25,650,000$     50
LARC Pipeline* 1,500,000$    750,000$          50
Magic Mountain Pipeline No. 4 250,000$       6,000$              50
Magic Mountain Pipeline No. 5 250,000$       6,000$              50
Magic Mountain Pipeline No. 6 3,400,000$    14,000$            50
Newhall Ave Railroad Crossing -$              2,500,000$       50
Recycled Water Fill Station 1,000,000$    5,000$              50
Recycled Water Program Phase II, 2A - Central Park 1,000$           3,000$              50
Recycled Water Program Phase II, 2B - Vista Canyon Backbone 200,000$       2,000,000$       50
Recycled Water Program Phase II, 2C - South End Backbone 6,000,000$    7,500,000$       50
Magic Mountain Reservoir 3,000,000$    32,100,000$     50
Magic Mountain Reservoir 2 -$              45,400,000$     50
Sand Canyon Reservoir Expansion -$              17,600,000$     30
Southern Service Area Reservoir -$              17,150,000$     50
ESFP Sludge Collection System 15,000,000$  10,675,000$     35
Mitchell 5A Replacement 150,000$       5,000,000$       30
Well 201 VOC Groundwater Treatment Improvements 3,300,000$    1,010,000$       30
Additional Wells (T7, U4, U6) (includes S1&S2 Wells VOC Treatment & Flextend) -$              13,000,000$     30
E Wells (E-14, E-15, E-16, E-17) -$              8,200,000$       30
S Wells (S6, S7 and S8) -$              14,000,000$     30
Santa Clara and Honby Wells -$              2,825,000$       30
Saugus Dry Year Reliability Wells 5 & 6 230,000$       42,125,000$     30
Well E-14 Site Improvements -$              6,275,000$       30
Well E-16 Site Improvements -$              6,275,000$       30

41,981,000$  320,139,000$   

Existing Bond Proceeds (2020A) ($18,171,470)
23,809,530$  23,809,530$     

Funding Needed 343,948,530$   

45

edill
Attachment 2



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

46



 

BOARD MEMORANDUM 
 
 

 
SUMMARY 
 
In 2011, the Mission Village Environmental Impact Report (EIR) was certified by Los Angeles 
County which analyzed the environmental impacts of the Mission Village development which 
included supporting facilities and infrastructure. The Addendum to the Mission Village EIR, 
attached as Exhibit “A” to the resolution (Attachment 1), was prepared to identify one of the 
three proposed water storage tanks discussed in the Mission Village EIR, namely the 
Backcountry Reservoir, and includes the Backcountry Pump Station which supplies water to 
the Backcountry Reservoir. The Addendum address potential environmental effects of the 
construction and operation of the project which consists of the Backcountry Reservoir and 
Backcountry Pump Station. The project will provide emergency and operational water storage 
supply in Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency’s west-side zone.  
 
DISCUSSION 
 
The 2011 Mission Village EIR analyzed the environmental impacts of the Mission Village 
development and supporting facilities and infrastructure including potable water facilities. 
Mission Village is one of five (5) villages within the Newhall Ranch Specific Plan. The Newhall 
Ranch Specific Plan and Final Newhall Ranch Specific Plan Program EIR were approved and 
certified by Los Angeles County in 2003. The Mission Village EIR was tiered from the Newhall 
Ranch Specific Plan Program EIR. These documents can be accessed at the following: 
 

Mission Village EIR:  
https://planning.lacounty.gov/assets/upl/case/tr_061105_feir.pdf 

 
Additional documents related to the Mission Village EIR: 
https://planning.lacounty.gov/mission-village/ 

 

DATE: February 3, 2023 
 

TO: Board of Directors 
 

FROM: Courtney Mael, P.E. 
Chief Engineer 
 

SUBJECT Approve Adopting (1) a Resolution Approving the Addendum to the Mission 
Village Environmental Impact Report, Approving the Backcountry Reservoir 
and Backcountry Pump Station Projects, and Adopting the Mitigation 
Monitoring and Reporting Program Under the California Environmental 
Quality Act Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15164 for the Backcountry 
Pump Station and Backcountry Reservoir Projects; and (2) a Resolution 
Authorizing a Purchase Order to Cannon Corp. for Final Design Services for 
the Backcountry Pump Station Project and a Purchase Order to Michael 
Baker International, Inc. for Final Design Services for the Backcountry 
Reservoir Project  

47

https://planning.lacounty.gov/assets/upl/case/tr_061105_feir.pdf
https://planning.lacounty.gov/mission-village/
ajacobs
Item 6.1

ajacobs
Courteny Mael



 

Newhall Ranch Specific Plan:  
https://planning.lacounty.gov/view/newhall_ranch_specific_plan/ 

 
Identifying one of the three (3) reservoirs discussed in the Mission Village EIR, Michael Baker 
International, Inc. (MBI) performed planning services for the Magic Mountain Reservoir, 
renamed the Backcountry Reservoir, to plan and determine the maximum attainable storage 
volume and provide preliminary design criteria for the facility. Subsequently, preliminary 
hydraulic analysis determined that a pump station is required to supply the Backcountry 
Reservoir. In 2020, MBI performed planning services for the Magic Mountain Pump Station, 
renamed the Backcountry Pump Station, identifying a preliminary site layout and equipment 
requirements needed for the pump station.  
 
With preliminary planning for the Backcountry Pump Station and Backcountry Reservoir 
completed, Woodard & Curran was tasked to prepare an Addendum to the Mission Village EIR 
to address CEQA compliance. The proposed project would create 7.9 million-gallons (MG) of 
emergency and operational storage and a pump station to pump water toward the Backcountry 
Reservoir. Additionally, a turnout facility located at the Backcountry Pump Station facility will 
provide flow control, metering, and pipeline connections between the regional and distribution 
water systems.  
 
On May 27, 2022, staff issued a Request for Proposal (RFP) to several of SCV Water’s on-call 
consultants for professional engineering services for the Backcountry Pump Station final 
design needed to construct a new potable water pump station to feed the Backcountry 
Reservoir including a turnout facility. On June 29, 2022, staff received proposals from three 
(3) consultants: Cannon Corporation, Lee & Ro, Inc., and Michael Baker International, Inc. 
The proposals were reviewed and evaluated by staff from Engineering and Operations, and 
Maintenance. The evaluation team reviewed the proposals based on the qualifications-based 
selection procedure applying the following criteria: responsiveness (conformance and 
compliance) to the RFP requirements, project understanding, project approach, 
responsibilities (resources/ capability/ qualifications/ availability) to perform the work, scope of 
work, and schedule. The evaluation team selected Cannon Corporation as the firm to provide 
the final design services for the Backcountry Pump Station. 
 
Similarly, on May 27, 2022, staff issued a RFP to several of SCV Water’s on-call consultants 
for professional engineering services for the Back Country Reservoir final design needed to 
construct a new potable water storage facility. On July 7, 2022, staff received proposals from 
four (4) consultants: Cannon Corporation, Lee & Ro, Inc., Michael Baker International, Inc, 
and MNS Engineers, Inc. The proposals were reviewed and evaluated by staff from 
Engineering and Operations, and Maintenance. The evaluation team reviewed the proposals 
based on the qualifications-based selection procedure applying the following criteria: 
responsiveness (conformance and compliance) to the RFP requirements, project 
understanding, project approach, responsibilities (resources/ capability/ qualifications/ 
availability) to perform the work, scope of work, and schedule. The evaluation team selected 
Michael Baker International, Inc., as the firm to provide the final design services for the 
Backcountry Reservoir. 
 
Although not required for CEQA Compliance, SCV Water has posted this addendum on its 
website for public review from November 30, 2022, to present. Staff have received no 
comments regarding this document.  
 
 

48

https://planning.lacounty.gov/view/newhall_ranch_specific_plan/


 

Below is the link to the addendum on SCV Water’s website:  
 
https://www.yourscvwater.com/sites/default/files/SCVWA/departments/engineering/environment
al-review/Addendum-to-Mission-Village-EIR-For-Backcountry-Reservoir-and-Pump-Station-
Project.pdf 
 
CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT (CEQA) CONSIDERATIONS 
 
With the assistance of Woodard & Curran, an Addendum to the Mission Village EIR was 
prepared to analyze the potential environmental impacts associated with the construction and 
operation of the Backcountry Reservoir and Backcountry Pump Station. Additionally, a 
Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program (MMRP) was prepared for Backcountry Pump 
Station and Backcountry Reservoir, attached hereto as Exhibit “B” to the resolution (Attachment 
1), in accordance with the requirements of the CEQA and the State CEQA Guidelines. 
 
In accordance with Section 15164 of the State CEQA Guidelines, the lead agency or 
responsible agency shall prepare an Addendum to a previously certified EIR if some changes or 
additions are necessary. Furthermore, the conditions that require preparation of a subsequent 
EIR, as described in Section 15162 of the CEQA Guidelines are not met, therefore an 
Addendum to the EIR is the appropriate level of environmental documentation for this review 
per CEQA Guidelines Section 15164.  
 
The proposed project does not represent a substantial change in the Mission Village 
development requiring major revisions to the Mission Village EIR, nor does it result in a 
substantial change in circumstances requiring major revisions to the Mission Village EIR. Based 
on the Environmental Checklist and discussions found in the Addendum, the proposed project 
would not result in any new significant impacts that were not previously identified in the Mission 
Village EIR and no new mitigation measures are required.  
 
FINAL CEQA DOCUMENTS FOR BOARD APPROVAL 
 
The State CEQA Guidelines Section 15164 require the decision-making body to consider the 
Addendum to the Mission Village EIR prior to making a decision on the project. Adoption of the 
Addendum to the Mission Village EIR is dependent on the finding by the Board of Directors that, 
based on the whole record before it, there is no substantial evidence that the proposed projects 
will have a significant impact on the environment, and that the Addendum to the Mission Village 
EIR reflects the responsible agencies independent judgement and analysis. 
 
The environmental analysis in the Addendum and all feasible mitigation measures identified in 
the Mission Village EIR will be incorporated into the resolutions approving the project. 
 
All the above documentation, including other materials that constitute the record of proceedings 
upon which the responsible agencies decisions are based, is on file at Santa Clarita Valley 
Water Agency, 26521 Summit Circle, Santa Clarita, CA 91350. 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN NEXUS 
 
These projects will help meet SCV Water’s objective and Strategic Plan Objective B.1: “Plan, 
design and build facilities to meet demand including storage capacity and interconnections 

49

https://www.yourscvwater.com/sites/default/files/SCVWA/departments/engineering/environmental-review/Addendum-to-Mission-Village-EIR-For-Backcountry-Reservoir-and-Pump-Station-Project.pdf
https://www.yourscvwater.com/sites/default/files/SCVWA/departments/engineering/environmental-review/Addendum-to-Mission-Village-EIR-For-Backcountry-Reservoir-and-Pump-Station-Project.pdf
https://www.yourscvwater.com/sites/default/files/SCVWA/departments/engineering/environmental-review/Addendum-to-Mission-Village-EIR-For-Backcountry-Reservoir-and-Pump-Station-Project.pdf


 

between regional and retail water systems.” and B.2: “Plan and budget for long-term 
replacements and improvements.” 
 
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 
These projects are included in the Agency’s FY 2022/23 Budget. The Backcountry Reservoir 
final design services will be performed on a time and materials basis with a not-to exceed 
amount of $1,500,000. The Backcountry Pump Station final design services will be performed 
on a time and materials basis with a not-to-exceed amount of $1,000,000. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Board of Directors: 
 

A. Adopt the attached resolution adopting the Addendum to the Mission Village EIR, 
approving the Backcountry Reservoir and Backcountry Pump Station projects, and 
adopting the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program for the Backcountry Reservoir 
and Backcountry Pump Station projects; and  
 

B. Adopt the attached resolution (Attachment 2) authorizing a purchase order to Michael 
Baker International, Inc., for an amount not-to-exceed of $1,500,000 for final design 
services for the Backcountry Reservoir project and purchase order to Cannon 
Corporation for an amount not-to-exceed of $1,000,000 for final design services for the 
Backcountry Pump Station project.  

Attachments 
 

50

ajacobs
Matt Stone



RESOLUTION NO. SCV-XXX 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF  
THE SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY  

ADOPTING THE ADDENDUM TO THE MISSION VILLAGE ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT 
REPORT, APPROVING THE BACKCOUNTRY RESERVOIR AND BACKCOUNTRY PUMP 
STATION PROJECT, AND ADOPTING THE MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING 

PROGRAM UNDER THE CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT  
FOR THE PROJECT  

WHEREAS, Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency (Agency) desires to take steps to increase the 
reliability of its existing water system; and 

WHEREAS, the Agency’s Capital Improvement Program includes construction of the Agency’s 
future Backcountry Reservoir and Backcountry Pump Station Project (formerly known as Magic 
Mountain Reservoir and Magic Mountain Pump Station); and  

WHEREAS, on October 25, 2011, the County of Los Angeles, as the lead agency under the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), certified the Mission Village Environmental Impact 
Report (Mission Village EIR) which analyzed the impacts of the proposed Mission Village mixed-
use development; and 

WHEREAS, the Mission Village development is one of five villages within the Newhall Ranch 
Specific Plan, a large-scale mixed-use community located in unincorporated Los Angeles 
County; and  

WHEREAS, the Newhall Ranch Specific Plan and Final Newhall Ranch Specific Plan Program 
EIR was certified by Los Angeles County and the Specific Plan approved in 2003; and  

WHEREAS, as part of the certifications, Los Angeles County adopted Findings of Fact, 
Statement of Overriding Considerations and a Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program for 
both the Newhall Ranch Specific Plan Program EIR and Mission Village EIR; and 

WHEREAS, the Agency, as the responsible agency, has now prepared, evaluated and adopted 
an Addendum to the Mission Village EIR (Exhibit A) pursuant to CEQA Guideline section 15162 
to determine if, when taking subsequent discretionary actions in furtherance of a project for 
which an EIR has been adopted, the Agency is required to under Public Resources Code 
section 21166 and CEQA Guidelines section 15162 to conduct additional environmental review; 
and  

WHEREAS, the Addendum to the Mission Village EIR has been prepared by Woodard and 
Curran and analyzed the potential environmental impacts associated with the Backcountry 
Reservoir and Backcountry Pump Station modifications to the Mission Village Project; and  

WHEREAS, the environmental evaluation of the Addendum to the Mission Village EIR 
concluded that there are no substantial changes proposed in the modified project, nor 
substantial changes in the circumstances under which the modified project would be 
undertaken, which would require major revisions of the Addendum to the Mission Village EIR 
due to new significant environmental effects or a substantial increase in the severity of 

ATTACHMENT 1

51



previously identified significant effects such that subsequent environmental review would be 
required; and  

WHEREAS, the environmental evaluation of the Addendum to the Mission Village EIR has 
concluded that impacts of the modified project would not result in any new significant impacts 
that were not previously identified in the Mission Village EIR and no new mitigation measures 
are required. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Board of 
Directors has reviewed and considered the Addendum to the Mission Village EIR and 
supporting materials and finds that those documents taken together contain a completed and 
accurate reporting of all of the environmental impacts associated with the project.  

SECTION 1. RECITALS. The Board further finds that the Addendum to the Mission 
Village EIR has been completed in compliance with CEQA, the CEQA Guidelines, and that the 
Addendum and supporting materials, taken together, reflect the Board’s independent judgment. 

SECTION 2. COMPLIANCE WITH THE CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL  
QUALITY ACT. As a decision-making body for the Project, the SCV Water Board has reviewed 
and considered the information contained in the Addendum to the Mission Village EIR, 
comments received, and other documents contained in the administrative record for the 
modified project (the Backcountry Reservoir and Backcountry Pump Station Project). Based on 
the Agency’s independent review and analysis, the SCV Water Board finds that the Addendum 
and administrative record contain a complete and accurate reporting of the environmental 
impacts associated with the modified project, and that the Addendum has been completed in 
compliance with CEQA and the State CEQA Guidelines. 

SECTION 3. FINDINGS ON ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS. Based on the whole record 
before it, including the Addendum, the administrative record, and all other written and oral 
evidence presented to the SCV Water Board, the SCV Water Board finds that all environmental 
impacts of the modified project are either less than significant or can be mitigated to a level of 
less than significant under the mitigation measures outlined in the Addendum and Mitigation 
Monitoring and Reporting Program. The SCV Water Board finds that substantial evidence fully 
supports the conclusion that no significant and unavoidable impacts will occur and that, 
alternatively, there is no substantial evidence in the administrative record supporting a fair 
argument that the modified project may result in any significant environmental impacts. The 
SCV Water Board finds that the Addendum contains a complete, objective, and accurate 
reporting of the environmental impacts associated with the modified project and reflects the 
independent and analysis of the SCV Water Board.  

SECTION 4. ADOPTION OF THE ADDENDUM TO THE MISSION VILLAGE EIR. The 
SCV Water Board hereby approves and adopts the Addendum to the Mission Village EIR, 
attached hereto as Exhibit “A”, as the Lead Agency.  

SECTION 5. APPROVING THE BACKCOUNTRY RESERVOIR AND BACKCOUNTRY 
PUMP STATION. The SCV Water Board hereby approves to modified project consisting of the 
Backcountry Reservoir and Backcountry Pump Station.  

SECTION 6. ADOPTION OF THE MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING 
PROGRAM. In accordance with Public Resources Code section 21081.6, the SCV Water Board 
hereby adopts the MMRP, attached hereto as Exhibit “B”. In the event of any inconsistencies 

52



between the Mitigation Measures as set forth in the Addendum and the MMRP, the MMRP shall 
control.  

SECTION 7. LOCATION AND CUSTODIAN OF RECORDS. The documents and 
materials that constitute the record of proceedings on which this resolution has been based are 
located at the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Summit Circle Office at 27234 Bouquet 
Canyon Road, Santa Clarita, CA 91350. The custodian for these records is the Board Secretary 
April Jacobs. This information is provided in compliance with Public Resources Code section 
21081.6. 

SECTION 8. NOTICE OF DETERMINATION. The SCV Water hereby directs staff to 
prepare, execute, and file a Notice of Determination with the Los Angeles County Clerk’s office 
and he Office of Planning and Research within five (5) working days of adoption of this 
Resolution.  

53



[This page intentionally left blank.] 

54



woodardcurran.com 
COMMITMENT & INTEGRITY DRIVE RESULTS 

24422 Avenida de la Carlota, Suite 180 
Laguna Hills, CA 92653 

949.420.5300 

Addendum to Mission Village 
Environmental Impact Report 

SCH# 2005051143 

Backcountry Reservoir and Pump 
Station Project 

Prepared for: 
Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency 

26521 Summit Circle 
Santa Clarita, CA 91350 

Prepared by: 

EXHIBIT A

55



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

56



Addendum to Mission Village EIR 
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project  

i 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Table of Contents 
1. INTRODUCTION .................................................................................................................... 1-1 

1.1 Purpose of Addendum ................................................................................................. 1-1 
1.2 Basis for Addendum .................................................................................................... 1-1 
1.3 Previous Environmental Documentation ...................................................................... 1-2 
1.4 Evaluation of Environmental Impacts .......................................................................... 1-3 
1.5 Summary of Findings .................................................................................................. 1-4 

2. PROJECT DESCRIPTION ...................................................................................................... 2-1 
2.1 Background and Overview of Project .......................................................................... 2-1 
2.2 Purpose of Project ....................................................................................................... 2-9 
2.3 Existing Environmental Setting ................................................................................... 2-9 

 Surrounding Location .................................................................................................. 2-9 
 Existing Conditions ................................................................................................... 2-10 

2.4 Proposed Project........................................................................................................ 2-17 
Backcountry Reservoir Description ........................................................................... 2-17 
Backcountry Pump Station Description ...................................................................... 2-23 
Construction Activities .............................................................................................. 2-27 
Equipment/Staging .................................................................................................... 2-27 
Construction Management Practices .......................................................................... 2-29 
Construction Schedule ............................................................................................... 2-29 
Project Operation and Maintenance ........................................................................... 2-30 

2.5 Permits and Approvals............................................................................................... 2-30 
3. RELATION TO MISSION VILLAGE EIR ............................................................................ 3-1 

3.1 Environmental Impact Findings in Mission Village EIR .............................................. 3-1 
3.2 Mitigation Measures in Mission Village EIR ............................................................... 3-1 
3.3 Approach to Environmental Evaluation of Backcountry Reservoir Project ................... 3-2 

4. DETERMINATION.................................................................................................................. 4-1 
5. ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST......................................................................................... 5-1 

5.1 Aesthetics .................................................................................................................... 5-4 
5.2 Agriculture and Forestry Resources ............................................................................. 5-9 
5.3 Air Quality ................................................................................................................ 5-13 
5.4 Biological Resources ................................................................................................. 5-18 
5.5 Cultural Resources .................................................................................................... 5-34 
5.6 Energy....................................................................................................................... 5-36 
5.7 Geology and Soils ..................................................................................................... 5-38 
5.8 Greenhouse Gas Emissions ........................................................................................ 5-46 
5.9 Hazards and Hazardous Materials .............................................................................. 5-48 
5.10 Hydrology and Water Quality .................................................................................... 5-53 
5.11 Land Use and Planning .............................................................................................. 5-58 
5.12 Mineral Resources ..................................................................................................... 5-59 
5.13 Noise ......................................................................................................................... 5-61 
5.14 Population and Housing ............................................................................................. 5-66 
5.15 Public Services .......................................................................................................... 5-68 

57



Addendum to Mission Village EIR 
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project  

ii 
 

5.16 Recreation ................................................................................................................. 5-69 
5.17 Transportation ........................................................................................................... 5-70 
5.18 Tribal Cultural Resources .......................................................................................... 5-74 
5.19 Utilities and Service Systems ..................................................................................... 5-75 
5.20 Wildfire ..................................................................................................................... 5-79 
5.21 Mandatory Findings of Significance .......................................................................... 5-83 

6. REFERENCES ......................................................................................................................... 6-1 
 

List of Tables 
Table 2-1: Estimated Truck Trips – Backcountry Reservoir ................................................................ 2-28 
Table 2-2: Estimated Truck Trips – Pump Station and V-9 Turnout .................................................... 2-28 
Table 2-3: Estimated Equipment Type and Use – Backcountry Reservoir............................................ 2-28 
Table 2-4: Estimated Equipment Type and Use – Pump Station and V-9 Turnout ............................... 2-29 
Table 5-1: Localized Significance Thresholds ..................................................................................... 5-16 
Table 5-2: Backcountry Pump Station Construction Emissions Compared to Localized Significance 

Thresholds (pounds/day) ........................................................................................... 5-16 
Table 5-3: Los Angeles County Construction Noise Restrictions ......................................................... 5-62 
Table 5-4: Roadway Construction Noise Model Default Noise Emission Reference Levels – Backcountry 

Reservoir ................................................................................................................... 5-63 
Table 5-5: Roadway Construction Noise Model Default Noise Emission Reference Levels – Backcountry 

Pump Station ............................................................................................................. 5-64 
Table 5-6: City of Santa Clarita Noise Thresholds .............................................................................. 5-64 
 

List of Figures 
Figure 2-1: Vicinity Map ...................................................................................................................... 2-1 
Figure 2-2: Backcountry Reservoir (CLWA Water Tank) Project Location ........................................... 2-3 
Figure 2-3: Mission Village Land Use .................................................................................................. 2-4 
Figure 2-4: Backcountry Reservoir – Rough Grading Plan .................................................................... 2-5 
Figure 2-5: Backcountry Pump Station Overview ................................................................................. 2-6 
Figure 2-6: Backcountry Pump Station and Distribution Pipelines Overview ........................................ 2-7 
Figure 2-7: Backcountry Pump Station Land Use .................................................................................. 2-8 
Figure 2-8: Mission Village Boundary and Environmental Setting ...................................................... 2-11 
Figure 2-9: Backcountry Reservoir Site Facing Northwest .................................................................. 2-12 
Figure 2-10: Backcountry Reservoir Site Facing Northeast  ................................................................ 2-13 
Figure 2-11: Backcountry Reservoir Site Facing Southeast ................................................................. 2-14 
Figure 2-12: Backcountry Reservoir Site ............................................................................................ 2-15 
Figure 2-13: Backcountry Pump Station Site, Facing Northwest ......................................................... 2-16 
Figure 2-14: Backcountry Reservoir Site Cross Sections ..................................................................... 2-19 
Figure 2-15: Backcountry Reservoir Site Layout ................................................................................. 2-20 
Figure 2-16: Backcountry Reservoir Electrical Equipment Plan .......................................................... 2-21 
Figure 2-17: Magic Mountain Phase 6B Pipeline (C-3 and C-4) .......................................................... 2-22 
Figure 2-18: Pump Station Layout ...................................................................................................... 2-25 
Figure 2-19: Pump Station Section Views ........................................................................................... 2-26 
Figure 5-1: FivePoint Development Map near Backcountry Reservoir .................................................. 5-7 
Figure 5-2: Listed and California Fully Protected Wildlife Species Occurrences ................................. 5-20 
Figure 5-3: Biological Resources at Backcountry Pump Station Site ................................................... 5-22 

58



Addendum to Mission Village EIR 
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project  

iii 
 

Figure 5-4: Protected and Preserved Lands ......................................................................................... 5-24 
Figure 5-5: Riparian Habitat Buffer .................................................................................................... 5-25 
Figure 5-6: Jurisdictional Resources ................................................................................................... 5-26 
Figure 5-7: Potential Wildlife Movement Corridors ............................................................................ 5-27 
Figure 5-8: Mission Village Spineflower Preserve .............................................................................. 5-29 
Figure 5-9: Santa Clarita Valley Area Plan - Earthquake Faults........................................................... 5-39 
 
  

59



Addendum to Mission Village EIR 
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project  

iv 
 

Appendices 

Appendix A:  Air Quality and Greenhouse Gas Emissions Modeling Analyses for Backcountry 
Reservoir and Pump Station Project  

Appendix B:  Air Quality and Greenhouse Gas Emissions Model Output Data for Backcountry Reservoir 
and Pump Station Project 

Appendix C:  Biological Resources Assessment for Backcountry Pump Station 

Appendix D:  Cultural Resources Assessment for Backcountry Pump Station 

Appendix E:  Paleontological Resources Assessment for Backcountry Pump Station 

  

60



Addendum to Mission Village EIR 
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project  

v 
 

List of Abbreviations 

AQMP Air Quality Management Plan 
BMPs best management practices 
CAAQS California Ambient Air Quality Standards 
CalEEMod California Emissions Estimator Model 
CARB California Air Resources Boards 
CCAP Los Angeles County Community Climate Action Plan 
CCR California Code of Regulations 
CDFW California Department of Fish and Wildlife 
CEQA California Environmental Quality Act  
CGS California Geological Survey 
CHRIS California Historical Resources Information System 
CLWA Castaic Lake Water Agency 
CO carbon monoxide 
County Los Angeles County 
CRAs Coastal Resource Areas 
E&O Study Emergency and Operational Storage Study 
EIR Environmental Impact Report 
GHG greenhouse gas 
I-5 Interstate 5 
LACDPW County of Los Angeles Department of Public Works 
LSTs Localized Significance Thresholds 
LUT Land Use and Transportation 
MG million-gallon 
Mission Village EIR Mission Village Final Environmental Impact Report 
MND mitigated negative declaration 
MT CO2e metric tons of carbon dioxide equivalent 
MV Mission Village 
NAAQS National Ambient Air Quality Standards 
ND negative declaration 
NOP Notice of Preparation  
NOX nitrogen oxide 
NPDES National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System 
O&M operation and maintenance  
O3 Ozone 
Pb Lead 
PM10 particulate matter 10 micrometers or less in diameter 
PM2.5 particulate matter 2.5 micrometers or less in diameter 
PRC Public Resources Code 
Project Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project 
RMP Resource Management Plan 
RTP/SCS Regional Transportation Plan / Sustainable Communities Strategy 
RWQCB Regional Water Quality Control Board, Los Angeles Region 

61



Addendum to Mission Village EIR 
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project  

vi 
 

SCAB South Coast Air Basin 
SCADA system supervisory control and data acquisition system 
SCAG Southern California Association of Governments 
SCAQMD South Coast Air Quality Management District 
SCE Southern California Edison 
SCH State Clearinghouse 
SCV Water Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency 
SEA Significant Ecological Area  
SMA Special Management Area 
SOx sulfur oxides 
Specific Plan or SP Newhall Ranch Specific Plan 
SR State Route 
SRA State Responsibility Area 
SRAs source receptors areas 
SWPPP Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan 
SWRCB State Water Resources Control Board 
USACE United States Army Corps of Engineers 
VHFHSZ Very High Fire Hazard Severity Zone 
VOCs volatile organic compounds 

 

 

62



Addendum to Mission Village EIR 
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project INTRODUCTION 

1-1 
 

1. INTRODUCTION  

1.1 Purpose of Addendum 

This document, prepared pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), Public Resources 
Code (PRC) Section 21000 et seq., is an Addendum to Mission Village Final Environmental Impact Report 
(EIR) certified by Los Angeles County (County) on October 25, 2011 (State Clearinghouse [SCH] No. 
2005051143) (referred to hereafter as the “Mission Village EIR”). The Mission Village development is one 
of five villages within the Newhall Ranch Specific Plan (Specific Plan), a 12,000-acre large-scale mixed-
use community located in unincorporated Los Angeles County. The Newhall Ranch Specific Plan and Final 
Newhall Ranch Specific Plan Program Environmental Impact Report (SCH# 199501115) were approved 
and certified by Los Angeles County in 2003 (County of Los Angeles, 2003). The Mission Village EIR was 
tiered from the Newhall Ranch Specific Plan Program EIR. As part of the certifications, the County of Los 
Angeles adopted Findings of Fact, Statement of Overriding Considerations and a Mitigation Monitoring 
and Reporting Program for both the Newhall Ranch Specific Plan Program EIR and the Mission Village 
EIR. A portion of the Mission Village EIR was recirculated in 2016, and certified in 2017 by Los Angeles 
County to fully address global climate change in response to litigation, and to address revisions to mitigation 
measures that would avoid impacts to or “take” of unarmored threespine stickleback, a fully protected fish 
species under the California Department of Fish and Game Code. 

The 2011 Mission Village EIR analyzed the environmental impacts of the proposed 1,262-acre Mission 
Village development consisting of 4,055 homes, 1,555,100 square feet of commercial uses, an elementary 
school, library, fire station, bus transfer station, and open space, and supporting facilities and infrastructure, 
including roads, the Commerce Center Drive bridge, trails, drainage improvements, flood protection, 
potable and recycled water facilities, sanitary sewer system, and dry utilities systems. The Mission Village 
EIR also addressed several off-site project-related components that would be developed on an additional 
592 acres of land, which consisted of a utility corridor, roadway extensions, three water tanks, electrical 
substation and associated utility lines and poles, and a water quality basin. The currently proposed 
Backcountry Reservoir is one of three proposed water storage tanks identified in the Mission Village EIR. 
A new pump station, the Backcountry Pump Station, is proposed to supply water to the Backcountry 
Reservoir and also includes a turn-out facility with distribution pipelines to tie into existing water mains. 
The Mission Village EIR and this Addendum, together with the other documents incorporated by reference 
herein, serve as the environmental review of the Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project (together 
the “proposed Project”), as required pursuant to the provisions of CEQA, the CEQA Guidelines, 14 
California Code of Regulations (CCR) Section 15000 et seq).  

This Addendum addresses potential environmental effects of the construction and operation of the proposed 
Project which consists of the Backcountry Reservoir and associated Backcountry Pump Station, including 
turn-out facility and distribution pipelines proposed by the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency (SCV 
Water). As described below, the evaluation of the proposed Project has determined that the impacts are 
consistent with the impacts of the water storage facilities evaluated in the Mission Village EIR and there 
are no new significant impacts resulting from development of the reservoir and associated pump station, 
nor are there any substantial increases in the severity of any previously identified environmental impacts. 
Feasible mitigation measures and alternatives identified in the EIR would be incorporated into the 
resolutions approving the proposed Project. 

1.2 Basis for Addendum 

Section 15164 of the CEQA Guidelines states: “The lead agency or responsible agency shall prepare an 
addendum to a previously certified EIR if some changes or additions are necessary but none of the 

63



Addendum to Mission Village EIR 
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project INTRODUCTION 

1-2 
 

conditions described in Section 15162 calling for the preparation of a subsequent EIR have occurred.” 
Pursuant to Section 15162 of the CEQA Guidelines, no subsequent EIR may be required for the project 
unless the lead agency determines, on the basis of substantial evidence, that one or more of the following 
conditions are met: 

When an EIR has been certified or a negative declaration adopted for a project, no subsequent EIR shall be 
prepared for that project unless the lead agency determines, on the basis of substantial evidence in the light 
of the whole record, one or more of the following: 

• Substantial changes are proposed in the project which would require major revisions of the previous 
EIR or negative declaration due to the involvement of new significant environmental effects or a 
substantial increase in the severity of previously identified significant effects; 

• Substantial changes occur with respect to the circumstances under which the project is undertaken 
which would require major revisions of the previous EIR or negative declaration due to the 
involvement of new significant environmental effects or a substantial increase in the severity of 
previously identified significant effects; or 

• New information of substantial importance, which was not known and could not have been known 
with the exercise of reasonable diligence at the time the previous EIR was certified as complete or 
the negative declaration was adopted, shows any of the following: 

o The project would have one or more significant effects not discussed in the previous EIR 
or negative declaration; 

o Significant effects previously examined would be substantially more severe than shown in 
the previous EIR; 

o Mitigation measures or alternatives previously found not to be feasible would in fact be 
feasible, and would substantially reduce one or more significant effects of the project, but 
the project proponents decline to adopt the mitigation measure or alternative; or 

o Mitigation measures or alternatives which are considerably different from those analyzed 
in the previous EIR would substantially reduce one or more significant effects on the 
environment, but the project proponents decline to adopt the mitigation measure or 
alternative. 

As discussed in this Addendum, none of the conditions requiring preparation of a subsequent EIR under 
Section 15162 of the CEQA Guidelines are satisfied. However, because additional detail is now available 
regarding construction and operation of the proposed water storage tank originally evaluated in the Mission 
Village EIR (including a necessary pump station), it is possible to more specifically address the impacts of 
the proposed Project, and an Addendum is the appropriate level of environmental documentation for this 
review per CEQA Guidelines Sections 15164.  

1.3 Previous Environmental Documentation 

The Backcountry Reservoir component of the proposed Project is located within the proposed Mission 
Village development. The Mission Village EIR included the following discretionary entitlements to allow 
for the construction of the proposed Mission Village development on the project site:  

(a)  Vesting Tentative Tract Map No. 061105;  

64



Addendum to Mission Village EIR 
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project INTRODUCTION 

1-3 
 

(b)  Significant Ecological Area (SEA) Conditional Use Permit No. RCUP200500080 for project-level 
development, including utilities within the Specific Plan's River Corridor Special Management 
Area (SMA)/SEA 23 boundaries;  

(c)  Conditional Use Permit RCUP200500081 to authorize: 

(i)  development of 73 second dwelling units, and  

(ii)  grading associated with the extension of Westridge Parkway and the construction of off-site 
improvements, including the extension of Magic Mountain Parkway, a utility corridor, a water 
quality basin, an electrical substation, and water tanks;  

(d)  Oak Tree Permit No. ROAK200500032 (project site);  

(e)  Oak Tree Permit No. T200500043 (off-site extension of Magic Mountain Parkway);  

(f)  Substantial conformance determination pertaining to Grading and Hillside Management 
Guidelines;  

(g)  Parking Permit RPKT200500011;  

(h)  Substantial conformance determination for setback standards;  

(i)  Substantial conformance determination for off-site, reciprocal, and shared parking; and  

(j)  Substantial conformance determination for proposed trails sections. 

Most of the potentially significant environmental impacts identified in the Mission Village EIR were 
determined to be less than significant or were reduced to a level that is considered less than significant 
through either the adoption of mitigation measures or the incorporation of project revisions that would avoid 
or substantially lessen significant impacts. However, significant, unavoidable impacts to several 
environmental resources were identified, even with implementation of feasible mitigation measures. These 
included biota, visual qualities, construction noise (if pile driving is necessary), air quality, solid waste 
services, and agricultural resources. For those impact areas, the County prepared Findings of Fact and 
adopted a Statement of Overriding Considerations. 

1.4 Evaluation of Environmental Impacts 

This Addendum uses an Environmental Checklist Form, pursuant to Section 15063(d)(3) of the CEQA 
Guidelines, that compares the anticipated environmental effects of the proposed Project with those 
disclosed in the Mission Village EIR, and reviews whether any of the conditions requiring preparation of a 
Subsequent EIR pursuant to Section 15162 of the CEQA Guidelines are met, and whether there are new 
significant impacts resulting from the proposed Project. The Environmental Checklist Form is used to 
review the potential environmental effects of the proposed Project for each of the following areas: 

 Aesthetics; 
 Agriculture and Forestry Resources; 
 Air Quality; 
 Biological Resources; 
 Cultural Resources; 
 Geology and Soils; 

65



Addendum to Mission Village EIR 
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project INTRODUCTION 

1-4 
 

 Greenhouse Gas Emissions; 
 Energy; 
 Hazards and Hazardous Materials; 
 Hydrology and Water Quality; 
 Land Use and Planning; 
 Mineral Resources; 
 Noise; 
 Population and Housing; 
 Public Services; 
 Recreation; 
 Transportation and Traffic;  
 Tribal Cultural Resources; 
 Utilities and Service Systems; and  
 Wildfire Risk. 

There are four possible responses to each of the questions included on the Environmental Checklist Form: 

• New Potentially Significant Impact 
• New Mitigation Required 
• No New Impact/No Impact 
• Reduced Impact 

1.5 Summary of Findings 

The proposed Project does not represent a substantial change in the Mission Village development requiring 
major revisions to the EIR, nor does it result in a substantial change in circumstances requiring major 
revisions to the EIR. Based on the Environmental Checklist and discussions found in Section 5 of this 
Addendum, the proposed Project would not result in any new significant impacts that were not previously 
identified in the Mission Village EIR and no new mitigation measures are required. 

66



Addendum to Mission Village EIR 
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project  PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

2-1 
 

2. PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

2.1 Background and Overview of Project 

The Backcountry Reservoir site is located within SCV Water’s southwest service area, at the southern edge 
of the 1,262-acre Mission Village development project. Mission Village is located south of the Santa Clara 
River and State Route 126 and west of Interstate-5 within the Newhall Ranch Specific Plan area of Los 
Angeles County, as shown in Figure 2-1.  

Figure 2-1: Vicinity Map 

 
 Source: Mission Village Draft EIR Volume I, Figure 1.0-2 (County of Los Angeles, 2010a) 

67



Addendum to Mission Village EIR 
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project  PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

2-2 
 

A potable water tank at the Backcountry Reservoir site was addressed in the 2010 Mission Village Draft 
EIR and was referred to as the Castaic Lake Water Agency (CLWA) water tank site (See Figure 2-2). 
Although sizing and other details regarding the design of the tank were not identified in the Mission Village 
EIR, the tank was assumed to be above ground. The Final Mission Village EIR (SCH No. 2005051143) 
was certified by the Los Angeles County Board of Supervisors in 2011, although a portion of the EIR was 
recirculated in 2016 to fully address global climate change as well as revisions to two biological resource 
mitigation measures. The tank site was designated as “Public Facility – Water Tank” in the Mission Village 
Land Use Plan (Figure 2-3). 

Although the Mission Village EIR was tiered from the Newhall Ranch Specific Plan Program EIR to 
address project-level development and related infrastructure impacts, no specific water tank design, 
construction, or operational details were described in the Mission Village EIR because project-specific 
details of the water tank were unknown at the time. However, the EIR’s evaluation of site environmental 
resources included the tank site parcel, and development of a tank at that location was specified in the 
project description and accounted for in overall impact evaluation of development within the Mission Ranch 
boundary.  

Rough grading of the approximately 1-acre tank site was included in the Mission Village TR 61105-01 
Rough Grading Plan, shown in Figure 2-4. The grading plan was approved by the Los Angeles County 
Department of Public Works on May 7, 2018, and grading of the site has since been completed. 

 

68



A
dd

en
du

m
 to

 M
is

si
on

 V
ill

ag
e 

EI
R 

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

 R
es

er
vo

ir 
an

d 
Pu

m
p 

St
at

io
n 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 P
R

O
JE

C
T 

D
ES

CR
IP

TI
O

N
 

2-
3 

 

Fi
gu

re
 2

-2
: B

ac
kc

ou
nt

ry
 R

es
er

vo
ir

 (C
LW

A
 W

at
er

 T
an

k)
 P

ro
je

ct
 L

oc
at

io
n 

 
So

ur
ce

: A
da

pt
ed

 fr
om

 M
iss

io
n 

V
ill

ag
e 

D
ra

ft 
EI

R 
V

ol
um

e 
I, 

Fi
gu

re
 1

.0
-2

9 
(C

ou
nt

y 
of

 L
os

 A
ng

el
es

, 2
01

0a
) 

 

 

PU
M

P 
ST

AT
IO

N 

69



A
dd

en
du

m
 to

 M
is

si
on

 V
ill

ag
e 

EI
R 

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

 R
es

er
vo

ir 
an

d 
Pu

m
p 

St
at

io
n 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 P
R

O
JE

C
T 

D
ES

CR
IP

TI
O

N
 

2-
4 

 

 
Fi

gu
re

 2
-3

: M
iss

io
n 

V
ill

ag
e 

La
nd

 U
se

 

 
 S

ou
rc

e:
 M

iss
io

n 
V

ill
ag

e 
Re

ci
rc

ul
at

ed
 P

or
tio

ns
 o

f E
IR

, F
ig

ur
e 

1.
0-

1 
(C

ou
nt

y 
of

 L
os

 A
ng

el
es

, 2
01

6)
 

  
 

70



Addendum to Mission Village EIR 
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project  PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

2-5 
 

Figure 2-4: Backcountry Reservoir – Rough Grading Plan 

 
      Source: Magic Mountain Reservoir Preliminary Design Technical Memorandum (Michael Baker International, 2018) 

In order to supply water to the Backcountry Reservoir, a pump station would be required. Details regarding 
a pump station were also unknown at the time that the Mission Village EIR was developed. A pump station 
location was subsequently identified at an undeveloped parcel located along Magic Mountain Parkway, 
approximately 0.5 miles east of Interstate 5 within the City of Santa Clarita. The Backcountry Pump Station 
would pump water to the existing Magic Mountain Pipeline, which passes through the pump station site, 
for conveyance to the Backcountry Reservoir. The pump station would be located on the northeastern 
portion of the parcel, and new inlet and outlet piping would be constructed on site to connect to the Magic 
Mountain Pipeline (Figure 2-5). A turnout facility (V-9 Turnout) is proposed at the Backcountry Pump 
Station to provide flow control and metering. Two water distribution pipelines are proposed from the V-9 
Turnout to tie into SCV Water’s existing distribution mains for Zone IIA-N and Zone I (Figure 2-6). The 
Backcountry Pump Station location is approximately 2 miles from the Backcountry Reservoir site and 
outside the Mission Village Land Use Plan area and Newhall Ranch Specific Plan area (Figure 2-2). The 
pump station site is designated as “Business Park” by the City of Santa Clarita general plan and zoning 
code (Figure 2-7).  

  

71



Addendum to Mission Village EIR 
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project  PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

2-6 
 

Figure 2-5: Backcountry Pump Station Overview 

 
Source: Southwest Area Hydraulic Analysis Technical Memorandum, Draft (Michael Baker International, 2022b) 

72



A
dd

en
du

m
 to

 M
is

si
on

 V
ill

ag
e 

EI
R 

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

 R
es

er
vo

ir 
an

d 
Pu

m
p 

St
at

io
n 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 P
R

O
JE

C
T 

D
ES

CR
IP

TI
O

N
 

2-
7 

 

Fi
gu

re
 2

-6
: B

ac
kc

ou
nt

ry
 P

um
p 

St
at

io
n 

an
d 

D
ist

ri
bu

tio
n 

Pi
pe

lin
es

 O
ve

rv
ie

w
 

 
So

ur
ce

: S
ou

th
w

es
t A

re
a 

H
yd

ra
ul

ic
 A

na
ly

si
s T

ec
hn

ic
al

 M
em

or
an

du
m

, D
ra

ft 
(M

ic
ha

el
 B

ak
er

 In
te

rn
at

io
na

l, 
20

22
b)

 
 

 

73



A
dd

en
du

m
 to

 M
is

si
on

 V
ill

ag
e 

EI
R 

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

 R
es

er
vo

ir 
an

d 
Pu

m
p 

St
at

io
n 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 P
R

O
JE

C
T 

D
ES

CR
IP

TI
O

N
 

2-
8 

 

Fi
gu

re
 2

-7
: B

ac
kc

ou
nt

ry
 P

um
p 

St
at

io
n 

La
nd

 U
se

 

74



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

2-9 
 

2.2 Purpose of Project 

SCV Water requires operational and emergency storage of potable water to supply its West Site system 
(Magic Mountain Zone) and during short-term outage or disruptions to the regional water supply system. 
The primary vulnerabilities to the regional water supply system are major earthquakes and streambed scour. 
In March 2017, Michael Baker International prepared an “Emergency and Operational Storage Study” 
(E&O Study) for the CLWA (now SCV Water). This study evaluated SCV Water’s current and future 
potable water demands and storage requirements based on five geographical Service Areas. For each service 
area, the study identified several potential sites for potable water storage improvements. The 7.9 million-
gallon (MG) Backcountry Reservoir is planned for one of these sites in the Zone B/Magic Mountain Zone. 
Operational storage requirements are based on the maximum day demand scenario.  

Total operation and emergency storage needs for the Zone B/Magic Mountain Zone identified in the E&O 
Study are estimated to be 25.9 MG by year 2050. The proposed Project would create 7.9 MG of E&O 
storage and the remaining 18.0 MG would be added over time through one or more additional reservoirs. 
It is currently unknown when and where such reservoirs might be constructed, or what their exact capacity 
might be. The construction of the Backcountry Reservoir is not dependent on the construction of any other 
reservoirs. The Backcountry Reservoir has independent utility (Michael Baker International, 2018). 

2.3 Existing Environmental Setting 

Surrounding Location  

The Backcountry Reservoir site is located within Mission Village, a developing community located within 
the northeastern corner of the Newhall Ranch Specific Plan area within unincorporated Los Angeles 
County, approximately 40 miles inland from the Pacific Ocean. Mission Village is within Santa Clarita 
Valley Planning Area of the Los Angeles County General Plan. As stated in the Mission Village EIR, the 
Santa Clarita Valley Planning Area is generally surrounded by the Los Padres and Angeles National Forest 
areas to the north; Agua Dulce and the Angeles National Forest to the east; the major ridgeline of the Santa 
Susana Mountains to the south; and the County of Ventura to the west. The Mission Village development 
area is located immediately southeast of the confluence of Castaic Creek and the Santa Clara River. The 
Santa Clara River forms the northern boundary of the Mission Village development, and the Six Flags 
Magic Mountain Theme Park is located along the east boundary (Figure 2-8). The City of Santa Clarita is 
located east of the Mission Village development, just beyond Interstate 5. There are no officially designated 
state scenic highways in the vicinity of the Mission Village development. There are no tribal trust 
boundaries, tribal trust lands, or any United States Forest Service, Bureau of Land Management, or other 
federally managed land within the Mission Village area. 

The Backcountry Pump Station would be located within the incorporated boundaries of the City of Santa 
Clarita, north of Magic Mountain Parkway, south of the Santa Clara River, approximately 0.5 mile east of 
Interstate 5. The pump station site is approximately 2 miles east/north-east of site for the Backcountry 
Reservoir. The Santa Clarita Valley is within the 1,600 square mile Santa Clara River Watershed. The 
groundwater basin of the Santa Clara River Valley, East Subbasin, is comprised of two aquifer systems: the 
Alluvium along the Santa Clara River and tributaries (at depths of about 200 feet) and the deeper Saugus 
Formation in the Upper Santa Clara River area (at depths of at least 2,000 feet) (Kennedy/Jenks Consultants, 
2015).  

  

75



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

2-10 
 

Existing Conditions  

The Backcountry Reservoir site is located on the southern edge of the Mission Village development, 
bounded directly by undeveloped land on the south, and future planned open space areas of Mission Village 
on the east, west and north, much of which has been rough graded. Figure 2-9, Figure 2-10, and Figure 
2-11 are photos of the Backcountry Reservoir site taken in January 2020 and show adjacent areas. The 
Backcountry Reservoir site is rough graded and devoid of vegetation, as shown in the site photos, as well 
as in the aerial photo in Figure 2-12. The Backcountry Reservoir site is located entirely on artificial fill. 
Concrete slope drains have been installed on the downward slopes of the reservoir site to convey sheet flow 
to the local storm drain system within the Mission Village development. 

The Backcountry Pump Station site is an 11-acre lot north of Magic Mountain Parkway. The site is bounded 
by open space to the north and west, the six-lane Magic Mountain Parkway to the south (with a Southern 
California Edison [SCE] substation facility on the opposite side of the road), and high-tension power 
transmission lines to the east. The site has a history of disturbance, as it was used to cultivate row crops 
until 2017 and is currently paved. The pump station site disturbance area is primarily composed of 
disturbed/developed land with little vegetation (Figure 2-13). The pump station site is flat land with little 
to no slope except for the north edge of the site, which slopes down toward the Santa Clara River. The 
proposed distribution pipelines originating from the V-9 Turnout Facility at the Backcountry Pump Station 
would be constructed entirely withing the paved Magic Mountain Parkway right of way and would tie into 
existing water mains in Tourney Road and Wayne Mills Place located west of the pump station site.  

 

76



A
dd

en
du

m
 to

 M
is

si
on

 V
ill

ag
e 

EI
R 

 
B

ac
kc

ou
nt

ry
 R

es
er

vo
ir 

an
d 

Pu
m

p 
St

at
io

n 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
PR

O
JE

C
T 

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

 

2-
11

 
 

Fi
gu

re
 2

-8
: M

iss
io

n 
V

ill
ag

e 
Bo

un
da

ry
 a

nd
 E

nv
ir

on
m

en
ta

l S
et

tin
g 

 
So

ur
ce

: M
iss

io
n 

V
ill

ag
e 

D
ra

ft 
EI

R 
V

ol
um

e 
I, 

Fi
gu

re
 1

.0
-3

 (C
ou

nt
y 

of
 L

os
 A

ng
el

es
, 2

01
0a

) 

77



A
dd

en
du

m
 to

 M
is

si
on

 V
ill

ag
e 

EI
R 

 
B

ac
kc

ou
nt

ry
 R

es
er

vo
ir 

an
d 

Pu
m

p 
St

at
io

n 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
PR

O
JE

C
T 

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

 

2-
12

 
 

Fi
gu

re
 2

-9
: B

ac
kc

ou
nt

ry
 R

es
er

vo
ir

 S
ite

 F
ac

in
g 

N
or

th
w

es
t 

  

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

 R
es

er
vo

ir 
si

te
 fa

ci
ng

 n
or

th
w

es
t w

ith
 u

nd
ev

el
op

ed
 h

ill
si

de
s o

n 
th

e 
no

rth
w

es
t. 

78



A
dd

en
du

m
 to

 M
is

si
on

 V
ill

ag
e 

EI
R 

 
B

ac
kc

ou
nt

ry
 R

es
er

vo
ir 

an
d 

Pu
m

p 
St

at
io

n 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
PR

O
JE

C
T 

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

 

2-
13

 
 

Fi
gu

re
 2

-1
0:

 B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

 R
es

er
vo

ir
 S

ite
 F

ac
in

g 
N

or
th

ea
st

  

  

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

 R
es

er
vo

ir 
si

te
 fa

ci
ng

 n
or

th
ea

st
, w

ith
 g

ra
di

ng
 fo

r M
iss

io
n 

V
ill

ag
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t t

ak
in

g 
pl

ac
e 

on
 th

e 
ea

st
. 

79



A
dd

en
du

m
 to

 M
is

si
on

 V
ill

ag
e 

EI
R 

 
B

ac
kc

ou
nt

ry
 R

es
er

vo
ir 

an
d 

Pu
m

p 
St

at
io

n 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
PR

O
JE

C
T 

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

 

2-
14

 
 

Fi
gu

re
 2

-1
1:

 B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

 R
es

er
vo

ir
 S

ite
 F

ac
in

g 
So

ut
he

as
t  

 
B

ac
kc

ou
nt

ry
 R

es
er

vo
ir 

si
te

 fa
ci

ng
 so

ut
he

as
t, 

w
ith

 g
ra

de
d 

sl
op

es
 d

ire
ct

ly
 a

dj
ac

en
t o

n 
th

e 
so

ut
he

as
t (

no
t a

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
 p

ro
po

se
d 

Pr
oj

ec
t).

 

80



A
dd

en
du

m
 to

 M
is

si
on

 V
ill

ag
e 

EI
R 

 
B

ac
kc

ou
nt

ry
 R

es
er

vo
ir 

an
d 

Pu
m

p 
St

at
io

n 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
PR

O
JE

C
T 

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

 

2-
15

 
 

Fi
gu

re
 2

-1
2:

 B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

 R
es

er
vo

ir
 S

ite
 

 

81



A
dd

en
du

m
 to

 M
is

si
on

 V
ill

ag
e 

EI
R 

 
B

ac
kc

ou
nt

ry
 R

es
er

vo
ir 

an
d 

Pu
m

p 
St

at
io

n 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
PR

O
JE

C
T 

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

 

2-
16

 
 

Fi
gu

re
 2

-1
3:

 B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

 P
um

p 
St

at
io

n 
Si

te
, F

ac
in

g 
N

or
th

w
es

t 

82



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

2-17 
 

2.4 Proposed Project 

Backcountry Reservoir Description 

A technical memorandum entitled “Preliminary Design Technical Memorandum for Magic Mountain 
Reservoir Planning” was prepared for SCV Water by Michael Baker International in November 2018 and 
identified the maximum size of the reservoir that could be built on the tank site parcel. Due to the limited 
parcel size, the reservoir was proposed to be a partially buried tank located within the “footprint” of the 
tank site as identified in the Mission Village EIR. A subsequent technical memorandum, entitled 
“Southwest Area Hydraulic Analysis: Backcountry Pump Station, Backcountry Reservoir, and V-9 Turnout 
Facility” was prepared to develop design parameters for these facilities and to evaluate a supply scenario 
in which water production wells located in the east area near Commerce Center Drive convey water east 
through the Magic Mountain Pipeline to increase overall operational flexibility of SCV Water’s 
transmission system (Michael Baker International, 2022b).  

The approved rough grading plan (shown previously in Figure 2-4) provides a site pad for a rectangular 
shape reservoir with approximate dimensions of 150 feet by 350 feet. The Backcountry Reservoir is 
proposed to have a tank bottom slab at elevation 1,400 feet, a low water level at an elevation of 1,407.5 feet 
and a high-water elevation of 1,440 feet to maintain existing hydraulic conditions required for operation of 
the Earl Schmidt Filtration Plant and Rio Vista Water Treatment Plant, and to match the existing hydraulic 
gradient of a nearby pressure zone (Zone IIA-N).  

Grading for the reservoir would require excavation and backfill for the reservoir structure and for site 
drainage as well as paving of the maintenance/access road around the reservoir. Based on the requirement 
for a reservoir floor elevation of 1,400 feet, the estimated grading required for the reservoir structure is 
approximately 50,000 cubic yards. Approximately 29,000 cubic yards would be hauled to an adjacent 
development within Mission Village, and approximately 21,000 cubic yards would be used on site as 
backfill. The proposed reservoir would be constructed as an underground structure 30 feet deep, and 
approximately 17 feet would be built above the grade. Figure 2-14 shows grading cross sections. 

Based on a conceptual site analysis (Michael Baker International, 2022a), the reservoir would be 
rectangular, with exterior dimensions of approximately 116 feet wide by 304 feet long. The reservoir would 
be divided into two equal sized storage chambers separated by a common reinforced concrete wall which 
would extend from floor to roof. Each chamber would have an interior reinforced concrete baffle wall from 
floor to roof to ensure circulation (Figure 2-15). The two storage chambers would operate independently, 
providing operational flexibility. Seismic design parameters require a 7-foot 6-inches tank freeboard (the 
clearance maintained between the maximum water level and the roof slab of the tank) and 1-foot 6-inches 
roof slab thickness, for a cumulative roof top elevation of approximately 1,447 feet, resulting in about 17 
feet of the tank being exposed above the grade. 

The dimensions of the proposed Backcountry Reservoir were set based on a site layout that maximizes 
storage volume and provides a minimum 20-foot wide drivable access road around the entire reservoir, 
which would allow a 30-foot construction truck and a 32-foot fire truck to maneuver around the reservoir 
(Figure 2-15). This layout is based on an AutoCAD “AutoTurn” analysis and satisfies the Los Angeles 
County Fire Department’s hammer-head turnaround requirement. 

Electrical, controls and communications systems for the reservoir are proposed to be installed along the 
eastern wall (Figure 2-16). Five Point, the developer of Mission Village, would provide a SCE connection 
to the bottom of the access road. SCV Water would coordinate with SCE to connect power to the reservoir.  

83



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

2-18 
 

The developed reservoir site would include gated access to the reservoir, perimeter fencing, site drainage 
features, a supervisory control and data acquisition (SCADA) system and other controls, valving, and other 
appurtenances. The site would have minimal lighting and no chemicals would be stored on site. The 
reservoir and site design would include aesthetic treatments as needed to soften views of the reservoir and 
help ensure the reservoir and fencing blend into the landscape to the extent possible (such as using a tan or 
earthen color for the exterior coating). A minimum 8-foot-wide landscape area would be located along the 
perimeter of the site. 

84



A
dd

en
du

m
 to

 M
is

si
on

 V
ill

ag
e 

EI
R 

 
B

ac
kc

ou
nt

ry
 R

es
er

vo
ir 

an
d 

Pu
m

p 
St

at
io

n 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
PR

O
JE

C
T 

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

 

2-
19

 
 

Fi
gu

re
 2

-1
4:

 B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

 R
es

er
vo

ir
 S

ite
 C

ro
ss

 S
ec

tio
ns

 

 
So

ur
ce

: S
ou

th
w

es
t A

re
a 

H
yd

ra
ul

ic
 A

na
ly

sis
 T

ec
hn

ic
al

 M
em

or
an

du
m

, D
ra

ft 
(M

ic
ha

el
 B

ak
er

 In
te

rn
at

io
na

l, 
20

22
b)

 

85



A
dd

en
du

m
 to

 M
is

si
on

 V
ill

ag
e 

EI
R 

 
B

ac
kc

ou
nt

ry
 R

es
er

vo
ir 

an
d 

Pu
m

p 
St

at
io

n 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
PR

O
JE

C
T 

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

 

2-
20

 
 

Fi
gu

re
 2

-1
5:

 B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

 R
es

er
vo

ir
 S

ite
 L

ay
ou

t 

 
So

ur
ce

: B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

 R
es

er
vo

ir 
Si

te
 A

na
ly

sis
 T

ec
hn

ic
al

 M
em

or
an

du
m

 (M
ic

ha
el

 B
ak

er
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l, 

20
22

a)
 

86



A
dd

en
du

m
 to

 M
is

si
on

 V
ill

ag
e 

EI
R 

 
B

ac
kc

ou
nt

ry
 R

es
er

vo
ir 

an
d 

Pu
m

p 
St

at
io

n 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
PR

O
JE

C
T 

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

 

2-
21

 
 

Fi
gu

re
 2

-1
6:

 B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

 R
es

er
vo

ir
 E

le
ct

ri
ca

l E
qu

ip
m

en
t P

la
n 

 
 S

ou
rc

e:
 M

ag
ic

 M
ou

nt
ai

n 
Re

se
rv

oi
r P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
D

es
ig

n 
Te

ch
ni

ca
l M

em
or

an
du

m
 (M

ic
ha

l B
ak

er
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l, 

20
18

)

87



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

2-22 
 

Water supply to the Backcountry Reservoir would be delivered through SCV Water’s Magic Mountain 
Pipeline, an 18,700-foot-long pipeline, which was identified as part of the proposed infrastructure in the 
Mission Village EIR. Approximately 7,500 feet of the pipeline is existing, and 11,200 feet of pipeline is 
currently under construction. The proposed reservoir would provide required emergency and operational 
storage for the SCV Water potable water system. 

Construction of the proposed Backcountry Reservoir would occur after construction of the last segment of 
the Magic Mountain Pipeline (Phase 6B pipeline). The Phase 6B pipeline includes the last segment of the 
42-inch Magic Mountain inlet pipeline that would connect to the Backcountry Reservoir, construction of a 
42-inch reservoir overflow pipeline that would be connected to the Los Angeles County storm drain system 
(within Mission Village), and paving installation on the reservoir access road. The Phase 6B inlet pipeline, 
reservoir overflow pipeline, and paving of the access road are not a part of the proposed Project. Figure 
2-17 is a plan sheet index showing an overview of the Magic Mountain Pipeline 6B, with the reservoir 
access road and inlet and reservoir overflow pipelines shown in index drawings C-3 and C-4 on Figure 
2-17. 

Figure 2-17: Magic Mountain Phase 6B Pipeline (C-3 and C-4) 

 
 Source: Adapted from Magic Mountain Pipeline Phase 6B Design, Michael Baker International, 2018 

88



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

2-23 
 

Backcountry Pump Station Description 

Hydraulic analysis of the SCV Water system showed that a pump station (the Backcountry Pump Station) 
is required to supply the Magic Mountain Reservoir. Michael Baker International prepared a technical 
memorandum in August 2020 which identified the pump station site and preliminary layout. The pump 
station would be located within the incorporated boundaries of the City of Santa Clarita, north of Magic 
Mountain Parkway, south of the Santa Clara River, approximately 0.5 mile east of Interstate 5. The 
Backcountry Pump Station site is approximately 2 miles east/north-east of the site for the Backcountry 
Reservoir. The Magic Mountain Pipeline follows Magic Mountain Parkway and passes partially through 
the pump station site (Figure 2-5). 

Based on the 2018 technical memo prepared by Michael Baker and subsequent analysis (Michael Baker 
International, 2020; Michael Baker International, 2022b), the pump station site would include a pump 
building, flow control and pressure reducing station, emergency backup generator, fuel tank, and electrical 
transformer pad. The pump station layout is shown in Figure 2-18 and typical pump station section views 
are shown in Figure 2-19. The pump building would house the required mechanical and electrical 
equipment. The pump building would include a pump room, generator room, and electrical room. The pump 
room would be designed to accommodate a total of four vertical turbine pumps (three duty pumps and one 
standby pump, each 450 horsepower [hp]) and a bypass relief pressure line. The flow control and pressure 
reducing station would be located on the east side of the pump building. Discharge piping from the pump 
station would connect to the flow control and pressure reducing station before exiting the property. Inlet 
and outlet piping would extend to connect to the existing Phase 1 section of the Magic Mountain Pipeline, 
which passes through the property. A minimum of 30 feet of clear space would be provided on either side 
of the flow control and pressure reducing station and the bypass pipeline for ease of maintenance access.  

Construction of the pump station would involve site preparation, grading, structural improvements, paving, 
and electrical work. Minimal grading would be required as the site is relatively flat. It is estimated that 
construction of the pump station would require a maximum excavation depth of 15 feet. The overall 
dimension of the pump station site is approximately 268 feet by 140 feet. The pump building would be 
constructed with concrete masonry unit (CMU) block walls, with dimensions of approximately 100 feet by 
66 feet, for a total footprint of 6,600 square feet. 

The access road and area surrounding the pump station would be paved with asphalt or concrete. The paved 
area would be designed consistent with fire code to ensure that paved areas can support fire apparatus 
weighing at least 75,000 pounds, have adequate access road width and turnaround space, acceptable grade, 
and access road gates. To comply with these requirements, a minimum of 25 feet of clearance would be 
provided around the pump station building.  

Electrical and controls systems would be located within the pump building, inside an air-conditioned 
electrical room. The pump station control panel would communicate with SCV Water’s SCADA system 
via radio antenna. SCE would provide a new electrical connection to the site. SCV Water would coordinate 
with SCE to connect power to the pump station. The SCE transformer would be located toward the front 
entrance to the site. 

A diesel backup generator would be installed in a generator room within the pump building. The generator 
would be equipped with a diesel particulate filter if needed to meet SCAQMD requirements. Fuel for the 
backup generator would be stored in two tanks. One fuel tank would store 7,000 gallons of fuel (enough to 
operate the generator at a 50 percent load for a minimum of 96 hours), and one day tank would store 300 
gallons of fuel (enough to operate the generator at full load for a minimum of two hours). The fuel tanks 
would be installed within containment walls and would be located outside the pump building. 

89



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

2-24 
 

The existing entrance gate from Magic Mountain Parkway, which is 26 feet wide, would remain in place 
and could accommodate various vehicles during construction and operation of the pump station. 
Approximately 1,200 linear feet of perimeter fencing would be installed around the pump station. The 
proposed Project design includes landscaping, which would surround the property to provide privacy and 
to soften views of the pump station. Lighting at the pump station would be minimal. 

The proposed Project also includes a turnout (V-9 Turnout Facility) that would be located at the 
Backcountry Pump Station site (Figure 2-5). Because the V-9 Turnout is collocated at the Backcountry 
Pump Station site, it is included in analyses of the pump station throughout this Addendum. The V-9 
Turnout would include pressure and flow control valves, as well as a flow meter. The V-9 Turnout would 
be installed on the Backcountry Pump Station’s 42-inch diameter discharging pipe.  

From the V-9 Turnout Facility two water distribution pipelines would be constructed in Magic Mountain 
Parkway to tie into existing transmission pipelines in existing developed areas. Specifically, a 16-inch 
distribution pipeline would extend approximately 1,920 feet in Magic Mountain Parkway to tie into the 
existing 16-inch main in Tourney Road to serve Zone I. Additionally, a 24-inch distribution pipeline would 
extend approximately 1,4870 feet in Magic Mountain Parkway to tie into the existing 16-inch main in 
Wayne Mills Place to serve Zone IIA-N (see Figure 2-6).

90



A
dd

en
du

m
 to

 M
is

si
on

 V
ill

ag
e 

EI
R 

 
B

ac
kc

ou
nt

ry
 R

es
er

vo
ir 

an
d 

Pu
m

p 
St

at
io

n 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
PR

O
JE

C
T 

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

 

2-
25

 
 

Fi
gu

re
 2

-1
8:

 P
um

p 
St

at
io

n 
La

yo
ut

 

 
   

   
   

   
   

So
ur

ce
: M

ag
ic

 M
ou

nt
ai

n 
Pu

m
p 

St
at

io
n 

Co
nc

ep
tu

al
 D

es
ig

n 
Te

ch
ni

ca
l M

em
or

an
du

m
 (M

ic
ha

el
 B

ak
er

 In
te

rn
at

io
na

l, 
20

20
) 

91



A
dd

en
du

m
 to

 M
is

si
on

 V
ill

ag
e 

EI
R 

 
B

ac
kc

ou
nt

ry
 R

es
er

vo
ir 

an
d 

Pu
m

p 
St

at
io

n 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
PR

O
JE

C
T 

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

 

2-
26

 
 

Fi
gu

re
 2

-1
9:

 P
um

p 
St

at
io

n 
Se

ct
io

n 
V

ie
w

s 

 
   

   
   

   
   

So
ur

ce
: M

ag
ic

 M
ou

nt
ai

n 
Pu

m
p 

St
at

io
n 

Co
nc

ep
tu

al
 D

es
ig

n 
Te

ch
ni

ca
l M

em
or

an
du

m
 (M

ic
ha

el
 B

ak
er

 In
te

rn
at

io
na

l, 
20

20
) 

92



Addendum to Mission Village EIR 
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project  PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

2-27 
 

Construction Activities 

Backcountry Reservoir 

Construction of the Backcountry Reservoir would include, but not be limited to, civil site work; earthwork 
and grading; reservoir construction; installation of piping, seismic anchors, electrical systems, 
instrumentation, controls, SCADA systems, lighting, fences and gate; and paving of the maintenance road 
around the reservoir. Construction staging would occur on the proposed reservoir site, and would require 
storage of equipment, construction materials and stockpiled soil. As described above, reservoir construction 
is anticipated to result in approximately 35,000 cubic yards of exported material. 

Backcountry Pump Station , V-9 Turnout Facility and Distribution Pipelines 

Construction of the pump station would include, but not be limited to, earthwork and grading; structural 
improvements; installation of pumps, valves, and appurtenances; installation of electrical systems, lighting, 
gate, and emergency generator; and landscaping. Construction staging would occur on the proposed pump 
station site, and would require storage of equipment, construction materials, and stockpiled soil. 
Construction activities would be restricted to the disturbed site; areas of adjacent vegetation would be 
avoided. It is estimated that pump station construction would require excavation of 1,200 cubic yards of 
soil, would generate 800 cubic yards of export and require 1,500 cubic yards of fill material. Construction 
of the V-9 turnout would be by open cut trenching. It is estimated that 900 cubic yards of material would 
be exported, and 500 cubic yards of fill would be imported. To connect the pump station to the existing 42-
inch water transmission pipeline (Magic Mountain Pipeline), some work may be required in public right-
of-way in Magic Mountain Parkway. There is also potential for landscaping improvements and work to 
improve driveway access to Magic Mountain Parkway in public right-of-way. Construction staging would 
be located at the pump station site. Construction of the 16-inch and 24-inch distribution pipelines in Magic 
Mountain Parkway would be completed by open cut trenching. The trench would be 4 to 6 feet deep and 4 
feet wide (2 feet on either side). All construction would take place within the Magic Mountain Parkway 
right-of-way.  

It is anticipated that in order to make proposed connections to the existing Magic Mountain Pipeline, 
dewatering and discharge into local storm drains along Magic Mountain Parkway would be required. 
Discharges into the storm drain would require a permit from County of Los Angeles Department of Public 
Works (LACDPW) with pre-approved discharge locations. In addition, coordination with the California 
Department of Fish & Wildlife (CDFW) would be required if significant discharges to the Santa Clara River 
are expected.  

Equipment/Staging 

To characterize and analyze potential construction impacts, construction-related truck trips and equipment 
types have been estimated based on expected excavation volumes, quantities of exported materials, 
construction material deliveries and construction site equipment operations. Estimated truck trips for the 
proposed Project are summarized in Table 2-1 and Table 2-2. Equipment that may be used at any given 
time during proposed Project construction is summarized in Table 2-3 and Table 2-4. Construction staging 
is anticipated to be located at the reservoir and pump station sites. 

93



Addendum to Mission Village EIR 
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project  PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

2-28 
 

Table 2-1: Estimated Truck Trips – Backcountry Reservoir 
Truck Total Trips Trips/day 

Soil Haul Trucks 
(assume 8 trucks, 10 cubic yards of soil per truck, 8 
round trips per day, 3-mile round trip haul) 

3,500 64 

Concrete Trucks 
(assume need to pour 1 wall per day, total 9 walls) 580 10 

Material Delivery Trucks 145 1 
  Source: Woodard & Curran 

 
Table 2-2: Estimated Truck Trips – Pump Station and V-9 Turnout 

Truck Total Trips Trips/day 
Soil Haul Trucks 
(assume 8 trucks, 10 cubic yards of soil per truck, 8 round 
trips per day, 3-mile round trip haul) 

130 32 

Concrete Trucks 40 N/A 
Material Delivery Trucks 90 N/A 

Source: MBI engineer’s estimates 
 

Table 2-3: Estimated Equipment Type and Use – Backcountry Reservoir 

Equipment Type 
Estimated 

Number Used 
(per day) 

Estimated 
Duration 

(hours/day) 

Estimated Total Number 
of Working Days of Use 

During Entire 
Construction 

Excavator  1 8 55 
Track Loader 1 4 75 
Highway legal dump truck 8 8 75 
Flatbed truck (material delivery) 1 1 145 
Pickup trucks 1 4 500 
Worker vehicles 10 2 500 
Crane 1 6 250 
Paver 1 4 10 
Compactor 1 4 10 
Grader 1 4 10 
Source: Woodard & Curran  
 

94



Addendum to Mission Village EIR 
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project  PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

2-29 
 

Table 2-4: Estimated Equipment Type and Use – Pump Station and V-9 Turnout 

Equipment Type 
Estimated 

Number Used 
(per day) 

Estimated 
Duration 

(hours/day) 

Estimated Total Number 
of Working Days of Use 

During Entire 
Construction 

Excavator  1 8 80 
Track Loader 1 8 40 
Highway legal dump truck 4 8 30 
Flatbed truck (material delivery) 1 4 120 

Pickup trucks 4 8 240 
Worker vehicles 4 8 240 
Crane 1 8 50 
Paver 1 8 15 
Compactor 1 8 60 
Grader 1 8 10 
Water Truck 1 6 60 
Forklift 1 4 40 
Source: MBI engineer’s estimates 

Construction Management Practices 

The contract documents would include standard construction management practices including, but not 
limited to: 

• Obtain coverage under the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) Construction General 
Permit and implement a Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP). 

• Identify existing underground utilities through Underground Service Alert. 

• Comply with South Coast Air Quality Management District (SCAQMD) Rule 403.1 to control dust 
during construction. The contractor is required to have an approved Fugitive Dust Control Plan 
prior to grading or excavation.  

• Comply with the California Air Resources Boards (CARB) In-Use Off-Road Diesel-Fueled Fleets 
Regulations, which would limit vehicle idling time to five minutes, restrict adding vehicles to 
construction fleets that have lower than Tier 3 engines, and establish a schedule for retiring older, 
less fuel-efficient engines from the construction fleet. 

• Prepare a Hazardous Materials Management and Spill Control Plan to manage hazardous materials, 
wastes, and any potential spills during construction. 

Construction Schedule 

Construction of the reservoir, pump station, and V-9 turnout is expected to take approximately 18 to 24 
months to complete, with an estimated start in fall 2024 and completion between spring and fall 2026.  

  

95



Addendum to Mission Village EIR 
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project  PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

2-30 
 

Project Operation and Maintenance 

Backcountry Reservoir  

The Backcountry Reservoir would be supplied with potable water conveyed through the Magic Mountain 
pipeline. Operation of the reservoir would generally involve control of reservoir potable water level through 
SCADA from various operating scenarios from four different possible water sources: potable surface water 
treatment plants, existing wells 206 and 207, existing Saugus wells 1 and 2, and future wells S3 and S4.  

The Backcountry Reservoir would be inspected every three years in accordance with the American Water 
Works Association standards. The reservoir would not be drained as part of regular maintenance. 
Maintenance of reservoir valves, air vacs, and other appurtenances would be conducted per manufacturer’s 
recommendations.  

Maintenance and collection of water samples from the reservoir would require an estimated four worker 
trips to the site per week. Power consumption for operation of the reservoir is estimated to be 10 kilowatt-
hours (kWh) per day or 3,650 kWh annually, based on the estimated electrical needs to operate low level 
lighting, SCADA systems, security systems and other electrical controls. 

Backcountry Pump Station and V-9 Turnout Facility 

During operation the pump station would pump approximately 8,000 gallons per minute to the Backcountry 
Reservoir using one pump, and up to 23,300 gpm with three pumps in operation (Michael Baker 
International, 2022b). No storage or use of chemicals is proposed at the pump station. 

Maintenance of the pump station would include inspection, cleaning, and water quality sampling. The pump 
station would be inspected weekly. Maintenance of pumps, flow control and pressure reducing station, and 
appurtenances would be conducted in accordance with manufacturer’s recommendations. Water quality 
would be monitored on site weekly. To discharge water samples containing chloramines into the local 
wastewater collection system, an Industrial Waste Discharge Permit would be required by the LACDPW. 
Inspection and sampling would require one worker trips to the site per week.  

Power consumption for operation of the pump station is estimated to be 900,000 kWh, annually, based on 
electrical needs for operation of the pumps, electrical controls, and lighting. In the event of a power failure, 
the diesel backup generator would provide power for a minimum of 24 hours. If landscaping is installed at 
the pump station site, regular maintenance would result in approximately one worker trip per week. 

The V-9 Turnout Facility would also be located at the Backcountry Pump Station Site. The turnout would 
allow for tie-ins to existing Zone I and Zone IIA-N through the proposed 16-inch and 24-inch distribution 
pipelines within Magic Mountain Parkway. The turnout facility includes above-ground pipe trains for flow 
control, pressure-reducing valves and isolation valves, and aboveground discharge piping downstream of 
the flow control pipe trains. Water from the pump station would flow to the V-9 Turnout when water is not 
needed at the Backcountry Reservoir. The V-9 Turnout would be hydraulically operated and monitored 
through SCADA. Operation would consist of monthly exercising of manual valves and recalibrating of 
meters approximately every two years. No other maintenance is anticipated.  

2.5 Permits and Approvals 

The proposed Project may require the following permits and approvals: 

• State Water Resources Control Board Division of Drinking Water (SWRCB-Division of Drinking 
Water): approval for an amendment to SCV Water’s Drinking Water Supply Permit  

96



Addendum to Mission Village EIR 
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project  PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

2-31 
 

• State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB): NPDES General Permit for Storm Water 
Discharges associated with Construction Activities 

• Los Angeles Regional Water Quality Control Board (RWQCB): NPDES General Discharge Permit 
for Low Threat Hydrostatic Test Water Discharges to Surface Waters 

• Los Angeles RWQCB: NPDES General Permit for Discharges of Groundwater from Construction 
and Project Dewatering to Surface Waters 

• South Coast Air Quality Management District (SCAQMD): Permit to Construct and Permit to 
Operate for pump station (engine greater than 50 BHP)  

• Los Angeles County Department of Public Works (Building and Safety Division): Building plan 
check (required because the pump generator has a disconnecting means rated more than 400A) 

• Los Angeles County Department of Public Works (Flood Control District): Permit for discharges 
to the storm drain 

• Los Angeles County Department of Public Works: Industrial Waste Discharge Permit (for 
discharge of samples containing chloramines to the local wastewater collection system) 

• Los Angeles County Fire Department: Construction permit for diesel for pump generator (under 
California Fire Code, Section 105.7.9) 

• Southern California Edison: Approval to connect to power supply 

 

97



Addendum to Mission Village EIR 
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project  RELATION TO MISSION VILLAGE EIR 

3-1 
 

3. RELATION TO MISSION VILLAGE EIR 

3.1 Environmental Impact Findings in Mission Village EIR 

The Mission Village EIR concluded that most environmental resource impacts of the Mission Village 
development project, which included development of a water tank at the Backcountry Reservoir site, could 
be reduced to less than significant with incorporation of mitigation measures. However, the EIR found that 
project impacts and/or cumulative impacts associated with five environmental resource topics remained 
significant and unavoidable even with incorporation of mitigation measures. Table ES-1 of the EIR 
summarizes the impact findings for all environmental resource topics; those found to be significant are 
summarized from Table ES-1 as follows:  

• Biota: While the proposed project would not result in significant unavoidable impacts (after 
implementation of mitigation measures), the proposed project’s contribution to cumulative impacts 
to coastal scrub would remain significant. 

• Visual Qualities: After implementation of the recommended mitigation measures, visual quality 
project and cumulative impacts would remain significant and unavoidable. 

• Air Quality: No feasible mitigation exists that would reduce all of the project emissions to below 
the SCAQMD’s recommended thresholds of significance. The project’s and cumulative condition 
construction-related emissions of volatile organic compounds (VOCs), nitrogen oxide (NOX), 
particulate matter 10 micrometers or less in diameter (PM10), and particulate matter 2.5 
micrometers or less in diameter (PM2.5) and operation-related emissions of VOCs, NOX, carbon 
monoxide (CO), PM10, and PM2.5 are considered significant and unavoidable. 

• Solid Waste: Even with mitigation, the project’s solid and hazardous waste impacts would be 
considered significant and unavoidable. In addition, cumulative solid and hazardous waste impacts 
would be considered significant and unavoidable. 

• Agricultural Resources: The project-specific impacts resulting from the loss of prime agricultural 
land are considered significant and unavoidable. In addition, the cumulative conversion of prime 
agricultural land to non-agricultural uses constitutes a loss of an irreplaceable resource and is 
considered a significant and unavoidable cumulative impact. 

3.2 Mitigation Measures in Mission Village EIR 

The Mission Village EIR contains over a hundred mitigation measures to reduce environmental impacts of 
the Mission Village land development project, which included development of a water tank at the 
Backcountry Reservoir site. The mitigation measures include relevant and applicable program-level 
mitigation measures from the Newhall Ranch Specific Plan Program EIR as well as project-specific 
mitigation measures applicable to the Mission Village land development project contained in the Mission 
Village EIR. Several mitigation measures are applicable to construction and operation of the proposed 
Project.  

All of the mitigation measures are listed in Table ES-1 of the 2011 Mission Village EIR and can be found 
at: http://planning.lacounty.gov/assets/upl/case/tr_061105_deir-volume1.pdf. 

Additional mitigation measures further addressing Mission Village development impacts on biota as well 
as Global Climate Change from increased greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions can be found at: 
http://planning.lacounty.gov/assets/upl/case/tr_061105-1_draft-eir.pdf. 

98

http://planning.lacounty.gov/assets/upl/case/tr_061105_deir-volume1.pdf
http://planning.lacounty.gov/assets/upl/case/tr_061105-1_draft-eir.pdf


Addendum to Mission Village EIR 
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project  RELATION TO MISSION VILLAGE EIR 

3-2 
 

3.3 Approach to Environmental Evaluation of Backcountry Reservoir Project 

Section 5, Environmental Checklist evaluates environmental impacts of the proposed Project pursuant to 
Section 15063(d)(3) of the CEQA Guidelines. The evaluation compares the anticipated environmental 
effects of the proposed Project with those disclosed in the Mission Village EIR, and reviews whether any 
of the conditions requiring preparation of a Subsequent EIR pursuant to Section 15162 of the CEQA 
Guidelines are met, and whether there are new significant impacts resulting from the proposed Project. 
Specifically, the evaluation determines if construction and operation of the Backcountry Reservoir at the 
tank site location identified and evaluated in the Mission Village EIR as well as the associated Back County 
Pump Station would result in new impacts or increase the severity of impacts in comparison to the impacts 
identified in the Mission Village EIR. The analysis also examines if the applicable mitigation measures in 
the Mission Village EIR would be effective in avoiding or reducing potential significant impacts of the 
proposed Project, or whether new mitigation measures would be needed to mitigate impacts. 

Many of the mitigation measures in the Mission Village EIR were written to address a large-scale residential 
development requiring various review and approvals from Los Angeles County. Unlike the Mission Village 
development, the proposed Project will be designed and constructed by SCV Water in accordance with 
SCV Water design and construction standards. Therefore, implementation actions have been defined for 
each of the original Mission Village mitigation measures to clarify how the mitigation would be 
implemented for the proposed Project and to facilitate proper implementation by SCV Water but do not 
constitute any revision to these mitigation measures. These implementation actions do not represent a 
change in the purpose, intent and effect of the original mitigation measure, and the conditions for proceeding 
with an Addendum under CEQA Guidelines Section 15162 are still met. In this Addendum, the applicable 
mitigation measures, extracted verbatim in whole or part from the Mission Village EIR are notated as 
“MV”, and those which tiered from the Newhall Ranch Specific Plan Program EIR are notated as “SP”. 
The SCV Water implementation actions are provided for each of the applicable mitigation measures. 

The Environmental Checklist in Section 5 covers all environmental topics listed in Appendix G of the 
CEQA Guidelines. Since certification of the Mission Village Final EIR in 2011, the Appendix G 
Environmental Checklist was updated as part of the state CEQA Guidelines update in December 2018. The 
updated Appendix G Environmental Checklist included modifications to some checklist questions and the 
addition of several new environmental resource topics, specifically Energy, Tribal Cultural Resources and 
Wildfire Risk. The environmental evaluation in this Addendum uses the updated Environmental Checklist.

99



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project DETERMINATION 

4-1 
 

4. DETERMINATION 

The Environmental Checklist in Section 5 is an analysis of environmental impacts of construction and 
operation of the proposed Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project. The analysis in the checklist 
evaluates whether construction and operation of the Backcountry Reservoir at the tank site location 
identified and evaluated in the Mission Village EIR as well as the associated pump station, turn-out facility 
and distribution pipelines would result in new impacts or increase the severity of impacts in comparison to 
the impacts identified in the Mission Village EIR. The analysis also examines whether the applicable 
mitigation measures in the Mission Village EIR would be effective in avoiding or reducing potential 
significant impacts of the Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project, or whether new mitigation 
measures would be needed to mitigate impacts.  

Based on the information and analysis contained in this Addendum, and pursuant to Section 15162 of the 
CCR, SCV Water has determined that: 

• There are no substantial changes proposed in the project which would require major revisions of 
the previous EIR due to the involvement of new significant environmental effects or a substantial 
increase in the severity of previously identified significant effects. 

• Substantial changes have not occurred with respect to the circumstances under which the project 
is undertaken which would require major revisions of the previous EIR due to the involvement of 
new significant environmental effects or a substantial increase in the severity of previously 
identified significant effects. 

• There is no new information of substantial importance, which was not known and could not have 
been known with the exercise of reasonable diligence at the time the previous EIR was certified 
as complete, that shows any of the following: 

o The project would have one or more significant effects not discussed in the previous EIR; 

o Significant effects previously examined would be substantially more severe than shown in 
the previous EIR;  

o Mitigation measures or alternatives previously found not to be feasible would in fact be 
feasible, and would substantially reduce one or more significant effects of the project, but 
the project proponents decline to adopt the mitigation measure or alternative; and 

o Mitigation measures or alternatives which are considerably different from those analyzed 
in the previous EIR would substantially reduce one or more significant effects on the 
environment, but the project proponents decline to adopt the mitigation measure or 
alternative. 

 

Matthew Stone   For Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency 
General Manager    
    

  
    
Signature   Date 

100



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-1 
 

5. ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

 
1.  Project title:  Addendum to Mission Village Environmental Impact 

Report – Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project 
 
2. Lead agency name and address:  Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency 
  26521 Summit Circle 
  Santa Clarita, California 91350 
 
3. Contact person and phone number:  Ernesto Velazquez  
 Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency 
 26521 Summit Circle 
 Santa Clarita, California 91350 
 (661) 714-2768 

 
4. Project location: The Backcountry Reservoir site is located at the southern edge of the Mission Village 
development which is south of the Santa Clara River and State Route 126, and west of Interstate-5 within 
unincorporated Los Angeles County. The proposed associated Backcountry Pump Station would be located 
east of the Mission Village development, on a vacant parcel adjacent to Magic Mountain Parkway, 
approximately 0.5 miles east of Interstate-5, within the City of Santa Clarita. The associated distribution 
pipelines would extend westerly from the pump station site through the Magic Mountain Parkway right of 
way, within the City of Santa Clarita 
 
5. Project sponsor’s name and address: Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency 

26521 Summit Circle 
Santa Clarita, CA 91350 

 
6. General plan designation:  Public Facility – Backcountry Reservoir; Business Park – 

Backcountry Pump Station 
 
7. Zoning:  SP: Specific Plan - Backcountry Reservoir; Business Park 

- Backcountry Pump Station 
 
8. Description of project: Construction and operation of a 7.9 million gallon (MG) partially buried 

reservoir and associated pump station to provide emergency and operational storage of potable water 
during short-term outage or disruptions to the regional water supply system. 

 
9. Surrounding land uses and setting: The reservoir site is located on the southern edge of the 

developing Mission Village, a planned community within the Newhall Ranch Specific Plan area, west 
of the City of Santa Clarita. The site is bounded directly by undeveloped land on the south, and future 
planned open space areas of Mission Village on the east, west and north, some of which has been rough 
graded. The project site is rough graded and devoid of vegetation. Concrete slope drains have been 
installed on the downward slopes of the reservoir site to convey sheet flow to the local storm drain 
system within the Mission Village development. The pump station site is an 11-acre lot north of Magic 
Mountain Parkway. The site is bounded by open space to the north and west, a SCE substation facility 
to the south, and power transmission lines to the east. Proposed distribution pipelines would extend 
westerly through the Magic Mountain Parkway right of way, which is surrounded by open space to the 
north and developed land to the south. 

101



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-2 
 

 
10. Other public agencies whose approval may be required (e.g., permits, financing approval, or 

participation agreement.) 

• State Water Resources Control Board Division of Drinking Water (SWRCB-Division of Drinking 
Water): approval for an amendment to SCV Water’s Drinking Water Supply Permit  

• State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB): NPDES General Permit for Storm Water 
Discharges associated with Construction Activities 

• Los Angeles Regional Water Quality Control Board (RWQCB): NPDES General Discharge Permit 
for Low Threat Hydrostatic Test Water Discharges to Surface Waters 

• Los Angeles RWQCB: NPDES General Permit for Discharges of Groundwater from Construction 
and Project Dewatering to Surface Waters 

• South Coast Air Quality Management District (SCAQMD): Permit to Construct and Permit to 
Operate for pump station (engine greater than 50 BHP)  

• Los Angeles County Department of Public Works (Building and Safety Division): Building plan 
check (required because the pump generator has a disconnecting means rated more than 400A) 

• Los Angeles County Department of Public Works (Flood Control District): Permit for discharges 
to the storm drain 

• Los Angeles County Department of Public Works: Industrial Waste Discharge Permit (for 
discharge of samples containing chloramines to the local wastewater collection system) 

• Los Angeles County Fire Department: Construction permit for diesel for pump generator (under 
California Fire Code, Section 105.7.9) 

• Southern California Edison: Approval to connect to power supply 

11. Have California Native American tribes traditionally and culturally affiliated with the Project 
area requested consultation pursuant to Public Resources Code section 2180.3.1? If so, is there 
a plan for consultation that includes, for example, the determination of significance of impacts 
to tribal cultural resources, procedures regarding confidentiality, etc.? 

Compliance with PRC section 2180.3.1, applies to any project for which a Notice of Preparation (NOP) 
of an EIR, Notice of Mitigated Negative Declaration or Notice of Negative Declaration is filed on or 
after July 1, 2015, as stated in PRC section 21084.3, Section 11 (c). The NOP for the Mission Village 
EIR was filed on May 24, 2005. Therefore, requirements under PRC section 2180.3.1 are not applicable 
to the Addendum to the Mission Village EIR.  

  

102



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-3 
 

Evaluation of Environmental Impacts 
 
The environmental evaluation herein utilizes a checklist format to make findings based on the following 
four criteria:  
 

1)  No New Impact/No Impact – this finding means that the potential impact was analyzed and/or 
mitigated in the previously certified EIR and no new or different impacts would result from the 
proposed activity.  

  
2)  New Mitigation is Required – this finding means that the project may have a potentially 

significant impact on the environment or a substantially more severe impact than analyzed in the 
previously certified EIR and that new mitigation is required to address the impact.  

  
3)  New Potentially Significant Impact – this finding means that the project may have a new 

potentially significant impact on the environment or a substantially more severe impact than 
analyzed in the previously certified EIR that cannot be mitigated to below a level of significance 
or be avoided.  

  
4)  Reduced Impact – this finding means that a previously infeasible mitigation measure is now 

available, or a previously infeasible alternative is now available that will reduce a significant impact 
identified in the previously prepared environmental document.  

  

103



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-4 
 

5.1 Aesthetics   
 New Potentially New  
 Significant Mitigation No Impact/ Reduced  
  Impact  Required  No New Impact   Impact  
Except as provided in Public Resources Code Section 

21099, would the Project: 
 
 a) Have a substantial adverse effect on a scenic vista?     
 
 b) Substantially damage scenic resources, including, but     
  not limited to, trees, rock outcroppings, and historic 

buildings within a state scenic highway? 
 
 c) In non-urbanized areas, substantially degrade the      
  existing visual character or quality of public views 

of the site and its surroundings? (Public views are 
those that are experienced from publicly accessible 
vantage point). If the Project is in an urbanized area, 
would the Project conflict with applicable zoning 
and other regulations governing scenic quality? 

 
Create a new source of substantial light or glare which      
would adversely affect day or nighttime views in the  
area? 

Discussion 

a) Have a substantial adverse effect on a scenic vista? 

No New Impact.  

Backcountry Reservoir 

The Backcountry Reservoir would be visible from adjacent areas and would have temporary visual impacts 
during construction as discussed in the Mission Village EIR. Preliminary plans for the reservoir indicate 
that final grading would result in approximately 17 feet of the reservoir would be exposed above ground 
and could be visible to immediately surrounding areas. The original tank as evaluated in the Mission Village 
EIR was fully aboveground, although its height was not specified. The reservoir site design would adhere 
to the Newhall Ranch Specific Plan design guidelines to ensure the reservoir and fencing blend into the 
landscape, and aesthetic treatments are incorporated to soften views of the reservoir to the extent possible. 
The reservoir site was strategically selected to minimize adverse aesthetic impacts on the community and 
would be shielded from view by a landscape berm to provide visual integration into the surrounding areas. 
The reservoir would not obstruct any scenic views. Impacts on scenic vistas during construction and 
operation would be less than significant with implementation of mitigation measures that would ensure that 
the reservoir is compatible with the development guidelines and design standards of the Newhall Ranch 
Specific Plan.  

Backcountry Pump Station 

The Backcountry Pump Station site is adjacent to large electric transmission lines and is located across the 
street from a SCE substation facility. The existing visual character of the site is impacted by these utilities. 

104



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-5 
 

The Backcountry Pump Station would be visible from adjacent portions of Magic Mountain Parkway and 
a small portion of the Iron Horse Trail. The Backcountry Pump Station would have temporary visual 
impacts during construction (e.g., construction vehicles, soils stockpiles, and equipment). These impacts 
would be limited to the areas with views of the Backcountry Pump Station site and would end once 
construction is complete. The Backcountry Pump Station would include a pump building, which would 
house the majority of the Backcountry Pump Station equipment (including pumps, generator, and 
electrical). The pump building would be constructed with CMU block walls. Some components of the 
Backcountry Pump Station would be outside the pump building (which may include a transformer, fuel 
tank, and flow control and pressure reducing station). Distribution pipelines would be buried and would not 
alter views. The Backcountry Pump Station would not obstruct any scenic views or substantially impact the 
existing visual character of the area. Impacts on scenic vistas during construction and operation would be 
less than significant.  

Mission Village EIR Findings 

The Mission Village EIR concluded overall that the Mission Village development would result in a 
substantial change in the visual qualities of the area and impacts to some scenic vistas would be significant 
during and after construction even with implementation of mitigation measures.  

Conclusion: Because the partially buried Backcountry Reservoir and the Backcountry Pump Station would 
not have greater visual impacts than the tank described in the Mission Village EIR, the proposed Project 
would not create any new significant visual impacts or create a substantial increase in the severity of 
significant impacts to scenic vistas identified in the Mission Village EIR, and no additional mitigation 
measures would be necessary.  

b) Substantially damage scenic resources, including, but not limited to, trees, rock outcroppings, and 
historic buildings within a state scenic highway? 

No New Impact.  

Backcountry Reservoir 

The Backcountry Reservoir would not impact scenic resources since there are no such resources in the 
viewshed of the reservoir site. There are no officially designated state scenic highways in the vicinity of the 
Mission Village development or the Backcountry Reservoir. No impacts would be expected. 

Backcountry Pump Station 

No scenic resources are present in the viewshed of the Backcountry Pump Station site. There are no 
designated state scenic highways in the vicinity of the Backcountry Pump Station. No impact would occur. 

Mission Village EIR Findings 

The Mission Village EIR concluded overall that the Mission Village development would result in a 
substantial change in the visual qualities of the area (including the Santa Clara River/SR-126 visual 
corridor), and impacts to some scenic vistas would be significant during and after construction even with 
implementation of mitigation measures.  

Conclusion: The proposed Project would not create any new significant visual impacts or create a 
substantial increase in the severity of significant impacts to scenic vistas identified in the Mission Village 
EIR. No additional mitigation measures would be necessary because the Backcountry Reservoir would not 

105



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-6 
 

be more visually obtrusive than the aboveground tank envisioned in the Mission Village EIR, and the 
Backcountry Pump Station would not substantially impact scenic resources. 

c) In non-urbanized areas, substantially degrade the existing visual character or quality of public views 
of the site and its surroundings? (Public views are those that are experienced from publicly accessible 
vantage point). If the Project is in an urbanized area, would the Project conflict with applicable zoning 
and other regulations governing scenic quality? 

No New Impact.  

Backcountry Reservoir 

The Backcountry Reservoir site is located in the urbanized portion of the Santa Clarita Valley, within the 
Mission Village area currently under development. The reservoir would not conflict with the applicable 
zoning and other regulations governing scenic quality. As part of the larger Newhall Ranch development, 
the Backcountry Reservoir is subject to the Development Regulations and Design Guidelines contained in 
the Newhall Ranch Specific Plan. These regulations and guidelines provide site development standards and 
address site planning, architecture, fencing, landscape design, lighting, setbacks, and grading design criteria 
within the Newhall Ranch Specific Plan. Final grading of the reservoir site would result in approximately 
17 feet of the reservoir exposed above ground, which is well below the 35-foot maximum building height 
standard set for open area land use type in the Newhall Ranch Specific Plan development regulations. The 
Newhall Ranch Specific Plan Development Regulations and Design Guidelines also require a 50-foot 
setback in open areas. The setback from the reservoir structure to the immediate parcel boundary would 
vary from 20 to 60 feet (Figure 2-11). However, the reservoir parcel is surrounded to the west, north, and 
east by other steeply graded parcels that would not be developed and would not be publicly accessible 
(Figure 5-1). South of the reservoir parcel is open space. Thus, although the reservoir would be within 50 
feet of the parcel boundary in some locations, adjoining parcels would provide additional space between 
planned roads and houses. The Backcountry Reservoir would adhere to the Newhall Ranch Specific Plan 
design guidelines to ensure the reservoir and fencing blend into the landscape to the extent possible and 
would be at least 50 feet from proposed roads and residences in the vicinity to functionally meet the 50-
foot setback requirement. Conflict with applicable zoning and other regulations governing scenic quality 
would be less than significant with implementation of mitigation measure SP 4.7-1 and the proposed 
partially buried tank would be similar to the aboveground tank that was evaluated in the Mission Village 
EIR.  

106



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-7 
 

Figure 5-1: FivePoint Development Map near Backcountry Reservoir 

 
Source: Adapted from FivePoint map of Phase 1, 2A, 2B-1 & 3B of Development Area 1 Product Exhibit (FivePoint 
Communities, 2022).  

Backcountry Pump Station 

The Backcountry Pump Station is located within the urbanized area of the City of Santa Clarita, on a parcel 
zoned as Business Park. The City of Santa Clarita Community Character and Design Guidelines for 
industrial/business park areas state that utility lines from the service drop to the site should be underground, 
outdoor equipment should not be placed adjacent to public ways or trails, and outdoor equipment should 
be screened using a combination of elements such as masonry walls, berms, and landscaping (City of Santa 
Clarita, 2009). The SCE service connection to the Backcountry Pump Station would be below ground, as 
would the distribution pipelines. The Backcountry Pump Station site is adjacent to the existing Iron Horse 
trail recreational trail and would be visible from the trail. The trail has existing views of infrastructure such 
as power lines in the vicinity. The site would not be publicly accessible, and most equipment would be 
housed in the pump building. Thus, the Backcountry Pump Station would be in compliance with applicable 
zoning regulations and regulations governing scenic quality. 

Mission Village EIR Findings 

The Mission Village EIR concluded overall that the Mission Village project and cumulative development 
would significantly alter the visual characteristics of the project site and surrounding area and result in 
significant unavoidable impacts. The Mission Village project would cause a substantial change in the visual 

107



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-8 
 

qualities of the area and impacts to some scenic vistas would be significant during and after construction 
even with implementation of mitigation measures.  

Conclusion: The Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project would not conflict with applicable 
zoning and other regulations governing scenic quality, nor create any new significant visual impacts or 
create a substantial increase in the severity of significant impacts to scenic vistas identified in the Mission 
Village EIR. No additional mitigation measures would be necessary because the Backcountry Reservoir 
would not be more visually obtrusive than the aboveground tank described in the Mission Village EIR and 
the Backcountry Pump Station would not conflict with existing regulations governing scenic quality, 
although the impact, related to the Mission Village development, would remain significant and unavoidable, 
as disclosed in the Mission Village EIR.  

d) Create a new source of substantial light or glare which would adversely affect day or nighttime 
views in the area? 

No New Impact.  

Backcountry Reservoir 

The Backcountry Reservoir would include minimal lighting on site and reflective surfaces would be 
minimal. Lighting would be oriented to prevent light intrusion onto adjacent areas. Impacts would be less 
than significant with implementation of mitigation measure SP 4.7-1 that would ensure compatibility with 
design standards of the Newhall Ranch Specific Plan. 

Backcountry Pump Station 

The City of Santa Clarita Community Character and Design Guidelines for industrial/business park areas 
would apply to lighting at the Backcountry Pump Station site. These guidelines stipulate that lighting should 
be used to provide illumination for security and safety, lighting should be minimized to reduce impacts to 
the night sky, and light leak into adjacent sites should be avoided (City of Santa Clarita, 2009). Like the 
Backcountry Reservoir, the Backcountry Pump Station would include minimal lighting on site. Lighting 
would be designed such that it is directed downward and does not spill onto adjacent properties. Lighting 
would be limited to the level necessary to ensure security and safety on site. Exterior daytime lighting would 
not be used. Reflective exterior surfaces would be minimized. With these design features, the Backcountry 
Pump Station would not create a new source of light or substantial glare, and the impact to views would be 
less than significant.  

Mission Village EIR Findings 

The Mission Village EIR concluded that even with implementation of design standards to minimize the 
outward and upward migration of nighttime light, changes in the night sky would occur resulting in a 
significant impact. 

Conclusion: The proposed Project would not create any new significant light and glare impacts or create a 
substantial increase in the severity of significant nighttime impacts identified in the Mission Village EIR. 
No additional mitigation measures would be necessary because the Backcountry Reservoir would not 
generate more light and glare than the aboveground tank described in the Mission Village EIR, and the 
Backcountry Pump Station would not increase the light and glare impacts identified in the Mission Village 
EIR. 

108



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-9 
 

Applicable Mitigation Measures from Mission Village EIR and Newhall Ranch Program EIR:  

Newhall Ranch Specific Plan Program EIR (SP) 4.7-1: In conjunction with the development review 
process set forth in Chapter 5 of the Specific Plan, all future subdivision maps and other discretionary 
permits which allow construction shall incorporate the Development Guidelines (Specific Plan, Chapter 3) 
and Design Guidelines (Specific Plan Chapter 4), and the design themes and view considerations listed in 
the Specific Plan (Mission Village Vesting Tentative Tract Map 61105 and the applicable related 
discretionary permits incorporate the Specific Plan Development and Design Guidelines consistent with the 
requirements of the Specific Plan and this mitigation measure). 

SCV Water Implementation Action for SP 4.7-1: In design of the proposed Magic Mountain 1 
Reservoir Project, SCV Water shall consider and incorporate to the extent applicable the Design 
Guidelines of the Newhall Ranch Specific Plan (Chapter 4) and the design themes and view 
considerations listed in the Newhall Ranch Specific Plan to ensure that the reservoir and fencing blend 
into the landscape, and aesthetic treatments are incorporated to soften views of the reservoir. 

New Mitigation Measures:  

None needed. 

5.2 Agriculture and Forestry Resources 
 New Potentially New  
 Significant Mitigation No Impact/ Reduced  
  Impact  Required  No New Impact   Impact  
Would the Project: 

 a) Convert Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, or      
Farmland of Statewide Importance (Farmland), as 
shown on the maps prepared pursuant to the 
Farmland Mapping and Monitoring Program of the 
California Resources Agency, to non-agricultural 
use?  

 
 b) Conflict with existing zoning for agricultural use, 

or a Williamson Act contract?      
 
 c) Conflict with existing zoning for, or cause rezoning        
  of, forest land (as defined in Public Resources Code  
   section 12220(g)), timberland (as defined by Public 
  Resources Code section 4526), or timberland zoned 
  Timberland Production (as defined by Government  
  Code section 51104(g))?  
 
 d) Result in the loss of forest land or conversion of forest      
  land to non-forest use? 
 
 e) Involve other changes in the existing environment      
  which, due to their location or nature, could result 

in conversion of Farmland, to non-agricultural use 
or conversion of forest land to non-forest use? 

109



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-10 
 

Discussion 

a) Convert Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, or Farmland of Statewide Importance (Farmland), as 
shown on the maps prepared pursuant to the Farmland Mapping and Monitoring Program of the 
California Resources Agency, to non-agricultural use? 

No New Impact.  

Backcountry Reservoir 

The Backcountry Reservoir is located on land that was formally designated Grazing Land (not Prime 
Farmland of Statewide Importance) according to the Mission Village EIR. Loss of grazing land was not 
considered a significant impact in the EIR. The Backcountry Reservoir site is designated for non-agriculture 
use in the Newhall Ranch Specific Plan and is designated as a “Public Facility – Water Tank” in the Mission 
Village Land Use Plan. The Backcountry Reservoir would not convert farmland of Statewide Importance. 
No impact would occur.  

Backcountry Pump Station 

The Backcountry Pump Station would be located on land that is formally designated Prime Farmland 
according to the California Department of Conservation (CDOC, 2016). However, the site is not currently 
used for agriculture; it is primarily occupied by a parking lot. The Backcountry Pump Station site is 
designated as Business Park by the City of Santa Clarita (City of Santa Clarita, 2016). Although the 
Backcountry Pump Station would be located on an area designated as Prime Farmland, the site has already 
been converted away from Prime Farmland. The distribution pipelines would be located in Magic Mountain 
Parkway. Therefore, the Backcountry Pump Station would not convert farmland of Statewide Importance 
and no impact would occur. 

Mission Village EIR Findings 

The Mission Village EIR identified that buildout of the Mission Village development would result in 
conversion of prime agricultural land resulting in a significant impact with no feasible mitigation to reduce 
these impacts.  

Conclusion: The proposed Project would not create any new significant agricultural resource impacts or 
create a substantial increase in the severity of agricultural resources identified in the Mission Village EIR. 
The Backcountry Reservoir would be located on the same site as the tank described in the Mission Village 
EIR, and the Backcountry Pump Station would be located on a site that has already been converted away 
from agricultural use. No additional mitigation measures would be necessary although the impact, related 
to the Mission Village development, would remain significant and unavoidable, as disclosed in the Mission 
Village EIR. 

b) Conflict with existing zoning for agricultural use, or a Williamson Act contract? 

No New Impact.  

Backcountry Reservoir 

As discussed in the Agriculture and Forestry Resources Impact a), the Backcountry Reservoir site is the 
same site that was proposed for the tank that was included in the Mission Village EIR. The site is currently 
zoned for non-agricultural uses within the Newhall Ranch Specific Plan and is not located on land 
contracted under the Williamson Act. No lands within Los Angeles County are under Williamson Act 

110



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-11 
 

contracts since Los Angeles County does not participate in the Williamson Act program (CDOC, 2019). 
Therefore, the Backcountry Reservoir would not conflict with existing zoning for agricultural use or a 
Williamson Act contract. No impact would occur. 

Backcountry Pump Station 

The Backcountry Pump Station would be located in the City of Santa Clarita on a site zoned as Business 
Park, and associated distribution pipelines would be in the Magic Mountain Parkway right-of-way. Neither 
would be located on agricultural or Williamson Act land, and no impact would occur. 

Mission Village EIR Findings 

The Mission Village EIR identified that buildout of the Mission Village development would not conflict 
with existing agricultural zoning use or a Williamson Act contract. Area within the Newhall Ranch specific 
plan was re-zoned for non-agricultural use with adoption of the Newhall Ranch Specific Plan in 2003. No 
lands within Los Angeles County are under Williamson Act contracts since Los Angeles County does not 
participate in the Williamson Act program (CDOC, 2019). 

Conclusion: The proposed Project would not create any new agricultural resource impacts or a substantial 
increase in the severity of agricultural resources identified in the Mission Village EIR that would conflict 
with existing zoning for agricultural use or a Williamson Act contract, and no additional mitigation 
measures would be necessary. 

c) Conflict with existing zoning for, or cause rezoning of, forest land (as defined in Public Resources 
Code section 12220(g)), timberland (as defined by Public Resources Code section 4526), or timberland 
zoned Timberland Production (as defined by Government Code section 51104(g))? 

No New Impact.  

Backcountry Reservoir 

As discussed in the Agriculture and Forestry Resources impact a), the Backcountry Reservoir site was 
zoned for non-agricultural uses with adoption of the Newhall Ranch Specific Plan. Therefore, the 
Backcountry Reservoir would not conflict with existing zoning of forest land or timberland. No impact 
would occur.  

Backcountry Pump Station 

The Backcountry Pump Station site is zoned for non-agricultural uses (Business Park); therefore, the 
Backcountry Pump Station would not conflict with existing zoning of forest land or timberland and there 
would be no impact. 

Mission Village EIR Findings 

The Mission Village EIR identified that buildout of the Mission Village development would not conflict 
with existing forest or timberland and the Backcountry Reservoir site is the same that was addressed in the 
Mission Village EIR. The area within the Newhall Ranch specific plan was re-zoned for development with 
adoption of the Newhall Ranch Specific Plan in 2003.  

Conclusion: The proposed Project would not create any new agricultural resource impacts or a substantial 
increase in the severity of agricultural resources identified in the Mission Village EIR that would conflict 

111



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-12 
 

with existing zoning or cause rezoning of, forest or timberland and no additional mitigation measures would 
be necessary. 

d) Result in the loss of forest land or conversion of forest land to non-forest use? 

No Impact.  

Backcountry Reservoir 

The Backcountry Reservoir site is located on land that was previously identified as grazing land but has 
since been zoned for non-agricultural uses and rough graded. The site is currently located entirely on 
artificial fill devoid of vegetation. Therefore, the Backcountry Reservoir would not result in the loss of 
forest land or conversion of forest land to non-forest use, which is consistent with the findings in the Mission 
Village EIR. No impact would occur. 

Backcountry Pump Station 

The Backcountry Pump Station site is not forested; it is occupied by asphalt paving and sparse weedy 
vegetation. Distribution pipelines would be located in the roadway right-of-way. Therefore, construction of 
the Backcountry Pump Station would not result in the loss or conversion of forest land. No impact would 
occur. 

Mission Village EIR Findings 

The Mission Village EIR identified that buildout of the Mission Village development would not result in 
the loss of forest land or conversion of forest land to non-forest use. As stated in the Mission Village EIR, 
the northeast portion of the Mission Village tentative tract map site is used presently for agricultural 
purposes. The rest of the site is primarily open space, with remnants of abandoned oil and gas operations 
dispersed throughout the project site. Field investigations undertaken during the Mission Village EIR 
development identified three existing land use types (agriculture, developed areas, and disturbed lands) on 
the Mission Village development site (County of Los Angeles, 2010a). 

Conclusion: The proposed Project would not result in the loss of forest land or conversion of forest land to 
non-forest use, and no additional mitigation measures would be necessary. 

e) Involve other changes in the existing environment which, due to their location or nature, could result 
in conversion of Farmland, to non-agricultural use or conversion of forest land to non-forest use? 

No New Impact.  

Backcountry Reservoir 

The Backcountry Reservoir site is located on an approximate one acre of rough graded parcel, underlain by 
artificial fill, and devoid of vegetation, with no surrounding lands designated as Farmland. The reservoir is 
proposed to provide operational and emergency storage of potable water to customers in the SCV Water 
service areas; construction and operation of the proposed Project would not result in any changes to the 
environment that could convert farmland or forest land. No impact would occur. 

Backcountry Pump Station 

The Backcountry Pump Station site is located on an approximately 11-acre parcel, which is currently paved, 
with sparse ruderal vegetation. No surrounding lands are designated as Farmland. The purpose of the 

112



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-13 
 

Backcountry Pump Station is to provide pressure to deliver water to Backcountry Reservoir, the 
Backcountry Pump Station itself would not involve other changes in the environment outside the reservoir 
site. The Backcountry Pump Station would not result in changes to the environment that could convert 
farmland or forest land, and no impact would occur.  

Mission Village EIR Findings 

The Mission Village EIR identified that buildout of the Mission Village development would result in 
conversion of Farmland to non-agricultural use resulting in a significant impact with no feasible mitigation 
to reduce these impacts. Field investigations undertaken during the Mission Village EIR development did 
not identify any forest land within the Mission Village development, so no impact would occur. 

Conclusion: The proposed Project would not create any new significant agricultural resource impacts or 
involve other changes in the existing environment in addition to any development identified in the Mission 
Village EIR, and no additional mitigation measures would be necessary. 

Applicable Mitigation Measures from Mission Village EIR and Newhall Ranch Program EIR:  

None needed 

New Mitigation Measures:  

None needed. 

5.3 Air Quality 
 New Potentially New  
 Significant Mitigation No Impact/ Reduced  
  Impact  Required  No New Impact   Impact  
Would the Project: 

 a) Conflict with or obstruct implementation of the     
  applicable air quality plan? 
 
 b) Result in a cumulatively considerable net increase of     
  any criteria pollutant for which the Project region 

is non- attainment under an applicable federal or 
state ambient air quality standard? 

 
 c) Expose sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant     
  concentrations? 
 
 d) Result in other emissions (such as those leading to     
  odors or adversely affecting a substantial number 

of people? 

Discussion 

a) Conflict with or obstruct implementation of the applicable air quality plan? 

No New Impact.  

113



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-14 
 

Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station 

As discussed in Section 2.3, Existing Environmental Setting, the Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station 
sites are under SCAQMD jurisdiction within the SCAB. The SCAQMD monitors air pollutant levels in the 
SCAB to ensure California Ambient Air Quality Standards (CAAQS) and National Ambient Air Quality 
Standards (NAAQS) are met and develops strategies to attain those standards if they are not met. The 
SCAQMD’s 2016 Air Quality Management Plan (AQMP) is the applicable air quality plan that regulates 
air quality in the proposed Project area. It summarizes the attainment status of criteria pollutants in the 
SCAB and regional strategies to reach attainment. Criteria pollutant levels within the AQMP are classified 
as being in “attainment” or “nonattainment” depending on whether levels meet or exceed NAAQS or 
CAAQS. Under NAAQS, the SCAB is in nonattainment status for 1-Hour and 8-Hour Ozone (O3), 24-Hour 
and Annual PM2.5 and partial nonattainment status for Lead (Pb) (SCAQMD, 2018). Under CAAQS, the 
SCAB is in nonattainment status for 1-Hour and 8-Hour O3, Annual PM2.5, and 24-Hour and Annual PM10. 
The 2016 AQMP emissions inventory and strategies were developed based on population, housing units, 
total employment, and daily vehicle miles traveled (VMT) growth forecasts provided by the Southern 
California Association of Governments (SCAG) from its adopted 2016 Regional Transportation Plan / 
Sustainable Communities Strategy (RTP/SCS).  

The Backcountry Reservoir involves construction of a partially buried potable water reservoir and access 
road on a 1-acre site to provide an operational and emergency potable water storage reservoir for SCV 
Water users in SCV Water’s Zone B/Magic Mountain Zone. The Backcountry Pump Station would supply 
water to the Backcountry Reservoir. The distribution pipelines would provide connections to existing SCV 
Water service areas (Zone I and Zone IIA-N) to optimize service to certain pressure zones. The proposed 
Project would not serve water outside existing developed areas or planned developments; thus, it would not 
result in an inconsistency with the growth forecasts in the SCAG 2016 RTP/SCS,1 upon which the 2016 
AQMP was based. The proposed Project is not a new source of water supply and would not induce 
unplanned growth. Accordingly, the proposed Project would not conflict with or obstruct the SCAQMD’s 
2016 AQMP because it would not lead to population, housing, employment, or growth that exceeds the 
forecast used in development of the AQMP. Therefore, the proposed Project would not jeopardize 
attainment of state and federal ambient air quality standards. Impacts would be less than significant which 
would be similar to the impacts of a tank located at the same site described in the Mission Village EIR.  

Mission Village EIR Findings  

The Mission Village EIR concluded that population growth attributed to the Newhall Ranch Specific Plan 
is within the growth forecasts of the AQMP. 

Conclusion: The Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project would not obstruct implementation of 
the AQMP, which consistent with the conclusion described in the Mission Village EIR. Therefore, the 
proposed Project would have no new impact, and no mitigation measures would be needed.  

 
 
 
1 SCAG completed an update to the Regional Transportation Plan/Sustainable Communities Strategy in 2020 
(known as Connect SoCal). SCAQMD is currently preparing the 2022 Air Quality Management Plan, which will 
reflect updated growth projections from Connect SoCal. However, the existing AQMP relies on the 2016 Regional 
Transportation Plan/Sustainable Communities Strategy.  

114



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-15 
 

b) Result in a cumulatively considerable net increase of  any criteria pollutant for which the Project 
region is non- attainment under an applicable federal or state ambient air quality standard? 

No New Impact.  

Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station 

Similar to the water tank described at the same site in the Mission Village EIR, the Backcountry Reservoir 
would result in emissions of criteria pollutants (NOx, VOC, PM10, PM2.5, CO, and SOx) during construction 
and operation. Emissions of construction air pollutant emissions (from excavation, equipment, construction 
vehicles) and operational air pollutant emissions (from maintenance worker vehicle trips) were estimated 
using the California Emissions Estimator Model (CalEEMod) version 2022.1 for both the reservoir and 
pump station. The combined Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station construction and operational air 
pollutant emissions were compared to the SCAQMD significance thresholds. No exceedances of the 
significance thresholds would be expected during construction and operation with implementation of 
construction best management practices outlined in Section 2.4 of this evaluation (i.e., the construction 
contractor would be to implement a Fugitive Dust Control Plan, prepared in accordance with SCAQMD’s 
Rule 403, and approved by SCAQMD prior to grading or excavation activities; and would be required to 
comply with CARB In-Use Off-Road Diesel-Fueled Fleets Regulations). Therefore, impacts would be less 
than significant, and no mitigation would be required, which would be similar to impacts of the water tank 
described in the Mission Village EIR. Details of the air quality analysis are contained in Appendix A and 
model output data is provided in Appendix B. 

Mission Village EIR Findings 

The Mission Village EIR identified that construction-related and operational-related emissions from all 
proposed land uses would exceed SCAQMD thresholds of significance for NOx, VOC, PM10, and PM2.5 
and no feasible mitigation exists to reduce impacts to less than significant.  

Conclusion: The proposed Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project would not create any new 
significant air quality impacts or create a substantial increase in the severity of air quality impacts identified 
in the Mission Village EIR, and no additional mitigation measures would be necessary, although the impact, 
related to the Mission Village development, would remain significant and unavoidable, as disclosed in the 
Mission Village EIR.  

c) Expose sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant concentrations? 

No New Impact.  

Backcountry Reservoir 

For the purposes of a CEQA analysis, the Mission Village EIR considered ¼-mile as the distance to use in 
evaluating impacts on sensitive receptors, which include long-term health care facilities, rehabilitation 
centers, convalescent centers, retirement homes, residences, schools, playgrounds, childcare centers, and 
athletic facilities. As stated in the Mission Village EIR, the SCAQMD recommends the evaluation of 
localized air quality impacts to sensitive receptors in the immediate vicinity of the Backcountry Reservoir 
site through the use of SCAQMD-established Localized Significance Thresholds (LSTs). LSTs represent 
the maximum emissions from a project that will not cause or contribute to an air quality exceedance of the 
most stringent applicable federal or State ambient air quality standard at the nearest sensitive receptor, 
taking into consideration ambient concentrations in each source receptor area, distance to the sensitive 
receptor, and project size. LSTs only apply to emissions within a fixed stationary location (i.e., are not 

115



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-16 
 

applicable to mobile sources) and are defined for each of the SCAB’s 37 source receptors areas (SRAs). 
The Backcountry Reservoir site is located within SRA 13 and LSTs have been defined for NOx, CO, PM10 
and PM2.5. The closest sensitive receptors to the Backcountry Reservoir site are residences and the West 
Ranch High School located roughly 0.75 mile away along the northwestern border of Stevenson Ranch. 
Because there are no sensitive receptors within the ¼-mile distance for evaluating impacts to sensitive 
receptors, the Backcountry Reservoir would have a less than significant impact on nearby sensitive 
receptors, which would be similar to the tank described on the same site in the Mission Village EIR.  

Backcountry Pump Station 

The Backcountry Pump Station site is also located in SRA 13. The nearest sensitive receptors to the site are 
located to the east, along Magic Mountain Parkway, approximately 1,000 feet from the pump station 
location. LSTs have been developed for emissions within construction areas up to five acres in size. The 
SCAQMD provides lookup tables for sites that measure up to one, two, or five acres. The pump station site 
footprint would be approximately one acre, so the LST for the one‐acre site is used. LSTs for construction 
on one‐acre sites in SRA‐17 are shown in Table 5-1. LSTs are provided for a distance of 200 meters (656 
feet) from the pump station.  

Table 5-1: Localized Significance Thresholds 

Pollutant 
Allowable emission from a one-acre site in SRA-13 

for a receptor within 200 meters, or 656 feet 
(pounds/day) 

Gradual Conversion of NOx to NO2 173 
CO 2,500 

PM10 – operation 13 

PM10 – construction 51 

PM2.5 – operation 5 

PM2.5 – construction 18 

As shown in Table 5-2, pollutant emissions from pump station construction and operation would not exceed 
the LSTs. Therefore, the Backcountry Pump Station would have a less than significant impact on nearby 
sensitive receptors and would not have a greater impact than the tank described in the Mission Village EIR.  

Table 5-2: Backcountry Pump Station Construction Emissions Compared to  
Localized Significance Thresholds (pounds/day) 

 Emissions Source NOx CO PM10 PM2.5 
Maximum onsite 16 15 3 2 

LST (one-acre, 200 meters LST) 173 2,500 51 18 

Threshold exceeded? No No No No 
Note: Emissions represent the maximum of winter or summer and are rounded to the nearest whole number.  

Mission Village EIR Findings  

The Mission Village EIR noted that emissions exceed thresholds of significance and LSTs, but concluded 
that construction emissions are below thresholds for creating a health hazard to sensitive receptors.  

116



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-17 
 

Conclusion: The Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project would not create any new air quality 
health hazards to sensitive receptors or create a substantial increase in the severity of impacts identified in 
the Mission Village EIR, and no additional mitigation measures would be necessary because the reservoir 
would be located on the same site as the tank identified in the Mission Village EIR, and because the pump 
station would have a less than significant impact on local air quality.  

d) Result in other emissions (such as those leading to odors or adversely affecting a substantial number 
of people? 

No New Impact.  

Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station 

The Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project would generate minimal emissions of odorous 
compounds during construction, which would be associated with emissions from construction equipment; 
this would impact would be the same for the tank described in the Mission Village EIR. Operation is not 
expected to generate any odors because the reservoir and pump station would be fully enclosed and would 
contain potable water, which is odorless, and no chemicals would be stored on site during long-term 
operation and maintenance of the tank. Less than significant impacts would be expected. 

Mission Village EIR Findings 

No significant impacts related to odors were identified in the Mission Village EIR.  

Conclusion: The proposed Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project would have the same odor 
impacts as the tank evaluated in the Mission Village EIR and would not create any new air quality impacts 
related to odorous emissions or create a substantial increase in impacts identified in the Mission Village 
EIR, and no additional mitigation measures would be necessary.  

Applicable Mitigation Measures from Mission Village EIR and Newhall Ranch Program EIR:  

SP 4.10-7: Prior to the approval of each future subdivision proposed in association with the Newhall Ranch 
Specific Plan, each of the construction emission reduction measures indicated below (and in Tables 11-2 
and 11-3 of the SCAQMD’s CEQA Air Quality Handbook, as amended) shall be implemented if found 
applicable and feasible for that subdivision.  

On-Road Mobile Source Construction Emissions 

a. Configure construction parking to minimize traffic interference. 

b. Provide temporary traffic controls when construction activities have the potential to disrupt 
traffic to maintain traffic flow (e.g., signage, flag person, detours). 

c. Schedule construction activities that affect traffic flow to off-peak hours (e.g., between 7:00 
PM and 6:00 AM and between 10:00 AM and 3:00 PM). 

d. Develop a trip reduction plan to achieve a 1.5 average vehicle ridership (AVR) for construction 
employees. 

e. Implement a shuttle service to and from retail services and food establishments during lunch 
hours. 

f. Develop a construction traffic management plan that includes the following measures to 
address construction traffic that has the potential to affect traffic on public streets: 

117



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-18 
 

o Rerouting construction traffic off congested streets; 

o Consolidating truck deliveries; and 

o Providing  temporary  dedicated  turn  lanes  for movement of construction trucks and 
equipment on and off of the site. 

g. Prohibit truck idling in excess of 2 minutes. 

Off-Road Mobile Source Construction Emissions  

h. Use methanol-fueled pile drivers. 

i.  Suspend use of all construction equipment operations during second stage smog alerts. 

j. Prevent trucks from idling longer than 2 minutes 

k. Use electricity from power poles rather than temporary diesel-powered generators 

l. Use electricity from power poles rather than temporary gasoline-powered generators. 

m. Use methanol- or natural gas-powered mobile equipment instead of diesel. 

n.  Use  propane-  or  butane-powered  on-site  mobile equipment instead of gasoline. 

 

SCV Water Implementation Action for SP 4.10-7: To prevent excessive emissions of criteria pollutants 
and greenhouse gases to the extent feasible, SCV Water will prepare bid documents specifying that  

• temporary traffic controls (e.g., signage, flag person, detours) be implemented when 
construction activities have the potential to disrupt traffic in order to maintain traffic flow 

• construction activities that affect traffic flow be scheduled to off-peak hours (e.g., between 7:00 
PM and 6:00 AM and between 10:00 AM and 3:00 PM) 

• on-site construction trucks may not idle for longer than 2 minutes 

• use electric vehicles when feasible  

• use power poles instead of gasoline and diesel-powered generators. 

New Mitigation Measures:  

None needed. 

5.4 Biological Resources 
 New Potentially New  
 Significant Mitigation No Impact/ Reduced  
  Impact  Required  No New Impact   Impact  
Would the Project: 
 a) Have a substantial adverse effect, either directly or     
  through habitat modifications, on any species 

identified as a candidate, sensitive, or special 
status species in local or regional plans, policies, 

118



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-19 
 

or regulations, or by the California Department of 
Fish and Game or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service? 

 
 b) Have a substantial adverse effect on any riparian     
  habitat or other sensitive natural community 

identified in local or regional plans, policies, and 
regulations or by the California Department of 
Fish and Game or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service? 

 
 c) Have a substantial adverse effect on state or federally     
  protected wetlands (including, but not limited to, 

marsh, vernal pool, coastal, etc.) through direct 
removal, filling, hydrological interruption, or other 
means? 

 
 d) Interfere substantially with the movement of any     
  native resident or migratory fish or wildlife 

species or with established native resident or 
migratory wildlife corridors, or impede the use of 
native wildlife nursery sites? 

 
 e) Conflict with any local policies or ordinances     
  protecting biological resources, such as a tree 

preservation policy or ordinance? 
 
 f) Conflict with the provisions of an adopted Habitat     
  Conservation Plan, Natural Community 

Conservation Plan, or other approved local, 
regional, or state habitat conservation plan? 

Discussion 

a) Have a substantial adverse effect, either directly or through habitat modifications, on any species 
identified as a candidate, sensitive, or special status species in local or regional plans, policies, or 
regulations, or by the California Department of Fish and Game or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service? 

No New Impact.  

Backcountry Reservoir 

The Backcountry Reservoir site was initially evaluated for biological resources as part of the Mission 
Village EIR and has since been fully graded. The site is on artificial fill and is completely devoid of 
vegetation. Thus, no vegetation or habitat that could support any sensitive or special status species exists 
on the Backcountry Reservoir site and no habitat modifications would occur as a result of reservoir 
construction. In addition, evaluation of biota in the Mission Village EIR documented no occurrences of 
listed or California fully protected wildlife within or near the vicinity of the Backcountry Reservoir site 
(Figure 5-2). Portions of the Backcountry Reservoir site’s adjacent hillside contain native vegetation that 
could potentially serve as habitat, but the potential impacts would be the same as those associated with the 
tank described in the Mission Village EIR. Nevertheless, construction and operation of the Backcountry 
Reservoir would have less than significant impacts on any species with implementation of mitigation 

119



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-20 
 

measures SP 4.6-35, SP 4.6-56 and MV 4.3-52 that ensure construction plans and activities including 
lighting and grading remain within the designated boundaries of the reservoir site. 

Figure 5-2: Listed and California Fully Protected Wildlife Species Occurrences 

 
Source: Mission Village EIR Volume I, Figure 4.3-26 (County of Los Angeles, 2010a) 

Backcountry Pump Station 

A Biological Resources Assessment (BRA) was prepared for the Backcountry Pump Station site, including 
the distribution pipelines in Magic Mountain Parkway (SWCA, 2022a). This report is included in 
Appendix C. The BRA included a database search and literature review, as well as a reconnaissance-level 
flora and fauna survey of the entire area which was conducted in August 2021. The most prevalent land 
cover type mapped within the survey area was developed/disturbed land, which is mostly devoid of 
vegetation and has little to no potential to support native species (SWCA, 2022a). Vegetation communities 
at the site are shown on Figure 5-3. Depending on the orientation of the Backcountry Pump Station at the 
site, a portion of the disturbance area may extend into upland mustard or star-thistle fields, which are a 
vegetation community dominated by non-native invasive plants. The Magic Mountain Parkway right of 
way is entirely paved and devoid of vegetation. 

Four special-status plant species have potentially suitable habitat present within the survey area: San 
Fernando Valley spineflower (Chorizanthe parryi var. fernandina), club-haired mariposa lily (Calochortus 
clavatus var. clavatus), slender mariposa-lily (Calochortus clavatus var. gracilis), and Plummer’s 
mariposa-lily (Calochortus plummerae). All four of these special-status plant species have a moderate 
potential to occur within the survey area but would only be expected in the 100-foot buffer around the pump 
station disturbance area, not the pump station disturbance area itself. This is due to the heavily impacted 
soils as a result of the property’s prior use for cultivating row crops until 2017, and its current mostly paved 
state (SWCA, 2022a). 

120



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-21 
 

Six special-status wildlife species are considered to have a moderate occurrence potential within the survey 
area: Cooper’s hawk (Accipiter cooperii), white-tailed kite (Elanus leucurus), least Bell’s vireo (Vireo bellii 
pusillus), coastal whiptail (Aspidoscelis tigris stejnegeri), western pond turtle (Emys marmorata), and coast 
horned lizard (Phrynosoma blainvillii). It is important to note that the pump station disturbance area is 
already very heavily disturbed (paved and invasive vegetation where unpaved), and thus the wildlife species 
that do have a moderate potential to occur are expected to occur only within the 100-foot buffer around the 
disturbance area, where habitat is somewhat intact and provides suitable conditions for life (SWCA, 2022a).  

Notably, arroyo toad (Anaxyrus californicus) critical habitat partially overlaps the north and west sides of 
the 100-foot buffer of the pump station disturbance area. The arroyo toad is associated with the riparian 
habitat of the Santa Clara River. Because there are no quiet waters or pools directly in the survey area, the 
potential for arroyo toad within the survey area is low (SWCA, 2022a). 

No impacts are expected to occur within the disturbance area of the Backcountry Pump Station and 
distribution pipelines. All sensitive flora and fauna determined to have a moderate potential to occur within 
the survey area do not occur due to the high level of disturbance and lack of habitat (SWCA, 2022a). No 
native habitat is expected to be disturbed as part of pump station construction or operation and thus would 
not impact listed species.  

There would be no direct impacts to biological resources due to the level of disturbance within the footprint 
of the pump station and pipelines. Indirect impacts to birds and reptiles would be avoided or mitigated 
through implementation of mitigation measures included in the Mission Village EIR (SP 4.6-35, MV 4.3-
5, MV 4.3-7, MV 4.3-15 and MV 4.6-56). With adherence to these mitigation measures, the Backcountry 
Pump Station and distribution pipelines would not have a substantial adverse effect on special-status species 
and the impact would be less than significant.  

121



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-22 
 

Figure 5-3: Biological Resources at Backcountry Pump Station Site 

 

122



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-23 
 

Mission Village EIR Findings 

The Mission Village EIR concluded that although impacts to biological resources would be less than 
significant with implementation of mitigation measures identified in the Newhall Ranch Specific Plan 
Program EIR and Mission Village EIR, build out of the Mission Village development would result in 
cumulative impacts to the coastal scrub and San Fernando Valley spineflower that would be significant and 
unavoidable. Mitigation measures were incorporated to reduce project impacts to less than significant. 
However significant cumulative impacts would still remain to regional coastal scrub habitat and the San 
Fernando Valley spineflower.  

Conclusion: The proposed Project would not create any new biological resource impacts or create a 
substantial increase in the severity of biological resource impacts identified in the Mission Village EIR. 
The Backcountry Reservoir would be located on the same site as the tank described in the Mission Village 
EIR. The Backcountry Pump Station would have a less than significant impact on biological resources with 
the implementation of measures included in the Mission Village although the impact, related to the Mission 
Village development, would remain significant and unavoidable, as disclosed in the Mission Village EIR. 
Thus, the Project would have no new impact.  

b) Have a substantial adverse effect on any riparian habitat or other sensitive natural community 
identified in local or regional plans, policies, and regulations or by the California Department of Fish 
and Game or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service? 

No New Impact.  

Backcountry Reservoir 

As discussed in Biological Resources Impact a), the Backcountry Reservoir site is located on a fully graded 
parcel, underlain by artificial fill, and contains no vegetation or sensitive natural communities. The Mission 
Village development area contains protected and preserved lands including the Spineflower Preserve, Santa 
Clara River Corridor, Salt Creek Corridor and the High Country Special Management Area (SMA), that 
contain designated critical habitat by the CDFW and USFWS, respectively (Figure 5-4). The Backcountry 
Reservoir site, as with the tank site described in the Mission Village EIR, is not located within or near these 
protected and preserved lands including the Riparian Habitat Buffer of the Santa Clara River (Figure 5-5). 
Therefore, no adverse effect on any riparian habitat or other sensitive natural community identified in local 
or regional plans, policies and regulations would occur. 

Backcountry Pump Station 

As discussed in Biological Resources impact a), the Backcountry Pump Station site is located on a paved 
site with a history of disturbance. The contiguous riparian canopy of the Santa Clara River extends into the 
northern portion of the 100-foot buffer of the Backcountry Pump Station disturbance area, but no riparian 
habitat or other sensitive natural community exists in the disturbance area (SWCA, 2022a). Additionally, 
the distribution pipelines would be located entirely within the paved right of way of Magic Mountain 
Parkway. Therefore, the Backcountry Pump Station and distribution pipelines would not adversely affect 
riparian habitat or sensitive natural communities, and there would be no impact. 

Mission Village EIR Findings 

The Mission Village EIR identified that the Mission Village development would result in the permanent 
conversion of, or temporary disturbance to, 1,493 acres of various natural habitats. The EIR discusses 
compliance with the Resource Management Plan (RMP) of the Newhall Ranch Specific Plan to address 

123



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-24 
 

impacts to riparian habitat and other sensitive natural communities. The RMP was reviewed and ultimately 
approved by the federal and state resources agencies to protect critical habitat and special status species, 
and included as part of Los Angeles County’s adoption of the Newhall Ranch Specific Plan. To address 
permanent loss of riparian habitat, the Mission Village would implement habitat restoration/enhancement 
in the River Corridor Special Management Area/Significant Ecological Area 23 (SMA/SEA 23), and to 
address loss of upland wildlife habitat, Mission Village would create a large connected open space system 
including the River Corridor SMA/SEA 23, the High Country SMA/SEA 20, and the Salt Creek area shown 
in Figure 5-4. Additionally, a Spineflower Preserve was proposed in the Newhall Ranch Specific Plan 
Program EIR that would provide habitat for potential spineflower pollinators and dispersal agents within 
Mission Village area. However, while the Mission Village EIR concluded that the proposed Mission Village 
development would not result in significant unavoidable impacts (after implementation of all mitigation 
measures), the project’s contribution to cumulative impacts to coastal scrub would remain significant. 

Conclusion: The proposed Project would not create any new adverse effects on riparian habitat or other 
sensitive natural community identified in the Mission Village EIR. The Backcountry Reservoir would be 
located on the same site as the tank described in the Mission Village EIR, and the Backcountry Pump 
Station and distribution pipelines would be located on disturbed land. No additional mitigation measures 
would be necessary. 

Figure 5-4: Protected and Preserved Lands 

 
Source: Mission Village EIR Volume I, Figure 4.3-1 (County of Los Angeles, 2010a) 
 

124



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-25 
 

Figure 5-5: Riparian Habitat Buffer 

 
Source: Mission Village EIR Volume I, Figure 4.3-8 (County of Los Angeles, 2010a) 

c) Have a substantial adverse effect on state or federally protected wetlands (including, but not limited 
to, marsh, vernal pool, coastal, etc.) through direct removal, filling, hydrological interruption, or other 
means? 

 No New Impact.  

Backcountry Reservoir 

Wetlands, creeks, streams, and permanent and intermittent drainages are generally subject to the jurisdiction 
of the United States Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) under Section 404 of the federal Clean Water Act. 
Streambeds within the Project site are subject to regulation by the CDFW under Section 1602 of the 
California Fish and Game Code. A Preliminary Jurisdictional Determination included as part of the Mission 
Village EIR identified a total of 180.6 acres within the Mission Village development under jurisdiction of 
the USACE (County of Los Angeles, 2010a). The Preliminary Jurisdictional Determination also determined 
CDFW jurisdiction encompasses an additional 53.4 acres of riparian vegetation on the Mission Village site 
(County of Los Angeles, 2010a). As discussed in Biological Resources impact a), the Backcountry 
Reservoir site is located entirely on a fully graded, artificial fill pad, devoid of vegetation and does not 
occur within an area determined to be under state or federal jurisdiction (Figure 5-6). Therefore, the 
Backcountry Reservoir would have no impact to state or federally protected wetlands. 

125



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-26 
 

Figure 5-6: Jurisdictional Resources 

 
Source: Mission Village EIR Volume I, Figure 4.3-7 (County of Los Angeles, 2010a) 

Backcountry Pump Station 

No jurisdictional resources were identified within the disturbance area of the Backcountry Pump Station 
site and distribution pipelines (SWCA, 2022a). Potentially jurisdictional resources were identified along 
the northern edge of the 100-foot buffer area around the disturbance area; however, this area would not be 
impacted by the Backcountry Pump Station. Project activities would include discharges into the LACDPW 
storm drain, which would require Flood Control District approval and pre-approved discharge locations (as 
noted in Section 2.4, Proposed Project); no discharges to the Santa Clara River or any other jurisdictional 
water would occur. Thus, the Backcountry Pump Station would have no impact.  

Mission Village EIR Findings 

The Mission Village EIR determined that the Mission Village Development Project would impact wetlands 
under state and federal jurisdiction, and would require permits from the USACE and CDFW. The permits 
require avoidance, minimization measures, and compensatory mitigation for impacts to jurisdictional 
resources. As part of the Newhall Ranch Specific Plan RMP and mitigation measures in the Mission Village 
EIR, mitigation of impacts would involve wetland and riparian habitat restoration and enhancement in the 
River Corridor SMA, along with long-term habitat monitoring and assessment. With implementation of all 
provisions in the RMP and mitigation measures conditions, impacts were found to be less than significant 
to federal and state protected wetlands.  

Conclusion: The proposed Project would not create an increase in any adverse effect on state or federally 
protected wetlands identified in the Mission Village EIR because the Backcountry Reservoir would be 
located on the same site as the tank described in the Mission Village EIR, and the Backcountry Pump 

126



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-27 
 

Station would not directly or indirectly impact wetlands. No additional mitigation measures would be 
necessary. 

d) Interfere substantially with the movement of any native resident or migratory fish or wildlife species 
or with established native resident or migratory wildlife corridors, or impede the use of native wildlife 
nursery sites? 

No New Impact.  

Backcountry Reservoir 

As discussed in Biological Resources impact a), the Backcountry Reservoir site is located on a fully graded 
parcel, underlain with artificial fill, and devoid of vegetation. The reservoir site does not contain any habitat 
that would support a wildlife nursey site. The Backcountry Reservoir site is also not located within any 
potential wildlife movement corridors (Figure 5-7). The proposed Project would not interfere with the 
movement of any native resident or migratory fish or with established native resident or migratory wildlife 
corridors. No impact would occur.  

Figure 5-7: Potential Wildlife Movement Corridors 

 
Source: Mission Village EIR Volume I, Figure 4.3-5 (County of Los Angeles, 2010a) 

Backcountry Pump Station 

As discussed in Biological Resources impact a), the Backcountry Pump Station is located on a heavily 
disturbed area. The disturbance area of the Backcountry Pump Station and distribution pipelines does not 
contain any habitat that would support a wildlife nursery site. There are no designated wildlife corridors on 
or adjacent to the Backcountry Pump Station site or footprint of the distribution pipelines (SWCA, 2022a). 
The Backcountry Pump Station site currently provides semi-free (due to the existing fence) wildlife 
movement for animals of moderate size within the property adjacent to the Santa Clara River and Round 

127



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-28 
 

Mountain Open Space, owned by the City of Santa Clarita. However, residential, commercial, and industrial 
land uses, and the well-traveled Magic Mountain Parkway surround the site to the east, west, and south and 
already impose significant restrictions to wildlife movement into and out of the site. The Backcountry Pump 
Station would not construct new fencing that would change the ability of wildlife to move through the site 
as compared to existing conditions. The Backcountry Pump Station would not hinder wildlife movement 
or impact nursery sites and no impact would occur.  

Mission Village EIR Findings 

The Mission Village EIR concluded that the overall mosaic of habitats in the river would be maintained 
because the Mission Village development project would not cause significant changes in the river’s 
velocities or water depth. In addition, bank stabilization along portions of the Santa Clara River would be 
designed and constructed to allow the river to continue to function as a regional wildlife corridor. Impacts 
to the movement or nurseries of any native fish or wildlife species would be less than significant with 
implementation of mitigation measures. 

Conclusion: The proposed Project would not increase impacts to fish and wildlife movement identified in 
the Mission Village EIR. The Backcountry Reservoir would be located on the same site as the tank 
described in the Mission Village EIR, and the Backcountry Pump Station would not impact nursery sites or 
restrict fish and wildlife movement. No additional mitigation measures would be necessary. 

e) Conflict with any local policies or ordinances protecting biological resources, such as a tree 
preservation policy or ordinance? 

No New Impact.  

Backcountry Reservoir 

The Backcountry Reservoir site is located within the jurisdiction of the Santa Clarita Valley Planning Area 
portion of the Los Angeles County General Plan. Los Angeles County’s primary mechanism to conserve 
biological diversity is by designating lands as SEAs or Coastal Resource Areas (CRAs), As stated in the 
Los Angeles County General Plan, SEAs are undisturbed or lightly disturbed habitat that support valuable 
and threatened species, linkages and corridors that facilitate species movement, and are sized to support 
sustainable populations of its component species (County of Los Angeles, 2015a). In total there are 21 
SEAs and nine CRAs designated in Los Angeles County. Although the High Country SMA/SEA and River 
Corridor SMA/SEA are located within the Mission Village development, the Backcountry Reservoir site is 
not located within either. In addition, the Backcountry Reservoir site is located entirely on a fully graded 
parcel, underlain by artificial fill, and devoid of vegetation. There are no biological resources protected by 
local policies or ordinances within the Backcountry Reservoir site. Therefore, no impact would occur. 

Backcountry Pump Station 

There are no federal, state, or local parks, or Los Angeles County SEAs on or adjacent to the Backcountry 
Pump Station site and footprint of the distribution pipelines. There are no biological resources protected by 
local policies or ordinances within the site. Therefore, no impact would occur. 

Mission Village EIR Findings 

The Mission Village EIR concluded that all plans and specifications shall follow Los Angeles County oak 
tree guidelines, as specified in the County Oak Tree Ordinance, and fuel modification ordinance 
requirements. Mitigation measures are adopted for construction and operation procedures to adhere to these 
adopted County rules.  

128



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-29 
 

Conclusion: The proposed Project would not create additional conflicts with local policies or ordinances 
protecting biological resources identified in the Mission Village EIR because the Backcountry Reservoir 
would be located on the same site as the tank described in the Mission Village EIR, and no protected 
biological resources occur at the Backcountry Pump Station site. No additional mitigation measures would 
be necessary. 

f) Conflict with the provisions of an adopted Habitat Conservation Plan, Natural Community 
Conservation Plan, or other approved local, regional, or state habitat conservation plan? 

No New Impact.  

Backcountry Reservoir 

As stated in the Mission Village EIR, when Los Angeles County approved the Newhall Ranch Specific 
Plan, it adopted a Spineflower Special Study Mitigation Overlay and Preservation Program. To implement 
the program, a Spineflower Conservation Plan was prepared to ensure the long-term survival of spineflower 
populations within the Newhall Ranch Specific Plan area. The Backcountry Reservoir site does not occur 
within any areas designated as a Spineflower Preserve (Figure 5-8), nor any other local, regional, or state 
habitat conservation plan area including the High Country SMA/SEA and the River Corridor SMA/SEA 
(Figure 5-4). The Backcountry Reservoir would not conflict with the provisions of an adopted conservation 
plan. No impact would occur. 

Figure 5-8: Mission Village Spineflower Preserve 

 
Source: Mission Village EIR Volume I, Figure 1.0-18 (County of Los Angeles, 2010a) 

Backcountry Pump Station 

There are no Los Angeles County SEAs on or adjacent to the Backcountry Pump Station site and footprint 
of the distribution pipelines within Magic Mountain Parkway. Similarly, there is no USFWS Habitat 

129



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-30 
 

Conservation Plan or CDFW Natural Community Conservation Plan at or adjacent to the site. As described 
under Biological Resources impact a), arroyo toad critical habitat partially overlaps the north and west sides 
of the 100-foot buffer of the pump station disturbance area, however, the potential for arroyo toad to occur 
at the Backcountry Pump Station site is low. Therefore, the Backcountry Pump Station would not conflict 
with the provisions of these plans, and there would be no impact.  

Mission Village EIR Findings 

The Mission Village EIR concluded the Mission Village development project would comply with the land 
use and mitigation measures of the adopted Newhall Ranch Spineflower Conservation Plan. The Airport 
Mesa Spineflower Preserve is located within the Mission Village development, and impacts would be less 
than significant with implementation of mitigation measures. 

Conclusion: The proposed Project would not create additional conflicts with an adopted Habitat 
Conservation Plan, Natural Community Conservation Plan, or other approved local, regional, or state 
habitat conservation plan local policies or ordinances protecting biological resources identified in the 
Mission Village EIR, and no additional mitigation measures would be necessary. 

Applicable Mitigation Measures from Mission Village EIR and Newhall Ranch Program EIR:  

SP 4.6-35: The project biologist shall work with the grading contractor to avoid inadvertent impacts to 
biological resources outside of the grading area. 

SCV Water Implementation Action for SP 4.6-35: SCV Water shall prepare bid documents that 
specify that a qualified biologist will coordinate with the grading contractor to ensure on-site 
construction activities avoid impacts to adjacent off-site areas containing native vegetation. This 
may involve flagging and/or worker environmental awareness training. 

SP 4.6-56: All lighting along the perimeter of natural areas shall be downcast luminaries with light patterns 
directed away from natural areas. 

SCV Water Implementation Action for SP 4.6-56: SCV Water shall prepare bid documents that specify 
that at all lighting along the perimeter, if any, shall be downcast luminaires with light patterns directed 
away from the undeveloped areas to avoid light spillage into wildlife habitat. 

Mission Village EIR (MV) 4.3-5: Prior to initiating construction for the installation of bridges, storm drain 
outlets, utility lines, bank protection, trails, and/or other construction activities, all construction sites and 
access roads within the riverbed as well as all riverbed areas within 500 feet of construction sites and access 
roads shall be surveyed at the appropriate season for southwestern pond turtle. Focused surveys shall consist 
of a minimum of four daytime surveys, to be completed between April 1 and June 1. The survey schedule 
may be adjusted in consultation with CDFG to reflect the existing weather or stream conditions. The 
applicant shall develop a Plan to address the relocation of southwestern pond turtle. The Plan shall include 
but not be limited to the timing and location of the surveys that would be conducted for this species; identify 
the locations where more intensive efforts should be conducted; identify the habitat and conditions in the 
proposed relocation site(s); the methods that would be utilized for trapping and relocating individuals; and 
provide for the documentation/recordation of the numbers of animals relocated. The Plan shall be submitted 
to CDFG for approval 60 days prior to any ground-disturbing activities within potentially occupied habitat. 

If southwestern pond turtles are detected in or adjacent to the project, nesting surveys shall be conducted. 
Focused surveys for evidence of southwestern pond turtle nesting shall be conducted in, or adjacent to, the 
project when suitable nesting habitat exists within 1,300 feet of occupied habitat in an area where project-
related ground disturbance will occur (e.g., development, ground disturbance). If both of those conditions 

130



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-31 
 

are met, a qualified biologist shall conduct focused, systematic surveys for southwestern pond turtle nesting 
sites. The survey area shall include all suitable nesting habitat within 1,300 feet of occupied habitat in which 
project related ground disturbance will occur. This area may be adjusted based on the existing topographical 
features on a case-by-case basis with the approval of CDFG. Surveys will entail searching for evidence of 
pond turtle nesting, including remnant eggshell fragments, which may be found on the ground following 
nest depredation. 

If a southwestern pond turtle nesting area would be adversely impacted by construction activities, the 
applicant shall avoid the nesting area. If avoidance of the nesting area is determined to be infeasible, the 
authorized biologist shall coordinate with CDFG to identify if it is possible to relocate the pond turtles. 
Eggs or hatchlings shall not be moved without written authorization from CDFG. 

The qualified biologist shall be present during all activities immediately adjacent to or within habitat that 
supports populations of southwestern pond turtle. Clearance surveys for pond turtles shall be conducted 
within 500 feet of potential habitat by the authorized biologist prior to the initiation of construction each 
day. The resume of the proposed biologist will be provided to CDFG for approval prior to conducting the 
surveys. 

SCV Water Implementation Action for MV 4.3-5 and MV 4.3-7: A preconstruction reptile survey 
shall be performed within five days prior to construction to determine if any of the following species 
are present: coastal whiptail, Western pond turtle, or coast horned lizard. If any of these species are 
determined to occur, a biological monitor shall be on-site during all construction activities.  

MV 4.3-7: Prior to construction the applicant shall develop a relocation plan for coast horned lizard, silvery 
legless lizard, coastal western whiptail, rosy boa, San Bernardino ringneck snake, and coast patch-nosed 
snake. The Plan shall include but not be limited to the timing and location of the surveys that would be 
conducted for each species; identify the locations where more intensive efforts should be conducted; 
identify the habitat and conditions in the proposed relocation site(s); the methods that would be utilized for 
trapping and relocating the individual species; and provide for the documentation/recordation of the species 
and number of the animals relocated. The Plan shall be submitted to CDFG for approval 60 days prior to 
any ground disturbing activities within potentially occupied habitat. 

The Plan shall include the specific survey and relocation efforts that would occur for construction activities 
that occur both during the activity period of the special status species (generally March to November) and 
for periods when the species may be present in the work area but difficult to detect due to weather conditions 
(generally December through February). Thirty days prior to construction activities in coastal scrub, 
chaparral, oak woodland, riparian habitats, or other areas supporting these species qualified biologists shall 
conduct surveys to capture and relocate individual coast horned lizard, silvery legless lizard, coastal western 
whiptail, rosy boa, San Bernardino ringneck snake, and coast patch-nosed snake in order to avoid or 
minimize take of these special-status species. The plan shall require a minimum of three (3) surveys 
conducted during the time of year/day when each species is most likely to be observed. Individuals shall be 
relocated to nearby undisturbed areas with suitable habitat. If construction is scheduled to occur during the 
low activity period (generally December through February) the surveys shall be conducted prior to this 
period if possible and exclusion fencing shall be placed to limit the potential for re-colonization of the site 
prior to construction. The qualified biologist will be present during ground-disturbing activities 
immediately adjacent to or within habitat that supports populations of these species. Clearance surveys for 
special-status reptiles shall be conducted by a qualified biologist prior to the initiation of construction each 
day. 

131



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-32 
 

Results of the surveys and relocation efforts shall be provided to CDFG in the annual mitigation status 
report. Collection and relocation of animals shall only occur with the proper scientific collection and 
handling permits. 

SCV Water Implementation Action for MV 4.3-7: See SCV Water implementation action for MV 
4.3-5, above. 

MV 4.3-15: Within 30 days of ground-disturbing activities associated with construction or grading that 
would occur during the nesting/breeding season of native bird species potentially nesting on the site 
(typically March through August in the project region, or as determined by a qualified biologist), the 
applicant shall have weekly surveys conducted by a qualified biologist to determine if active nests of bird 
species protected by the Migratory Bird Treaty Act and/or the California Fish and Game Code are present 
in the disturbance zone or within 300 feet (500 feet for raptors) of the disturbance zone. The surveys shall 
continue on a weekly basis, with the last survey being conducted no more than 7 days prior to initiation of 
disturbance work. If ground-disturbing activities are delayed, then additional pre-disturbance surveys shall 
be conducted such that no more than 7 days will have elapsed between the survey and ground-disturbing 
activities. 

If active nests are found, clearing and construction within 300 feet of the nest (500 feet for raptors) shall be 
postponed or halted, at the discretion of the biologist in consultation with CDFG, until the nest is vacated 
and juveniles have fledged, as determined by the biologist, and there is no evidence of a second attempt at 
nesting. In the event that golden eagles establish an active nest in the River Corridor SMA/SEA 23, the 
buffers will be established in consultation with CDFG. Potential golden eagle nesting will be reported to 
CDFG within 24 hours. Limits of construction to avoid an active nest shall be established in the field with 
flagging, fencing, or other appropriate barriers, and construction personnel shall be instructed on the 
sensitivity of nest areas. The biologist shall serve as a construction monitor during those periods when 
construction activities will occur near active nest areas to ensure that no inadvertent impacts to these nests 
occur. Results of the surveys shall be provided to CDFG in the annual mitigation status report. 

For listed riparian songbirds (least Bell's vireo, southwestern willow flycatcher, yellow-billed cuckoo) 
USFWS protocol surveys shall be conducted. If active nests are found, clearing and construction within 
300 feet of the nest shall be postponed or halted, at the discretion of the biologist in consultation with CDFG 
and USFWS, until the nest is vacated and juveniles have fledged, as determined by the biologist, and there 
is no evidence of a second attempt at nesting. If no active nests are observed, construction may proceed. If 
active nests are found, work may proceed provided that construction activity is located at least 300 feet 
from active nests (or as authorized through the context of the Biological Opinion and 2081b Incidental Take 
Permit). This buffer may be adjusted provided noise levels do not exceed 60 dB(A) hourly Leq at the edge 
of the nest site as determined by a qualified biologist in coordination with a qualified acoustician. 

If the noise meets or exceeds the 60 dB(A) Leq threshold, or if the biologist determines that the construction 
activities are disturbing nesting activities, the biologist shall have the authority to halt the construction and 
shall devise methods to reduce the noise and/or disturbance in the vicinity. This may include methods such 
as, but not limited to, turning off vehicle engines and other equipment whenever possible to reduce noise, 
installing a protective noise barrier between the nest site and the construction activities, and working in 
other areas until the young have fledged. If noise levels still exceed 60 dB(A) Leq hourly at the edge of 
nesting territories and/or a no construction buffer cannot be maintained, construction shall be deferred in 
that area until the nestlings have fledged. All active nests shall be monitored on a weekly basis until the 
nestlings fledge. The qualified biologist shall be responsible for documenting the results of the surveys and 
the ongoing monitoring and for reporting these results to CDFG and USFWS. 

132



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-33 
 

For coastal California gnatcatcher, the applicant shall conduct USFWS protocol surveys in suitable habitat 
within the project area and all areas within 500 feet of access or construction related disturbance areas. 
Suitable habitats, according to the protocol, include "coastal sage scrub, alluvial fan, chaparral, or 
intermixed or adjacent areas of grassland and riparian habitats." A permitted biologist shall perform these 
surveys according to the USFWS' (1997a) Coastal California Gnatcatcher Presence/Absence Survey 
Guidelines. If a territory or nest is confirmed, the USFWS and CDFG shall be notified immediately. If 
present, a 500-foot disturbance-free buffer shall be established and demarcated by fencing or flagging. No 
project activities may occur in these areas unless otherwise authorized by USFWS and CDFG. Construction 
activities in suitable gnatcatcher habitat will be monitored by a full-time qualified biologist. The monitoring 
shall be of a sufficient intensity to ensure that the biologist could detect the presence of a bird in the 
construction area. 

SCV Water Implementation Action for MV 4.3-15: A preconstruction bird survey shall be 
performed within five days prior to construction to determine if any of the following species are 
present: Cooper’s hawk, white-tailed kite, or least Bell’s vireo. If active nests of any of these species 
are present, a 300-foot buffer shall be established around the nest. A biological monitor shall be 
on-site during all construction activities if any of these species occur.  

MV 4.3-52: Construction plans shall include necessary design features and construction notes to ensure 
protection of vegetation communities and special-status plant and aquatic wildlife species adjacent to 
construction. In addition to applicable erosion control plans and performance under SCAQMD Rule 403d 
dust control (SCAQMD 2005), the project stormwater pollution prevention plan (SWPPP) shall include the 
following minimum BMPs. Together, the implementation of these requirements shall ensure protection of 
adjacent habitats and wildlife species during construction. At a minimum, the following 
measures/restrictions shall be incorporated into the SWPPP, and noted on construction plans where 
appropriate to avoid impacting special-status species during construction: 

• Avoid planting or seeding invasive species in development areas within 200 feet of native 
vegetation communities.  

• The operator shall install and use fully covered trash receptacles to contain all food, food scraps, 
food wrappers, beverage containers, and other miscellaneous trash. Trash will be regularly picked 
up in construction areas. 

• The operator shall not permit pets on or adjacent to the construction site. 

SCV Water Implementation Action for MV 4.3-52: SCV Water shall prepare bid documents that 
specify that the SWPPP prepared for the proposed Project shall incorporate the following 
measures/restrictions to avoid impacts to vegetation communities and potential special-status plants 
and wildlife species adjacent to construction: 

o Avoid planting or seeding invasive species in development areas within 200 feet of native 
vegetation communities.  

o The operator shall install and use fully covered trash receptacles to contain all food, food 
scraps, food wrappers, beverage containers, and other miscellaneous trash. Trash will be 
regularly picked up in construction areas. 

o The operator shall not permit pets on or adjacent to the construction site 

New Mitigation Measures:  

None needed. 

133



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-34 
 

5.5 Cultural Resources 
 New Potentially New  
 Significant Mitigation No Impact/ Reduced  
  Impact  Required  No New Impact   Impact  
Would the Project: 

 a) Cause a substantial adverse change in the     
  significance of a historical resource pursuant to 

§15064.5? 
 
 b) Cause a substantial adverse change in the     
  significance of a unique archaeological resource 

pursuant to §15064.5? 
 
 c) Disturb any human remains, including those     
  interred outside of dedicated cemeteries? 

Discussion 

a) Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a historical resource pursuant to §15064.5? 

No New Impact.  

Backcountry Reservoir 

The Backcountry Reservoir site was evaluated for cultural/historical resources as part of the Mission 
Village EIR. The site has since been graded as part of the Mission Village development and included 
cultural resources monitoring as part of required mitigation. Although construction of the Backcountry 
Reservoir would require excavation of 30 feet below pad elevation (from 1,430-foot pad elevation to 1,400-
foot floor elevation), excavation would occur entirely on artificial fill that was placed on-site during 
grading. All soil to be excavated for development of the partially buried reservoir would be previously 
disturbed imported fill. Given that there is no native soil at the site, it is expected that no cultural resources 
would be encountered during excavation, and therefore, no cultural resource impacts would be expected.  

Backcountry Pump Station 

An assessment of cultural resources was conducted for the Backcountry Pump Station site (SWCA, 2022b). 
The report is provided in Appendix D. The assessment included a literature review, California Historical 
Resources Information System (CHRIS) records search, Sacred Lands File search, and pedestrian survey 
of the Backcountry Pump Station site conducted on August 27, 2021.  

Results of the records search indicated that 61 previous cultural resource investigations have been 
conducted within a 0.5-mile radius of the Backcountry Pump Station area. Of these studies, six 
investigations included a portion of the current Project area. Twelve previously recorded cultural resources 
are located within 0.5 mile of the Backcountry Pump Station site. Of these resources, none were mapped 
within the Backcountry Pump Station site itself.  

No cultural resources were identified within the Backcountry Pump Station site, the surface of which is 
mostly paved or otherwise obscured. The Backcountry Pump Station site, and footprint of the distribution 
pipelines have been subject to past disturbance, including extensive grading/leveling and paving, such that 
any surface manifestations of archaeological resources that might once have been present have undoubtedly 
been destroyed. The likelihood of encountering cultural resources during Project construction is low. 

134



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-35 
 

However, unanticipated discovery of buried cultural resources remains a possibility. The Mission Village 
EIR included mitigation measures to reduce the potential impact in the event of unanticipated discovery of 
cultural resources discovery (SP 4.3-3 and MV 4.20-1). With these mitigation measures the potential for 
impacts to historical resources would be less than significant. 

Mission Village EIR Findings 

The Mission Village EIR concluded that based on the findings of cultural resource surveys, no significant 
cultural resource impacts would result from site development with implementation of mitigation measures  

Conclusion: The proposed Project would not create any new cultural resource impacts or create a substantial 
increase in the severity of impacts identified in the Mission Village EIR, and no additional mitigation 
measures would be necessary.  

b) Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a unique archaeological resource pursuant 
to §15064.5? 

No New Impact. For the reasons explained in the analysis of Cultural Resources impact a) above, it is 
expected that no unique archaeological resources would be encountered during excavation. In the event of 
unanticipated discovery, implementation of SP 4.3-3 and MV 4.20-1 would reduce impacts to less than 
significant. Therefore, no new impacts on unique archaeological resources are expected.  

c) Disturb any human remains, including those interred outside of dedicated cemeteries? 

No New Impact. For the reasons explained in the analysis of Cultural Resources impact a) above, it is 
expected that no human remains would be encountered during excavation. In the event of unanticipated 
discovery, implementation of SP 4.3-3 and MV 4.20-1 would reduce impacts to less than significant. 
Therefore, no new impacts on human remains are expected. 

Applicable Mitigation Measures from Mission Village EIR and Newhall Ranch Program EIR:  

MV 4.20-1: Although no other significant cultural resources were observed or recorded, all grading 
activities and surface modifications must be confined to only those areas of absolute necessity to reduce 
any form of impact on unrecorded (buried) cultural resources that may exist within the confines of the 
project area. In the event that previously undetected archaeological, paleontological, and/or historical 
resources are found during construction, activity in the immediate area of the find shall stop and a qualified 
archaeologist or paleontologist, as applicable, shall be contacted to evaluate the resource(s). If the find is 
determined to be a historical or unique archaeological resource, as defined by CEQA, contingency funding 
and a time allotment sufficient to allow for implementation of avoidance measures or appropriate mitigation 
shall be provided. Construction work may continue on other parts of the construction site while 
historical/archaeological mitigation takes place, pursuant to State CEQA Guidelines Section 15064.5(f) and 
Public Resources Code Section 21083.2(i). 

SP 4.3-3: In the unlikely event that additional artifacts are found during grading within the development 
area or future roadway extensions, an archaeologist will be notified to stabilize, recover, and evaluate such 
finds. 

SCV Water Implementation Action for MV 4.20-1 and SP 4.3-3: In the event that cultural resources 
are exposed during construction, work in the immediate vicinity of the find must stop until a qualified 
archaeologist can evaluate the significance of the find. Construction activities may continue in other 
areas. If the discovery is evaluated as significant under CEQA, avoidance, testing or data recovery 
and/or other appropriate measures shall be provided. 

135



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-36 
 

New Mitigation Measures:  

None needed. 

5.6 Energy 
 New Potentially New  
 Significant Mitigation No Impact/ Reduced  
  Impact  Required  No New Impact   Impact  
Would the Project: 

 a) Result in potentially significant environmental     
 impact due to wasteful, inefficient, or unnecessary  
 consumption of energy resources, during project 
 construction or operation?  
  
  b)  Conflict with or obstruct a state or local plan for     

 renewable energy or energy efficiency? 

Discussion 

a) Result in potentially significant environmental impact due to wasteful, inefficient, or unnecessary 
consumption of energy resources, during project construction or operation?  

No New Impact.  

Backcountry Reservoir 

The Backcountry Reservoir would require consumption of fossil fuel for operation of diesel-powered 
vehicles and equipment as well as worker vehicles. No, unusual or excessive construction practices would 
be expected that would result in wasteful, inefficient, or unnecessary consumption of energy compared to 
similar construction projects. Based on the preliminary reservoir sizing, a new 200A, 240/120V, single 
phase electrical metered service would be required from Southern California Edison to deliver electrical 
power to meet expected load demand. Project design specifications rely on the use of high-efficiency 
equipment for operation of the reservoir (SCADA, lighting, etc.) and would meet California Building 
Energy Efficiency Standards (Title 24). Overall operation of the reservoir would expend limited energy 
resources (approximately 3,650 kWh annually) plus limited fossil fuel for infrequent maintenance worker 
vehicle trips. Impacts would be less than significant.  

Backcountry Pump Station 

Like the Backcountry Reservoir, the Backcountry Pump Station would require use of fossil fuel for 
operation of construction equipment and worker vehicles. Construction of the Backcountry Pump Station 
would use typical construction practices and would not be anticipated to create wasteful, inefficient, or 
unnecessary consumption of energy resources. A new electrical metered service from SCE would be 
required to deliver power for operation of the Backcountry Pump Station. The Backcountry Pump Station 
would be designed to use efficient lighting and SCADA systems to reduce energy use. The Backcountry 
Pump Station would also be constructed to meet California Building Energy Efficiency Standards (Title 
24). Operation of the Backcountry Pump Station would consume electricity for pump operation 
(approximately 900,000 kWh annually), as well as limited fossil fuel for worker vehicle trips to conduct 
operation and maintenance work. In the event of a power outage, the Backcountry Pump Station would rely 
on a diesel-powered backup generator. Operation of the Backcountry Pump Station, as well as the V-9 

136



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-37 
 

Turnout and distribution pipelines, would not expend significant energy resources, and impacts would be 
less than significant. 

Mission Village EIR Findings 

The Mission Village EIR concluded that impacts to electricity resources would be less than significant with 
incorporation of measures to ensure energy efficiency throughout the development, including relying on 
renewable energy sources to meet a portion of the project energy demands, and implementation of “green” 
project design features.  

Conclusion: The Backcountry Reservoir would not create an increase in impacts associated with inefficient 
energy consumption or create a substantial increase in the severity of such impacts identified in the Mission 
Village EIR for a water tank located on the same site. The Backcountry Pump Station would have a less 
than significant impact in terms of energy consumption. The proposed Project would have no new impact, 
and no additional mitigation measures would be necessary. 

b) Conflict with or obstruct a state or local plan for renewable energy or energy efficiency? 

No New Impact.  

Backcountry Reservoir 

The Backcountry Reservoir would be constructed to maximize energy efficiency, which would be in 
compliance with the energy efficiency strategies outlined in the Los Angeles County Community Climate 
Action Plan (CCAP) 2020. The reservoir would also be in compliance with the state’s 2017 Climate Change 
Scoping Plan which focuses on reducing energy demand and emissions that result from mobile sources and 
requires compliance with the CARB In-Use Off-Road Diesel-Fueled Fleets Regulations, as mentioned 
previously in Section 2.4, Construction Management Practices. No impacts would be expected. 

Backcountry Pump Station 

The Backcountry Pump Station would also be constructed to maximize energy efficiency, consistent with 
the greenhouse gas reduction measures and strategies identified in the City of Santa Clarita Climate Action 
Plan (City of Santa Clarita, 2012). Like the Backcountry Reservoir, the Backcountry Pump Station would 
comply with the 2017 Climate Change Scoping Plan and the CARB In-Use Off-Road Diesel-Fueled Fleets 
Regulations. The Backcountry Pump Station, V-9 Turnout and distribution pipelines would not conflict 
with or obstruct plans for renewable energy or energy efficiency, and there would be no impact. 

Mission Village EIR Findings 

The Mission Village EIR concluded that with implementation of mitigation measures and compliance with 
regulations for energy efficiency, construction and operation of the Mission Village development would 
have a less than significant cumulative impact on energy resources, and therefore would not conflict with 
existing state or local renewable energy or energy efficiency plans.  

Conclusion: The proposed Project would not create any new conflicts with local renewable energy plans or 
increase the severity of any conflicts identified in the Mission Village EIR, and no additional mitigation 
measures would be necessary. 

Applicable Mitigation Measures from Mission Village EIR and Newhall Ranch Program EIR:  

None needed. 

137



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-38 
 

New Mitigation Measures:  

None needed. 

5.7 Geology and Soils 
 New Potentially New  
 Significant Mitigation No Impact/ Reduced  
  Impact  Required  No New Impact   Impact  
Would the Project: 

 a) Directly or indirectly cause potential substantial 
adverse effects, including the risk of loss, injury, 
or death involving:  

 i) Rupture of a known earthquake fault, as     
  delineated on the most recent Alquist-Priolo 

Earthquake Fault Zoning Map issued by the 
State Geologist for the area or based on other 
substantial evidence of a known fault? Refer 
to Division of Mines and Geology Special 
Publication 42.  

 ii) Strong seismic ground shaking?     

 iii) Seismic-related ground failure, including 
  liquefaction?     

 iv) Landslides?     

 
 b) Result in substantial soil erosion or the loss of 

topsoil?     
 
 c) Be located on a geologic unit or soil that is unstable,     
  or that would become unstable as a result of the 

Project, and potentially result in on- or off-site 
landslide, lateral spreading, subsidence, 
liquefaction, or collapse? 

 
 d) Be located on expansive soil, as defined in     
  Table 18-1-B of the Uniform Building Code 

(1994), creating substantial direct or indirect risks 
to life or property?  

 
 e) Have soils incapable of adequately supporting the     
  use of septic tanks or alternative waste water 

disposal systems where sewers are not available 
for the disposal of waste water? 

  
 f)   Directly or indirectly destroy a unique     

paleontological resource or site or unique geologic  
feature? 

138



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-39 
 

Discussion 

a) Directly or indirectly cause potential substantial adverse effects, including the risk of loss, injury, or 
death involving: (i) Rupture of a known earthquake fault, as delineated on the most recent Alquist-Priolo 
Earthquake Fault Zoning Map issued by the State Geologist for the area or based on other substantial 
evidence of a known fault? Refer to Division of Mines and Geology Special Publication 42; (ii) Strong 
seismic ground shaking?; (iii) Seismic-related ground failure, including liquefaction?; (iv) Landslides? 

No New Impact.  

Backcountry Reservoir 

The Backcountry Reservoir site was evaluated as part of the geotechnical analyses in the Mission Village 
EIR. No active faults, as delineated on Alquist-Priolo Maps, are shown within the boundaries of the 
Backcountry Reservoir site. Likewise, no active faults are identified near the Backcountry Reservoir site in 
the Santa Clarita Valley Area Plan (Figure 5-9). The site has since been rough graded, filled, and compacted 
in accordance with the grading plan approved by Los Angeles County. As discussed in the 2018 Magic 
Mountain Reservoir Preliminary Design Technical Memorandum (Michael Baker International, 2018), a 
project-specific geotechnical report would be prepared with design recommendations to minimize potential 
seismic-related impacts including slope stability of the northwest facing cut slope and the reservoir 
subgrade. With implementation of mitigation measures and adherence to design requirements in a project-
specific geotechnical report and County Building Code requirements (i.e., Mitigation Measure MV 4.1-6 
from the Mission Village EIR), any seismic impacts would be reduced to less than significant.  

Figure 5-9: Santa Clarita Valley Area Plan - Earthquake Faults 

 
Source: Santa Clarita Valley Area Plan (County of Los Angeles, 2012) 

139



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-40 
 

Backcountry Pump Station 

The Backcountry Pump Station site (including distribution pipeline alignments) is not located within an 
earthquake fault zone or a landslide zone. The site is located within a liquefaction zone (CDOC, n.d.). As 
with the Backcountry Reservoir, a project-specific geotechnical report would be prepared which would 
contain design parameters to minimize the potential for seismic-related impacts (Mitigation Measure MV 
4.1-6 from the Mission Village EIR). The design and construction of the Backcountry Pump Station would 
adhere to these parameters, and seismic impacts would be less than significant.  

Mission Village EIR Findings 

The Mission Village EIR evaluated geological conditions throughout the Mission Village development area 
and identified potential geological hazards such as strong seismic ground shaking, surficial failures, 
liquefaction potential, landslides, and faults. The EIR concluded that impacts would be reduced to less than 
significant with implementation of fault zone setbacks, standards for construction provided in the County 
Building Code, and mitigation measures contained in the Newhall Ranch Specific Plan Program EIR and 
additional project-specific mitigation measures in the Mission Village EIR.  

Conclusion: The Backcountry Reservoir would not create new seismic-related impacts or increase the 
severity of seismic impacts identified in the Mission Village EIR because it would be located on the same 
site as the tank described in the Mission Village EIR. The Backcountry Pump Station would be designed 
such that it would not result in new or more severe seismic impacts. No new mitigation measures would be 
necessary.  

b) Result in substantial soil erosion or the loss of topsoil? 

No New Impact.  

Backcountry Reservoir 

The Backcountry Reservoir site was evaluated as part of the geotechnical analysis in the Mission Village 
EIR. The site has since been graded and native soil has been replaced with artificial fill. Reservoir 
construction would involve excavation of 55,000 cubic yards of fill material for construction of the partially 
buried reservoir, approximately 35,000 cubic yards would be hauled off site to an adjacent development 
within Mission Village, and approximately 20,000 cubic yards would be used on-site as backfill. No 
substantial loss of topsoil would be expected as soil would be reused as backfill, and all work would be 
conducted in accordance with erosion and sedimentation control measures required by the Los Angeles 
County Grading Ordinance, as applicable, and the proposed Project’s SWPPP.  

Backcountry Pump Station 

Construction of the Backcountry Pump Station would involve excavation on the Backcountry Pump Station 
site, with a net export of approximately 4,000 cubic yards of material (approximately 1,000 cubic yards of 
material from the Backcountry Pump Station site and approximately 3,000 cubic yards from excavation for 
the distribution pipelines). The remaining excavated material would be used as backfill and would remain 
on site. Given the volume of export expected for the Mission Village development, the anticipated 4,000 
cubic yards of export associated with the Backcountry Pump Station would be less than significant and 
would not represent a new or more substantial impact in terms of topsoil loss. Work at the Backcountry 
Pump Station site would be conducted in accordance with the measures noted above (Los Angeles County 
Grading Ordinance, as applicable, and the proposed Project’s SWPPP), therefore erosion impacts would be 
less than significant. 

140



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-41 
 

Mission Village EIR Findings 

The Mission Village EIR states that site grading for build-out of Mission Village would require removal 
and re-compaction of approximately 29.5 million cubic yards of soil in a balanced cut and fill operation. 
Implementation of surface drainage control recommendations, provisions for erosion control in the Los 
Angeles County Grading Ordinance and implementation of recommended mitigation measures would 
reduce impacts to less than significant.  

Conclusion: The proposed Project would not create new soil erosion-related impacts or increased severity 
of impacts identified in the Mission Village EIR, and no additional mitigation measures would be necessary.  

c) Be located on a geologic unit or soil that is unstable, or that would become unstable as a result of the 
Project, and potentially result in on- or off-site landslide, lateral spreading, subsidence, liquefaction, or 
collapse? 

No New Impact.  

Backcountry Reservoir 

As discussed in Geology and Soils impact a), the Backcountry Reservoir site has been rough graded, filled, 
and compacted in accordance with the grading plan approved by Los Angeles County. The Mission Village 
EIR evaluated geological conditions throughout the Mission Village development area and identified 
potential geological hazards such as landslides, lateral spreading, subsidence, liquefaction, and collapse 
potential.  

Backcountry Pump Station 

As discussed in Geology and Soils Impact a), the Backcountry Pump Station site is located within an area 
that has been identified as a liquefaction zone. The Backcountry Pump Station and distribution pipelines 
would be constructed in accordance with applicable building codes applicable in Los Angeles County and 
the City of Santa Clarita (i.e., California Building Code and City of Santa Clarita Amendments). Further, 
the Backcountry Pump Station would be designed and constructed in accordance with the project-specific 
geotechnical report. Due to these design features, construction and operation of the Backcountry Pump 
Station and distribution pipelines would not be anticipated to cause liquefaction of soils on-site or off-site. 
Impacts from the Backcountry Pump Station would be less than significant. 

Mission Village EIR Findings 

The Mission Village EIR concluded that impacts would be reduced to less than significant with 
implementation of fault zone setbacks, standards for construction provided in the County Building Code, 
and mitigation measures contained in the Newhall Ranch Specific Plan Program EIR and additional project-
specific mitigation measures in the Mission Village EIR. Therefore, impacts of the Project would be 
reduced to less than significant with implementation of mitigation measures. 

Conclusion: The proposed Project would not create new on- or off-site impacts related to landslides, lateral 
spreading, subsidence, liquefaction or collapse, or increased severity of any such impacts identified in the 
Mission Village EIR, and no additional mitigation measures would be necessary.  

d) Be located on expansive soil, as defined in Table 18-1-B of the Uniform Building Code (1994), 
creating substantial direct or indirect risks to life or property? 

No New Impact.  

141



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-42 
 

Backcountry Reservoir 

As discussed in Geology and Soils impact a), the Backcountry Reservoir site is located entirely on artificial 
fill and has been rough graded and compacted in accordance with the grading plan approved by Los Angeles 
County. Neither construction nor operation of the reservoir would disturb native soil. Additional grading 
and excavation will be required for construction of the partially buried Backcountry Reservoir which would 
be done in accordance with the Uniform Building Code and recommendation of a geotechnical engineering 
report. No impacts related to expansive soils would be expected.  

Backcountry Pump Station 

Certain bedrock and soils exist within the City of Santa Clarita that have sufficient clay content to exhibit 
expansive properties, especially those near river channels (City of Santa Clarita, 2010). Therefore, the 
Backcountry Pump Station site and footprint of the distribution pipelines has the potential to be located on 
expansive soil. The Backcountry Pump Station would be designed and constructed in accordance with site-
specific geotechnical recommendations. Additionally, the Mission Village EIR included mitigation 
measures to reduce the potential impact of expansive soils to a less-than-significant level (MV 4.1-3, MV 
4.1-48, and MV 4.1-66). With these mitigation measures, the potential for structural damage to Backcountry 
Pump Station components and distribution pipelines as a result of expansive soils would be minimal. The 
Backcountry Pump Station and distribution pipelines would not create substantial direct or indirect risks to 
life or property, and the impact would be less than significant.  

Mission Village EIR Findings 

The Mission Village EIR identified potential expansive soil impacts associated with changes from cut and 
fill of the project site. The EIR concluded that impacts would be reduced to less than significant with 
implementation of measure in the County Building Code, and mitigation measures contained in the Newhall 
Ranch Specific Plan Program EIR and additional project-specific mitigation measures in the Mission 
Village EIR. 

Conclusion: The proposed Project would not create new expansive-soil related impacts or increased 
severity of impacts identified in the Mission Village EIR, and no additional mitigation measures would be 
necessary.  

e) Have soils incapable of adequately supporting the use of septic tanks or alternative waste water 
disposal systems where sewers are not available for the disposal of waste water? 

No Impact. The proposed Project does not involve septic tanks or alternative wastewater disposal systems. 
Therefore, no impact would occur, consistent with the conclusion in the Mission Village EIR. 

f) Directly or indirectly destroy a unique paleontological resource or site or unique geologic feature? 

No New Impact.  

Backcountry Reservoir 

The Backcountry Reservoir site was evaluated for paleontological resources as part of the Mission Village 
EIR. Although the Backcountry Reservoir would require excavation down to approximately 30 feet from 
the pad to the reservoir floor elevation, the reservoir site is rough graded and entirely on artificial fill. No 
native soil would be disturbed as a result of reservoir construction. Therefore, no impacts on a unique 
paleontological resource or unique geologic features would be expected. 

142



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-43 
 

Backcountry Pump Station 

A Paleontological Resources Assessment was prepared to evaluate the potential for paleontological 
resources to occur at the Backcountry Pump Station site and footprint of the distribution pipelines (SWCA, 
2022c). This report is included as Appendix E. The assessment included a review of geologic maps, 
scientific literature, and confidential fossil locality records from the Natural History Museum of Los 
Angeles County (NHMLA), which were used to evaluate the likelihood of paleontological resources within 
the pump station site. The pump station area is mapped at the surface as Holocene to late Pleistocene 
younger alluvium. Late Pleistocene terrace deposits and Pleistocene Saugus Formation likely underlie the 
younger alluvium at depth based on their proximity to the pump station site. The NHMLA records search 
indicated the museum has several localities in undifferentiated Pleistocene-aged sediments and in 
Pleistocene Saugus Formation within the vicinity of the project site; however, there are no museum records 
of fossil localities within the pump station site. Analysis of these data allowed the assignment of 
paleontological sensitivity using the Society of Vertebrate Paleontology paleontological potential classes, 
such that younger alluvium has a Low to High paleontological sensitivity, increasing with depth (the 
transition from Low to High is unknown but may be as shallow as 10 feet below ground surface); the 
underlying terrace deposits and Saugus Formation both have a High paleontological sensitivity. 

The maximum depth of excavation for the Backcountry Pump Station would be approximately 15 feet 
below the surface. Excavation for the distribution pipelines would be a maximum depth of 6 feet below 
ground surface. Excavation below depths of 10 feet would impact sediments of High paleontological 
sensitivity. Because there is high potential for the subsurficial geologic units to preserve fossils, the ground-
disturbing activities for the Backcountry Pump Station could result in significant impacts on paleontological 
resources. Mitigation previously adopted as part of the Mission Village EIR and Newhall Ranch Specific 
Plan EIR would reduce impacts to a less than significant level. These measures include MV 4.20-1 
(requiring that a qualified paleontologist be contacted to evaluate any resources discovered) and SP 4.3-4 
(requiring monitoring in areas of High paleontological sensitivity, stopping work upon a discovery, and 
salvaging any resources discovered). With adherence to these measures, the impacts of the Backcountry 
Pump Station construction on paleontological resources would be less than significant.  

Mission Village EIR Findings  

The Mission Village EIR identifies that the bedrock formations in the project area have the potential for 
significant paleontological resources that could be uncovered during earthmoving activities. However, with 
implementation of mitigation measures, potential significant impacts would be reduced to less than 
significant.  

Conclusion: The proposed Project would not result in new paleontological resource impacts or increased 
severity of such impacts identified in the Mission Village EIR, and no additional mitigation measures would 
be necessary. 

Applicable Mitigation Measures from Mission Village EIR and Newhall Ranch Program EIR:  

MV 4.1-6: The project shall be designed in accordance with all applicable building codes and standards 
utilizing the appropriate geotechnical parameters as presented in the “Seismicity” section of the R.T. 
Frankian & Associates report entitled Response to County of Los Angeles Review Sheets and Geotechnical 
Plan Review, Revised Vesting Tentative Tract Map No. 6110,5 (April 29, 2010)) to reduce seismic risk to 
an acceptable level as defined by CGS in Chapter 2 of SP 117a (CGS, 2008). 

143



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-44 
 

SCV Water Implementation Action for MV 4.1-6: SCV Water shall design the proposed Project in 
accordance with the recommendations of a project-specific geotechnical report to reduce seismic-
related risks. 

MV 4.1-3: Over-excavation of clay-rich bedding planes of the Saugus Formation or Pico Formation and 
subsequent placement of a certified fill cap shall be conducted to mitigate potential hazards from expansive 
material, and to reduce potential hazards from potential secondary seismogenic movement along bedding 
planes. 

SCV Water Implementation Action for MV 4.1-3: SCV Water shall design the proposed Project in 
accordance with the recommendations of a project-specific geotechnical report to reduce risks related 
to expansive soils.  

MV 4.1-48: A minimum 5- to 8-foot-thick over excavation shall be performed on all cut lots, and 
transitional lots (transitions between bedrock, fill, terrace deposits and alluvium) and a minimum 3 foot-
thick over excavation on streets. This over excavation will provide a uniform base for structural support of 
buildings and traffic loads. If on a cut/fill transition lot the maximum depth of fill exceeds 15 feet, then the 
thickness of the fill cap shall be one third of the deepest fill thickness below any proposed structure. If 
excavation of the native soils (i.e., bedrock) exposes high expansive materials, then the lot over excavation 
shall be deepened to 8 feet. 

SCV Water Implementation Action for MV 4.1-48: See SCV Water implementation action for 
MV 4.1-3, above. 

MV 4.1-66: Additional testing for expansive soils shall be performed at the grading plan stage and during 
finish grading so that appropriate foundation design recommendations for expansive soils, if applicable, 
can be made.  

SCV Water Implementation Action for MV 4.1-66: See SCV Water implementation action for MV 
4.1-3, above. 

MV 4.20-1: Although no other significant cultural resources were observed or recorded, all grading 
activities and surface modifications must be confined to only those areas of absolute necessity to reduce 
any form of impact on unrecorded (buried) cultural resources that may exist within the confines of the 
project area. In the event that previously undetected archaeological, paleontological, and/or historical 
resources are found during construction, activity in the immediate area of the find shall stop and a qualified 
archaeologist or paleontologist, as applicable, shall be contacted to evaluate the resource(s). If the find is 
determined to be a historical or unique archaeological resource, as defined by CEQA, contingency funding 
and a time allotment sufficient to allow for implementation of avoidance measures or appropriate mitigation 
shall be provided. Construction work may continue on other parts of the construction site while 
historical/archaeological mitigation takes place, pursuant to State CEQA Guidelines Section 15064.5(f) and 
Public Resources Code Section 21083.2(i). 

SCV Water Implementation Action for MV 4.20-1: See SCV Water implementation action for SP 
4.3-4, below.  

SP 4.3-4: As part of an inspection testing program, a Los Angeles County Natural History Museum-
approved inspector is to be on site to salvage scientifically significant fossil remains. The duration of these 
inspections depends on the potential for the discovery of fossils, the rate of excavation, and the abundance 
of fossils. Geological formations (like the Saugus Formation) with a high potential will initially require full 
time monitoring during grading activities. Geologic formations (like the Quaternary terrace deposits) with 

144



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-45 
 

a moderate potential will initially require half-time monitoring. If fossil production is lower than expected, 
the duration of monitoring efforts should be reduced. Because of known presence of microvertebrates in 
the Saugus Formation, samples of at least 2,000 pounds of rock shall be taken from likely horizons, 
including localities 13, 13A, 14, and 23. These samples can be stockpiled to allow processing later to avoid 
delays in grading activities. The frequency of these samples will be determined based on field conditions. 

Should the excavations yield significant paleontological resources, excavation is to be stopped or redirected 
until the extent of the find is established and the resources are salvaged. Because of the long duration of the 
Specific Plan, a reassessment of the paleontological potential of each rock unit will be used to develop 
mitigation plans for subsequent subdivisions. The report shall include an itemized inventory of the fossils, 
pertinent geologic and stratigraphic data, field notes of the collectors and include recommendations for 
future monitoring efforts in those rock units. Prior to grading, an agreement shall be reached with a suitable 
public, non-profit scientific repository, such as the Los Angeles County Museum of Natural History or 
similar institution, regarding acceptance of fossil collections. 

SCV Water Implementation Action for SP 4.3-4: SCV Water shall implement the following 
procedures during construction of the Backcountry Pump Station: 

A Project Paleontologist meeting Society of Vertebrate Paleontology (SVP) standards shall prepare 
a Paleontological Resources Monitoring and Mitigation Plan (PRMMP). This plan shall address 
specifics of monitoring and mitigation and comply with the recommendations of the SVP (2010). 
The Project Paleontologist shall also prepare a report of the findings of the monitoring plan after 
construction is completed. 

The Project Paleontologist shall develop a Worker’s Environmental Awareness Program (WEAP) 
to train the construction crew on the legal requirements for preserving fossil resources, as well as 
procedures to follow in the event of a fossil discovery. This training program shall be given to the 
crew before ground-disturbing work commences and will include handouts to be given to new 
workers as needed. 

All ground disturbances in the proposed Project area that occur in previously undisturbed sediments 
at depths greater than 10 feet below ground surface, which have the potential to impact older 
sediments of younger alluvium, terrace deposits, and/or Saugus Formation that have High 
paleontological sensitivity, will require monitoring. The uppermost 10 feet of younger alluvium 
have Low paleontological sensitivity; therefore, it is recommended that monitoring begin at 
approximately 10 feet below ground surface. 

Monitoring shall be conducted by a paleontological monitor who meets the standards of the SVP 
(2010). Monitoring will be conducted in accordance with the PRMMP and under the supervision 
of the Project Paleontologist. The Project Paleontologist may periodically inspect construction 
activities to adjust the level of monitoring in response to subsurface conditions. Full-time 
monitoring can be reduced to part-time inspections or ceased entirely if determined adequate by 
the Project Paleontologist. Paleontological monitoring will include inspection of exposed 
sedimentary units during active excavations within sensitive geologic sediments. The monitor shall 
have authority to temporarily divert activity away from exposed fossils to evaluate the significance 
of the find and, should the fossils be determined to be significant, professionally and efficiently 
recover the fossil specimens and collect associated data. Paleontological monitors shall record 
pertinent geologic data and collect appropriate sediment samples from any fossil localities. 

In the event of a fossil discovery, whether by the paleontological monitor or a member of the 
construction crew, all work shall cease within a 50-foot radius of the find while the Project 

145



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-46 
 

Paleontologist assesses the significance of the fossil and documents its discovery. Should the fossil 
be determined significant, it shall be salvaged following the procedures and guidelines of the SVP 
(1995, 2010). Recovered fossils shall be prepared to the point of curation, identified by qualified 
experts, listed in a database to facilitate analysis, and deposited in a designated paleontological 
curation facility. A repository shall be identified, and a curatorial arrangement shall be signed prior 
to collection of the fossils. 

New Mitigation Measures:  

None needed. 

5.8 Greenhouse Gas Emissions 
 New Potentially New  
 Significant Mitigation No Impact/ Reduced  
  Impact  Required  No New Impact   Impact  
Would the Project: 

 a) Generate greenhouse gas emissions, either directly     
or indirectly, that may have a significant 
impact on the environment? 
  

 b) Conflict with an applicable plan, policy or regulation     
  adopted for the purpose of reducing the emissions 

of greenhouse gases? 

Discussion 

a) Generate greenhouse gas emissions, either directly or indirectly, that may have a significant impact 
on the environment?  

No New Impact.  

Backcountry Reservoir and Backcountry Pump Station 

Construction of the Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station (including V-9 Turnout and distribution 
pipelines) would generate greenhouse gas emissions (GHGs) associated with fossil fuel use for construction 
vehicles and equipment. Operation of the reservoir would generate GHGs from the estimated 3,650 kWh 
of annual electrical use, and operation of the pump station would generate GHGs from the estimated 
900,000 kWh of annual electrical use. Both the reservoir and pump station would require minor amounts 
of fossil fuel use for maintenance worker vehicle trips. Total GHGs were estimated for construction and 
operation of the Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station using CalEEMod version 2022.1. Construction 
emissions were then amortized over 30 years, per SCAQMD guidance for GHG analysis (See Appendix 
A). GHG emissions from construction and operation of the proposed Project are estimated to be 163 metric 
tons of carbon dioxide equivalent (MT CO2e) per year over 30 years which is a negligible contribution to 
the county and state’s overall GHG emissions. Additionally, these GHG emissions are below various local 
and state agency thresholds of 3,000 MTCO2e, and below the California Air Pollution Control Officers 
Association threshold of 900 MT CO2e for determining the need for additional analysis and mitigation for 
GHG-related impacts of a project under CEQA. GHG impacts of the proposed Project would be less than 
significant. 

146



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-47 
 

Mission Village EIR Findings 

The 2016 Recirculated Portions of the Mission Village EIR concluded that without mitigation, the Mission 
Village development would increase GHG emissions and result in a potentially significant impact to global 
climate change. However, with implementation of recommended mitigation measures, the development 
would cause no net increase in GHG emissions and would not have a significant impact on global climate 
change.  

Conclusion: The proposed Project would not result in new GHG emissions impacts or increased severity 
of such impacts identified in the Mission Village EIR and Recirculated Portions of the Mission Village 
EIR, and no additional mitigation measures would be necessary.  

b) Conflict with an applicable plan, policy or regulation adopted for the purpose of reducing the 
emissions of greenhouse gases?  

No New Impact.  

Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station 

The Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project would be constructed to maximize energy efficiency 
and comply with the CARB In-Use Off-Road Diesel-Fueled Fleets Regulations, which would help reduce 
emissions of GHGs. The proposed Project would be in compliance with the energy efficiency strategies 
outlined in the Los Angeles County CCAP 2020 and would also be in compliance with the state’s 2017 
Climate Change Scoping Plan which focuses on reducing energy demand and emissions that result from 
mobile sources. The Los Angeles County CCAP has set a target to reduce GHG emissions from community 
activities in the unincorporated areas of Los Angeles County by at least 11 below 2010 levels by 2020 
(County of Los Angeles, 2015b). The CCAP is composed of State and local actions to reduce GHG 
emissions within the unincorporated areas of Los Angeles County. Two of the 26 local actions included in 
the CCAP address construction emissions and are, therefore, relevant to the proposed Project: Land Use 
and Transportation (LUT)-9 Idling Reduction Goal encourages idling limits of 3 minutes for heavy-duty 
construction equipment, as feasible within manufacturer’s specifications. LUT-12 Electrify Construction 
and Landscaping Equipment encourages utilizing electric equipment wherever feasible for construction 
projects (County of Los Angeles, 2015b). Construction of the Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station, 
including the distribution pipelines would not conflict with the actions or goals identified in the Los Angeles 
County CCAP which incorporates construction practices and mitigation measures that would reduce 
emissions. One of the main goals of the Los Angeles County CCAP is to reduce GHG emissions from 
passenger vehicles; however, passenger vehicle trips associated with operation of the proposed reservoir 
and pump station would be minimal. No conflicts would be expected with applicable state and local plans 
and policies for reducing GHGs. GHG emission impacts would not be materially different from the impact 
of constructing the aboveground tank as described in the Mission Village EIR and would be less than 
significant with mitigation. 

Mission Village EIR Findings 

The 2016 Recirculated Portions of the Mission Village EIR (which replaced the Global Climate Change 
section in the 2011 Mission Village EIR), found that with implementation of the recommended mitigation 
measures, the project’s achievement of a net zero emissions level ensures that the project would not conflict 
with statewide targets for the reduction of GHG emissions, Los Angeles County CCAP 2020 and the SCAG 
Sustainable Communities Strategy plans.  

147



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-48 
 

Conclusion: The Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project would not result in new GHG emissions 
impacts or increased severity of such impacts identified in the Mission Village EIR and Recirculated 
Portions of the Mission Village EIR, and no additional mitigation measures would be necessary.  

Applicable Mitigation Measures from Mission Village EIR and Newhall Ranch Program EIR:  

See SP-4.10-7 and SCV Water Implementation Action for SP 4.10-7 under Section 5.3, Air Quality. 

New Mitigation Measures:  

None needed. 

5.9 Hazards and Hazardous Materials 
 New Potentially New  
 Significant Mitigation No Impact/ Reduced  
  Impact  Required  No New Impact   Impact  
Would the Project: 

a)       Create a significant hazard to the public or the     
environment through the routine transport, use, or 
disposal of hazardous materials? 
  

b)   Create a significant hazard to the public or the     
environment through reasonably foreseeable upset  
and accident conditions involving the release of  
hazardous materials into the environment? 
  

c)    Emit hazardous emissions or handle hazardous or      
acutely hazardous materials, substances, or waste  
within one-quarter mile of an existing or proposed 
school?  

 d) Be located on a site which is included on a list of     
  hazardous materials sites compiled pursuant to 

Government Code Section 65962.5 and, as a 
result, would it create a significant hazard to the 
public or the environment? 

 e) For a Project located within an airport land use plan     
  or, where such a plan has not been adopted, within 

two miles of a public airport or public use airport, 
would the Project result in a safety hazard or 
excessive noise for people residing or working in 
the Project area? 

 f) Impair implementation of or physically interfere with     
  an adopted emergency response plan or emergency 

evacuation plan? 
 
 g) Expose people or structures, either directly or indirectly,     
  to a significant risk of loss, injury or death 

involving wildland fires? 

148



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-49 
 

Discussion 

q) Create a significant hazard to the public or the environment through the routine transport, use, or 
disposal of hazardous materials? 

No New Impact.  

Backcountry Reservoir 

The Backcountry Reservoir would require transport and use of limited quantities of hazardous materials 
during construction, such as gasoline, diesel fuel, hydraulic fluids, paint, adhesives, etc., but would be 
transported and used on site in accordance with applicable state and local transportation health and safety 
standards. Operation and maintenance of the reservoir requires limited transport and no storage or disposal 
of hazardous materials on-site. With implementation of construction best management practices, (specified 
in Section 2.4, Construction Management Practices) that require preparation of a Hazardous Materials 
Management and Spill Control Plan to manage hazardous materials, wastes and accidental spills during 
construction, impacts would be less than significant, which would be the same impact for the tank described 
in the Mission Village EIR. 

Backcountry Pump Station 

Like the Backcountry Reservoir, the Backcountry Pump Station would include transport and use of limited 
quantities of hazardous materials during construction; transport and use of these materials would comply 
with applicable health and safety standards. Operation and maintenance of the pump station requires storage 
of diesel fuel to power the backup generator for the Backcountry Pump Station. The fuel tanks would be 
double-walled, equipped with spill boxes, and installed within containment walls. No disposal of hazardous 
materials would occur on site. As discussed above, a Hazardous Materials Management and Spill Control 
Plan would be prepared and implemented. With this plan in place, impacts from the Backcountry Pump 
Station would be less than significant.  

Mission Village EIR Findings 

The Mission Village EIR found that hazards and hazardous materials that could be present on site or in soils 
could be remediated to less than significant levels in accordance with all applicable regulations, and that 
the transportation, use and disposal of hazardous materials during construction and operation would be in 
accordance with applicable regulations. With implementation of mitigation measures, impacts were found 
to be less than significant.  

Conclusion: The proposed Project would not result in new hazards and hazardous materials impacts or 
increase the severity of impacts identified the Mission Village EIR, and no additional mitigation measures 
would be necessary because it would be the same impact for the tank described in the Mission Village EIR. 

b) Create a significant hazard to the public or the environment through reasonably foreseeable upset 
and accident conditions involving the release of hazardous materials into the environment? 

No New Impact.  

Backcountry Reservoir 

The Backcountry Reservoir site was previously evaluated as part of the Mission Village EIR environmental 
safety analysis for identification of environmental hazards (e.g., soil contamination) that could be present 
anywhere on the development site from past land use activities such as agriculture and oil drilling. Since 

149



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-50 
 

then, the Backcountry Reservoir site has been graded, excavated, and backfilled with artificial fill. No 
hazardous soil conditions are expected to exist at the site that could be released to the environment. 
Operation of the reservoir requires no hazardous materials to be stored on site. Therefore, no hazardous 
materials release to the environmental from upset or accidental conditions would be expected.  

Backcountry Pump Station 

Operation of the Backcountry Pump Station would require storage of diesel fuel on site to power the 
Backcountry Pump Station in the event of a power loss. Fuel would be stored within double-walled tanks, 
equipped with spill boxes and installed within containment walls. In the event of a spill or accident, fuel 
would be contained within the built-in tank spill box and containment walls. Therefore, no hazardous 
materials release to the environmental from upset or accidental conditions would be expected. 

Mission Village EIR Findings 

The Mission Village EIR found that hazards and hazardous materials that could be present on site or in soils 
from past land uses could be remediated to less than significant levels in accordance with all applicable 
regulations and with implementation of mitigation measures. Impacts were found to be less than significant.  

Conclusion: The proposed Project would not result in new hazards and hazardous materials impacts or 
increase the severity of such impacts identified in the Mission Village EIR, and no additional mitigation 
measures would be necessary. 

c) Emit hazardous emissions or handle hazardous or acutely hazardous materials, substances, or waste 
within one-quarter mile of an existing or proposed school? 

No Impact. The proposed Project sites are not located within one-quarter mile of an existing or proposed 
school. No impact would occur, which is the same for the tank site described in the Mission Village EIR. 

d) Be located on a site which is included on a list of  hazardous materials sites compiled pursuant to 
Government Code Section 65962.5 and, as a result, would it create a significant hazard to the public or 
the environment? 

No Impact. The proposed Project sites are not included on a list of hazardous material sites by Government 
Code Section 65962.5 (SWRCB, 2022; DTSC, 2022) and as a result would not create a significant hazard 
to the public or the environment, which is the same for the tank site described in the Mission Village EIR. 

e) For a Project located within an airport land use plan or, where such a plan has not been adopted, 
within two miles of a public airport or public use airport, would the Project result in a safety hazard or 
excessive noise for people residing or working in the Project area? 

No Impact. The proposed Project sites are not located within an airport land use plan or within two miles 
of a public airport or public use airport. Therefore, no impact would occur, which is the same for the tank 
site described in the Mission Village EIR. 

f) Impair implementation of or physically interfere with an adopted emergency response plan or 
emergency evacuation plan? 

No New Impact.  

150



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-51 
 

Backcountry Reservoir 

Construction of the Backcountry Reservoir would require construction vehicles to access the site from 
Magic Mountain Parkway over an approximate two-year period. Reservoir construction and operation 
would not require the blocking or closing of traffic lanes during construction or operation, and therefore, 
impacts to emergency response vehicles during emergencies would be minimal. The reservoir would not 
be expected to impair implementation of an adopted emergency response or emergency evacuation plan 
(See also Mitigation Measure SP 4.5-7 in Section 5.17). Impacts would be less than significant. 

Backcountry Pump Station 

Construction vehicles would access the Backcountry Pump Station site during construction. Work would 
primarily occur within the pump station site. Distribution pipelines would be constructed in the Magic 
Mountain Parkway right of way. This work may require temporary lane closures. Potential closures would 
be conducted in accordance with the traffic control plan as specified in MV 4.5-7 in Section 5.17, and thus, 
would not substantially impede traffic or interfere with emergency response or evacuation. Therefore, the 
Backcountry Pump Station and distribution pipelines would not be expected to significantly impair 
implementation of an adopted emergency response or emergency evacuation plan., and no mitigation 
measures would be required.  

Mission Village EIR Findings 

The Mission Village EIR found that with implementation of a construction traffic control plan during 
construction, and with build-out of two new major arterial access roads with connections to local and state 
highways, the Mission Village development would not impair implementation or physically interfere with 
an adopted emergency response or evacuation plan.  

Conclusion: The Backcountry Reservoir would not result in new impairments to emergency response plans 
or increase the severity of impairments as identified in the Mission Village EIR because the Backcountry 
Reservoir would be located on the same site as the tank described in the Mission Village EIR, and 
construction and operation of the Backcountry Pump Station would not impede emergency access. The 
proposed Project would have no new impact. No additional mitigation measures would be necessary.  

g) Expose people or structures, either directly or indirectly, to a significant risk of loss, injury or death 
involving wildland fires? 

No New Impact.  

Backcountry Reservoir 

The Backcountry Reservoir site is located in a “Very High Fire Hazard Severity Zone” (VHFHSZ) as 
determined by Los Angeles County. The proposed Project involves construction and operation of a partially 
buried potable water storage reservoir to provide emergency supply during a disruption to the regional water 
supply system. During construction, the contractor would be required to implement mitigation measures 
(i.e., SP 4.18-3 and MV 4.12-5) to reduce wildfire risk from construction activities (e.g., spark arrestors on 
equipment, fire watch during welding activities, designating smoking and non-smoking areas, etc.). Long-
term operation and maintenance of the reservoir does not include activities that would pose a significant 
wildlife risk. In fact, a reservoir in the area provides a benefit by storing water that could be used for wildfire 
suppression if needed. No significant impacts related to risk of wildland fires is expected with 
implementation of mitigation measures.  

151



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-52 
 

Backcountry Pump Station 

The Backcountry Pump Station is located near a VHFHSZ (approximately one-half mile away). Typical 
construction activities for the Backcountry Pump Station would not pose a significant wildfire risk, 
nevertheless, mitigation measures would be implemented to reduce wildfire risk from construction activities 
(e.g., spark arrestors on equipment, fire watch during welding activities, designating smoking and non-
smoking areas, etc.) would be implemented (SP 4.18-3 and MV 4.12-5). Operation of the Backcountry 
Pump Station would not include activities that would pose a significant wildfire risk to people or structures. 
There would be a less-than-significant impact with implementation of mitigation measures. 

Mission Village EIR Findings 

The Mission Village EIR includes mitigation measures to be implemented during construction to reduce 
wildfire risk from construction activities. The EIR also includes a requirement to prepare and submit a 
detailed Wildfire Fuel Modification Plan for the Mission Village development, for approval by Los Angeles 
County Fire Department, that would reduce the risk and spread of wildfire in the project area. Impacts were 
determined to be less than significant with implementation of mitigation measures, including 
implementation of the Wildfire Fuel Modification Plan.  

Conclusion: The proposed Project would not result in new wildfire risk impacts or increase the severity of 
impacts identified in the Mission Village EIR. The Backcountry Reservoir would be located on the same 
site as the tank described in the Mission Village EIR, and existing mitigation measures would be 
implemented during construction of the Backcountry Pump Station. No additional mitigation measures 
would be necessary.  

Applicable Mitigation Measures from Mission Village EIR and Newhall Ranch Program EIR:  

SP 4.18-3: Each subdivision map and site plan for the proposed Specific Plan shall comply with all 
applicable building and fire codes and hazard reduction programs for Fire Zones 3 and 4 that are in effect 
at the time of subdivision map and site plan approval. 

MV 4.12-5: This property is located within the area described by the Forester and Fire Warden as a Fire 
Zone 4, Very High Fire Hazard Severity Zone (VHFHSZ). All applicable fire code and ordinance 
requirements for construction, access, water mains, fire hydrants, fire flows, brush clearance and fuel 
modification plans, must be met. 

SCV Water Implementation Action for MV 4.18-3 and 4.12-5: SCV Water shall ensure the proposed 
Project plans adhere to applicable development requirements in the Los Angeles County Fire Code for 
Very High Fire Hazard Severity Zones. Additionally, SCV Water shall prepare project bid documents 
that specify fire prevention measures that must be incorporated during construction to minimize the 
risk of wildfire. Measures shall include, but not be limited to:  

• Staging areas, welding areas, or areas slated for construction shall be cleared of dried vegetation 
or other materials that could ignite.  

• Construction equipment that includes a spark arrestor shall be maintained in good working 
order. In addition, construction crews shall have a spotter during welding activities to look out 
for potentially dangerous situations, such as accidental sparks.  

• Other construction equipment shall be kept in good working order and used only within cleared 
construction zones.  

152



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-53 
 

• Contractors shall require vehicles and crews working at the project site to have access to 
functional fire extinguishers. 

• Areas shall be designated smoking and non-smoking areas; and  

• Water shall be available on site as needed. pursuant to the County Fire Department 

New Mitigation Measures:  

None needed. 

5.10 Hydrology and Water Quality 
 New Potentially New  
 Significant Mitigation No Impact/ Reduced  
  Impact  Required  No New Impact   Impact  
Would the Project: 

 a) Violate any water quality standards or waste discharge     
  requirements or otherwise substantially degrade 

surface or ground water quality? 

 b) Substantially decrease groundwater supplies or     
  interfere substantially with groundwater recharge 

such that the Project may impede sustainable 
groundwater management of the basin? 

 c)  Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of   
the site or area, including through the alteration of 
the course of a stream or river or through the 
addition of impervious surfaces, in a manner 
which would: 
 

i).result in substantial erosion or siltation on- or     
off-site; 
 
ii).substantially increase the rate or amount of     
surface runoff in a manner which would result 
in flooding on- or off-site; 

iii).create or contribute runoff water which would     
exceed the capacity of existing or planned 
stormwater drainage systems or provide 
substantial additional sources of polluted 
runoff; or 

iv) impede or redirect flood flows?     
 

d)   In flood hazard, tsunami, pr seiche zones, risk     
   release of pollutants due to Project inundation? 

e)  Conflict with or obstruct implementation of a     

153



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-54 
 

  water quality control plan or sustainable 
groundwater management plan? 

Discussion 

a) Violate any water quality standards or waste discharge requirements or otherwise substantially 
degrade surface or ground water quality? 

No New Impact.  

Backcountry Reservoir 

Potential water quality impacts of the Backcountry Reservoir would be the same as the impacts of the tank 
considered in the Mission Village EIR. Construction of the Backcountry Reservoir could result in impacts 
to surface water quality from construction site pollutants, including sediment, if storm water discharges are 
not controlled. However, compliance with the SWRCB’s NPDES Construction General Permit for storm 
water discharges and implementation of erosion controls and other best management practices (BMPs) in 
the proposed Project’s SWPPP, would ensure impacts to surface water quality are minimized. Compliance 
with RWQCB’s NPDES General Permit for Construction Dewatering and Test Water Discharges would 
also minimize potential impacts to downstream water quality during construction. Project design would 
incorporate site drainage measures to minimize runoff, and no chemical or other materials would be kept 
on site that could contribute to downstream water quality impacts. Operation of the reservoir would require 
compliance with NPDES permits during maintenance discharges to the storm drain system. Impacts to 
water quality would be less than significant.  

Backcountry Pump Station 

Like the Backcountry Reservoir, construction of the Backcountry Pump Station, as well as the distribution 
pipelines could cause impacts to surface water quality if construction site pollutants (e.g., diesel fuel, 
sediments) are not controlled. Construction of the Backcountry Pump Station would comply with the 
Construction General Permit for storm water discharges. A SWPPP would be prepared, which would 
include erosion control measures and other BMPs. The proposed Project’s SWPPP would be implemented 
during pump station and pipeline construction to minimize potential impacts to surface water quality. 
Construction of the Backcountry Pump Station would also involve dewatering, which would be conducted 
in compliance with the General Permit for Construction Dewatering and Test Water Discharges. Like 
Backcountry Reservoir, the Backcountry Pump Station would be designed to minimize runoff from the site, 
reducing the potential for downstream water quality impacts. Operation of the Backcountry Pump Station 
would include potable water quality monitoring, with sampling stations located on site. To discharge water 
samples containing chloramines into the local wastewater collection system, an Industrial Waste Discharge 
Permit would be required by the County of Los Angeles Department of Public Works (LACDPW). The 
Backcountry Pump Station would also have diesel fuel tanks on site, which would be used to operate the 
backup generator in the event of a power loss at the Backcountry Pump Station. The fuel tanks would be 
double-walled, equipped with spill boxes, and would be installed within containment walls, which would 
prevent water quality impacts in the event of a spill or leak. Impacts to water quality from the Backcountry 
Pump Station would be less than significant. 

Mission Village EIR Findings 

The Mission Village EIR concluded that the water quality impacts from construction would be controlled 
by compliance with the Construction General Permit for stormwater discharges and SWPPP as well as 
compliance with the General Permit for Dewatering Discharges. After construction, implementation of a 

154



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-55 
 

Standard Urban Storm Water Management Plan required by the Los Angeles County municipal separate 
storm sewer system permit would control pollutants in the runoff from developed areas as well as 
downstream hydromodification impacts. Impacts were determined to be less than significant.  

Conclusion: The proposed Project would not result in new water quality impacts or increase the severity of 
impacts identified in the Mission Village EIR. No additional mitigation measures would be necessary 
because impacts of the Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project would be the same as the impacts 
of the tank described in the Mission Village EIR.  

b) Substantially decrease groundwater supplies or interfere substantially with groundwater recharge 
such that the Project may impede sustainable groundwater management of the basin? 

No New Impact.  

Backcountry Reservoir 

Construction and operation of the Backcountry Reservoir would not affect groundwater recharge or impede 
groundwater sustainability of the Santa Clara River Valley East Subbasin. As with the tank identified in the 
Mission Village EIR, the Backcountry Reservoir would provide operational and emergency storage of 
potable water to supply drinking water during a short-term outage or disruption to the regional water supply 
system. Construction of the Backcountry Reservoir, including the concrete reservoir and access road, would 
result in a minimal increase in impervious surface area within Mission Village, and thus would not 
adversely impact groundwater recharge, similar to the tank identified in the Mission Village EIR. Ongoing 
operation of the Backcountry Reservoir would not increase demand for water, nor require new sources of 
supply or increases in groundwater production to supply potable water to the proposed reservoir, which 
would be similar to the operation of a tank as described in the Mission Village EIR. The proposed 
Backcountry Reservoir would be supplied using SCV Water’s existing water supply sources, which include 
imported water and local groundwater. Supply for operational and emergency storage has been accounted 
for in SCV Water’s long range water supply planning, which takes into account sustainability of the existing 
groundwater basin. No impact to groundwater supplies or groundwater recharge affecting sustainable 
management of the groundwater basin would be expected.  

Backcountry Pump Station 

Construction and operation of the Backcountry Pump Station and distribution pipelines would not affect 
groundwater recharge or impact sustainable groundwater management of the Santa Clara River Valley East 
subbasin (which underlies the Backcountry Pump Station site). The Backcountry Pump Station would 
provide pressure to deliver water to Backcountry Reservoir; the Backcountry Pump Station would not 
consume water. The Backcountry Pump Station site and footprint of the distribution pipelines are currently 
paved, and therefore, would not create an increase in impervious surface area that would reduce 
groundwater recharge. As discussed for the Backcountry Reservoir above, operation of the Backcountry 
Pump Station would not increase demand for water or require new water sources. Therefore, the 
Backcountry Pump Station , including the distribution pipelines would have no impact to groundwater 
supplies, groundwater recharge, or groundwater sustainability. 

Mission Village EIR Findings 

The Mission Village EIR concluded that the increased potable water demand for the project would be met 
through the use of the Newhall Land and Farming Company’s rights to groundwater, which they have used 
for agricultural irrigation. Because this water is already used to support agricultural uses, the Mission 
Village EIR concluded that there would be no significant impacts on water supplies including the 

155



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-56 
 

groundwater basin. In addition, due to project conditions of approval, the amount of groundwater that would 
be used to meet the potable demands of the Newhall Ranch Specific Plan, including the Mission Village 
project, cannot exceed the amount of water historically and presently used by the Newhall Land and 
Farming Company for agricultural uses. Therefore, no net increase in groundwater use would occur with 
implementation of the Mission Village development pursuant to the Newhall Ranch Specific Plan. With 
implementation of mitigation measures, impacts on groundwater sustainability were less than significant. 

Conclusion: The proposed Project would not increase impacts associated with groundwater sustainability 
or increase the severity of such impacts identified in the Mission Village EIR. No additional mitigation 
measures would be necessary because the Backcountry Reservoir would be located on the same site and 
used for the same purpose as the tank described in the Mission Village EIR, and the Backcountry Pump 
Station would enable water delivery to the Backcountry Reservoir and would not consume water. 

c) Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of the site or area, including through the alteration 
of the course of a stream or river or through the addition of impervious surfaces, in a manner which 
would: (i) result in substantial erosion or siltation on- or off-site; (ii) substantially increase the rate or 
amount of surface runoff in a manner which would result in flooding on- or off-site; (iii) create or 
contribute runoff water which would exceed the capacity of existing or planned stormwater drainage 
systems or provide substantial additional sources of polluted runoff; or (iv) impede or redirect flood 
flows? 

No New Impact.  

Backcountry Reservoir 

During construction of the Backcountry Reservoir, erosion or siltation of soil on or off-site would be 
controlled by implementation of BMPs in the proposed Project SWPPP, which would be similar to 
construction of the tank described in the Mission Village EIR. The site is currently fully pervious, but after 
construction, the reservoir and access road would result in minor increase in impervious surface area. The 
reservoir site drainage was accounted for in design of the Mission Village storm drain system. The reservoir 
would slightly increase surface runoff to the local storm drain system, but would not result in flooding on 
or off-site, nor exceed the planned capacity of the local storm drain system in Mission Village, nor provide 
substantial additional sources of polluted runoff The reservoir site is not located adjacent to a stream or 
flood control channel and would not impede flood flows. With implementation of mitigation measures (i.e., 
MV 4.2-8 from the Mission Village EIR), any potential impacts would be minimized to less than significant. 

Backcountry Pump Station 

The Backcountry Pump Station site and footprint of the distribution pipelines are currently fully paved and 
impervious; therefore, construction of the Backcountry Pump Station would not substantially alter the 
existing drainage pattern of the site or increase impervious surface area. The potential for erosion or siltation 
on- or off-site would be addressed through the SWPPP discussed in Hydrology and Water Quality impact 
a), above. The Backcountry Pump Station would not increase impervious surface area that could create 
flooding or exceed the capacity of drainage systems. The Backcountry Pump Station and distribution 
pipelines are not located in a flood zone and would not impede or redirect flood flows. The Backcountry 
Pump Station would have no impact on drainage patterns. 

Mission Village EIR Findings 

The Mission Village EIR concluded that development of Mission Village would have a less than significant 
impact on the potential for downstream sedimentation during construction with implementation of erosion 

156



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-57 
 

controls. Post-development drainage would be managed through project designs to control drainage and 
flooding on- and off-site. With implementation of mitigation measures, impacts were found to be less than 
significant.  

Conclusion: The Backcountry Reservoir would not result in new drainage or flooding impacts or increase 
the severity of such impacts identified in the Mission Village EIR, and no additional mitigation measures 
would be necessary because the reservoir would be located on the same site and operate with the same 
purpose as the tank described in the Mission Village EIR. The Backcountry Pump Station would not result 
in new drainage or flooding impacts because no impervious surface area would be added. Thus, the 
proposed Project would have no new impact. 

d) In flood hazard, tsunami, or seiche zones, risk release of pollutants due to Project inundation? 

No impact. The Backcountry Reservoir is not located in a 100-year flood, tsunami, or seiche zone. No 
chemicals would be stored on-site at the Backcountry Reservoir during operation. The Backcountry Pump 
Station is not located in a 100-year flood, tsunami, or seiche zone. The Backcountry Pump Station would 
have diesel fuel stored on site; diesel would be stored in double-walled tanks with spill boxes, which would 
also be located within containment walls. The Backcountry Pump Station site is not considered vulnerable 
to inundation. Therefore, no impacts from risk of release of pollutants would occur from a flood, tsunami 
or seiche, which is consistent with the findings in the Mission Village EIR. The proposed Project would 
have no new impact. 

e) Conflict with or obstruct implementation of a water quality control plan or sustainable groundwater 
management plan? 

No New Impact.  

Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station 

See discussions under Hydrology and Water Quality impacts a) and b) above. As with a tank described in 
the Mission Village EIR, the proposed Project would comply with SWRCB and RWQCB permits to control 
water quality, which are designed to maintain water quality standards in water quality control plans. 
Additionally, the proposed Project would not be expected to conflict with the Santa Clara River Valley East 
Groundwater Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Plan because the proposed Project (like the tank 
described in the Mission Village EIR) would not affect groundwater recharge or existing groundwater 
production as discussed previously in Hydrology and Water Quality impact b) above. No conflicts with 
these plans would be expected.  

Mission Village EIR Findings 

The Mission Village EIR concluded that the Mission Village development would not significantly impact 
water quality and groundwater usage. See discussion under Hydrology and Water Quality impacts a) and 
b) above.  

Conclusion: The proposed Project would not increase conflicts with or the obstruct implementation of a 
water quality control plan or sustainable groundwater management plan or increase the severity of such 
conflicts or obstructions identified in the Mission Village EIR. No additional mitigation measures would 
be necessary because the Backcountry Reservoir would be located on the same site and operate with the 
same purpose as the tank described in the Mission Village EIR, and the Backcountry Pump Station would 
not consume water, or impact water quality or groundwater management. 

157



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-58 
 

Applicable Mitigation Measures from Mission Village EIR and Newhall Ranch Program EIR:  

MV 4.2-8: A final developed condition hydrology analysis (LACDPW Drainage Concept Report [DCR] 
and Final Design Report [FDR]) shall be prepared in conjunction with final project design when precise 
engineering occurs. This final analysis shall confirm that the final project design is consistent with this 
analysis. This final developed condition hydrology analysis shall confirm that the sizing and design of the 
water quality and hydrologic control BMPs control hydromodification impacts in accordance with the 
Newhall Ranch Sub-Regional Stormwater Mitigation Plan. All elements of the storm drain system shall 
conform to the policies and standards of the LACDPW, Flood Control Division, as applicable. 

SCV Water Implementation Action for MV 4.2-8: SCV Water shall ensure the proposed Project 
drainage design is consistent with the drainage analysis prepared for the Mission Village 
development as approved by Los Angeles County, as well as the Newhall Ranch Sub-Regional 
Stormwater Mitigation Plan as approved by Los Angeles County, as applicable, to minimize 
erosion from the site during construction and to minimize water quality impacts during and after 
construction. Additionally, the storm drain system shall conform to the policies and standards of 
the Los Angeles County Department of Public Works, Flood Control Division. 

New Mitigation Measures:  

None needed. 

5.11 Land Use and Planning 
 New Potentially New  
 Significant Mitigation No Impact/ Reduced  
  Impact  Required  No New Impact   Impact  
Would the Project: 

 a) Physically divide an established community?     
 
 b) Cause a significant environmental impact due to a     
  conflict with any land use plan, policy, or 

regulation adopted for the purpose of avoiding or 
mitigating an environmental effect? 

Discussion 

a) Physically divide an established community? 

No Impact.  

Backcountry Reservoir 

The Backcountry Reservoir is partially buried water supply reservoir located on land designated for a public 
water facility and would not physically divide an established community. No impact would occur. 

Backcountry Pump Station 

The Backcountry Pump Station would be located on a vacant parcel adjacent to a major roadway (Magic 
Mountain Parkway), existing recreational/open space, and transmission towers. The distribution pipelines 
would be constructed in the Magic Mountain Parkway right-of-way. The Backcountry Pump Station would 
have a limited footprint and would be located on a site that is currently surrounded by fencing. The 

158



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-59 
 

Backcountry Pump Station would not impede pedestrian or vehicle circulation in the area of the site. The 
Backcountry Pump Station would not physically divide an established community. No impact would occur. 

Mission Village EIR Findings 

The Mission Village EIR did not include an evaluation of land use impacts. The Mission Village land use 
plan conforms with the adopted Newhall Ranch Specific Plan. 

Conclusion: The proposed Project would not physically divide an established community and there would 
be no impact. 

b) Cause a significant environmental impact due to a conflict with any land use plan, policy, or 
regulation adopted for the purpose of avoiding or mitigating an environmental effect? 

No Impact.  

Backcountry Reservoir 

The Backcountry Reservoir would be constructed on land designated and zoned for a public water facility 
in the Mission Village Specific Plan. No land use planning impact would occur. 

Backcountry Pump Station 

The Backcountry Pump Station would be constructed on land zoned by the City of Santa Clarita as Business 
Park (City of Santa Clarita, 2016), and distribution pipelines would be constructed in the Magic Mountain 
Parkway right-of-way. Public water-related facilities are a permitted use in the Business Park zone 
according to the City of Santa Clarita zoning code. Therefore, the Backcountry Pump Station would not 
conflict with existing land use policy. No impact would occur. 

Mission Village EIR Findings 

The Mission Village EIR did not include an evaluation of land use impacts. The Mission Village land use 
plan conforms with the adopted Newhall Ranch Specific Plan. 

Conclusion: The proposed Project would not conflict with any land use plan, policy, or regulation adopted 
for the purpose of avoiding or mitigating an environmental effect, and there would be no impact. 

Applicable Mitigation Measures from Mission Village EIR and Newhall Ranch Program EIR:  

None needed. 

New Mitigation Measures:  

None needed. 

5.12 Mineral Resources 
 New Potentially New  
 Significant Mitigation No Impact/ Reduced  
  Impact  Required  No New Impact   Impact  
Would the Project: 

 a) Result in the loss of availability of a known mineral     
  resource that would be of value to the region and 

the residents of the state? 

159



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-60 
 

 
 b) Result in the loss of availability of a locally-important     
  mineral resource recovery site delineated on a 

local general plan, specific plan or other land use 
plan? 

Discussion 

a) Result in the loss of availability of a known mineral resource that would be of value to the region and 
the residents of the state? 

No New Impact.  

Backcountry Reservoir 

The Backcountry Reservoir site was included in the evaluation of mineral resources in the Mission Village 
EIR. The site was originally zoned by the California Department of Conservation Division of Mines and 
Geology as MRZ-3, meaning mineral deposits are expected to be present in the area. The site was evaluated 
and re-zoned by the Newhall Ranch Specific Plan as a public facility site, and the site has since been graded 
and filled. No impacts to mineral resources would occur from development of the Backcountry Reservoir.  

Backcountry Pump Station 

According to the City of Santa Clarita General Plan, the Backcountry Pump Station and distribution pipeline 
sites are designated as MRZ-2 for aggregate mineral resources (City of Santa Clarita, 2011). MRZ-2 areas 
are underlain by mineral deposits where geologic data indicate that significant measured, or indicated, 
resources (City of Santa Clarita, 2011). Within the City, areas that have significant mineral aggregate 
resources have been designated by a zoning overlay that permits extraction and other compatible uses. The 
Backcountry Pump Station site is not within one of these areas, so mineral resource extraction would not 
be permitted on the site (City of Santa Clarita, 2013). Therefore, construction of the Backcountry Pump 
Station on the site would not result in the loss of availability of a known mineral resource, and there would 
be no impact.  

Mission Village EIR Findings 

The Mission Village EIR identified that mineral resources were present in the development area but found 
not to be regionally significant compared to locations in the river corridor which would not be affected by 
development. The development area was rezoned by the Newhall Ranch Specific Plan. The EIR determined 
there would be no significant impacts to mineral resources and no mitigation would be required.  

Conclusion: The Backcountry Reservoir would not result in new impacts to mineral resources or increase 
the severity of such impacts identified in the Mission Village EIR, and no additional mitigation measures 
would be necessary because it would be located on the same site as the tank described in the Mission Village 
EIR. The Backcountry Pump Station would not result in new or more severe impacts because it is located 
on a site where mineral extraction is not permitted. Thus, the proposed Project would not result in the loss 
of availability of a known mineral resource that would be of value to the region and the residents of the 
state, and there would be no impact. 

160



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-61 
 

b) Result in the loss of availability of a locally-important mineral resource recovery site delineated on a 
local general plan, specific plan or other land use plan? 

No New Impact. As discussed in Mineral Resources Impact a), the Backcountry Reservoir site was 
evaluated for mineral resources in the Mission Village EIR. The site was originally zoned as an existing oil 
and natural gas extraction area in the Santa Clarita Valley Area Plan. The site was evaluated and re-zoned 
by the Newhall Ranch Specific Plan as a public facility site, and the site has since been graded and filled. 
The Backcountry Pump Station site is zoned as a Business Park site and neither the Backcountry Pump 
Station nor distribution pipeline locations are within the mineral extraction zoning overlay area identified 
by the City of Santa Clarita (City of Santa Clarita, 2013). No impacts to mineral resources would be 
expected from development of the proposed Project.  

Applicable Mitigation Measures from Mission Village EIR and Newhall Ranch Program EIR:  

None needed. 

New Mitigation Measures:  

None needed. 

5.13 Noise 
 New Potentially New  
 Significant Mitigation No Impact/ Reduced  
  Impact  Required  No New Impact   Impact  
Would the Project result in: 

 a) Generation of a substantial temporary or 
permanent increase in ambient noise levels in the 
vicinity of the Project in excess of standards 
established in the local general plan or noise 
ordinance, or applicable standards of other 
agencies?     

 
 b) Generation of excessive groundborne vibration or      
  groundborne noise levels?  
 
 c) For a Project located within the vicinity of a 

private airstrip or an airport land use plan or, 
where such a plan has not been adopted, within 
two miles of a public airport or public use airport, 
would the Project expose people residing or 
working in the Project area to excessive noise 
levels?     

 

Discussion 

a) Generation of a substantial temporary or permanent increase in ambient noise levels in the vicinity of 
the Project in excess of standards established in the local general plan or noise ordinance, or applicable 
standards of other agencies? 

No New Impact.  

161



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-62 
 

Backcountry Reservoir 

Construction of the Backcountry Reservoir, similar to the tank described in the Mission Village EIR, would 
be accomplished using standard construction equipment between weekday hours of 7 a.m. and 7 p.m., in 
compliance with the County of Los Angeles Ordinance 12.08.440 “Construction Noise” (County of Los 
Angeles, n.d.) (SP 4.9-1 and MV 4.6-1). Construction maximum noise levels at residential and business 
structures from mobile and stationary equipment as defined in the Los Angeles Ordinance 12.08.440 are 
provided in Table 5-3. Typical noise emission levels at a reference distance of 50 feet, based on the Federal 
Highway Administration Construction Noise Handbook (USDOT, 2006) for the construction equipment 
detailed in Section 2.4, Equipment/Staging, are provided in Table 5-4. No pile driving is anticipated to be 
required. Noise impacts of constructing the Backcountry Reservoir would be the same as impacts from 
constructing the tank described in the Mission Village EIR.  

There are no residential or business structures within 50 feet of the Backcountry Reservoir site. The closest 
noise receptors to the Backcountry Reservoir site are currently residences and the West Ranch High School 
located roughly 0.75 miles away along the northwestern border of Stevenson Ranch, California. Noise from 
point sources, such as construction sites, tend to attenuate at a rate of 6 dBA per doubling of distance 
(USDOT, 2006). Assuming operation of two of the noisiest pieces of equipment occurred simultaneously, 
the combined noise level would be 86 dBA at a distance of 50 feet. At a distance of 0.75 miles this noise 
level would be attenuated to 48 dBA, which is well below maximum allowable noise levels identified in 
Table 5-3. Therefore, Project construction noise would not adversely affect the nearest noise receptors. 
Implementation of mitigation measures during construction would ensure that noise impacts are less than 
significant.  

Table 5-3: Los Angeles County Construction Noise Restrictions 

  At Residential Structures 
At Business 
Structures 

  

Mobile Equipment  
(Stationary Equipment) 

Mobile Equipment 
(Stationary 
Equipment) 

Single-
family 

Residential 
Multi-family 
Residential 

Semi-
residential/ 
Commercial 

  

Daily, except 
Sundays and legal 
holidays, 7:00 a.m. 
to 8:00 p.m. 

75dBA 
(60dBA) 

80dBA 
(65dBA) 

85dBA 
(70dBA) 

 
Daily, 8:00 p.m. to 
7:00 a.m. and all-
day Sunday and 
legal holidays 

60dBA 
(50dBA) 

64dBA 
(55dBA) 

70dBA 
(60dBA) 

 

Daily, including 
Sunday and legal 
holidays, all hours    

85dBA 
(NA) 

Source: Los Angeles County Code of Ordinances, 12.08.440 Construction Noise (County of Los Angeles, n.d.) 
 
  

162



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-63 
 

Table 5-4: Roadway Construction Noise Model Default Noise Emission Reference Levels – 
Backcountry Reservoir 

Equipment Type Equipment and Operation 
Noise levels @ 50 feet 

Excavator  81 
Track Loader 79 
Highway legal dump truck 76 
Flatbed truck (material delivery) 74 
Pickup trucks 75 
Worker vehicles 75 
Crane 81 
Paver 77 
Compactor 83 
Grader N/A 
Source: U.S. Department of Transportation, Federal Highway Administration 
“Construction Noise Handbook” (USDOT, 2006) 
Note: Typical noise levels from “pickup truck” were used as a proxy for “worker 
vehicles;” typical noise levels from “front end loader” were used as a proxy for 
“track loader.” 

Operation of the partially buried reservoir would contribute a negligible increase to the ambient noise 
environment. Twisted shielded pair control cable would be used to reduce electrical noise within on-site 
equipment. No long-term operational noise impacts would be expected.  

Backcountry Pump Station 

The Backcountry Pump Station and distribution pipelines would be located within the city of Santa Clarita. 
The City of Santa Clarita municipal code regulates construction noise as follows: “No person shall engage 
in any construction work which requires a building permit from the City on sites within three hundred (300) 
feet of a residentially zoned property except between the hours of seven a.m. to seven p.m., Monday through 
Friday, and eight a.m. to six p.m. on Saturday. Further, no work shall be performed on the following public 
holidays: New Year’s Day, Independence Day, Thanksgiving, Christmas, Memorial Day and Labor Day” 
(City of Santa Clarita, n.d.c). The City of Santa Clarita does not include specific noise limits for construction 
activities. All construction activities for the Backcountry Pump Station and distribution pipelines would 
take place within daytime hours as permitted under the City of Santa Clarita municipal code. Therefore, 
construction of the pump station would not conflict with City of Santa Clarita noise standards.  

163



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-64 
 

Table 5-5: Roadway Construction Noise Model Default Noise Emission Reference Levels – 
Backcountry Pump Station 

Equipment Type Equipment and Operation 
Noise levels @ 50 feet 

Excavator  81 
Track Loader 79 
Highway legal dump truck 76 
Flatbed truck (material delivery) 74 
Pickup trucks 75 
Worker vehicles 75 
Crane 81 
Paver 77 
Compactor 83 
Grader N/A 
Water Truck 74 
Forklift 78 
Source: U.S. Department of Transportation, Federal Highway Administration 
“Construction Noise Handbook” (USDOT, 2006) 
Note: Typical noise levels from “pickup truck” were used as a proxy for “worker 
vehicles;” typical noise levels from “front end loader” were used as a proxy for 
“track loader;” typical noise levels from “flatbed truck” were used as a proxy for 
“water truck;” typical noise levels from “backhoe” were used as proxy for 
“forklift.” 

The nearest sensitive receptor to the Backcountry Pump Station and distribution pipelines is the residential 
development along Magic Mountain Parkway, approximately 1,000 feet east of the site. As summarized 
above in the discussion of Backcountry Reservoir, if two of the noisiest pieces of equipment were used 
simultaneously, the combined noise level would be 86 dBA at a distance of 50 feet. At a distance of 1,000 
feet, this would attenuate to 60 dBA, which is approximately the volume of a normal conversation. 
Although the City of Santa Clara does not set specific construction noise thresholds, construction noise 
would be within the acceptable permanent daytime sound levels for residential zones in the City of Santa 
Clarita, which is set at 65 dB (Table 5-6) (City of Santa Clarita, 2011). Therefore, Backcountry Pump 
Station construction noise would not adversely affect the nearest noise receptors. Construction noise 
impacts would be less than significant. 

Table 5-6: City of Santa Clarita Noise Thresholds 
Land Use Time Sound Level (dB) 

Residential zone Day 65 
Residential zone Night 55 
Commercial and manufacturing Day 80 
Commercial and manufacturing Night 70 

During operation of the Backcountry Pump Station, noise would be generated from pumps and electrical 
equipment. The pumps would be located within a CMU building. Electrical and controls systems and a 
backup generator would also be situated within the pump building. Traffic on Magic Mountain Parkway 

164



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-65 
 

would influence the ambient noise levels at the Backcountry Pump Station site, and noise from the pump 
station would not be expected to significantly alter the ambient noise level. The distribution pipelines would 
be buried and would not generate noise. The City of Santa Clarita sets acceptable noise levels for residential, 
commercial, and manufacturing zones as shown in Table 5-6. The pump station would be enclosed and 
would be designed in accordance with applicable standards such that operational noise from the pump 
station (zoned for industrial use) does not exceed 80 dB during the day or 70 dB during the night at the site. 
Due to the distance between the pump station site and the nearest residential areas (approximately 1,000 
feet away), operational noise would attenuate to below residential noise thresholds. Therefore, operational 
noise from the Backcountry Pump Station would not conflict with the City of Santa Clarita noise standards 
or adversely affect sensitive receptors, and impacts would be less than significant. 

Mission Village EIR Findings 

The Mission Village EIR identified that construction activities would create temporary noise impacts, and 
long-term noise impacts could occur from mobile sources (traffic), but impacts would be mitigated to less 
than significant with implementation of mitigation measures.  

Conclusion: The Backcountry Reservoir would not result in new noise impacts or increase the severity of 
noise impacts identified in the Mission Village EIR for a tank developed on the same site. The Backcountry 
Pump Station would have a less-than-significant impact. No additional mitigation measures would be 
necessary.  

b) Generation of excessive groundborne vibration or groundborne noise levels? 

No New Impact.  

Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station  

The proposed Project would not include construction that would create excessive vibration such as piling 
driving. Impacts would be less than significant.  

Mission Village EIR Findings 

The Mission Village EIR identified the potential for vibration impacts from piling driving required for some 
construction activities, including bridge construction. Significant impacts were reduced with 
implementation of mitigation measures.  

Conclusion: The proposed Project would not result in new vibration impacts or increase the severity of 
vibration impacts identified in the Mission Village EIR and no additional mitigation measures would be 
necessary. 

c) For a Project located within the vicinity of a private airstrip or an airport land use plan or, where such 
a plan has not been adopted, within two miles of a public airport or public use airport, would the Project 
expose people residing or working in the Project area to excessive noise levels? 

No Impact. The proposed Project, like the tank described in the Mission Village EIR, would not include 
inhabited structures or be located within an airport land use plan or within two miles of a public or public 
use airport, and therefore would not expose people to excess noise. No impact would occur. 

165



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-66 
 

Applicable Mitigation Measures from Mission Village EIR and Newhall Ranch Program EIR: 

SP 4.9-1: All construction activity occurring on the Newhall Ranch Specific Plan site shall adhere to 
requirements of the “County of Los Angeles Construction Equipment Noise Standards,” County of Los 
Angeles Ordinance No. 11743, Section 12.08.440 as identified in Specific Plan Program EIR Table 4.9-3. 

MV 4.6-1: The project applicant, or its designee, shall not undertake construction activities that can 
generate noise levels in excess of the County’s Noise Ordinance on Sundays or legal holidays. 

SCV Water Implementation Action for SP4.9-1 and MV4.6-1: SCV Water shall ensure that 
proposed Project construction adheres to the requirements of the County of Los Angeles Ordinance 
12.08.440 “Construction Noise” which prohibits construction activities between weekday hours of 
7:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m., or at any time on Sundays or holidays. 

New Mitigation Measures:  

None needed. 

5.14 Population and Housing 
 New Potentially New  
 Significant Mitigation No Impact/ Reduced  
  Impact  Required  No New Impact   Impact  
Would the Project: 

 a) Induce substantial unplanned population growth in     
  an area, either directly (for example, by proposing 

new homes and businesses) or indirectly (for 
example, through extension of roads or other 
infrastructure)? 

  
 b) Displace substantial numbers of existing people or,     
  housing necessitating the construction of 

replacement housing elsewhere? 

Discussion 

a) Induce substantial unplanned population growth in an area, either directly (for example, by proposing 
new homes and businesses) or indirectly (for example, through extension of roads or other 
infrastructure)? 

No Impact.  

Backcountry Reservoir 

The impacts of the Backcountry Reservoir would be the same as the impacts of the tank considered in the 
Mission Village EIR and would not induce unplanned population growth in the area. The reservoir would 
provide planned operational and emergency storage to supply drinking water to the existing and planned 
communities in SCV Water’s Zone B/Magic Mountain Zone. Operational and emergency storage of potable 
water to supply drinking water to the regional water supply system would increase reliability of water 
supply to the area, but would not provide additional supply that could be used to support additional 
population growth. No impact would occur. 

166



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-67 
 

Backcountry Pump Station 

The purpose of the Backcountry Pump Station is to provide adequate pressure to supply water to the 
Backcountry Reservoir. Distribution pipelines would also be constructed in order to facilitate conveyance 
of water to Zone I and Zone IIA-N within SCV Water’s existing service area. The Backcountry Pump 
Station would not provide additional water supply that could result in additional population growth. No 
impact would occur. 

Mission Village EIR Findings 

The Mission Village EIR did not include an evaluation of population and housing impacts. The Mission 
Village land use plan conforms with the adopted Newhall Ranch Specific Plan and Program EIR, which 
addressed planned population growth and housing.  

Conclusion: The proposed Project would not directly or indirectly induce substantial unplanned population 
growth, and there would be no impact. 

b) Displace substantial numbers of existing people or, housing necessitating the construction of 
replacement housing elsewhere? 

No Impact.  

Backcountry Reservoir 

The Backcountry Reservoir would not displace people or housing. The reservoir would be constructed on 
currently vacant land designated for a Public Water Tank and would provide planned operational and 
emergency storage for SCV Water’s Zone B/Magic Mountain Zone regional water supply system. As with 
the tank described in the Mission Village EIR, no impact would occur. 

Backcountry Pump Station 

The Backcountry Pump Station would not displace people or housing. The Backcountry Pump Station 
would be located on a vacant site that is zoned for Business Park use by the City of Santa Clarita, and 
distribution pipelines would be located in the roadway right-of-way. No impact would occur. 

Mission Village EIR Findings 

The Mission Village EIR did not evaluate displacement of people or housing. The Mission Village land use 
plan conforms with the adopted Newhall Ranch Specific Plan and Program EIR, which addressed any 
potential displacement of people or housing.  

Conclusion: The proposed Project would not displace people or housing, and there would be no impact. 

Applicable Mitigation Measures from Mission Village EIR and Newhall Ranch Program EIR:  

None needed. 

New Mitigation Measures:  

None needed. 

167



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-68 
 

5.15 Public Services 
 New Potentially New  
 Significant Mitigation No Impact/ Reduced  
  Impact  Required  No New Impact   Impact  
Would the Project: 

 a)  Result in substantial adverse physical impacts      
associated with the provision of new or physically 
altered governmental facilities, need for new or 
physically altered governmental facilities, the 
construction of which could cause significant 
environmental impacts, in order to maintain 
acceptable service ratios, response times, or other 
performance objectives for any of the public 
services:  

    i) Fire protection?     
    ii) Police protection?     
    iii) Schools?     
    iv) Parks?     
    v) Other public facilities?     
 

Discussion 

a) Would the Project result in substantial adverse physical impacts associated with the provision of new 
or physically altered governmental facilities, need for new or physically altered governmental facilities, 
the construction of which could cause significant environmental impacts, in order to maintain acceptable 
service ratios, response times, or other performance objectives for any of the public services: Fire 
protection; Police protection; Schools; Parks; Other public facilities? 

No Impact.  

Backcountry Reservoir 

The Backcountry Reservoir, like the tank described in the Mission Village EIR, would not change existing 
demand for public services (e.g., fire and police protection, schools, parks, libraries, or health clinics) 
because the reservoir would provide operational and emergency water storage and would not induce 
population growth requiring new public services. Therefore, the Backcountry Reservoir would not result in 
the need for new or alterations to public service facilities. No impacts to public services would be expected. 

Backcountry Pump Station 

The purpose of the Backcountry Pump Station would be to provide adequate pressure to deliver water to 
Backcountry Reservoir; the associated distribution pipelines would convey water to Zone I and Zone IIA-N 
within SCV Water’s existing service area. The Backcountry Pump Station would not induce population 
growth requiring new or altered public service facilities. Therefore, the Backcountry Pump Station would 
not impact public services. 

168



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-69 
 

Mission Village EIR Findings 

The Mission Village EIR found there would be significant impacts on public services due to the generation 
of new population to the area, but funding sources would be available to construct required new public 
service facilities, and impacts were reduced to less than significant.  

Conclusion: The Backcountry Reservoir would not result in new public service impacts or increase the 
severity of impacts identified in the Mission Village EIR for a tank located at the same site described in the 
Mission Village EIR. The Backcountry Pump Station component would not cause new or increased public 
service impacts. The proposed Project would have no new impact and no additional mitigation measures 
would be necessary.  

Applicable Mitigation Measures from Mission Village EIR and Newhall Ranch Program EIR:  

None needed. 

New Mitigation Measures:  

None needed. 

5.16 Recreation 
 New Potentially New  
 Significant Mitigation No Impact/ Reduced  
  Impact  Required  No New Impact   Impact  

 
 a) Would the Project increase the use of existing     
  neighborhood and regional parks or other 

recreational facilities such that substantial physical 
deterioration of the facility would occur or be 
accelerated? 

 
 b) Does the Project include recreational facilities or     
  require the construction or expansion of recreational 

facilities which might have an adverse physical 
effect on the environment? 

Discussion 

a) Would the Project increase the use of existing neighborhood and regional parks or other recreational 
facilities such that substantial physical deterioration of the facility would occur or be accelerated? 

No Impact. The Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project (including V-9 Turnout Facility and 
distribution pipelines), like the tank described in the Mission Village EIR, would not directly or indirectly 
induce population growth and would have no impact on recreational facilities. (See discussion under 
Population and Housing Impact a) and Public Services Impact a).) 

b) Does the Project include recreational facilities or require the construction or expansion of 
recreational facilities which might have an adverse physical effect on the environment? 

See discussion under Recreation impact a) above. 

169



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-70 
 

Applicable Mitigation Measures from Mission Village EIR and Newhall Ranch Program EIR:  

None needed. 

New Mitigation Measures:  

None needed. 

5.17 Transportation 
 New Potentially New  
 Significant Mitigation No Impact/ Reduced  
  Impact  Required  No New Impact   Impact  
Would the Project: 

 a) Conflict with a program plan, ordinance or policy     
  addressing the circulation system, including 

transit, roadway, bicycle and pedestrian facilities? 

 b) Conflict or be inconsistent with CEQA Guidelines     
  section 15064.3, subdivision (b)? 

 c) Substantially increase hazards due to a geometric     
  design feature (e.g., sharp curves or dangerous 

intersections) or incompatible uses (e.g., farm 
equipment)? 

 d) Result in inadequate emergency access?     

Discussion 

a) Conflict with a program plan, ordinance or policy addressing the circulation system, including transit, 
roadway, bicycle and pedestrian facilities? 

No New Impact.  

Backcountry Reservoir 

Construction of the Backcountry Reservoir is expected to occur over an estimated 18 month period, on 
weekdays between 7 AM to 6 PM. Vehicle trip estimates include 64 dump truck trips per day during soil 
hauling and 10 concrete truck trips per day during concrete work (Details provided earlier in Table 2-1 and 
Table 2-3). No lane closures would be expected to accommodate construction. After construction, 
operation of the Backcountry Reservoir would generate up to four worker truck trips per week for inspection 
and maintenance. Primary access to and from the reservoir site during construction and operation would be 
off the future extension of Magic Mountain Parkway, which could accommodate this limited volume of 
truck traffic. The Backcountry Reservoir is not expected to have any impact on existing local or regional 
transportation plans or programs, which would be the same as the tank described in the Mission Village 
EIR. Impacts would be less than significant.  

Backcountry Pump Station 

Construction of the Backcountry Pump Station (including V-9 Turnout Facility and distribution pipelines) 
is anticipated to occur over approximately 18 to 24 months, on weekdays between 7 AM to 7 PM. Vehicle 

170



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-71 
 

trip estimates include approximately 260 truck trips for soil hauling, concrete, and materials delivery. Work 
would primarily be confined to the pump station site, with additional work in the Magic Mountain Parkway 
right of way to connect the pump station to the existing Magic Mountain Pipeline, to complete potential 
driveway improvements, and to construct distribution pipelines. This work may require temporary lane 
closures, which would be conducted in accordance with the traffic control plan (MV 4.5-7 from the Mission 
Village EIR). The site would be accessed from the existing portion of Magic Mountain Parkway. During 
operation, approximately one vehicle trip would occur per week for inspection, maintenance, and water 
quality sampling. Magic Mountain Parkway can accommodate the limited construction and operational 
traffic generated by the Backcountry Pump Station. The Backcountry Pump Station would have a less than 
significant impact on existing local or regional transportation plans or programs.  

Mission Village EIR Findings 

The Mission Village EIR concludes that temporary traffic impacts during construction of the Mission 
Village development would be less than significant with implementation of traffic management controls as 
needed. Long term operation impacts from the new estimated 58,000 average daily trips from project 
buildout would be reduced to less than significant with planned roadway capacity improvements.  

Conclusion: The proposed Project would not result in new transportation system impacts or increase the 
severity of impacts identified in the Mission Village EIR. No additional mitigation measures would be 
necessary because Backcountry Reservoir would be located on the same site as described in the Mission 
Village EIR and the Backcountry Pump Station would have a less than significant impact, requiring no 
mitigation. 

b) Conflict or be inconsistent with CEQA Guidelines section 15064.3, subdivision (b)? 

No New Impact.  

Backcountry Reservoir and Backcountry Pump Station 

CEQA Guidelines section 15064.3, subdivision (a), provides that “For the purposes of this section, ‘vehicle 
miles traveled’ refers to the amount and distance of automobile travel attributable to a project.” During 
construction, automobile and other passenger vehicle travel would consist of trips by construction workers 
and staff commuting to the proposed Project sites. As noted in Table 2-3 and Table 2-4, the proposed 
Project would require about 14 construction worker trips per day during the construction period. According 
to the Technical Advisory on Evaluating Transportation Impacts in CEQA (Governor’s Office of Planning 
and Research, 2018), “projects that generate or attract fewer than 110 trips per day generally may be 
assumed to cause a less-than-significant transportation impact.” Construction trips would be temporary and 
would be far less than 110 trips per day and would thus not result in a perceivable increase in vehicle miles 
traveled (VMT), per the criteria for evaluation in CEQA Guidelines Section 15064.3, subdivision (b). 
Vehicle trips for operation and maintenance (O&M) for both the Backcountry Reservoir and Backcountry 
Pump Station would be limited and incorporated into SCV Water’s existing O&M program. The VMT for 
the proposed Project would be minimal, and therefore the proposed Project would not conflict with CEQA 
Guidelines Section 15064.3. 

Mission Village EIR Findings 

The Mission Village EIR did not evaluate transportation impacts using the VMT methodology and criteria 
because the EIR was certified before VMT analysis was required by the CEQA Guidelines. Nevertheless, 
the Mission Village EIR concluded that transportation impacts would be reduced to less than significant 
with mitigation in accordance with the methodologies required at the time of EIR.  

171



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-72 
 

Conclusion: The proposed Project would not result in new transportation impacts or increase the severity 
of impacts identified in the Mission Village EIR, and no mitigation measures would be necessary because 
Backcountry Reservoir would be located on the same site and be operated for the same purpose as the tank 
described in the Mission Village EIR, and the Backcountry Pump Station would have no impact.  

c) Substantially increase hazards due to a geometric design feature (e.g., sharp curves or dangerous 
intersections) or incompatible uses (e.g., farm equipment)? 

No Impact.  

Backcountry Reservoir 

The Backcountry Reservoir includes a 20-foot-wide drivable access road around the reservoir. This size 
would allow both a 30-foot construction truck and 32-foot fire truck to maneuver around the reservoir. No 
road design hazards would be expected.  

Backcountry Pump Station 

The Backcountry Pump Station includes 30 feet of clear space surrounding the flow control and pressure 
reducing station and bypass station, which would allow maintenance access. The pump building would 
have 25 feet of clear space to allow for vehicle access. The access road and other paved site components 
would be designed in compliance with applicable fire codes to allow for emergency vehicle access. The 
roadway surface of Magic Mountain Parkway would be restored to its previous condition following 
construction of the distribution pipelines. The Backcountry Pump Station would not increase roadway 
design hazards. The Backcountry Pump Station would have no impact on hazards due to geometric design 
features or incompatible uses. 

Mission Village EIR Findings 

The Mission Village Initial Study to the EIR concluded that the project would not result in impacts related 
to geometric design features or incompatible uses.  

Conclusion: The proposed Project would not result in new hazards or increase the severity of hazards 
identified in the Mission Village EIR. No mitigation measures would be necessary because the Backcountry 
Reservoir and Backcountry Pump Station would have no impact. 

d) Result in inadequate emergency access? 

No Impact.  

Backcountry Reservoir 

No lane closures would be expected during construction of the Backcountry Reservoir although 
construction vehicles would need to access the site. Impacts to emergency response vehicles during 
emergencies would be less than significant with implementation of mitigation measures (MV 4.57 from the 
Mission Village EIR). In addition, design of the 20-foot wide perimeter access road is in compliance with 
the Los Angeles County Fire Department turnaround standards, and the entrance to the reservoir site is 
large enough to satisfy the County’s hammer-head turnaround requirement. No emergency access impacts 
would be expected during long term operation of the reservoir.  

172



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-73 
 

Backcountry Pump Station 

Lane closures may be required during construction of the Backcountry Pump Station in order to connect to 
the existing Magic Mountain Pipeline, to complete potential driveway improvements, and to construct 
distribution pipelines. These closures would be temporary and would be implemented in accordance with 
a project-specific traffic control plan (MV 4.5-7 from the Mission Village EIR), including coordination 
with local emergency response agencies to ensure adequate access to the pump station site and surrounding 
areas. The Backcountry Pump Station access road would be designed to be compliant with turnaround space 
and road width standards to accommodate emergency vehicles. Thus, the Backcountry Pump Station would 
not result in inadequate emergency access. Impacts would be less than significant, and no mitigation would 
be needed. 

Mission Village EIR Findings 

The Mission Village Initial Study to the EIR concluded that the project would not result in inadequate 
emergency access.  

Conclusion: Similar to the water tank evaluated in the Mission Village EIR, the proposed Project would 
not result in inadequate emergency access. No mitigation measures would be necessary because the 
Backcountry Reservoir and Backcountry Pump Station would have no impact on emergency access. 

Applicable Mitigation Measures from Mission Village EIR and Newhall Ranch Program EIR:  

 

MV 4.5-7:  Prior to the commencement of project construction activities, the project applicant shall 
institute construction traffic management controls in accordance with the California Department of 
Transportation (Caltrans) traffic manual. These traffic management controls shall include measures 
determined on the basis of site-specific conditions including, as appropriate, the use of construction signs 
(e.g.,"Construction Ahead") and delineators, and private driveway and cross-street closures. 
 

SCV Water Implementation Action MV 4.5-7:  Prior to project construction, SCV Water shall 
require its construction contractor to prepare and implement a Traffic Control Plan, to be approved by 
the SCV Water project manager. The Traffic Control Plan shall, at a minimum: 
 

• Identify staging locations to be used during construction; 
• Identify safe ingress and egress points from staging areas; 
• Establish haul routes for construction-related vehicle traffic; and 
• Identify alternative safe routes to maintain pedestrian and bicyclist safety during 

construction. 
 
The Traffic Control Plan shall include provisions for traffic control measures including barricades, 
warning signs, cones, lights, and flag persons, to allow safe circulation of vehicle, bicycle, pedestrian, 
and emergency response traffic.    
 
SCV Water’s project manager shall coordinate with the appropriate emergency services (fire, police, 
or others) and local municipal jurisdiction regarding construction schedule, project siting, and 
potential delays due to construction, roadways and access points for emergency services and 
minimize disruptions to or closures of these locations. 
 
 

173



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-74 
 

New Mitigation Measures:  

None needed. 

5.18 Tribal Cultural Resources 
 New Potentially New  
 Significant Mitigation No Impact/ Reduced  
  Impact  Required  No New Impact   Impact  

 

 a)  Would the Project cause a substantial adverse 
change in the significance of a tribal cultural 
resource, defined in Public Resources Code section 
21074 as either a site, feature, place, cultural 
landscape that is geographically defined in terms of 
the size and scope of the landscape, sacred place, or 
object with cultural value to a California Native 
American tribe, and that is: 

 

 i) Listed or eligible for listing in the California     
Register of Historical Resources, or in a local 
register of historical resources as defined in 
Public Resources Code section 5020.1(k), or 

 ii) A resource determined by the lead agency, in its     
 discretion and supported by substantial 

evidence, to be significant pursuant to criteria 
set forth in subdivision © of Public Resources 
Code Section 5024.1. In applying the criteria 
set forth in subdivision(c) of Public Resources 
Code Section 5024.1, the lead agency shall 
consider the significance of the resource to a 
California Native American tribe.     

Discussion 

a) Would the Project cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a tribal cultural resource, 
defined in Public Resources Code section 21074 as either a site, feature, place, cultural landscape that 
is geographically defined in terms of the size and scope of the landscape, sacred place, or object with 
cultural value to a California Native American tribe, and that is: (i) Listed or eligible for listing in the 
California Register of Historical Resources, or in a local register of historical resources as defined in 
Public Resources Code section 5020.1(k), or (ii) A resource determined by the lead agency, in its 
discretion and supported by substantial evidence, to be significant pursuant to criteria set forth in 
subdivision (c) of Public Resources Code Section 5024.1. In applying the criteria set forth in subdivision 
(c) of Public Resources Code Section 5024.1, the lead agency shall consider the significance of the 
resource to a California Native American tribe. 

No Impact.  

174



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-75 
 

Backcountry Reservoir 

There are no tribal trust boundaries or tribal trust lands within the Backcountry Reservoir site. In addition, 
the Backcountry Reservoir site is already graded and located entirely on artificial fill. Therefore, no tribal 
cultural resources would be expected to be encountered during reservoir construction. No impacts would 
be expected. See also discussion under Cultural Resources impact a). 

Backcountry Pump Station 

A Cultural Resources Survey was prepared for the Backcountry Pump Station site, as described under 
Cultural Resources impact a). Due to past disturbance at the Backcountry Pump Station site and footprint 
of the distribution pipelines, it is unlikely that tribal cultural resources are present. Unanticipated discovery 
of tribal cultural resources remains a possibility. However, with mitigation measures to minimize 
disturbance area and require appropriate evaluation in the event that resources are found (SP 4.3-3 and MV 
4.20-1), this impact would be less than significant. 

Mission Village EIR Findings 

The Mission Village EIR did not examine Tribal Cultural Resource impacts as it was not an environmental 
resource topic in the Appendix G Checklist of the CEQA Guidelines at the time the Mission Village EIR 
was prepared. Nevertheless, the site was surveyed for cultural resources which includes Native American 
cultural resources, and with incorporation of mitigation measures, no significant cultural or historical 
resource impacts were identified.  

Conclusion: The proposed Project would not result in new or increased severity of any tribal cultural 
resource impacts identified in the Mission Village EIR, and no additional mitigation measures would be 
necessary. 

Applicable Mitigation Measures from Mission Village EIR and Newhall Ranch Program EIR:  

See MV 4.20-1 under Section 5.5, Cultural Resources. 

See SP-4.3-3 under Section 5.5, Cultural Resources. 

New Mitigation Measures:  

None needed. 

5.19 Utilities and Service Systems 
 New Potentially New  
 Significant Mitigation No Impact/ Reduced  
  Impact  Required  No New Impact   Impact  
Would the Project: 

 a) Require or result in the relocation or construction of     
  new or expanded water, wastewater treatment or 

storm water drainage, electric power, natural gas, 
or telecommunications facilities, the construction 
or relocation of which could cause significant 
environmental effects? 

 
 b) Have sufficient water supplies available to serve the     

175



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-76 
 

  Project and reasonably foreseeable future 
development during normal, dry and multiple dry 
years? 

 
 c) Result in a determination by the wastewater treatment     
  provider which serves or may serve the Project 

that it has adequate capacity to serve the Project’s 
projected demand in addition to the provider’s 
existing commitments? 

 
 d) Generate solid waste in excess of State or local     
  standards, or in excess of the capacity of local 

infrastructure, or otherwise impair the attainment 
of solid waste reduction goals? 

 
 e) Comply with federal, state, and local management     
   and reduction statutes and regulations related to solid  
   waste? 

Discussion 

a) Require or result in the relocation or construction of new or expanded water, wastewater treatment or 
storm water drainage, electric power, natural gas, or telecommunications facilities, the construction or 
relocation of which could cause significant environmental effects? 

No New Impact.  

Backcountry Reservoir 

The Backcountry Reservoir would provide operational and emergency potable water storage in SCV 
Water’s Zone B/Magic Mountain Zone and would be supplied by existing available SCV Water supplies, 
delivered to the site via the Magic Mountain pipeline which is in various phases of design and construction. 
The Backcountry Reservoir, like the tank facility described in the Mission Village EIR, would not require 
nor result in the construction of any new or expanded water, wastewater treatment, stormwater drainage, 
natural gas, or telecommunication facilities. Based on preliminary design a new electrical service would be 
required from SCE to deliver electrical power to meet expected load demand. Temporary construction 
impacts related to the electrical power connection would be less than significant.  

Backcountry Pump Station 

The Backcountry Pump Station would be considered a new water facility. However, it would not result in 
expanded water service beyond that analyzed in the Mission Village EIR. The Backcountry Pump Station, 
V-9 Turnout Facility and associated distribution pipelines would convey water to zones that are already 
served by SCV Water. The Backcountry Pump Station would not require new or expanded wastewater 
treatment, stormwater drainage, natural gas, or telecommunication facilities. It is anticipated that a new 
electric service would be required from SCE to power the Backcountry Pump Station. Temporary 
construction impacts related to the electrical power connection would all occur on the Backcountry Pump 
Station site and would be less than significant. 

176



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-77 
 

Mission Village EIR Findings 

The Mission Village EIR evaluated all utility and service systems that would be needed to serve build-out 
of the Mission Village development. The EIR identified significant impacts of project development, some 
of which could be partially attributed to utility and service system development.  

Conclusion: The Backcountry Reservoir would not result in new impacts from construction of utility 
systems or increase the severity of impacts identified in the Mission Village EIR, and no additional 
mitigation measures would be necessary because it would be located on the same site and operated for the 
same purpose as the tank described in the Mission Village EIR. As demonstrated in this Addendum, 
although the Backcountry Pump Station is located at a separate site, the Backcountry Pump Station would 
not result in new or more severe impacts that those identified in the Mission Village EIR. The proposed 
Project would have no new impact due to new or relocated utilities. 

b) Have sufficient water supplies available to serve the Project and reasonably foreseeable future 
development during normal, dry and multiple dry years? 

No New Impact.  

Backcountry Reservoir 

The Backcountry Reservoir is an operational and emergency potable water storage reservoir to allow SCV 
Water to supply drinking water to users in SCV Water’s Zone B/Magic Mountain Zone. SCV Water has 
accounted for this water storage volume as part of its operational and emergency water supply planning as 
discussed in the 2017 E&O study. SCV Water’s water supply planning takes into account the effects of 
water supply availability during normal, dry, and multiple dry years. The reservoir is planned to remain a 
long-term available source for operational and emergency water supply. Impacts would be less than 
significant. 

Backcountry Pump Station 

The Backcountry Pump Station would provide pressure to deliver water to Backcountry Reservoir, as well 
as to Zone I and Zone IIA-N via associated V-9 Turnout Facility and distribution pipelines. The 
Backcountry Pump Station would not consume water, therefore there would be no impact. 

Mission Village EIR Findings 

The Mission Village EIR concluded that the water supply demand of the Mission Village development 
(2,919 acre-feet per year of potable and non-potable) would be met by use of groundwater and recycled 
water from new and/or existing water reclamation plants. No significant impacts were identified. 

Conclusion: The proposed Project would not result in new water supply impacts or increase the severity of 
impacts identified in the Mission Village EIR, and no additional mitigation measures would be necessary 
because Backcountry Reservoir would be located on the same site and operated for the same purpose as the 
tank described in the Mission Village EIR, and the Backcountry Pump Station would not consume water. 

177



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-78 
 

c) Result in a determination by the wastewater treatment provider which serves or may serve the Project 
that it has adequate capacity to serve the Project’s projected demand in addition to the provider’s existing 
commitments? 

No Impact. The proposed Project involves construction and operation of a potable water storage reservoir 
and pump station and would not require or result in the need for increased wastewater collection or 
treatment services. No impact would be expected. 

d) Generate solid waste in excess of State or local standards, or in excess of the capacity of local 
infrastructure, or otherwise impair the attainment of solid waste reduction goals? 

No New Impact.  

Backcountry Reservoir 

The Backcountry Reservoir would generate minor amounts of solid waste during construction activities, 
similar to solid waste generation for construction of the tank described in the Mission Village EIR. The 
construction contractor would be required to dispose of solid waste in accordance with local solid waste 
disposal requirements, and waste would be hauled to the local permitted landfill. Excavated soil would be 
balanced on site and hauled to an adjacent development within Mission Village. Construction of the 
Backcountry Reservoir would not impact landfills beyond their permitted capacities. Operation of the 
Backcountry Reservoir would be expected to generate a negligible amount of solid waste, similar to what 
would be expected for the tank described in the Mission Village EIR. Impacts would be less than significant.  

Backcountry Pump Station 

The City of Santa Clarita’s municipal code, Section 15.46, requires diversion of a minimum of 50 percent 
of the waste materials generated through construction and demolition projects that require City of Santa 
Clarita permits and are above a certain cost threshold (City of Santa Clarita, N.d.b). Excavated soil is 
exempt from this ordinance. Construction of the Backcountry Pump Station and distribution pipelines 
would generate up to about 4,000 cubic yards of exported material. Like solid waste from the Backcountry 
Reservoir, solid waste generated by the Backcountry Pump Station would be hauled to the local permitted 
landfill. Other solid waste generated during construction would be minimal as the Backcountry Pump 
Station site is currently vacant. Relative to the amount of material anticipated to be sent to landfills as part 
of the Mission Village development, solid waste generated during construction of the Backcountry Pump 
Station would be negligible. Operation of the Backcountry Pump Station would generate a negligible 
amount of solid waste. The Backcountry Pump Station would not produce solid waste in excess of state or 
local standards, or otherwise impair the attainment of solid waste reduction goals. Impacts would be less 
than significant. 

Mission Village EIR Findings 

The Mission Village EIR concluded that solid waste generated from construction and operation of the 
Mission Village development would result in a significant and unavoidable impact on the permitted landfill 
capacity even with mitigation incorporated.  

Conclusion: The proposed Project would not result in new solid waste impacts or increase the severity of 
solid waste impacts identified in the Mission Village EIR, and no additional mitigation measures would be 
necessary although the impact, related to the Mission Village development, would remain significant and 
unavoidable, as disclosed in the Mission Village EIR. 

178



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-79 
 

e) Comply with federal, state, and local management and reduction statutes and regulations related to 
solid waste? 

See response to Utilities and Service Systems impact d) above. 

Applicable Mitigation Measures from Mission Village EIR and Newhall Ranch Program EIR:  

None needed. 

New Mitigation Measures:  

None needed. 

5.20 Wildfire 
 New Potentially New  
 Significant Mitigation No Impact/ Reduced  
  Impact  Required  No New Impact   Impact  
If located in or near state responsibility areas or lands  
classified as very high fire hazard severity zones, would  
the Project: 

 a) Substantially impair an adopted emergency response     
      plan or emergency evacuation plan? 

 b) Due to slope, prevailing winds, and other factors,     
exacerbate wildfire risks, and thereby expose project  
occupants to, pollutant concentrations from a wildfire  
or the uncontrolled spread of a wildfire? 

 c) Require the installation or maintenance of associated     
infrastructure (such as roads, fuel breaks, emergency  
water sources, power lines or other utilities) that may  
exacerbate fire risk or that may result in temporary or  
ongoing impacts to the environment? 

 d) Expose people or structures to significant risks,     
including downslopes or downstream flooding or  
landslides, as a result of runoff, post-fire slope  
instability, or drainage changes?  

Discussion 

a) Substantially impair an adopted emergency response plan or emergency evacuation plan? 

No New Impact.  

Backcountry Reservoir 

The Backcountry Reservoir site, like the tank site described in the Mission Village EIR, is located within a 
State Responsibility Area (SRA), wherein CalFire is the primary emergency response agency responsible 
for fire suppression and prevention. The site is also located in a VHFHSZ as determined by Los Angeles 
County in collaboration with CalFire. The proposed Project involves construction and operation of a 
partially buried potable water storage reservoir, and would not require the closure of any traffic lanes during 
construction. It would not increase foot or vehicle traffic in the area during long-term operation. Preliminary 
design of the proposed Project includes an “Auto Turn” analysis which indicated that the 20-foot wide 

179



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-80 
 

access road would allow a 32-foot fire truck to maneuver around the reservoir. In addition, the entrance to 
the reservoir pad was determined to be large enough to satisfy the County’s hammer-head turnaround 
requirement for longer fire trucks. Therefore, the Backcountry Reservoir would not substantially impair an 
emergency response or emergency evacuation plan which is similar to a tank developed at the same site 
described in the Mission Village EIR. Impacts would be less than significant. 

Backcountry Pump Station 

The Backcountry Pump Station would be located approximately one-half mile from an SRA and a very 
high fire hazard severity zone; the westernmost extent of the distribution pipelines would be located about 
one-quarter mile from this zone (CalFire, 2019; City of Santa Clarita, N.d.a). As described in Section 5.17, 
Transportation, construction of the Backcountry Pump Station would primarily occur within the pump 
station site; with distribution pipeline construction occurring in Magic Mountain Parkway which may 
require temporary lane closures. Any necessary closures would be conducted in accordance with the traffic 
control plan (see MV 4.5-7 in Section 5.17), such that construction activities would not impede circulation. 
All staging would be located at the Backcountry Pump Station site. The Backcountry Pump Station would 
be designed with sufficient clear space to allow for vehicle access. The access road and other paved site 
components would be designed in compliance with applicable fire codes to allow for emergency vehicle 
access. Construction and operation of the Backcountry Pump Station would not substantially impair an 
emergency response plan or emergency evacuation plan; impacts would be less than significant. 

Mission Village EIR Findings 

The Mission Village EIR found that with implementation of a construction traffic control plan during 
construction, and with build-out of two new major arterial access roads with connections to local and state 
highways, the Mission Village development would not impair implementation or physically interfere with 
an adopted emergency response or evacuation plan.  

Conclusion: The proposed Project would not result in new impairments to emergency response plans or 
increase the severity of impacts identified in the Mission Village EIR, and no additional mitigation 
measures would be necessary because Backcountry Reservoir would be located on the same site and 
operated for the same purpose as the tank described in the Mission Village EIR, and the Backcountry Pump 
Station would have a less than significant impact. There would be no new impact. 

b) Due to slope, prevailing winds, and other factors, exacerbate wildfire risks, and thereby expose project 
occupants to, pollutant concentrations from a wildfire or the uncontrolled spread of a wildfire? 

No New Impact.  

Backcountry Reservoir 

Property damage and public safety risks associated with wildfire are greatest where homes and other 
structures are located adjacent to large open areas dominated by native vegetation. The Backcountry 
Reservoir would include construction and operation of a partially buried steel and concrete potable water 
storage reservoir on an existing rough graded site, devoid of vegetation; this is the same site as the tank 
described in the Mission Village EIR therefore wildfire risks would be the same. The developed site would 
contain no habitable structures and minimal landscape vegetation. The absence of vegetation reduces the 
risk of wildfire spread. During construction, the contractor would be required to implement mitigation 
measures (MV 4.-3 and MV 4.12-5) to help reduce the risk of wildlife (including spark arrestors on all 
equipment, fire watch during welding activities, designating smoking and no-smoking areas). With 
implementation of mitigation measures, the reservoir would have a less than significant impact on the 

180



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-81 
 

potential to exacerbate wildfire risks, as these measures combined with the absence of vegetation on the 
site would ensure that there is virtually no opportunity for ignition of vegetation. In fact, the Backcountry 
Reservoir would provide an additional and reliable water source in the area that could be used by fire 
protection services if needed to help prevent the uncontrollable spread of wildfire. 

Backcountry Pump Station 

As discussed above for Backcountry Reservoir, the Backcountry Pump Station (including V-9 Turnout 
Facility and distribution pipelines) would have no habitable structures, and only minimal landscaping 
vegetation would be present, if any. The contractor would implement applicable mitigation measures (MV 
4.-3 and MV 4.12-5) during construction to reduce the risk of wildfire (including spark arrestors on all 
equipment, fire watch during welding activities, designating smoking and no-smoking areas). Operation of 
the Backcountry Pump Station would not include activities that could exacerbate wildfire risks. With the 
implementation of mitigation measures, the Backcountry Pump Station would have a less than significant 
impact in terms of exacerbating wildfire risks.  

Mission Village EIR Findings 

The Mission Village EIR includes mitigation measures to be implemented during construction to reduce 
wildfire risk from construction activities. The EIR also includes a requirement to prepare, and submit for 
approval by Los Angeles County Fire Department, a Wildfire Fuel Modification Plan for the Mission 
Village development that would reduce risk and spread of wildfire in the development area. Impacts were 
determined to be less than significant with implementation of mitigation measures including the Wildfire 
Fuel Modification Plan.  

Conclusion: The proposed Project would not result in new wildfire risk impacts or increase the severity of 
impacts identified in the Mission Village EIR because Backcountry Reservoir would be located on the same 
site as the tank described in the Mission Village EIR so wildfire risks would be the same, and the 
Backcountry Pump Station would not create additional wildfire risk. No additional mitigation measures 
would be necessary.  

c) Require the installation or maintenance of associated infrastructure (such as roads, fuel breaks, 
emergency water sources, power lines or other utilities) that may exacerbate fire risk or that may result 
in temporary or ongoing impacts to the environment? 

No New Impact.  

Backcountry Reservoir 

The Backcountry Reservoir site, which is the same water tank site identified in the Mission Village EIR, is 
not adjacent to a designated Open Area or High Country Special Management Area of the Newhall Ranch 
Specific Plan, and therefore not subject to fuel modification zone requirements, although the site is located 
in a VHFHSZ as designated by Cal Fire and Los Angeles County. The proposed Project involves 
construction and operation of a partially-buried concrete and steel water storage reservoir, 20-foot wide 
access road, and associated piping and electrical control equipment on a 1-acre graded site, devoid of 
vegetation. Electrical power supply to the site would be below ground. The Backcountry Reservoir, like the 
tank described in the Mission Village EIR, would not require the installation or maintenance of associated 
infrastructure that may exacerbate fire risk or result in temporary or ongoing impacts to the environment. 
Reservoir O&M activities would include inspection, water quality testing and cleaning which would not 
exacerbate fire risk. During construction of the Backcountry Reservoir, the contractor would be required to 
implement mitigation measures to help reduce the risk of wildlife. With implementation of mitigation 

181



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-82 
 

measures, combined with the absence of vegetation on the site there would be virtually no opportunity for 
ignition of vegetation and the Backcountry Reservoir would have a less than significant impact on the 
potential to exacerbate wildfire risks.  

Backcountry Pump Station 

The Backcountry Pump Station and distribution pipelines would function to supply water to the 
Backcountry Reservoir and zones in SCV Water’s current service area; they would not require the 
installation or maintenance of additional associated infrastructure that could exacerbate fire risk. Operation 
of the Backcountry Pump Station would include inspection, maintenance visits, and water quality sampling, 
which would not increase fire risk. With the implementation of mitigation measures (e.g., building code 
compliance and proper clearance for vegetation), the Backcountry Pump Station would have a less than 
significant impact.  

Mission Village EIR Findings 

The Mission Village EIR includes mitigation measures to be implemented during construction to reduce 
wildfire risk from construction activities. The EIR also includes a requirement to prepare and submit a 
detailed Wildfire Fuel Modification Plan for the Mission Village development, for approval by the Los 
Angeles County Fire Department, that would reduce risk and spread of wildfire in the project area. Impacts 
were determined to be less than significant with implementation of mitigation measures including 
implementation of the Wildfire Fuel Modification Plan.  

Conclusion: The Backcountry Reservoir would not result in new wildfire risks or increase the severity of 
wildlife risks because it is located on the same tank site as described in the Mission Village EIR so wildfire 
risks would be the same, and the Backcountry Pump Station would not create additional wildfire risk. No 
additional mitigation measures would be necessary.  

d) Expose people or structures to significant risks, including downslopes or downstream flooding or 
landslides, as a result of runoff, post-fire slope instability, or drainage changes? 

No New Impact.  

Backcountry Reservoir 

Property damage and public safety risks associated with wildfire are greatest where structures are located 
adjacent to large open areas dominated by native vegetation. The proposed Project includes construction 
and operation of a partially buried steel and concrete potable water reservoir on an approximate 1-acre 
graded site, currently devoid of vegetation, and built upon compacted artificial fill slopes with minimal risk 
of slope failure. The reservoir would contain no habitable structures and minimal or no landscape vegetation 
when developed. The site would drain to concrete slope ditches and conveyed to the local storm drain 
system. The Backcountry Reservoir, like the tank described in the Mission Village EIR, would not be 
expected to pose a significant risk to people or structures as a result of runoff, post fire slope instability or 
drainage changes. With implementation of mitigation measures, impacts would be less than significant. 

Backcountry Pump Station 

The Backcountry Pump Station would help convey water to the Backcountry Reservoir and Zone I and 
Zone IIA-N within SCV Water’s existing service area. The Backcountry Pump Station would contain no 
habitable structures, and minimal landscaping vegetation would be planted at the site, if any. Site runoff 
would drain to the existing the local storm drain system. The Backcountry Pump Station site is currently 
paved and impervious; therefore, the Backcountry Pump Station would not induce additional runoff or alter 

182



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-83 
 

site drainage such that people or structures would be exposed to flooding or landslides. The Backcountry 
Pump Station would not be expected to pose a significant risk to people or structures as a result of runoff, 
post fire slope instability or drainage changes. Impacts would be less than significant with implementation 
of mitigation measures. 

Mission Village EIR Findings 

The Mission Village EIR did not specifically address this new (2018) CEQA checklist question. But the 
EIR did include provisions for reducing wildfire risks and post-wildfire risks through preparation and 
implementation of a Wildfire Fuel Modification Zone Plan to reduce the risk and spread of wildfire in the 
development area. Impacts were determined to be less than significant with implementation of mitigation 
measures including the Wildfire Fuel Modification Plan.  

Conclusion: The Backcountry Reservoir would not result in new wildfire risk impacts or increase the 
severity of impacts identified in the Mission Village EIR, and no additional mitigation measures would be 
necessary because it would be located on the same site as the tank described in the Mission Village EIR. 
The Backcountry Pump Station would have a less-than-significant impact and would not require additional 
mitigation measures. Therefore, the proposed Project would have no new impact. 

Applicable Mitigation Measures from Mission Village EIR and Newhall Ranch Program EIR:  

See SP 4.18-3 and SCV Water Implementation Action SP 4.18-3 under Section 5.9, Hazards and 
Hazardous Materials. 

See MV 4.12-5 and SCV Water Implementation Action SP 4.12-5 under Section 5.9, Hazards and 
Hazardous Materials. 

New Mitigation Measures:  

None needed. 

5.21 Mandatory Findings of Significance 
 New Potentially New  
 Significant Mitigation No Impact/ Reduced  
  Impact  Required  No New Impact   Impact  
  
 a) Does the Project have the potential to substantially     
  degrade the quality of the environment, 

substantially reduce the habitat of a fish or wildlife 
species, cause a fish or wildlife population to drop 
below self-sustaining levels, threaten to eliminate 
a plant or animal community, substantially reduce 
the number or restrict the range of a rare or 
endangered plant or animal or eliminate important 
examples of the major periods of California 
history or prehistory? 

 
 b) Does the Project have impacts that are individually     
  limited, but cumulatively considerable? 

(“Cumulatively considerable” means that the 
incremental effects of a Project are considerable 

183



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-84 
 

when viewed in connection with the effects of past 
projects, the effects of other current projects, and 
the effects of probable future projects)? 

 
 c) Does the Project have environmental effects which     
  will cause substantial adverse effects on human 

beings, either directly or indirectly? 

Discussion 

a) Does the Project have the potential to substantially degrade the quality of the environment, 
substantially reduce the habitat of a fish or wildlife species, cause a fish or wildlife population 
to drop below self-sustaining levels, threaten to eliminate a plant or animal community, 
substantially reduce the number or restrict the range of a rare or endangered plant or animal or 
eliminate important examples of the major periods of California history or prehistory? 

No New Impact.  

Backcountry Reservoir and Backcountry Pump Station 

The Backcountry Reservoir is the construction and operation of a 7.9-MG partially buried, concrete and 
steel potable water reservoir and access road on a 1-acre site. The Backcountry Reservoir site was initially 
evaluated for biological and cultural resources as part of the Mission Village EIR, but has since been rough 
graded and is located entirely on artificial fill, devoid of vegetation. The site contains no habitat to support 
rare or endangered plant or animal species. No native soil would be disturbed as a result of reservoir 
construction, so no pre-historic resources would be expected to be discovered during grading required for 
the Backcountry Reservoir. As with the Backcountry Reservoir, the Backcountry Pump Station was 
evaluated for biological and cultural resources and does not contain habitat that would support rare or 
endangered plant or animal species. Cultural resources are not anticipated to occur at the Backcountry Pump 
Station site or footprint of the distribution pipelines. With implementation of mitigation measures noted 
throughout this document, construction and operation of the Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station 
Project would not have the potential to substantially degrade the quality of the environment, reduce wildlife 
habitat, result in adverse impacts to wildlife populations and communities, or eliminate important examples 
of major periods of California history or pre-history. 

Mission Village EIR Findings 

The Mission Village development would have the potential to substantially degrade the quality of the 
environment from significant unavoidable impacts to biological resources (cumulative loss of coastal scrub 
habitat), visual qualities, air quality, solid and hazardous waste generation, and agricultural resources (loss 
of prime agricultural land and cumulative conversion of prime agricultural land to non-agricultural uses), 
as identified in the Mission Village EIR.  

Conclusion: The Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project would not result in an increase in the 
degradation of environmental resources or increase the severity of degradation identified in the Mission 
Village EIR. No additional mitigation measures would be necessary because the Backcountry Reservoir 
would be located on the same site and operated for the same purpose as the tank identified in the Mission 
Village EIR, and the Backcountry Pump Station would not increase impacts as compared to the Reservoir, 
although the impact, related to the Mission Village development, would remain significant and unavoidable, 
as disclosed in the Mission Village EIR. 

184



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-85 
 

b) Does the Project have impacts that are individually limited, but cumulatively considerable? 
(“Cumulatively considerable” means that the incremental effects of a Project are considerable when 
viewed in connection with the effects of past projects, the effects of other current projects, and the effects 
of probable future projects)? 

No New Impact.  

Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station 

In addition to the Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project, SCV Water has long term plans for 
emergency storage projects consisting of pipelines and storage tanks that would be located in the five 
emergency storage zones in SCV Water’s 195 square mile service area. The projects would be built-out 
over an approximate 30-year period 2022 through 2050), and could potentially include the Southern Service 
Area Reservoir, Sand Canyon Reservoir, Castaic Conduit Parallel Pipeline, Southern Service Pipeline, 
Southern Service Area Pump Station, Earthquake Hose Pipeline Bypass, and Emergency Earthquake 
Pipeline Stockpile, Earl Schmidt Reservoir and the Rio Vista Reservoir as discussed in the 2017 E&O 
Study. However, these projects are still being studied, and future design and construction is subject to long-
term funding availability.  

Air quality impacts of the Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project were evaluated against 
thresholds designed to gauge an individual project’s cumulative impacts and were determined to be less 
than significant. All other environmental resource impacts were also identified as having less than 
significant impacts. The incremental impact of the Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project, which 
is relatively small in scale, together with impacts of the other longer-term related SCV Water emergency 
storage projects located in the five emergency storage zones would be considered less than significant. This 
is due in part to the fact that the projects would be constructed in widely varying locations, and thus would 
not affect the same environmental resources and the extended timeframe for development of the projects 
(e.g., the projects would not occur concurrently with Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project; they 
would be built out over a period of 30 years and construction impacts would thus not occur at the same 
time). Many of the potential short-term construction related impacts such as traffic, noise, hazards, 
hydrology, aesthetics, would occur in individual localized areas within a discrete period of time, and 
potential for overlapping cumulative impacts among individual projects together with the Backcountry 
Reservoir and Pump Station Project is minor. Additionally, the related projects would be required to comply 
with the same or similar regulations and mitigation measures that would reduce the construction-related 
impacts and other potential impacts such as loss of habitat, cultural resource impacts and greenhouse gas 
emissions. Therefore, implementation of the Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project along with 
future related projects would not be expected to result in cumulatively considerable significant impacts. 

Mission Village EIR Findings 

The Mission Village project would have significant and unavoidable impacts after mitigation that are 
cumulatively considerable for biological resources (cumulative loss of coastal scrub habitat), visual 
qualities, air quality, solid and hazardous waste generation, and agricultural resources (loss of prime 
agricultural land and cumulative conversion of prime agricultural land to non-agricultural uses), as 
indicated in the Mission Village EIR.  

Conclusion: The Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project would not result in an increase in 
cumulatively considerable impacts or increase the severity of these impacts identified in the Mission Village 
EIR, and no additional mitigation measures would be necessary, although the impact, related to the Mission 
Village development, would remain significant and unavoidable, as disclosed in the Mission Village EIR. 

185



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

5-86 
 

c) Does the Project have environmental effects which will cause substantial adverse effects on human 
beings, either directly or indirectly? 

No New Impact.  

Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station 

This environmental evaluation found that the Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project would pose 
no impact, less than significant impacts or less than significant impacts with implementation of mitigation 
measures. Consequently, the proposed Project would not result in any environmental effects that would 
cause substantial adverse effects on human beings directly or indirectly. 

Mission Village EIR Findings 

The Mission Village project would have significant and unavoidable impacts after mitigation that would 
cause substantial adverse effects on human beings, either directly or indirectly, related to air quality and 
visual qualities  

Conclusion: The Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project would not result in an increase in adverse 
effects on human beings or increase the severity of such impacts identified in the Mission Village EIR, and 
no additional mitigation measures would be necessary, although the impact, related to the Mission Village 
development, would remain significant and unavoidable, as disclosed in the Mission Village EIR. 

Applicable Mitigation Measures from Mission Village EIR and Newhall Ranch Program EIR:  

As noted in earlier sections of this document, applicable mitigation measures from the Mission Village EIR 
and Newhall Ranch Specific Plan Program EIR that would reduce proposed Project impacts to less than 
significant through SCV Water Implementation Actions include:  
 
• Aesthetics: SP 4.7-1  
• Air Quality: SP 4.10-7 
• Biological Resources: SP 4.6-35, SP 4.6-56 ,MV 4.3-5, MV 4.3-7, MV 4.3-15, and MV 4.3-52  
• Cultural Resources: SP 4.3-3 and MV 4.20-1 
• Geology and Soils: SP 4.3-4, MV 4.1-3, MV 4.1-6, MV 4.1-48, MV 4.1-66, and MV 4.20-1 
• Greenhouse Gas Emissions: SP 4.10-7 
• Hazards and Hazardous Materials: SP 4.18-3 and MV 4.12-5 
• Hydrology and Water Quality: MV 4.2-8  
• Noise: SP 4.9-1 and MV 4.6-1  
• Transportation: MV 4.5-7 
• Tribal Cultural Resources: SP 4.3-3 and MV 4.20-1 
• Wildfire: SP 4.18-3 and MV 4.12-5  

New Mitigation Measures:  

None needed.

186



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project REFERENCES 

6-1 
 

6. REFERENCES 

California Department of Conservation (CDOC). N.d. Earthquake Zones of Required Investigation 
(interactive web map). Accessed September 3, 2020. Available online at: 
https://maps.conservation.ca.gov/cgs/EQZApp/app/  

California Department of Conservation (CDOC). 2016. California Important Farmland Finder (interactive 
web map). Accessed September 3, 2020. Available online at: 
https://maps.conservation.ca.gov/DLRP/CIFF/  

California Department of Conservation (CDOC). 2019. “The Williamson Act Status Report 2016-17.” 
August. Accessed May 4, 2020. Available online at: 
https://www.conservation.ca.gov/dlrp/wa/Documents/stats_reports/2018%20WA%20Status%20Report.p
df. 

California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection. 2019. State Responsibility Areas for Fire 
Protection (shapefile). Accessed September 3, 2020. Available online at: 
https://www.arcgis.com/home/webmap/viewer.html?layers=5ac1dae3cb2544629a845d9a19e83991  

California Department of Toxic Substances Control (DTSC). 2022. EnviroStor Database. Accessed 
November 3, 2022. Available online at: 
https://www.envirostor.dtsc.ca.gov/public/map/?myaddress=santa+clarita  

County of Los Angeles. N.d. “Code of Ordinances” Accessed May 14, 2020. Available online at: 
https://library.municode.com/ca/los_angeles_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT12ENPR_C
H12.08NOCO. 

County of Los Angeles Department of Regional Planning. 2003. “Newhall Ranch Specific Plan Volume 
I.” May 27. Accessed January 8, 2020. Available online at: 
http://planning.lacounty.gov/assets/upl/data/pd_sp_newhall-ranch.pdf. 

County of Los Angeles Department of Regional Planning. 2010. “Draft Mission Village Environmental 
Impact Report Volume I.” October. Accessed February 6, 2020. Available online at: 
http://planning.lacounty.gov/assets/upl/case/tr_061105_deir-volume1.pdf. 

County of Los Angeles Department of Regional Planning. 2010. “Draft Mission Village Environmental 
Impact Report Volume II.” October. Accessed February 6, 2020. Available online at: 
http://planning.lacounty.gov/assets/upl/case/tr_061105_deir-volume2.pdf. 

County of Los Angeles Department of Regional Planning. 2016. “Recirculated Portions of the Mission 
Village EIR.” November. Accessed February 6, 2020. Available online at: 
http://planning.lacounty.gov/assets/upl/case/tr_061105_deir-volume2.pdf 

County of Los Angeles Department of Regional Planning. 2012. “Santa Clarita Valley Area Plan.” 
November. Accessed May 4, 2020. Available online at: 
http://planning.lacounty.gov/assets/upl/data/pd_santa-clarita-area-plan-2012.pdf. 

County of Los Angeles. 2015. “General Plan.” October 6. Accessed May 12, 2020. Available online at: 
http://planning.lacounty.gov/assets/upl/project/gp_final-general-plan.pdf. 

County of Los Angeles Department of Regional Planning. 2015. “Unincorporated Los Angeles County 
Community Climate Action Plan 2020.” August. Accessed May 5, 2020. Available online at: 
http://planning.lacounty.gov/assets/upl/project/ccap_final-august2015.pdf. 

187

https://maps.conservation.ca.gov/cgs/EQZApp/app/
https://maps.conservation.ca.gov/DLRP/CIFF/
https://www.conservation.ca.gov/dlrp/wa/Documents/stats_reports/2018%20WA%20Status%20Report.pdf
https://www.conservation.ca.gov/dlrp/wa/Documents/stats_reports/2018%20WA%20Status%20Report.pdf
https://www.arcgis.com/home/webmap/viewer.html?layers=5ac1dae3cb2544629a845d9a19e83991
https://www.envirostor.dtsc.ca.gov/public/map/?myaddress=santa+clarita
https://library.municode.com/ca/los_angeles_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT12ENPR_CH12.08NOCO
https://library.municode.com/ca/los_angeles_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT12ENPR_CH12.08NOCO
http://planning.lacounty.gov/assets/upl/data/pd_sp_newhall-ranch.pdf
http://planning.lacounty.gov/assets/upl/case/tr_061105_deir-volume1.pdf
http://planning.lacounty.gov/assets/upl/case/tr_061105_deir-volume2.pdf
http://planning.lacounty.gov/assets/upl/case/tr_061105_deir-volume2.pdf
http://planning.lacounty.gov/assets/upl/data/pd_santa-clarita-area-plan-2012.pdf
http://planning.lacounty.gov/assets/upl/project/gp_final-general-plan.pdf
http://planning.lacounty.gov/assets/upl/project/ccap_final-august2015.pdf


Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project REFERENCES 

6-2 
 

FivePoint Communities. 2022. Phase 1, 2A, 2B-1 & 3B of Development Area 1 Product Exhibit. January 
24, 2022. 

Kennedy/Jenks Consultants, et., al. 2015. “Urban Water Management Plan for Santa Clarita Valley”. July 
1, 2016. Accessed May 12, 2020. Available online at: https://yourscvwater.com//wp-
content/uploads/2018/01/2015-FINAL-Urban-Water-Management-Plan-for-Santa-Clarita-
Valley_16JUN2017-1.pdf 

Michael Baker International. 2017. “Emergency and Operational Storage Study.” Final Study – March.  

Michael Baker International. 2018. “Magic Mountain Reservoir Preliminary Design Technical 
Memorandum.” November.  

Michael Baker International. 2020. “Backcountry Pump Station Conceptual Design Technical 
Memorandum.” August 17. 

Michael Baker International. 2022a. Memorandum: Backcountry Reservoir Site Analysis. June 22, 2022. 

Michael Baker International. 2022b. Southwest Area Hydraulic Analysis, Backcountry Pump Station, 
Backcountry Reservoir, and V-9 Turnout Facility (Draft). April 2022. 

Santa Clarita, City of. N.d.a. Fire Zone map. Accessed on September 3, 2020. Available at: 
https://www.santa-clarita.com/home/showdocument?id=2320  

Santa Clarita, City of. N.d.b. Municipal Code Section Chapter 15.46, Construction and Demolition 
Materials Management.  

Santa Clarita, City of. N.d.c. Municipal Code Section Chapter 11, Noise.  

Santa Clarita, City of. 2009. Community Character & Design Guidelines. March 2009. Accessed on 
September 3, 2020. Available at: 
https://www.codepublishing.com/CA/SantaClarita/html/SantaClaritaGP/SantaClaritaGP.html  

Santa Clarita, City of. 2010. Draft Program EIR for the City of Santa Clarita’s Proposed One Valley One 
Vision General Plan. Accessed on September 10, 2020. Available at: https://www.santa-clarita.com/city-
hall/departments/community-development/planning/environmental-impact-reports-completed  

Santa Clarita, City of. 2011. City of Santa Clarita General Plan. June 2011. Accessed on September 3, 
2020. Available at: https://www.codepublishing.com/CA/SantaClarita/html/SantaClaritaGP/6%20-
%20Conservation%20and%20Open%20Space%20Element.pdf  

Santa Clarita, City of. 2012. City of Santa Clarita Climate Action Plan. August 2012. Accessed on 
September 8, 2020. Available at: http://greensantaclarita.com/files/2012/10/APPROVED-CAP-
AUGUST-2012.pdf  

Santa Clarita, City of. 2013. City of Santa Clarita Zoning Overlays Map. July 2013. Accessed on 
September 3, 2020. Available at: https://www.santa-clarita.com/home/showdocument?id=7874  

Santa Clarita, City of. 2016. City of Santa Clarita Zoning Map. November 2016. Accessed on September 
3, 2020. Available at: https://maps.conservation.ca.gov/DLRP/CIFF/  

South Coast Air Quality Management District (SCAQMD). 2009. Final LST Methodology Document, 
Appendix C – Mass Rate LST Look-up Tables. Revised October 21, 2009. Accessed on August 17, 2022. 

188

https://www.santa-clarita.com/home/showdocument?id=2320
https://www.codepublishing.com/CA/SantaClarita/html/SantaClaritaGP/SantaClaritaGP.html
https://www.santa-clarita.com/city-hall/departments/community-development/planning/environmental-impact-reports-completed
https://www.santa-clarita.com/city-hall/departments/community-development/planning/environmental-impact-reports-completed
https://www.codepublishing.com/CA/SantaClarita/html/SantaClaritaGP/6%20-%20Conservation%20and%20Open%20Space%20Element.pdf
https://www.codepublishing.com/CA/SantaClarita/html/SantaClaritaGP/6%20-%20Conservation%20and%20Open%20Space%20Element.pdf
http://greensantaclarita.com/files/2012/10/APPROVED-CAP-AUGUST-2012.pdf
http://greensantaclarita.com/files/2012/10/APPROVED-CAP-AUGUST-2012.pdf
https://www.santa-clarita.com/home/showdocument?id=7874
https://maps.conservation.ca.gov/DLRP/CIFF/


Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project REFERENCES 

6-3 
 

Available online at: http://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/handbook/localized-significance-
thresholds/appendix-c-mass-rate-lst-look-up-tables.pdf?sfvrsn=2.  

South Coast Air Quality Management District. 2018. National Ambient Air Quality Standards (NAAQS) 
and California Ambient Air Quality - Standards (CAAQS) Attainment Status for South Coast Air Basin. 
Accessed August 17, 2022. Available online at: http://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/clean-air-
plans/air-quality-management-plans/naaqs-caaqs-feb2016.pdf?sfvrsn=14.  

SWCA Environmental Consultants. 2022a. Biological Resources Assessment, Proposed Santa Clarita 
Valley Water Agency Pump Station Project, Santa Clarita, California. November. 

SWCA Environmental Consultants. 2022b. Cultural Resources Survey for the Santa Clarita Valley Water 
Agency Pump Station Project Letter Report / SWCA Project No. 62466. November. 

SWCA Environmental Consultants. 2022c. Paleontological Resources Assessment for the Santa Clarita 
Valley Water Agency Backcountry Pump Station Project, City of Santa Clarita, Los Angeles County 
California. November. 

State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB). 2022. Geotracker Database. Accessed on November 3, 
2022. Available online at: 
https://geotracker.waterboards.ca.gov/map/?CMD=runreport&myaddress=santa+clarita  

United States Department of Transportation Federal Highway Administration. 2006. “Construction Noise 
Handbook.” August. Accessed May 11, 2020. Available online at 
https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/environment/noise/construction_noise/handbook/handbook09.cfm. 

 

189

http://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/handbook/localized-significance-thresholds/appendix-c-mass-rate-lst-look-up-tables.pdf?sfvrsn=2
http://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/handbook/localized-significance-thresholds/appendix-c-mass-rate-lst-look-up-tables.pdf?sfvrsn=2
http://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/clean-air-plans/air-quality-management-plans/naaqs-caaqs-feb2016.pdf?sfvrsn=14
http://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/clean-air-plans/air-quality-management-plans/naaqs-caaqs-feb2016.pdf?sfvrsn=14
https://geotracker.waterboards.ca.gov/map/?CMD=runreport&myaddress=santa+clarita
https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/environment/noise/construction_noise/handbook/handbook09.cfm


Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project APPENDICES  

 
 

APPENDIX A: AIR QUALITY AND GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS 
MODELING ANALYSES FOR BACKCOUNTRY 
RESERVOIR AND PUMP STATION PROJECT  

  

190



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project APPENDICES  

 
 

Modeling Analysis of Air Quality 

The Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project (including the V-9 Turnout Facility and distribution 
pipelines) would result in emissions of criteria pollutants1 during construction. Emissions of construction 
air pollutant emissions were estimated using the California Emissions Estimator Model (CalEEMod) 
version 2022.1. Because the Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station are located at different sites, they 
were modeled in separate instances in CalEEMod. The maximum daily emissions for each component (i.e., 
reservoir and pump station) were then added to provide an overall estimate of total Project emissions. 
Information about the proposed Project, including construction schedule and duration, construction 
equipment, vehicle trips, material export, and construction best management practices, were obtained from 
the Project Description of the Environmental Evaluation. Any information necessary to complete the 
modeling that was not provided in the Project Description was based on CalEEMod model default values 
(e.g., worker trip length, vehicle emissions factors). The proposed Project’s construction air pollutant 
emissions were compared to the South Coast Air Quality Management District’s (SCAQMD) significance 
thresholds (SCAQMD, 2019) to determine the proposed Project’s impact under CEQA. The results of the 
emissions modeling are presented in the following table. 

Table 1: Construction Mass Daily Emissions (lbs/day) 

Pollutant Backcountry 
Reservoir 

Backcountry 
Pump Station 

and V-9 
Turnout 
Facility 

Proposed 
Project Total 

SCAQMD 
Significance 
Threshold 

Exceeds 
Threshold? 

NOX 7 16 23 100 No 
VOC 3 8 11 75 No 
PM10 <1 3 4 150 No 
PM2.5 <1 2 2 55 No 
CO 8 15 23 550 No 
SOX <1 <1 <1 150 No 

Emissions of operational air pollutants were also modeled using CalEEMod version 2022.1 and compared 
to the SCAQMD operational significance thresholds. The proposed Project would result in emissions of 
pollutants associated with operations and maintenance vehicle trips (mobile sources), and landscaping and 
other ongoing maintenance activities at the site (area sources). The proposed Project would consume 
electricity for lighting purposes. Criteria pollutant emissions from electricity are regulated at the power 
plants through stationary source permitting with the US Environmental Protection Agency (US EPA) and 
the California Air Resources Board (CARB). CalEEMod does not attribute criteria pollutant emissions from 
electricity use to individual projects. The results of the emissions modeling are presented in the following 
table. 
  

 
 
 
1 Criteria pollutants, as defined by the US EPA, include nitrogen oxides (NOX); photochemical oxidants, including 

ozone, of which volatile organic compounds (VOC) are a precursor; respirable Particulate Matter (PM10), fine 
particulate matter (PM2.5), carbon monoxide (CO), and sulfur oxides (SOX). 

191



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project APPENDICES  

 
 

Table 2: Operational Mass Daily Emissions (lbs/day) 

Pollutant Backcountry 
Reservoir 

Backcountry 
Pump Station 

and V-9 
Turnout 
Facility 

Proposed 
Project Total 

SCAQMD 
Significance 
Threshold 

Exceeds 
Threshold? 

NOX <1 <1 <1 55 No 
VOC 1 <1 2 55 No 
PM10 <1 <1 <1 150 No 
PM2.5 <1 <1 <1 55 No 
CO 2 <1 2 550 No 
SOX <1 <1 <1 150 No 

Overall, emissions of criteria air pollutants from both construction and operations would be less than the 
SCAQMD significance thresholds. Therefore, impacts would be less than significant, and no mitigation 
would be required. 

Modeling Analysis of Greenhouse Gas Emissions 

The Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project would result in emissions of Greenhouse Gases 
(GHG) during both construction and operation. GHG emissions were estimated using the California 
Emissions Estimator Model (CalEEMod) version 2022.1. The results are presented in terms of metric tons 
of carbon dioxide equivalent (MT CO2e), which is a unit of measurement that encompasses the primary 
anthropogenic greenhouse gases Carbon Dioxide (CO2), Methane (CH4), and Nitrous Oxide (N2O). 
Construction information about the proposed Project, including the construction schedule and duration, 
construction equipment, vehicle trips, material export, and construction best management practices, were 
obtained from the Project Description of the Environmental Evaluation. Operational information about the 
proposed Project, including operations and maintenance trips, energy consumption, were also obtained from 
the Project Description. Any information necessary to complete the modeling that was not provided in the 
Project Description was based on CalEEMod model default values (e.g., worker trip length, vehicle 
emissions factors). The proposed Project’s construction and operations GHG emissions are presented in the 
following table. Per SCAQMD guidance (SCAQMD, 2008), construction emissions are amortized over the 
life of the proposed Project, defined as 30 years, and added to the operational emissions. 

Table 3: Annual Greenhouse Gas Emissions (MT CO2e/year) 

Source 
Backcountry 

Reservoir Total 
Annual GHG 

Backcountry 
Pump Station 

Total Annual GHG 

Proposed 
Project Total 
Annual GHG 

Construction – 2024 64 107 171 
Construction – 2025 189 173 362 
Total Annual Operational GHG 2 143 145 
30-year amortized construction emissions 8 9 18 
Annual GHG including 30-year amortized 

construction emissions 11 152 163 

 
  

192



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project APPENDICES  

 
 

References: 
South Coast Air Quality Management District. 2008. “Interim CEQA GHG Significance Threshold for 
Stationary Sources, Rules and Plans.” December 5. Accessed February 13, 2020. Available online at: 
http://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/handbook/greenhouse-gases-(ghg)-ceqa-significance-
thresholds/ghgboardsynopsis.pdf?sfvrsn=2.  
 
South Coast Air Quality Management District. 2019. “South Coast AQMD Air Quality Significance 
Thresholds.” April. Accessed February 13, 2020. Available online at: http://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-
source/ceqa/handbook/scaqmd-air-quality-significance-thresholds.pdf. 

  

193

http://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/handbook/greenhouse-gases-(ghg)-ceqa-significance-thresholds/ghgboardsynopsis.pdf?sfvrsn=2
http://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/handbook/greenhouse-gases-(ghg)-ceqa-significance-thresholds/ghgboardsynopsis.pdf?sfvrsn=2
http://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/handbook/scaqmd-air-quality-significance-thresholds.pdf
http://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/handbook/scaqmd-air-quality-significance-thresholds.pdf


Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project APPENDICES  

 
 

APPENDIX B: AIR QUALITY AND GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS 
MODEL OUTPUT DATA FOR BACKCOUNTRY 
RESERVOIR AND PUMP STATION PROJECT 

  

194



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project APPENDICES  

 
 

APPENDIX C: BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES ASSESSMENT FOR 
BACKCOUNTRY PUMP STATION 

  

195



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project APPENDICES  

 
 

APPENDIX D: CULTURAL RESOURCES ASSESSMENT FOR 
BACKCOUNTRY PUMP STATION 

  

196



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project APPENDICES  

 
 

APPENDIX E: PALEONTOLOGICAL RESOURCES ASSESSMENT 
FOR BACKCOUNTRY PUMP STATION 

 

 

 

197



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project APPENDICES  

 
 

APPENDIX A: AIR QUALITY AND GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS 
MODELING ANALYSES FOR BACKCOUNTRY 
RESERVOIR AND PUMP STATION PROJECT  

  

198



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project APPENDICES  

 
 

Modeling Analysis of Air Quality 

The Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project (including the V-9 Turnout Facility and distribution 
pipelines) would result in emissions of criteria pollutants1 during construction. Emissions of construction 
air pollutant emissions were estimated using the California Emissions Estimator Model (CalEEMod) 
version 2022.1. Because the Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station are located at different sites, they 
were modeled in separate instances in CalEEMod. The maximum daily emissions for each component (i.e., 
reservoir and pump station) were then added to provide an overall estimate of total Project emissions. 
Information about the proposed Project, including construction schedule and duration, construction 
equipment, vehicle trips, material export, and construction best management practices, were obtained from 
the Project Description of the Environmental Evaluation. Any information necessary to complete the 
modeling that was not provided in the Project Description was based on CalEEMod model default values 
(e.g., worker trip length, vehicle emissions factors). The proposed Project’s construction air pollutant 
emissions were compared to the South Coast Air Quality Management District’s (SCAQMD) significance 
thresholds (SCAQMD, 2019) to determine the proposed Project’s impact under CEQA. The results of the 
emissions modeling are presented in the following table. 

Table 1: Construction Mass Daily Emissions (lbs/day) 

Pollutant Backcountry 
Reservoir 

Backcountry 
Pump Station 

and V-9 
Turnout 
Facility 

Proposed 
Project Total 

SCAQMD 
Significance 
Threshold 

Exceeds 
Threshold? 

NOX 7 16 23 100 No 
VOC 3 8 11 75 No 
PM10 <1 3 4 150 No 
PM2.5 <1 2 2 55 No 
CO 8 15 23 550 No 
SOX <1 <1 <1 150 No 

Emissions of operational air pollutants were also modeled using CalEEMod version 2022.1 and compared 
to the SCAQMD operational significance thresholds. The proposed Project would result in emissions of 
pollutants associated with operations and maintenance vehicle trips (mobile sources), and landscaping and 
other ongoing maintenance activities at the site (area sources). The proposed Project would consume 
electricity for lighting purposes. Criteria pollutant emissions from electricity are regulated at the power 
plants through stationary source permitting with the US Environmental Protection Agency (US EPA) and 
the California Air Resources Board (CARB). CalEEMod does not attribute criteria pollutant emissions from 
electricity use to individual projects. The results of the emissions modeling are presented in the following 
table. 
  

 
 
 
1 Criteria pollutants, as defined by the US EPA, include nitrogen oxides (NOX); photochemical oxidants, including 

ozone, of which volatile organic compounds (VOC) are a precursor; respirable Particulate Matter (PM10), fine 
particulate matter (PM2.5), carbon monoxide (CO), and sulfur oxides (SOX). 

199



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project APPENDICES  

 
 

Table 2: Operational Mass Daily Emissions (lbs/day) 

Pollutant Backcountry 
Reservoir 

Backcountry 
Pump Station 

and V-9 
Turnout 
Facility 

Proposed 
Project Total 

SCAQMD 
Significance 
Threshold 

Exceeds 
Threshold? 

NOX <1 <1 <1 55 No 
VOC 1 <1 2 55 No 
PM10 <1 <1 <1 150 No 
PM2.5 <1 <1 <1 55 No 
CO 2 <1 2 550 No 
SOX <1 <1 <1 150 No 

Overall, emissions of criteria air pollutants from both construction and operations would be less than the 
SCAQMD significance thresholds. Therefore, impacts would be less than significant, and no mitigation 
would be required. 

Modeling Analysis of Greenhouse Gas Emissions 

The Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project would result in emissions of Greenhouse Gases 
(GHG) during both construction and operation. GHG emissions were estimated using the California 
Emissions Estimator Model (CalEEMod) version 2022.1. The results are presented in terms of metric tons 
of carbon dioxide equivalent (MT CO2e), which is a unit of measurement that encompasses the primary 
anthropogenic greenhouse gases Carbon Dioxide (CO2), Methane (CH4), and Nitrous Oxide (N2O). 
Construction information about the proposed Project, including the construction schedule and duration, 
construction equipment, vehicle trips, material export, and construction best management practices, were 
obtained from the Project Description of the Environmental Evaluation. Operational information about the 
proposed Project, including operations and maintenance trips, energy consumption, were also obtained from 
the Project Description. Any information necessary to complete the modeling that was not provided in the 
Project Description was based on CalEEMod model default values (e.g., worker trip length, vehicle 
emissions factors). The proposed Project’s construction and operations GHG emissions are presented in the 
following table. Per SCAQMD guidance (SCAQMD, 2008), construction emissions are amortized over the 
life of the proposed Project, defined as 30 years, and added to the operational emissions. 

Table 3: Annual Greenhouse Gas Emissions (MT CO2e/year) 

Source 
Backcountry 

Reservoir Total 
Annual GHG 

Backcountry 
Pump Station 

Total Annual GHG 

Proposed 
Project Total 
Annual GHG 

Construction – 2024 64 107 171 
Construction – 2025 189 173 362 
Total Annual Operational GHG 2 143 145 
30-year amortized construction emissions 8 9 18 
Annual GHG including 30-year amortized 

construction emissions 11 152 163 

 
  

200



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project APPENDICES  

 
 

References: 
South Coast Air Quality Management District. 2008. “Interim CEQA GHG Significance Threshold for 
Stationary Sources, Rules and Plans.” December 5. Accessed February 13, 2020. Available online at: 
http://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/handbook/greenhouse-gases-(ghg)-ceqa-significance-
thresholds/ghgboardsynopsis.pdf?sfvrsn=2.  
 
South Coast Air Quality Management District. 2019. “South Coast AQMD Air Quality Significance 
Thresholds.” April. Accessed February 13, 2020. Available online at: http://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-
source/ceqa/handbook/scaqmd-air-quality-significance-thresholds.pdf. 

  

201

http://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/handbook/greenhouse-gases-(ghg)-ceqa-significance-thresholds/ghgboardsynopsis.pdf?sfvrsn=2
http://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/handbook/greenhouse-gases-(ghg)-ceqa-significance-thresholds/ghgboardsynopsis.pdf?sfvrsn=2
http://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/handbook/scaqmd-air-quality-significance-thresholds.pdf
http://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/handbook/scaqmd-air-quality-significance-thresholds.pdf


Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project APPENDICES  

 
 

APPENDIX B: AIR QUALITY AND GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS 
MODEL OUTPUT DATA FOR BACKCOUNTRY 
RESERVOIR AND PUMP STATION PROJECT 

  

202



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

R
es

er
vo

ir
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

8/
30

/2
02

2

1 
/4

6

S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

R
es

er
vo

ir
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t

Ta
bl

e
of

C
on

te
nt

s

1.
B

as
ic

P
ro

je
ct

In
fo

rm
at

io
n

1.
1.

B
as

ic
P

ro
je

ct
In

fo
rm

at
io

n

1.
2.

La
nd

U
se

Ty
pe

s

1.
3.

U
se

r-
S

el
ec

te
d

E
m

is
si

on
R

ed
uc

tio
n

M
ea

su
re

s
by

E
m

is
si

on
s

S
ec

to
r

2.
E

m
is

si
on

s
S

um
m

ar
y

2.
1.

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n
E

m
is

si
on

s
C

om
pa

re
d

A
ga

in
st

T
hr

es
ho

ld
s

2.
2.

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n
E

m
is

si
on

s
by

Ye
ar

,U
nm

iti
ga

te
d

2.
4.

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
E

m
is

si
on

s
C

om
pa

re
d

A
ga

in
st

T
hr

es
ho

ld
s

2.
5.

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
E

m
is

si
on

s
by

S
ec

to
r,

U
nm

iti
ga

te
d

3.
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

E
m

is
si

on
s

D
et

ai
ls

3.
1.

G
ra

di
ng

(2
02

4)
-

U
nm

iti
ga

te
d

3.
3.

B
ui

ld
in

g
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

(2
02

4)
-

U
nm

iti
ga

te
d

3.
5.

B
ui

ld
in

g
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

(2
02

5)
-

U
nm

iti
ga

te
d

3.
7.

P
av

in
g

(2
02

5)
-

U
nm

iti
ga

te
d

203



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

R
es

er
vo

ir
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

8/
30

/2
02

2

2 
/4

6

3.
9.

A
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

al
C

oa
tin

g
(2

02
4)

-
U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

3.
11

.A
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

al
C

oa
tin

g
(2

02
5)

-
U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

4.
O

pe
ra

tio
ns

E
m

is
si

on
s

D
et

ai
ls

4.
1.

M
ob

ile
E

m
is

si
on

s
by

La
nd

U
se

4.
1.

1.
U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

4.
2.

E
ne

rg
y

4.
2.

1.
E

le
ct

ric
ity

E
m

is
si

on
s

B
y

La
nd

U
se

-
U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

4.
2.

3.
N

at
ur

al
G

as
E

m
is

si
on

s
B

y
La

nd
U

se
-

U
nm

iti
ga

te
d

4.
3.

A
re

a
E

m
is

si
on

s
by

S
ou

rc
e

4.
3.

2.
U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

4.
4.

W
at

er
E

m
is

si
on

s
by

La
nd

U
se

4.
4.

2.
U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

4.
5.

W
as

te
E

m
is

si
on

s
by

La
nd

U
se

4.
5.

2.
U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

4.
6.

R
ef

rig
er

an
tE

m
is

si
on

s
by

La
nd

U
se

4.
6.

1.
U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

4.
7.

O
ffr

oa
d

E
m

is
si

on
s

B
y

E
qu

ip
m

en
tT

yp
e

204



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

R
es

er
vo

ir
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

8/
30

/2
02

2

3 
/4

6

4.
7.

1.
U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

4.
8.

S
ta

tio
na

ry
E

m
is

si
on

s
B

y
E

qu
ip

m
en

tT
yp

e

4.
8.

1.
U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

4.
9.

U
se

r
D

ef
in

ed
E

m
is

si
on

s
B

y
E

qu
ip

m
en

tT
yp

e

4.
9.

1.
U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

4.
10

.S
oi

lC
ar

bo
n

A
cc

um
ul

at
io

n
B

y
V

eg
et

at
io

n
Ty

pe

4.
10

.1
.S

oi
lC

ar
bo

n
A

cc
um

ul
at

io
n

B
y

V
eg

et
at

io
n

Ty
pe

-
U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

4.
10

.2
.A

bo
ve

an
d

B
el

ow
gr

ou
nd

C
ar

bo
n

A
cc

um
ul

at
io

n
by

La
nd

U
se

Ty
pe

-
U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

4.
10

.3
.A

vo
id

ed
an

d
S

eq
ue

st
er

ed
E

m
is

si
on

s
by

S
pe

ci
es

-
U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

5.
A

ct
iv

ity
D

at
a

5.
1.

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n
S

ch
ed

ul
e

5.
2.

O
ff-

R
oa

d
E

qu
ip

m
en

t

5.
2.

1.
U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

5.
3.

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n
V

eh
ic

le
s

5.
3.

1.
U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

5.
4.

V
eh

ic
le

s

5.
4.

1.
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

V
eh

ic
le

C
on

tr
ol

S
tr

at
eg

ie
s

205



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

R
es

er
vo

ir
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

8/
30

/2
02

2

4 
/4

6

5.
5.

A
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

al
C

oa
tin

gs

5.
6.

D
us

tM
iti

ga
tio

n

5.
6.

1.
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

E
ar

th
m

ov
in

g
A

ct
iv

iti
es

5.
6.

2.
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

E
ar

th
m

ov
in

g
C

on
tr

ol
S

tr
at

eg
ie

s

5.
7.

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n
P

av
in

g

5.
8.

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n
E

le
ct

ric
ity

C
on

su
m

pt
io

n
an

d
E

m
is

si
on

s
Fa

ct
or

s

5.
9.

O
pe

ra
tio

na
lM

ob
ile

S
ou

rc
es

5.
9.

1.
U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

5.
10

.O
pe

ra
tio

na
lA

re
a

S
ou

rc
es

5.
10

.1
.H

ea
rt

hs

5.
10

.1
.1

.U
nm

iti
ga

te
d

5.
10

.2
.A

rc
hi

te
ct

ur
al

C
oa

tin
gs

5.
10

.3
.L

an
ds

ca
pe

E
qu

ip
m

en
t

5.
11

.O
pe

ra
tio

na
lE

ne
rg

y
C

on
su

m
pt

io
n

5.
11

.1
.U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

5.
12

.O
pe

ra
tio

na
lW

at
er

an
d

W
as

te
w

at
er

C
on

su
m

pt
io

n

5.
12

.1
.U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

206



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

R
es

er
vo

ir
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

8/
30

/2
02

2

5 
/4

6

5.
13

.O
pe

ra
tio

na
lW

as
te

G
en

er
at

io
n

5.
13

.1
.U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

5.
14

.O
pe

ra
tio

na
lR

ef
rig

er
at

io
n

an
d

A
ir

C
on

di
tio

ni
ng

E
qu

ip
m

en
t

5.
14

.1
.U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

5.
15

.O
pe

ra
tio

na
lO

ff-
R

oa
d

E
qu

ip
m

en
t

5.
15

.1
.U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

5.
16

.S
ta

tio
na

ry
S

ou
rc

es

5.
16

.1
.E

m
er

ge
nc

y
G

en
er

at
or

s
an

d
F

ire
P

um
ps

5.
16

.2
.P

ro
ce

ss
B

oi
le

rs

5.
17

.U
se

r
D

ef
in

ed

5.
18

.V
eg

et
at

io
n

5.
18

.1
.L

an
d

U
se

C
ha

ng
e

5.
18

.1
.1

.U
nm

iti
ga

te
d

5.
18

.1
.B

io
m

as
s

C
ov

er
Ty

pe

5.
18

.1
.1

.U
nm

iti
ga

te
d

5.
18

.2
.S

eq
ue

st
ra

tio
n

5.
18

.2
.1

.U
nm

iti
ga

te
d

207



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

R
es

er
vo

ir
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

8/
30

/2
02

2

6 
/4

6

6.
C

lim
at

e
R

is
k

D
et

ai
le

d
R

ep
or

t

6.
1.

C
lim

at
e

R
is

k
S

um
m

ar
y

6.
2.

In
iti

al
C

lim
at

e
R

is
k

S
co

re
s

6.
3.

A
dj

us
te

d
C

lim
at

e
R

is
k

S
co

re
s

6.
4.

C
lim

at
e

R
is

k
R

ed
uc

tio
n

M
ea

su
re

s

7.
H

ea
lth

an
d

E
qu

ity
D

et
ai

ls

7.
1.

C
al

E
nv

iro
S

cr
ee

n
4.

0
S

co
re

s

7.
2.

H
ea

lth
y

P
la

ce
s

In
de

x
S

co
re

s

7.
3.

O
ve

ra
ll

H
ea

lth
&

E
qu

ity
S

co
re

s

7.
4.

H
ea

lth
&

E
qu

ity
M

ea
su

re
s

7.
5.

E
va

lu
at

io
n

S
co

re
ca

rd

8.
U

se
r

C
ha

ng
es

to
D

ef
au

lt
D

at
a

208



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

R
es

er
vo

ir
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

8/
30

/2
02

2

7 
/4

6

1.
B

as
ic

P
ro

je
ct

In
fo

rm
at

io
n

1.
1.

B
as

ic
P

ro
je

ct
In

fo
rm

at
io

n

D
at

a
F

ie
ld

V
al

ue

P
ro

je
ct

N
am

e
S

C
V

W
at

er
B

ac
kc

ou
nt

ry
R

es
er

vo
ir

Le
ad

A
ge

nc
y

S
an

ta
C

la
rit

a
V

al
le

y
W

at
er

D
is

tr
ic

t

La
nd

U
se

S
ca

le
P

ro
je

ct
/s

ite

A
na

ly
si

s
Le

ve
lf

or
D

ef
au

lts
C

ou
nt

y

W
in

ds
pe

ed
(m

/s
)

2.
50

P
re

ci
pi

ta
tio

n
(d

ay
s)

16
.0

Lo
ca

tio
n

34
.4

13
20

22
68

84
84

5,
-1

18
.6

07
86

51
62

03
58

9

C
ou

nt
y

Lo
s

A
ng

el
es

-S
ou

th
C

oa
st

C
ity

U
ni

nc
or

po
ra

te
d

A
ir

D
is

tr
ic

t
S

ou
th

C
oa

st
A

Q
M

D

A
ir

B
as

in
S

ou
th

C
oa

st

TA
Z

36
15

E
D

F
Z

7

E
le

ct
ric

U
til

ity
S

ou
th

er
n

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
E

di
so

n

G
as

U
til

ity
S

ou
th

er
n

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
G

as

1.
2.

La
nd

U
se

Ty
pe

s

La
nd

U
se

S
ub

ty
pe

S
iz

e
U

ni
t

Lo
tA

cr
ea

ge
B

ui
ld

in
g

A
re

a
(s

q
ft)

La
nd

sc
ap

e
A

re
a

(s
q

ft)
S

pe
ci

al
La

nd
sc

ap
e

A
re

a
(s

q
ft)

P
op

ul
at

io
n

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

R
ef

rig
er

at
ed

W
ar

eh
ou

se
-N

o
R

ai
l

89
.0

10
00

sq
ft

2.
04

48
,0

00
0.

00
—

—
—

209



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

R
es

er
vo

ir
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

8/
30

/2
02

2

8 
/4

6

1.
3.

U
se

r-
S

el
ec

te
d

E
m

is
si

on
R

ed
uc

tio
n

M
ea

su
re

s
by

E
m

is
si

on
s

S
ec

to
r

N
o

m
ea

su
re

s
se

le
ct

ed

2.
E

m
is

si
on

s
S

um
m

ar
y

2.
1.

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n
E

m
is

si
on

s
C

om
pa

re
d

A
ga

in
st

T
hr

es
ho

ld
s

C
rit

er
ia

P
ol

lu
ta

nt
s

(lb
/d

ay
fo

r
da

ily
,t

on
/y

r
fo

r
an

nu
al

)
an

d
G

H
G

s
(lb

/d
ay

fo
r

da
ily

,M
T

/y
r

fo
r

an
nu

al
)

U
n/

M
it.

TO
G

R
O

G
N

O
x

C
O

S
O

2
P

M
10

E
P

M
10

D
P

M
10

T
P

M
2.

5E
P

M
2.

5D
P

M
2.

5T
B

C
O

2
N

B
C

O
2

C
O

2T
C

H
4

N
2O

R
C

O
2e

D
ai

ly
,

S
um

m
er

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

U
nm

it.
0.

96
2.

57
6.

71
7.

81
0.

02
0.

24
0.

39
0.

55
0.

21
0.

08
0.

27
—

1,
85

3
1,

85
3

0.
11

0.
12

1.
85

1,
87

5

D
ai

ly
,

W
in

te
r

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

U
nm

it.
1.

01
2.

61
7.

15
7.

81
0.

02
0.

26
0.

39
0.

55
0.

24
0.

08
0.

30
—

1,
85

4
1,

85
4

0.
11

0.
12

0.
05

1,
87

6

A
ve

ra
ge

D
ai

ly
(M

ax
)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

U
nm

it.
0.

59
1.

54
4.

13
4.

77
0.

01
0.

15
0.

14
0.

28
0.

13
0.

03
0.

17
—

1,
12

7
1,

12
7

0.
05

0.
04

0.
38

1,
14

1

A
nn

ua
l

(M
ax

)
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

U
nm

it.
0.

11
0.

28
0.

75
0.

87
<

0.
00

5
0.

03
0.

02
0.

05
0.

02
0.

01
0.

03
—

18
7

18
7

0.
01

0.
01

0.
06

18
9

E
xc

ee
ds

(D
ai

ly
M

ax
)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

T
hr

es
ho

l
d

—
75

.0
10

0
55

0
15

0
—

—
15

0
—

—
55

.0
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

U
nm

it.
—

N
o

N
o

N
o

N
o

—
—

N
o

—
—

N
o

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

E
xc

ee
ds

(A
ve

ra
ge

D
ai

ly
)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

210



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

R
es

er
vo

ir
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

8/
30

/2
02

2

9 
/4

6

T
hr

es
ho

l
—

75
.0

10
0

55
0

15
0

—
—

15
0

—
—

55
.0

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

U
nm

it.
—

N
o

N
o

N
o

N
o

—
—

N
o

—
—

N
o

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

E
xc

ee
ds

(A
nn

ua
l)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

T
hr

es
ho

l
d

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

U
nm

it.
—

—
—

—
Ye

s
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

2.
2.

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n
E

m
is

si
on

s
by

Ye
ar

,U
nm

iti
ga

te
d

C
rit

er
ia

P
ol

lu
ta

nt
s

(lb
/d

ay
fo

r
da

ily
,t

on
/y

r
fo

r
an

nu
al

)
an

d
G

H
G

s
(lb

/d
ay

fo
r

da
ily

,M
T

/y
r

fo
r

an
nu

al
)

Ye
ar

TO
G

R
O

G
N

O
x

C
O

S
O

2
P

M
10

E
P

M
10

D
P

M
10

T
P

M
2.

5E
P

M
2.

5D
P

M
2.

5T
B

C
O

2
N

B
C

O
2

C
O

2T
C

H
4

N
2O

R
C

O
2e

D
ai

ly
-

S
um

m
er

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

20
24

0.
62

0.
46

4.
97

5.
61

0.
01

0.
16

0.
39

0.
55

0.
15

0.
08

0.
23

—
1,

40
4

1,
40

4
0.

11
0.

12
1.

85
1,

44
4

20
25

0.
96

2.
57

6.
71

7.
81

0.
02

0.
24

0.
22

0.
46

0.
21

0.
06

0.
27

—
1,

85
3

1,
85

3
0.

08
0.

06
1.

46
1,

87
5

D
ai

ly
-

W
in

te
r

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

20
24

1.
01

2.
61

7.
15

7.
81

0.
02

0.
26

0.
39

0.
55

0.
24

0.
08

0.
30

—
1,

85
4

1,
85

4
0.

11
0.

12
0.

05
1,

87
6

20
25

0.
96

2.
57

6.
73

7.
70

0.
02

0.
24

0.
22

0.
46

0.
21

0.
06

0.
27

—
1,

84
6

1,
84

6
0.

08
0.

06
0.

04
1,

86
7

A
ve

ra
ge

D
ai

ly
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

20
24

0.
18

0.
30

1.
40

1.
54

<
0.

00
5

0.
05

0.
08

0.
13

0.
04

0.
02

0.
06

—
37

8
37

8
0.

02
0.

02
0.

18
38

6

20
25

0.
59

1.
54

4.
13

4.
77

0.
01

0.
15

0.
14

0.
28

0.
13

0.
03

0.
17

—
1,

12
7

1,
12

7
0.

05
0.

04
0.

38
1,

14
1

A
nn

ua
l

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

20
24

0.
03

0.
06

0.
26

0.
28

<
0.

00
5

0.
01

0.
01

0.
02

0.
01

<
0.

00
5

0.
01

—
62

.6
62

.6
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

03
63

.9

20
25

0.
11

0.
28

0.
75

0.
87

<
0.

00
5

0.
03

0.
02

0.
05

0.
02

0.
01

0.
03

—
18

7
18

7
0.

01
0.

01
0.

06
18

9

211



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

R
es

er
vo

ir
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

8/
30

/2
02

2

10
 /

46

2.
4.

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
E

m
is

si
on

s
C

om
pa

re
d

A
ga

in
st

T
hr

es
ho

ld
s

C
rit

er
ia

P
ol

lu
ta

nt
s

(lb
/d

ay
fo

r
da

ily
,t

on
/y

r
fo

r
an

nu
al

)
an

d
G

H
G

s
(lb

/d
ay

fo
r

da
ily

,M
T

/y
r

fo
r

an
nu

al
)

U
n/

M
it.

TO
G

R
O

G
N

O
x

C
O

S
O

2
P

M
10

E
P

M
10

D
P

M
10

T
P

M
2.

5E
P

M
2.

5D
P

M
2.

5T
B

C
O

2
N

B
C

O
2

C
O

2T
C

H
4

N
2O

R
C

O
2e

D
ai

ly
,

S
um

m
er

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

U
nm

it.
0.

37
1.

49
0.

02
2.

11
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

01
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

00
19

.2
19

.2
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

02
19

.6

D
ai

ly
,

W
in

te
r

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

U
nm

it.
<

0.
00

5
1.

15
<

0.
00

5
0.

03
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

00
10

.3
10

.3
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
10

.4

A
ve

ra
ge

D
ai

ly
(M

ax
)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

U
nm

it.
0.

26
1.

39
0.

01
1.

45
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

00
14

.3
14

.3
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

01
14

.6

A
nn

ua
l

(M
ax

)
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

U
nm

it.
0.

05
0.

25
<

0.
00

5
0.

26
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

00
2.

37
2.

37
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
2.

41

E
xc

ee
ds

(D
ai

ly
M

ax
)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

T
hr

es
ho

l
d

—
55

.0
55

.0
55

0
15

0
—

—
15

0
—

—
55

.0
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

U
nm

it.
—

N
o

N
o

N
o

N
o

—
—

N
o

—
—

N
o

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

E
xc

ee
ds

(A
ve

ra
ge

D
ai

ly
)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

T
hr

es
ho

l
d

—
55

.0
55

.0
55

0
15

0
—

—
15

0
—

—
55

.0
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

U
nm

it.
—

N
o

N
o

N
o

N
o

—
—

N
o

—
—

N
o

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

212



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

R
es

er
vo

ir
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

8/
30

/2
02

2

11
 /

46

2.
5.

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
E

m
is

si
on

s
by

S
ec

to
r,

U
nm

iti
ga

te
d

C
rit

er
ia

P
ol

lu
ta

nt
s

(lb
/d

ay
fo

r
da

ily
,t

on
/y

r
fo

r
an

nu
al

)
an

d
G

H
G

s
(lb

/d
ay

fo
r

da
ily

,M
T

/y
r

fo
r

an
nu

al
)

S
ec

to
r

TO
G

R
O

G
N

O
x

C
O

S
O

2
P

M
10

E
P

M
10

D
P

M
10

T
P

M
2.

5E
P

M
2.

5D
P

M
2.

5T
B

C
O

2
N

B
C

O
2

C
O

2T
C

H
4

N
2O

R
C

O
2e

D
ai

ly
,

S
um

m
er

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

M
ob

ile
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

03
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
—

7.
15

7.
15

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
02

7.
26

A
re

a
0.

37
1.

49
0.

02
2.

09
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
—

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

—
<

0.
00

5
—

8.
58

8.
58

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

—
8.

84

E
ne

rg
y

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
—

0.
00

—
3.

46
3.

46
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
—

3.
48

W
at

er
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00

W
as

te
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00

To
ta

l
0.

37
1.

49
0.

02
2.

11
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

01
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

00
19

.2
19

.2
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

02
19

.6

D
ai

ly
,

W
in

te
r

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

M
ob

ile
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

03
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
—

6.
85

6.
85

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

6.
94

A
re

a
—

1.
15

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

E
ne

rg
y

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
—

0.
00

—
3.

46
3.

46
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
—

3.
48

W
at

er
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00

W
as

te
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00

To
ta

l
<

0.
00

5
1.

15
<

0.
00

5
0.

03
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

00
10

.3
10

.3
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
10

.4

A
ve

ra
ge

D
ai

ly
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

M
ob

ile
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

02
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
—

4.
95

4.
95

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
01

5.
02

A
re

a
0.

25
1.

38
0.

01
1.

43
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
—

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

—
<

0.
00

5
—

5.
88

5.
88

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

—
6.

05

E
ne

rg
y

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
—

0.
00

—
3.

46
3.

46
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
—

3.
48

W
at

er
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00

W
as

te
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00

To
ta

l
0.

26
1.

39
0.

01
1.

45
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

00
14

.3
14

.3
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

01
14

.6

213



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

R
es

er
vo

ir
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

8/
30

/2
02

2

12
 /

46

A
nn

ua
l

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

M
ob

ile
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
—

0.
82

0.
82

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
83

A
re

a
0.

05
0.

25
<

0.
00

5
0.

26
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
—

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

—
<

0.
00

5
—

0.
97

0.
97

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

—
1.

00

E
ne

rg
y

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
—

0.
00

—
0.

57
0.

57
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
—

0.
58

W
at

er
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00

W
as

te
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00

To
ta

l
0.

05
0.

25
<

0.
00

5
0.

26
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

00
2.

37
2.

37
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
2.

41

3.
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

E
m

is
si

on
s

D
et

ai
ls

3.
1.

G
ra

di
ng

(2
02

4)
-

U
nm

iti
ga

te
d

C
rit

er
ia

P
ol

lu
ta

nt
s

(lb
/d

ay
fo

r
da

ily
,t

on
/y

r
fo

r
an

nu
al

)
an

d
G

H
G

s
(lb

/d
ay

fo
r

da
ily

,M
T

/y
r

fo
r

an
nu

al
)

Lo
ca

tio
n

TO
G

R
O

G
N

O
x

C
O

S
O

2
P

M
10

E
P

M
10

D
P

M
10

T
P

M
2.

5E
P

M
2.

5D
P

M
2.

5T
B

C
O

2
N

B
C

O
2

C
O

2T
C

H
4

N
2O

R
C

O
2e

O
ns

ite
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

D
ai

ly
,

S
um

m
er

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

O
ff-

R
oa

d
E

qu
ip

m
en

t0.
43

0.
36

3.
20

3.
82

0.
01

0.
15

—
0.

15
0.

14
—

0.
14

—
57

8
57

8
0.

02
<

0.
00

5
—

58
0

D
us

t
Fr

om
M

at
er

ia
l

M
ov

em
en

t—
—

—
—

—
—

0.
12

0.
12

—
0.

01
0.

01
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

O
ns

ite
tr

uc
k

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

D
ai

ly
,

W
in

te
r

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

O
ff-

R
oa

d
E

qu
ip

m
en

t0.
43

0.
36

3.
20

3.
82

0.
01

0.
15

—
0.

15
0.

14
—

0.
14

—
57

8
57

8
0.

02
<

0.
00

5
—

58
0

214



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

R
es

er
vo

ir
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

8/
30

/2
02

2

13
 /

46

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
0.

01
0.

01
—

0.
12

0.
12

—
—

—
—

—
—

D
us

t
Fr

om
M

at
er

ia
l

M
ov

em
en

t

O
ns

ite
tr

uc
k

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

A
ve

ra
ge

D
ai

ly
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

O
ff-

R
oa

d
E

qu
ip

m
en

t0.
06

0.
05

0.
48

0.
58

<
0.

00
5

0.
02

—
0.

02
0.

02
—

0.
02

—
87

.1
87

.1
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
—

87
.4

D
us

t
Fr

om
M

at
er

ia
l

M
ov

em
en

t—
—

—
—

—
—

0.
02

0.
02

—
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

O
ns

ite
tr

uc
k

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

A
nn

ua
l

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

O
ff-

R
oa

d
E

qu
ip

m
en

t0.
01

0.
01

0.
09

0.
11

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

—
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
—

<
0.

00
5

—
14

.4
14

.4
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
—

14
.5

D
us

t
Fr

om
M

at
er

ia
l

M
ov

em
en

t—
—

—
—

—
—

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

—
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

O
ns

ite
tr

uc
k

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

O
ffs

ite
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

D
ai

ly
,

S
um

m
er

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

W
or

ke
r

0.
05

0.
04

0.
05

0.
75

0.
00

0.
00

0.
01

0.
01

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
14

1
14

1
0.

01
<

0.
00

5
0.

56
14

3

V
en

do
r

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

H
au

lin
g

0.
14

0.
06

1.
72

1.
03

0.
01

0.
01

0.
04

0.
05

0.
01

0.
01

0.
02

—
68

4
68

4
0.

08
0.

11
1.

29
72

1

D
ai

ly
,

W
in

te
r

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

215



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

R
es

er
vo

ir
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

8/
30

/2
02

2

14
 /

46

W
or

ke
r

0.
05

0.
04

0.
06

0.
64

0.
00

0.
00

0.
01

0.
01

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
13

4
13

4
0.

01
<

0.
00

5
0.

01
13

5

V
en

do
r

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

H
au

lin
g

0.
14

0.
05

1.
79

1.
05

0.
01

0.
01

0.
04

0.
05

0.
01

0.
01

0.
02

—
68

7
68

7
0.

08
0.

11
0.

03
72

2

A
ve

ra
ge

D
ai

ly
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

W
or

ke
r

0.
01

0.
01

0.
01

0.
10

0.
00

0.
00

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
20

.5
20

.5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

04
20

.7

V
en

do
r

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

H
au

lin
g

0.
02

0.
01

0.
27

0.
16

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
01

0.
01

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

—
10

3
10

3
0.

01
0.

02
0.

08
10

9

A
nn

ua
l

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

W
or

ke
r

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
02

0.
00

0.
00

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
3.

39
3.

39
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

01
3.

43

V
en

do
r

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

H
au

lin
g

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
05

0.
03

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

—
17

.1
17

.1
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

01
18

.0

3.
3.

B
ui

ld
in

g
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

(2
02

4)
-

U
nm

iti
ga

te
d

C
rit

er
ia

P
ol

lu
ta

nt
s

(lb
/d

ay
fo

r
da

ily
,t

on
/y

r
fo

r
an

nu
al

)
an

d
G

H
G

s
(lb

/d
ay

fo
r

da
ily

,M
T

/y
r

fo
r

an
nu

al
)

Lo
ca

tio
n

TO
G

R
O

G
N

O
x

C
O

S
O

2
P

M
10

E
P

M
10

D
P

M
10

T
P

M
2.

5E
P

M
2.

5D
P

M
2.

5T
B

C
O

2
N

B
C

O
2

C
O

2T
C

H
4

N
2O

R
C

O
2e

O
ns

ite
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

D
ai

ly
,

S
um

m
er

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

D
ai

ly
,

W
in

te
r

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

O
ff-

R
oa

d
E

qu
ip

m
en

t0.
77

0.
64

5.
75

5.
82

0.
01

0.
23

—
0.

23
0.

21
—

0.
21

—
1,

23
2

1,
23

2
0.

05
0.

01
—

1,
23

6

O
ns

ite
tr

uc
k

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

A
ve

ra
ge

D
ai

ly
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

216



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

R
es

er
vo

ir
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

8/
30

/2
02

2

15
 /

46

11
1

—
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
11

1
11

1
—

0.
02

—
0.

02
0.

02
—

0.
02

<
0.

00
5

0.
52

0.
52

0.
06

0.
07

O
ff-

R
oa

d
E

qu
ip

m
en

t

O
ns

ite
tr

uc
k

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

A
nn

ua
l

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

O
ff-

R
oa

d
E

qu
ip

m
en

t0.
01

0.
01

0.
09

0.
10

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

—
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
—

<
0.

00
5

—
18

.4
18

.4
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
—

18
.4

O
ns

ite
tr

uc
k

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

O
ffs

ite
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

D
ai

ly
,

S
um

m
er

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

D
ai

ly
,

W
in

te
r

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

W
or

ke
r

0.
05

0.
04

0.
06

0.
64

0.
00

0.
00

0.
01

0.
01

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
13

4
13

4
0.

01
<

0.
00

5
0.

01
13

5

V
en

do
r

0.
03

0.
01

0.
43

0.
21

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
02

0.
02

<
0.

00
5

0.
01

0.
01

—
35

5
35

5
0.

01
0.

05
0.

02
37

0

H
au

lin
g

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

A
ve

ra
ge

D
ai

ly
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

W
or

ke
r

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
01

0.
06

0.
00

0.
00

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
12

.2
12

.2
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

02
12

.4

V
en

do
r

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
04

0.
02

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

—
32

.0
32

.0
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

04
33

.3

H
au

lin
g

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

A
nn

ua
l

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

W
or

ke
r

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
01

0.
00

0.
00

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
2.

02
2.

02
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
2.

05

V
en

do
r

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
01

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

—
5.

29
5.

29
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

01
5.

52

H
au

lin
g

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

3.
5.

B
ui

ld
in

g
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

(2
02

5)
-

U
nm

iti
ga

te
d

217



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

R
es

er
vo

ir
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

8/
30

/2
02

2

16
 /

46

C
rit

er
ia

P
ol

lu
ta

nt
s

(lb
/d

ay
fo

r
da

ily
,t

on
/y

r
fo

r
an

nu
al

)
an

d
G

H
G

s
(lb

/d
ay

fo
r

da
ily

,M
T

/y
r

fo
r

an
nu

al
)

Lo
ca

tio
n

TO
G

R
O

G
N

O
x

C
O

S
O

2
P

M
10

E
P

M
10

D
P

M
10

T
P

M
2.

5E
P

M
2.

5D
P

M
2.

5T
B

C
O

2
N

B
C

O
2

C
O

2T
C

H
4

N
2O

R
C

O
2e

O
ns

ite
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

D
ai

ly
,

S
um

m
er

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

O
ff-

R
oa

d
E

qu
ip

m
en

t0.
73

0.
61

5.
39

5.
78

0.
01

0.
20

—
0.

20
0.

19
—

0.
19

—
1,

23
2

1,
23

2
0.

05
0.

01
—

1,
23

6

O
ns

ite
tr

uc
k

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

D
ai

ly
,

W
in

te
r

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

O
ff-

R
oa

d
E

qu
ip

m
en

t0.
73

0.
61

5.
39

5.
78

0.
01

0.
20

—
0.

20
0.

19
—

0.
19

—
1,

23
2

1,
23

2
0.

05
0.

01
—

1,
23

6

O
ns

ite
tr

uc
k

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

A
ve

ra
ge

D
ai

ly
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

O
ff-

R
oa

d
E

qu
ip

m
en

t0.
43

0.
36

3.
20

3.
44

0.
01

0.
12

—
0.

12
0.

11
—

0.
11

—
73

3
73

3
0.

03
0.

01
—

73
5

O
ns

ite
tr

uc
k

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

A
nn

ua
l

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

O
ff-

R
oa

d
E

qu
ip

m
en

t0.
08

0.
07

0.
58

0.
63

<
0.

00
5

0.
02

—
0.

02
0.

02
—

0.
02

—
12

1
12

1
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
—

12
2

O
ns

ite
tr

uc
k

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

O
ffs

ite
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

D
ai

ly
,

S
um

m
er

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

W
or

ke
r

0.
05

0.
04

0.
04

0.
70

0.
00

0.
00

0.
01

0.
01

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
13

8
13

8
0.

01
<

0.
00

5
0.

51
14

0

218



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

R
es

er
vo

ir
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

8/
30

/2
02

2

17
 /

46

V
en

do
r

0.
03

0.
01

0.
40

0.
19

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
02

0.
02

<
0.

00
5

0.
01

0.
01

—
34

9
34

9
0.

01
0.

05
0.

96
36

5

H
au

lin
g

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

D
ai

ly
,

W
in

te
r

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

W
or

ke
r

0.
05

0.
04

0.
05

0.
59

0.
00

0.
00

0.
01

0.
01

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
13

1
13

1
0.

01
<

0.
00

5
0.

01
13

3

V
en

do
r

0.
02

0.
01

0.
41

0.
20

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
02

0.
02

<
0.

00
5

0.
01

0.
01

—
34

9
34

9
0.

01
0.

05
0.

02
36

4

H
au

lin
g

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

A
ve

ra
ge

D
ai

ly
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

W
or

ke
r

0.
03

0.
03

0.
03

0.
37

0.
00

0.
00

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
79

.1
79

.1
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

13
80

.2

V
en

do
r

0.
01

0.
01

0.
25

0.
12

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
01

0.
01

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
01

—
20

8
20

8
0.

01
0.

03
0.

25
21

7

H
au

lin
g

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

A
nn

ua
l

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

W
or

ke
r

0.
01

<
0.

00
5

0.
01

0.
07

0.
00

0.
00

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
13

.1
13

.1
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

02
13

.3

V
en

do
r

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
05

0.
02

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

—
34

.4
34

.4
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

04
35

.9

H
au

lin
g

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

3.
7.

P
av

in
g

(2
02

5)
-

U
nm

iti
ga

te
d

C
rit

er
ia

P
ol

lu
ta

nt
s

(lb
/d

ay
fo

r
da

ily
,t

on
/y

r
fo

r
an

nu
al

)
an

d
G

H
G

s
(lb

/d
ay

fo
r

da
ily

,M
T

/y
r

fo
r

an
nu

al
)

Lo
ca

tio
n

TO
G

R
O

G
N

O
x

C
O

S
O

2
P

M
10

E
P

M
10

D
P

M
10

T
P

M
2.

5E
P

M
2.

5D
P

M
2.

5T
B

C
O

2
N

B
C

O
2

C
O

2T
C

H
4

N
2O

R
C

O
2e

O
ns

ite
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

D
ai

ly
,

S
um

m
er

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

D
ai

ly
,

W
in

te
r

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

O
ff-

R
oa

d
E

qu
ip

m
en

t0.
59

0.
49

4.
34

5.
62

0.
01

0.
21

—
0.

21
0.

19
—

0.
19

—
86

7
86

7
0.

04
0.

01
—

87
0

219



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

R
es

er
vo

ir
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

8/
30

/2
02

2

18
 /

46

P
av

in
g

—
0.

00
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

O
ns

ite
tr

uc
k

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

A
ve

ra
ge

D
ai

ly
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

O
ff-

R
oa

d
E

qu
ip

m
en

t0.
02

0.
01

0.
12

0.
15

<
0.

00
5

0.
01

—
0.

01
0.

01
—

0.
01

—
23

.8
23

.8
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
—

23
.8

P
av

in
g

—
0.

00
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

O
ns

ite
tr

uc
k

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

A
nn

ua
l

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

O
ff-

R
oa

d
E

qu
ip

m
en

t<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
02

0.
03

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

—
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
—

<
0.

00
5

—
3.

93
3.

93
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
—

3.
95

P
av

in
g

—
0.

00
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

O
ns

ite
tr

uc
k

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

O
ffs

ite
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

D
ai

ly
,

S
um

m
er

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

D
ai

ly
,

W
in

te
r

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

W
or

ke
r

0.
05

0.
04

0.
05

0.
59

0.
00

0.
00

0.
01

0.
01

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
13

1
13

1
0.

01
<

0.
00

5
0.

01
13

3

V
en

do
r

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
04

0.
02

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

—
31

.7
31

.7
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
33

.1

H
au

lin
g

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

A
ve

ra
ge

D
ai

ly
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

W
or

ke
r

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
02

0.
00

0.
00

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
3.

64
3.

64
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

01
3.

69

V
en

do
r

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

—
0.

87
0.

87
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

91

H
au

lin
g

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

A
nn

ua
l

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

220



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

R
es

er
vo

ir
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

8/
30

/2
02

2

19
 /

46

W
or

ke
r

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
00

0.
00

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

60
0.

60
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

61

V
en

do
r

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

—
0.

14
0.

14
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

15

H
au

lin
g

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

3.
9.

A
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

al
C

oa
tin

g
(2

02
4)

-
U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

C
rit

er
ia

P
ol

lu
ta

nt
s

(lb
/d

ay
fo

r
da

ily
,t

on
/y

r
fo

r
an

nu
al

)
an

d
G

H
G

s
(lb

/d
ay

fo
r

da
ily

,M
T

/y
r

fo
r

an
nu

al
)

Lo
ca

tio
n

TO
G

R
O

G
N

O
x

C
O

S
O

2
P

M
10

E
P

M
10

D
P

M
10

T
P

M
2.

5E
P

M
2.

5D
P

M
2.

5T
B

C
O

2
N

B
C

O
2

C
O

2T
C

H
4

N
2O

R
C

O
2e

O
ns

ite
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

D
ai

ly
,

S
um

m
er

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

D
ai

ly
,

W
in

te
r

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

O
ff-

R
oa

d
E

qu
ip

m
en

t0.
17

0.
14

0.
91

1.
15

<
0.

00
5

0.
03

—
0.

03
0.

03
—

0.
03

—
13

4
13

4
0.

01
<

0.
00

5
—

13
4

A
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

al
C

oa
tin

gs

—
1.

78
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

O
ns

ite
tr

uc
k

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

A
ve

ra
ge

D
ai

ly
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

O
ff-

R
oa

d
E

qu
ip

m
en

t0.
01

0.
01

0.
08

0.
10

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

—
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
—

<
0.

00
5

—
12

.0
12

.0
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
—

12
.1

A
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

al
C

oa
tin

gs

—
0.

16
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

O
ns

ite
tr

uc
k

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

A
nn

ua
l

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

221



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

R
es

er
vo

ir
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

8/
30

/2
02

2

20
 /

46

2.
00

—
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
1.

99
1.

99
—

<
0.

00
5

—
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
—

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
02

0.
01

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

O
ff-

R
oa

d
E

qu
ip

m
en

t

A
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

al
C

oa
tin

gs

—
0.

03
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

O
ns

ite
tr

uc
k

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

O
ffs

ite
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

D
ai

ly
,

S
um

m
er

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

D
ai

ly
,

W
in

te
r

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

W
or

ke
r

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

V
en

do
r

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

H
au

lin
g

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

A
ve

ra
ge

D
ai

ly
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

W
or

ke
r

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

V
en

do
r

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

H
au

lin
g

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

A
nn

ua
l

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

W
or

ke
r

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

V
en

do
r

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

H
au

lin
g

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

3.
11

.A
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

al
C

oa
tin

g
(2

02
5)

-
U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

C
rit

er
ia

P
ol

lu
ta

nt
s

(lb
/d

ay
fo

r
da

ily
,t

on
/y

r
fo

r
an

nu
al

)
an

d
G

H
G

s
(lb

/d
ay

fo
r

da
ily

,M
T

/y
r

fo
r

an
nu

al
)

Lo
ca

tio
n

TO
G

R
O

G
N

O
x

C
O

S
O

2
P

M
10

E
P

M
10

D
P

M
10

T
P

M
2.

5E
P

M
2.

5D
P

M
2.

5T
B

C
O

2
N

B
C

O
2

C
O

2T
C

H
4

N
2O

R
C

O
2e

222



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

R
es

er
vo

ir
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

8/
30

/2
02

2

21
 /

46

O
ns

ite
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

D
ai

ly
,

S
um

m
er

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

O
ff-

R
oa

d
E

qu
ip

m
en

t0.
15

0.
13

0.
88

1.
14

<
0.

00
5

0.
03

—
0.

03
0.

03
—

0.
03

—
13

4
13

4
0.

01
<

0.
00

5
—

13
4

A
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

al
C

oa
tin

gs

—
1.

78
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

O
ns

ite
tr

uc
k

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

D
ai

ly
,

W
in

te
r

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

O
ff-

R
oa

d
E

qu
ip

m
en

t0.
15

0.
13

0.
88

1.
14

<
0.

00
5

0.
03

—
0.

03
0.

03
—

0.
03

—
13

4
13

4
0.

01
<

0.
00

5
—

13
4

A
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

al
C

oa
tin

gs

—
1.

78
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

O
ns

ite
tr

uc
k

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

A
ve

ra
ge

D
ai

ly
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

O
ff-

R
oa

d
E

qu
ip

m
en

t0.
09

0.
08

0.
52

0.
68

<
0.

00
5

0.
02

—
0.

02
0.

02
—

0.
02

—
79

.4
79

.4
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
—

79
.7

A
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

al
C

oa
tin

gs

—
1.

06
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

O
ns

ite
tr

uc
k

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

A
nn

ua
l

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

O
ff-

R
oa

d
E

qu
ip

m
en

t0.
02

0.
01

0.
10

0.
12

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

—
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
—

<
0.

00
5

—
13

.2
13

.2
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
—

13
.2

223



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

R
es

er
vo

ir
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

8/
30

/2
02

2

22
 /

46

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

0.
19

—
A

rc
hi

te
ct

ur
al

C
oa

tin
gs

O
ns

ite
tr

uc
k

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

O
ffs

ite
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

D
ai

ly
,

S
um

m
er

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

W
or

ke
r

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

V
en

do
r

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

H
au

lin
g

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

D
ai

ly
,

W
in

te
r

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

W
or

ke
r

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

V
en

do
r

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

H
au

lin
g

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

A
ve

ra
ge

D
ai

ly
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

W
or

ke
r

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

V
en

do
r

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

H
au

lin
g

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

A
nn

ua
l

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

W
or

ke
r

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

V
en

do
r

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

H
au

lin
g

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

4.
O

pe
ra

tio
ns

E
m

is
si

on
s

D
et

ai
ls

224



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

R
es

er
vo

ir
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

8/
30

/2
02

2

23
 /

46

4.
1.

M
ob

ile
E

m
is

si
on

s
by

La
nd

U
se

4.
1.

1.
U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

C
rit

er
ia

P
ol

lu
ta

nt
s

(lb
/d

ay
fo

r
da

ily
,t

on
/y

r
fo

r
an

nu
al

)
an

d
G

H
G

s
(lb

/d
ay

fo
r

da
ily

,M
T

/y
r

fo
r

an
nu

al
)

La
nd

U
se

TO
G

R
O

G
N

O
x

C
O

S
O

2
P

M
10

E
P

M
10

D
P

M
10

T
P

M
2.

5E
P

M
2.

5D
P

M
2.

5T
B

C
O

2
N

B
C

O
2

C
O

2T
C

H
4

N
2O

R
C

O
2e

D
ai

ly
,

S
um

m
er

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

R
ef

rig
er

a
te

d
W

ar
eh

ou
se

-N
o

R
ai

l

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
03

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

—
7.

15
7.

15
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

02
7.

26

To
ta

l
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

03
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
—

7.
15

7.
15

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
02

7.
26

D
ai

ly
,

W
in

te
r

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

R
ef

rig
er

a
te

d
W

ar
eh

ou
se

-N
o

R
ai

l

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
03

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

—
6.

85
6.

85
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
6.

94

To
ta

l
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

03
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
—

6.
85

6.
85

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

6.
94

A
nn

ua
l

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

R
ef

rig
er

a
te

d
W

ar
eh

ou
se

-N
o

R
ai

l

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

—
0.

82
0.

82
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

83

To
ta

l
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
—

0.
82

0.
82

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
83

4.
2.

E
ne

rg
y

225



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

R
es

er
vo

ir
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

8/
30

/2
02

2

24
 /

46

4.
2.

1.
E

le
ct

ric
ity

E
m

is
si

on
s

B
y

La
nd

U
se

-
U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

C
rit

er
ia

P
ol

lu
ta

nt
s

(lb
/d

ay
fo

r
da

ily
,t

on
/y

r
fo

r
an

nu
al

)
an

d
G

H
G

s
(lb

/d
ay

fo
r

da
ily

,M
T

/y
r

fo
r

an
nu

al
)

La
nd

U
se

TO
G

R
O

G
N

O
x

C
O

S
O

2
P

M
10

E
P

M
10

D
P

M
10

T
P

M
2.

5E
P

M
2.

5D
P

M
2.

5T
B

C
O

2
N

B
C

O
2

C
O

2T
C

H
4

N
2O

R
C

O
2e

D
ai

ly
,

S
um

m
er

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

R
ef

rig
er

a
te

d
W

ar
eh

ou
se

-N
o

R
ai

l

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

3.
46

3.
46

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

—
3.

48

To
ta

l
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
3.

46
3.

46
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
—

3.
48

D
ai

ly
,

W
in

te
r

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

R
ef

rig
er

a
te

d
W

ar
eh

ou
se

-N
o

R
ai

l

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

3.
46

3.
46

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

—
3.

48

To
ta

l
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
3.

46
3.

46
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
—

3.
48

A
nn

ua
l

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

R
ef

rig
er

a
te

d
W

ar
eh

ou
se

-N
o

R
ai

l

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

0.
57

0.
57

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

—
0.

58

To
ta

l
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
0.

57
0.

57
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
—

0.
58

4.
2.

3.
N

at
ur

al
G

as
E

m
is

si
on

s
B

y
La

nd
U

se
-

U
nm

iti
ga

te
d

C
rit

er
ia

P
ol

lu
ta

nt
s

(lb
/d

ay
fo

r
da

ily
,t

on
/y

r
fo

r
an

nu
al

)
an

d
G

H
G

s
(lb

/d
ay

fo
r

da
ily

,M
T

/y
r

fo
r

an
nu

al
)

226



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

R
es

er
vo

ir
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

8/
30

/2
02

2

25
 /

46

C
O

2e
R

N
2O

C
H

4
C

O
2T

N
B

C
O

2
B

C
O

2
P

M
2.

5T
P

M
2.

5D
P

M
2.

5E
P

M
10

T
P

M
10

D
P

M
10

E
S

O
2

C
O

N
O

x
R

O
G

TO
G

La
nd

U
se

D
ai

ly
,

S
um

m
er

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

R
ef

rig
er

a
te

d
W

ar
eh

ou
se

-N
o

R
ai

l

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
—

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
—

0.
00

To
ta

l
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
—

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
—

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00

D
ai

ly
,

W
in

te
r

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

R
ef

rig
er

a
te

d
W

ar
eh

ou
se

-N
o

R
ai

l

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
—

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
—

0.
00

To
ta

l
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
—

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
—

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00

A
nn

ua
l

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

R
ef

rig
er

a
te

d
W

ar
eh

ou
se

-N
o

R
ai

l

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
—

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
—

0.
00

To
ta

l
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
—

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
—

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00

4.
3.

A
re

a
E

m
is

si
on

s
by

S
ou

rc
e

4.
3.

2.
U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

C
rit

er
ia

P
ol

lu
ta

nt
s

(lb
/d

ay
fo

r
da

ily
,t

on
/y

r
fo

r
an

nu
al

)
an

d
G

H
G

s
(lb

/d
ay

fo
r

da
ily

,M
T

/y
r

fo
r

an
nu

al
)

S
ou

rc
e

TO
G

R
O

G
N

O
x

C
O

S
O

2
P

M
10

E
P

M
10

D
P

M
10

T
P

M
2.

5E
P

M
2.

5D
P

M
2.

5T
B

C
O

2
N

B
C

O
2

C
O

2T
C

H
4

N
2O

R
C

O
2e

227



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

R
es

er
vo

ir
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

8/
30

/2
02

2

26
 /

46

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

D
ai

ly
,

S
um

m
er

(M
ax

)

A
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

al
C

oa
tin

gs

—
1.

90
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

C
on

su
m

er P
ro

du
ct

s

—
1.

03
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

La
nd

sc
a

pe E
qu

ip
m

e
nt

0.
37

0.
34

0.
02

2.
09

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

—
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
—

<
0.

00
5

—
8.

58
8.

58
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
—

8.
84

To
ta

l
0.

37
3.

27
0.

02
2.

09
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
—

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

—
<

0.
00

5
—

8.
58

8.
58

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

—
8.

84

D
ai

ly
,

W
in

te
r

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

A
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

al
C

oa
tin

gs

—
3.

68
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

C
on

su
m

er P
ro

du
ct

s

—
1.

03
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

To
ta

l
—

4.
71

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

A
nn

ua
l

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

A
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

al
C

oa
tin

gs

—
0.

24
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

C
on

su
m

er P
ro

du
ct

s

—
0.

19
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

La
nd

sc
a

pe E
qu

ip
m

e
nt

0.
05

0.
04

<
0.

00
5

0.
26

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

—
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
—

<
0.

00
5

—
0.

97
0.

97
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
—

1.
00

To
ta

l
0.

05
0.

48
<

0.
00

5
0.

26
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
—

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

—
<

0.
00

5
—

0.
97

0.
97

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

—
1.

00

228



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

R
es

er
vo

ir
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

8/
30

/2
02

2

27
 /

46

4.
4.

W
at

er
E

m
is

si
on

s
by

La
nd

U
se

4.
4.

2.
U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

C
rit

er
ia

P
ol

lu
ta

nt
s

(lb
/d

ay
fo

r
da

ily
,t

on
/y

r
fo

r
an

nu
al

)
an

d
G

H
G

s
(lb

/d
ay

fo
r

da
ily

,M
T

/y
r

fo
r

an
nu

al
)

La
nd

U
se

TO
G

R
O

G
N

O
x

C
O

S
O

2
P

M
10

E
P

M
10

D
P

M
10

T
P

M
2.

5E
P

M
2.

5D
P

M
2.

5T
B

C
O

2
N

B
C

O
2

C
O

2T
C

H
4

N
2O

R
C

O
2e

D
ai

ly
,

S
um

m
er

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

R
ef

rig
er

a
te

d
W

ar
eh

ou
se

-N
o

R
ai

l

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
—

0.
00

To
ta

l
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00

D
ai

ly
,

W
in

te
r

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

R
ef

rig
er

a
te

d
W

ar
eh

ou
se

-N
o

R
ai

l

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
—

0.
00

To
ta

l
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00

A
nn

ua
l

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

R
ef

rig
er

a
te

d
W

ar
eh

ou
se

-N
o

R
ai

l

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
—

0.
00

To
ta

l
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00

4.
5.

W
as

te
E

m
is

si
on

s
by

La
nd

U
se

229



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

R
es

er
vo

ir
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

8/
30

/2
02

2

28
 /

46

4.
5.

2.
U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

C
rit

er
ia

P
ol

lu
ta

nt
s

(lb
/d

ay
fo

r
da

ily
,t

on
/y

r
fo

r
an

nu
al

)
an

d
G

H
G

s
(lb

/d
ay

fo
r

da
ily

,M
T

/y
r

fo
r

an
nu

al
)

La
nd

U
se

TO
G

R
O

G
N

O
x

C
O

S
O

2
P

M
10

E
P

M
10

D
P

M
10

T
P

M
2.

5E
P

M
2.

5D
P

M
2.

5T
B

C
O

2
N

B
C

O
2

C
O

2T
C

H
4

N
2O

R
C

O
2e

D
ai

ly
,

S
um

m
er

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

R
ef

rig
er

a
te

d
W

ar
eh

ou
se

-N
o

R
ai

l

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
—

0.
00

To
ta

l
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00

D
ai

ly
,

W
in

te
r

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

R
ef

rig
er

a
te

d
W

ar
eh

ou
se

-N
o

R
ai

l

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
—

0.
00

To
ta

l
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00

A
nn

ua
l

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

R
ef

rig
er

a
te

d
W

ar
eh

ou
se

-N
o

R
ai

l

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
—

0.
00

To
ta

l
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00

4.
6.

R
ef

rig
er

an
tE

m
is

si
on

s
by

La
nd

U
se

4.
6.

1.
U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

230



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

R
es

er
vo

ir
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

8/
30

/2
02

2

29
 /

46

C
rit

er
ia

P
ol

lu
ta

nt
s

(lb
/d

ay
fo

r
da

ily
,t

on
/y

r
fo

r
an

nu
al

)
an

d
G

H
G

s
(lb

/d
ay

fo
r

da
ily

,M
T

/y
r

fo
r

an
nu

al
)

La
nd

U
se

TO
G

R
O

G
N

O
x

C
O

S
O

2
P

M
10

E
P

M
10

D
P

M
10

T
P

M
2.

5E
P

M
2.

5D
P

M
2.

5T
B

C
O

2
N

B
C

O
2

C
O

2T
C

H
4

N
2O

R
C

O
2e

D
ai

ly
,

S
um

m
er

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

To
ta

l
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

D
ai

ly
,

W
in

te
r

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

To
ta

l
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

A
nn

ua
l

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

To
ta

l
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

4.
7.

O
ffr

oa
d

E
m

is
si

on
s

B
y

E
qu

ip
m

en
tT

yp
e

4.
7.

1.
U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

C
rit

er
ia

P
ol

lu
ta

nt
s

(lb
/d

ay
fo

r
da

ily
,t

on
/y

r
fo

r
an

nu
al

)
an

d
G

H
G

s
(lb

/d
ay

fo
r

da
ily

,M
T

/y
r

fo
r

an
nu

al
)

E
qu

ip
m

e
nt Ty

pe

TO
G

R
O

G
N

O
x

C
O

S
O

2
P

M
10

E
P

M
10

D
P

M
10

T
P

M
2.

5E
P

M
2.

5D
P

M
2.

5T
B

C
O

2
N

B
C

O
2

C
O

2T
C

H
4

N
2O

R
C

O
2e

D
ai

ly
,

S
um

m
er

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

To
ta

l
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

D
ai

ly
,

W
in

te
r

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

To
ta

l
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

A
nn

ua
l

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

To
ta

l
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

231



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

R
es

er
vo

ir
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

8/
30

/2
02

2

30
 /

46

4.
8.

S
ta

tio
na

ry
E

m
is

si
on

s
B

y
E

qu
ip

m
en

tT
yp

e

4.
8.

1.
U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

C
rit

er
ia

P
ol

lu
ta

nt
s

(lb
/d

ay
fo

r
da

ily
,t

on
/y

r
fo

r
an

nu
al

)
an

d
G

H
G

s
(lb

/d
ay

fo
r

da
ily

,M
T

/y
r

fo
r

an
nu

al
)

E
qu

ip
m

e
nt Ty

pe

TO
G

R
O

G
N

O
x

C
O

S
O

2
P

M
10

E
P

M
10

D
P

M
10

T
P

M
2.

5E
P

M
2.

5D
P

M
2.

5T
B

C
O

2
N

B
C

O
2

C
O

2T
C

H
4

N
2O

R
C

O
2e

D
ai

ly
,

S
um

m
er

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

To
ta

l
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

D
ai

ly
,

W
in

te
r

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

To
ta

l
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

A
nn

ua
l

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

To
ta

l
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

4.
9.

U
se

r
D

ef
in

ed
E

m
is

si
on

s
B

y
E

qu
ip

m
en

tT
yp

e

4.
9.

1.
U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

C
rit

er
ia

P
ol

lu
ta

nt
s

(lb
/d

ay
fo

r
da

ily
,t

on
/y

r
fo

r
an

nu
al

)
an

d
G

H
G

s
(lb

/d
ay

fo
r

da
ily

,M
T

/y
r

fo
r

an
nu

al
)

E
qu

ip
m

e
nt Ty

pe

TO
G

R
O

G
N

O
x

C
O

S
O

2
P

M
10

E
P

M
10

D
P

M
10

T
P

M
2.

5E
P

M
2.

5D
P

M
2.

5T
B

C
O

2
N

B
C

O
2

C
O

2T
C

H
4

N
2O

R
C

O
2e

D
ai

ly
,

S
um

m
er

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

To
ta

l
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

D
ai

ly
,

W
in

te
r

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

232



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

R
es

er
vo

ir
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

8/
30

/2
02

2

31
 /

46

To
ta

l
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

A
nn

ua
l

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

To
ta

l
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

4.
10

.S
oi

lC
ar

bo
n

A
cc

um
ul

at
io

n
B

y
V

eg
et

at
io

n
Ty

pe

4.
10

.1
.S

oi
lC

ar
bo

n
A

cc
um

ul
at

io
n

B
y

V
eg

et
at

io
n

Ty
pe

-
U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

C
rit

er
ia

P
ol

lu
ta

nt
s

(lb
/d

ay
fo

r
da

ily
,t

on
/y

r
fo

r
an

nu
al

)
an

d
G

H
G

s
(lb

/d
ay

fo
r

da
ily

,M
T

/y
r

fo
r

an
nu

al
)

V
eg

et
at

io
n

TO
G

R
O

G
N

O
x

C
O

S
O

2
P

M
10

E
P

M
10

D
P

M
10

T
P

M
2.

5E
P

M
2.

5D
P

M
2.

5T
B

C
O

2
N

B
C

O
2

C
O

2T
C

H
4

N
2O

R
C

O
2e

D
ai

ly
,

S
um

m
er

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

To
ta

l
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

D
ai

ly
,

W
in

te
r

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

To
ta

l
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

A
nn

ua
l

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

To
ta

l
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

4.
10

.2
.A

bo
ve

an
d

B
el

ow
gr

ou
nd

C
ar

bo
n

A
cc

um
ul

at
io

n
by

La
nd

U
se

Ty
pe

-
U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

C
rit

er
ia

P
ol

lu
ta

nt
s

(lb
/d

ay
fo

r
da

ily
,t

on
/y

r
fo

r
an

nu
al

)
an

d
G

H
G

s
(lb

/d
ay

fo
r

da
ily

,M
T

/y
r

fo
r

an
nu

al
)

La
nd

U
se

TO
G

R
O

G
N

O
x

C
O

S
O

2
P

M
10

E
P

M
10

D
P

M
10

T
P

M
2.

5E
P

M
2.

5D
P

M
2.

5T
B

C
O

2
N

B
C

O
2

C
O

2T
C

H
4

N
2O

R
C

O
2e

D
ai

ly
,

S
um

m
er

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

To
ta

l
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

233



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

R
es

er
vo

ir
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

8/
30

/2
02

2

32
 /

46

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

D
ai

ly
,

W
in

te
r

(M
ax

)

To
ta

l
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

A
nn

ua
l

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

To
ta

l
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

4.
10

.3
.A

vo
id

ed
an

d
S

eq
ue

st
er

ed
E

m
is

si
on

s
by

S
pe

ci
es

-
U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

C
rit

er
ia

P
ol

lu
ta

nt
s

(lb
/d

ay
fo

r
da

ily
,t

on
/y

r
fo

r
an

nu
al

)
an

d
G

H
G

s
(lb

/d
ay

fo
r

da
ily

,M
T

/y
r

fo
r

an
nu

al
)

S
pe

ci
es

TO
G

R
O

G
N

O
x

C
O

S
O

2
P

M
10

E
P

M
10

D
P

M
10

T
P

M
2.

5E
P

M
2.

5D
P

M
2.

5T
B

C
O

2
N

B
C

O
2

C
O

2T
C

H
4

N
2O

R
C

O
2e

D
ai

ly
,

S
um

m
er

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

A
vo

id
ed

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

S
ub

to
ta

l
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

S
eq

ue
st

er
ed

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

S
ub

to
ta

l
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

R
em

ov
e

d
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

S
ub

to
ta

l
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

D
ai

ly
,

W
in

te
r

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

A
vo

id
ed

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

S
ub

to
ta

l
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

S
eq

ue
st

er
ed

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

S
ub

to
ta

l
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

234



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

R
es

er
vo

ir
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

8/
30

/2
02

2

33
 /

46

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

R
em

ov
e

d S
ub

to
ta

l
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

A
nn

ua
l

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

A
vo

id
ed

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

S
ub

to
ta

l
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

S
eq

ue
st

er
ed

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

S
ub

to
ta

l
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

R
em

ov
e

d
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

S
ub

to
ta

l
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

5.
A

ct
iv

ity
D

at
a

5.
1.

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n
S

ch
ed

ul
e

P
ha

se
N

am
e

P
ha

se
Ty

pe
S

ta
rt

D
at

e
E

nd
D

at
e

D
ay

s
P

er
W

ee
k

W
or

k
D

ay
s

pe
r

P
ha

se
P

ha
se

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

G
ra

di
ng

G
ra

di
ng

9/
2/

20
24

11
/1

5/
20

24
5.

00
55

.0
—

B
ui

ld
in

g
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

B
ui

ld
in

g
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

11
/1

6/
20

24
10

/3
1/

20
25

5.
00

25
0

—

P
av

in
g

P
av

in
g

11
/1

/2
02

5
11

/1
4/

20
25

5.
00

10
.0

—

A
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

al
C

oa
tin

g
A

rc
hi

te
ct

ur
al

C
oa

tin
g

11
/1

6/
20

24
10

/3
1/

20
25

5.
00

25
0

—

5.
2.

O
ff-

R
oa

d
E

qu
ip

m
en

t

5.
2.

1.
U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

P
ha

se
N

am
e

E
qu

ip
m

en
tT

yp
e

F
ue

lT
yp

e
E

ng
in

e
T

ie
r

N
um

be
r

pe
r

D
ay

H
ou

rs
P

er
D

ay
H

or
se

po
w

er
Lo

ad
Fa

ct
or

235



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

R
es

er
vo

ir
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

8/
30

/2
02

2

34
 /

46

G
ra

di
ng

G
ra

de
rs

D
ie

se
l

A
ve

ra
ge

1.
00

4.
00

14
8

0.
41

G
ra

di
ng

Tr
ac

to
rs

/L
oa

de
rs

/B
ac

kh
oe

s
D

ie
se

l
A

ve
ra

ge
1.

00
4.

00
84

.0
0.

37

B
ui

ld
in

g
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

C
ra

ne
s

D
ie

se
l

A
ve

ra
ge

1.
00

6.
00

36
7

0.
29

B
ui

ld
in

g
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

Tr
ac

to
rs

/L
oa

de
rs

/B
ac

kh
oe

s
D

ie
se

l
A

ve
ra

ge
1.

00
6.

00
84

.0
0.

37

B
ui

ld
in

g
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

W
el

de
rs

D
ie

se
l

A
ve

ra
ge

1.
00

8.
00

46
.0

0.
45

P
av

in
g

Tr
ac

to
rs

/L
oa

de
rs

/B
ac

kh
oe

s
D

ie
se

l
A

ve
ra

ge
1.

00
8.

00
84

.0
0.

37

P
av

in
g

P
av

er
s

D
ie

se
l

A
ve

ra
ge

1.
00

4.
00

81
.0

0.
42

P
av

in
g

R
ol

le
rs

D
ie

se
l

A
ve

ra
ge

1.
00

4.
00

36
.0

0.
38

P
av

in
g

C
em

en
ta

nd
M

or
ta

r
M

ix
er

s
D

ie
se

l
A

ve
ra

ge
1.

00
8.

00
10

.0
0.

56

A
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

al
C

oa
tin

g
A

ir
C

om
pr

es
so

rs
D

ie
se

l
A

ve
ra

ge
1.

00
6.

00
37

.0
0.

48

G
ra

di
ng

E
xc

av
at

or
s

D
ie

se
l

A
ve

ra
ge

1.
00

8.
00

36
.0

0.
38

B
ui

ld
in

g
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

D
um

pe
rs

/T
en

de
rs

D
ie

se
l

A
ve

ra
ge

1.
00

1.
00

16
.0

0.
38

P
av

in
g

D
um

pe
rs

/T
en

de
rs

D
ie

se
l

A
ve

ra
ge

1.
00

1.
00

16
.0

0.
38

G
ra

di
ng

D
um

pe
rs

/T
en

de
rs

D
ie

se
l

A
ve

ra
ge

1.
00

1.
00

16
.0

0.
38

B
ui

ld
in

g
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

C
em

en
ta

nd
M

or
ta

r
M

ix
er

s
D

ie
se

l
A

ve
ra

ge
1.

00
8.

00
10

.0
0.

56

P
av

in
g

G
ra

de
rs

D
ie

se
l

A
ve

ra
ge

1.
00

4.
00

14
8

0.
41

5.
3.

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n
V

eh
ic

le
s

5.
3.

1.
U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

P
ha

se
N

am
e

Tr
ip

Ty
pe

O
ne

-W
ay

Tr
ip

s
pe

r
D

ay
M

ile
s

pe
r

Tr
ip

V
eh

ic
le

M
ix

G
ra

di
ng

—
—

—
—

G
ra

di
ng

W
or

ke
r

10
.0

18
.5

LD
A

,L
D

T
1,

LD
T

2

G
ra

di
ng

V
en

do
r

—
10

.2
H

H
D

T,
M

H
D

T

236



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

R
es

er
vo

ir
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

8/
30

/2
02

2

35
 /

46

G
ra

di
ng

H
au

lin
g

79
.5

2.
00

H
H

D
T

G
ra

di
ng

O
ns

ite
tr

uc
k

—
—

H
H

D
T

B
ui

ld
in

g
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

—
—

—
—

B
ui

ld
in

g
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

W
or

ke
r

10
.0

18
.5

LD
A

,L
D

T
1,

LD
T

2

B
ui

ld
in

g
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

V
en

do
r

11
.0

10
.2

H
H

D
T,

M
H

D
T

B
ui

ld
in

g
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

H
au

lin
g

0.
00

20
.0

H
H

D
T

B
ui

ld
in

g
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

O
ns

ite
tr

uc
k

—
—

H
H

D
T

P
av

in
g

—
—

—
—

P
av

in
g

W
or

ke
r

10
.0

18
.5

LD
A

,L
D

T
1,

LD
T

2

P
av

in
g

V
en

do
r

1.
00

10
.2

H
H

D
T,

M
H

D
T

P
av

in
g

H
au

lin
g

0.
00

20
.0

H
H

D
T

P
av

in
g

O
ns

ite
tr

uc
k

—
—

H
H

D
T

A
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

al
C

oa
tin

g
—

—
—

—

A
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

al
C

oa
tin

g
W

or
ke

r
0.

00
18

.5
LD

A
,L

D
T

1,
LD

T
2

A
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

al
C

oa
tin

g
V

en
do

r
—

10
.2

H
H

D
T,

M
H

D
T

A
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

al
C

oa
tin

g
H

au
lin

g
0.

00
20

.0
H

H
D

T

A
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

al
C

oa
tin

g
O

ns
ite

tr
uc

k
—

—
H

H
D

T

5.
4.

V
eh

ic
le

s

5.
4.

1.
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

V
eh

ic
le

C
on

tr
ol

S
tr

at
eg

ie
s

C
on

tr
ol

S
tr

at
eg

ie
s

A
pp

lie
d

P
M

10
R

ed
uc

tio
n

P
M

2.
5

R
ed

uc
tio

n

W
at

er
un

pa
ve

d
ro

ad
s

tw
ic

e
da

ily
55

%
55

%

Li
m

it
ve

hi
cl

e
sp

ee
ds

on
un

pa
ve

d
ro

ad
s

to
25

m
ph

44
%

44
%

S
w

ee
p

pa
ve

d
ro

ad
s

on
ce

pe
r

m
on

th
9%

9%

5.
5.

A
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

al
C

oa
tin

gs

237



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

R
es

er
vo

ir
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

8/
30

/2
02

2

36
 /

46

P
ha

se
N

am
e

R
es

id
en

tia
lI

nt
er

io
r

A
re

a
C

oa
te

d
(s

q
ft)

R
es

id
en

tia
lE

xt
er

io
r

A
re

a
C

oa
te

d
(s

q
ft)

N
on

-R
es

id
en

tia
lI

nt
er

io
r

A
re

a
C

oa
te

d
(s

q
ft)

N
on

-R
es

id
en

tia
lE

xt
er

io
r

A
re

a
C

oa
te

d
(s

q
ft)

P
ar

ki
ng

A
re

a
C

oa
te

d
(s

q
ft)

A
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

al
C

oa
tin

g
0.

00
0.

00
72

,0
00

24
,0

00
—

5.
6.

D
us

tM
iti

ga
tio

n

5.
6.

1.
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

E
ar

th
m

ov
in

g
A

ct
iv

iti
es

P
ha

se
N

am
e

M
at

er
ia

lI
m

po
rt

ed
(C

ub
ic

Ya
rd

s)
M

at
er

ia
lE

xp
or

te
d

(C
ub

ic
Ya

rd
s)

A
cr

es
G

ra
de

d
(a

cr
es

)
M

at
er

ia
lD

em
ol

is
he

d
(s

q.
ft.

)
A

cr
es

P
av

ed
(a

cr
es

)

G
ra

di
ng

0.
00

35
,0

00
27

.5
0.

00
—

P
av

in
g

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

5.
6.

2.
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

E
ar

th
m

ov
in

g
C

on
tr

ol
S

tr
at

eg
ie

s

C
on

tr
ol

S
tr

at
eg

ie
s

A
pp

lie
d

Fr
eq

ue
nc

y
(p

er
da

y)
P

M
10

R
ed

uc
tio

n
P

M
2.

5
R

ed
uc

tio
n

W
at

er
E

xp
os

ed
A

re
a

2
61

%
61

%

5.
7.

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n
P

av
in

g

La
nd

U
se

A
re

a
P

av
ed

(a
cr

es
)

%
A

sp
ha

lt

R
ef

rig
er

at
ed

W
ar

eh
ou

se
-N

o
R

ai
l

0.
00

0%

5.
8.

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n
E

le
ct

ric
ity

C
on

su
m

pt
io

n
an

d
E

m
is

si
on

s
Fa

ct
or

s

kW
h

pe
r

Ye
ar

an
d

E
m

is
si

on
Fa

ct
or

(lb
/M

W
h)

Ye
ar

kW
h

pe
r

Ye
ar

C
O

2
C

H
4

N
2O

20
24

0.
00

53
2

0.
03

<
0.

00
5

20
25

0.
00

53
2

0.
03

<
0.

00
5

5.
9.

O
pe

ra
tio

na
lM

ob
ile

S
ou

rc
es

238



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

R
es

er
vo

ir
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

8/
30

/2
02

2

37
 /

46

5.
9.

1.
U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

La
nd

U
se

Ty
pe

Tr
ip

s/
W

ee
kd

ay
Tr

ip
s/

S
at

ur
da

y
Tr

ip
s/

S
un

da
y

Tr
ip

s/
Ye

ar
V

M
T

/W
ee

kd
ay

V
M

T
/S

at
ur

da
y

V
M

T
/S

un
da

y
V

M
T

/Y
ea

r

R
ef

rig
er

at
ed

W
ar

eh
ou

se
-N

o
R

ai
l

0.
89

0.
00

0.
00

23
2

9.
28

0.
00

0.
00

2,
42

0

5.
10

.O
pe

ra
tio

na
lA

re
a

S
ou

rc
es

5.
10

.1
.H

ea
rt

hs

5.
10

.1
.1

.U
nm

iti
ga

te
d

5.
10

.2
.A

rc
hi

te
ct

ur
al

C
oa

tin
gs

R
es

id
en

tia
lI

nt
er

io
r

A
re

a
C

oa
te

d
(s

q
ft)

R
es

id
en

tia
lE

xt
er

io
r

A
re

a
C

oa
te

d
(s

q
ft)

N
on

-R
es

id
en

tia
lI

nt
er

io
r

A
re

a
C

oa
te

d
(s

q
ft)

N
on

-R
es

id
en

tia
lE

xt
er

io
r

A
re

a
C

oa
te

d
(s

q
ft)

P
ar

ki
ng

A
re

a
C

oa
te

d
(s

q
ft)

0
0.

00
72

,0
00

24
,0

00
—

5.
10

.3
.L

an
ds

ca
pe

E
qu

ip
m

en
t

S
ea

so
n

U
ni

t
V

al
ue

S
no

w
D

ay
s

da
y/

yr
0.

00

S
um

m
er

D
ay

s
da

y/
yr

25
0

5.
11

.O
pe

ra
tio

na
lE

ne
rg

y
C

on
su

m
pt

io
n

5.
11

.1
.U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

E
le

ct
ric

ity
(k

W
h/

yr
)

an
d

C
O

2
an

d
C

H
4

an
d

N
2O

an
d

N
at

ur
al

G
as

(k
B

T
U

/y
r)

La
nd

U
se

E
le

ct
ric

ity
(k

W
h/

yr
)

C
O

2
C

H
4

N
2O

N
at

ur
al

G
as

(k
B

T
U

/y
r)

R
ef

rig
er

at
ed

W
ar

eh
ou

se
-N

o
R

ai
l

3,
65

0
34

6
0.

03
30

0.
00

40
0.

00

239



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

R
es

er
vo

ir
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

8/
30

/2
02

2

38
 /

46

5.
12

.O
pe

ra
tio

na
lW

at
er

an
d

W
as

te
w

at
er

C
on

su
m

pt
io

n

5.
12

.1
.U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

La
nd

U
se

In
do

or
W

at
er

(g
al

/y
ea

r)
O

ut
do

or
W

at
er

(g
al

/y
ea

r)

R
ef

rig
er

at
ed

W
ar

eh
ou

se
-N

o
R

ai
l

0.
00

0.
00

5.
13

.O
pe

ra
tio

na
lW

as
te

G
en

er
at

io
n

5.
13

.1
.U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

La
nd

U
se

W
as

te
(t

on
/y

ea
r)

C
og

en
er

at
io

n
(k

W
h/

ye
ar

)

R
ef

rig
er

at
ed

W
ar

eh
ou

se
-N

o
R

ai
l

0.
00

0.
00

5.
14

.O
pe

ra
tio

na
lR

ef
rig

er
at

io
n

an
d

A
ir

C
on

di
tio

ni
ng

E
qu

ip
m

en
t

5.
14

.1
.U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

La
nd

U
se

Ty
pe

E
qu

ip
m

en
tT

yp
e

R
ef

rig
er

an
t

G
W

P
Q

ua
nt

ity
(k

g)
O

pe
ra

tio
ns

Le
ak

R
at

e
S

er
vi

ce
Le

ak
R

at
e

T
im

es
S

er
vi

ce
d

5.
15

.O
pe

ra
tio

na
lO

ff-
R

oa
d

E
qu

ip
m

en
t

5.
15

.1
.U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

E
qu

ip
m

en
tT

yp
e

F
ue

lT
yp

e
E

ng
in

e
T

ie
r

N
um

be
r

pe
r

D
ay

H
ou

rs
P

er
D

ay
H

or
se

po
w

er
Lo

ad
Fa

ct
or

5.
16

.S
ta

tio
na

ry
S

ou
rc

es

5.
16

.1
.E

m
er

ge
nc

y
G

en
er

at
or

s
an

d
F

ire
P

um
ps

E
qu

ip
m

en
tT

yp
e

F
ue

lT
yp

e
N

um
be

r
pe

r
D

ay
H

ou
rs

pe
r

D
ay

H
ou

rs
pe

r
Ye

ar
H

or
se

po
w

er
Lo

ad
Fa

ct
or

240



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

R
es

er
vo

ir
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

8/
30

/2
02

2

39
 /

46

5.
16

.2
.P

ro
ce

ss
B

oi
le

rs

E
qu

ip
m

en
tT

yp
e

F
ue

lT
yp

e
N

um
be

r
B

oi
le

r
R

at
in

g
(M

M
B

tu
/h

r)
D

ai
ly

H
ea

tI
np

ut
(M

M
B

tu
/d

ay
)

A
nn

ua
lH

ea
tI

np
ut

(M
M

B
tu

/y
r)

5.
17

.U
se

r
D

ef
in

ed

E
qu

ip
m

en
tT

yp
e

F
ue

lT
yp

e

—
—

5.
18

.V
eg

et
at

io
n

5.
18

.1
.L

an
d

U
se

C
ha

ng
e

5.
18

.1
.1

.U
nm

iti
ga

te
d

V
eg

et
at

io
n

La
nd

U
se

Ty
pe

V
eg

et
at

io
n

S
oi

lT
yp

e
In

iti
al

A
cr

es
F

in
al

A
cr

es

5.
18

.1
.B

io
m

as
s

C
ov

er
Ty

pe

5.
18

.1
.1

.U
nm

iti
ga

te
d

B
io

m
as

s
C

ov
er

Ty
pe

In
iti

al
A

cr
es

F
in

al
A

cr
es

5.
18

.2
.S

eq
ue

st
ra

tio
n

5.
18

.2
.1

.U
nm

iti
ga

te
d

Tr
ee

Ty
pe

N
um

be
r

E
le

ct
ric

ity
S

av
ed

(k
W

h/
ye

ar
)

N
at

ur
al

G
as

S
av

ed
(b

tu
/y

ea
r)

6.
C

lim
at

e
R

is
k

D
et

ai
le

d
R

ep
or

t

241



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

R
es

er
vo

ir
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

8/
30

/2
02

2

40
 /

46

6.
1.

C
lim

at
e

R
is

k
S

um
m

ar
y

C
al

-A
da

pt
m

id
ce

nt
ur

y
20

40
–2

05
9

av
er

ag
e

pr
oj

ec
tio

ns
fo

r
fo

ur
ha

za
rd

s
ar

e
re

po
rt

ed
be

lo
w

fo
r

yo
ur

pr
oj

ec
tl

oc
at

io
n.

T
he

se
ar

e
un

de
r

R
ep

re
se

nt
at

io
n

C
on

ce
nt

ra
tio

n
P

at
hw

ay
(R

C
P

)
8.

5
w

hi
ch

as
su

m
es

G
H

G
em

is
si

on
s

w
ill

co
nt

in
ue

to
ris

e
st

ro
ng

ly
th

ro
ug

h
20

50
an

d
th

en
pl

at
ea

u
ar

ou
nd

21
00

.

C
lim

at
e

H
az

ar
d

R
es

ul
tf

or
P

ro
je

ct
Lo

ca
tio

n
U

ni
t

Te
m

pe
ra

tu
re

an
d

E
xt

re
m

e
H

ea
t

22
.9

an
nu

al
da

ys
of

ex
tr

em
e

he
at

E
xt

re
m

e
P

re
ci

pi
ta

tio
n

5.
90

an
nu

al
da

ys
w

ith
pr

ec
ip

ita
tio

n
ab

ov
e

20
m

m

S
ea

Le
ve

lR
is

e
0.

00
m

et
er

s
of

in
un

da
tio

n
de

pt
h

W
ild

fir
e

13
.6

an
nu

al
he

ct
ar

es
bu

rn
ed

Te
m

pe
ra

tu
re

an
d

E
xt

re
m

e
H

ea
td

at
a

ar
e

fo
r

gr
id

ce
ll

in
w

hi
ch

yo
ur

pr
oj

ec
ta

re
lo

ca
te

d.
T

he
pr

oj
ec

tio
n

is
ba

se
d

on
th

e
98

th
hi

st
or

ic
al

pe
rc

en
til

e
of

da
ily

m
ax

im
um

/m
in

im
um

te
m

pe
ra

tu
re

s
fr

om
ob

se
rv

ed
hi

st
or

ic
al

da
ta

(3
2

cl
im

at
e

m
od

el
en

se
m

bl
e

fr
om

C
al

-A
da

pt
,2

04
0–

20
59

av
er

ag
e

un
de

r
R

C
P

8.
5)

. 
E

ac
h

gr
id

ce
ll

is
6

ki
lo

m
et

er
s

(k
m

)
by

6
km

,o
r

3.
7

m
ile

s
(m

i)
by

3.
7

m
i.

E
xt

re
m

e
P

re
ci

pi
ta

tio
n

da
ta

ar
e

fo
r

th
e

gr
id

ce
ll

in
w

hi
ch

yo
ur

pr
oj

ec
ta

re
lo

ca
te

d.
T

he
th

re
sh

ol
d

of
20

m
m

is
eq

ui
va

le
nt

to
ab

ou
t¾

an
in

ch
of

ra
in

,w
hi

ch
w

ou
ld

be
lig

ht
to

m
od

er
at

e
ra

in
fa

ll
if

re
ce

iv
ed

ov
er

a
fu

ll
da

y
or

he
av

y
ra

in
if

re
ce

iv
ed

ov
er

a
pe

rio
d

of
2

to
4

ho
ur

s.
E

ac
h

gr
id

ce
ll

is
6

ki
lo

m
et

er
s

(k
m

)
by

6
km

,o
r

3.
7

m
ile

s
(m

i)
by

3.
7

m
i.

S
ea

Le
ve

lR
is

e
da

ta
ar

e
fo

r
th

e
gr

id
ce

ll
in

w
hi

ch
yo

ur
pr

oj
ec

ta
re

lo
ca

te
d.

T
he

pr
oj

ec
tio

ns
ar

e
fr

om
R

ad
ke

et
al

.(
20

17
),

as
re

po
rt

ed
in

C
al

-A
da

pt
(2

04
0–

20
59

av
er

ag
e

un
de

r
R

C
P

8.
5)

,a
nd

co
ns

id
er

di
ffe

re
nt

in
cr

em
en

ts
of

se
a

le
ve

lr
is

e
co

up
le

d
w

ith
ex

tr
em

e
st

or
m

ev
en

ts
.U

se
rs

m
ay

se
le

ct
fr

om
fo

ur
m

od
el

si
m

ul
at

io
ns

to
vi

ew
th

e
ra

ng
e

in
po

te
nt

ia
li

nu
nd

at
io

n
de

pt
h

fo
r

th
e

gr
id

ce
ll.

T
he

fo
ur

si
m

ul
at

io
ns

m
ak

e
di

ffe
re

nt
as

su
m

pt
io

ns
ab

ou
te

xp
ec

te
d

ra
in

fa
ll

an
d

te
m

pe
ra

tu
re

ar
e:

W
ar

m
er

/d
rie

r
(H

ad
G

E
M

2-
E

S
),

C
oo

le
r/

w
et

te
r

(C
N

R
M

-C
M

5)
,A

ve
ra

ge
co

nd
iti

on
s

(C
an

E
S

M
2)

,R
an

ge
of

di
ffe

re
nt

ra
in

fa
ll

an
d

te
m

pe
ra

tu
re

po
ss

ib
ili

tie
s

(M
IR

O
C

5)
.E

ac
h

gr
id

ce
ll

is
50

m
et

er
s

(m
)

by
50

m
,o

r
ab

ou
t1

64
fe

et
(f

t)
by

16
4

ft.
W

ild
fir

e
da

ta
ar

e
fo

r
th

e
gr

id
ce

ll
in

w
hi

ch
yo

ur
pr

oj
ec

ta
re

lo
ca

te
d.

T
he

pr
oj

ec
tio

ns
ar

e
fr

om
U

C
D

av
is

,a
s

re
po

rt
ed

in
C

al
-A

da
pt

(2
04

0–
20

59
av

er
ag

e
un

de
r

R
C

P
8.

5)
,a

nd
co

ns
id

er
hi

st
or

ic
al

da
ta

of
cl

im
at

e,
ve

ge
ta

tio
n,

po
pu

la
tio

n
de

ns
ity

,a
nd

la
rg

e
(>

40
0

ha
)

fir
e

hi
st

or
y.

U
se

rs
m

ay
se

le
ct

fr
om

fo
ur

m
od

el
si

m
ul

at
io

ns
to

vi
ew

th
e

ra
ng

e
in

po
te

nt
ia

lw
ild

fir
e

pr
ob

ab
ili

tie
s

fo
r

th
e

gr
id

ce
ll.

T
he

fo
ur

si
m

ul
at

io
ns

m
ak

e
di

ffe
re

nt
as

su
m

pt
io

ns
ab

ou
te

xp
ec

te
d

ra
in

fa
ll

an
d

te
m

pe
ra

tu
re

ar
e:

W
ar

m
er

/d
rie

r
(H

ad
G

E
M

2-
E

S
),

C
oo

le
r/

w
et

te
r

(C
N

R
M

-C
M

5)
,A

ve
ra

ge
co

nd
iti

on
s

(C
an

E
S

M
2)

,R
an

ge
of

di
ffe

re
nt

ra
in

fa
ll

an
d

te
m

pe
ra

tu
re

po
ss

ib
ili

tie
s

(M
IR

O
C

5)
.E

ac
h

gr
id

ce
ll

is
6

ki
lo

m
et

er
s

(k
m

)
by

6
km

,o
r

3.
7

m
ile

s
(m

i)
by

3.
7

m
i.

6.
2.

In
iti

al
C

lim
at

e
R

is
k

S
co

re
s

C
lim

at
e

H
az

ar
d

E
xp

os
ur

e
S

co
re

S
en

si
tiv

ity
S

co
re

A
da

pt
iv

e
C

ap
ac

ity
S

co
re

V
ul

ne
ra

bi
lit

y
S

co
re

Te
m

pe
ra

tu
re

an
d

E
xt

re
m

e
H

ea
t

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

E
xt

re
m

e
P

re
ci

pi
ta

tio
n

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

S
ea

Le
ve

lR
is

e
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

W
ild

fir
e

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

F
lo

od
in

g
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

D
ro

ug
ht

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

S
no

w
pa

ck
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

A
ir

Q
ua

lit
y

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

242



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

R
es

er
vo

ir
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

8/
30

/2
02

2

41
 /

46

T
he

se
ns

iti
vi

ty
sc

or
e

re
fle

ct
s

th
e

ex
te

nt
to

w
hi

ch
a

pr
oj

ec
tw

ou
ld

be
ad

ve
rs

el
y

af
fe

ct
ed

by
ex

po
su

re
to

a
cl

im
at

e
ha

za
rd

.E
xp

os
ur

e
is

ra
te

d
on

a
sc

al
e

of
1

to
5,

w
ith

a
sc

or
e

of
5

re
pr

es
en

tin
g

th
e

gr
ea

te
st

ex
po

su
re

.
T

he
ad

ap
tiv

e
ca

pa
ci

ty
of

a
pr

oj
ec

tr
ef

er
s

to
its

ab
ili

ty
to

m
an

ag
e

an
d

re
du

ce
vu

ln
er

ab
ili

tie
s

fr
om

pr
oj

ec
te

d
cl

im
at

e
ha

za
rd

s.
A

da
pt

iv
e

ca
pa

ci
ty

is
ra

te
d

on
a

sc
al

e
of

1
to

5,
w

ith
a

sc
or

e
of

5
re

pr
es

en
tin

g
th

e
gr

ea
te

st
ab

ili
ty

to
ad

ap
t.

T
he

ov
er

al
lv

ul
ne

ra
bi

lit
y

sc
or

es
ar

e
ca

lc
ul

at
ed

ba
se

d
on

th
e

po
te

nt
ia

li
m

pa
ct

s
an

d
ad

ap
tiv

e
ca

pa
ci

ty
as

se
ss

m
en

ts
fo

r
ea

ch
ha

za
rd

.S
co

re
s

do
no

ti
nc

lu
de

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n
of

cl
im

at
e

ris
k

re
du

ct
io

n
m

ea
su

re
s.

6.
3.

A
dj

us
te

d
C

lim
at

e
R

is
k

S
co

re
s

C
lim

at
e

H
az

ar
d

E
xp

os
ur

e
S

co
re

S
en

si
tiv

ity
S

co
re

A
da

pt
iv

e
C

ap
ac

ity
S

co
re

V
ul

ne
ra

bi
lit

y
S

co
re

Te
m

pe
ra

tu
re

an
d

E
xt

re
m

e
H

ea
t

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

E
xt

re
m

e
P

re
ci

pi
ta

tio
n

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

S
ea

Le
ve

lR
is

e
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

W
ild

fir
e

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

F
lo

od
in

g
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

D
ro

ug
ht

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

S
no

w
pa

ck
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

A
ir

Q
ua

lit
y

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

T
he

se
ns

iti
vi

ty
sc

or
e

re
fle

ct
s

th
e

ex
te

nt
to

w
hi

ch
a

pr
oj

ec
tw

ou
ld

be
ad

ve
rs

el
y

af
fe

ct
ed

by
ex

po
su

re
to

a
cl

im
at

e
ha

za
rd

.E
xp

os
ur

e
is

ra
te

d
on

a
sc

al
e

of
1

to
5,

w
ith

a
sc

or
e

of
5

re
pr

es
en

tin
g

th
e

gr
ea

te
st

ex
po

su
re

.
T

he
ad

ap
tiv

e
ca

pa
ci

ty
of

a
pr

oj
ec

tr
ef

er
s

to
its

ab
ili

ty
to

m
an

ag
e

an
d

re
du

ce
vu

ln
er

ab
ili

tie
s

fr
om

pr
oj

ec
te

d
cl

im
at

e
ha

za
rd

s.
A

da
pt

iv
e

ca
pa

ci
ty

is
ra

te
d

on
a

sc
al

e
of

1
to

5,
w

ith
a

sc
or

e
of

5
re

pr
es

en
tin

g
th

e
gr

ea
te

st
ab

ili
ty

to
ad

ap
t.

T
he

ov
er

al
lv

ul
ne

ra
bi

lit
y

sc
or

es
ar

e
ca

lc
ul

at
ed

ba
se

d
on

th
e

po
te

nt
ia

li
m

pa
ct

s
an

d
ad

ap
tiv

e
ca

pa
ci

ty
as

se
ss

m
en

ts
fo

r
ea

ch
ha

za
rd

.S
co

re
s

in
cl

ud
e

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n
of

cl
im

at
e

ris
k

re
du

ct
io

n
m

ea
su

re
s.

6.
4.

C
lim

at
e

R
is

k
R

ed
uc

tio
n

M
ea

su
re

s

7.
H

ea
lth

an
d

E
qu

ity
D

et
ai

ls

7.
1.

C
al

E
nv

iro
S

cr
ee

n
4.

0
S

co
re

s

T
he

m
ax

im
um

C
al

E
nv

iro
S

cr
ee

n
sc

or
e

is
10

0.
A

hi
gh

sc
or

e
(i.

e.
,g

re
at

er
th

an
50

)
re

fle
ct

s
a

hi
gh

er
po

llu
tio

n
bu

rd
en

co
m

pa
re

d
to

ot
he

r
ce

ns
us

tr
ac

ts
in

th
e

st
at

e.

In
di

ca
to

r
R

es
ul

tf
or

P
ro

je
ct

C
en

su
s

Tr
ac

t

E
xp

os
ur

e
In

di
ca

to
rs

—

A
Q

-O
zo

ne
84

.6

243



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

R
es

er
vo

ir
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

8/
30

/2
02

2

42
 /

46

A
Q

-P
M

45
.1

A
Q

-D
P

M
24

.4

D
rin

ki
ng

W
at

er
70

.8

Le
ad

R
is

k
H

ou
si

ng
0.

10

P
es

tic
id

es
31

.3

To
xi

c
R

el
ea

se
s

34
.9

Tr
af

fic
88

.0

E
ffe

ct
In

di
ca

to
rs

—

C
le

an
U

p
S

ite
s

0.
00

G
ro

un
dw

at
er

70
.3

H
az

W
as

te
Fa

ci
lit

ie
s/

G
en

er
at

or
s

88
.9

Im
pa

ire
d

W
at

er
B

od
ie

s
66

.7

S
ol

id
W

as
te

97
.3

S
en

si
tiv

e
P

op
ul

at
io

n
—

A
st

hm
a

4.
31

C
ar

di
o-

va
sc

ul
ar

10
.1

Lo
w

B
ir

th
W

ei
gh

ts
61

.9

S
oc

io
ec

on
om

ic
Fa

ct
or

In
di

ca
to

rs
—

E
du

ca
tio

n
9.

29

H
ou

si
ng

23
.4

Li
ng

ui
st

ic
37

.7

P
ov

er
ty

5.
09

U
ne

m
pl

oy
m

en
t

21
.1

7.
2.

H
ea

lth
y

P
la

ce
s

In
de

x
S

co
re

s

T
he

m
ax

im
um

H
ea

lth
P

la
ce

s
In

de
x

sc
or

e
is

10
0.

A
hi

gh
sc

or
e

(i.
e.

,g
re

at
er

th
an

50
)

re
fle

ct
s

he
al

th
ie

r
co

m
m

un
ity

co
nd

iti
on

s
co

m
pa

re
d

to
ot

he
r

ce
ns

us
tr

ac
ts

in
th

e
st

at
e.

In
di

ca
to

r
R

es
ul

tf
or

P
ro

je
ct

C
en

su
s

Tr
ac

t

244



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

R
es

er
vo

ir
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

8/
30

/2
02

2

43
 /

46

E
co

no
m

ic
—

A
bo

ve
P

ov
er

ty
93

.6
73

80
98

3

E
m

pl
oy

ed
76

.7
86

86

E
du

ca
tio

n
—

B
ac

he
lo

r's
or

hi
gh

er
84

.9
73

69
43

4

H
ig

h
sc

ho
ol

en
ro

llm
en

t
21

.0
57

35
91

7

P
re

sc
ho

ol
en

ro
llm

en
t

58
.1

93
25

03
5

Tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n
—

A
ut

o
A

cc
es

s
98

.9
86

26
97

3

A
ct

iv
e

co
m

m
ut

in
g

34
.7

36
30

18
1

S
oc

ia
l

—

2-
pa

re
nt

ho
us

eh
ol

ds
74

.3
87

27
06

3

V
ot

in
g

67
.3

93
81

49
6

N
ei

gh
bo

rh
oo

d
—

A
lc

oh
ol

av
ai

la
bi

lit
y

92
.4

67
59

91
3

P
ar

k
ac

ce
ss

36
.7

63
76

23
5

R
et

ai
ld

en
si

ty
47

.7
73

64
30

1

S
up

er
m

ar
ke

ta
cc

es
s

23
.2

25
97

20
3

Tr
ee

ca
no

py
62

.7
48

62
05

6

H
ou

si
ng

—

H
om

eo
w

ne
rs

hi
p

68
.5

74
36

16
1

H
ou

si
ng

ha
bi

ta
bi

lit
y

81
.3

03
73

41
2

Lo
w

-in
c

ho
m

eo
w

ne
r

se
ve

re
ho

us
in

g
co

st
bu

rd
en

60
.4

64
51

94
4

Lo
w

-in
c

re
nt

er
se

ve
re

ho
us

in
g

co
st

bu
rd

en
67

.7
53

11
17

7

U
nc

ro
w

de
d

ho
us

in
g

74
.4

89
92

68
6

H
ea

lth
O

ut
co

m
es

—

In
su

re
d

ad
ul

ts
86

.3
08

22
53

3

245



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

R
es

er
vo

ir
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

8/
30

/2
02

2

44
 /

46

A
rt

hr
iti

s
0.

0

A
st

hm
a

E
R

A
dm

is
si

on
s

98
.4

H
ig

h
B

lo
od

P
re

ss
ur

e
0.

0

C
an

ce
r

(e
xc

lu
di

ng
sk

in
)

0.
0

A
st

hm
a

0.
0

C
or

on
ar

y
H

ea
rt

D
is

ea
se

0.
0

C
hr

on
ic

O
bs

tr
uc

tiv
e

P
ul

m
on

ar
y

D
is

ea
se

0.
0

D
ia

gn
os

ed
D

ia
be

te
s

0.
0

Li
fe

E
xp

ec
ta

nc
y

at
B

ir
th

71
.8

C
og

ni
tiv

el
y

D
is

ab
le

d
87

.2

P
hy

si
ca

lly
 D

is
ab

le
d

81
.6

H
ea

rt
A

tta
ck

E
R

A
dm

is
si

on
s

83
.3

M
en

ta
lH

ea
lth

N
ot

G
oo

d
0.

0

C
hr

on
ic

K
id

ne
y

D
is

ea
se

0.
0

O
be

si
ty

0.
0

P
ed

es
tr

ia
n

In
ju

rie
s

19
.6

P
hy

si
ca

lH
ea

lth
N

ot
G

oo
d

0.
0

S
tr

ok
e

0.
0

H
ea

lth
R

is
k

B
eh

av
io

rs
—

B
in

ge
D

rin
ki

ng
0.

0

C
ur

re
nt

S
m

ok
er

0.
0

N
o

Le
is

ur
e

T
im

e
fo

r
P

hy
si

ca
lA

ct
iv

ity
0.

0

C
lim

at
e

C
ha

ng
e

E
xp

os
ur

es
—

W
ild

fir
e

R
is

k
88

.1

S
LR

In
un

da
tio

n
A

re
a

0.
0

C
hi

ld
re

n
92

.2

E
ld

er
ly

92
.1

246



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

R
es

er
vo

ir
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

8/
30

/2
02

2

45
 /

46

E
ng

lis
h

S
pe

ak
in

g
69

.3

F
or

ei
gn

-b
or

n
49

.0

O
ut

do
or

W
or

ke
rs

66
.6

C
lim

at
e

C
ha

ng
e

A
da

pt
iv

e
C

ap
ac

ity
—

Im
pe

rv
io

us
S

ur
fa

ce
C

ov
er

89
.1

Tr
af

fic
D

en
si

ty
75

.3

Tr
af

fic
A

cc
es

s
23

.0

O
th

er
In

di
ce

s
—

H
ar

ds
hi

p
14

.5

O
th

er
D

ec
is

io
n

S
up

po
rt

—

20
16

V
ot

in
g

38
.9

7.
3.

O
ve

ra
ll

H
ea

lth
&

E
qu

ity
S

co
re

s

M
et

ric
R

es
ul

tf
or

P
ro

je
ct

C
en

su
s

Tr
ac

t

C
al

E
nv

iro
S

cr
ee

n
4.

0
S

co
re

fo
r

P
ro

je
ct

Lo
ca

tio
n

(a
)

26
.0

H
ea

lth
y

P
la

ce
s

In
de

x
S

co
re

fo
r

P
ro

je
ct

Lo
ca

tio
n

(b
)

87
.0

P
ro

je
ct

Lo
ca

te
d

in
a

D
es

ig
na

te
d

D
is

ad
va

nt
ag

ed
C

om
m

un
ity

(S
en

at
e

B
ill

53
5)

N
o

P
ro

je
ct

Lo
ca

te
d

in
a

Lo
w

-I
nc

om
e

C
om

m
un

ity
(A

ss
em

bl
y

B
ill

15
50

)
N

o

P
ro

je
ct

Lo
ca

te
d

in
a

C
om

m
un

ity
A

ir
P

ro
te

ct
io

n
P

ro
gr

am
C

om
m

un
ity

(A
ss

em
bl

y
B

ill
61

7)
N

o

a:
T

he
m

ax
im

um
C

al
E

nv
iro

S
cr

ee
n

sc
or

e
is

10
0.

A
hi

gh
sc

or
e

(i.
e.

,g
re

at
er

th
an

50
)

re
fle

ct
s

a
hi

gh
er

po
llu

tio
n

bu
rd

en
co

m
pa

re
d

to
ot

he
r

ce
ns

us
tr

ac
ts

in
th

e
st

at
e.

b:
T

he
m

ax
im

um
H

ea
lth

P
la

ce
s

In
de

x
sc

or
e

is
10

0.
A

hi
gh

sc
or

e
(i.

e.
,g

re
at

er
th

an
50

)
re

fle
ct

s
he

al
th

ie
r

co
m

m
un

ity
co

nd
iti

on
s

co
m

pa
re

d
to

ot
he

r
ce

ns
us

tr
ac

ts
in

th
e

st
at

e.

7.
4.

H
ea

lth
&

E
qu

ity
M

ea
su

re
s

N
o

H
ea

lth
&

E
qu

ity
M

ea
su

re
s

se
le

ct
ed

.

7.
5.

E
va

lu
at

io
n

S
co

re
ca

rd

H
ea

lth
an

d
E

qu
ity

E
va

lu
at

io
n

S
co

re
ca

rd
no

tc
om

pl
et

ed
.

247



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

R
es

er
vo

ir
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

8/
30

/2
02

2

46
 /

46

8.
U

se
r

C
ha

ng
es

to
D

ef
au

lt
D

at
a

S
cr

ee
n

Ju
st

ifi
ca

tio
n

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n:
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

P
ha

se
s

P
er

P
ro

je
ct

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n.

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n:
O

ff-
R

oa
d

E
qu

ip
m

en
t

P
er

pr
oj

ec
td

es
cr

ip
tio

n.

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n:
Tr

ip
s

an
d

V
M

T
P

er
pr

oj
ec

td
es

cr
ip

tio
n.

N
o

se
pa

ra
te

w
or

ke
r

tr
ip

s
fo

r
ar

ch
ite

ct
ur

al
co

at
in

g.

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
:V

eh
ic

le
D

at
a

P
er

pr
oj

ec
td

es
cr

ip
tio

n.

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
:E

ne
rg

y
U

se
P

er
pr

oj
ec

td
es

cr
ip

tio
n.

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
:W

at
er

an
d

W
as

te
W

at
er

P
er

pr
oj

ec
td

es
cr

ip
tio

n

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
:S

ol
id

W
as

te
P

er
pr

oj
ec

td
es

cr
ip

tio
n

La
nd

U
se

P
er

pr
oj

ec
td

es
cr

ip
tio

n.

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n:
D

us
tF

ro
m

M
at

er
ia

lM
ov

em
en

t
P

er
pr

oj
ec

td
es

cr
ip

tio
n.

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
:R

ef
rig

er
an

ts
N

o
re

fr
ig

er
an

ts
.

248



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

P
um

p
S

ta
tio

n
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

10
/2

8/
20

22

1 
/4

8

S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

P
um

p
S

ta
tio

n
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t

Ta
bl

e
of

C
on

te
nt

s

1.
B

as
ic

P
ro

je
ct

In
fo

rm
at

io
n

1.
1.

B
as

ic
P

ro
je

ct
In

fo
rm

at
io

n

1.
2.

La
nd

U
se

Ty
pe

s

1.
3.

U
se

r-
S

el
ec

te
d

E
m

is
si

on
R

ed
uc

tio
n

M
ea

su
re

s
by

E
m

is
si

on
s

S
ec

to
r

2.
E

m
is

si
on

s
S

um
m

ar
y

2.
1.

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n
E

m
is

si
on

s
C

om
pa

re
d

A
ga

in
st

T
hr

es
ho

ld
s

2.
2.

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n
E

m
is

si
on

s
by

Ye
ar

,U
nm

iti
ga

te
d

2.
4.

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
E

m
is

si
on

s
C

om
pa

re
d

A
ga

in
st

T
hr

es
ho

ld
s

2.
5.

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
E

m
is

si
on

s
by

S
ec

to
r,

U
nm

iti
ga

te
d

3.
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

E
m

is
si

on
s

D
et

ai
ls

3.
1.

S
ite

P
re

pa
ra

tio
n

(2
02

4)
-

U
nm

iti
ga

te
d

3.
3.

G
ra

di
ng

(2
02

4)
-

U
nm

iti
ga

te
d

3.
5.

B
ui

ld
in

g
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

(2
02

4)
-

U
nm

iti
ga

te
d

3.
7.

B
ui

ld
in

g
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

(2
02

5)
-

U
nm

iti
ga

te
d

249



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

P
um

p
S

ta
tio

n
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

10
/2

8/
20

22

2 
/4

8

3.
9.

P
av

in
g

(2
02

5)
-

U
nm

iti
ga

te
d

3.
11

.A
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

al
C

oa
tin

g
(2

02
5)

-
U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

4.
O

pe
ra

tio
ns

E
m

is
si

on
s

D
et

ai
ls

4.
1.

M
ob

ile
E

m
is

si
on

s
by

La
nd

U
se

4.
1.

1.
U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

4.
2.

E
ne

rg
y

4.
2.

1.
E

le
ct

ric
ity

E
m

is
si

on
s

B
y

La
nd

U
se

-
U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

4.
2.

3.
N

at
ur

al
G

as
E

m
is

si
on

s
B

y
La

nd
U

se
-

U
nm

iti
ga

te
d

4.
3.

A
re

a
E

m
is

si
on

s
by

S
ou

rc
e

4.
3.

2.
U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

4.
4.

W
at

er
E

m
is

si
on

s
by

La
nd

U
se

4.
4.

2.
U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

4.
5.

W
as

te
E

m
is

si
on

s
by

La
nd

U
se

4.
5.

2.
U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

4.
6.

R
ef

rig
er

an
tE

m
is

si
on

s
by

La
nd

U
se

4.
6.

1.
U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

4.
7.

O
ffr

oa
d

E
m

is
si

on
s

B
y

E
qu

ip
m

en
tT

yp
e

250



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

P
um

p
S

ta
tio

n
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

10
/2

8/
20

22

3 
/4

8

4.
7.

1.
U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

4.
8.

S
ta

tio
na

ry
E

m
is

si
on

s
B

y
E

qu
ip

m
en

tT
yp

e

4.
8.

1.
U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

4.
9.

U
se

r
D

ef
in

ed
E

m
is

si
on

s
B

y
E

qu
ip

m
en

tT
yp

e

4.
9.

1.
U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

4.
10

.S
oi

lC
ar

bo
n

A
cc

um
ul

at
io

n
B

y
V

eg
et

at
io

n
Ty

pe

4.
10

.1
.S

oi
lC

ar
bo

n
A

cc
um

ul
at

io
n

B
y

V
eg

et
at

io
n

Ty
pe

-
U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

4.
10

.2
.A

bo
ve

an
d

B
el

ow
gr

ou
nd

C
ar

bo
n

A
cc

um
ul

at
io

n
by

La
nd

U
se

Ty
pe

-
U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

4.
10

.3
.A

vo
id

ed
an

d
S

eq
ue

st
er

ed
E

m
is

si
on

s
by

S
pe

ci
es

-
U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

5.
A

ct
iv

ity
D

at
a

5.
1.

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n
S

ch
ed

ul
e

5.
2.

O
ff-

R
oa

d
E

qu
ip

m
en

t

5.
2.

1.
U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

5.
3.

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n
V

eh
ic

le
s

5.
3.

1.
U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

5.
4.

V
eh

ic
le

s

5.
4.

1.
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

V
eh

ic
le

C
on

tr
ol

S
tr

at
eg

ie
s

251



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

P
um

p
S

ta
tio

n
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

10
/2

8/
20

22

4 
/4

8

5.
5.

A
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

al
C

oa
tin

gs

5.
6.

D
us

tM
iti

ga
tio

n

5.
6.

1.
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

E
ar

th
m

ov
in

g
A

ct
iv

iti
es

5.
6.

2.
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

E
ar

th
m

ov
in

g
C

on
tr

ol
S

tr
at

eg
ie

s

5.
7.

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n
P

av
in

g

5.
8.

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n
E

le
ct

ric
ity

C
on

su
m

pt
io

n
an

d
E

m
is

si
on

s
Fa

ct
or

s

5.
9.

O
pe

ra
tio

na
lM

ob
ile

S
ou

rc
es

5.
9.

1.
U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

5.
10

.O
pe

ra
tio

na
lA

re
a

S
ou

rc
es

5.
10

.1
.H

ea
rt

hs

5.
10

.1
.1

.U
nm

iti
ga

te
d

5.
10

.2
.A

rc
hi

te
ct

ur
al

C
oa

tin
gs

5.
10

.3
.L

an
ds

ca
pe

E
qu

ip
m

en
t

5.
11

.O
pe

ra
tio

na
lE

ne
rg

y
C

on
su

m
pt

io
n

5.
11

.1
.U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

5.
12

.O
pe

ra
tio

na
lW

at
er

an
d

W
as

te
w

at
er

C
on

su
m

pt
io

n

5.
12

.1
.U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

252



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

P
um

p
S

ta
tio

n
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

10
/2

8/
20

22

5 
/4

8

5.
13

.O
pe

ra
tio

na
lW

as
te

G
en

er
at

io
n

5.
13

.1
.U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

5.
14

.O
pe

ra
tio

na
lR

ef
rig

er
at

io
n

an
d

A
ir

C
on

di
tio

ni
ng

E
qu

ip
m

en
t

5.
14

.1
.U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

5.
15

.O
pe

ra
tio

na
lO

ff-
R

oa
d

E
qu

ip
m

en
t

5.
15

.1
.U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

5.
16

.S
ta

tio
na

ry
S

ou
rc

es

5.
16

.1
.E

m
er

ge
nc

y
G

en
er

at
or

s
an

d
F

ire
P

um
ps

5.
16

.2
.P

ro
ce

ss
B

oi
le

rs

5.
17

.U
se

r
D

ef
in

ed

5.
18

.V
eg

et
at

io
n

5.
18

.1
.L

an
d

U
se

C
ha

ng
e

5.
18

.1
.1

.U
nm

iti
ga

te
d

5.
18

.1
.B

io
m

as
s

C
ov

er
Ty

pe

5.
18

.1
.1

.U
nm

iti
ga

te
d

5.
18

.2
.S

eq
ue

st
ra

tio
n

5.
18

.2
.1

.U
nm

iti
ga

te
d

253



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

P
um

p
S

ta
tio

n
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

10
/2

8/
20

22

6 
/4

8

6.
C

lim
at

e
R

is
k

D
et

ai
le

d
R

ep
or

t

6.
1.

C
lim

at
e

R
is

k
S

um
m

ar
y

6.
2.

In
iti

al
C

lim
at

e
R

is
k

S
co

re
s

6.
3.

A
dj

us
te

d
C

lim
at

e
R

is
k

S
co

re
s

6.
4.

C
lim

at
e

R
is

k
R

ed
uc

tio
n

M
ea

su
re

s

7.
H

ea
lth

an
d

E
qu

ity
D

et
ai

ls

7.
1.

C
al

E
nv

iro
S

cr
ee

n
4.

0
S

co
re

s

7.
2.

H
ea

lth
y

P
la

ce
s

In
de

x
S

co
re

s

7.
3.

O
ve

ra
ll

H
ea

lth
&

E
qu

ity
S

co
re

s

7.
4.

H
ea

lth
&

E
qu

ity
M

ea
su

re
s

7.
5.

E
va

lu
at

io
n

S
co

re
ca

rd

7.
6.

H
ea

lth
&

E
qu

ity
C

us
to

m
M

ea
su

re
s

8.
U

se
r

C
ha

ng
es

to
D

ef
au

lt
D

at
a

254



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

P
um

p
S

ta
tio

n
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

10
/2

8/
20

22

7 
/4

8

1.
B

as
ic

P
ro

je
ct

In
fo

rm
at

io
n

1.
1.

B
as

ic
P

ro
je

ct
In

fo
rm

at
io

n

D
at

a
F

ie
ld

V
al

ue

P
ro

je
ct

N
am

e
S

C
V

W
at

er
B

ac
kc

ou
nt

ry
P

um
p

S
ta

tio
n

Le
ad

A
ge

nc
y

—

La
nd

U
se

S
ca

le
P

ro
je

ct
/s

ite

A
na

ly
si

s
Le

ve
lf

or
D

ef
au

lts
C

ou
nt

y

W
in

ds
pe

ed
(m

/s
)

2.
50

P
re

ci
pi

ta
tio

n
(d

ay
s)

16
.0

Lo
ca

tio
n

34
.4

24
80

71
82

84
04

,-
11

8.
57

63
26

41
27

36
52

C
ou

nt
y

Lo
s

A
ng

el
es

-S
ou

th
C

oa
st

C
ity

S
an

ta
C

la
rit

a

A
ir

D
is

tr
ic

t
S

ou
th

C
oa

st
A

Q
M

D

A
ir

B
as

in
S

ou
th

C
oa

st

TA
Z

36
98

E
D

F
Z

7

E
le

ct
ric

U
til

ity
S

ou
th

er
n

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
E

di
so

n

G
as

U
til

ity
S

ou
th

er
n

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
G

as

1.
2.

La
nd

U
se

Ty
pe

s

La
nd

U
se

S
ub

ty
pe

S
iz

e
U

ni
t

Lo
tA

cr
ea

ge
B

ui
ld

in
g

A
re

a
(s

q
ft)

La
nd

sc
ap

e
A

re
a

(s
q

ft)
S

pe
ci

al
La

nd
sc

ap
e

A
re

a
(s

q
ft)

P
op

ul
at

io
n

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

R
ef

rig
er

at
ed

W
ar

eh
ou

se
-N

o
R

ai
l

7.
00

10
00

sq
ft

0.
16

7,
00

0
0.

00
—

—
P

um
p

S
ta

tio
n

O
th

er
A

sp
ha

lt
S

ur
fa

ce
s

45
.0

10
00

sq
ft

1.
03

0.
00

0.
00

—
—

—

255



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

P
um

p
S

ta
tio

n
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

10
/2

8/
20

22

8 
/4

8

1.
3.

U
se

r-
S

el
ec

te
d

E
m

is
si

on
R

ed
uc

tio
n

M
ea

su
re

s
by

E
m

is
si

on
s

S
ec

to
r

N
o

m
ea

su
re

s
se

le
ct

ed

2.
E

m
is

si
on

s
S

um
m

ar
y

2.
1.

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n
E

m
is

si
on

s
C

om
pa

re
d

A
ga

in
st

T
hr

es
ho

ld
s

C
rit

er
ia

P
ol

lu
ta

nt
s

(lb
/d

ay
fo

r
da

ily
,t

on
/y

r
fo

r
an

nu
al

)
an

d
G

H
G

s
(lb

/d
ay

fo
r

da
ily

,M
T

/y
r

fo
r

an
nu

al
)

U
n/

M
it.

TO
G

R
O

G
N

O
x

C
O

S
O

2
P

M
10

E
P

M
10

D
P

M
10

T
P

M
2.

5E
P

M
2.

5D
P

M
2.

5T
B

C
O

2
N

B
C

O
2

C
O

2T
C

H
4

N
2O

R
C

O
2e

D
ai

ly
,

S
um

m
er

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

U
nm

it.
2.

06
7.

89
15

.6
14

.7
0.

03
0.

69
2.

71
3.

40
0.

64
1.

34
1.

97
—

4,
24

9
4,

24
9

0.
20

0.
39

5.
59

4,
37

6

D
ai

ly
,

W
in

te
r

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

U
nm

it.
1.

24
1.

04
9.

08
9.

42
0.

02
0.

36
0.

77
1.

13
0.

33
0.

09
0.

42
—

2,
63

0
2,

63
0

0.
11

0.
03

0.
01

2,
64

2

A
ve

ra
ge

D
ai

ly
(M

ax
)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

U
nm

it.
0.

47
0.

61
3.

32
3.

80
0.

01
0.

13
0.

31
0.

44
0.

12
0.

04
0.

15
—

1,
04

1
1,

04
1

0.
04

0.
02

0.
09

1,
04

8

A
nn

ua
l

(M
ax

)
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

U
nm

it.
0.

09
0.

11
0.

61
0.

69
<

0.
00

5
0.

02
0.

06
0.

08
0.

02
0.

01
0.

03
—

17
2

17
2

0.
01

<
0.

00
5

0.
02

17
3

E
xc

ee
ds

(D
ai

ly
M

ax
)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

T
hr

es
ho

l
d

—
75

.0
10

0
55

0
15

0
—

—
15

0
—

—
55

.0
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

U
nm

it.
—

N
o

N
o

N
o

N
o

—
—

N
o

—
—

N
o

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

E
xc

ee
ds

(A
ve

ra
ge

D
ai

ly
)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

256



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

P
um

p
S

ta
tio

n
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

10
/2

8/
20

22

9 
/4

8

T
hr

es
ho

l
—

75
.0

10
0

55
0

15
0

—
—

15
0

—
—

55
.0

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

U
nm

it.
—

N
o

N
o

N
o

N
o

—
—

N
o

—
—

N
o

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

E
xc

ee
ds

(A
nn

ua
l)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

T
hr

es
ho

l
d

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

U
nm

it.
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
Ye

s
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

2.
2.

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n
E

m
is

si
on

s
by

Ye
ar

,U
nm

iti
ga

te
d

C
rit

er
ia

P
ol

lu
ta

nt
s

(lb
/d

ay
fo

r
da

ily
,t

on
/y

r
fo

r
an

nu
al

)
an

d
G

H
G

s
(lb

/d
ay

fo
r

da
ily

,M
T

/y
r

fo
r

an
nu

al
)

Ye
ar

TO
G

R
O

G
N

O
x

C
O

S
O

2
P

M
10

E
P

M
10

D
P

M
10

T
P

M
2.

5E
P

M
2.

5D
P

M
2.

5T
B

C
O

2
N

B
C

O
2

C
O

2T
C

H
4

N
2O

R
C

O
2e

D
ai

ly
-

S
um

m
er

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

20
24

2.
06

1.
73

15
.6

14
.7

0.
03

0.
69

2.
71

3.
40

0.
64

1.
34

1.
97

—
4,

24
9

4,
24

9
0.

20
0.

39
5.

59
4,

37
6

20
25

1.
19

7.
89

8.
59

11
.1

0.
02

0.
34

0.
77

1.
09

0.
32

0.
09

0.
41

—
2,

63
3

2,
63

3
0.

12
0.

16
2.

50
2,

64
5

D
ai

ly
-

W
in

te
r

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

20
24

1.
24

1.
04

9.
08

9.
42

0.
02

0.
36

0.
77

1.
13

0.
33

0.
09

0.
42

—
2,

63
0

2,
63

0
0.

11
0.

03
0.

01
2,

64
2

20
25

1.
19

0.
99

8.
29

9.
32

0.
02

0.
32

0.
77

1.
09

0.
29

0.
09

0.
38

—
2,

63
0

2,
63

0
0.

11
0.

03
0.

01
2,

64
1

A
ve

ra
ge

D
ai

ly
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

20
24

0.
30

0.
25

2.
25

2.
30

0.
01

0.
09

0.
22

0.
31

0.
08

0.
04

0.
13

—
64

2
64

2
0.

03
0.

01
0.

06
64

6

20
25

0.
47

0.
61

3.
32

3.
80

0.
01

0.
13

0.
31

0.
44

0.
12

0.
04

0.
15

—
1,

04
1

1,
04

1
0.

04
0.

02
0.

09
1,

04
8

A
nn

ua
l

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

20
24

0.
06

0.
05

0.
41

0.
42

<
0.

00
5

0.
02

0.
04

0.
06

0.
02

0.
01

0.
02

—
10

6
10

6
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

01
10

7

20
25

0.
09

0.
11

0.
61

0.
69

<
0.

00
5

0.
02

0.
06

0.
08

0.
02

0.
01

0.
03

—
17

2
17

2
0.

01
<

0.
00

5
0.

02
17

3

257



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

P
um

p
S

ta
tio

n
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

10
/2

8/
20

22

10
 /

48

2.
4.

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
E

m
is

si
on

s
C

om
pa

re
d

A
ga

in
st

T
hr

es
ho

ld
s

C
rit

er
ia

P
ol

lu
ta

nt
s

(lb
/d

ay
fo

r
da

ily
,t

on
/y

r
fo

r
an

nu
al

)
an

d
G

H
G

s
(lb

/d
ay

fo
r

da
ily

,M
T

/y
r

fo
r

an
nu

al
)

U
n/

M
it.

TO
G

R
O

G
N

O
x

C
O

S
O

2
P

M
10

E
P

M
10

D
P

M
10

T
P

M
2.

5E
P

M
2.

5D
P

M
2.

5T
B

C
O

2
N

B
C

O
2

C
O

2T
C

H
4

N
2O

R
C

O
2e

D
ai

ly
,

S
um

m
er

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

U
nm

it.
0.

06
0.

23
<

0.
00

5
0.

31
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

00
85

7
85

7
0.

08
0.

01
0.

01
86

2

D
ai

ly
,

W
in

te
r

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

U
nm

it.
<

0.
00

5
0.

18
<

0.
00

5
0.

01
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

00
85

6
85

6
0.

08
0.

01
<

0.
00

5
86

1

A
ve

ra
ge

D
ai

ly
(M

ax
)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

U
nm

it.
0.

04
0.

21
<

0.
00

5
0.

21
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

00
85

6
85

6
0.

08
0.

01
<

0.
00

5
86

1

A
nn

ua
l

(M
ax

)
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

U
nm

it.
0.

01
0.

04
<

0.
00

5
0.

04
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

00
14

2
14

2
0.

01
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
14

3

E
xc

ee
ds

(D
ai

ly
M

ax
)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

T
hr

es
ho

l
d

—
55

.0
55

.0
55

0
15

0
—

—
15

0
—

—
55

.0
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

U
nm

it.
—

N
o

N
o

N
o

N
o

—
—

N
o

—
—

N
o

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

E
xc

ee
ds

(A
ve

ra
ge

D
ai

ly
)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

T
hr

es
ho

l
d

—
55

.0
55

.0
55

0
15

0
—

—
15

0
—

—
55

.0
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

U
nm

it.
—

N
o

N
o

N
o

N
o

—
—

N
o

—
—

N
o

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

258



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

P
um

p
S

ta
tio

n
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

10
/2

8/
20

22

11
 /

48

2.
5.

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
E

m
is

si
on

s
by

S
ec

to
r,

U
nm

iti
ga

te
d

C
rit

er
ia

P
ol

lu
ta

nt
s

(lb
/d

ay
fo

r
da

ily
,t

on
/y

r
fo

r
an

nu
al

)
an

d
G

H
G

s
(lb

/d
ay

fo
r

da
ily

,M
T

/y
r

fo
r

an
nu

al
)

S
ec

to
r

TO
G

R
O

G
N

O
x

C
O

S
O

2
P

M
10

E
P

M
10

D
P

M
10

T
P

M
2.

5E
P

M
2.

5D
P

M
2.

5T
B

C
O

2
N

B
C

O
2

C
O

2T
C

H
4

N
2O

R
C

O
2e

D
ai

ly
,

S
um

m
er

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

M
ob

ile
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

01
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
—

2.
27

2.
27

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
01

2.
31

A
re

a
0.

05
0.

23
<

0.
00

5
0.

30
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
—

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

—
<

0.
00

5
—

1.
25

1.
25

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

—
1.

26

E
ne

rg
y

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
—

0.
00

—
85

4
85

4
0.

08
0.

01
—

85
9

W
at

er
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00

W
as

te
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00

S
ta

tio
na

r
y

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
—

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
—

0.
00

To
ta

l
0.

06
0.

23
<

0.
00

5
0.

31
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

00
85

7
85

7
0.

08
0.

01
0.

01
86

2

D
ai

ly
,

W
in

te
r

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

M
ob

ile
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

01
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
—

2.
18

2.
18

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

2.
21

A
re

a
—

0.
18

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

E
ne

rg
y

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
—

0.
00

—
85

4
85

4
0.

08
0.

01
—

85
9

W
at

er
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00

W
as

te
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00

S
ta

tio
na

r
y

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
—

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
—

0.
00

To
ta

l
<

0.
00

5
0.

18
<

0.
00

5
0.

01
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

00
85

6
85

6
0.

08
0.

01
<

0.
00

5
86

1

A
ve

ra
ge

D
ai

ly
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

M
ob

ile
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

01
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
—

1.
57

1.
57

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

1.
60

A
re

a
0.

04
0.

21
<

0.
00

5
0.

21
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
—

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

—
<

0.
00

5
—

0.
86

0.
86

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

—
0.

86

259



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

P
um

p
S

ta
tio

n
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

10
/2

8/
20

22

12
 /

48

E
ne

rg
y

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
—

0.
00

—
85

4
85

4
0.

08
0.

01
—

85
9

W
at

er
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00

W
as

te
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00

S
ta

tio
na

r
y

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
—

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
—

0.
00

To
ta

l
0.

04
0.

21
<

0.
00

5
0.

21
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

00
85

6
85

6
0.

08
0.

01
<

0.
00

5
86

1

A
nn

ua
l

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

M
ob

ile
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
—

0.
26

0.
26

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
26

A
re

a
0.

01
0.

04
<

0.
00

5
0.

04
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
—

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

—
<

0.
00

5
—

0.
14

0.
14

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

—
0.

14

E
ne

rg
y

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
—

0.
00

—
14

1
14

1
0.

01
<

0.
00

5
—

14
2

W
at

er
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00

W
as

te
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00

S
ta

tio
na

r
y

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
—

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
—

0.
00

To
ta

l
0.

01
0.

04
<

0.
00

5
0.

04
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

00
14

2
14

2
0.

01
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
14

3

3.
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

E
m

is
si

on
s

D
et

ai
ls

3.
1.

S
ite

P
re

pa
ra

tio
n

(2
02

4)
-

U
nm

iti
ga

te
d

C
rit

er
ia

P
ol

lu
ta

nt
s

(lb
/d

ay
fo

r
da

ily
,t

on
/y

r
fo

r
an

nu
al

)
an

d
G

H
G

s
(lb

/d
ay

fo
r

da
ily

,M
T

/y
r

fo
r

an
nu

al
)

Lo
ca

tio
n

TO
G

R
O

G
N

O
x

C
O

S
O

2
P

M
10

E
P

M
10

D
P

M
10

T
P

M
2.

5E
P

M
2.

5D
P

M
2.

5T
B

C
O

2
N

B
C

O
2

C
O

2T
C

H
4

N
2O

R
C

O
2e

O
ns

ite
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

D
ai

ly
,

S
um

m
er

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

O
ff-

R
oa

d
E

qu
ip

m
en

t1.
01

0.
85

6.
94

7.
82

0.
02

0.
32

—
0.

32
0.

30
—

0.
30

—
1,

85
5

1,
85

5
0.

08
0.

02
—

1,
86

2

260



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

P
um

p
S

ta
tio

n
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

10
/2

8/
20

22

13
 /

48

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
0.

02
0.

02
—

0.
21

0.
21

—
—

—
—

—
—

D
us

t
Fr

om
M

at
er

ia
l

M
ov

em
en

t

O
ns

ite
tr

uc
k

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
04

0.
02

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

—
10

.3
10

.3
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

02
10

.9

D
ai

ly
,

W
in

te
r

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

A
ve

ra
ge

D
ai

ly
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

O
ff-

R
oa

d
E

qu
ip

m
en

t0.
01

0.
01

0.
08

0.
09

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

—
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
—

<
0.

00
5

—
20

.3
20

.3
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
—

20
.4

D
us

t
Fr

om
M

at
er

ia
l

M
ov

em
en

t—
—

—
—

—
—

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

—
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

O
ns

ite
tr

uc
k

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

—
0.

11
0.

11
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

12

A
nn

ua
l

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

O
ff-

R
oa

d
E

qu
ip

m
en

t<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
01

0.
02

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

—
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
—

<
0.

00
5

—
3.

37
3.

37
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
—

3.
38

D
us

t
Fr

om
M

at
er

ia
l

M
ov

em
en

t—
—

—
—

—
—

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

—
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

O
ns

ite
tr

uc
k

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

—
0.

02
0.

02
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

02

O
ffs

ite
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

D
ai

ly
,

S
um

m
er

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

W
or

ke
r

0.
02

0.
02

0.
02

0.
30

0.
00

0.
00

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
56

.5
56

.5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

22
57

.3

V
en

do
r

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

H
au

lin
g

0.
18

0.
05

2.
91

1.
12

0.
02

0.
03

0.
17

0.
20

0.
03

0.
06

0.
09

—
2,

32
7

2,
32

7
0.

13
0.

37
5.

35
2,

44
6

261



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

P
um

p
S

ta
tio

n
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

10
/2

8/
20

22

14
 /

48

D
ai

ly
,

W
in

te
r

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

A
ve

ra
ge

D
ai

ly
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

W
or

ke
r

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
00

0.
00

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

60
0.

60
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

60

V
en

do
r

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

H
au

lin
g

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
03

0.
01

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

—
25

.5
25

.5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

03
26

.8

A
nn

ua
l

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

W
or

ke
r

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
00

0.
00

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

10
0.

10
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

10

V
en

do
r

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

H
au

lin
g

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
01

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

—
4.

22
4.

22
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
4.

43

3.
3.

G
ra

di
ng

(2
02

4)
-

U
nm

iti
ga

te
d

C
rit

er
ia

P
ol

lu
ta

nt
s

(lb
/d

ay
fo

r
da

ily
,t

on
/y

r
fo

r
an

nu
al

)
an

d
G

H
G

s
(lb

/d
ay

fo
r

da
ily

,M
T

/y
r

fo
r

an
nu

al
)

Lo
ca

tio
n

TO
G

R
O

G
N

O
x

C
O

S
O

2
P

M
10

E
P

M
10

D
P

M
10

T
P

M
2.

5E
P

M
2.

5D
P

M
2.

5T
B

C
O

2
N

B
C

O
2

C
O

2T
C

H
4

N
2O

R
C

O
2e

O
ns

ite
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

D
ai

ly
,

S
um

m
er

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

O
ff-

R
oa

d
E

qu
ip

m
en

t2.
04

1.
72

15
.6

14
.4

0.
03

0.
69

—
0.

69
0.

64
—

0.
64

—
2,

95
0

2,
95

0
0.

12
0.

02
—

2,
96

0

D
us

t
Fr

om
M

at
er

ia
l

M
ov

em
en

t—
—

—
—

—
—

2.
66

2.
66

—
1.

32
1.

32
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

O
ns

ite
tr

uc
k

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

D
ai

ly
,

W
in

te
r

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

262



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

P
um

p
S

ta
tio

n
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

10
/2

8/
20

22

15
 /

48

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

A
ve

ra
ge

D
ai

ly

O
ff-

R
oa

d
E

qu
ip

m
en

t0.
03

0.
03

0.
26

0.
24

<
0.

00
5

0.
01

—
0.

01
0.

01
—

0.
01

—
48

.5
48

.5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
—

48
.7

D
us

t
Fr

om
M

at
er

ia
l

M
ov

em
en

t—
—

—
—

—
—

0.
04

0.
04

—
0.

02
0.

02
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

O
ns

ite
tr

uc
k

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

A
nn

ua
l

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

O
ff-

R
oa

d
E

qu
ip

m
en

t0.
01

0.
01

0.
05

0.
04

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

—
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
—

<
0.

00
5

—
8.

03
8.

03
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
—

8.
05

D
us

t
Fr

om
M

at
er

ia
l

M
ov

em
en

t—
—

—
—

—
—

0.
01

0.
01

—
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

O
ns

ite
tr

uc
k

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

O
ffs

ite
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

D
ai

ly
,

S
um

m
er

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

W
or

ke
r

0.
02

0.
02

0.
02

0.
30

0.
00

0.
00

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
56

.5
56

.5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

22
57

.3

V
en

do
r

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

H
au

lin
g

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

D
ai

ly
,

W
in

te
r

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

A
ve

ra
ge

D
ai

ly
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

W
or

ke
r

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
00

0.
00

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

89
0.

89
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

91

V
en

do
r

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

263



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

P
um

p
S

ta
tio

n
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

10
/2

8/
20

22

16
 /

48

H
au

lin
g

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

A
nn

ua
l

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

W
or

ke
r

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
00

0.
00

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

15
0.

15
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

15

V
en

do
r

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

H
au

lin
g

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

3.
5.

B
ui

ld
in

g
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

(2
02

4)
-

U
nm

iti
ga

te
d

C
rit

er
ia

P
ol

lu
ta

nt
s

(lb
/d

ay
fo

r
da

ily
,t

on
/y

r
fo

r
an

nu
al

)
an

d
G

H
G

s
(lb

/d
ay

fo
r

da
ily

,M
T

/y
r

fo
r

an
nu

al
)

Lo
ca

tio
n

TO
G

R
O

G
N

O
x

C
O

S
O

2
P

M
10

E
P

M
10

D
P

M
10

T
P

M
2.

5E
P

M
2.

5D
P

M
2.

5T
B

C
O

2
N

B
C

O
2

C
O

2T
C

H
4

N
2O

R
C

O
2e

O
ns

ite
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

D
ai

ly
,

S
um

m
er

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

O
ff-

R
oa

d
E

qu
ip

m
en

t1.
22

1.
02

8.
98

9.
12

0.
02

0.
36

—
0.

36
0.

33
—

0.
33

—
2,

53
4

2,
53

4
0.

10
0.

02
—

2,
54

3

O
ns

ite
tr

uc
k

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
04

0.
02

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

—
10

.3
10

.3
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

02
10

.9

D
ai

ly
,

W
in

te
r

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

O
ff-

R
oa

d
E

qu
ip

m
en

t1.
22

1.
02

8.
98

9.
12

0.
02

0.
36

—
0.

36
0.

33
—

0.
33

—
2,

53
4

2,
53

4
0.

10
0.

02
—

2,
54

3

O
ns

ite
tr

uc
k

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
04

0.
02

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

—
10

.4
10

.4
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
10

.9

A
ve

ra
ge

D
ai

ly
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

O
ff-

R
oa

d
E

qu
ip

m
en

t0.
25

0.
21

1.
86

1.
89

<
0.

00
5

0.
07

—
0.

07
0.

07
—

0.
07

—
52

6
52

6
0.

02
<

0.
00

5
—

52
7

O
ns

ite
tr

uc
k

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
01

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

—
2.

15
2.

15
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
2.

26

A
nn

ua
l

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

264



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

P
um

p
S

ta
tio

n
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

10
/2

8/
20

22

17
 /

48

O
ff-

R
oa

d
E

qu
ip

m
en

t0.
05

0.
04

0.
34

0.
35

<
0.

00
5

0.
01

—
0.

01
0.

01
—

0.
01

—
87

.0
87

.0
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
—

87
.3

O
ns

ite
tr

uc
k

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

—
0.

36
0.

36
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

37

O
ffs

ite
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

D
ai

ly
,

S
um

m
er

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

W
or

ke
r

0.
02

0.
02

0.
02

0.
30

0.
00

0.
00

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
56

.5
56

.5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

22
57

.3

V
en

do
r

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
04

0.
02

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

—
32

.3
32

.3
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

09
33

.7

H
au

lin
g

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

D
ai

ly
,

W
in

te
r

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

W
or

ke
r

0.
02

0.
02

0.
02

0.
26

0.
00

0.
00

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
53

.5
53

.5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

01
54

.2

V
en

do
r

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
04

0.
02

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

—
32

.3
32

.3
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
33

.6

H
au

lin
g

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

A
ve

ra
ge

D
ai

ly
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

W
or

ke
r

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
06

0.
00

0.
00

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
11

.3
11

.3
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

02
11

.4

V
en

do
r

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
01

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

—
6.

69
6.

69
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

01
6.

98

H
au

lin
g

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

A
nn

ua
l

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

W
or

ke
r

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
01

0.
00

0.
00

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
1.

87
1.

87
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
1.

89

V
en

do
r

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

—
1.

11
1.

11
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
1.

16

H
au

lin
g

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

3.
7.

B
ui

ld
in

g
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

(2
02

5)
-

U
nm

iti
ga

te
d

C
rit

er
ia

P
ol

lu
ta

nt
s

(lb
/d

ay
fo

r
da

ily
,t

on
/y

r
fo

r
an

nu
al

)
an

d
G

H
G

s
(lb

/d
ay

fo
r

da
ily

,M
T

/y
r

fo
r

an
nu

al
)

Lo
ca

tio
n

TO
G

R
O

G
N

O
x

C
O

S
O

2
P

M
10

E
P

M
10

D
P

M
10

T
P

M
2.

5E
P

M
2.

5D
P

M
2.

5T
B

C
O

2
N

B
C

O
2

C
O

2T
C

H
4

N
2O

R
C

O
2e

265



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

P
um

p
S

ta
tio

n
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

10
/2

8/
20

22

18
 /

48

O
ns

ite
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

D
ai

ly
,

S
um

m
er

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

O
ff-

R
oa

d
E

qu
ip

m
en

t1.
16

0.
98

8.
20

9.
05

0.
02

0.
32

—
0.

32
0.

29
—

0.
29

—
2,

53
6

2,
53

6
0.

10
0.

02
—

2,
54

5

O
ns

ite
tr

uc
k

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
04

0.
02

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

—
10

.2
10

.2
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

02
10

.7

D
ai

ly
,

W
in

te
r

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

O
ff-

R
oa

d
E

qu
ip

m
en

t1.
16

0.
98

8.
20

9.
05

0.
02

0.
32

—
0.

32
0.

29
—

0.
29

—
2,

53
6

2,
53

6
0.

10
0.

02
—

2,
54

5

O
ns

ite
tr

uc
k

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
04

0.
02

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

—
10

.2
10

.2
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
10

.7

A
ve

ra
ge

D
ai

ly
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

O
ff-

R
oa

d
E

qu
ip

m
en

t0.
41

0.
35

2.
90

3.
20

0.
01

0.
11

—
0.

11
0.

10
—

0.
10

—
89

8
89

8
0.

04
0.

01
—

90
1

O
ns

ite
tr

uc
k

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
01

0.
01

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

—
3.

61
3.

61
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
3.

79

A
nn

ua
l

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

O
ff-

R
oa

d
E

qu
ip

m
en

t0.
08

0.
06

0.
53

0.
58

<
0.

00
5

0.
02

—
0.

02
0.

02
—

0.
02

—
14

9
14

9
0.

01
<

0.
00

5
—

14
9

O
ns

ite
tr

uc
k

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

—
0.

60
0.

60
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

63

O
ffs

ite
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

D
ai

ly
,

S
um

m
er

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

W
or

ke
r

0.
02

0.
02

0.
02

0.
28

0.
00

0.
00

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
55

.3
55

.3
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

20
56

.1

V
en

do
r

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
04

0.
02

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

—
31

.7
31

.7
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

09
33

.2

H
au

lin
g

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

266



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

P
um

p
S

ta
tio

n
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

10
/2

8/
20

22

19
 /

48

D
ai

ly
,

W
in

te
r

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

W
or

ke
r

0.
02

0.
02

0.
02

0.
24

0.
00

0.
00

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
52

.4
52

.4
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

01
53

.1

V
en

do
r

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
04

0.
02

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

—
31

.7
31

.7
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
33

.1

H
au

lin
g

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

A
ve

ra
ge

D
ai

ly
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

W
or

ke
r

0.
01

0.
01

0.
01

0.
09

0.
00

0.
00

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
18

.8
18

.8
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

03
19

.1

V
en

do
r

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
01

0.
01

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

—
11

.2
11

.2
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

01
11

.7

H
au

lin
g

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

A
nn

ua
l

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

W
or

ke
r

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
02

0.
00

0.
00

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
3.

12
3.

12
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

01
3.

16

V
en

do
r

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

—
1.

86
1.

86
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
1.

94

H
au

lin
g

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

3.
9.

P
av

in
g

(2
02

5)
-

U
nm

iti
ga

te
d

C
rit

er
ia

P
ol

lu
ta

nt
s

(lb
/d

ay
fo

r
da

ily
,t

on
/y

r
fo

r
an

nu
al

)
an

d
G

H
G

s
(lb

/d
ay

fo
r

da
ily

,M
T

/y
r

fo
r

an
nu

al
)

Lo
ca

tio
n

TO
G

R
O

G
N

O
x

C
O

S
O

2
P

M
10

E
P

M
10

D
P

M
10

T
P

M
2.

5E
P

M
2.

5D
P

M
2.

5T
B

C
O

2
N

B
C

O
2

C
O

2T
C

H
4

N
2O

R
C

O
2e

O
ns

ite
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

D
ai

ly
,

S
um

m
er

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

O
ff-

R
oa

d
E

qu
ip

m
en

t0.
93

0.
78

7.
45

10
.1

0.
01

0.
33

—
0.

33
0.

31
—

0.
31

—
1,

52
8

1,
52

8
0.

06
0.

01
—

1,
53

4

P
av

in
g

—
0.

18
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

O
ns

ite
tr

uc
k

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

267



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

P
um

p
S

ta
tio

n
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

10
/2

8/
20

22

20
 /

48

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

D
ai

ly
,

W
in

te
r

(M
ax

)

A
ve

ra
ge

D
ai

ly
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

O
ff-

R
oa

d
E

qu
ip

m
en

t0.
04

0.
03

0.
31

0.
42

<
0.

00
5

0.
01

—
0.

01
0.

01
—

0.
01

—
62

.8
62

.8
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
—

63
.0

P
av

in
g

—
0.

01
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

O
ns

ite
tr

uc
k

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

A
nn

ua
l

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

O
ff-

R
oa

d
E

qu
ip

m
en

t0.
01

0.
01

0.
06

0.
08

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

—
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
—

<
0.

00
5

—
10

.4
10

.4
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
—

10
.4

P
av

in
g

—
<

0.
00

5
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

O
ns

ite
tr

uc
k

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

O
ffs

ite
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

D
ai

ly
,

S
um

m
er

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

W
or

ke
r

0.
04

0.
03

0.
03

0.
56

0.
00

0.
00

0.
01

0.
01

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
11

1
11

1
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

40
11

2

V
en

do
r

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

H
au

lin
g

0.
07

0.
01

1.
11

0.
43

0.
01

0.
01

0.
07

0.
08

0.
01

0.
02

0.
03

—
90

1
90

1
0.

05
0.

14
2.

09
94

6

D
ai

ly
,

W
in

te
r

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

A
ve

ra
ge

D
ai

ly
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

W
or

ke
r

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
02

0.
00

0.
00

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
4.

37
4.

37
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

01
4.

43

V
en

do
r

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

H
au

lin
g

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
05

0.
02

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

—
37

.0
37

.0
<

0.
00

5
0.

01
0.

04
38

.8

A
nn

ua
l

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

268



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

P
um

p
S

ta
tio

n
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

10
/2

8/
20

22

21
 /

48

W
or

ke
r

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
00

0.
00

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

72
0.

72
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

73

V
en

do
r

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

H
au

lin
g

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
01

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

—
6.

13
6.

13
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

01
6.

43

3.
11

.A
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

al
C

oa
tin

g
(2

02
5)

-
U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

C
rit

er
ia

P
ol

lu
ta

nt
s

(lb
/d

ay
fo

r
da

ily
,t

on
/y

r
fo

r
an

nu
al

)
an

d
G

H
G

s
(lb

/d
ay

fo
r

da
ily

,M
T

/y
r

fo
r

an
nu

al
)

Lo
ca

tio
n

TO
G

R
O

G
N

O
x

C
O

S
O

2
P

M
10

E
P

M
10

D
P

M
10

T
P

M
2.

5E
P

M
2.

5D
P

M
2.

5T
B

C
O

2
N

B
C

O
2

C
O

2T
C

H
4

N
2O

R
C

O
2e

O
ns

ite
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

D
ai

ly
,

S
um

m
er

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

O
ff-

R
oa

d
E

qu
ip

m
en

t0.
15

0.
13

0.
88

1.
14

<
0.

00
5

0.
03

—
0.

03
0.

03
—

0.
03

—
13

4
13

4
0.

01
<

0.
00

5
—

13
4

A
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

al
C

oa
tin

gs

—
7.

74
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

O
ns

ite
tr

uc
k

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
04

0.
02

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

—
10

.2
10

.2
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

02
10

.7

D
ai

ly
,

W
in

te
r

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

A
ve

ra
ge

D
ai

ly
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

O
ff-

R
oa

d
E

qu
ip

m
en

t<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
02

0.
03

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

—
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
—

<
0.

00
5

—
3.

66
3.

66
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
—

3.
67

A
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

al
C

oa
tin

gs

—
0.

21
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

O
ns

ite
tr

uc
k

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

—
0.

28
0.

28
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

29

A
nn

ua
l

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

269



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

P
um

p
S

ta
tio

n
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

10
/2

8/
20

22

22
 /

48

0.
61

—
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

61
0.

61
—

<
0.

00
5

—
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
—

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
01

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

O
ff-

R
oa

d
E

qu
ip

m
en

t

A
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

al
C

oa
tin

gs

—
0.

04
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

O
ns

ite
tr

uc
k

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

—
0.

05
0.

05
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

05

O
ffs

ite
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

D
ai

ly
,

S
um

m
er

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

W
or

ke
r

0.
02

0.
02

0.
02

0.
28

0.
00

0.
00

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
55

.3
55

.3
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

20
56

.1

V
en

do
r

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

H
au

lin
g

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

D
ai

ly
,

W
in

te
r

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

A
ve

ra
ge

D
ai

ly
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

W
or

ke
r

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
01

0.
00

0.
00

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
1.

46
1.

46
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
1.

48

V
en

do
r

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

H
au

lin
g

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

A
nn

ua
l

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

W
or

ke
r

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
00

0.
00

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

24
0.

24
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

24

V
en

do
r

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

H
au

lin
g

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

4.
O

pe
ra

tio
ns

E
m

is
si

on
s

D
et

ai
ls

4.
1.

M
ob

ile
E

m
is

si
on

s
by

La
nd

U
se

270



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

P
um

p
S

ta
tio

n
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

10
/2

8/
20

22

23
 /

48

4.
1.

1.
U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

C
rit

er
ia

P
ol

lu
ta

nt
s

(lb
/d

ay
fo

r
da

ily
,t

on
/y

r
fo

r
an

nu
al

)
an

d
G

H
G

s
(lb

/d
ay

fo
r

da
ily

,M
T

/y
r

fo
r

an
nu

al
)

La
nd

U
se

TO
G

R
O

G
N

O
x

C
O

S
O

2
P

M
10

E
P

M
10

D
P

M
10

T
P

M
2.

5E
P

M
2.

5D
P

M
2.

5T
B

C
O

2
N

B
C

O
2

C
O

2T
C

H
4

N
2O

R
C

O
2e

D
ai

ly
,

S
um

m
er

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

R
ef

rig
er

a
te

d
W

ar
eh

ou
se

-N
o

R
ai

l

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
01

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

—
2.

27
2.

27
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

01
2.

31

O
th

er
A

sp
ha

lt
S

ur
fa

ce
s

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

To
ta

l
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

01
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
—

2.
27

2.
27

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
01

2.
31

D
ai

ly
,

W
in

te
r

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

R
ef

rig
er

a
te

d
W

ar
eh

ou
se

-N
o

R
ai

l

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
01

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

—
2.

18
2.

18
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
2.

21

O
th

er
A

sp
ha

lt
S

ur
fa

ce
s

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

To
ta

l
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

01
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
—

2.
18

2.
18

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

2.
21

A
nn

ua
l

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

R
ef

rig
er

a
te

d
W

ar
eh

ou
se

-N
o

R
ai

l

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

—
0.

26
0.

26
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
0.

26

271



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

P
um

p
S

ta
tio

n
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

10
/2

8/
20

22

24
 /

48

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
O

th
er

A
sp

ha
lt

S
ur

fa
ce

s

To
ta

l
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
—

0.
26

0.
26

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

0.
26

4.
2.

E
ne

rg
y

4.
2.

1.
E

le
ct

ric
ity

E
m

is
si

on
s

B
y

La
nd

U
se

-
U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

C
rit

er
ia

P
ol

lu
ta

nt
s

(lb
/d

ay
fo

r
da

ily
,t

on
/y

r
fo

r
an

nu
al

)
an

d
G

H
G

s
(lb

/d
ay

fo
r

da
ily

,M
T

/y
r

fo
r

an
nu

al
)

La
nd

U
se

TO
G

R
O

G
N

O
x

C
O

S
O

2
P

M
10

E
P

M
10

D
P

M
10

T
P

M
2.

5E
P

M
2.

5D
P

M
2.

5T
B

C
O

2
N

B
C

O
2

C
O

2T
C

H
4

N
2O

R
C

O
2e

D
ai

ly
,

S
um

m
er

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

R
ef

rig
er

a
te

d
W

ar
eh

ou
se

-N
o

R
ai

l

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

85
4

85
4

0.
08

0.
01

—
85

9

O
th

er
A

sp
ha

lt
S

ur
fa

ce
s

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00

To
ta

l
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
85

4
85

4
0.

08
0.

01
—

85
9

D
ai

ly
,

W
in

te
r

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

R
ef

rig
er

a
te

d
W

ar
eh

ou
se

-N
o

R
ai

l

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

85
4

85
4

0.
08

0.
01

—
85

9

O
th

er
A

sp
ha

lt
S

ur
fa

ce
s

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00

To
ta

l
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
85

4
85

4
0.

08
0.

01
—

85
9

272



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

P
um

p
S

ta
tio

n
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

10
/2

8/
20

22

25
 /

48

A
nn

ua
l

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

R
ef

rig
er

a
te

d
W

ar
eh

ou
se

-N
o

R
ai

l

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

14
1

14
1

0.
01

<
0.

00
5

—
14

2

O
th

er
A

sp
ha

lt
S

ur
fa

ce
s

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00

To
ta

l
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
14

1
14

1
0.

01
<

0.
00

5
—

14
2

4.
2.

3.
N

at
ur

al
G

as
E

m
is

si
on

s
B

y
La

nd
U

se
-

U
nm

iti
ga

te
d

C
rit

er
ia

P
ol

lu
ta

nt
s

(lb
/d

ay
fo

r
da

ily
,t

on
/y

r
fo

r
an

nu
al

)
an

d
G

H
G

s
(lb

/d
ay

fo
r

da
ily

,M
T

/y
r

fo
r

an
nu

al
)

La
nd

U
se

TO
G

R
O

G
N

O
x

C
O

S
O

2
P

M
10

E
P

M
10

D
P

M
10

T
P

M
2.

5E
P

M
2.

5D
P

M
2.

5T
B

C
O

2
N

B
C

O
2

C
O

2T
C

H
4

N
2O

R
C

O
2e

D
ai

ly
,

S
um

m
er

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

R
ef

rig
er

a
te

d
W

ar
eh

ou
se

-N
o

R
ai

l

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
—

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
—

0.
00

O
th

er
A

sp
ha

lt
S

ur
fa

ce
s

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
—

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
—

0.
00

To
ta

l
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
—

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
—

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00

D
ai

ly
,

W
in

te
r

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

R
ef

rig
er

a
te

d
W

ar
eh

ou
se

-N
o

R
ai

l

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
—

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
—

0.
00

273



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

P
um

p
S

ta
tio

n
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

10
/2

8/
20

22

26
 /

48

O
th

er
A

sp
ha

lt
S

ur
fa

ce
s

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
—

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
—

0.
00

To
ta

l
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
—

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
—

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00

A
nn

ua
l

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

R
ef

rig
er

a
te

d
W

ar
eh

ou
se

-N
o

R
ai

l

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
—

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
—

0.
00

O
th

er
A

sp
ha

lt
S

ur
fa

ce
s

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
—

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
—

0.
00

To
ta

l
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
—

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
—

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00

4.
3.

A
re

a
E

m
is

si
on

s
by

S
ou

rc
e

4.
3.

2.
U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

C
rit

er
ia

P
ol

lu
ta

nt
s

(lb
/d

ay
fo

r
da

ily
,t

on
/y

r
fo

r
an

nu
al

)
an

d
G

H
G

s
(lb

/d
ay

fo
r

da
ily

,M
T

/y
r

fo
r

an
nu

al
)

S
ou

rc
e

TO
G

R
O

G
N

O
x

C
O

S
O

2
P

M
10

E
P

M
10

D
P

M
10

T
P

M
2.

5E
P

M
2.

5D
P

M
2.

5T
B

C
O

2
N

B
C

O
2

C
O

2T
C

H
4

N
2O

R
C

O
2e

D
ai

ly
,

S
um

m
er

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

C
on

su
m

er P
ro

du
ct

s

—
0.

15
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

A
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

al
C

oa
tin

gs

—
0.

02
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

La
nd

sc
a

pe E
qu

ip
m

e
nt

0.
05

0.
05

<
0.

00
5

0.
30

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

—
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
—

<
0.

00
5

—
1.

25
1.

25
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
—

1.
26

To
ta

l
0.

05
0.

23
<

0.
00

5
0.

30
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
—

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

—
<

0.
00

5
—

1.
25

1.
25

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

—
1.

26

274



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

P
um

p
S

ta
tio

n
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

10
/2

8/
20

22

27
 /

48

D
ai

ly
,

W
in

te
r

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

C
on

su
m

er P
ro

du
ct

s

—
0.

15
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

A
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

al
C

oa
tin

gs

—
0.

02
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

To
ta

l
—

0.
18

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

A
nn

ua
l

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

C
on

su
m

er P
ro

du
ct

s

—
0.

03
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

A
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

al
C

oa
tin

gs

—
<

0.
00

5
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

La
nd

sc
a

pe E
qu

ip
m

e
nt

0.
01

0.
01

<
0.

00
5

0.
04

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

—
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
—

<
0.

00
5

—
0.

14
0.

14
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
—

0.
14

To
ta

l
0.

01
0.

04
<

0.
00

5
0.

04
<

0.
00

5
<

0.
00

5
—

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

—
<

0.
00

5
—

0.
14

0.
14

<
0.

00
5

<
0.

00
5

—
0.

14

4.
4.

W
at

er
E

m
is

si
on

s
by

La
nd

U
se

4.
4.

2.
U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

C
rit

er
ia

P
ol

lu
ta

nt
s

(lb
/d

ay
fo

r
da

ily
,t

on
/y

r
fo

r
an

nu
al

)
an

d
G

H
G

s
(lb

/d
ay

fo
r

da
ily

,M
T

/y
r

fo
r

an
nu

al
)

La
nd

U
se

TO
G

R
O

G
N

O
x

C
O

S
O

2
P

M
10

E
P

M
10

D
P

M
10

T
P

M
2.

5E
P

M
2.

5D
P

M
2.

5T
B

C
O

2
N

B
C

O
2

C
O

2T
C

H
4

N
2O

R
C

O
2e

D
ai

ly
,

S
um

m
er

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

275



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

P
um

p
S

ta
tio

n
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

10
/2

8/
20

22

28
 /

48

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

R
ef

rig
er

a
te

d
W

ar
eh

ou
R

ai
l

O
th

er
A

sp
ha

lt
S

ur
fa

ce
s

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
—

0.
00

To
ta

l
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00

D
ai

ly
,

W
in

te
r

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

R
ef

rig
er

a
te

d
W

ar
eh

ou
se

-N
o

R
ai

l

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
—

0.
00

O
th

er
A

sp
ha

lt
S

ur
fa

ce
s

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
—

0.
00

To
ta

l
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00

A
nn

ua
l

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

R
ef

rig
er

a
te

d
W

ar
eh

ou
se

-N
o

R
ai

l

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
—

0.
00

O
th

er
A

sp
ha

lt
S

ur
fa

ce
s

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
—

0.
00

To
ta

l
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00

4.
5.

W
as

te
E

m
is

si
on

s
by

La
nd

U
se

4.
5.

2.
U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

C
rit

er
ia

P
ol

lu
ta

nt
s

(lb
/d

ay
fo

r
da

ily
,t

on
/y

r
fo

r
an

nu
al

)
an

d
G

H
G

s
(lb

/d
ay

fo
r

da
ily

,M
T

/y
r

fo
r

an
nu

al
)

276



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

P
um

p
S

ta
tio

n
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

10
/2

8/
20

22

29
 /

48

La
nd

U
se

TO
G

R
O

G
N

O
x

C
O

S
O

2
P

M
10

E
P

M
10

D
P

M
10

T
P

M
2.

5E
P

M
2.

5D
P

M
2.

5T
B

C
O

2
N

B
C

O
2

C
O

2T
C

H
4

N
2O

R
C

O
2e

D
ai

ly
,

S
um

m
er

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

R
ef

rig
er

a
te

d
W

ar
eh

ou
se

-N
o

R
ai

l

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
—

0.
00

O
th

er
A

sp
ha

lt
S

ur
fa

ce
s

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
—

0.
00

To
ta

l
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00

D
ai

ly
,

W
in

te
r

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

R
ef

rig
er

a
te

d
W

ar
eh

ou
se

-N
o

R
ai

l

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
—

0.
00

O
th

er
A

sp
ha

lt
S

ur
fa

ce
s

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
—

0.
00

To
ta

l
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00

A
nn

ua
l

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

R
ef

rig
er

a
te

d
W

ar
eh

ou
se

-N
o

R
ai

l

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
—

0.
00

O
th

er
A

sp
ha

lt
S

ur
fa

ce
s

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
—

0.
00

To
ta

l
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00

277



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

P
um

p
S

ta
tio

n
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

10
/2

8/
20

22

30
 /

48

4.
6.

R
ef

rig
er

an
tE

m
is

si
on

s
by

La
nd

U
se

4.
6.

1.
U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

C
rit

er
ia

P
ol

lu
ta

nt
s

(lb
/d

ay
fo

r
da

ily
,t

on
/y

r
fo

r
an

nu
al

)
an

d
G

H
G

s
(lb

/d
ay

fo
r

da
ily

,M
T

/y
r

fo
r

an
nu

al
)

La
nd

U
se

TO
G

R
O

G
N

O
x

C
O

S
O

2
P

M
10

E
P

M
10

D
P

M
10

T
P

M
2.

5E
P

M
2.

5D
P

M
2.

5T
B

C
O

2
N

B
C

O
2

C
O

2T
C

H
4

N
2O

R
C

O
2e

D
ai

ly
,

S
um

m
er

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

To
ta

l
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

D
ai

ly
,

W
in

te
r

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

To
ta

l
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

A
nn

ua
l

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

To
ta

l
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

4.
7.

O
ffr

oa
d

E
m

is
si

on
s

B
y

E
qu

ip
m

en
tT

yp
e

4.
7.

1.
U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

C
rit

er
ia

P
ol

lu
ta

nt
s

(lb
/d

ay
fo

r
da

ily
,t

on
/y

r
fo

r
an

nu
al

)
an

d
G

H
G

s
(lb

/d
ay

fo
r

da
ily

,M
T

/y
r

fo
r

an
nu

al
)

E
qu

ip
m

e
nt Ty

pe

TO
G

R
O

G
N

O
x

C
O

S
O

2
P

M
10

E
P

M
10

D
P

M
10

T
P

M
2.

5E
P

M
2.

5D
P

M
2.

5T
B

C
O

2
N

B
C

O
2

C
O

2T
C

H
4

N
2O

R
C

O
2e

D
ai

ly
,

S
um

m
er

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

To
ta

l
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

D
ai

ly
,

W
in

te
r

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

278



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

P
um

p
S

ta
tio

n
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

10
/2

8/
20

22

31
 /

48

To
ta

l
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

A
nn

ua
l

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

To
ta

l
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

4.
8.

S
ta

tio
na

ry
E

m
is

si
on

s
B

y
E

qu
ip

m
en

tT
yp

e

4.
8.

1.
U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

C
rit

er
ia

P
ol

lu
ta

nt
s

(lb
/d

ay
fo

r
da

ily
,t

on
/y

r
fo

r
an

nu
al

)
an

d
G

H
G

s
(lb

/d
ay

fo
r

da
ily

,M
T

/y
r

fo
r

an
nu

al
)

E
qu

ip
m

e
nt Ty

pe

TO
G

R
O

G
N

O
x

C
O

S
O

2
P

M
10

E
P

M
10

D
P

M
10

T
P

M
2.

5E
P

M
2.

5D
P

M
2.

5T
B

C
O

2
N

B
C

O
2

C
O

2T
C

H
4

N
2O

R
C

O
2e

D
ai

ly
,

S
um

m
er

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

E
m

er
ge

n
cy G

en
er

at
o

r

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
—

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
—

0.
00

To
ta

l
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
—

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
—

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00

D
ai

ly
,

W
in

te
r

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

E
m

er
ge

n
cy G

en
er

at
o

r

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
—

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
—

0.
00

To
ta

l
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
—

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
—

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00

A
nn

ua
l

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

E
m

er
ge

n
cy G

en
er

at
o

r

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
—

0.
00

—
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
—

0.
00

To
ta

l
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
—

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00
—

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
0.

00

279



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

P
um

p
S

ta
tio

n
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

10
/2

8/
20

22

32
 /

48

4.
9.

U
se

r
D

ef
in

ed
E

m
is

si
on

s
B

y
E

qu
ip

m
en

tT
yp

e

4.
9.

1.
U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

C
rit

er
ia

P
ol

lu
ta

nt
s

(lb
/d

ay
fo

r
da

ily
,t

on
/y

r
fo

r
an

nu
al

)
an

d
G

H
G

s
(lb

/d
ay

fo
r

da
ily

,M
T

/y
r

fo
r

an
nu

al
)

E
qu

ip
m

e
nt Ty

pe

TO
G

R
O

G
N

O
x

C
O

S
O

2
P

M
10

E
P

M
10

D
P

M
10

T
P

M
2.

5E
P

M
2.

5D
P

M
2.

5T
B

C
O

2
N

B
C

O
2

C
O

2T
C

H
4

N
2O

R
C

O
2e

D
ai

ly
,

S
um

m
er

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

To
ta

l
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

D
ai

ly
,

W
in

te
r

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

To
ta

l
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

A
nn

ua
l

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

To
ta

l
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

4.
10

.S
oi

lC
ar

bo
n

A
cc

um
ul

at
io

n
B

y
V

eg
et

at
io

n
Ty

pe

4.
10

.1
.S

oi
lC

ar
bo

n
A

cc
um

ul
at

io
n

B
y

V
eg

et
at

io
n

Ty
pe

-
U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

C
rit

er
ia

P
ol

lu
ta

nt
s

(lb
/d

ay
fo

r
da

ily
,t

on
/y

r
fo

r
an

nu
al

)
an

d
G

H
G

s
(lb

/d
ay

fo
r

da
ily

,M
T

/y
r

fo
r

an
nu

al
)

V
eg

et
at

io
n

TO
G

R
O

G
N

O
x

C
O

S
O

2
P

M
10

E
P

M
10

D
P

M
10

T
P

M
2.

5E
P

M
2.

5D
P

M
2.

5T
B

C
O

2
N

B
C

O
2

C
O

2T
C

H
4

N
2O

R
C

O
2e

D
ai

ly
,

S
um

m
er

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

To
ta

l
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

D
ai

ly
,

W
in

te
r

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

280



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

P
um

p
S

ta
tio

n
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

10
/2

8/
20

22

33
 /

48

To
ta

l
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

A
nn

ua
l

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

To
ta

l
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

4.
10

.2
.A

bo
ve

an
d

B
el

ow
gr

ou
nd

C
ar

bo
n

A
cc

um
ul

at
io

n
by

La
nd

U
se

Ty
pe

-
U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

C
rit

er
ia

P
ol

lu
ta

nt
s

(lb
/d

ay
fo

r
da

ily
,t

on
/y

r
fo

r
an

nu
al

)
an

d
G

H
G

s
(lb

/d
ay

fo
r

da
ily

,M
T

/y
r

fo
r

an
nu

al
)

La
nd

U
se

TO
G

R
O

G
N

O
x

C
O

S
O

2
P

M
10

E
P

M
10

D
P

M
10

T
P

M
2.

5E
P

M
2.

5D
P

M
2.

5T
B

C
O

2
N

B
C

O
2

C
O

2T
C

H
4

N
2O

R
C

O
2e

D
ai

ly
,

S
um

m
er

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

To
ta

l
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

D
ai

ly
,

W
in

te
r

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

To
ta

l
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

A
nn

ua
l

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

To
ta

l
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

4.
10

.3
.A

vo
id

ed
an

d
S

eq
ue

st
er

ed
E

m
is

si
on

s
by

S
pe

ci
es

-
U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

C
rit

er
ia

P
ol

lu
ta

nt
s

(lb
/d

ay
fo

r
da

ily
,t

on
/y

r
fo

r
an

nu
al

)
an

d
G

H
G

s
(lb

/d
ay

fo
r

da
ily

,M
T

/y
r

fo
r

an
nu

al
)

S
pe

ci
es

TO
G

R
O

G
N

O
x

C
O

S
O

2
P

M
10

E
P

M
10

D
P

M
10

T
P

M
2.

5E
P

M
2.

5D
P

M
2.

5T
B

C
O

2
N

B
C

O
2

C
O

2T
C

H
4

N
2O

R
C

O
2e

D
ai

ly
,

S
um

m
er

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

A
vo

id
ed

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

S
ub

to
ta

l
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

S
eq

ue
st

er
ed

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

S
ub

to
ta

l
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

281



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

P
um

p
S

ta
tio

n
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

10
/2

8/
20

22

34
 /

48

R
em

ov
e

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

S
ub

to
ta

l
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

D
ai

ly
,

W
in

te
r

(M
ax

)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

A
vo

id
ed

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

S
ub

to
ta

l
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

S
eq

ue
st

er
ed

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

S
ub

to
ta

l
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

R
em

ov
e

d
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

S
ub

to
ta

l
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

A
nn

ua
l

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

A
vo

id
ed

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

S
ub

to
ta

l
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

S
eq

ue
st

er
ed

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

S
ub

to
ta

l
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

R
em

ov
e

d
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

S
ub

to
ta

l
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

5.
A

ct
iv

ity
D

at
a

5.
1.

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n
S

ch
ed

ul
e

282



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

P
um

p
S

ta
tio

n
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

10
/2

8/
20

22

35
 /

48

P
ha

se
N

am
e

P
ha

se
Ty

pe
S

ta
rt

D
at

e
E

nd
D

at
e

D
ay

s
P

er
W

ee
k

W
or

k
D

ay
s

pe
r

P
ha

se
P

ha
se

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

S
ite

P
re

pa
ra

tio
n

S
ite

P
re

pa
ra

tio
n

9/
3/

20
24

9/
6/

20
24

5.
00

4.
00

—

G
ra

di
ng

G
ra

di
ng

9/
9/

20
24

9/
16

/2
02

4
5.

00
6.

00
—

B
ui

ld
in

g
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

B
ui

ld
in

g
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

9/
17

/2
02

4
6/

30
/2

02
5

5.
00

20
5

—

P
av

in
g

P
av

in
g

7/
1/

20
25

7/
21

/2
02

5
5.

00
15

.0
—

A
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

al
C

oa
tin

g
A

rc
hi

te
ct

ur
al

C
oa

tin
g

7/
22

/2
02

5
8/

4/
20

25
5.

00
10

.0
—

5.
2.

O
ff-

R
oa

d
E

qu
ip

m
en

t

5.
2.

1.
U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

P
ha

se
N

am
e

E
qu

ip
m

en
tT

yp
e

F
ue

lT
yp

e
E

ng
in

e
T

ie
r

N
um

be
r

pe
r

D
ay

H
ou

rs
P

er
D

ay
H

or
se

po
w

er
Lo

ad
Fa

ct
or

S
ite

P
re

pa
ra

tio
n

G
ra

de
rs

D
ie

se
l

A
ve

ra
ge

1.
00

8.
00

14
8

0.
41

S
ite

P
re

pa
ra

tio
n

Tr
ac

to
rs

/L
oa

de
rs

/B
ac

kh
oe

s
D

ie
se

l
A

ve
ra

ge
1.

00
8.

00
84

.0
0.

37

G
ra

di
ng

G
ra

de
rs

D
ie

se
l

A
ve

ra
ge

1.
00

4.
00

14
8

0.
41

G
ra

di
ng

Tr
ac

to
rs

/L
oa

de
rs

/B
ac

kh
oe

s
D

ie
se

l
A

ve
ra

ge
1.

00
8.

00
84

.0
0.

37

B
ui

ld
in

g
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

C
ra

ne
s

D
ie

se
l

A
ve

ra
ge

1.
00

8.
00

36
7

0.
29

B
ui

ld
in

g
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

F
or

kl
ift

s
D

ie
se

l
A

ve
ra

ge
1.

00
6.

00
82

.0
0.

20

B
ui

ld
in

g
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

Tr
ac

to
rs

/L
oa

de
rs

/B
ac

kh
oe

s
D

ie
se

l
A

ve
ra

ge
1.

00
8.

00
84

.0
0.

37

P
av

in
g

Tr
ac

to
rs

/L
oa

de
rs

/B
ac

kh
oe

s
D

ie
se

l
A

ve
ra

ge
1.

00
8.

00
84

.0
0.

37

P
av

in
g

P
av

er
s

D
ie

se
l

A
ve

ra
ge

2.
00

8.
00

81
.0

0.
42

P
av

in
g

R
ol

le
rs

D
ie

se
l

A
ve

ra
ge

1.
00

7.
00

36
.0

0.
38

P
av

in
g

C
em

en
ta

nd
M

or
ta

r
M

ix
er

s
D

ie
se

l
A

ve
ra

ge
1.

00
6.

00
10

.0
0.

56

A
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

al
C

oa
tin

g
A

ir
C

om
pr

es
so

rs
D

ie
se

l
A

ve
ra

ge
1.

00
6.

00
37

.0
0.

48

G
ra

di
ng

O
ff-

H
ig

hw
ay

Tr
uc

ks
D

ie
se

l
A

ve
ra

ge
1.

00
6.

00
37

6
0.

38

283



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

P
um

p
S

ta
tio

n
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

10
/2

8/
20

22

36
 /

48

B
ui

ld
in

g
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

O
ff-

H
ig

hw
ay

Tr
uc

ks
D

ie
se

l
A

ve
ra

ge
1.

00
6.

00
37

6
0.

38

S
ite

P
re

pa
ra

tio
n

O
ff-

H
ig

hw
ay

Tr
uc

ks
D

ie
se

l
A

ve
ra

ge
1.

00
6.

00
37

6
0.

38

G
ra

di
ng

R
ub

be
r

T
ire

d
D

oz
er

s
D

ie
se

l
A

ve
ra

ge
1.

00
8.

00
36

7
0.

40

B
ui

ld
in

g
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

E
xc

av
at

or
s

D
ie

se
l

A
ve

ra
ge

1.
00

8.
00

36
.0

0.
38

P
av

in
g

E
xc

av
at

or
s

D
ie

se
l

A
ve

ra
ge

1.
00

8.
00

36
.0

0.
38

P
av

in
g

P
av

in
g

E
qu

ip
m

en
t

D
ie

se
l

A
ve

ra
ge

1.
00

8.
00

89
.0

0.
36

5.
3.

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n
V

eh
ic

le
s

5.
3.

1.
U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

P
ha

se
N

am
e

Tr
ip

Ty
pe

O
ne

-W
ay

Tr
ip

s
pe

r
D

ay
M

ile
s

pe
r

Tr
ip

V
eh

ic
le

M
ix

S
ite

P
re

pa
ra

tio
n

—
—

—
—

S
ite

P
re

pa
ra

tio
n

W
or

ke
r

4.
00

18
.5

LD
A

,L
D

T
1,

LD
T

2

S
ite

P
re

pa
ra

tio
n

V
en

do
r

—
10

.2
H

H
D

T,
M

H
D

T

S
ite

P
re

pa
ra

tio
n

H
au

lin
g

33
.0

20
.0

H
H

D
T

S
ite

P
re

pa
ra

tio
n

O
ns

ite
tr

uc
k

2.
00

1.
00

H
H

D
T

G
ra

di
ng

—
—

—
—

G
ra

di
ng

W
or

ke
r

4.
00

18
.5

LD
A

,L
D

T
1,

LD
T

2

G
ra

di
ng

V
en

do
r

—
10

.2
H

H
D

T,
M

H
D

T

G
ra

di
ng

H
au

lin
g

0.
00

3.
00

H
H

D
T

G
ra

di
ng

O
ns

ite
tr

uc
k

0.
00

0.
00

H
H

D
T

B
ui

ld
in

g
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

—
—

—
—

B
ui

ld
in

g
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

W
or

ke
r

4.
00

18
.5

LD
A

,L
D

T
1,

LD
T

2

B
ui

ld
in

g
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

V
en

do
r

1.
00

10
.2

H
H

D
T,

M
H

D
T

B
ui

ld
in

g
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

H
au

lin
g

0.
00

20
.0

H
H

D
T

B
ui

ld
in

g
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

O
ns

ite
tr

uc
k

2.
00

1.
00

H
H

D
T

P
av

in
g

—
—

—
—

284



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

P
um

p
S

ta
tio

n
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

10
/2

8/
20

22

37
 /

48

P
av

in
g

W
or

ke
r

8.
00

18
.5

LD
A

,L
D

T
1,

LD
T

2

P
av

in
g

V
en

do
r

—
10

.2
H

H
D

T,
M

H
D

T

P
av

in
g

H
au

lin
g

13
.0

20
.0

H
H

D
T

P
av

in
g

O
ns

ite
tr

uc
k

0.
00

1.
00

H
H

D
T

A
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

al
C

oa
tin

g
—

—
—

—

A
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

al
C

oa
tin

g
W

or
ke

r
4.

00
18

.5
LD

A
,L

D
T

1,
LD

T
2

A
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

al
C

oa
tin

g
V

en
do

r
—

10
.2

H
H

D
T,

M
H

D
T

A
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

al
C

oa
tin

g
H

au
lin

g
0.

00
20

.0
H

H
D

T

A
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

al
C

oa
tin

g
O

ns
ite

tr
uc

k
2.

00
1.

00
H

H
D

T

5.
4.

V
eh

ic
le

s

5.
4.

1.
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

V
eh

ic
le

C
on

tr
ol

S
tr

at
eg

ie
s

C
on

tr
ol

S
tr

at
eg

ie
s

A
pp

lie
d

P
M

10
R

ed
uc

tio
n

P
M

2.
5

R
ed

uc
tio

n

W
at

er
un

pa
ve

d
ro

ad
s

tw
ic

e
da

ily
55

%
55

%

Li
m

it
ve

hi
cl

e
sp

ee
ds

on
un

pa
ve

d
ro

ad
s

to
25

m
ph

44
%

44
%

S
w

ee
p

pa
ve

d
ro

ad
s

on
ce

pe
r

m
on

th
9%

9%

5.
5.

A
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

al
C

oa
tin

gs

P
ha

se
N

am
e

R
es

id
en

tia
lI

nt
er

io
r

A
re

a
C

oa
te

d
(s

q
ft)

R
es

id
en

tia
lE

xt
er

io
r

A
re

a
C

oa
te

d
(s

q
ft)

N
on

-R
es

id
en

tia
lI

nt
er

io
r

A
re

a
C

oa
te

d
(s

q
ft)

N
on

-R
es

id
en

tia
lE

xt
er

io
r

A
re

a
C

oa
te

d
(s

q
ft)

P
ar

ki
ng

A
re

a
C

oa
te

d
(s

q
ft)

A
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

al
C

oa
tin

g
0.

00
0.

00
10

,5
00

3,
50

0
2,

70
0

5.
6.

D
us

tM
iti

ga
tio

n

5.
6.

1.
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

E
ar

th
m

ov
in

g
A

ct
iv

iti
es

P
ha

se
N

am
e

M
at

er
ia

lI
m

po
rt

ed
(C

ub
ic

Ya
rd

s)
M

at
er

ia
lE

xp
or

te
d

(C
ub

ic
Ya

rd
s)

A
cr

es
G

ra
de

d
(a

cr
es

)
M

at
er

ia
lD

em
ol

is
he

d
(s

q.
ft.

)
A

cr
es

P
av

ed
(a

cr
es

)

285



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

P
um

p
S

ta
tio

n
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

10
/2

8/
20

22

38
 /

48

S
ite

P
re

pa
ra

tio
n

0.
00

0.
00

2.
00

0.
00

—

G
ra

di
ng

0.
00

0.
00

4.
50

0.
00

—

P
av

in
g

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

1.
03

5.
6.

2.
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

E
ar

th
m

ov
in

g
C

on
tr

ol
S

tr
at

eg
ie

s

C
on

tr
ol

S
tr

at
eg

ie
s

A
pp

lie
d

Fr
eq

ue
nc

y
(p

er
da

y)
P

M
10

R
ed

uc
tio

n
P

M
2.

5
R

ed
uc

tio
n

W
at

er
E

xp
os

ed
A

re
a

2
61

%
61

%

5.
7.

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n
P

av
in

g

La
nd

U
se

A
re

a
P

av
ed

(a
cr

es
)

%
A

sp
ha

lt

R
ef

rig
er

at
ed

W
ar

eh
ou

se
-N

o
R

ai
l

0.
00

0%

O
th

er
A

sp
ha

lt
S

ur
fa

ce
s

1.
03

10
0%

5.
8.

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n
E

le
ct

ric
ity

C
on

su
m

pt
io

n
an

d
E

m
is

si
on

s
Fa

ct
or

s

kW
h

pe
r

Ye
ar

an
d

E
m

is
si

on
Fa

ct
or

(lb
/M

W
h)

Ye
ar

kW
h

pe
r

Ye
ar

C
O

2
C

H
4

N
2O

20
24

0.
00

53
2

0.
03

<
0.

00
5

20
25

0.
00

53
2

0.
03

<
0.

00
5

5.
9.

O
pe

ra
tio

na
lM

ob
ile

S
ou

rc
es

5.
9.

1.
U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

La
nd

U
se

Ty
pe

Tr
ip

s/
W

ee
kd

ay
Tr

ip
s/

S
at

ur
da

y
Tr

ip
s/

S
un

da
y

Tr
ip

s/
Ye

ar
V

M
T

/W
ee

kd
ay

V
M

T
/S

at
ur

da
y

V
M

T
/S

un
da

y
V

M
T

/Y
ea

r

R
ef

rig
er

at
ed

W
ar

eh
ou

se
-N

o
R

ai
l

0.
21

0.
00

0.
00

54
.7

2.
92

0.
00

0.
00

76
0

O
th

er
A

sp
ha

lt
S

ur
fa

ce
s

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

286



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

P
um

p
S

ta
tio

n
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

10
/2

8/
20

22

39
 /

48

5.
10

.O
pe

ra
tio

na
lA

re
a

S
ou

rc
es

5.
10

.1
.H

ea
rt

hs

5.
10

.1
.1

.U
nm

iti
ga

te
d

5.
10

.2
.A

rc
hi

te
ct

ur
al

C
oa

tin
gs

R
es

id
en

tia
lI

nt
er

io
r

A
re

a
C

oa
te

d
(s

q
ft)

R
es

id
en

tia
lE

xt
er

io
r

A
re

a
C

oa
te

d
(s

q
ft)

N
on

-R
es

id
en

tia
lI

nt
er

io
r

A
re

a
C

oa
te

d
(s

q
ft)

N
on

-R
es

id
en

tia
lE

xt
er

io
r

A
re

a
C

oa
te

d
(s

q
ft)

P
ar

ki
ng

A
re

a
C

oa
te

d
(s

q
ft)

0
0.

00
11

,8
95

3,
96

5
1,

86
0

5.
10

.3
.L

an
ds

ca
pe

E
qu

ip
m

en
t

S
ea

so
n

U
ni

t
V

al
ue

S
no

w
D

ay
s

da
y/

yr
0.

00

S
um

m
er

D
ay

s
da

y/
yr

25
0

5.
11

.O
pe

ra
tio

na
lE

ne
rg

y
C

on
su

m
pt

io
n

5.
11

.1
.U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

E
le

ct
ric

ity
(k

W
h/

yr
)

an
d

C
O

2
an

d
C

H
4

an
d

N
2O

an
d

N
at

ur
al

G
as

(k
B

T
U

/y
r)

La
nd

U
se

E
le

ct
ric

ity
(k

W
h/

yr
)

C
O

2
C

H
4

N
2O

N
at

ur
al

G
as

(k
B

T
U

/y
r)

R
ef

rig
er

at
ed

W
ar

eh
ou

se
-N

o
R

ai
l

90
0,

00
0

34
6

0.
03

30
0.

00
40

0.
00

O
th

er
A

sp
ha

lt
S

ur
fa

ce
s

0.
00

34
6

0.
03

30
0.

00
40

0.
00

5.
12

.O
pe

ra
tio

na
lW

at
er

an
d

W
as

te
w

at
er

C
on

su
m

pt
io

n

5.
12

.1
.U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

La
nd

U
se

In
do

or
W

at
er

(g
al

/y
ea

r)
O

ut
do

or
W

at
er

(g
al

/y
ea

r)

287



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

P
um

p
S

ta
tio

n
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

10
/2

8/
20

22

40
 /

48

R
ef

rig
er

at
ed

W
ar

eh
ou

se
-N

o
R

ai
l

0.
00

0.
00

O
th

er
A

sp
ha

lt
S

ur
fa

ce
s

0.
00

0.
00

5.
13

.O
pe

ra
tio

na
lW

as
te

G
en

er
at

io
n

5.
13

.1
.U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

La
nd

U
se

W
as

te
(t

on
/y

ea
r)

C
og

en
er

at
io

n
(k

W
h/

ye
ar

)

R
ef

rig
er

at
ed

W
ar

eh
ou

se
-N

o
R

ai
l

0.
00

0.
00

O
th

er
A

sp
ha

lt
S

ur
fa

ce
s

0.
00

0.
00

5.
14

.O
pe

ra
tio

na
lR

ef
rig

er
at

io
n

an
d

A
ir

C
on

di
tio

ni
ng

E
qu

ip
m

en
t

5.
14

.1
.U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

La
nd

U
se

Ty
pe

E
qu

ip
m

en
tT

yp
e

R
ef

rig
er

an
t

G
W

P
Q

ua
nt

ity
(k

g)
O

pe
ra

tio
ns

Le
ak

R
at

e
S

er
vi

ce
Le

ak
R

at
e

T
im

es
S

er
vi

ce
d

5.
15

.O
pe

ra
tio

na
lO

ff-
R

oa
d

E
qu

ip
m

en
t

5.
15

.1
.U

nm
iti

ga
te

d

E
qu

ip
m

en
tT

yp
e

F
ue

lT
yp

e
E

ng
in

e
T

ie
r

N
um

be
r

pe
r

D
ay

H
ou

rs
P

er
D

ay
H

or
se

po
w

er
Lo

ad
Fa

ct
or

5.
16

.S
ta

tio
na

ry
S

ou
rc

es

5.
16

.1
.E

m
er

ge
nc

y
G

en
er

at
or

s
an

d
F

ire
P

um
ps

E
qu

ip
m

en
tT

yp
e

F
ue

lT
yp

e
N

um
be

r
pe

r
D

ay
H

ou
rs

pe
r

D
ay

H
ou

rs
pe

r
Ye

ar
H

or
se

po
w

er
Lo

ad
Fa

ct
or

E
m

er
ge

nc
y

G
en

er
at

or
D

ie
se

l
0.

00
0.

50
50

.0
2,

35
0

0.
73

5.
16

.2
.P

ro
ce

ss
B

oi
le

rs

288



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

P
um

p
S

ta
tio

n
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

10
/2

8/
20

22

41
 /

48

E
qu

ip
m

en
tT

yp
e

F
ue

lT
yp

e
N

um
be

r
B

oi
le

r
R

at
in

g
(M

M
B

tu
/h

r)
D

ai
ly

H
ea

tI
np

ut
(M

M
B

tu
/d

ay
)

A
nn

ua
lH

ea
tI

np
ut

(M
M

B
tu

/y
r)

5.
17

.U
se

r
D

ef
in

ed

E
qu

ip
m

en
tT

yp
e

F
ue

lT
yp

e

—
—

5.
18

.V
eg

et
at

io
n

5.
18

.1
.L

an
d

U
se

C
ha

ng
e

5.
18

.1
.1

.U
nm

iti
ga

te
d

V
eg

et
at

io
n

La
nd

U
se

Ty
pe

V
eg

et
at

io
n

S
oi

lT
yp

e
In

iti
al

A
cr

es
F

in
al

A
cr

es

5.
18

.1
.B

io
m

as
s

C
ov

er
Ty

pe

5.
18

.1
.1

.U
nm

iti
ga

te
d

B
io

m
as

s
C

ov
er

Ty
pe

In
iti

al
A

cr
es

F
in

al
A

cr
es

5.
18

.2
.S

eq
ue

st
ra

tio
n

5.
18

.2
.1

.U
nm

iti
ga

te
d

Tr
ee

Ty
pe

N
um

be
r

E
le

ct
ric

ity
S

av
ed

(k
W

h/
ye

ar
)

N
at

ur
al

G
as

S
av

ed
(b

tu
/y

ea
r)

6.
C

lim
at

e
R

is
k

D
et

ai
le

d
R

ep
or

t

6.
1.

C
lim

at
e

R
is

k
S

um
m

ar
y

289



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

P
um

p
S

ta
tio

n
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

10
/2

8/
20

22

42
 /

48

C
al

-A
da

pt
m

id
ce

nt
ur

y
20

40
–2

05
9

av
er

ag
e

pr
oj

ec
tio

ns
fo

r
fo

ur
ha

za
rd

s
ar

e
re

po
rt

ed
be

lo
w

fo
r

yo
ur

pr
oj

ec
tl

oc
at

io
n.

T
he

se
ar

e
un

de
r

R
ep

re
se

nt
at

io
n

C
on

ce
nt

ra
tio

n
P

at
hw

ay
(R

C
P

)
8.

5
w

hi
ch

as
su

m
es

G
H

G
em

is
si

on
s

w
ill

co
nt

in
ue

to
ris

e
st

ro
ng

ly
th

ro
ug

h
20

50
an

d
th

en
pl

at
ea

u
ar

ou
nd

21
00

.

C
lim

at
e

H
az

ar
d

R
es

ul
tf

or
P

ro
je

ct
Lo

ca
tio

n
U

ni
t

Te
m

pe
ra

tu
re

an
d

E
xt

re
m

e
H

ea
t

22
.9

an
nu

al
da

ys
of

ex
tr

em
e

he
at

E
xt

re
m

e
P

re
ci

pi
ta

tio
n

5.
90

an
nu

al
da

ys
w

ith
pr

ec
ip

ita
tio

n
ab

ov
e

20
m

m

S
ea

Le
ve

lR
is

e
0.

00
m

et
er

s
of

in
un

da
tio

n
de

pt
h

W
ild

fir
e

13
.6

an
nu

al
he

ct
ar

es
bu

rn
ed

Te
m

pe
ra

tu
re

an
d

E
xt

re
m

e
H

ea
td

at
a

ar
e

fo
r

gr
id

ce
ll

in
w

hi
ch

yo
ur

pr
oj

ec
ta

re
lo

ca
te

d.
T

he
pr

oj
ec

tio
n

is
ba

se
d

on
th

e
98

th
hi

st
or

ic
al

pe
rc

en
til

e
of

da
ily

m
ax

im
um

/m
in

im
um

te
m

pe
ra

tu
re

s
fr

om
ob

se
rv

ed
hi

st
or

ic
al

da
ta

(3
2

cl
im

at
e

m
od

el
en

se
m

bl
e

fr
om

C
al

-A
da

pt
,2

04
0–

20
59

av
er

ag
e

un
de

r
R

C
P

8.
5)

. 
E

ac
h

gr
id

ce
ll

is
6

ki
lo

m
et

er
s

(k
m

)
by

6
km

,o
r

3.
7

m
ile

s
(m

i)
by

3.
7

m
i.

E
xt

re
m

e
P

re
ci

pi
ta

tio
n

da
ta

ar
e

fo
r

th
e

gr
id

ce
ll

in
w

hi
ch

yo
ur

pr
oj

ec
ta

re
lo

ca
te

d.
T

he
th

re
sh

ol
d

of
20

m
m

is
eq

ui
va

le
nt

to
ab

ou
t¾

an
in

ch
of

ra
in

,w
hi

ch
w

ou
ld

be
lig

ht
to

m
od

er
at

e
ra

in
fa

ll
if

re
ce

iv
ed

ov
er

a
fu

ll
da

y
or

he
av

y
ra

in
if

re
ce

iv
ed

ov
er

a
pe

rio
d

of
2

to
4

ho
ur

s.
E

ac
h

gr
id

ce
ll

is
6

ki
lo

m
et

er
s

(k
m

)
by

6
km

,o
r

3.
7

m
ile

s
(m

i)
by

3.
7

m
i.

S
ea

Le
ve

lR
is

e
da

ta
ar

e
fo

r
th

e
gr

id
ce

ll
in

w
hi

ch
yo

ur
pr

oj
ec

ta
re

lo
ca

te
d.

T
he

pr
oj

ec
tio

ns
ar

e
fr

om
R

ad
ke

et
al

.(
20

17
),

as
re

po
rt

ed
in

C
al

-A
da

pt
(2

04
0–

20
59

av
er

ag
e

un
de

r
R

C
P

8.
5)

,a
nd

co
ns

id
er

di
ffe

re
nt

in
cr

em
en

ts
of

se
a

le
ve

lr
is

e
co

up
le

d
w

ith
ex

tr
em

e
st

or
m

ev
en

ts
.U

se
rs

m
ay

se
le

ct
fr

om
fo

ur
m

od
el

si
m

ul
at

io
ns

to
vi

ew
th

e
ra

ng
e

in
po

te
nt

ia
li

nu
nd

at
io

n
de

pt
h

fo
r

th
e

gr
id

ce
ll.

T
he

fo
ur

si
m

ul
at

io
ns

m
ak

e
di

ffe
re

nt
as

su
m

pt
io

ns
ab

ou
te

xp
ec

te
d

ra
in

fa
ll

an
d

te
m

pe
ra

tu
re

ar
e:

W
ar

m
er

/d
rie

r
(H

ad
G

E
M

2-
E

S
),

C
oo

le
r/

w
et

te
r

(C
N

R
M

-C
M

5)
,A

ve
ra

ge
co

nd
iti

on
s

(C
an

E
S

M
2)

,R
an

ge
of

di
ffe

re
nt

ra
in

fa
ll

an
d

te
m

pe
ra

tu
re

po
ss

ib
ili

tie
s

(M
IR

O
C

5)
.E

ac
h

gr
id

ce
ll

is
50

m
et

er
s

(m
)

by
50

m
,o

r
ab

ou
t1

64
fe

et
(f

t)
by

16
4

ft.
W

ild
fir

e
da

ta
ar

e
fo

r
th

e
gr

id
ce

ll
in

w
hi

ch
yo

ur
pr

oj
ec

ta
re

lo
ca

te
d.

T
he

pr
oj

ec
tio

ns
ar

e
fr

om
U

C
D

av
is

,a
s

re
po

rt
ed

in
C

al
-A

da
pt

(2
04

0–
20

59
av

er
ag

e
un

de
r

R
C

P
8.

5)
,a

nd
co

ns
id

er
hi

st
or

ic
al

da
ta

of
cl

im
at

e,
ve

ge
ta

tio
n,

po
pu

la
tio

n
de

ns
ity

,a
nd

la
rg

e
(>

40
0

ha
)

fir
e

hi
st

or
y.

U
se

rs
m

ay
se

le
ct

fr
om

fo
ur

m
od

el
si

m
ul

at
io

ns
to

vi
ew

th
e

ra
ng

e
in

po
te

nt
ia

lw
ild

fir
e

pr
ob

ab
ili

tie
s

fo
r

th
e

gr
id

ce
ll.

T
he

fo
ur

si
m

ul
at

io
ns

m
ak

e
di

ffe
re

nt
as

su
m

pt
io

ns
ab

ou
te

xp
ec

te
d

ra
in

fa
ll

an
d

te
m

pe
ra

tu
re

ar
e:

W
ar

m
er

/d
rie

r
(H

ad
G

E
M

2-
E

S
),

C
oo

le
r/

w
et

te
r

(C
N

R
M

-C
M

5)
,A

ve
ra

ge
co

nd
iti

on
s

(C
an

E
S

M
2)

,R
an

ge
of

di
ffe

re
nt

ra
in

fa
ll

an
d

te
m

pe
ra

tu
re

po
ss

ib
ili

tie
s

(M
IR

O
C

5)
.E

ac
h

gr
id

ce
ll

is
6

ki
lo

m
et

er
s

(k
m

)
by

6
km

,o
r

3.
7

m
ile

s
(m

i)
by

3.
7

m
i.

6.
2.

In
iti

al
C

lim
at

e
R

is
k

S
co

re
s

C
lim

at
e

H
az

ar
d

E
xp

os
ur

e
S

co
re

S
en

si
tiv

ity
S

co
re

A
da

pt
iv

e
C

ap
ac

ity
S

co
re

V
ul

ne
ra

bi
lit

y
S

co
re

Te
m

pe
ra

tu
re

an
d

E
xt

re
m

e
H

ea
t

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

E
xt

re
m

e
P

re
ci

pi
ta

tio
n

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

S
ea

Le
ve

lR
is

e
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

W
ild

fir
e

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

F
lo

od
in

g
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

D
ro

ug
ht

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

S
no

w
pa

ck
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

A
ir

Q
ua

lit
y

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

T
he

se
ns

iti
vi

ty
sc

or
e

re
fle

ct
s

th
e

ex
te

nt
to

w
hi

ch
a

pr
oj

ec
tw

ou
ld

be
ad

ve
rs

el
y

af
fe

ct
ed

by
ex

po
su

re
to

a
cl

im
at

e
ha

za
rd

.E
xp

os
ur

e
is

ra
te

d
on

a
sc

al
e

of
1

to
5,

w
ith

a
sc

or
e

of
5

re
pr

es
en

tin
g

th
e

gr
ea

te
st

ex
po

su
re

.

290



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

P
um

p
S

ta
tio

n
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

10
/2

8/
20

22

43
 /

48

T
he

ad
ap

tiv
e

ca
pa

ci
ty

of
a

pr
oj

ec
tr

ef
er

s
to

its
ab

ili
ty

to
m

an
ag

e
an

d
re

du
ce

vu
ln

er
ab

ili
tie

s
fr

om
pr

oj
ec

te
d

cl
im

at
e

ha
za

rd
s.

A
da

pt
iv

e
ca

pa
ci

ty
is

ra
te

d
on

a
sc

al
e

of
1

to
5,

w
ith

a
sc

or
e

of
5

re
pr

es
en

tin
g

th
e

gr
ea

te
st

ab
ili

ty
to

ad
ap

t.
T

he
ov

er
al

lv
ul

ne
ra

bi
lit

y
sc

or
es

ar
e

ca
lc

ul
at

ed
ba

se
d

on
th

e
po

te
nt

ia
li

m
pa

ct
s

an
d

ad
ap

tiv
e

ca
pa

ci
ty

as
se

ss
m

en
ts

fo
r

ea
ch

ha
za

rd
.S

co
re

s
do

no
ti

nc
lu

de
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n

of
cl

im
at

e
ris

k
re

du
ct

io
n

m
ea

su
re

s.

6.
3.

A
dj

us
te

d
C

lim
at

e
R

is
k

S
co

re
s

C
lim

at
e

H
az

ar
d

E
xp

os
ur

e
S

co
re

S
en

si
tiv

ity
S

co
re

A
da

pt
iv

e
C

ap
ac

ity
S

co
re

V
ul

ne
ra

bi
lit

y
S

co
re

Te
m

pe
ra

tu
re

an
d

E
xt

re
m

e
H

ea
t

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

E
xt

re
m

e
P

re
ci

pi
ta

tio
n

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

S
ea

Le
ve

lR
is

e
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

W
ild

fir
e

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

F
lo

od
in

g
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

D
ro

ug
ht

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

S
no

w
pa

ck
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

A
ir

Q
ua

lit
y

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

T
he

se
ns

iti
vi

ty
sc

or
e

re
fle

ct
s

th
e

ex
te

nt
to

w
hi

ch
a

pr
oj

ec
tw

ou
ld

be
ad

ve
rs

el
y

af
fe

ct
ed

by
ex

po
su

re
to

a
cl

im
at

e
ha

za
rd

.E
xp

os
ur

e
is

ra
te

d
on

a
sc

al
e

of
1

to
5,

w
ith

a
sc

or
e

of
5

re
pr

es
en

tin
g

th
e

gr
ea

te
st

ex
po

su
re

.
T

he
ad

ap
tiv

e
ca

pa
ci

ty
of

a
pr

oj
ec

tr
ef

er
s

to
its

ab
ili

ty
to

m
an

ag
e

an
d

re
du

ce
vu

ln
er

ab
ili

tie
s

fr
om

pr
oj

ec
te

d
cl

im
at

e
ha

za
rd

s.
A

da
pt

iv
e

ca
pa

ci
ty

is
ra

te
d

on
a

sc
al

e
of

1
to

5,
w

ith
a

sc
or

e
of

5
re

pr
es

en
tin

g
th

e
gr

ea
te

st
ab

ili
ty

to
ad

ap
t.

T
he

ov
er

al
lv

ul
ne

ra
bi

lit
y

sc
or

es
ar

e
ca

lc
ul

at
ed

ba
se

d
on

th
e

po
te

nt
ia

li
m

pa
ct

s
an

d
ad

ap
tiv

e
ca

pa
ci

ty
as

se
ss

m
en

ts
fo

r
ea

ch
ha

za
rd

.S
co

re
s

in
cl

ud
e

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n
of

cl
im

at
e

ris
k

re
du

ct
io

n
m

ea
su

re
s.

6.
4.

C
lim

at
e

R
is

k
R

ed
uc

tio
n

M
ea

su
re

s

7.
H

ea
lth

an
d

E
qu

ity
D

et
ai

ls

7.
1.

C
al

E
nv

iro
S

cr
ee

n
4.

0
S

co
re

s

T
he

m
ax

im
um

C
al

E
nv

iro
S

cr
ee

n
sc

or
e

is
10

0.
A

hi
gh

sc
or

e
(i.

e.
,g

re
at

er
th

an
50

)
re

fle
ct

s
a

hi
gh

er
po

llu
tio

n
bu

rd
en

co
m

pa
re

d
to

ot
he

r
ce

ns
us

tr
ac

ts
in

th
e

st
at

e.

In
di

ca
to

r
R

es
ul

tf
or

P
ro

je
ct

C
en

su
s

Tr
ac

t

E
xp

os
ur

e
In

di
ca

to
rs

—

A
Q

-O
zo

ne
91

.1

A
Q

-P
M

47
.0

A
Q

-D
P

M
50

.8

291



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

P
um

p
S

ta
tio

n
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

10
/2

8/
20

22

44
 /

48

D
rin

ki
ng

W
at

er
68

.6

Le
ad

R
is

k
H

ou
si

ng
8.

88

P
es

tic
id

es
0.

00

To
xi

c
R

el
ea

se
s

39
.2

Tr
af

fic
81

.4

E
ffe

ct
In

di
ca

to
rs

—

C
le

an
U

p
S

ite
s

0.
00

G
ro

un
dw

at
er

25
.1

H
az

W
as

te
Fa

ci
lit

ie
s/

G
en

er
at

or
s

89
.5

Im
pa

ire
d

W
at

er
B

od
ie

s
66

.7

S
ol

id
W

as
te

0.
00

S
en

si
tiv

e
P

op
ul

at
io

n
—

A
st

hm
a

14
.8

C
ar

di
o-

va
sc

ul
ar

25
.2

Lo
w

B
ir

th
W

ei
gh

ts
47

.1

S
oc

io
ec

on
om

ic
Fa

ct
or

In
di

ca
to

rs
—

E
du

ca
tio

n
7.

40

H
ou

si
ng

49
.0

Li
ng

ui
st

ic
34

.6

P
ov

er
ty

11
.7

U
ne

m
pl

oy
m

en
t

35
.0

7.
2.

H
ea

lth
y

P
la

ce
s

In
de

x
S

co
re

s

T
he

m
ax

im
um

H
ea

lth
P

la
ce

s
In

de
x

sc
or

e
is

10
0.

A
hi

gh
sc

or
e

(i.
e.

,g
re

at
er

th
an

50
)

re
fle

ct
s

he
al

th
ie

r
co

m
m

un
ity

co
nd

iti
on

s
co

m
pa

re
d

to
ot

he
r

ce
ns

us
tr

ac
ts

in
th

e
st

at
e.

In
di

ca
to

r
R

es
ul

tf
or

P
ro

je
ct

C
en

su
s

Tr
ac

t

E
co

no
m

ic
—

A
bo

ve
P

ov
er

ty
82

.8
05

08
14

8

292



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

P
um

p
S

ta
tio

n
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

10
/2

8/
20

22

45
 /

48

E
m

pl
oy

ed
87

.3
60

45
16

9

M
ed

ia
n

H
I

—

E
du

ca
tio

n
—

B
ac

he
lo

r's
or

hi
gh

er
77

.8
64

75
04

2

H
ig

h
sc

ho
ol

en
ro

llm
en

t
10

0

P
re

sc
ho

ol
en

ro
llm

en
t

77
.2

74
47

70
9

Tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n
—

A
ut

o
A

cc
es

s
96

.7
02

16
86

1

A
ct

iv
e

co
m

m
ut

in
g

39
.8

30
61

72
2

S
oc

ia
l

—

2-
pa

re
nt

ho
us

eh
ol

ds
24

.4
45

01
47

6

V
ot

in
g

64
.1

98
63

98

N
ei

gh
bo

rh
oo

d
—

A
lc

oh
ol

av
ai

la
bi

lit
y

53
.5

60
88

79
8

P
ar

k
ac

ce
ss

47
.3

37
35

40
4

R
et

ai
ld

en
si

ty
81

.0
08

59
74

6

S
up

er
m

ar
ke

ta
cc

es
s

73
.5

27
52

47

Tr
ee

ca
no

py
74

.9
13

38
38

1

H
ou

si
ng

—

H
om

eo
w

ne
rs

hi
p

32
.3

75
20

85
2

H
ou

si
ng

ha
bi

ta
bi

lit
y

52
.4

82
99

75
6

Lo
w

-in
c

ho
m

eo
w

ne
r

se
ve

re
ho

us
in

g
co

st
bu

rd
en

83
.0

87
38

61
2

Lo
w

-in
c

re
nt

er
se

ve
re

ho
us

in
g

co
st

bu
rd

en
67

.0
21

68
61

3

U
nc

ro
w

de
d

ho
us

in
g

48
.8

13
03

73
4

H
ea

lth
O

ut
co

m
es

—

In
su

re
d

ad
ul

ts
62

.9
53

93
30

2

A
rt

hr
iti

s
96

.9

293



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

P
um

p
S

ta
tio

n
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

10
/2

8/
20

22

46
 /

48

A
st

hm
a

E
R

A
dm

is
si

on
s

93
.6

H
ig

h
B

lo
od

P
re

ss
ur

e
97

.2

C
an

ce
r

(e
xc

lu
di

ng
sk

in
)

74
.5

A
st

hm
a

88
.8

C
or

on
ar

y
H

ea
rt

D
is

ea
se

97
.8

C
hr

on
ic

O
bs

tr
uc

tiv
e

P
ul

m
on

ar
y

D
is

ea
se

97
.2

D
ia

gn
os

ed
D

ia
be

te
s

97
.2

Li
fe

E
xp

ec
ta

nc
y

at
B

ir
th

77
.5

C
og

ni
tiv

el
y

D
is

ab
le

d
82

.5

P
hy

si
ca

lly
 D

is
ab

le
d

95
.1

H
ea

rt
A

tta
ck

E
R

A
dm

is
si

on
s

61
.8

M
en

ta
lH

ea
lth

N
ot

G
oo

d
79

.6

C
hr

on
ic

K
id

ne
y

D
is

ea
se

97
.1

O
be

si
ty

82
.4

P
ed

es
tr

ia
n

In
ju

rie
s

19
.6

P
hy

si
ca

lH
ea

lth
N

ot
G

oo
d

95
.5

S
tr

ok
e

97
.8

H
ea

lth
R

is
k

B
eh

av
io

rs
—

B
in

ge
D

rin
ki

ng
4.

0

C
ur

re
nt

S
m

ok
er

73
.9

N
o

Le
is

ur
e

T
im

e
fo

r
P

hy
si

ca
lA

ct
iv

ity
94

.8

C
lim

at
e

C
ha

ng
e

E
xp

os
ur

es
—

W
ild

fir
e

R
is

k
0.

0

S
LR

In
un

da
tio

n
A

re
a

0.
0

C
hi

ld
re

n
23

.1

E
ld

er
ly

95
.7

E
ng

lis
h

S
pe

ak
in

g
95

.7

294



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

P
um

p
S

ta
tio

n
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

10
/2

8/
20

22

47
 /

48

F
or

ei
gn

-b
or

n
39

.6

O
ut

do
or

W
or

ke
rs

54
.2

C
lim

at
e

C
ha

ng
e

A
da

pt
iv

e
C

ap
ac

ity
—

Im
pe

rv
io

us
S

ur
fa

ce
C

ov
er

51
.6

Tr
af

fic
D

en
si

ty
58

.4

Tr
af

fic
A

cc
es

s
23

.0

O
th

er
In

di
ce

s
—

H
ar

ds
hi

p
22

.5

O
th

er
D

ec
is

io
n

S
up

po
rt

—

20
16

V
ot

in
g

42
.6

7.
3.

O
ve

ra
ll

H
ea

lth
&

E
qu

ity
S

co
re

s

M
et

ric
R

es
ul

tf
or

P
ro

je
ct

C
en

su
s

Tr
ac

t

C
al

E
nv

iro
S

cr
ee

n
4.

0
S

co
re

fo
r

P
ro

je
ct

Lo
ca

tio
n

(a
)

28
.0

H
ea

lth
y

P
la

ce
s

In
de

x
S

co
re

fo
r

P
ro

je
ct

Lo
ca

tio
n

(b
)

78
.0

P
ro

je
ct

Lo
ca

te
d

in
a

D
es

ig
na

te
d

D
is

ad
va

nt
ag

ed
C

om
m

un
ity

(S
en

at
e

B
ill

53
5)

N
o

P
ro

je
ct

Lo
ca

te
d

in
a

Lo
w

-I
nc

om
e

C
om

m
un

ity
(A

ss
em

bl
y

B
ill

15
50

)
N

o

P
ro

je
ct

Lo
ca

te
d

in
a

C
om

m
un

ity
A

ir
P

ro
te

ct
io

n
P

ro
gr

am
C

om
m

un
ity

(A
ss

em
bl

y
B

ill
61

7)
N

o

a:
T

he
m

ax
im

um
C

al
E

nv
iro

S
cr

ee
n

sc
or

e
is

10
0.

A
hi

gh
sc

or
e

(i.
e.

,g
re

at
er

th
an

50
)

re
fle

ct
s

a
hi

gh
er

po
llu

tio
n

bu
rd

en
co

m
pa

re
d

to
ot

he
r

ce
ns

us
tr

ac
ts

in
th

e
st

at
e.

b:
T

he
m

ax
im

um
H

ea
lth

P
la

ce
s

In
de

x
sc

or
e

is
10

0.
A

hi
gh

sc
or

e
(i.

e.
,g

re
at

er
th

an
50

)
re

fle
ct

s
he

al
th

ie
r

co
m

m
un

ity
co

nd
iti

on
s

co
m

pa
re

d
to

ot
he

r
ce

ns
us

tr
ac

ts
in

th
e

st
at

e.

7.
4.

H
ea

lth
&

E
qu

ity
M

ea
su

re
s

N
o

H
ea

lth
&

E
qu

ity
M

ea
su

re
s

se
le

ct
ed

.

7.
5.

E
va

lu
at

io
n

S
co

re
ca

rd

H
ea

lth
&

E
qu

ity
E

va
lu

at
io

n
S

co
re

ca
rd

no
tc

om
pl

et
ed

.

7.
6.

H
ea

lth
&

E
qu

ity
C

us
to

m
M

ea
su

re
s

N
o

H
ea

lth
&

E
qu

ity
C

us
to

m
M

ea
su

re
s

cr
ea

te
d.

295



S
C

V
W

at
er

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

P
um

p
S

ta
tio

n
D

et
ai

le
d

R
ep

or
t,

10
/2

8/
20

22

48
 /

48

8.
U

se
r

C
ha

ng
es

to
D

ef
au

lt
D

at
a

S
cr

ee
n

Ju
st

ifi
ca

tio
n

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n:
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

P
ha

se
s

P
er

pr
oj

ec
td

es
cr

ip
tio

n

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n:
Tr

ip
s

an
d

V
M

T
P

er
pr

oj
ec

td
es

cr
ip

tio
n

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
:V

eh
ic

le
D

at
a

P
er

pr
oj

ec
td

es
cr

ip
tio

n

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
:E

ne
rg

y
U

se
P

er
pr

oj
ec

td
es

cr
ip

tio
n

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
:W

at
er

an
d

W
as

te
W

at
er

P
er

pr
oj

ec
td

es
cr

ip
tio

n.

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
:S

ol
id

W
as

te
P

er
pr

oj
ec

td
es

cr
ip

tio
n.

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
:R

ef
rig

er
an

ts
P

er
pr

oj
ec

td
es

cr
ip

tio
n

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n:
O

ff-
R

oa
d

E
qu

ip
m

en
t

P
er

pr
oj

ec
td

es
cr

ip
tio

n

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n:
D

us
tF

ro
m

M
at

er
ia

lM
ov

em
en

t
P

er
pr

oj
ec

td
es

cr
ip

tio
n

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
:E

m
er

ge
nc

y
G

en
er

at
or

s
an

d
F

ire
P

um
ps

Te
st

in
g

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

.

296



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project APPENDICES  

 
 

APPENDIX C: BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES ASSESSMENT FOR 
BACKCOUNTRY PUMP STATION 

  

297



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

298



 

 

 

Biological Resources Assessment for 
the Santa Clarita Valley Water 
Agency Backcountry Pump Station 
Project 
Santa Clarita, California 

NOVEMBER 2022 

PREPARED FOR 

Woodard & Curran  

PREPARED BY 

SWCA Environmental Consultants 
 
 

299



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

300



 

 

BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES ASSESSMENT FOR THE SANTA 
CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY BACKCOUNTRY PUMP 

STATION PROJECT  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared for 

Woodard & Curran 
24422 Avenida de la Carlota, Suite 180 

Laguna Hills, California 92653 
Attn: Jennifer Ziv 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared by 

SWCA Environmental Consultants 
320 North Halstead Street, Suite 120 

Pasadena, California 91107 
(626) 240-0587 
www.swca.com 

 
 
 

SWCA Project No. 62466 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

November 2022 

301



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

302



Biological Resources Assessment for the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Backcountry Pump Station Project  

i 

CONTENTS 
1 Introduction .......................................................................................................................................... 1 

1.1 Project Description and Location ................................................................................................. 1 
1.1.1 Construction Activities ....................................................................................................... 2 

1.2 Site Characteristics ....................................................................................................................... 2 

2 Regulatory setting ................................................................................................................................. 6 
2.1 Federal Regulations ...................................................................................................................... 6 

2.1.1 Federal Endangered Species Act ........................................................................................ 6 
2.1.2 Migratory Bird Treaty Act .................................................................................................. 7 

2.2 State Regulations .......................................................................................................................... 7 
2.2.1 California Endangered Species Act .................................................................................... 7 
2.2.2 Fully Protected Species ....................................................................................................... 7 
2.2.3 Nesting Birds and Raptors .................................................................................................. 7 
2.2.4 Migratory Bird Protection ................................................................................................... 8 
2.2.5 Bats ..................................................................................................................................... 8 
2.2.6 Native Plant Protection Act ................................................................................................ 8 
2.2.7 California Environmental Quality Act ................................................................................ 8 

2.3 Federal, Regional and Local Conservation Plans ......................................................................... 8 

3 Methodology .......................................................................................................................................... 8 
3.1 Database and Literature Review ................................................................................................... 9 
3.2 Field Survey Methods ................................................................................................................... 9 

3.2.1 Flora and Fauna Surveys ..................................................................................................... 9 

4 Results – Existing Conditions ............................................................................................................ 10 
4.1 Soils ............................................................................................................................................ 10 
4.2 Vegetation Communities and Land Cover Types ....................................................................... 10 

4.2.1 California Buckwheat Scrub (Eriogonum fasciculatum Shrubland Alliance) .................. 11 
4.2.2 Fremont Cottonwood Forest and Woodland (Populus fremontii – Fraxinus velutina 

– Salix gooddingii Forest and Woodland Alliance) .......................................................... 11 
4.2.3 Mulefat Thickets (Baccharis salicifolia Shrubland Alliance) ........................................... 12 
4.2.4 Upland Mustards or Star-Thistle Fields (Brassica nigra – Centaurea [solstitialis, 

melitensis] Herbaceous Semi-Natural Alliance) ............................................................... 12 
4.2.5 Developed/Disturbed ........................................................................................................ 12 

4.3 Wildlife ....................................................................................................................................... 14 
4.3.1 Wildlife Movement Corridors and Habitat Linkages ....................................................... 14 

6 Special-Status Flora and Fauna ........................................................................................................ 15 
6.1.1 Special-Status Flora .......................................................................................................... 16 
6.1.2 Special Status Fauna ......................................................................................................... 18 

7 Jurisdictional Waters and Wetlands ................................................................................................ 21 

8 Impact Analysis .................................................................................................................................. 23 

9 Conclusions and Recommendations ................................................................................................. 23 

10 Literature Cited .................................................................................................................................. 25 

303



Biological Resources Assessment for the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Backcountry Pump Station Project  

ii 

Appendices 

Appendix A. Site Photos  
Appendix B. Floral Compendium 
Appendix C. Fauna Compendium 
Appendix D. Special-Status Flora – Potential for Occurrence 
Appendix E. Special-Status Fauna – Potential for Occurrence 
 
 

Figures 

Figure 1. Project Vicinity Map ..................................................................................................................... 3 
Figure 2. Project disturbance area and 100-foot buffer. ................................................................................ 4 
Figure 3. Project area location within context of the USGS 7.5-minute quadrangles topographic 

map............................................................................................................................................. 5 
Figure 4. Biological resource map. ............................................................................................................. 13 
Figure 5. Map of potential jurisdictional water resources within the Fremont cottonwood forest and 

woodland. ................................................................................................................................. 22 

Tables 

Table 1. Soil Map Units .............................................................................................................................. 10 
Table 2. Vegetation Communities and Land Cover Types Acreages, with Rarity Status .......................... 10 
Table 3. Special-Status Flora with Moderate or Greater Potential to Occur within the Survey Area......... 17 
Table 4. Special Status Fauna with Moderate or Greater Potential to Occur within the Survey Area ....... 19 
Table 5. Vegetation Communities and Land Cover Types Acreages Within Disturbance Area ................ 23 
Table 6. Avoidance and Mitigation Measures ............................................................................................ 23 

 

 

 
 
 

 

304



Biological Resources Assessment for the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Backcountry Pump Station Project 

1 

1 INTRODUCTION 
Woodard & Curran retained SWCA Environmental Consultants (SWCA) to conduct a biological 
resources assessment for the proposed Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency (SCV Water) Backcountry 
Pump Station Project (project), located in the city of Santa Clarita, Los Angeles County, California 
(Figure 1). The following study was conducted to analyze any potential impacts the project may have on 
biological and waters resources located in the project site to comply with the federal, state, and local 
regulations. This report documents the methods and results of a biological resources assessment, which 
reviewed the likelihood for occurrence of sensitive biological resources and potential impacts that may 
occur.  

1.1 Project Description and Location 
The proposed project consists of the Backcountry Pump Station and associated turn-out and distribution 
pipelines. The Backcountry Pump Station would be located within the incorporated boundaries of the city 
of Santa Clarita, north of Magic Mountain Parkway, south of the Santa Clara River, approximately 0.5 
mile east of Interstate 5 (Figure 2). The Backcountry Pump Station site is approximately 2 miles east/
north-east of the site for the Backcountry Reservoir. The existing Magic Mountain Pipeline follows 
Magic Mountain Parkway and passes partially through the pump station site. The project area is in 
Township 4 North, Range 17 West, as depicted on the U.S. Geological Survey (USGS) Newhall, 
California, 7.5-minute topographic quadrangle (Figure 3). 

The pump station site would include a pump building, flow control and pressure reducing station, 
emergency backup generator, fuel tank, and electrical transformer pad. The pump building would house 
the required mechanical and electrical equipment and would space for up to four 450 horsepower pumps.  
The overall dimension of the pump station site is approximately 268 feet by 140 feet. The pump building 
would be constructed with concrete masonry unit (CMU) block walls, with dimensions of approximately 
100 feet by 66 feet, for a total footprint of approximately 6,600 square feet.  

The access road and area surrounding the pump station would be paved with asphalt or concrete, and 
designed consistent with fire code, including, a minimum of 25 feet of clearance provided around the 
pump station building.  

A diesel backup generator would be installed in a generator room within the pump building. Fuel for the 
backup generator would be stored in two tanks (one 7,000 gallons and one 300 gallons). The fuel tanks 
would be installed within containment walls and would be located outside the pump building. 

The existing entrance gate from Magic Mountain Parkway, which is 26 feet wide, would remain in place 
and could accommodate various vehicles during construction and operation of the pump station. 
Perimeter fencing would be installed around the pump station and lighting at the pump station would be 
minimal. Landscaping, which would surround the property to provide privacy and to soften views of the 
pump station. 

The proposed project also includes a turnout (V-9 Turnout Facility) that would be located at the 
Backcountry Pump Station site at the 42-inch discharging pipe. The V-9 turnout would include pressure 
and flow control valves, as well as a flow meter. From the V-9 Turnout facility two distribution pipelines 
would be constructed in Magic Mountain Parkway to tie into existing distribution mains. Specifically, a 
16-inch distribution pipeline would extend approximately 1,920 feet in Magic Mountain Parkway to tie 
into the existing 16-inch main in Tourney Road to serve Zone 1, and a 24-inch distribution pipeline would 
extend approximately 1,4870 feet in Magic Mountain Parkway to tie into the existing 16-inch main in 
Wayne Mills Place to serve Zone IIA-N.

305



Biological Resources Assessment for the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Backcountry Pump Station Project  

2 

1.1.1 Construction Activities 
Construction of the pump station would involve site preparation, grading, structural improvements, 
paving, and electrical work. Minimal grading would be required as the site is relatively flat. Excavation 
for the pump station would be to a maximum depth of 15 feet below ground surface. Construction staging 
would occur on the proposed pump station site, and would require storage of equipment, construction 
materials, and stockpiled soil. Construction activities would be restricted to the disturbed site; areas of 
adjacent vegetation would be avoided. There is also potential for landscaping improvements and work to 
improve driveway access to Magic Mountain Parkway in the public right-of-way. 

Construction of the V-9 turnout would be by open cut trenching. To connect the pump station to the 
existing 42-inch water transmission pipeline (Magic Mountain Pipeline), some work may be required in 
public right-of-way in Magic Mountain Parkway. Construction of the 16-inch and 24-inch distribution 
pipelines in Magic Mountain Parkway would be completed by open cut trenching. The trench would have 
maximum depth of 6 feet below ground surface and width of 4 feet (2 feet on either side). All 
construction would take place within the Magic Mountain Parkway right-of-way. Construction staging for 
would be located at the pump station site. 

It is anticipated that in order to make proposed connections to the existing Magic Mountain Pipeline, 
dewatering and discharge into local storm drains along Magic Mountain Parkway would be required. 
Discharges into the storm drain would require a permit from County of Los Angeles Department of 
Public Works (LACDPW) with pre-approved discharge locations. In addition, coordination with the 
California Department of Fish & Wildlife (CDFW) would be required if significant discharges to the 
Santa Clara River, are required.   

1.2 Site Characteristics 
The survey area consists of flat land with little to no slope except for the north edge of the site, which has 
a north-facing aspect as part of the bank of the Santa Clara River (Appendix A, Photo 1). 

The maximum elevation is approximately 1,100 feet above mean sea level (amsl) in the southern extent of 
the survey area and the minimum elevation is approximately 1,080 feet amsl near the northern extent of 
the survey area. 

The survey area is primarily composed of disturbed/developed land with little vegetation within the 
project disturbance area, and patches of Upland Mustards, Mulefat Thickets, California Buckwheat Scrub 
and Fremont Cottonwood Forest and Woodland vegetation communities outside the project disturbance 
area (Appendix A, Photos 1–6). 

The project disturbance area is biologically depauperate (low diversity, quality and quantity of flora and 
fauna), likely due to its prior use for cultivating row crops until 2017, and its current paved state. Most 
biological diversity occurs within the 100-foot survey area buffer adjacent to the project disturbance area. 

Potential jurisdictional areas are present at the northern extent of the survey area, where the top of bank of 
the Santa Clara River is located, with vegetation associated with the riparian corridor, but these are 
approximately 90-95 feet outside of the proposed project disturbance areas. Appendix A provides several 
photographs of the site taken August 27, 2021, discussed further in Section 7 of this report.  

306



Biological Resources Assessment for the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Backcountry Pump Station Project  

3 

 
Figure 1. Project vicinity map 

307



Biological Resources Assessment for the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Backcountry Pump Station Project  

4 

. 

 
Figure 2. Project disturbance area and 100-foot buffer. 

308



Biological Resources Assessment for the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Backcountry Pump Station Project  

5 

 
Figure 3. Project area location within context of the USGS 7.5-minute quadrangles topographic 
map. 

309



Biological Resources Assessment for the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Backcountry Pump Station Project  

6 

2 REGULATORY SETTING 
The following discussion reviews policies federal, state, and local laws, regulations, and policies relating 
to plants, wildlife, and special-status habitats. Only those regulations potentially applicable to the 
proposed project are included herein. 

2.1 Federal Regulations 
2.1.1 Federal Endangered Species Act  
The U.S. Congress passed the Endangered Species Act (ESA) in 1973 to protect endangered species and 
species threatened with extinction (federally listed species). The ESA operates in conjunction with the 
National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) to help protect the ecosystems upon which endangered and 
threatened species depend. 

Section 9 of the ESA prohibits the “take” of endangered or threatened wildlife species. The legal 
definition of “take” is to “harass, harm, pursue, hunt, shoot, wound, kill, trap, capture, or collect, or to 
attempt to engage in any such conduct” (16 United States Code [USC] 1532(19)). Harm is further defined 
to include significant habitat modification or degradation that results in death or injury to listed species by 
significantly impairing behavioral patterns (50 Code of Federal Regulations [CFR] 17.3). Harassment is 
defined as actions that create the likelihood of injury to listed species to such an extent as to significantly 
disrupt normal behavior patterns (50 CFR 17.3). Actions that result in take can result in civil or criminal 
penalties. 

The ESA authorizes the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS) to issue permits under Sections 7 and 
10 of that act. Section 7 mandates that all federal agencies consult with the USFWS for terrestrial species 
and/or National Marine Fisheries Service (NMFS) for marine species to ensure that federal agency actions 
do not jeopardize the continued existence of a listed species or adversely modify critical habitat for listed 
species. Any anticipated adverse effects require preparation of a biological assessment to determine 
potential effects of the project on listed species and critical habitat. If the project adversely affects a listed 
species or its habitat, the USFWS or NMFS prepares a Biological Opinion. The Biological Opinion may 
recommend “reasonable and prudent alternatives” to the project to avoid jeopardizing or adversely 
modifying habitat including take limits. 

The ESA defines “critical habitat” as habitat deemed essential to the survival of a federally listed species. 
The ESA requires the federal government to designate critical habitat for any species it lists under the 
ESA. Under Section 7, all federal agencies must ensure that any actions they authorize, fund, or carry out 
are not likely to jeopardize the continued existence of a listed species, or destroy or adversely modify its 
designated critical habitat. These complementary requirements apply only to federal agency actions, and 
the latter only to specifically designated habitat. A critical habitat designation does not set up a preserve 
or refuge, and applies only when federal funding, permits, or projects are involved (i.e., a federal nexus). 
Critical habitat requirements do not apply to activities on private land that do not involve a federal nexus. 

Section 10 of the ESA includes provisions to authorize take that is incidental to, but not the purpose of, 
activities that are otherwise lawful. Under Section 10(a)(1)(B), USFWS may issue permits (incidental 
take permits) for take of ESA-listed species if the take is incidental and does not jeopardize the survival 
and recovery of the species. To obtain an incidental take permit, an applicant must submit a habitat 
conservation plan outlining steps to minimize and mitigate permitted take impacts to listed species. 

310



Biological Resources Assessment for the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Backcountry Pump Station Project  

7 

2.1.2 Migratory Bird Treaty Act 
The federal Migratory Bird Treaty Act (MBTA) prohibits any person, unless permitted by regulations, to 

…pursue, hunt, take, capture, kill, attempt to take, capture or kill, possess, offer for sale, sell, 
offer to purchase, purchase, deliver for shipment, ship, cause to be shipped, deliver for 
transportation, transport, cause to be transported, carry, or cause to be carried by any means 
whatsoever, receive for shipment, transportation or carriage, or export, at any time, or in any 
manner, any migratory bird, included in the terms of this Convention … for the protection of 
migratory birds ... or any part, nest, or egg of any such bird. (16 USC 703) 

The list of migratory birds includes nearly all bird species native to the United States. The statute was 
extended in 1974 to include parts of birds, as well as eggs and nests. The Migratory Bird Treaty Reform 
Act of 2004 further defined species protected under the act and excluded all nonnative species. Thus, it is 
illegal under MBTA to directly kill, or destroy a nest of, nearly any native bird species.  

2.2 State Regulations 
2.2.1 California Endangered Species Act  
The CDFW administers the California Endangered Species Act (CESA), which prohibits the “taking” of 
listed species except as otherwise provided in state law. Section 86 of the California Fish and Game Code 
(FGC) defines “take” as “hunt, pursue, catch, capture, or kill, or attempt to hunt, pursue, catch, capture, or 
kill.” Under certain circumstances, the CESA applies these take prohibitions to species petitioned for 
listing (state candidates). Pursuant to the requirements of the CESA, state lead agencies (as defined under 
California Public Resources Code Section 21067) are required to consult with the CDFW to ensure that 
any action or project is not likely to jeopardize the continued existence of any endangered or threatened 
species or result in destruction or adverse modification of essential habitat. Additionally, the CDFW 
encourages informal consultation on any proposed project that may impact a candidate species. The 
CESA requires the CDFW to maintain a list of threatened and endangered species. The CDFW also 
maintains a list of candidates for listing under the CESA, and of species of special concern (or watch list 
species). 

2.2.2 Fully Protected Species 
The FGC provides protection from take for a variety of species, referred to as fully protected species. 
Section 5050 lists protected amphibians and reptiles, and Section 3515 prohibits take of fully protected 
fish species. Eggs and nests of fully protected birds are covered under Section 3511. Migratory non-game 
birds are protected under Section 3800, and mammals are protected under Section 4700. Except for take 
related to scientific research, all take of fully protected species is prohibited. 

2.2.3 Nesting Birds and Raptors 
FGC Section 3503 states that it is unlawful to take, possess, or needlessly destroy the nest or eggs of any 
bird, except as otherwise provided by this code or any regulation made pursuant thereto. Section 3503.5 
provides protection for all birds of prey, including their eggs and nests. 

311



Biological Resources Assessment for the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Backcountry Pump Station Project  

8 

2.2.4 Migratory Bird Protection 
Take or possession of any migratory non-game bird as designated in the MBTA is prohibited by FGC 
Section 3513. 

2.2.5 Bats 
FGC Section 4150 prohibits the take of bats, regardless of their listing status. 

2.2.6 Native Plant Protection Act 
The Native Plant Protection Act (NPPA) of 1977 (FGC Section 1900–1913) directed the California 
Department of Fish and Game (now known as CDFW) to carry out the California Legislature’s intent to 
“preserve, protect and enhance rare and endangered plants in this State.” The NPPA gave the California 
Fish and Game Commission the power to designate native plants as “endangered” or “rare” and protect 
endangered and rare plants from take. The NPPA thus includes measures to preserve, protect, and 
enhance rare and endangered native plants.  

CESA has largely superseded NPPA for all plants designated as endangered by the NPPA. The NPPA 
nevertheless provides limitations on take of rare and endangered species as follows: “...no person will 
import into this state, or take, possess, or sell within this State” any rare or endangered native plant, 
except in compliance with provisions of the CESA. Individual landowners are required to notify the 
CDFW at least 10 days in advance of changing land uses to allow the CDFW to salvage any rare or 
endangered native plant material. 

2.2.7 California Environmental Quality Act  
The California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) was adopted in 1970 and applies to discretionary 
actions directly undertaken, financed, or permitted by state or local government lead agencies. CEQA 
requires that a project’s effects on environmental resources must be analyzed and assessed using criteria 
determined by the lead agency. CEQA defines a rare species in a broader sense than the definitions of 
threatened, endangered, or California species of concern. Under this definition, the CDFW can request 
additional consideration of species not otherwise protected. 

2.3 Federal, Regional and Local Conservation Plans 
There are no federal, state, or local parks; designated wildlife corridors or conservation areas; or Los 
Angeles County Significant Ecological Areas on or adjacent to the survey area. Similarly, there is no 
USFWS designated critical habitat or Habitat Conservation Plan, and no CDFW Natural Community 
Conservation Plan at or adjacent to the survey area except for arroyo toad (Anaxyrus californicus) critical 
habitat narrowly overlaps the north and west sides of the 100-foot buffer of the project disturbance area. 
The project site is also near Santa Clara River and Round Mountain Open Space, owned by the City of 
Santa Clarita. 

3 METHODOLOGY 
Information on the project area’s existing conditions was compiled from existing literature and available 
data on biological resources in the vicinity, and a reconnaissance-level field survey was conducted to 
assess potential habitat value for special-status species and assess on-site conditions. 

312



Biological Resources Assessment for the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Backcountry Pump Station Project  

9 

3.1 Database and Literature Review 
Existing databases and literature were reviewed to determine previously identified special-status 
biological resources that could occur on or in the immediate vicinity of the survey area. The data search 
centered on the USGS 7.5-minute Newhall quadrangle where the survey area is located, in addition to the 
surrounding eight quadrangles: Whitaker Peak, Warm Springs Mountain, Green Valley, Mint Canyon, 
San Fernando, Oat Mountain, Santa Susana, and Val Verde (see Figure 2).  

The following resources were used in the literature review: 

• California Natural Diversity Database (CNDDB) RAREFIND 5 (CDFW 2021a) 

• California Native Plant Society (CNPS) Inventory of Rare and Endangered Plants (CNPS 2001, 
2021a) 

• Calflora online database of California plants (Calflora 2021) 

• Consortium of California Herbaria (CCH) (CCH 2021) 

• Jepson eFlora, online database of California plants (Jepson Flora Project 2021) 

• A Manual of California Vegetation (CNPS 2021b) 

• eBird online database of bird distribution and abundance (eBird 2021) 

• USFWS Critical Habitat Mapper and File Data (USFWS 2021) 

• Google Earth aerial imagery (Google Earth 2021) 

• California Herps, A Guide to the Amphibians and Reptiles of California (Nafis 2021) 

This search was used to determine which special-status plant and wildlife species required analysis within 
the survey area by assessing existing on-site conditions. 

Preliminary mapping of on-site vegetation communities was conducted through desktop research with 
subsequent field verification. Vegetation alliances were classified using A Manual of California 
Vegetation (CNPS 2021b). 

3.2 Field Survey Methods 
A one-day reconnaissance-level habitat assessment was conducted over the survey area in August 2021. 

3.2.1 Flora and Fauna Surveys 
A biological resources survey was conducted on August 27, 2021, by SWCA biologist Maisie Borg of the 
project disturbance area and surrounding 100-foot buffer (survey area). The purpose of the survey was to 
document the biological diversity and the integrity of natural resources. Special attention was focused on 
determining the possibility that species designated as rare, or which are afforded special legislative 
protection, had the potential to occur in the survey area.  

The survey was conducted between 8:00 a.m. and 12:00 p.m. Conditions were sunny and hot, with 
temperatures ranging from 73 to 99 degrees Fahrenheit and wind speed ranging from 0 to 6 miles per 
hour. The survey area was accessible by vehicle and surveyed on foot.  

313



Biological Resources Assessment for the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Backcountry Pump Station Project  

10 

Existing biological conditions were noted while walking meandering transects and vegetation alliances 
were surveyed and mapped. The desktop vegetation map prepared ahead of time was verified and refined. 
Comprehensive lists of all plant and wildlife species identified were compiled (Appendices B and C). 
Particular focus was given to the potential occurrence of special-status species and the identification of 
suitable habitats and conditions to support them. Wildlife observations were made directly and aided by 
the use of binoculars or through sign including tracks, scat, and remains. Taxonomic conventions for flora 
followed the Jepson eFlora website (Jepson Flora Project 2021). Naming conventions for fauna followed 
those listed in CNDDB, the Birds of North America (Cornell Lab of Ornithology 2021), and the Peterson 
Field Guide to Western Reptiles & Amphibians (Stebbins 2018). Vegetation communities were classified 
using A Manual of California Vegetation (CNPS 2021b). All of the biological resources were recorded 
using a global positioning system (GPS) unit with submeter accuracy. 

4 RESULTS – EXISTING CONDITIONS 

4.1 Soils 
Soils are an important component of plant distribution, at times predictive of the occurrence of special-
status species and/or habitats. Only one soil series is mapped within the survey area, detailed in Table 1 
(Natural Resources Conservation Service [NRCS] 2021). 

Table 1. Soil Map Units 

Soil Symbol Map Unit Name* Percent of Survey Area 

SsA Sorrento loam, 0% to 2% slopes 100% 

*NRCS (2006). 

Sorrento loam, 0% to 2% percent slopes, is a nearly level soil that generally occurs on alluvial fans, flood 
plains, and in small valleys. It is alluvial, and a well-drained soil with low runoff potential. 

4.2 Vegetation Communities and Land Cover Types 
The project disturbance area is biologically depauperate, likely due to its prior use for cultivating row 
crops until 2017, and its current paved state. Most biological diversity occurs within the 100-foot buffer 
area, which includes three types of native vegetation communities: Mulefat Thickets, California 
Buckwheat Scrub, and Fremont Cottonwood Forest and Woodland. The project disturbance area consists 
of the Developed/Disturbed land cover type and a nonnative vegetation community: Upland Mustards or 
Star-Thistle Fields. The distribution of these vegetation communities and land cover types are displayed 
on Figure 4 with exact acreages in Table 2. Each vegetation community and land cover type are discussed 
in detail below. Appendix B lists all plants identified during the field survey.  

Table 2. Vegetation Communities and Land Cover Types Acreages, with Rarity Status 

Vegetation Community / 
Land Cover Type Rarity Rank* 

Acreage within 
Project Disturbance 
Area 

Acreage within 100-
foot Buffer  Total Acreage 

California Buckwheat Scrub S5 G5 0 0.08 0.08 

314



Biological Resources Assessment for the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Backcountry Pump Station Project  

11 

Vegetation Community / 
Land Cover Type Rarity Rank* 

Acreage within 
Project Disturbance 
Area 

Acreage within 100-
foot Buffer  Total Acreage 

Fremont Cottonwood Forest and 
Woodland 

S3.2 G4 0 0.22 0.22 

Mulefat Thickets S4 G4 0 0.39 0.39 

Upland Mustards or Star-Thistle 
Fields 

not applicable 0.25 1.52 1.78 

Developed/Disturbed not applicable 3.58 2.28 5.86 

*Rarity Rank = 
Global Rank: 
  G4 = Over 100 viable occurrences worldwide, and/or more than 32,000 acres 
  G5 = Demonstrably secure because of its worldwide abundance 
State Rank: 
  S3 = Rare or uncommon in state (usually 21 to 100 occurrences) 
  S4 = Over 100 viable occurrences statewide, and/or more than 32,000 acres 
  S5 = Demonstrably secure because of its statewide abundance 
0.1 = very threatened 0.2 = threatened 0.3 = no current threats known 

4.2.1 California Buckwheat Scrub (Eriogonum fasciculatum 
Shrubland Alliance) 

California Buckwheat Scrub is a shrubland vegetation community composed of shrubs typically less the 
2 meters tall with a variable herbaceous layer that may be grassy. In the survey area, this vegetation 
community occurs at the southern portion, in a small sliver bordering Magic Mountain Parkway, totaling 
only 0.08 acre. (Appendix A, Photo 2). Besides California buckwheat (Eriogonum fasciculatum), this 
community is heavily influenced by the invasive weed, shortpod mustard (Hirschfeldia incana). There are 
also other nonnatives such as white horehound (Marrubium vulgare) and the annual invasive grass, red 
brome (Bromus rubens). Notably, trash is incidentally piled in this area as the wind sweeps it from the 
main thoroughfare, Magic Mountain Parkway, creating an even more disturbed ecology in this shrubland.  

4.2.2 Fremont Cottonwood Forest and Woodland (Populus 
fremontii – Fraxinus velutina – Salix gooddingii Forest and 
Woodland Alliance) 

Fremont cottonwood forest and woodland is characterized by Fremont cottonwood (Populus fremontii 
ssp. fremontii) as dominant or co-dominant in a continuous to open tree canopy with an intermittent to 
open shrub layer and a variable herbaceous layer. These Fremont cottonwood–dominated woodlands are 
found in the northern portion of the survey area, only within the 100-foot buffer to the project disturbance 
area, covering approximately 0.22 acre. Fremont cottonwoods make up over 30% relative cover in the 
tree canopy with red willow (Salix laevigata) present in lesser abundance. The shrub layer is partially 
dominated by the nonnative giant reed (Arundo donax), with other natives in the understory such as creek 
clematis (Clematis ligusticifolia) and California wild rose (Rosa californica). An overview photo is 
available in Appendix A, Photo 3. Other invasives such as the Peruvian pepper tree (Schinus molle) are 
also present within this community, especially in the northeastern portion of the site. Importantly, this 

315



Biological Resources Assessment for the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Backcountry Pump Station Project  

12 

vegetation community is recognized as a CDFW Sensitive Natural Community with a state rarity status of 
S3.2, meaning that it is rare or uncommon in the state (usually 21 to 100 occurrences) and is threatened.  

4.2.3 Mulefat Thickets (Baccharis salicifolia Shrubland Alliance) 
Mulefat thickets (Appendix A, Photo 4) are shrublands typically with two tiers; the top tier about 12 feet 
tall, dominated by mulefat (Baccharis salicifolia ssp. salicifolia) at over 50% relative cover, and the 
second tier, the subshrub canopy, less than 6 feet tall, with multiple native and nonnative shrubs, and a 
sparse herbaceous layer. In the survey area, native shrubs that are present include coyote brush (Baccharis 
pilularis), sugar bush (Rhus ovata), and blue elderberry (Sambucus nigra ssp. caerulea). Nonnative 
shrubs in the survey area include tree tobacco (Nicotiana glauca) and saltcedar (Tamarix ramosissima). 
Emergent trees are present at low cover, including California sycamore (Platanus racemosa) and Fremont 
cottonwood. The herbaceous layer is dominated by nonnative annual grasses and a few native herbs 
including Coulter’s horseweed (Laennecia coulteri), seaside heliotrope (Heliotropium curassavicum var. 
oculatum) and Canada horseweed (Erigeron canadensis). Patches of perennial pepperweed (Lepidium 
latifolium) line the outer edges where enough sunlight is available. Overall, this vegetation alliance covers 
0.39 acre of the survey area. 

4.2.4 Upland Mustards or Star-Thistle Fields (Brassica nigra – 
Centaurea [solstitialis, melitensis] Herbaceous Semi-Natural 
Alliance) 

Upland mustards or star-thistle fields are a vegetation community dominated by nonnative invasive 
plants. In the survey area there are two distinct versions of this community. In some patches in the 
southern portion of the survey area, the community is dominated by shortpod mustard (Hirschfeldia 
incana) (Appendix A, Photo 5) and other swaths in the northern portion of the survey area are dominated 
by tocalote (Centaurea melitensis) (Appendix A, Photo 6). Both these communities are dominated by the 
invasive annual, but also are home to natives such as fiddleneck (Amsinckia menziesii) and common 
phacelia (Phacelia distans) where they can compete against the invasive species. Emergent shrubs are 
present at low cover such as blue elderberry. This alliance type is the second most abundant within the 
survey area at approximately 1.78 acres. 

4.2.5 Developed/Disturbed 
This land cover type is not a vegetation community, but rather a descriptor for areas mostly devoid of 
vegetation due to anthropogenic activities, which have little to no potential to support native species. 
Developed/Disturbed areas typically include roads, buildings, and parking lots. It is the most prevalent 
land cover type mapped within the study area boundary which includes the project area and buffer, 
covering approximately 5.86 acres (Appendix A, Photo 7). The project disturbance area is highly 
disturbed due to row crop cultivation until 2017, and its current paved state. Cracks in the pavement 
provide areas for water to gather and invasives such as prickly lettuce (Lactuca serriola) and Russian 
thistle (Salsola tragus) are first to compete for the resource. Along the margins of the developed/disturbed 
area, the invasive annual grass, red brome, flourishes.  

316



Biological Resources Assessment for the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Backcountry Pump Station Project  

13 

  
Figure 4. Biological resource map. 

317



Biological Resources Assessment for the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Backcountry Pump Station Project  

14 

4.3 Wildlife 
Few species of wildlife were observed or detected during the August 2021 field survey, due to a 
combination of the time of year and the highly disturbed, dry, and senescent conditions of the site. 
Wildlife considered common and typical of such areas near urban development were noted, including 
western fence lizard (Sceloporus occidentalis), turkey vulture (Cathartes aura), and Anna’s 
Hummingbird (Calypte anna). Three woodrat (Neotoma sp.) middens were also observed (see Figure 4). 
Appendix C provides a list of all wildlife detected while surveying the area. 

4.3.1 Wildlife Movement Corridors and Habitat Linkages 
Wildlife corridors and habitat linkages are features that promote habitat connectivity. Wildlife corridors 
are typically discrete linear features within a landscape that are constrained by development or other non-
habitat areas. Habitat linkages are networks of corridors through and between larger natural open spaces 
that facilitate movement of wildlife, thus providing long-term resilience of ecosystems against the 
detrimental effects of habitat fragmentation. Regional connection between high-quality open space 
habitats is critical to ongoing interchange of genetic material between populations, wildlife movement to 
escape natural disasters (fires, floods), colonization and expansion of populations, and plant propagation. 

The survey area currently provides semi-free (due to the fence) wildlife movement for animals of 
moderate size within the property adjacent to the Santa Clara River and Round Mountain Open Space, 
owned by the City of Santa Clarita. However, residential, commercial, and industrial land uses, and the 
well-traveled Magic Mountain Parkway surround the site to the east, west, and south and already impose 
significant restrictions to wildlife movement into and out of the site. Birds and bats are typically able to 
move freely over these barriers, but the movement of other animals would be restricted.  

5 MIGRATORY BIRDS 

5.1 Migratory Birds 
There are bird species on the project area are protected under the Migratory Bird Treaty Act (MBTA), 
which provides federal protection to all migratory birds, including nests and eggs. In order  
to relocate or alter any MBTA-protected nests, it would be necessary to obtain a permit from the USFWS  
to maintain compliance with the MBTA. However, Section 1 of the Interim Empty Nest Policy of the 
USFWS, Region 2, states that if the nest is completely inactive at the time of destruction or movement,  
a permit is not required in order to comply with the MBTA. If an active nest is observed before or during 
construction, measures should be taken to protect the nest from destruction and to avoid a possible 
violation of the MBTA. 

Should any species covered under the MBTA be discovered nesting within the project area, avoidance  
of active nests would be required and may limit the timing of some ground-disturbing activities. Nesting 
generally occurs from February 1 through September 1. Measures to prevent birds from nesting, such  
as placement of exclusionary netting or removal of nesting habitat (e.g., blading and vegetation removal) 
can be implemented prior to the breeding season and is allowable under the MBTA. 

318



Biological Resources Assessment for the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Backcountry Pump Station Project  

15 

6 SPECIAL-STATUS FLORA AND FAUNA  
Special-status species evaluated in this study include plants and animals in one or more of the following 
categories: 

• Species listed or proposed for listing as threatened or endangered under the federal ESA (50 CFR 
17.12 [listed plants], 50 CFR 17.11 [listed animals], and various notices in the Federal Register 
[proposed species]). 

• Species that are candidates for possible future listing as threatened or endangered under ESA 
(67 Federal Register 40657, June 13, 2002). 

• Species listed or proposed for listing by the State of California as threatened or endangered under 
the CESA (14 California Code of Regulations [CCR] 670.5). 

• Species that meet the definitions of rare or endangered under the CEQA (State CEQA Guidelines 
Section 15380). 

• Plants listed as rare under the California NPPA (FGC 1900 et seq.).  

• Plants listed in CNPS’s California Rare Plant Rank system (CNPS 2001). 

• Animal species of special concern as listed by the CDFW (2021b). 

• Animals fully protected in California (FGC 3511 [birds], 4700 [mammals], 5050 [amphibians and 
reptiles], and 5515 [fish]).  

• Invertebrates listed on the California Special Animals List (CDFW 2021c).  

Appendices D and E provide lists of special-status plants and wildlife previously reported as occurring on 
the Newhall USGS quadrangle, where the project lies, and the eight quads surrounding it (Figure 2). 
These tables summarize the occurrence potential for each species within the survey area based on the on-
site habitat conditions observed during the survey. During the assessment, each species was assigned to 
one of the categories listed below: 

Present: Species is known to occur within the survey area, based on recent (within 20 years) CNDDB 
or other records, and there is suitable habitat present within the survey area, or the species was 
observed within the survey area during the field survey. The presence of bird species was 
distinguished further into those that 1) nest in the survey area, 2) forage in the survey area, and/or 
3) occur in the survey area only as transients during migratory flights or other dispersal events.  

High Potential: Species is known to occur in the vicinity of the survey area (based on recent [within 
20 years] CNDDB or other records or based on professional expertise specific to the area or species), 
and there is suitable habitat within the survey area that makes the probability of the species occurring 
there high. Alternatively, there is suitable habitat within the survey area and within the known range 
of the species. Bird species in this category were differentiated based on their occurrence in the 
survey area for breeding, for foraging only, and/or as transients.  

Moderate Potential: Species is known to occur at the survey area (based on non-historic [within 
40 years] CNDDB or other records or based on professional expertise specific to the area or species), 
and there is moderate-quality habitat in the survey area that makes the probability of the species 
occurring there moderate. Alternatively, there is moderate-quality habitat in the part of the survey 
area that falls within the known range of the species.  

Low Potential: Species is known to occur in the vicinity of the survey area (within the area 
comprised by the surrounding USGS quadrangles); however, there is only poor quality or marginal 
habitat within the survey area and the probability of the species occurring is low.  

319



Biological Resources Assessment for the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Backcountry Pump Station Project  

16 

Absent: There is no suitable habitat for the species within the survey area, the area is located outside 
the known range of the species, or the species has an extremely low probability of being found on the 
property. Alternatively, a species was surveyed for during the appropriate season with unequivocal 
negative results for species occurrence. 

No special-status species were found on-site during the August 2021; only species with a moderate to 
high potential to occur will be discussed in detail in the following sections.  

These findings are based solely on habitat conditions found on-site during the August 2021 field survey 
and the biologist’s knowledge of the species and project vicinity.  

6.1.1 Special-Status Flora 
The literature search identified 72 special-status plant species as occurring in the nine-quadrangle search 
area. Excluding species that were able to be determined absent at the time of the August 27 survey date—
meaning characteristic plant parts would have been in season and available for examination if present—
only four species have potentially suitable habitat present within the survey area: San Fernando Valley 
spineflower (Chorizanthe parryi var. fernandina), club-haired mariposa lily (Calochortus clavatus var. 
clavatus), slender mariposa-lily (Calochortus clavatus var. gracilis), and Plummer’s mariposa-lily 
(Calochortus plummerae). Each species is thoroughly reviewed in the table below, including the 
blooming month for each species (Table 3). For the full list of special-status plant species analyzed and 
the occurrence potential designated for each species, see Appendix D. 

320



B
io

lo
gi

ca
l R

es
ou

rc
es

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t f

or
 th

e 
S

an
ta

 C
la

rit
a 

V
al

le
y 

W
at

er
 A

ge
nc

y 
B

ac
kc

ou
nt

ry
 P

um
p 

S
ta

tio
n 

P
ro

je
ct

 

17
 

Ta
bl

e 
3.

 S
pe

ci
al

-S
ta

tu
s 

Fl
or

a 
w

ith
 M

od
er

at
e 

or
 G

re
at

er
 P

ot
en

tia
l t

o 
O

cc
ur

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
Su

rv
ey

 A
re

a 

Sc
ie

nt
ifi

c 
Na

m
e 

C
om

m
on

 
Na

m
e 

CR
PR

*;
 

Li
st

in
g 

St
at

us
 

Id
ea

l 
Su

rv
ey

 
M

on
th

 
H

ab
ita

t 
El

ev
at

io
n 

(fe
et

 
am

sl
) 

Po
te

nt
ia

l T
o 

O
cc

ur
 

C
ho

riz
an

th
e 

pa
rry

i v
ar

. 
fe

rn
an

di
na

 

Sa
n 

Fe
rn

an
do

 
Va

lle
y 

sp
in

ef
lo

w
er

 

1B
.1

; s
ta

te
 

lis
te

d 
as

 
en

da
ng

er
ed

 

la
te

 A
pr

il–
M

ay
 

co
as

ta
l s

cr
ub

, v
al

le
y 

an
d 

fo
ot

hi
ll 

gr
as

sl
an

d 
49

0–
4,

00
5 

M
od

er
at

e.
 S

ur
ve

y 
ar

ea
 lo

ca
te

d 
ad

ja
ce

nt
 to

 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

ho
ts

po
t. 

20
11

 C
N

D
D

B 
oc

cu
rre

nc
e 

re
co

rd
 lo

ca
te

d 
0.

5 
m

ile
 w

es
t o

f 
su

rv
ey

 a
re

a,
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
w

ith
 B

ro
m

us
 

di
an

dr
us

, a
nd

 B
ro

m
us

 ru
be

ns
 g

ra
ss

la
nd

 
(s

im
ila

rly
 d

is
tu

rb
ed

 h
ab

ita
t i

n 
su

rv
ey

 a
re

a)
. 

C
al

oc
ho

rtu
s 

cl
av

at
us

 v
ar

. 
cl

av
at

us
 

cl
ub

-h
ai

re
d 

m
ar

ip
os

a 
lily

 
4.

3 
la

te
 A

pr
il–

ea
rly

 M
ay

 
ch

ap
ar

ra
l, 

ci
sm

on
ta

ne
 

w
oo

dl
an

d,
 c

oa
st

al
 

sc
ru

b,
 v

al
le

y 
an

d 
fo

ot
hi

ll 
gr

as
sl

an
d;

 c
la

y,
 

ro
ck

y,
 s

er
pe

nt
in

ite
 

(u
su

al
ly

) 

10
0–

4,
26

5 
M

od
er

at
e.

 R
ec

en
t a

nd
 n

ea
r C

C
H

 
oc

cu
rre

nc
es

 (2
01

1,
 4

.6
 m

ile
s 

no
rth

; 2
00

8,
 

6.
3 

m
ile

s 
no

rth
ea

st
) o

cc
ur

 in
 s

im
ila

r h
ab

ita
t 

(d
is

tu
rb

ed
 a

nn
ua

l g
ra

ss
la

nd
s)

. 2
01

5 
C

al
flo

ra
 

re
co

rd
 is

 7
.5

 m
ile

s 
up

st
re

am
 in

 s
im

ila
rly

 
di

st
ur

be
d 

ha
bi

ta
t a

s 
pr

es
en

t i
n 

su
rv

ey
 a

re
a,

 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 w
ith

 w
ee

dy
 s

pe
ci

es
. 

C
al

oc
ho

rtu
s 

cl
av

at
us

 v
ar

. 
gr

ac
ilis

 

sl
en

de
r 

m
ar

ip
os

a-
lily

 
1B

.2
 

la
te

 A
pr

il–
M

ay
 

ch
ap

ar
ra

l, 
co

as
ta

l 
sc

ru
b,

 v
al

le
y 

an
d 

fo
ot

hi
ll 

gr
as

sl
an

d 

1,
05

0–
3,

28
0 

M
od

er
at

e.
 M

ul
tip

le
 re

ce
nt

 C
N

D
D

B 
re

co
rd

s 
oc

cu
r s

ur
ro

un
di

ng
 s

ur
ve

y 
ar

ea
 in

 a
ll 

di
re

ct
io

ns
, n

ea
re

st
 fr

om
 2

01
8 

an
d 

0.
5 

m
ile

 to
 

th
e 

w
es

t, 
fo

un
d 

on
 s

im
ila

r s
oi

ls
 th

at
 a

re
 

fo
un

d 
in

 th
e 

su
rv

ey
 a

re
a 

w
he

re
 n

ot
 p

av
ed

. 
O

nl
y 

m
od

er
at

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l d

ue
 to

 d
om

in
an

ce
 o

f 
in

va
si

ve
s 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
lly

 s
ui

ta
bl

e 
ha

bi
ta

t; 
ho

w
ev

er
, B

ro
m

us
 m

ad
rit

en
si

s 
ss

p.
 

R
ub

en
s 

an
d 

C
en

ta
ur

ea
 m

el
ite

ns
is

 re
co

rd
ed

 
in

 th
e 

re
co

rd
s 

ne
ar

 s
ur

ve
y 

ar
ea

. 

C
al

oc
ho

rtu
s 

pl
um

m
er

ae
 

Pl
um

m
er

’s
 

m
ar

ip
os

a-
lily

 
4.

2 
ea

rly
 

Ju
ne

 
ch

ap
ar

ra
l, 

ci
sm

on
ta

ne
 

w
oo

dl
an

d,
 c

oa
st

al
 

sc
ru

b,
 lo

w
er

 m
on

ta
ne

 
co

ni
fe

ro
us

 fo
re

st
, 

va
lle

y 
an

d 
fo

ot
hi

ll 
gr

as
sl

an
d;

 g
ra

ni
tic

, 
ro

ck
y 

33
0–

5,
58

0 
M

od
er

at
e.

 2
01

4 
C

C
H

 re
co

rd
 3

.4
 m

ile
s 

so
ut

he
as

t o
f s

ur
ve

y 
ar

ea
, a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
w

ith
 

H
irs

ch
fe

ld
ia

 in
ca

na
, s

im
ila

r h
ab

ita
t w

ith
in

 
su

rv
ey

 a
re

a.
 2

00
3 

C
C

H
 re

co
rd

 in
 s

an
dy

 c
la

y 
so

il 
an

d 
re

co
rd

ed
 3

.9
 m

ile
s 

up
st

re
am

 o
f 

Sa
nt

a 
C

la
ra

 R
iv

er
 c

or
rid

or
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
w

ith
 

B
ro

m
us

 ru
be

ns
, s

im
ila

r h
ab

ita
t w

ith
in

 s
ur

ve
y 

ar
ea

.  

SW
C

A 
20

21

321



Biological Resources Assessment for the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Backcountry Pump Station Project  

18 

All four of the special-status plant species with a moderate potential to occur within the survey area 
would only be expected in the 100-foot buffer around the project disturbance area, not the project 
disturbance area itself (see Figure 3). This is due to the heavily impacted soils as a result of the property’s 
prior use for cultivating row crops until 2017, and its current mostly paved state. Three of the four species 
are from the genus Calochortus. Notably, no dried three-chambered septicidal capsules—the unique fruit 
of the genus Calochortus—were observed during the August survey, although these are sometimes 
difficult to observe when surveying within similarly straw-colored dried shortpod mustard (Hirschfeldia 
incana) stems.  

6.1.2 Special Status Fauna 
Special-status fauna includes species or subspecies listed as endangered, threatened, or candidate for 
listing as endangered or threatened under the federal ESA, the CESA, or both. All wildlife species 
designated by the CDFW as fully protected, species of special concern, watch list species, and other 
wildlife included in the most current CDFW special animals list are also included (CDFW 2021a). 

Fifty-one special-status species of fauna were reported in the literature as occurring within the nine-
quadrangle search area, with the subject property in the center. Of these, six are considered to have a 
moderate occurrence potential within the survey area: Cooper’s hawk (Accipiter cooperii), white-tailed 
kite (Elanus leucurus), least Bell’s vireo (Vireo bellii pusillus), coastal whiptail (Aspidoscelis tigris 
stejnegeri), western pond turtle (Emys marmorata), and coast horned lizard (Phrynosoma blainvillii). 
Each are presented in the table below with full life history details and reasoning behind their occurrence 
potentials (Table 4). For the full list of special-status wildlife species analyzed and the occurrence 
potential designated for each species, see Appendix E.  

It is important to note that the project disturbance area is very heavily disturbed (paved and invasive 
vegetation where unpaved), and thus the wildlife species that do have a moderate potential to occur are 
expected to occur only within the 100-foot buffer around the disturbance area, where habitat is further 
intact and provides suitable conditions for life (see Figure 4).  

There is arroyo toad critical habitat partially overlaps the north and west sides of the 100-foot buffer of 
the project disturbance area. The arroyo toad is associated with the riparian habitat of the Santa Clara 
River, the potential jurisdictional area of which can be viewed in the figure in Section 7, below, which 
represents a more accurate representation of the potentially riparian habitat within the survey area. 
Because there are no quiet waters or pools directly in the survey area, the potential for arroyo toad within 
the survey area is low (USFWS 2014).  

322



B
io

lo
gi

ca
l R

es
ou

rc
es

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t f

or
 th

e 
S

an
ta

 C
la

rit
a 

V
al

le
y 

W
at

er
 A

ge
nc

y 
B

ac
kc

ou
nt

ry
 P

um
p 

S
ta

tio
n 

P
ro

je
ct

  

19
 

Ta
bl

e 
4.

 S
pe

ci
al

 S
ta

tu
s 

Fa
un

a 
w

ith
 M

od
er

at
e 

or
 G

re
at

er
 P

ot
en

tia
l t

o 
O

cc
ur

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
Su

rv
ey

 A
re

a 

Ph
yl

og
en

et
ic

 
C

at
eg

or
y 

Sc
ie

nt
ifi

c 
N

am
e 

Co
m

m
on

 N
am

e 
St

at
us

 
G

en
er

al
 H

ab
ita

t 
M

ic
ro

ha
bi

ta
t 

Po
te

nt
ia

l t
o 

O
cc

ur
 

Bi
rd

s 
A

cc
ip

ite
r c

oo
pe

rii
 

C
oo

pe
r’s

 h
aw

k 
C

D
FW

_W
L 

 
C

is
m

on
ta

ne
 w

oo
dl

an
d 

| 
R

ip
ar

ia
n 

fo
re

st
 | 

R
ip

ar
ia

n 
w

oo
dl

an
d 

| U
pp

er
 m

on
ta

ne
 

co
ni

fe
ro

us
 fo

re
st

 

W
oo

dl
an

d,
 c

hi
ef

ly
 o

f o
pe

n,
 

in
te

rru
pt

ed
 o

r m
ar

gi
na

l 
ty

pe
; n

es
t s

ite
s 

m
ai

nl
y 

in
 

rip
ar

ia
n 

gr
ow

th
s 

of
 

de
ci

du
ou

s 
tre

es
, a

s 
in

 
ca

ny
on

 b
ot

to
m

s 
on

 ri
ve

r 
flo

od
pl

ai
ns

; a
ls

o,
 li

ve
 o

ak
s.

 

M
od

er
at

e.
 2

00
5 

C
N

D
D

B 
oc

cu
rre

nc
e 

1.
6 

m
ile

s 
to

 th
e 

ea
st

 o
f s

ur
ve

y 
ar

ea
. 

Pa
tc

h 
of

 c
ot

to
nw

oo
d 

fo
re

st
 a

t t
he

 
no

rth
er

n 
en

d 
of

 s
ur

ve
y 

ar
ea

 s
ui

ta
bl

e,
 a

s 
it 

is
 a

dj
ac

en
t t

o 
w

illo
w

 s
cr

ub
 ju

st
 li

ke
 

ne
ar

by
 o

cc
ur

re
nc

e 
re

co
rd

 s
ta

te
s.

 
C

oo
pe

r’s
 h

aw
ks

 a
re

 fa
irl

y 
co

m
m

on
 a

nd
 

ar
e 

to
le

ra
nt

 o
f u

rb
an

 s
et

tin
g,

 w
he

re
 th

ey
 

pr
ey

 o
n 

so
ng

bi
rd

s.
 

Bi
rd

s 
E

la
nu

s 
le

uc
ur

us
 

w
hi

te
-ta

ile
d 

ki
te

 
BL

M
_S

, 
C

D
FW

_F
P 

IU
C

N
_L

C
 

C
is

m
on

ta
ne

 w
oo

dl
an

d 
| 

M
ar

sh
 a

nd
 s

w
am

p 
| 

R
ip

ar
ia

n 
w

oo
dl

an
d 

| V
al

le
y 

an
d 

fo
ot

hi
ll 

gr
as

sl
an

d 
| 

W
et

la
nd

 

R
ol

lin
g 

fo
ot

hi
lls

 a
nd

 v
al

le
y 

m
ar

gi
ns

 w
ith

 s
ca

tte
re

d 
oa

ks
 a

nd
 ri

ve
r b

ot
to

m
la

nd
s 

or
 m

ar
sh

es
 n

ex
t t

o 
de

ci
du

ou
s 

w
oo

dl
an

d;
 o

pe
n 

gr
as

sl
an

ds
, m

ea
do

w
s,

 o
r 

m
ar

sh
es

 fo
r f

or
ag

in
g 

cl
os

e 
to

 is
ol

at
ed

, d
en

se
-to

pp
ed

 
tre

es
 fo

r n
es

tin
g 

an
d 

pe
rc

hi
ng

. 

M
od

er
at

e.
 2

00
5 

C
N

D
D

B 
oc

cu
rre

nc
e 

re
co

rd
 2

60
 fe

et
 n

or
th

 o
f s

ur
ve

y 
ar

ea
. 

N
es

ts
 in

 c
ot

to
nw

oo
ds

; s
ui

ta
bl

e 
co

tto
nw

oo
d-

w
illo

w
 ri

pa
ria

n 
fo

re
st

 
ha

bi
ta

t i
n 

no
rth

er
n 

po
rti

on
 o

f 1
00

-fo
ot

 
bu

ffe
r o

f t
he

 p
ro

je
ct

 d
is

tu
rb

an
ce

 a
re

a 
an

d 
no

rth
 o

f s
ur

ve
y 

ar
ea

. 

Bi
rd

s 
V

ire
o 

be
lli

i 
pu

si
llu

s 
le

as
t B

el
l’s

 v
ire

o 
FE

; S
E;

 
IU

C
N

_N
T;

 
N

AB
C

I_
YW

L 

R
ip

ar
ia

n 
fo

re
st

 | 
R

ip
ar

ia
n 

sc
ru

b 
| R

ip
ar

ia
n 

w
oo

dl
an

d 
Su

m
m

er
 re

si
de

nt
 o

f 
So

ut
he

rn
 C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 in
 lo

w
 

rip
ar

ia
n 

ar
ea

s 
in

 th
e 

vi
ci

ni
ty

 
of

 w
at

er
 o

r i
n 

dr
y 

riv
er

 
bo

tto
m

s;
 b

el
ow

 2
,0

00
 fe

et
 

am
sl

. N
es

ts
 p

la
ce

d 
al

on
g 

m
ar

gi
ns

 o
f b

us
he

s 
or

 o
n 

tw
ig

s 
pr

oj
ec

tin
g 

in
to

 
pa

th
w

ay
s,

 u
su

al
ly

 w
illo

w
, 

Ba
cc

ha
ris

, m
es

qu
ite

. 

M
od

er
at

e.
 2

01
6 

an
d 

20
10

 C
N

D
D

B 
re

co
rd

s 
0.

9–
1.

2 
m

ile
s 

no
rth

 o
f s

ur
ve

y 
ar

ea
. O

bs
er

ve
d 

in
 m

ul
ef

at
 s

cr
ub

 
bo

rd
er

ed
 b

y 
Fr

em
on

t c
ot

to
nw

oo
d 

w
oo

dl
an

d.
 V

er
y 

su
ita

bl
e 

ha
bi

ta
t o

n-
si

te
 

an
d 

ad
ja

ce
nt

 to
 s

ite
. 

R
ep

til
es

 
A

sp
id

os
ce

lis
 

tig
ris

 s
te

jn
eg

er
i 

co
as

ta
l w

hi
pt

ai
l 

C
D

FW
_S

SC
 

H
ot

 a
nd

 d
ry

 o
pe

n 
ar

ea
s 

w
ith

 s
pa

rs
e 

fo
lia

ge
 –

 
ch

ap
ar

ra
l, 

w
oo

dl
an

d,
 a

nd
 

rip
ar

ia
n 

ar
ea

s 

Fo
un

d 
in

 d
es

er
ts

 a
nd

 s
em

i-
ar

id
 a

re
as

 w
ith

 s
pa

rs
e 

ve
ge

ta
tio

n 
an

d 
op

en
 a

re
as

. 
Al

so
 fo

un
d 

in
 w

oo
dl

an
d 

an
d 

rip
ar

ia
n 

ar
ea

s.
 G

ro
un

d 
m

ay
 b

e 
fir

m
 s

oi
l, 

sa
nd

y,
 o

r 
ro

ck
y.

 

M
od

er
at

e.
 2

01
5 

an
d 

20
16

 re
co

rd
s 

0.
7 

to
 1

 m
ile

 a
w

ay
, b

ot
h 

w
es

t a
nd

 
no

rth
ea

st
. O

ne
 re

co
rd

s 
st

at
es

 o
bs

er
ve

d 
in

 b
ik

e 
pa

th
 a

dj
ac

en
t t

o 
ro

ad
; b

ik
e 

pa
th

 
ru

ns
 th

ou
gh

 th
e 

su
rv

ey
 a

re
a 

w
ith

 
ad

ja
ce

nt
 ri

pa
ria

n 
ar

ea
 a

nd
 s

ou
th

 s
id

e 
of

 
10

0-
fo

ot
 p

ro
je

ct
 d

is
tu

rb
an

ce
 a

re
a 

bu
ffe

r 
is

 s
em

i-a
rid

, a
s 

th
is

 s
pe

ci
es

 p
re

fe
rs

. 

323



B
io

lo
gi

ca
l R

es
ou

rc
es

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t f

or
 th

e 
S

an
ta

 C
la

rit
a 

V
al

le
y 

W
at

er
 A

ge
nc

y 
B

ac
kc

ou
nt

ry
 P

um
p 

S
ta

tio
n 

P
ro

je
ct

  

20
 

Ph
yl

og
en

et
ic

 
C

at
eg

or
y 

Sc
ie

nt
ifi

c 
N

am
e 

Co
m

m
on

 N
am

e 
St

at
us

 
G

en
er

al
 H

ab
ita

t 
M

ic
ro

ha
bi

ta
t 

Po
te

nt
ia

l t
o 

O
cc

ur
 

R
ep

til
es

 
E

m
ys

 m
ar

m
or

at
a 

w
es

te
rn

 p
on

d 
tu

rtl
e 

BL
M

_S
; 

C
D

FW
_S

SC
; 

IU
C

N
_V

U
; 

U
SF

S_
S 

Aq
ua

tic
 | 

Ar
tif

ic
ia

l f
lo

w
in

g 
w

at
er

s 
| K

la
m

at
h/

N
or

th
 

co
as

t f
lo

w
in

g 
w

at
er

s 
| 

Kl
am

at
h/

N
or

th
 c

oa
st

 
st

an
di

ng
 w

at
er

s 
| M

ar
sh

 
an

d 
sw

am
p 

| 
Sa

cr
am

en
to

/S
an

 J
oa

qu
in

 
flo

w
in

g 
w

at
er

s 
| 

Sa
cr

am
en

to
/S

an
 J

oa
qu

in
 

st
an

di
ng

 w
at

er
s 

| S
ou

th
 

co
as

t f
lo

w
in

g 
w

at
er

s 
| 

So
ut

h 
co

as
t s

ta
nd

in
g 

w
at

er
s 

| W
et

la
nd

 

A 
th

or
ou

gh
ly

 a
qu

at
ic

 tu
rtl

e 
of

 p
on

ds
, m

ar
sh

es
, r

iv
er

s,
 

st
re

am
s 

an
d 

irr
ig

at
io

n 
di

tc
he

s,
 u

su
al

ly
 w

ith
 

aq
ua

tic
 v

eg
et

at
io

n,
 b

el
ow

 
6,

00
0 

fe
et

 a
m

sl
. N

ee
ds

 
ba

sk
in

g 
si

te
s 

an
d 

su
ita

bl
e 

(s
an

dy
 b

an
ks

 o
r g

ra
ss

y 
op

en
 fi

el
ds

) u
pl

an
d 

ha
bi

ta
t 

up
 to

 0
.3

1 
m

ile
s 

fro
m

 w
at

er
 

fo
r e

gg
-la

yi
ng

. 

M
od

er
at

e.
 2

01
5 

C
N

D
D

B 
re

co
rd

 o
nl

y 
0.

4 
m

ile
 d

ow
ns

tre
am

. O
pe

n 
riv

er
 

ch
an

ne
l i

s 
ad

ja
ce

nt
 to

 s
ur

ve
y 

ar
ea

. 
Be

ca
us

e 
th

ey
 c

an
 tr

av
el

 u
pl

an
d 

ha
bi

ta
t 

up
 to

 0
.3

1 
m

ile
 fr

om
 w

at
er

 fo
r e

gg
-

la
yi

ng
, n

or
th

 p
or

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 1

00
-fo

ot
 

bu
ffe

r o
f t

he
 p

ro
je

ct
 d

is
tu

rb
an

ce
 a

re
a 

m
ay

 b
e 

su
ita

bl
e.

 P
ro

je
ct

 d
is

tu
rb

an
ce

 
ar

ea
 n

ot
 s

ui
ta

bl
e 

be
ca

us
e 

m
os

tly
 

pa
ve

d.
  

R
ep

til
es

 
P

hr
yn

os
om

a 
bl

ai
nv

illi
i 

co
as

t h
or

ne
d 

liz
ar

d 
BL

M
_S

, 
C

D
FW

_S
SC

; 
IU

C
N

_L
C

 

C
ha

pa
rra

l |
 C

is
m

on
ta

ne
 

w
oo

dl
an

d 
| C

oa
st

al
 b

lu
ff 

sc
ru

b 
| C

oa
st

al
 s

cr
ub

 | 
D

es
er

t w
as

h 
| P

in
on

 a
nd

 
ju

ni
pe

r w
oo

dl
an

ds
 | 

R
ip

ar
ia

n 
sc

ru
b 

| R
ip

ar
ia

n 
w

oo
dl

an
d 

| V
al

le
y 

an
d 

fo
ot

hi
ll 

gr
as

sl
an

d 

Fr
eq

ue
nt

s 
a 

w
id

e 
va

rie
ty

 o
f 

ha
bi

ta
ts

, m
os

t c
om

m
on

 in
 

lo
w

la
nd

s 
al

on
g 

sa
nd

y 
w

as
he

s 
w

ith
 s

ca
tte

re
d 

lo
w

 
bu

sh
es

. O
pe

n 
ar

ea
s 

fo
r 

su
nn

in
g,

 b
us

he
s 

fo
r c

ov
er

, 
pa

tc
he

s 
of

 lo
os

e 
so

il 
fo

r 
bu

ria
l, 

an
d 

ab
un

da
nt

 
su

pp
ly

 o
f a

nt
s 

an
d 

ot
he

r 
in

se
ct

s.
 

M
od

er
at

e.
 T

hi
s 

ho
rn

ed
 li

za
rd

 is
 m

os
t 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 w

ith
 o

pe
n 

sc
ru

b 
an

d 
gr

as
sl

an
d 

ha
bi

ta
ts

 th
at

 s
up

po
rt 

fri
ab

le
 

so
ils

. N
on

e 
w

er
e 

fo
un

d 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

fie
ld

 
su

rv
ey

s.
 T

he
y 

fe
ed

 a
lm

os
t e

xc
lu

si
ve

ly
 

on
 h

ar
ve

st
er

 a
nt

s 
(P

og
on

om
yr

m
ex

 
sp

p.
) w

hi
ch

 h
av

e 
be

en
 fo

un
d 

on
-s

ite
 in

 
lo

w
 n

um
be

rs
. 2

01
5 

C
N

D
D

B 
re

co
rd

 0
.7

 
m

ile
 w

es
t o

f s
ur

ve
y 

ar
ea

. 

SW
C

A 
20

21
 

FE
 =

 F
ed

er
al

ly
 li

st
ed

 a
s 

en
da

ng
er

ed
 

SE
 =

 S
ta

te
 li

st
ed

 a
s 

en
da

ng
er

ed
 

BL
M

_S
 =

 B
ur

ea
u 

of
 L

an
d 

M
an

ag
em

en
t –

 S
en

si
tiv

e 
C

D
FW

_S
SC

 =
 C

D
FW

 –
 S

pe
ci

es
 o

f S
pe

ci
al

 C
on

ce
rn

 
C

D
FW

_F
P 

= 
C

D
FW

 –
 F

ul
ly

 P
ro

te
ct

ed
 

C
D

FW
_W

L 
= 

C
D

FW
 –

 W
at

ch
 L

is
t 

C
D

F_
S 

= 
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f F
or

es
try

 a
nd

 F
ire

 P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

– 
S

en
si

tiv
e 

IU
C

N
_L

C
 =

 In
te

rn
at

io
na

l U
ni

on
 fo

r C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
of

 N
at

ur
e 

(IU
C

N
) –

 L
ea

st
 C

on
ce

rn
 

IU
C

N
_N

T 
= 

IU
C

N
 –

 N
ea

r T
hr

ea
te

ne
d 

IU
C

N
_V

U
 =

 IU
C

N
 –

 V
ul

ne
ra

bl
e 

U
SF

S_
S 

= 
U

.S
. F

or
es

t S
er

vi
ce

 –
 S

en
si

tiv
e 

N
AB

C
I_

YW
L 

= 
N

or
th

 A
m

er
ic

an
 B

ird
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

In
iti

at
iv

e 
– 

Y
el

lo
w

 W
at

ch
 L

is
t 

324



Biological Resources Assessment for the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Backcountry Pump Station Project  

21 

7 JURISDICTIONAL WATERS AND WETLANDS 
No waters jurisdictional resources were identified within the project disturbance area; however, 
potentially jurisdictional resources were identified along the northern edge of the 100-foot buffer area 
(Figure 5). The contiguous riparian canopy of the Santa Clara River extends into the northern portion of 
the 100-foot buffer of the project disturbance area. The Santa Clara River includes U.S. Army Corps of 
Engineers (USACE), Regional Water Quality Control Board (RWQCB), and CDFW jurisdictional 
resources and conveys flow east to west within Fremont Cottonwood Forest and Woodland habitat.  

A wetland delineation within the Santa Clara River was not conducted and was not required for these 
biological resources assessment. A full delineation would be necessary to characterize the extent of 
USACE/RWQCB/CDFW resources. If impacts cannot be avoided to these potential jurisdictional 
resources, permitting from CDFW, RWQCB, and USACE may be required. 

 

325



Biological Resources Assessment for the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Backcountry Pump Station Project 

22 

Figure 5. Map of potential jurisdictional water resources within the Fremont cottonwood forest 
and woodland.  

326



Biological Resources Assessment for the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Backcountry Pump Station Project  

23 

8 IMPACT ANALYSIS 
No impacts are expected to occur within the disturbance area of the SCV Water Backcountry Pump 
Station project. All sensitive flora and fauna determined to have a moderate potential to occur within the 
survey area do not occur due to the high level of disturbance and lack of habitat. No native habitat is 
expected to be disturbed as part of project activities and thus should not impact listed species (Table 5). 
 
Project activities will also include discharges into the Los Angeles County Flood Control District storm 
drain and would be conveyed to the closest off-site storm drain. The discharge to a storm drain would be 
after dechlorination and most likely will use temporary pipe in Magic Mountain Parkway right-of-way to 
convey water from the site to the point of discharge. The discharge plan will be developed during the 
design phase of the project and coordinated/approved with the City/County, depending on the point of 
discharge. There are no expected impacts to biological resources as work would be conducted in 
developed/disturbed areas. 

Table 5. Vegetation Communities and Land Cover Types Acreages Within Disturbance Area 

Vegetation Community / Land Cover Type Rarity Rank* Acreage within Project Disturbance 
Area 

Upland Mustards or Star-Thistle Fields not applicable 0.25 

Developed/Disturbed not applicable 3.58 

SWCA 2021 

9 CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
There will be no direct impacts to biological resources due to the level of disturbance within the project 
footprint. Indirect impacts will be avoided or mitigated through measures listed in Table 6. A nesting bird 
survey is recommended within five (5) days of construction to confirm no active nests are within the 
survey area. In addition, a survey will be performed for sensitive reptile species and a monitor 
recommended if these are found prior to construction. Although the habitat assessment was performed out 
of blooming season for most sensitive plant species, there is no habitat for these species within the 
disturbance area of the project site and no survey will be required. 

There are no conflicts for this work with any local, state, or federal plans. 

 
Table 6. Avoidance and Mitigation Measures 

Scientific 
Name 

Common 
Name Status Potential to 

Occur 
Avoidance and Mitigation 
Measures 

Impact 

Accipiter 
cooperii 

Cooper’s 
hawk 

CDFW_WL  Moderate.  Preconstruction Survey. A 
preconstruction survey will be 
performed within five days prior to 
construction to determine if the 
species is present. If present, a 300-
foot buffer for an active nest will be 
established. A biological monitor will 

No 
Impact 

327



Biological Resources Assessment for the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Backcountry Pump Station Project  

24 

Scientific 
Name 

Common 
Name Status Potential to 

Occur 
Avoidance and Mitigation 
Measures 

Impact 

be on site during all construction 
activities if this species occurs. 

Elanus 
leucurus 

white-tailed 
kite 

BLM_S, 
CDFW_FP 
IUCN_LC 

Moderate.  Preconstruction Survey. A 
preconstruction survey will be 
performed within five days prior to 
construction to determine if the 
species is present. If present, a 300-
foot buffer for an active nest will be 
established. A biological monitor will 
be on site during all construction 
activities if this species occurs. 

No 
Impact 

Vireo bellii 
pusillus 

least Bell’s 
vireo 

FE; SE; 
IUCN_NT; 
NABCI_YWL 

Moderate.  Preconstruction Survey. A 
preconstruction survey will be 
performed within five days prior to 
construction to determine if the 
species is present. If present, a 300-
foot buffer for an active nest will be 
established. A biological monitor will 
be on site during all construction 
activities if this species occurs. 

No 
Impact 

Aspidoscelis 
tigris 
stejnegeri 

coastal 
whiptail 

CDFW_SSC Moderate.  Preconstruction Survey. A 
preconstruction survey will be 
performed within five days prior to 
construction to determine if this 
species is present on site. If 
determined to occur, a biological 
monitor will be on-site during all 
construction activities. 

No 
Impact 

Emys 
marmorata 

western pond 
turtle 

BLM_S; 
CDFW_SSC; 
IUCN_VU; 
USFS_S 

Moderate.  Preconstruction Survey. A 
preconstruction survey will be 
performed within five days prior to 
construction to determine if this 
species is present on site. If 
determined to occur, a biological 
monitor will be on-site during all 
construction activities. 

No 
Impact 

Phrynosoma 
blainvillii 

coast horned 
lizard 

BLM_S, 
CDFW_SSC; 
IUCN_LC 

Moderate.  Preconstruction Survey. A 
preconstruction survey will be 
performed within five days prior to 
construction to determine if coast 
horned lizard is present on site. If 
determined to occur, , a biological 
monitor will be on-site during all 
construction activities. 

No 
Impact 

Chorizanthe 
parryi var. 
fernandina 

San Fernando 
Valley 
spineflower 

1B.1; state listed 
as endangered 

None (within 
project area) 

NA No 
Impact 

Calochortus 
clavatus var. 
clavatus 

club-haired 
mariposa lily 

4.3 None (within 
project area) 

NA No 
Impact 

Calochortus 
clavatus var. 
gracilis 

slender 
mariposa-lily 

1B.2 None (within 
project area) 

NA No 
Impact 

Calochortus 
plummerae 

Plummer’s 
mariposa-lily 

4.2 None (within 
project area) 

NA No 
Impact 

SWCA 2021 

328



Biological Resources Assessment for the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Backcountry Pump Station Project  

25 

10 LITERATURE CITED 
Baldwin, B.G., D.H. Goldman, D.J. Keil, R. Patterson, T.J. Rosatti, and D.H. Wilken (editors). 2012. 

The Jepson Manual: Vascular Plants of California. 2nd ed. Berkeley: University of California 
Press.  

Calflora. 2021. Calflora Database. Information on California plants for education, research and 
conservation. Available at: https://www.calflora.org/. Accessed August 2021. 

California Native Plant Society (CNPS). 2001. California Native Plant Society’s Inventory of Rare and 
Endangered Plants of California. 6th ed. Sacramento: California Native Plant Society. 

——. 2021a. Inventory of Rare and Endangered Plants of California. California Native Plant Society Rare 
Plant Program. Available at: www.rareplants.cnps.org. Accessed September 2021. 

——. 2021b. A Manual of California Vegetation, Online Edition. Sacramento: California Native Plant 
Society. Available at: http://www.cnps.org/cnps/vegetation/. Accessed August 2021.  

California Birds Record Committee (CBRC). 2021. Official California Checklist. Available at: 
https://www.californiabirds.org/checklist.asp. Accessed September 2021. 

California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW). 2021a. California Natural Diversity Database. 
RAREFIND 5 Database Version 5.2.14. Available at: www.wildlife.ca.gov/Data/ 
CNDDB/Maps-and-Data. Accessed September 2021. 

_______. 2021b. Special Animals. California Department of Fish and Wildlife Natural Diversity 
Database. RAREFIND 5 Database Version 5.2.14. Available at: www.wildlife.ca.gov/Data/ 
CNDDB/Maps-and-Data. Accessed September 2021. 

_______. 2021c. Special Vascular Plants, Bryophytes, and Lichens List. California Department of Fish 
and Wildlife Natural Diversity Database. RAREFIND 5 Database Version 5.2.14. Available at: 
www.wildlife.ca.gov/Data/ CNDDB/Maps-and-Data. Accessed September 2021. 

Consortium of California Herbaria (CCH). 2021. The Consortium of California Herbaria. Berkeley: 
University of California. Available at: http://ucjeps.berkeley.edu/consortium/. Accessed 
September 2021. 

Cornell Lab of Ornithology. 2021. All About Birds. Cornell Lab of Ornithology, Ithaca, New York. 
Available at: https://www.allaboutbirds.org. Accessed May 2021. 

Jepson Flora Project. 2021. The Jepson Herbarium. Jepson eFlora. Available at: 
https://ucjeps.berkeley.edu/eflora/. Accessed May 2021. 

Nafis, G. 2021. California Herps - A Guide to the Amphibians and Reptiles of California. Available at: 
http://www.californiaherps.com/. Accessed September 2021. 

Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS). 2021. USDA Web Soil Survey. Available at: 
https://websoilsurvey.sc.egov.usda.gov/App/HomePage.htm/. Accessed September 2021. 

PRISM Climate Group. 2021. PRISM Climate Data. Oregon State University. Available at: 
http://prism.oregonstate.edu. Accessed September 2021. 

329

http://www.wildlife.ca.gov/Data/


Biological Resources Assessment for the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Backcountry Pump Station Project  

26 

Sawyer, J., T. Keeler-Wolf, and J. Evens. 2009. A Manual of California Vegetation. 2nd ed. Sacramento: 
California Native Plant Society. 

U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS). 2014. Arroyo toad (Anaxyrus californicus) Species Report. 
Ventura, California: U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, Ventura Fish and Wildlife Office. 

_______. 2021. Critical Habitat Mapper. Available at: https://ecos.fws.gov/ecp/report/table/critical-
habitat.html. Accessed May 2021. 

 
 

330



 

 

APPENDIX A 

Site Photos 

331



 

A-1 

  
Photo 1. Overview of thef top of bank of the Santa Clara River in the northern 
portion of the survey area, facing west-northwest. Photo taken August 27, 2021. 

 
Photo 2. Overview of the California Buckwheat Scrub vegetation community, 
facing west. Photo taken August 27, 2021.  

332



 

A-2 

  
Photo 3. Overview of the Fremont Cottonwood Forest and Woodland vegetation 
community, facing north. Photo taken August 27, 2021. 

  
Photo 4. Overview of the Mulefat Thickets vegetation community, facing west. 
Photo taken August 27, 2021. 

333



 

A-3 

  
Photo 5. Overview of the Upland Mustards vegetation community, facing 
southeast. Photo taken August 27, 2021.  

  
Photo 6. Overview of the Star-Thistle Fields vegetation community, facing west. 
Photo taken August 27, 2021.  

334



 

A-4 

  
Photo 7. Overview of the Developed/Disturbed land cover type, facing 
northwest. Photo taken August 27, 2021.  

335



 

 

APPENDIX B 

Floral Compendium

336



 

B-
1 

Ta
bl

e 
B

-1
. F

lo
ra

l C
om

pe
nd

iu
m

 

Ph
yl

og
en

et
ic

 C
at

eg
or

y 
Fa

m
ily

 
Sc

ie
nt

ifi
c 

N
am

e 
Co

m
m

on
 N

am
e 

Li
fe

fo
rm

 
N

at
iv

e 
St

at
us

 

An
gi

os
pe

rm
s 

(E
ud

ic
ot

s)
 

Ad
ox

ac
ea

e 
S

am
bu

cu
s 

ni
gr

a 
ss

p.
 c

ae
ru

le
a 

bl
ue

 e
ld

er
be

rry
 

sh
ru

b 
na

tiv
e 

An
ac

ar
di

ac
ea

e 
R

hu
s 

ov
at

a 
su

ga
r b

us
h 

sh
ru

b 
na

tiv
e 

S
ch

in
us

 m
ol

le
 

Pe
ru

vi
an

 p
ep

pe
r t

re
e 

tre
e 

in
va

si
ve

 

Ap
ia

ce
ae

 
Fo

en
ic

ul
um

 v
ul

ga
re

 
fe

nn
el

 
pe

re
nn

ia
l h

er
b 

in
va

si
ve

 

As
te

ra
ce

ae
 

A
rte

m
is

ia
 tr

id
en

ta
ta

 s
sp

. p
ar

is
hi

i 
Pa

ris
h’

s 
sa

ge
br

us
h 

sh
ru

b 
na

tiv
e 

B
ac

ch
ar

is
 p

ilu
la

ris
 

co
yo

te
 b

ru
sh

 
sh

ru
b 

na
tiv

e 

B
ac

ch
ar

is
 s

al
ic

ifo
lia

 s
sp

. s
al

ic
ifo

lia
 

m
ul

ef
at

 
sh

ru
b 

na
tiv

e 

C
ar

du
us

 p
yc

no
ce

ph
al

us
 s

sp
. 

py
cn

oc
ep

ha
lu

s 
Ita

lia
n 

th
is

tle
 

an
nu

al
 h

er
b 

no
nn

at
iv

e 

C
en

ta
ur

ea
 m

el
ite

ns
is

 
to

ca
lo

te
 

an
nu

al
 h

er
b 

in
va

si
ve

 

E
rig

er
on

 c
an

ad
en

si
s 

C
an

ad
a 

ho
rs

ew
ee

d 
an

nu
al

 h
er

b 
na

tiv
e 

H
et

er
ot

he
ca

 g
ra

nd
ifl

or
a 

te
le

gr
ap

h 
w

ee
d 

an
nu

al
, p

er
en

ni
al

 h
er

b 
na

tiv
e 

Is
oc

om
a 

m
en

zi
es

ii 
M

en
zi

es
’ g

ol
de

nb
us

h 
sh

ru
b 

na
tiv

e 

La
ct

uc
a 

se
rri

ol
a 

pr
ic

kl
y 

le
ttu

ce
 

an
nu

al
 h

er
b 

in
va

si
ve

 

La
en

ne
ci

a 
co

ul
te

ri 
C

ou
lte

r’s
 h

or
se

w
ee

d 
an

nu
al

 h
er

b 
na

tiv
e 

Bo
ra

gi
na

ce
ae

 
A

m
si

nc
ki

a 
m

en
zi

es
ii 

fid
dl

en
ec

k 
an

nu
al

 h
er

b 
na

tiv
e 

H
el

io
tro

pi
um

 c
ur

as
sa

vi
cu

m
 v

ar
. o

cu
la

tu
m

 
se

as
id

e 
he

lio
tro

pe
 

pe
re

nn
ia

l h
er

b 
na

tiv
e 

P
ha

ce
lia

 d
is

ta
ns

 
co

m
m

on
 p

ha
ce

lia
 

an
nu

al
 h

er
b 

na
tiv

e 

Br
as

si
ca

ce
ae

 
H

irs
ch

fe
ld

ia
 in

ca
na

 
m

us
ta

rd
 

pe
re

nn
ia

l h
er

b 
in

va
si

ve
 

Le
pi

di
um

 la
tif

ol
iu

m
 

pe
re

nn
ia

l p
ep

pe
rw

ee
d 

pe
re

nn
ia

l h
er

b 
in

va
si

ve
 

C
he

no
po

di
ac

ea
e 

A
tri

pl
ex

 p
ol

yc
ar

pa
 

ca
ttl

e 
sp

in
ac

h 
sh

ru
b 

na
tiv

e 

S
al

so
la

 tr
ag

us
 

R
us

si
an

 th
is

tle
 

an
nu

al
 h

er
b 

in
va

si
ve

 

G
ro

ss
ul

ar
ia

ce
ae

 
R

ib
es

 a
ur

eu
m

 
go

ld
en

 c
ur

ra
nt

 
sh

ru
b 

na
tiv

e 

La
m

ia
ce

ae
 

M
ar

ru
bi

um
 v

ul
ga

re
 

w
hi

te
 h

or
eh

ou
nd

 
pe

re
nn

ia
l h

er
b 

in
va

si
ve

 

S
al

vi
a 

m
el

lif
er

a 
bl

ac
k 

sa
ge

 
sh

ru
b 

na
tiv

e 

Pl
at

an
ac

ea
e 

P
la

ta
nu

s 
ra

ce
m

os
a 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 s

yc
am

or
e 

tre
e 

na
tiv

e 

Po
ly

go
na

ce
ae

 
E

rio
go

nu
m

 fa
sc

ic
ul

at
um

 
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 b
uc

kw
he

at
 

sh
ru

b 
na

tiv
e 

337



 

B-
2 

Ph
yl

og
en

et
ic

 C
at

eg
or

y 
Fa

m
ily

 
Sc

ie
nt

ifi
c 

N
am

e 
Co

m
m

on
 N

am
e 

Li
fe

fo
rm

 
N

at
iv

e 
St

at
us

 

R
an

un
cu

la
ce

ae
 

C
le

m
at

is
 li

gu
st

ic
ifo

lia
 

cr
ee

k 
cl

em
at

is
 

pe
re

nn
ia

l h
er

b,
 v

in
e 

na
tiv

e 

R
os

ac
ea

e 
R

os
a 

ca
lif

or
ni

ca
 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 w

ild
 ro

se
 

sh
ru

b 
na

tiv
e 

Sa
lic

ac
ea

e 
P

op
ul

us
 fr

em
on

tii
 s

sp
. f

re
m

on
tii

 
co

tto
nw

oo
d 

tre
e 

na
tiv

e 

So
la

na
ce

ae
 

D
at

ur
a 

w
rig

ht
ii 

jim
so

nw
ee

d 
pe

re
nn

ia
l h

er
b 

na
tiv

e 

N
ic

ot
ia

na
 g

la
uc

a 
tre

e 
to

ba
cc

o 
tre

e,
 s

hr
ub

 
in

va
si

ve
 

Ta
m

ar
ic

ac
ea

e 
Ta

m
ar

ix
 ra

m
os

is
si

m
a 

ta
m

ar
is

k 
tre

e,
 s

hr
ub

 
in

va
si

ve
 

An
gi

os
pe

rm
s 

(M
on

oc
ot

s)
 

Ar
ec

ac
ea

e 
W

as
hi

ng
to

ni
a 

ro
bu

st
a 

M
ex

ic
an

 fa
n 

pa
lm

 
tre

e 
in

va
si

ve
 

Po
ac

ea
e 

A
ru

nd
o 

do
na

x 
gi

an
t r

ee
d 

pe
re

nn
ia

l g
ra

ss
 

in
va

si
ve

 

B
ro

m
us

 ru
be

ns
 

re
d 

br
om

e 
an

nu
al

 g
ra

ss
 

no
nn

at
iv

e 
*S

W
C

A 
20

21

338



 

 

APPENDIX C 

Faunal Compendium

339



 

C-1 

Table C-1. Faunal Compendium 

Phylogenetic Category Scientific Name Common Name 

Birds Aphelocoma californica California scrub jay 

Birds Buteo jamaicensis red-tailed hawk 

Birds Callipepla californica California quail 

Birds Calypte anna Anna’s hummingbird 

Birds Cathartes aura turkey vulture 

Birds Haemorhous mexicanus house finch 

Birds Melospiza melodia song sparrow 

Birds Psaltriparus minimus bushtit 

Birds Sayornis nigricans black phoebe 

Birds Selasphorus sasin Allen’s hummingbird 

Birds Spinus psaltria lesser goldfinch 

Birds Sturnus vulgaris* European starling 

Birds Thryomanes bewickii Bewick’s wren 

Birds Turdus migratorius  American robin 

Birds Zenaida macroura mourning dove 

Insects Apis mellifera* European honey bee 

Insects Libellula saturata flame skimmer 

Insects Pogonomyrmex sp.  harvester ants 

Insects Pontia protodice checkered white 

Mammals Canis lupus* domestic dog 

Mammals Neotoma sp. wood rat 

Mammals Sylvilagus audubonii  desert cottontail 

Reptiles Sceloporus occidentalis western fence lizard 

Reptiles Uta stansburiana ssp. elegans western side-blotched lizard  

*Nonnative 
SWCA 2021 

340



 

 

APPENDIX D 

Special-Status Flora – Potential for Occurrence

341



 

D
-1

 

Ta
bl

e 
D

-1
. R

es
ul

ts
 fo

r S
pe

ci
al

-S
ta

tu
s 

Pl
an

ts
 w

ith
 P

ot
en

tia
l f

or
 O

cc
ur

re
nc

e 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

Su
rv

ey
 A

re
a 

 

Ph
yl

og
en

et
ic

 
C

at
eg

or
y 

Fa
m

ily
 

Sc
ie

nt
ifi

c 
N

am
e 

Co
m

m
on

 N
am

e 
Li

fe
fo

rm
 

CR
PR

*;
 

Li
st

in
g 

St
at

us
 

B
lo

om
in

g 
Pe

rio
d 

H
ab

ita
t 

El
ev

at
io

n 
(fe

et
 

am
sl

) 
Po

te
nt

ia
l T

o 
O

cc
ur

 

An
gi

os
pe

rm
s 

(E
ud

ic
ot

s)
 

As
te

ra
ce

ae
 

D
ei

na
nd

ra
 

m
in

th
or

ni
i 

Sa
nt

a 
Su

sa
na

 
ta

rp
la

nt
 

pe
re

nn
ia

l 
de

ci
du

ou
s 

sh
ru

b 

1B
.2

; s
ta

te
 

lis
te

d 
as

 ra
re

 
Ju

ly
–N

ov
em

be
r 

ch
ap

ar
ra

l, 
co

as
ta

l s
cr

ub
 

92
0–

2,
49

5 
A

bs
en

t. 
M

os
t 

oc
cu

rre
nc

es
 n

ea
r 

Si
m

i V
al

le
y 

an
d 

so
ut

h.
 

An
gi

os
pe

rm
s 

(E
ud

ic
ot

s)
 

As
te

ra
ce

ae
 

D
ei

na
nd

ra
 

pa
ni

cu
la

ta
 

pa
ni

cu
la

te
 

ta
rp

la
nt

 
an

nu
al

 h
er

b 
4.

2 
(M

ar
ch

) A
pr

il–
N

ov
em

be
r 

co
as

ta
l s

cr
ub

, 
va

lle
y 

an
d 

fo
ot

hi
ll 

gr
as

sl
an

d,
 

ve
rn

al
 p

oo
ls

 

80
–3

,0
85

 
Lo

w
. N

ea
re

st
 re

co
rd

 
(2

.2
 m

ile
 e

as
t) 

fro
m

 
su

rv
ey

 a
re

a 
is

 
hi

st
or

ic
al

 (C
C

H
 

re
co

rd
 fr

om
 1

93
5)

. 
20

02
 o

cc
ur

re
nc

e 
6.

6 
m

ile
s 

so
ut

hw
es

t 
of

 s
ur

ve
y 

ar
ea

. 

An
gi

os
pe

rm
s 

(E
ud

ic
ot

s)
 

As
te

ra
ce

ae
 

H
el

ia
nt

hu
s 

in
ex

pe
ct

at
us

 
N

ew
ha

ll 
su

nf
lo

w
er

 
pe

re
nn

ia
l 

rh
iz

om
at

ou
s 

he
rb

 

1B
.1

 
Au

gu
st

–O
ct

ob
er

 
m

ar
sh

es
 a

nd
 

sw
am

ps
, 

rip
ar

ia
n 

w
oo

dl
an

d 

90
0-

1,
00

0 
Lo

w
. 2

01
4 

C
C

H
 

oc
cu

rre
nc

e 
co

lle
ct

ed
 

2.
7 

m
ile

s 
do

w
ns

tre
am

 (w
es

t) 
of

 
th

e 
Sa

nt
a 

C
la

ra
 R

iv
er

 
w

ith
in

 w
et

, m
uc

ky
 

sp
rin

g 
su

rro
un

de
d 

by
 

w
illo

w
s.

 S
ur

ve
y 

ar
ea

 
to

o 
xe

ric
, b

ut
 

ad
ja

ce
nt

 ri
pa

ria
n 

w
oo

dl
an

d 
su

ita
bl

e.
 

An
gi

os
pe

rm
s 

(E
ud

ic
ot

s)
 

As
te

ra
ce

ae
 

H
el

ia
nt

hu
s 

nu
tta

lli
i s

sp
. 

pa
ris

hi
i 

Lo
s 

An
ge

le
s 

su
nf

lo
w

er
 

pe
re

nn
ia

l 
rh

iz
om

at
ou

s 
he

rb
 

1A
 

Au
gu

st
–O

ct
ob

er
 

m
ar

sh
es

 a
nd

 
sw

am
ps

 
(c

oa
st

al
 s

al
t 

an
d 

fre
sh

w
at

er
) 

30
–5

,0
05

 
A

bs
en

t. 
N

o 
su

ita
bl

e 
ha

bi
ta

t o
n-

si
te

.  

An
gi

os
pe

rm
s 

(E
ud

ic
ot

s)
 

As
te

ra
ce

ae
 

H
em

iz
on

ia
 

co
ng

es
ta

 s
sp

. 
co

ng
es

ta
 

co
ng

es
te

d-
he

ad
ed

 h
ay

fie
ld

 
ta

rp
la

nt
 

an
nu

al
 h

er
b 

1B
.2

 
Ap

ril
–N

ov
em

be
r 

va
lle

y 
an

d 
fo

ot
hi

ll 
gr

as
sl

an
d;

 
so

m
et

im
es

 
ro

ad
si

de
s 

65
–1

,8
35

 
A

bs
en

t. 
Su

rv
ey

 a
re

a 
lo

ca
te

d 
ou

ts
id

e 
of

 
ge

ne
ra

l s
pe

ci
es

 
di

st
rib

ut
io

na
l r

an
ge

 
(S

an
 F

ra
nc

is
co

 B
ay

 
Ar

ea
 S

ub
re

gi
on

 a
nd

 
O

ut
er

 N
or

th
 C

oa
st

 
R

an
ge

s 
D

is
tri

ct
). 

 

An
gi

os
pe

rm
s 

(E
ud

ic
ot

s)
 

As
te

ra
ce

ae
 

H
et

er
ot

he
ca

 
se

ss
ilif

lo
ra

 s
sp

. 
se

ss
ilif

lo
ra

 

be
ac

h 
go

ld
en

as
te

r 
pe

re
nn

ia
l h

er
b 

1B
.1

 
M

ar
ch

–D
ec

em
be

r 
ch

ap
ar

ra
l 

(c
oa

st
al

), 
co

as
ta

l d
un

es
, 

co
as

ta
l s

cr
ub

 

0–
4,

02
0 

Lo
w

. V
irt

ua
lly

 a
ll 

re
co

rd
s 

fro
m

 S
an

 
D

ie
go

 C
ou

nt
y,

 S
ou

th
 

C
oa

st
 S

ub
re

gi
on

. 

342



 

D
-2

 

Ph
yl

og
en

et
ic

 
C

at
eg

or
y 

Fa
m

ily
 

Sc
ie

nt
ifi

c 
N

am
e 

Co
m

m
on

 N
am

e 
Li

fe
fo

rm
 

CR
PR

*;
 

Li
st

in
g 

St
at

us
 

B
lo

om
in

g 
Pe

rio
d 

H
ab

ita
t 

El
ev

at
io

n 
(fe

et
 

am
sl

) 
Po

te
nt

ia
l T

o 
O

cc
ur

 

An
gi

os
pe

rm
s 

(E
ud

ic
ot

s)
 

As
te

ra
ce

ae
 

H
ul

se
a 

ve
st

ita
 

ss
p.

 p
ar

ry
i 

Pa
rry

’s
 s

un
flo

w
er

 
pe

re
nn

ia
l h

er
b 

4.
3 

Ap
ril

–A
ug

us
t 

lo
w

er
 m

on
ta

ne
 

co
ni

fe
ro

us
 

fo
re

st
, p

in
yo

n 
an

d 
ju

ni
pe

r 
w

oo
dl

an
d,

 
up

pe
r m

on
ta

ne
 

co
ni

fe
ro

us
 

fo
re

st
; g

ra
ni

tic
 

or
 c

ar
bo

na
te

, 
ro

ck
y,

 
op

en
in

gs
 

4,
49

0–
9,

50
0 

A
bs

en
t. 

Su
rv

ey
 a

re
a 

be
lo

w
 e

le
va

tio
na

l 
ra

ng
e 

of
 s

pe
ci

es
.  

An
gi

os
pe

rm
s 

(E
ud

ic
ot

s)
 

As
te

ra
ce

ae
 

La
st

he
ni

a 
gl

ab
ra

ta
 s

sp
. 

co
ul

te
ri 

C
ou

lte
r’s

 
go

ld
fie

ld
s 

an
nu

al
 h

er
b 

1B
.1

 
Fe

br
ua

ry
–J

un
e 

m
ar

sh
es

 a
nd

 
sw

am
ps

 
(c

oa
st

al
 s

al
t),

 
pl

ay
as

, v
er

na
l 

po
ol

s 

0–
4,

00
5 

A
bs

en
t. 

N
o 

su
ita

bl
e 

ha
bi

ta
t o

n-
si

te
.  

An
gi

os
pe

rm
s 

(E
ud

ic
ot

s)
 

As
te

ra
ce

ae
 

P
se

ud
og

na
ph

al
iu

m
 le

uc
oc

ep
ha

lu
m

 
w

hi
te

 ra
bb

it-
to

ba
cc

o 
pe

re
nn

ia
l h

er
b 

2B
.2

 
(J

ul
y)

 A
ug

us
t–

N
ov

em
be

r 
(D

ec
em

be
r) 

ch
ap

ar
ra

l, 
ci

sm
on

ta
ne

 
w

oo
dl

an
d,

 
co

as
ta

l s
cr

ub
, 

rip
ar

ia
n 

w
oo

dl
an

d 

0–
6,

89
0 

A
bs

en
t. 

N
ot

 
ob

se
rv

ed
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
Au

gu
st

 s
ur

ve
y.

 2
00

9 
C

N
D

D
B 

oc
cu

rre
nc

e 
2.

75
 m

ile
s 

fro
m

 
su

rv
ey

 a
re

a,
 p

ar
t o

f 
C

as
ta

ic
 c

re
ek

 a
llu

vi
al

 
sy

st
em

. 

An
gi

os
pe

rm
s 

(E
ud

ic
ot

s)
 

As
te

ra
ce

ae
 

S
en

ec
io

 
ap

ha
na

ct
is

 
ch

ap
ar

ra
l r

ag
w

or
t 

an
nu

al
 h

er
b 

2B
.2

 
Ja

n–
Ap

ril
 (M

ay
) 

ch
ap

ar
ra

l, 
ci

sm
on

ta
ne

 
w

oo
dl

an
d,

 
co

as
ta

l s
cr

ub
 

50
–2

,6
25

 
Lo

w
. B

uc
kw

he
at

 
sc

ru
b 

co
m

m
un

ity
 o

n-
si

te
 v

er
y 

sm
al

l a
nd

 
de

gr
ad

ed
 d

ue
 to

 
tra

sh
 a

nd
 in

va
si

ve
s.

 
C

N
D

D
B 

re
co

rd
 fr

om
 

19
01

 1
 m

ile
 to

 th
e 

so
ut

he
as

t; 
ex

ac
t 

lo
ca

tio
n 

un
kn

ow
.  

An
gi

os
pe

rm
s 

(E
ud

ic
ot

s)
 

As
te

ra
ce

ae
 

S
ym

ph
yo

tri
ch

um
 

gr
ea

ta
e 

G
re

at
a’

s 
as

te
r 

pe
re

nn
ia

l 
rh

iz
om

at
ou

s 
he

rb
 

1B
.3

 
Ju

ne
–O

ct
ob

er
 

br
oa

d-
le

af
ed

 
up

la
nd

 fo
re

st
, 

ch
ap

ar
ra

l, 
ci

sm
on

ta
ne

 
w

oo
dl

an
d,

 
lo

w
er

 m
on

ta
ne

 
co

ni
fe

ro
us

 
fo

re
st

, r
ip

ar
ia

n 
w

oo
dl

an
d 

98
5–

6,
59

5 
A

bs
en

t. 
Pe

re
nn

ia
l 

sh
ru

b 
w

ou
ld

 h
av

e 
be

en
 v

is
ib

le
 d

ur
in

g 
Au

gu
st

 s
ur

ve
y.

 

343



 

D
-3

 

Ph
yl

og
en

et
ic

 
C

at
eg

or
y 

Fa
m

ily
 

Sc
ie

nt
ifi

c 
N

am
e 

Co
m

m
on

 N
am

e 
Li

fe
fo

rm
 

CR
PR

*;
 

Li
st

in
g 

St
at

us
 

B
lo

om
in

g 
Pe

rio
d 

H
ab

ita
t 

El
ev

at
io

n 
(fe

et
 

am
sl

) 
Po

te
nt

ia
l T

o 
O

cc
ur

 

An
gi

os
pe

rm
s 

(E
ud

ic
ot

s)
 

Be
rb

er
id

ac
ea

e 
B

er
be

ris
 n

ev
in

ii 
N

ev
in

’s
 b

ar
be

rry
 

pe
re

nn
ia

l 
ev

er
gr

ee
n 

sh
ru

b 

1B
.1

; S
ta

te
 

lis
te

d 
as

 
en

da
ng

er
ed

; 
Fe

de
ra

lly
 

lis
te

d 
as

 
en

da
ng

er
ed

 

(F
eb

ru
ar

y)
 M

ar
ch

–
Ju

ne
 

ch
ap

ar
ra

l, 
ci

sm
on

ta
ne

 
w

oo
dl

an
d,

 
co

as
ta

l s
cr

ub
, 

rip
ar

ia
n 

sc
ru

b;
 

gr
av

el
ly

 
(s

om
et

im
es

), 
sa

nd
y 

(s
om

et
im

es
) 

23
0–

2,
70

5 
A

bs
en

t. 
19

87
 

C
N

D
D

B 
oc

cu
rre

nc
e 

ov
er

la
pp

in
g 

pr
oj

ec
t 

ar
ea

 b
ut

 la
be

le
d 

as
 

Po
ss

ib
ly

 E
xt

irp
at

ed
 

an
d 

Tr
an

sp
la

nt
 

O
ut

si
de

 o
f N

at
iv

e 
H

ab
./R

an
ge

. 

An
gi

os
pe

rm
s 

(E
ud

ic
ot

s)
 

Bo
ra

gi
na

ce
ae

 
A

m
si

nc
ki

a 
do

ug
la

si
an

a 
D

ou
gl

as
’ 

fid
dl

en
ec

k 
an

nu
al

 h
er

b 
4.

2 
M

ar
ch

–M
ay

 
ci

sm
on

ta
ne

 
w

oo
dl

an
d,

 
va

lle
y 

an
d 

fo
ot

hi
ll 

gr
as

sl
an

d;
 

M
on

te
re

y 
sh

al
e,

 d
ry

 

0–
6,

40
0 

A
bs

en
t. 

N
o 

su
ita

bl
e 

ha
bi

ta
t. 

N
ea

re
st

 
oc

cu
rre

nc
e 

8.
4 

m
ile

s 
to

 th
e 

ea
st

 fr
om

 
19

78
. 

An
gi

os
pe

rm
s 

(E
ud

ic
ot

s)
 

Bo
ra

gi
na

ce
ae

 
C

ry
pt

an
th

a 
ra

tta
ni

i 
R

at
ta

n’
s 

cr
yp

ta
nt

ha
 

an
nu

al
 h

er
b 

4.
3 

Ap
ril

–J
ul

y 
ci

sm
on

ta
ne

 
w

oo
dl

an
d,

 
rip

ar
ia

n 
w

oo
dl

an
d,

 
va

lle
y 

an
d 

fo
ot

hi
ll 

gr
as

sl
an

d 

80
0–

3,
00

0 
A

bs
en

t. 
Su

rv
ey

 a
re

a 
ou

ts
id

e 
of

 th
e 

ge
ne

ra
l 

di
st

rib
ut

io
n 

of
 th

e 
sp

ec
ie

s.
 

An
gi

os
pe

rm
s 

(E
ud

ic
ot

s)
 

Bo
ra

gi
na

ce
ae

 
H

ar
pa

go
ne

lla
 

pa
lm

er
i 

Pa
lm

er
’s

 
gr

ap
pl

in
gh

oo
k 

an
nu

al
 h

er
b 

4.
2 

M
ar

ch
–M

ay
 

ch
ap

ar
ra

l, 
co

as
ta

l s
cr

ub
, 

va
lle

y 
an

d 
fo

ot
hi

ll 
gr

as
sl

an
d 

65
–3

,1
35

 
Lo

w
. A

 2
00

5 
C

C
H

 
re

co
rd

 1
.5

 m
ile

s 
to

 
th

e 
ea

st
. S

cr
ub

 
ha

bi
ta

t i
n 

su
rv

ey
 a

re
a 

is
 d

eg
ra

de
d,

 lo
w

 
he

rb
ac

eo
us

 
un

de
rs

to
ry

. C
N

D
D

B 
re

co
rd

 o
ve

rla
p;

 
5 

m
ile

s 
ac

cu
ra

cy
.  

An
gi

os
pe

rm
s 

(E
ud

ic
ot

s)
 

Br
as

si
ca

ce
ae

 
Le

pi
di

um
 

vi
rg

in
ic

um
 v

ar
. 

ro
bi

ns
on

ii 

R
ob

in
so

n’
s 

pe
pp

er
-g

ra
ss

 
an

nu
al

 h
er

b 
4.

3 
Ja

nu
ar

y–
Ju

ly
 

ch
ap

ar
ra

l, 
co

as
ta

l s
cr

ub
 

5–
2,

90
5 

Lo
w

. C
C

H
 re

co
rd

 
fro

m
 1

96
7,

 in
 h

ab
ita

t 
th

at
 w

as
 w

at
er

ed
 

in
te

rm
itt

en
tly

 w
ith

 
se

w
ag

e 
ef

flu
en

t. 
Si

m
ila

r h
ab

ita
t o

n-
si

te
 

de
gr

ad
ed

. 

344



 

D
-4

 

Ph
yl

og
en

et
ic

 
C

at
eg

or
y 

Fa
m

ily
 

Sc
ie

nt
ifi

c 
N

am
e 

Co
m

m
on

 N
am

e 
Li

fe
fo

rm
 

CR
PR

*;
 

Li
st

in
g 

St
at

us
 

B
lo

om
in

g 
Pe

rio
d 

H
ab

ita
t 

El
ev

at
io

n 
(fe

et
 

am
sl

) 
Po

te
nt

ia
l T

o 
O

cc
ur

 

An
gi

os
pe

rm
s 

(E
ud

ic
ot

s)
 

Br
as

si
ca

ce
ae

 
S

tre
pt

an
th

us
 

ca
m

pe
st

ris
 

so
ut

he
rn

 
je

w
el

flo
w

er
 

pe
re

nn
ia

l h
er

b 
1B

.3
 

(A
pr

il)
 M

ay
–J

ul
y 

 c
ha

pa
rra

l, 
lo

w
er

 m
on

ta
ne

 
co

ni
fe

ro
us

 
fo

re
st

, p
in

yo
n 

an
d 

ju
ni

pe
r 

w
oo

dl
an

d 

2,
95

5–
7,

54
5 

A
bs

en
t. 

Su
rv

ey
 a

re
a 

be
lo

w
 e

le
va

tio
na

l 
ra

ng
e 

of
 s

pe
ci

es
.  

An
gi

os
pe

rm
s 

(E
ud

ic
ot

s)
 

C
ac

ta
ce

ae
 

O
pu

nt
ia

 b
as

ila
ris

 
va

r. 
br

ac
hy

cl
ad

a 
sh

or
t-j

oi
nt

 
be

av
er

ta
il 

pe
re

nn
ia

l s
te

m
 

1B
.2

 
Ap

ril
–J

un
e 

(A
ug

us
t) 

ch
ap

ar
ra

l, 
Jo

sh
ua

 tr
ee

 
"w

oo
dl

an
d,

" 
M

oj
av

ea
n 

de
se

rt 
sc

ru
b,

 
pi

ny
on

 a
nd

 
ju

ni
pe

r 
w

oo
dl

an
d 

1,
39

5–
5,

90
5 

A
bs

en
t. 

Su
rv

ey
 a

re
a 

be
lo

w
 e

le
va

tio
na

l 
ra

ng
e 

of
 s

pe
ci

es
. N

o 
ca

ct
i o

bs
er

ve
d 

du
rin

g 
su

rv
ey

. 

An
gi

os
pe

rm
s 

(E
ud

ic
ot

s)
 

C
ar

yo
ph

yl
la

ce
ae

 
S

ile
ne

 
oc

ci
de

nt
al

is
 s

sp
. 

lo
ng

is
tip

ita
ta

 

lo
ng

-s
tip

ed
 

ca
m

pi
on

 
pe

re
nn

ia
l h

er
b 

1B
.2

 
Ju

ne
–A

ug
us

t 
ch

ap
ar

ra
l, 

lo
w

er
 m

on
ta

ne
 

co
ni

fe
ro

us
 

fo
re

st
, u

pp
er

 
m

on
ta

ne
 

co
ni

fe
ro

us
 

fo
re

st
 

3,
28

0–
6,

56
0 

A
bs

en
t. 

Su
rv

ey
 a

re
a 

be
lo

w
 e

le
va

tio
na

l 
ra

ng
e 

of
 s

pe
ci

es
.  

An
gi

os
pe

rm
s 

(E
ud

ic
ot

s)
 

C
on

vo
lv

ul
ac

ea
e 

C
al

ys
te

gi
a 

pe
irs

on
ii 

Pe
irs

on
’s

 
m

or
ni

ng
-g

lo
ry

 
pe

re
nn

ia
l 

rh
iz

om
at

ou
s 

he
rb

 

4.
2 

Ap
ril

–J
un

e 
ch

ap
ar

ra
l, 

ch
en

op
od

 
sc

ru
b,

 
ci

sm
on

ta
ne

 
w

oo
dl

an
d,

 
co

as
ta

l s
cr

ub
, 

lo
w

er
 m

on
ta

ne
 

co
ni

fe
ro

us
 

fo
re

st
, v

al
le

y 
an

d 
fo

ot
hi

ll 
gr

as
sl

an
d 

10
0–

4,
92

0 
A

bs
en

t. 
Ye

ar
 2

00
3 

C
N

D
D

B 
oc

cu
rre

nc
e 

lo
ca

te
d 

1 
m

ile
 

so
ut

hw
es

t o
f s

ur
ve

y 
ar

ea
. S

ui
ta

bl
e 

ha
bi

ta
t 

in
 o

pe
n 

gr
as

sy
 a

re
as

 
of

 s
ur

ve
y 

ar
ea

. 
Ev

er
gr

ee
n 

fo
lia

ge
 

w
ou

ld
 h

av
e 

be
en

 
vi

si
bl

e 
du

rin
g 

Au
gu

st
 

su
rv

ey
. 

An
gi

os
pe

rm
s 

(E
ud

ic
ot

s)
 

C
ra

ss
ul

ac
ea

e 
D

ud
le

ya
 

de
ns

ifl
or

a 
Sa

n 
G

ab
rie

l 
M

ou
nt

ai
ns

 
du

dl
ey

a 

pe
re

nn
ia

l h
er

b 
1B

.1
 

M
ar

ch
–J

ul
y 

ch
ap

ar
ra

l, 
ci

sm
on

ta
ne

 
w

oo
dl

an
d,

 
co

as
ta

l s
cr

ub
, 

lo
w

er
 m

on
ta

ne
 

co
ni

fe
ro

us
 

fo
re

st
, r

ip
ar

ia
n 

w
oo

dl
an

d 

80
0–

2,
00

0 
A

bs
en

t. 
Kn

ow
n 

on
ly

 
fro

m
 s

ix
 e

xt
an

t 
oc

cu
rre

nc
es

 4
0 

m
ile

s 
so

ut
he

as
t o

f s
ur

ve
y 

ar
ea

. W
ou

ld
 h

av
e 

ha
d 

vi
si

bl
e 

ve
ge

ta
tiv

e 
pa

rts
 d

ur
in

g 
Au

gu
st

 
su

rv
ey

.  

345



 

D
-5

 

Ph
yl

og
en

et
ic

 
C

at
eg

or
y 

Fa
m

ily
 

Sc
ie

nt
ifi

c 
N

am
e 

Co
m

m
on

 N
am

e 
Li

fe
fo

rm
 

CR
PR

*;
 

Li
st

in
g 

St
at

us
 

B
lo

om
in

g 
Pe

rio
d 

H
ab

ita
t 

El
ev

at
io

n 
(fe

et
 

am
sl

) 
Po

te
nt

ia
l T

o 
O

cc
ur

 

An
gi

os
pe

rm
s 

(E
ud

ic
ot

s)
 

Fa
ba

ce
ae

 
A

st
ra

ga
lu

s 
br

au
nt

on
ii 

Br
au

nt
on

’s
 m

ilk
-

ve
tc

h 
pe

re
nn

ia
l h

er
b 

1B
.1

; 
Fe

de
ra

lly
 

lis
te

d 
as

 
en

da
ng

er
ed

 

Ja
nu

ar
y–

Au
gu

st
 

ch
ap

ar
ra

l, 
co

as
ta

l s
cr

ub
, 

va
lle

y 
an

d 
fo

ot
hi

ll 
gr

as
sl

an
d;

 
re

ce
nt

 b
ur

ns
 o

r 
di

st
ur

be
d 

ar
ea

s,
 u

su
al

ly
 

sa
nd

st
on

e 
w

ith
 

ca
rb

on
at

e 
la

ye
rs

 

10
–2

,1
00

 
A

bs
en

t. 
N

o 
su

ita
bl

e 
ha

bi
ta

t. 

An
gi

os
pe

rm
s 

(E
ud

ic
ot

s)
 

Fa
ba

ce
ae

 
Lu

pi
nu

s 
pa

yn
ei

 
Pa

yn
e’

s 
bu

sh
 

lu
pi

ne
 

pe
re

nn
ia

l s
hr

ub
 

1B
.1

 
M

ar
ch

–A
pr

il 
(M

ay
–

Ju
ly

) 
co

as
ta

l s
cr

ub
, 

rip
ar

ia
n 

sc
ru

b,
 

va
lle

y 
an

d 
fo

ot
hi

ll 
gr

as
sl

an
d 

72
0–

1,
38

0 
A

bs
en

t. 
Pe

re
nn

ia
l 

sh
ru

b 
w

ou
ld

 h
av

e 
be

en
 v

is
ib

le
 d

ur
in

g 
Au

gu
st

 s
ur

ve
y.

 

An
gi

os
pe

rm
s 

(E
ud

ic
ot

s)
 

Fa
ga

ce
ae

 
Q

ue
rc

us
 d

ur
at

a 
va

r. 
ga

br
ie

le
ns

is
 

Sa
n 

G
ab

rie
l o

ak
 

pe
re

nn
ia

l 
ev

er
gr

ee
n 

sh
ru

b 

4.
2 

Ap
ril

–M
ay

 
ch

ap
ar

ra
l, 

ci
sm

on
ta

ne
 

w
oo

dl
an

d 

1,
47

5–
3,

28
0 

A
bs

en
t. 

Su
rv

ey
 a

re
a 

be
lo

w
 e

le
va

tio
na

l 
ra

ng
e 

of
 s

pe
ci

es
. 

Pe
re

nn
ia

l e
ve

rg
re

en
 

sh
ru

b 
w

ou
ld

 h
av

e 
be

en
 v

is
ib

le
 d

ur
in

g 
Au

gu
st

 s
ur

ve
y.

  

An
gi

os
pe

rm
s 

(E
ud

ic
ot

s)
 

H
yd

ro
ph

yl
la

ce
ae

 
N

em
op

hi
la

 
pa

rv
ifl

or
a 

va
r. 

qu
er

ci
fo

lia
 

oa
k-

le
av

ed
 

ne
m

op
hi

la
 

an
nu

al
 h

er
b 

4.
3 

M
ay

–J
un

e 
ci

sm
on

ta
ne

 
w

oo
dl

an
d,

 
lo

w
er

 m
on

ta
ne

 
co

ni
fe

ro
us

 
fo

re
st

 

2,
29

5–
7,

22
0 

A
bs

en
t. 

Su
rv

ey
 a

re
a 

be
lo

w
 e

le
va

tio
na

l 
ra

ng
e 

of
 s

pe
ci

es
.  

An
gi

os
pe

rm
s 

(E
ud

ic
ot

s)
 

H
yd

ro
ph

yl
la

ce
ae

 
P

ha
ce

lia
 h

ub
by

i 
H

ub
by

’s
 p

ha
ce

lia
 

an
nu

al
 h

er
b 

4.
2 

Ap
ril

–J
ul

y 
ch

ap
ar

ra
l, 

co
as

ta
l s

cr
ub

, 
va

lle
y 

an
d 

fo
ot

hi
ll 

gr
as

sl
an

d;
 

gr
av

el
ly

, r
oc

ky
, 

ta
lu

s 

0–
3,

28
0 

Lo
w

. 2
00

3 
C

C
H

 
re

co
rd

 6
 m

ile
s 

no
rth

 
of

 s
ur

ve
y 

ar
ea

; 2
00

9 
C

C
H

 re
co

rd
 4

.3
 m

ile
s 

so
ut

hw
es

t o
f s

ur
ve

y 
ar

ea
; b

ot
h 

re
co

rd
s 

in
 

m
ou

nt
ai

no
us

 
to

po
gr

ap
hy

. S
ur

ve
y 

ar
ea

 is
 in

 a
llu

vi
al

 
pl

ai
n.

 

346



 

D
-6

 

Ph
yl

og
en

et
ic

 
C

at
eg

or
y 

Fa
m

ily
 

Sc
ie

nt
ifi

c 
N

am
e 

Co
m

m
on

 N
am

e 
Li

fe
fo

rm
 

CR
PR

*;
 

Li
st

in
g 

St
at

us
 

B
lo

om
in

g 
Pe

rio
d 

H
ab

ita
t 

El
ev

at
io

n 
(fe

et
 

am
sl

) 
Po

te
nt

ia
l T

o 
O

cc
ur

 

An
gi

os
pe

rm
s 

(E
ud

ic
ot

s)
 

H
yd

ro
ph

yl
la

ce
ae

 
P

ha
ce

lia
 

m
oh

av
en

si
s 

M
oj

av
e 

ph
ac

el
ia

 
an

nu
al

 h
er

b 
4.

3 
Ap

ril
–A

ug
us

t 
ci

sm
on

ta
ne

 
w

oo
dl

an
d,

 
lo

w
er

 m
on

ta
ne

 
co

ni
fe

ro
us

 
fo

re
st

, 
m

ea
do

w
s 

an
d 

se
ep

s,
 p

in
yo

n 
an

d 
ju

ni
pe

r 
w

oo
dl

an
d 

4,
59

5–
8,

20
5 

A
bs

en
t. 

Su
rv

ey
 a

re
a 

be
lo

w
 e

le
va

tio
na

l 
ra

ng
e 

of
 s

pe
ci

es
.  

An
gi

os
pe

rm
s 

(E
ud

ic
ot

s)
 

Ju
gl

an
da

ce
ae

 
Ju

gl
an

s 
ca

lif
or

ni
ca

 
So

ut
he

rn
 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 b

la
ck

 
w

al
nu

t 

pe
re

nn
ia

l 
de

ci
du

ou
s 

tre
e 

4.
2 

M
ar

ch
–A

ug
us

t 
ch

ap
ar

ra
l, 

ci
sm

on
ta

ne
 

w
oo

dl
an

d,
 

co
as

ta
l s

cr
ub

, 
rip

ar
ia

n 
w

oo
dl

an
d 

16
5–

2,
95

5 
A

bs
en

t. 
Pe

re
nn

ia
l 

de
ci

du
ou

s 
tre

e 
w

ou
ld

 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

vi
si

bl
e 

du
rin

g 
Au

gu
st

 s
ur

ve
y.

 

An
gi

os
pe

rm
s 

(E
ud

ic
ot

s)
 

Ju
gl

an
da

ce
ae

 
Ju

gl
an

s 
hi

nd
si

i 
N

or
th

er
n 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 b

la
ck

 
w

al
nu

t 

pe
re

nn
ia

l 
de

ci
du

ou
s 

tre
e 

1B
.1

 
Ap

ril
–M

ay
 

rip
ar

ia
n 

fo
re

st
, 

rip
ar

ia
n 

w
oo

dl
an

d 

0–
1,

44
5 

A
bs

en
t. 

Pe
re

nn
ia

l 
de

ci
du

ou
s 

tre
e 

w
ou

ld
 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
vi

si
bl

e 
du

rin
g 

Au
gu

st
 s

ur
ve

y.
 

An
gi

os
pe

rm
s 

(E
ud

ic
ot

s)
 

La
m

ia
ce

ae
 

Le
pe

ch
in

ia
 

fra
gr

an
s 

fra
gr

an
t p

itc
he

r 
sa

ge
 

pe
re

nn
ia

l s
hr

ub
 

4.
2 

M
ar

ch
–O

ct
ob

er
 

ch
ap

ar
ra

l 
65

–4
,3

00
 

A
bs

en
t. 

Pe
re

nn
ia

l 
sh

ru
b 

w
ou

ld
 h

av
e 

be
en

 v
is

ib
le

 d
ur

in
g 

Au
gu

st
 s

ur
ve

y.
 

An
gi

os
pe

rm
s 

(E
ud

ic
ot

s)
 

La
m

ia
ce

ae
 

Le
pe

ch
in

ia
 ro

ss
ii 

R
os

s’
 p

itc
he

r 
sa

ge
 

pe
re

nn
ia

l s
hr

ub
 

1B
.2

 
M

ay
–S

ep
te

m
be

r 
ch

ap
ar

ra
l 

1,
00

0–
2,

59
0 

A
bs

en
t. 

Pe
re

nn
ia

l 
sh

ru
b 

w
ou

ld
 h

av
e 

be
en

 v
is

ib
le

 d
ur

in
g 

Au
gu

st
 s

ur
ve

y.
 

An
gi

os
pe

rm
s 

(E
ud

ic
ot

s)
 

M
al

va
ce

ae
 

M
al

ac
ot

ha
m

nu
s 

da
vi

ds
on

ii 
D

av
id

so
n’

s 
bu

sh
-

m
al

lo
w

 
pe

re
nn

ia
l 

de
ci

du
ou

s 
sh

ru
b 

1B
.2

 
Ju

ne
–J

an
ua

ry
 

ch
ap

ar
ra

l, 
ci

sm
on

ta
ne

 
w

oo
dl

an
d,

 
co

as
ta

l s
cr

ub
, 

rip
ar

ia
n 

w
oo

dl
an

d 

60
5–

3,
74

0 
A

bs
en

t. 
Pe

re
nn

ia
l 

sh
ru

b 
w

ou
ld

 h
av

e 
be

en
 v

is
ib

le
 d

ur
in

g 
Au

gu
st

 s
ur

ve
y.

 

An
gi

os
pe

rm
s 

(E
ud

ic
ot

s)
 

M
on

tia
ce

ae
 

C
al

an
dr

in
ia

 
br

ew
er

i 
Br

ew
er

’s
 

ca
la

nd
rin

ia
 

an
nu

al
 h

er
b 

4.
2 

(J
an

ua
ry

) M
ar

ch
–

Ju
ne

 
ch

ap
ar

ra
l, 

co
as

ta
l s

cr
ub

; 
sa

nd
y 

or
 

lo
am

y,
 

di
st

ur
be

d 
si

te
s 

an
d 

bu
rn

s 

30
–4

,0
05

 
Lo

w
. 1

97
3 

C
C

H
 

oc
cu

rre
nc

e 
lo

ca
te

d 
6.

9 
m

ile
s 

to
 th

e 
so

ut
he

as
t. 

Si
te

 
di

st
ur

be
d 

by
 in

va
si

ve
 

m
us

ta
rd

s 
w

he
re

 
su

ita
bl

e;
 te

nd
s 

to
 

ge
rm

in
at

e 
af

te
r f

ire
. 

347



 

D
-7

 

Ph
yl

og
en

et
ic

 
C

at
eg

or
y 

Fa
m

ily
 

Sc
ie

nt
ifi

c 
N

am
e 

Co
m

m
on

 N
am

e 
Li

fe
fo

rm
 

CR
PR

*;
 

Li
st

in
g 

St
at

us
 

B
lo

om
in

g 
Pe

rio
d 

H
ab

ita
t 

El
ev

at
io

n 
(fe

et
 

am
sl

) 
Po

te
nt

ia
l T

o 
O

cc
ur

 

An
gi

os
pe

rm
s 

(E
ud

ic
ot

s)
 

O
na

gr
ac

ea
e 

C
la

rk
ia

 le
w

is
ii 

Le
w

is
’ c

la
rk

ia
 

an
nu

al
 h

er
b 

4.
3 

M
ay

–J
ul

y 
br

oa
d-

le
af

ed
 

up
la

nd
 fo

re
st

, 
cl

os
ed

-c
on

e 
co

ni
fe

ro
us

 
fo

re
st

, 
ch

ap
ar

ra
l, 

ci
sm

on
ta

ne
 

w
oo

dl
an

d,
 

co
as

ta
l s

cr
ub

 

95
–3

,9
20

 
A

bs
en

t. 
Su

rv
ey

 a
re

a 
ou

ts
id

e 
of

 th
e 

ge
ne

ra
l 

di
st

rib
ut

io
n 

of
 th

e 
sp

ec
ie

s 
(O

ut
er

 S
ou

th
 

C
oa

st
 R

an
ge

s 
D

is
tri

ct
 

an
d 

C
en

tra
l C

oa
st

 
Su

br
eg

io
n)

 

An
gi

os
pe

rm
s 

(E
ud

ic
ot

s)
 

O
na

gr
ac

ea
e 

O
en

ot
he

ra
 

lo
ng

is
si

m
a 

lo
ng

-s
te

m
 

ev
en

in
g-

pr
im

ro
se

 
an

nu
al

 / 
pe

re
nn

ia
l h

er
b 

2B
.2

 
Ju

ly
–S

ep
te

m
be

r 
M

oj
av

ea
n 

de
se

rt 
sc

ru
b,

 
pi

ny
on

 a
nd

 
ju

ni
pe

r 
w

oo
dl

an
d;

 
se

as
on

al
ly

 
m

es
ic

 

3,
28

0–
5,

57
5 

A
bs

en
t. 

Su
rv

ey
 a

re
a 

be
lo

w
 e

le
va

tio
na

l 
ra

ng
e 

of
 s

pe
ci

es
.  

An
gi

os
pe

rm
s 

(E
ud

ic
ot

s)
 

O
ro

ba
nc

ha
ce

ae
 

C
as

til
le

ja
 

gl
ea

so
ni

 
M

t. 
G

le
as

on
 

pa
in

tb
ru

sh
 

pe
re

nn
ia

l h
er

b 
(h

em
ip

ar
as

iti
c)

 
1B

.2
; S

ta
te

 
lis

te
d 

as
 R

ar
e 

M
ay

–J
un

e 
(S

ep
te

m
be

r) 
ch

ap
ar

ra
l, 

lo
w

er
 m

on
ta

ne
 

co
ni

fe
ro

us
 

fo
re

st
, p

in
yo

n 
an

d 
ju

ni
pe

r 
w

oo
dl

an
d;

 
gr

an
iti

c 

2,
18

0–
7,

12
0 

A
bs

en
t. 

Su
rv

ey
 a

re
a 

be
lo

w
 e

le
va

tio
na

l 
ra

ng
e 

of
 s

pe
ci

es
.  

An
gi

os
pe

rm
s 

(E
ud

ic
ot

s)
 

Pa
pa

ve
ra

ce
ae

 
C

an
by

a 
ca

nd
id

a 
w

hi
te

 p
yg

m
y-

po
pp

y 
an

nu
al

 h
er

b 
4.

2 
M

ar
ch

–J
un

e 
Jo

sh
ua

 tr
ee

 
"w

oo
dl

an
d,

" 
M

oj
av

ea
n 

de
se

rt 
sc

ru
b,

 
pi

ny
on

 a
nd

 
ju

ni
pe

r 
w

oo
dl

an
d;

 
gr

an
iti

c,
 

gr
av

el
ly

, s
an

dy
 

1,
97

0–
4,

79
0 

A
bs

en
t. 

Su
rv

ey
 a

re
a 

be
lo

w
 e

le
va

tio
na

l 
ra

ng
e 

of
 s

pe
ci

es
.  

An
gi

os
pe

rm
s 

(E
ud

ic
ot

s)
 

Pl
an

ta
gi

na
ce

ae
 

C
ol

lin
si

a 
an

to
ni

na
 

Sa
n 

An
to

ni
o 

co
llin

si
a 

an
nu

al
 h

er
b 

1B
.2

 
M

ar
ch

–M
ay

 
ch

ap
ar

ra
l, 

ci
sm

on
ta

ne
 

w
oo

dl
an

d 

91
5–

1,
20

0 
A

bs
en

t. 
Su

rv
ey

 a
re

a 
ou

ts
id

e 
of

 th
e 

ge
ne

ra
l 

di
st

rib
ut

io
n 

of
 th

e 
sp

ec
ie

s 
(O

ut
er

 S
ou

th
 

C
oa

st
 R

an
ge

s 
D

is
tri

ct
) 

348



 

D
-8

 

Ph
yl

og
en

et
ic

 
C

at
eg

or
y 

Fa
m

ily
 

Sc
ie

nt
ifi

c 
N

am
e 

Co
m

m
on

 N
am

e 
Li

fe
fo

rm
 

CR
PR

*;
 

Li
st

in
g 

St
at

us
 

B
lo

om
in

g 
Pe

rio
d 

H
ab

ita
t 

El
ev

at
io

n 
(fe

et
 

am
sl

) 
Po

te
nt

ia
l T

o 
O

cc
ur

 

An
gi

os
pe

rm
s 

(E
ud

ic
ot

s)
 

Po
le

m
on

ia
ce

ae
 

E
ria

st
ru

m
 

sp
ar

si
flo

ru
m

 
fe

w
-fl

ow
er

ed
 

er
ia

st
ru

m
 

an
nu

al
 h

er
b 

4.
3 

M
ay

–S
ep

te
m

be
r 

ch
ap

ar
ra

l, 
ci

sm
on

ta
ne

 
w

oo
dl

an
d,

 
gr

ea
t b

as
in

 
sc

ru
b,

 J
os

hu
a 

tre
e 

w
oo

dl
an

d,
 

M
oj

av
ea

n 
de

se
rt 

sc
ru

b,
 

pi
ny

on
 a

nd
 

ju
ni

pe
r 

w
oo

dl
an

d;
 

gr
an

iti
c,

 s
an

dy
, 

us
ua

lly
 

op
en

in
gs

 

3,
52

5–
5,

61
0 

A
bs

en
t. 

Su
rv

ey
 a

re
a 

be
lo

w
 e

le
va

tio
na

l 
ra

ng
e 

of
 s

pe
ci

es
.  

An
gi

os
pe

rm
s 

(E
ud

ic
ot

s)
 

Po
le

m
on

ia
ce

ae
 

Le
pt

os
ip

ho
n 

py
gm

ae
us

 s
sp

. 
py

gm
ae

us
 

py
gm

y 
le

pt
os

ip
ho

n 
an

nu
al

 h
er

b 
1B

.2
 

Ap
ril

 
co

as
ta

l s
cr

ub
, 

va
lle

y 
an

d 
fo

ot
hi

ll 
gr

as
sl

an
d 

1,
49

0–
1,

95
0 

A
bs

en
t. 

Su
rv

ey
 a

re
a 

be
lo

w
 e

le
va

tio
na

l 
ra

ng
e 

of
 s

pe
ci

es
.  

An
gi

os
pe

rm
s 

(E
ud

ic
ot

s)
 

Po
le

m
on

ia
ce

ae
 

N
av

ar
re

tia
 

fo
ss

al
is

 
sp

re
ad

in
g 

na
va

rre
tia

 
an

nu
al

 h
er

b 
1B

.1
; 

Fe
de

ra
lly

 
lis

te
d 

as
 

th
re

at
en

ed
 

Ap
ril

–J
un

e 
ch

en
op

od
 

sc
ru

b,
 m

ar
sh

es
 

an
d 

sw
am

ps
, 

pl
ay

as
, v

er
na

l 
po

ol
s 

10
0–

2,
15

0 
A

bs
en

t. 
N

o 
su

ita
bl

e 
ha

bi
ta

t o
n-

si
te

.  

An
gi

os
pe

rm
s 

(E
ud

ic
ot

s)
 

Po
le

m
on

ia
ce

ae
 

N
av

ar
re

tia
 

oj
ai

en
si

s 
O

ja
i n

av
ar

re
tia

 
an

nu
al

 h
er

b 
1B

.1
 

M
ay

–J
ul

y 
ch

ap
ar

ra
l, 

co
as

ta
l s

cr
ub

, 
va

lle
y 

an
d 

fo
ot

hi
ll 

gr
as

sl
an

d 

90
0–

2,
03

5 
Lo

w
. C

C
H

 re
co

rd
 

fro
m

 2
00

3 
7.

2 
m

ile
s 

w
es

t i
n 

de
ns

e 
co

as
ta

l 
sa

ge
 s

cr
ub

 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 w
ith

 
sp

ec
ie

s 
th

at
 a

re
 

ab
se

nt
 w

ith
in

 s
ur

ve
y 

ar
ea

. 
Sc

ru
b/

gr
as

sl
an

d 
on

-
si

te
 is

 d
eg

ra
de

d.
 

An
gi

os
pe

rm
s 

(E
ud

ic
ot

s)
 

Po
le

m
on

ia
ce

ae
 

N
av

ar
re

tia
 

se
til

ob
a 

Pi
ut

e 
M

ou
nt

ai
ns

 
na

va
rre

tia
 

an
nu

al
 h

er
b 

1B
.1

 
Ap

ril
–J

ul
y 

ci
sm

on
ta

ne
 

w
oo

dl
an

d,
 

pi
ny

on
 a

nd
 

ju
ni

pe
r 

w
oo

dl
an

d,
 

va
lle

y 
an

d 
fo

ot
hi

ll 
gr

as
sl

an
d 

93
5–

6,
89

0 
Lo

w
. S

m
al

l d
is

ju
nc

t 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

in
 M

in
t 

C
an

yo
n 

qu
ad

ra
ng

le
 

7 
m

ile
s 

ea
st

 o
f s

ur
ve

y 
ar

ea
, i

n 
ve

rn
al

 p
oo

l. 
D

eg
ra

de
d 

ha
bi

ta
t 

w
ith

in
 s

ur
ve

y 
ar

ea
. 

349



 

D
-9

 

Ph
yl

og
en

et
ic

 
C

at
eg

or
y 

Fa
m

ily
 

Sc
ie

nt
ifi

c 
N

am
e 

Co
m

m
on

 N
am

e 
Li

fe
fo

rm
 

CR
PR

*;
 

Li
st

in
g 

St
at

us
 

B
lo

om
in

g 
Pe

rio
d 

H
ab

ita
t 

El
ev

at
io

n 
(fe

et
 

am
sl

) 
Po

te
nt

ia
l T

o 
O

cc
ur

 

An
gi

os
pe

rm
s 

(E
ud

ic
ot

s)
 

Po
ly

go
na

ce
ae

 
C

ho
riz

an
th

e 
br

ew
er

i 
Br

ew
er

’s
 

sp
in

ef
lo

w
er

 
an

nu
al

 h
er

b 
1B

.3
 

Ap
ril

–A
ug

us
t 

cl
os

ed
-c

on
e 

co
ni

fe
ro

us
 

fo
re

st
, 

ch
ap

ar
ra

l, 
ci

sm
on

ta
ne

 
w

oo
dl

an
d,

 
co

as
ta

l s
cr

ub
; 

se
rp

en
tin

ite
, 

ro
ck

y 
or

 
gr

av
el

ly
 

14
5–

2,
62

5 
A

bs
en

t. 
Su

rv
ey

 a
re

a 
ou

ts
id

e 
of

 g
en

er
al

 
di

st
rib

ut
io

n 
of

 s
pe

ci
es

 
(S

an
 L

ui
s 

O
bi

sp
o)

.  

An
gi

os
pe

rm
s 

(E
ud

ic
ot

s)
 

Po
ly

go
na

ce
ae

 
C

ho
riz

an
th

e 
pa

rry
i v

ar
. 

fe
rn

an
di

na
 

Sa
n 

Fe
rn

an
do

 
Va

lle
y 

sp
in

ef
lo

w
er

 

an
nu

al
 h

er
b 

1B
.1

; S
ta

te
 

lis
te

d 
as

 
en

da
ng

er
ed

 

Ap
ril

–J
ul

y 
co

as
ta

l s
cr

ub
, 

va
lle

y 
an

d 
fo

ot
hi

ll 
gr

as
sl

an
d 

49
0–

4,
00

5 
M

od
er

at
e.

 S
ur

ve
y 

ar
ea

 lo
ca

te
d 

ad
ja

ce
nt

 
to

 p
op

ul
at

io
n 

ho
ts

po
t. 

20
11

 C
N

D
D

B 
oc

cu
rre

nc
e 

re
co

rd
 

lo
ca

te
d 

0.
5 

m
ile

s 
w

es
t o

f s
ur

ve
y 

ar
ea

, 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 w
ith

 
Br

om
us

 d
ia

nd
ru

s,
 

an
d 

Br
om

us
 ru

be
ns

 
gr

as
sl

an
d 

(s
im

ila
rly

 
di

st
ur

be
d 

ha
bi

ta
t i

n 
su

rv
ey

 a
re

a)
. 

An
gi

os
pe

rm
s 

(E
ud

ic
ot

s)
 

Po
ly

go
na

ce
ae

 
C

ho
riz

an
th

e 
pa

rry
i v

ar
. p

ar
ry

i 
Pa

rry
’s

 
sp

in
ef

lo
w

er
 

an
nu

al
 h

er
b 

1B
.1

 
Ap

ril
–J

un
e 

ch
ap

ar
ra

l, 
ci

sm
on

ta
ne

 
w

oo
dl

an
d,

 
co

as
ta

l s
cr

ub
, 

va
lle

y 
an

d 
fo

ot
hi

ll 
gr

as
sl

an
d 

90
0–

4,
00

5 
A

bs
en

t. 
Su

rv
ey

 a
re

a 
ou

ts
id

e 
of

 th
e 

ge
ne

ra
l 

di
st

rib
ut

io
n 

of
 th

e 
sp

ec
ie

s 
(S

an
 G

ab
rie

l 
M

ou
nt

ai
ns

 D
is

tri
ct

 
an

d 
So

ut
h 

C
oa

st
 

Su
br

eg
io

n)
 

An
gi

os
pe

rm
s 

(E
ud

ic
ot

s)
 

Po
ly

go
na

ce
ae

 
D

od
ec

ah
em

a 
le

pt
oc

er
as

 
sl

en
de

r-h
or

ne
d 

sp
in

ef
lo

w
er

 
an

nu
al

 h
er

b 
1B

.1
; S

ta
te

 
lis

te
d 

as
 

en
da

ng
er

ed
; 

Fe
de

ra
lly

 
lis

te
d 

as
 

en
da

ng
er

ed
 

Ap
ril

–J
un

e 
ch

ap
ar

ra
l, 

ci
sm

on
ta

ne
 

w
oo

dl
an

d,
 

co
as

ta
l s

cr
ub

 

65
5–

2,
49

5 
Lo

w
. P

os
si

bl
y 

ex
tir

pa
te

d 
18

93
 

C
N

D
D

B 
oc

cu
rre

nc
e 

lo
ca

te
d 

2.
7 

m
ile

s 
so

ut
he

as
t; 

19
37

 
po

ss
ib

ly
 e

xt
irp

at
ed

 
oc

cu
rre

nc
e 

lo
ca

te
d 

6.
9 

m
ile

s 
to

 th
e 

ea
st

.  

350



 

D
-1

0 

Ph
yl

og
en

et
ic

 
C

at
eg

or
y 

Fa
m

ily
 

Sc
ie

nt
ifi

c 
N

am
e 

Co
m

m
on

 N
am

e 
Li

fe
fo

rm
 

CR
PR

*;
 

Li
st

in
g 

St
at

us
 

B
lo

om
in

g 
Pe

rio
d 

H
ab

ita
t 

El
ev

at
io

n 
(fe

et
 

am
sl

) 
Po

te
nt

ia
l T

o 
O

cc
ur

 

An
gi

os
pe

rm
s 

(E
ud

ic
ot

s)
 

Po
ly

go
na

ce
ae

 
E

rio
go

nu
m

 
ev

an
id

um
 

va
ni

sh
in

g 
w

ild
 

bu
ck

w
he

at
 

an
nu

al
 h

er
b 

1B
.1

 
Ju

ly
–O

ct
ob

er
 

ch
ap

ar
ra

l, 
ci

sm
on

ta
ne

 
w

oo
dl

an
d,

 
lo

w
er

 m
on

ta
ne

 
co

ni
fe

ro
us

 
fo

re
st

, p
in

yo
n 

an
d 

ju
ni

pe
r 

w
oo

dl
an

d;
 

sa
nd

y 
or

 
gr

av
el

ly
 

3,
60

5–
7,

30
0 

A
bs

en
t. 

Su
rv

ey
 a

re
a 

be
lo

w
 e

le
va

tio
na

l 
ra

ng
e 

of
 s

pe
ci

es
.  

An
gi

os
pe

rm
s 

(E
ud

ic
ot

s)
 

Po
ly

go
na

ce
ae

 
M

uc
ro

ne
a 

ca
lif

or
ni

ca
 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 

sp
in

ef
lo

w
er

 
an

nu
al

 h
er

b 
4.

2 
M

ar
ch

–J
ul

y 
(A

ug
us

t) 
ch

ap
ar

ra
l, 

ci
sm

on
ta

ne
 

w
oo

dl
an

d,
 

co
as

ta
l d

un
es

, 
co

as
ta

l s
cr

ub
, 

va
lle

y 
an

d 
fo

ot
hi

ll 
gr

as
sl

an
d;

 
sa

nd
y 

0–
4,

59
5 

A
bs

en
t. 

Su
rv

ey
 a

re
a 

ou
ts

id
e 

of
 th

e 
sp

ec
ie

’s
 g

en
er

al
 

di
st

rib
ut

io
n 

(S
an

 L
ui

s 
O

bi
sp

o 
co

as
t a

nd
 

ba
se

 o
f t

he
 S

an
 

G
ab

rie
ls

. 

An
gi

os
pe

rm
s 

(E
ud

ic
ot

s)
 

R
an

un
cu

la
ce

ae
 

D
el

ph
in

iu
m

 p
ar

ry
i 

ss
p.

 p
ur

pu
re

um
 

M
t. 

Pi
no

s 
la

rk
sp

ur
 

pe
re

nn
ia

l h
er

b 
4.

3 
M

ay
–J

un
e 

ch
ap

ar
ra

l, 
M

oj
av

ea
n 

de
se

rt 
sc

ru
b,

 
pi

ny
on

 a
nd

 
ju

ni
pe

r 
w

oo
dl

an
d 

3,
28

0–
8,

53
0 

A
bs

en
t. 

Su
rv

ey
 a

re
a 

be
lo

w
 e

le
va

tio
na

l 
ra

ng
e 

of
 s

pe
ci

es
.  

An
gi

os
pe

rm
s 

(E
ud

ic
ot

s)
 

R
ha

m
na

ce
ae

 
C

ea
no

th
us

 
m

eg
ac

ar
pu

s 
va

r. 
in

su
la

ris
 

is
la

nd
 c

ea
no

th
us

 
pe

re
nn

ia
l 

ev
er

gr
ee

n 
sh

ru
b 

4.
3 

D
ec

em
be

r–
Ap

ril
 

ch
ap

ar
ra

l 
(s

an
dy

) 
95

–1
,9

70
 

A
bs

en
t. 

Pe
re

nn
ia

l 
ev

er
gr

ee
n 

sh
ru

b 
w

ou
ld

 h
av

e 
be

en
 

vi
si

bl
e 

du
rin

g 
Au

gu
st

 
su

rv
ey

. 

An
gi

os
pe

rm
s 

(E
ud

ic
ot

s)
 

R
os

ac
ea

e 
C

er
co

ca
rp

us
 

be
tu

lo
id

es
 v

ar
. 

bl
an

ch
ea

e 

is
la

nd
 m

ou
nt

ai
n-

m
ah

og
an

y 
pe

re
nn

ia
l 

ev
er

gr
ee

n 
sh

ru
b 

4.
3 

Fe
br

ua
ry

–M
ay

 
ch

ap
ar

ra
l, 

cl
os

ed
-c

on
e 

co
ni

fe
ro

us
 

fo
re

st
 

10
0–

1,
97

0 
A

bs
en

t. 
Pe

re
nn

ia
l 

ev
er

gr
ee

n 
sh

ru
b 

w
ou

ld
 h

av
e 

be
en

 
vi

si
bl

e 
du

rin
g 

Au
gu

st
 

su
rv

ey
. 

An
gi

os
pe

rm
s 

(E
ud

ic
ot

s)
 

R
os

ac
ea

e 
H

or
ke

lia
 c

un
ea

ta
 

va
r. 

pu
be

ru
la

 
m

es
a 

ho
rk

el
ia

 
pe

re
nn

ia
l h

er
b 

1B
.1

 
Fe

br
ua

ry
–J

ul
y 

(S
ep

te
m

be
r) 

ch
ap

ar
ra

l, 
ci

sm
on

ta
ne

 
w

oo
dl

an
d,

 
co

as
ta

l s
cr

ub
 

23
0–

2,
66

0 
A

bs
en

t. 
Su

rv
ey

 a
re

a 
ou

ts
id

e 
of

 th
e 

ge
ne

ra
lly

 c
oa

st
al

 
di

st
rib

ut
io

n 
of

 
sp

ec
ie

s.
 

351



 

D
-1

1 

Ph
yl

og
en

et
ic

 
C

at
eg

or
y 

Fa
m

ily
 

Sc
ie

nt
ifi

c 
N

am
e 

Co
m

m
on

 N
am

e 
Li

fe
fo

rm
 

CR
PR

*;
 

Li
st

in
g 

St
at

us
 

B
lo

om
in

g 
Pe

rio
d 

H
ab

ita
t 

El
ev

at
io

n 
(fe

et
 

am
sl

) 
Po

te
nt

ia
l T

o 
O

cc
ur

 

An
gi

os
pe

rm
s 

(E
ud

ic
ot

s)
 

R
ub

ia
ce

ae
 

G
al

iu
m

 g
ra

nd
e 

Sa
n 

G
ab

rie
l 

be
ds

tra
w

 
pe

re
nn

ia
l 

de
ci

du
ou

s 
sh

ru
b 

1B
.2

 
Ja

nu
ar

y–
Ju

ly
 

br
oa

d-
le

af
ed

 
up

la
nd

 fo
re

st
, 

ch
ap

ar
ra

l, 
ci

sm
on

ta
ne

 
w

oo
dl

an
d,

 
lo

w
er

 m
on

ta
ne

 
co

ni
fe

ro
us

 
fo

re
st

 

1,
39

0–
4,

92
0 

A
bs

en
t. 

Su
rv

ey
 a

re
a 

be
lo

w
 e

le
va

tio
na

l 
ra

ng
e 

of
 s

pe
ci

es
.  

An
gi

os
pe

rm
s 

(E
ud

ic
ot

s)
 

So
la

na
ce

ae
 

P
hy

sa
lis

 lo
ba

ta
 

lo
be

d 
gr

ou
nd

-
ch

er
ry

 
pe

re
nn

ia
l h

er
b 

2B
.3

 
(M

ay
) S

ep
te

m
be

r–
Ja

nu
ar

y 
M

oj
av

ea
n 

de
se

rt 
sc

ru
b,

 
pl

ay
as

 

1,
64

0–
2,

62
5 

A
bs

en
t. 

Su
rv

ey
 a

re
a 

be
lo

w
 e

le
va

tio
na

l 
ra

ng
e 

of
 s

pe
ci

es
.  

An
gi

os
pe

rm
s 

(M
on

oc
ot

s)
 

Al
lia

ce
ae

 
A

lli
um

 h
ow

el
lii 

va
r. 

cl
ok

ey
i 

M
t. 

Pi
no

s 
on

io
n 

pe
re

nn
ia

l 
bu

lb
ife

ro
us

 
he

rb
 

1B
.3

 
Ap

ril
–J

un
e 

gr
ea

t b
as

in
 

sc
ru

b,
 

m
ea

do
w

s 
an

d 
se

ep
s 

(e
dg

es
), 

pi
ny

on
 a

nd
 

ju
ni

pe
r 

w
oo

dl
an

d 

4,
26

5–
6,

07
0 

A
bs

en
t. 

Su
rv

ey
 a

re
a 

be
lo

w
 e

le
va

tio
na

l 
ra

ng
e 

of
 s

pe
ci

es
.  

An
gi

os
pe

rm
s 

(M
on

oc
ot

s)
 

Ju
nc

ac
ea

e 
Ju

nc
us

 a
cu

tu
s 

ss
p.

 le
op

ol
di

i 
so

ut
hw

es
te

rn
 

sp
in

y 
ru

sh
 

pe
re

nn
ia

l 
rh

iz
om

at
ou

s 
he

rb
 

4.
2 

(M
ar

ch
) M

ay
–J

un
e 

co
as

ta
l d

un
es

, 
m

ar
sh

es
 a

nd
 

sw
am

ps
, 

m
ea

do
w

s 
an

d 
se

ep
s 

10
–2

,9
55

 
A

bs
en

t. 
N

o 
su

ita
bl

e 
ha

bi
ta

t o
n-

si
te

.  

An
gi

os
pe

rm
s 

(M
on

oc
ot

s)
 

Li
lia

ce
ae

 
C

al
oc

ho
rtu

s 
ca

ta
lin

ae
 

C
at

al
in

a 
m

ar
ip

os
a 

lily
 

pe
re

nn
ia

l 
bu

lb
ife

ro
us

 
he

rb
 

4.
2 

(F
eb

ru
ar

y)
M

ar
ch

–
Ju

ne
 

ch
ap

ar
ra

l, 
ci

sm
on

ta
ne

 
w

oo
dl

an
d,

 
co

as
ta

l s
cr

ub
, 

va
lle

y 
an

d 
fo

ot
hi

ll 
gr

as
sl

an
d 

50
–2

,2
95

 
Lo

w
. D

is
tri

bu
tio

n 
ge

ne
ra

lly
 c

lo
se

r t
o 

co
as

t. 
20

10
 C

C
G

 
oc

cu
rre

nc
e 

8 
m

ile
s 

so
ut

he
as

t. 

An
gi

os
pe

rm
s 

(M
on

oc
ot

s)
 

Li
lia

ce
ae

 
C

al
oc

ho
rtu

s 
cl

av
at

us
 v

ar
. 

av
iu

s 

Pl
ea

sa
nt

 V
al

le
y 

m
ar

ip
os

a-
lily

 
pe

re
nn

ia
l 

bu
lb

ife
ro

us
 

he
rb

 

1B
.2

 
M

ay
–J

ul
y 

lo
w

er
 m

on
ta

ne
 

co
ni

fe
ro

us
 

fo
re

st
 

1,
00

0–
5,

90
5 

A
bs

en
t. 

N
o 

su
ita

bl
e 

ha
bi

ta
t o

n-
si

te
.  

352



 

D
-1

2 

Ph
yl

og
en

et
ic

 
C

at
eg

or
y 

Fa
m

ily
 

Sc
ie

nt
ifi

c 
N

am
e 

Co
m

m
on

 N
am

e 
Li

fe
fo

rm
 

CR
PR

*;
 

Li
st

in
g 

St
at

us
 

B
lo

om
in

g 
Pe

rio
d 

H
ab

ita
t 

El
ev

at
io

n 
(fe

et
 

am
sl

) 
Po

te
nt

ia
l T

o 
O

cc
ur

 

An
gi

os
pe

rm
s 

(M
on

oc
ot

s)
 

Li
lia

ce
ae

 
C

al
oc

ho
rtu

s 
cl

av
at

us
 v

ar
. 

cl
av

at
us

 

cl
ub

-h
ai

re
d 

m
ar

ip
os

a 
lily

 
pe

re
nn

ia
l 

bu
lb

ife
ro

us
 

he
rb

 

4.
3 

(M
ar

ch
) M

ay
–J

un
e 

ch
ap

ar
ra

l, 
ci

sm
on

ta
ne

 
w

oo
dl

an
d,

 
co

as
ta

l s
cr

ub
, 

va
lle

y 
an

d 
fo

ot
hi

ll 
gr

as
sl

an
d;

 c
la

y,
 

ro
ck

y,
 

se
rp

en
tin

ite
 

(u
su

al
ly

) 

10
0–

4,
26

5 
M

od
er

at
e.

 R
ec

en
t 

an
d 

ne
ar

 C
C

H
 

oc
cu

rre
nc

es
 (2

01
1,

 
4.

6 
m

ile
s 

no
rth

; 2
00

8,
 

6.
3 

m
ile

s 
no

rth
ea

st
) 

oc
cu

r i
n 

si
m

ila
r 

ha
bi

ta
t (

di
st

ur
be

d 
an

nu
al

 g
ra

ss
la

nd
s)

. 
20

15
 C

al
flo

ra
 re

co
rd

 
oc

cu
rs

 7
.5

 m
ile

s 
up

st
re

am
 in

 s
im

ila
rly

 
di

st
ur

be
d 

ha
bi

ta
t a

s 
pr

es
en

t o
n 

su
rv

ey
 

ar
ea

, a
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

w
ith

 
w

ee
dy

 s
pe

ci
es

. 

An
gi

os
pe

rm
s 

(M
on

oc
ot

s)
 

Li
lia

ce
ae

 
C

al
oc

ho
rtu

s 
cl

av
at

us
 v

ar
. 

gr
ac

ilis
 

sl
en

de
r 

m
ar

ip
os

a-
lily

 
pe

re
nn

ia
l 

bu
lb

ife
ro

us
 

he
rb

 

1B
.2

 
M

ar
ch

–
Ju

ne
(N

ov
em

be
r) 

ch
ap

ar
ra

l, 
co

as
ta

l s
cr

ub
, 

va
lle

y 
an

d 
fo

ot
hi

ll 
gr

as
sl

an
d 

1,
05

0–
3,

28
0 

M
od

er
at

e.
 M

ul
tip

le
 

re
ce

nt
 C

N
D

D
B 

re
co

rd
s 

oc
cu

r 
su

rro
un

di
ng

 s
ur

ve
y 

ar
ea

 in
 a

ll 
di

re
ct

io
ns

, 
ne

ar
es

t f
ro

m
 2

01
8 

an
d 

0.
5 

m
ile

 to
 th

e 
w

es
t, 

fo
un

d 
on

 s
im

ila
r 

so
ils

 th
at

 a
re

 fo
un

d 
in

 
th

e 
su

rv
ey

 a
re

a 
w

he
re

 n
ot

 p
av

ed
. 

O
nl

y 
m

od
er

at
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l d
ue

 to
 

do
m

in
an

ce
 o

f 
in

va
si

ve
s 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
lly

 s
ui

ta
bl

e 
ha

bi
ta

t; 
ho

w
ev

er
, 

Br
om

us
 m

ad
rit

en
si

s 
ss

p.
 ru

be
ns

, 
C

en
ta

ur
ea

 m
el

ite
ns

is
 

re
co

rd
ed

 in
 th

e 
re

co
rd

s 
ne

ar
 s

ur
ve

y 
ar

ea
. 

353



D
-1

3

Ph
yl

og
en

et
ic

 
C

at
eg

or
y 

Fa
m

ily
 

Sc
ie

nt
ifi

c 
N

am
e 

Co
m

m
on

 N
am

e 
Li

fe
fo

rm
 

CR
PR

*;
 

Li
st

in
g 

St
at

us
 

B
lo

om
in

g 
Pe

rio
d 

H
ab

ita
t 

El
ev

at
io

n 
(fe

et
 

am
sl

) 
Po

te
nt

ia
l T

o 
O

cc
ur

 

An
gi

os
pe

rm
s 

(M
on

oc
ot

s)
 

Li
lia

ce
ae

 
C

al
oc

ho
rtu

s 
fim

br
ia

tu
s 

la
te

-fl
ow

er
ed

 
m

ar
ip

os
a-

lily
 

pe
re

nn
ia

l 
bu

lb
ife

ro
us

 
he

rb
 

1B
.3

 
Ju

ne
–A

ug
us

t 
ch

ap
ar

ra
l, 

ci
sm

on
ta

ne
 

w
oo

dl
an

d,
 

rip
ar

ia
n 

w
oo

dl
an

d;
 

se
rp

en
tin

ite
 

(s
om

et
im

es
) 

90
0–

6,
25

0 
A

bs
en

t. 
Vi

rtu
al

ly
 a

ll 
oc

cu
rre

nc
es

 in
 

vi
ci

ni
ty

 o
cc

ur
 in

 th
e 

w
es

te
rn

 p
or

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
Je

ps
on

 G
eo

gr
ap

hi
c 

W
es

te
rn

 T
ra

ns
ve

rs
e 

R
an

ge
s 

D
is

tri
ct

. 
(S

ur
ve

y 
ar

ea
 o

ut
si

de
 

of
 g

eo
gr

ap
hi

c 
di

st
rib

ut
io

n 
ar

ea
) 

An
gi

os
pe

rm
s 

(M
on

oc
ot

s)
 

Li
lia

ce
ae

 
C

al
oc

ho
rtu

s 
pa

lm
er

i v
ar

. 
pa

lm
er

i 

Pa
lm

er
’s

 
m

ar
ip

os
a-

lily
 

pe
re

nn
ia

l 
bu

lb
ife

ro
us

 
he

rb
 

1B
.2

 
Ap

ril
–J

ul
y 

ch
ap

ar
ra

l, 
lo

w
er

 m
on

ta
ne

 
co

ni
fe

ro
us

 
fo

re
st

, 
m

ea
do

w
s 

an
d 

se
ep

s;
 m

es
ic

 

2,
33

0–
7,

84
0 

A
bs

en
t. 

Su
rv

ey
 a

re
a 

be
lo

w
 e

le
va

tio
na

l 
ra

ng
e 

of
 s

pe
ci

es
.  

An
gi

os
pe

rm
s 

(M
on

oc
ot

s)
 

Li
lia

ce
ae

 
C

al
oc

ho
rtu

s 
pl

um
m

er
ae

 
Pl

um
m

er
’s

 
m

ar
ip

os
a-

lily
 

pe
re

nn
ia

l 
bu

lb
ife

ro
us

 
he

rb
 

4.
2 

M
ay

–J
ul

y 
ch

ap
ar

ra
l, 

ci
sm

on
ta

ne
 

w
oo

dl
an

d,
 

co
as

ta
l s

cr
ub

, 
lo

w
er

 m
on

ta
ne

 
co

ni
fe

ro
us

 
fo

re
st

, v
al

le
y 

an
d 

fo
ot

hi
ll 

gr
as

sl
an

d;
 

gr
an

iti
c,

 ro
ck

y 

33
0–

5,
58

0 
M

od
er

at
e.

 2
01

4 
C

C
H

 
re

co
rd

 3
.4

 m
ile

s 
so

ut
he

as
t o

f s
ur

ve
y 

ar
ea

, a
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

w
ith

 
H

irs
ch

fe
ld

ia
 in

ca
na

, 
si

m
ila

r h
ab

ita
t w

ith
in

 
su

rv
ey

 a
re

a.
 2

00
3 

C
C

H
 re

co
rd

 in
 s

an
dy

 
cl

ay
 s

oi
l a

nd
 

re
co

rd
ed

 3
.9

 m
ile

s 
up

st
re

am
 o

f S
an

ta
 

C
la

ra
 R

iv
er

 c
or

rid
or

 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 w
ith

 
B

ro
m

us
 m

ad
rit

en
si

s 
ru

be
ns

, s
im

ila
r 

ha
bi

ta
t w

ith
in

 s
ur

ve
y 

ar
ea

.  

354



 

D
-1

4 

Ph
yl

og
en

et
ic

 
C

at
eg

or
y 

Fa
m

ily
 

Sc
ie

nt
ifi

c 
N

am
e 

Co
m

m
on

 N
am

e 
Li

fe
fo

rm
 

CR
PR

*;
 

Li
st

in
g 

St
at

us
 

B
lo

om
in

g 
Pe

rio
d 

H
ab

ita
t 

El
ev

at
io

n 
(fe

et
 

am
sl

) 
Po

te
nt

ia
l T

o 
O

cc
ur

 

An
gi

os
pe

rm
s 

(M
on

oc
ot

s)
 

Li
lia

ce
ae

 
C

al
oc

ho
rtu

s 
si

m
ul

an
s 

La
 P

an
za

 
m

ar
ip

os
a 

lily
 

pe
re

nn
ia

l 
bu

lb
ife

ro
us

 
he

rb
 

1B
.3

 
Ap

ril
–J

un
e 

ch
ap

ar
ra

l, 
ci

sm
on

ta
ne

 
w

oo
dl

an
d,

 
lo

w
er

 m
on

ta
ne

 
co

ni
fe

ro
us

 
fo

re
st

, v
al

le
y 

an
d 

fo
ot

hi
ll 

gr
as

sl
an

d;
 

sa
nd

y,
 o

fte
n 

gr
an

iti
c,

 
so

m
et

im
es

 
se

rp
en

tin
ite

 

1,
06

5–
3,

77
5 

A
bs

en
t. 

O
nl

y 
fo

un
d 

in
 O

ut
er

 S
ou

th
 C

oa
st

 
R

an
ge

s 
D

is
tri

ct
.  

An
gi

os
pe

rm
s 

(M
on

oc
ot

s)
 

Li
lia

ce
ae

 
Li

liu
m

 h
um

bo
ld

tii
 

ss
p.

 o
ce

lla
tu

m
 

oc
el

la
te

d 
H

um
bo

ld
t l

ily
 

pe
re

nn
ia

l 
bu

lb
ife

ro
us

 
he

rb
 

4.
2 

M
ar

ch
–J

ul
y 

(A
ug

us
t) 

ch
ap

ar
ra

l, 
ci

sm
on

ta
ne

 
w

oo
dl

an
d,

 
co

as
ta

l s
cr

ub
, 

lo
w

er
 m

on
ta

ne
 

co
ni

fe
ro

us
 

fo
re

st
, r

ip
ar

ia
n 

w
oo

dl
an

d 

10
0–

5,
90

5 
A

bs
en

t. 
Ve

ge
ta

tiv
e 

fo
lia

ge
 w

ou
ld

 h
av

e 
be

en
 v

is
ib

le
 d

ur
in

g 
Au

gu
st

 s
ur

ve
y.

 

An
gi

os
pe

rm
s 

(M
on

oc
ot

s)
 

Po
ac

ea
e 

H
or

de
um

 
in

te
rc

ed
en

s 
ve

rn
al

 b
ar

le
y 

an
nu

al
 h

er
b 

3.
2 

M
ar

ch
–J

un
e 

co
as

ta
l d

un
es

, 
co

as
ta

l s
cr

ub
, 

va
lle

y 
an

d 
fo

ot
hi

ll 
gr

as
sl

an
d,

 
ve

rn
al

 p
oo

ls
 

15
–3

,2
80

 
A

bs
en

t. 
Su

rv
ey

 a
re

a 
ou

ts
id

e 
of

 g
en

er
al

 
di

st
rib

ut
io

n 
of

 th
e 

sp
ec

ie
s.

 

An
gi

os
pe

rm
s 

(M
on

oc
ot

s)
 

Po
ac

ea
e 

O
rc

ut
tia

 
ca

lif
or

ni
ca

 
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 O
rc

ut
t 

gr
as

s 
an

nu
al

 h
er

b 
1B

.1
; S

ta
te

 
lis

te
d 

as
 

en
da

ng
er

ed
; 

fe
de

ra
lly

 
lis

te
d 

as
 

en
da

ng
er

ed
 

Ap
ril

–A
ug

us
t 

ve
rn

al
 p

oo
ls

 
50

–2
,1

65
 

A
bs

en
t. 

N
o 

su
ita

bl
e 

ha
bi

ta
t (

ve
rn

al
 p

oo
ls

) 
on

-s
ite

. C
N

D
D

B 
re

co
rd

 o
ve

rla
p;

 5
-m

ile
 

ac
cu

ra
cy

.  

An
gi

os
pe

rm
s 

(M
on

oc
ot

s)
 

Po
ac

ea
e 

P
an

ic
um

 
hi

rti
ca

ul
e 

ss
p.

 
hi

rti
ca

ul
e 

ro
ug

hs
ta

lk
 w

itc
h 

gr
as

s 
an

nu
al

 h
er

b 
2B

.1
 

Au
gu

st
–D

ec
em

be
r 

de
se

rt 
du

ne
s,

 
Jo

sh
ua

 tr
ee

 
w

oo
dl

an
d,

 
M

oj
av

ea
n 

de
se

rt 
sc

ru
b,

 
So

no
ra

n 
de

se
rt 

sc
ru

b;
 s

an
dy

, 
si

lty
, 

de
pr

es
si

on
s 

14
5–

4,
31

5 
A

bs
en

t. 
N

o 
su

ita
bl

e 
ha

bi
ta

t o
n-

si
te

.  

355



 

D
-1

5 

Ph
yl

og
en

et
ic

 
C

at
eg

or
y 

Fa
m

ily
 

Sc
ie

nt
ifi

c 
N

am
e 

Co
m

m
on

 N
am

e 
Li

fe
fo

rm
 

CR
PR

*;
 

Li
st

in
g 

St
at

us
 

B
lo

om
in

g 
Pe

rio
d 

H
ab

ita
t 

El
ev

at
io

n 
(fe

et
 

am
sl

) 
Po

te
nt

ia
l T

o 
O

cc
ur

 

Fe
rn

s 
Az

ol
la

ce
ae

 
A

zo
lla

 
m

ic
ro

ph
yl

la
 

M
ex

ic
an

 
m

os
qu

ito
 fe

rn
 

an
nu

al
 / 

pe
re

nn
ia

l h
er

b 
4.

2 
Au

gu
st

 
m

ar
sh

es
 a

nd
 

sw
am

ps
 

(p
on

ds
, s

lo
w

 
w

at
er

) 

95
–3

30
 

A
bs

en
t. 

Su
rv

ey
 a

re
a 

ab
ov

e 
el

ev
at

io
na

l 
ra

ng
e 

of
 s

pe
ci

es
. 

N
o 

su
ita

bl
e 

ha
bi

ta
t 

on
-s

ite
. 

G
ym

no
sp

er
m

s 
C

up
re

ss
ac

ea
e 

H
es

pe
ro

cy
pa

ris
 

fo
rb

es
ii 

Te
ca

te
 c

yp
re

ss
 

pe
re

nn
ia

l 
ev

er
gr

ee
n 

tre
e 

1B
.1

 
 

cl
os

ed
-c

on
e 

co
ni

fe
ro

us
 

fo
re

st
, 

ch
ap

ar
ra

l; 
cl

ay
, 

ga
bb

ro
ic

 o
r 

m
et

av
ol

ca
ni

c 

26
0–

4,
92

0 
A

bs
en

t. 
Pe

re
nn

ia
l 

ev
er

gr
ee

n 
tre

e 
w

ou
ld

 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

vi
si

bl
e 

du
rin

g 
Au

gu
st

 s
ur

ve
y.

 

G
ym

no
sp

er
m

s 
C

up
re

ss
ac

ea
e 

H
es

pe
ro

cy
pa

ris
 

ne
va

de
ns

is
 

Pi
ut

e 
cy

pr
es

s 
pe

re
nn

ia
l 

ev
er

gr
ee

n 
tre

e 
1B

.2
 

 
cl

os
ed

-c
on

e 
co

ni
fe

ro
us

 
fo

re
st

, 
ch

ap
ar

ra
l, 

ci
sm

on
ta

ne
 

w
oo

dl
an

d,
 

pi
ny

on
 a

nd
 

ju
ni

pe
r 

w
oo

dl
an

d 

2,
36

0–
6,

00
5 

A
bs

en
t. 

Su
rv

ey
 a

re
a 

be
lo

w
 e

le
va

tio
na

l 
ra

ng
e 

of
 s

pe
ci

es
.  

*C
R

PR
 =

 C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 R

ar
e 

Pl
an

t R
an

k 
SW

C
A 

20
21

 

 

356



 

 

APPENDIX E 

Special-Status Fauna – Potential for Occurrence 

357



 

E-
1 

Ta
bl

e 
E-

1.
 R

es
ul

ts
 fo

r S
pe

ci
al

-S
ta

tu
s 

W
ild

lif
e 

w
ith

 P
ot

en
tia

l f
or

 O
cc

ur
re

nc
e 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
Su

rv
ey

 A
re

a 

Ph
yl

og
en

et
ic

 
C

at
eg

or
y 

Sc
ie

nt
ifi

c 
N

am
e 

Co
m

m
on

 N
am

e 
St

at
us

 
G

en
er

al
 H

ab
ita

t 
M

ic
ro

ha
bi

ta
t 

Po
te

nt
ia

l t
o 

O
cc

ur
 

Am
ph

ib
ia

ns
 

A
na

xy
ru

s 
ca

lif
or

ni
cu

s 
ar

ro
yo

 to
ad

  
FE

; C
D

FW
_S

SC
; 

IU
C

N
_E

N
 

D
es

er
t w

as
h 

| R
ip

ar
ia

n 
sc

ru
b 

| 
R

ip
ar

ia
n 

w
oo

dl
an

d 
| S

ou
th

 c
oa

st
 

flo
w

in
g 

w
at

er
s 

| S
ou

th
 c

oa
st

 
st

an
di

ng
 w

at
er

s 

Se
m

i-a
rid

 re
gi

on
s 

ne
ar

 w
as

he
s 

or
 

in
te

rm
itt

en
t s

tre
am

s,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

va
lle

y-
fo

ot
hi

ll 
an

d 
de

se
rt 

rip
ar

ia
n,

 
de

se
rt 

w
as

h,
 e

tc
.; 

riv
er

s 
w

ith
 s

an
dy

 
ba

nk
s,

 w
illo

w
s,

 c
ot

to
nw

oo
ds

, a
nd

 
sy

ca
m

or
es

; l
oo

se
, g

ra
ve

lly
 a

re
as

 
of

 s
tre

am
s 

in
 d

rie
r p

ar
ts

 o
f r

an
ge

. 

Lo
w

. B
ec

au
se

 th
er

e 
ar

e 
no

 
qu

ie
t w

at
er

s 
or

 p
oo

ls
 d

ire
ct

ly
 

in
 th

e 
su

rv
ey

 a
re

a,
 th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l f

or
 a

rro
yo

 to
ad

 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

su
rv

ey
 a

re
a 

is
 

lo
w

, a
lth

ou
gh

 n
ot

 
im

po
ss

ib
le

, a
s 

in
 o

ne
 

re
co

rd
ed

 c
as

e,
 a

 fe
m

al
e 

ar
ro

yo
 to

ad
 tr

av
el

ed
 

91
9 

fe
et

 a
cr

os
s 

a 
ca

m
pg

ro
un

d 
in

to
 u

pl
an

d 
na

tiv
e 

ha
bi

ta
t (

U
SF

W
S 

20
14

). 
 

Am
ph

ib
ia

ns
 

R
an

a 
bo

yl
ii 

fo
ot

hi
ll 

ye
llo

w
-

le
gg

ed
 fr

og
 

SE
; B

LM
_S

, 
C

D
FW

_S
SC

; 
IU

C
N

_N
T;

 
U

SF
S_

S 

Aq
ua

tic
 | 

C
ha

pa
rra

l |
 C

is
m

on
ta

ne
 

w
oo

dl
an

d 
| C

oa
st

al
 s

cr
ub

 | 
Kl

am
at

h/
N

or
th

 c
oa

st
 fl

ow
in

g 
w

at
er

s 
| L

ow
er

 m
on

ta
ne

 c
on

ife
ro

us
 

fo
re

st
 | 

M
ea

do
w

 a
nd

 s
ee

p 
| 

R
ip

ar
ia

n 
fo

re
st

 | 
R

ip
ar

ia
n 

w
oo

dl
an

d 
| S

ac
ra

m
en

to
/S

an
 

Jo
aq

ui
n 

flo
w

in
g 

w
at

er
s 

Pa
rtl

y 
sh

ad
ed

, s
ha

llo
w

 s
tre

am
s 

an
d 

rif
fle

s 
w

ith
 a

 ro
ck

y 
su

bs
tra

te
 in

 
a 

va
rie

ty
 o

f h
ab

ita
ts

; n
ee

ds
 a

t l
ea

st
 

so
m

e 
co

bb
le

-s
iz

ed
 s

ub
st

ra
te

 fo
r 

eg
g-

la
yi

ng
. N

ee
ds

 a
t l

ea
st

 
15

 w
ee

ks
 to

 a
tta

in
 m

et
am

or
ph

os
is

. 

A
bs

en
t. 

N
o 

su
ita

bl
e 

ha
bi

ta
t 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
su

rv
ey

 a
re

a.
 

Am
ph

ib
ia

ns
 

R
an

a 
dr

ay
to

ni
i 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 re

d-
le

gg
ed

 fr
og

 
FT

; C
D

FW
_S

SC
; 

IU
C

N
_V

U
 

Aq
ua

tic
 | 

Ar
tif

ic
ia

l f
lo

w
in

g 
w

at
er

s 
| 

Ar
tif

ic
ia

l s
ta

nd
in

g 
w

at
er

s 
| 

Fr
es

hw
at

er
 m

ar
sh

 | 
M

ar
sh

 a
nd

 
sw

am
p 

| R
ip

ar
ia

n 
fo

re
st

 | 
R

ip
ar

ia
n 

sc
ru

b 
| R

ip
ar

ia
n 

w
oo

dl
an

d 
| 

Sa
cr

am
en

to
/S

an
 J

oa
qu

in
 fl

ow
in

g 
w

at
er

s 
| S

ac
ra

m
en

to
/S

an
 J

oa
qu

in
 

st
an

di
ng

 w
at

er
s 

| S
ou

th
 c

oa
st

 
flo

w
in

g 
w

at
er

s 
| S

ou
th

 c
oa

st
 

st
an

di
ng

 w
at

er
s 

| W
et

la
nd

 

Lo
w

la
nd

s 
an

d 
fo

ot
hi

lls
 in

 o
r n

ea
r 

pe
rm

an
en

t s
ou

rc
es

 o
f d

ee
p 

w
at

er
 

w
ith

 d
en

se
, s

hr
ub

by
 o

r e
m

er
ge

nt
 

rip
ar

ia
n 

ve
ge

ta
tio

n;
 re

qu
ire

s 
11

–
20

 w
ee

ks
 o

f p
er

m
an

en
t w

at
er

 fo
r 

la
rv

al
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t. 

M
us

t h
av

e 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 e

st
iv

at
io

n 
ha

bi
ta

t. 

A
bs

en
t. 

N
o 

su
ita

bl
e 

ha
bi

ta
t 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
su

rv
ey

 a
re

a.
 

358



 

E-
2 

Ph
yl

og
en

et
ic

 
C

at
eg

or
y 

Sc
ie

nt
ifi

c 
N

am
e 

Co
m

m
on

 N
am

e 
St

at
us

 
G

en
er

al
 H

ab
ita

t 
M

ic
ro

ha
bi

ta
t 

Po
te

nt
ia

l t
o 

O
cc

ur
 

Am
ph

ib
ia

ns
 

R
an

a 
m

us
co

sa
 

so
ut

he
rn

 
m

ou
nt

ai
n 

ye
llo

w
-

le
gg

ed
 fr

og
 

FE
; S

E;
 

C
D

FW
_W

L;
 

IU
C

N
_E

N
; 

U
SF

S_
S 

Aq
ua

tic
 

Fe
de

ra
l l

is
tin

g 
re

fe
rs

 to
 p

op
ul

at
io

ns
 

in
 th

e 
Sa

n 
G

ab
rie

l, 
Sa

n 
Ja

ci
nt

o 
an

d 
Sa

n 
Be

rn
ar

di
no

 m
ou

nt
ai

ns
 

(S
ou

th
er

n 
D

is
tin

ct
 P

op
ul

at
io

n 
Se

gm
en

t).
 N

or
th

er
n 

D
is

tin
ct

 
Po

pu
la

tio
n 

Se
gm

en
t w

as
 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 to

 w
ar

ra
nt

 li
st

in
g 

as
 

en
da

ng
er

ed
, A

pr
il 

20
14

, e
ffe

ct
iv

e 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
4;

 a
lw

ay
s 

en
co

un
te

re
d 

w
ith

in
 a

 fe
w

 fe
et

 o
f 

w
at

er
. T

ad
po

le
s 

m
ay

 re
qu

ire
 2

–
4 

ye
ar

s 
to

 c
om

pl
et

e 
th

ei
r a

qu
at

ic
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t. 

A
bs

en
t. 

N
o 

su
ita

bl
e 

ha
bi

ta
t 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
su

rv
ey

 a
re

a.
 

Am
ph

ib
ia

ns
 

S
pe

a 
ha

m
m

on
di

i 
w

es
te

rn
 

sp
ad

ef
oo

t 
BL

M
_S

, 
C

D
FW

_S
SC

; 
IU

C
N

_N
T 

C
is

m
on

ta
ne

 w
oo

dl
an

d 
| C

oa
st

al
 

sc
ru

b 
| V

al
le

y 
an

d 
fo

ot
hi

ll 
gr

as
sl

an
d 

| V
er

na
l p

oo
l |

 W
et

la
nd

 

O
cc

ur
s 

pr
im

ar
ily

 in
 g

ra
ss

la
nd

 
ha

bi
ta

ts
, b

ut
 c

an
 b

e 
fo

un
d 

in
 

va
lle

y-
fo

ot
hi

ll 
ha

rd
w

oo
d 

w
oo

dl
an

ds
; v

er
na

l p
oo

ls
 a

re
 

es
se

nt
ia

l f
or

 b
re

ed
in

g 
an

d 
eg

g-
la

yi
ng

. 

Lo
w

. A
lth

ou
gh

 2
01

3 
C

N
D

D
B 

re
co

rd
 0

.2
4 

m
ile

 
ea

st
 o

f s
ur

ve
y 

ar
ea

, n
o 

ve
rn

al
 p

oo
ls

 o
n-

si
te

 a
nd

 
ve

ry
 d

is
tu

rb
ed

 g
ra

ss
la

nd
 

do
m

in
at

ed
 b

y 
in

va
si

ve
s.

 

Am
ph

ib
ia

ns
 

Ta
ric

ha
 to

ro
sa

 
C

oa
st

 R
an

ge
 

ne
w

t 
C

D
FW

_S
SC

 
N

/A
 

C
oa

st
al

 d
ra

in
ag

es
 fr

om
 M

en
do

ci
no

 
C

ou
nt

y 
to

 S
an

 D
ie

go
 C

ou
nt

y;
 li

ve
s 

in
 te

rre
st

ria
l h

ab
ita

ts
 a

nd
 w

ill 
m

ig
ra

te
 o

ve
r 1

 k
m

 to
 b

re
ed

 in
 

po
nd

s,
 re

se
rv

oi
rs

 a
nd

 s
lo

w
 m

ov
in

g 
st

re
am

s.
 

A
bs

en
t. 

Su
rv

ey
 a

re
a 

ou
ts

id
e 

th
e 

ge
og

ra
ph

ic
al

 
di

st
rib

ut
io

n 
of

 th
e 

sp
ec

ie
s 

(k
no

w
n 

fro
m

 b
as

e 
of

 S
an

 
G

ab
rie

ls
). 

Bi
rd

s 
A

cc
ip

ite
r c

oo
pe

rii
 

C
oo

pe
r’s

 h
aw

k 
C

D
FW

_W
L 

 
C

is
m

on
ta

ne
 w

oo
dl

an
d 

| R
ip

ar
ia

n 
fo

re
st

 | 
R

ip
ar

ia
n 

w
oo

dl
an

d 
| U

pp
er

 
m

on
ta

ne
 c

on
ife

ro
us

 fo
re

st
 

W
oo

dl
an

d,
 c

hi
ef

ly
 o

f o
pe

n,
 

in
te

rru
pt

ed
 o

r m
ar

gi
na

l t
yp

e;
 N

es
t 

si
te

s 
m

ai
nl

y 
in

 ri
pa

ria
n 

gr
ow

th
s 

of
 

de
ci

du
ou

s 
tre

es
, a

s 
in

 c
an

yo
n 

bo
tto

m
s 

on
 ri

ve
r f

lo
od

pl
ai

ns
; a

ls
o,

 
liv

e 
oa

ks
. 

M
od

er
at

e.
 C

N
D

D
B 

oc
cu

rre
nc

e 
1.

6 
m

ile
s 

to
 th

e 
ea

st
 o

f s
ur

ve
y 

ar
ea

. P
at

ch
 o

f 
co

tto
nw

oo
d 

fo
re

st
 a

t t
he

 
no

rth
er

n 
en

d 
of

 s
ur

ve
y 

ar
ea

 
su

ita
bl

e,
 a

s 
it 

is
 a

dj
ac

en
t t

o 
w

illo
w

 s
cr

ub
 ju

st
 li

ke
 n

ea
rb

y 
oc

cu
rre

nc
e 

re
co

rd
 s

ta
te

s.
 

C
oo

pe
r’s

 h
aw

ks
 a

re
 fa

irl
y 

co
m

m
on

 a
nd

 a
re

 to
le

ra
nt

 o
f 

ur
ba

n 
se

tti
ng

, w
he

re
 th

ey
 

pr
ey

 o
n 

so
ng

bi
rd

s.
 

Bi
rd

s 
A

im
op

hi
la

 ru
fic

ep
s 

ca
ne

sc
en

s 
so

ut
he

rn
 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 ru

fo
us

-
cr

ow
ne

d 
sp

ar
ro

w
 

C
D

FW
_W

L 
C

ha
pa

rra
l |

 C
oa

st
al

 s
cr

ub
 

R
es

id
en

t i
n 

So
ut

he
rn

 C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 

co
as

ta
l s

ag
e 

sc
ru

b 
an

d 
sp

ar
se

 
m

ix
ed

 c
ha

pa
rra

l; 
Fr

eq
ue

nt
s 

re
la

tiv
el

y 
st

ee
p,

 o
fte

n 
ro

ck
y 

hi
lls

id
es

 w
ith

 g
ra

ss
 a

nd
 fo

rb
 

pa
tc

he
s.

 

A
bs

en
t. 

Su
rv

ey
 a

re
a 

no
t 

st
ee

p 
an

d 
ro

ck
y 

as
 p

re
fe

rre
d 

by
 th

is
 s

pe
ci

es
.  

359



 

E-
3 

Ph
yl

og
en

et
ic

 
C

at
eg

or
y 

Sc
ie

nt
ifi

c 
N

am
e 

Co
m

m
on

 N
am

e 
St

at
us

 
G

en
er

al
 H

ab
ita

t 
M

ic
ro

ha
bi

ta
t 

Po
te

nt
ia

l t
o 

O
cc

ur
 

Bi
rd

s 
A

m
m

od
ra

m
us

 
sa

va
nn

ar
um

 
gr

as
sh

op
pe

r 
sp

ar
ro

w
 

C
D

FW
_S

SC
; 

IU
C

N
_L

C
 

Va
lle

y 
an

d 
fo

ot
hi

ll 
gr

as
sl

an
d 

D
en

se
 g

ra
ss

la
nd

s 
on

 ro
llin

g 
hi

lls
, 

lo
w

la
nd

 p
la

in
s,

 in
 v

al
le

ys
 a

nd
 o

n 
hi

lls
id

es
 o

n 
lo

w
er

 m
ou

nt
ai

n 
sl

op
es

; 
Fa

vo
rs

 n
at

iv
e 

gr
as

sl
an

ds
 w

ith
 a

 
m

ix
 o

f g
ra

ss
es

, f
or

bs
 a

nd
 s

ca
tte

re
d 

sh
ru

bs
. L

oo
se

ly
 c

ol
on

ia
l w

he
n 

ne
st

in
g.

 

A
bs

en
t. 

N
o 

su
ita

bl
e 

ha
bi

ta
t 

on
-s

ite
.  

Bi
rd

s 
A

rte
m

is
io

sp
iz

a 
be

lli 
be

lli
 

Be
ll’s

 s
ag

e 
sp

ar
ro

w
 

C
D

FW
_W

L-
W

at
ch

 
Li

st
 | 

U
SF

W
S_

BC
C

-
Bi

rd
s 

of
 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
C

on
ce

rn
 

C
ha

pa
rra

l |
 C

oa
st

al
 s

cr
ub

 
N

es
ts

 in
 c

ha
pa

rra
l d

om
in

at
ed

 b
y 

fa
irl

y 
de

ns
e 

st
an

ds
 o

f c
ha

m
is

e.
 

Fo
un

d 
in

 c
oa

st
al

 s
ag

e 
sc

ru
b 

in
 

so
ut

h 
of

 ra
ng

e;
 N

es
t l

oc
at

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
gr

ou
nd

 b
en

ea
th

 a
 s

hr
ub

 o
r i

n 
a 

sh
ru

b 
6–

18
 in

ch
es

 a
bo

ve
 g

ro
un

d.
 

Te
rri

to
rie

s 
ab

ou
t 5

0 
ya

rd
s 

ap
ar

t. 

A
bs

en
t. 

N
o 

ch
am

is
e 

on
-

si
te

. M
os

t p
re

va
le

nt
 n

ea
r 

La
ke

 E
ls

in
or

e.
 

Bi
rd

s 
A

th
en

e 
cu

ni
cu

la
ria

 
bu

rro
w

in
g 

ow
l 

BL
M

_S
, 

C
D

FW
_S

SC
; 

IU
C

N
_L

C
; 

U
SF

W
S_

BC
C

 

C
oa

st
al

 p
ra

iri
e 

| C
oa

st
al

 s
cr

ub
 | 

G
re

at
 B

as
in

 g
ra

ss
la

nd
 | 

G
re

at
 

Ba
si

n 
sc

ru
b 

| M
oj

av
ea

n 
de

se
rt 

sc
ru

b 
| S

on
or

an
 d

es
er

t s
cr

ub
 | 

Va
lle

y 
an

d 
fo

ot
hi

ll 
gr

as
sl

an
d 

O
pe

n,
 d

ry
 a

nn
ua

l o
r p

er
en

ni
al

 
gr

as
sl

an
ds

, d
es

er
ts

, a
nd

 
sc

ru
bl

an
ds

 c
ha

ra
ct

er
iz

ed
 b

y 
lo

w
-

gr
ow

in
g 

ve
ge

ta
tio

n;
 s

ub
te

rra
ne

an
 

ne
st

er
, d

ep
en

de
nt

 u
po

n 
bu

rro
w

in
g 

m
am

m
al

s,
 m

os
t n

ot
ab

ly
, t

he
 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 g

ro
un

d 
sq

ui
rre

l. 

Lo
w

. Y
ea

r 2
00

7 
C

N
D

D
B 

oc
cu

rre
nc

e 
1.

6 
m

ile
s 

no
rth

 
of

 s
ur

ve
y 

ar
ea

. F
or

ag
in

g 
ar

ea
 d

eg
ra

de
d 

es
pe

ci
al

ly
 in

 
pr

oj
ec

t d
is

tu
rb

an
ce

 a
re

a 
(p

av
ed

). 

Bi
rd

s 
B

ut
eo

 s
w

ai
ns

on
i 

Sw
ai

ns
on

’s
 h

aw
k 

ST
; B

LM
_S

, 
IU

C
N

_L
C

; 
U

SF
W

S 

G
re

at
 B

as
in

 g
ra

ss
la

nd
 | 

R
ip

ar
ia

n 
fo

re
st

 | 
R

ip
ar

ia
n 

w
oo

dl
an

d 
| V

al
le

y 
an

d 
fo

ot
hi

ll 
gr

as
sl

an
d 

Br
ee

ds
 in

 g
ra

ss
la

nd
s 

w
ith

 
sc

at
te

re
d 

tre
es

, j
un

ip
er

-s
ag

e 
fla

ts
, 

rip
ar

ia
n 

ar
ea

s,
 s

av
an

na
hs

, a
nd

 
ag

ric
ul

tu
ra

l o
r r

an
ch

 la
nd

s 
w

ith
 

gr
ov

es
 o

r l
in

es
 o

f t
re

es
; R

eq
ui

re
s 

ad
ja

ce
nt

 s
ui

ta
bl

e 
fo

ra
gi

ng
 a

re
as

 
su

ch
 a

s 
gr

as
sl

an
ds

, o
r a

lfa
lfa

 o
r 

gr
ai

n 
fie

ld
s 

su
pp

or
tin

g 
ro

de
nt

 
po

pu
la

tio
ns

. 

Lo
w

. N
ea

re
st

 C
N

D
D

B 
oc

cu
rre

nc
e 

Po
ss

ib
ly

 
Ex

tir
pa

te
d 

an
d 

fro
m

 1
89

8,
 

1.
75

 m
ile

s 
so

ut
h 

of
 s

ur
ve

y 
ar

ea
. K

no
w

n 
fro

m
 M

oj
av

e 
D

es
er

t. 

Bi
rd

s 
C

oc
cy

zu
s 

am
er

ic
an

us
 

oc
ci

de
nt

al
is

 

w
es

te
rn

 y
el

lo
w

-
bi

lle
d 

cu
ck

oo
 

FT
; S

E;
 B

LM
_S

, 
N

AB
C

I_
R

W
L;

 
U

SF
S_

S;
 

U
SF

W
S_

BC
C

 

R
ip

ar
ia

n 
fo

re
st

 
R

ip
ar

ia
n 

fo
re

st
 n

es
te

r, 
al

on
g 

th
e 

br
oa

d,
 lo

w
er

 fl
oo

d-
bo

tto
m

s 
of

 
la

rg
er

 ri
ve

r s
ys

te
m

s;
 N

es
ts

 in
 

rip
ar

ia
n 

ju
ng

le
s 

of
 w

illo
w

, o
fte

n 
m

ix
ed

 w
ith

 c
ot

to
nw

oo
ds

, w
ith

 
lo

w
er

 s
to

ry
 o

f b
la

ck
be

rry
, n

et
tle

s,
 

or
 w

ild
 g

ra
pe

. 

Lo
w

. N
o 

20
12

 C
N

D
D

B 
re

co
rd

 1
.8

 m
ile

s 
do

w
ns

tre
am

 o
f S

an
ta

 C
la

ra
 

R
iv

er
 fo

un
d 

in
 C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 
sa

ge
br

us
h;

 n
ot

 p
re

se
nt

 o
n 

su
rv

ey
 a

re
a.

 S
ui

ta
bl

e 
ha

bi
ta

t 
m

ay
 b

e 
pr

es
en

t d
ire

ct
ly

 
ad

ja
ce

nt
 to

 s
ite

.  

360



 

E-
4 

Ph
yl

og
en

et
ic

 
C

at
eg

or
y 

Sc
ie

nt
ifi

c 
N

am
e 

Co
m

m
on

 N
am

e 
St

at
us

 
G

en
er

al
 H

ab
ita

t 
M

ic
ro

ha
bi

ta
t 

Po
te

nt
ia

l t
o 

O
cc

ur
 

Bi
rd

s 
E

la
nu

s 
le

uc
ur

us
 

w
hi

te
-ta

ile
d 

ki
te

 
BL

M
_S

, 
C

D
FW

_F
P 

| 
IU

C
N

_L
C

 

C
is

m
on

ta
ne

 w
oo

dl
an

d 
| M

ar
sh

 a
nd

 
sw

am
p 

| R
ip

ar
ia

n 
w

oo
dl

an
d 

| 
Va

lle
y 

an
d 

fo
ot

hi
ll 

gr
as

sl
an

d 
| 

W
et

la
nd

 

R
ol

lin
g 

fo
ot

hi
lls

 a
nd

 v
al

le
y 

m
ar

gi
ns

 
w

ith
 s

ca
tte

re
d 

oa
ks

 a
nd

 ri
ve

r 
bo

tto
m

la
nd

s 
or

 m
ar

sh
es

 n
ex

t t
o 

de
ci

du
ou

s 
w

oo
dl

an
d;

 O
pe

n 
gr

as
sl

an
ds

, m
ea

do
w

s,
 o

r m
ar

sh
es

 
fo

r f
or

ag
in

g 
cl

os
e 

to
 is

ol
at

ed
, 

de
ns

e-
to

pp
ed

 tr
ee

s 
fo

r n
es

tin
g 

an
d 

pe
rc

hi
ng

. 

M
od

er
at

e.
 2

00
5 

C
N

D
D

B 
oc

cu
rre

nc
e 

re
co

rd
 2

60
 fe

et
 

no
rth

 o
f s

ur
ve

y 
ar

ea
. N

es
ts

 
in

 c
ot

to
nw

oo
ds

; s
ui

ta
bl

e 
co

tto
nw

oo
d-

w
illo

w
 ri

pa
ria

n 
fo

re
st

 h
ab

ita
t i

n 
no

rth
er

n 
po

rti
on

 o
f 1

00
-fo

ot
 b

uf
fe

r t
o 

th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t d

is
tu

rb
an

ce
 a

re
a 

an
d 

no
rth

 o
f s

ur
ve

y 
ar

ea
. 

Bi
rd

s 
E

re
m

op
hi

la
 a

lp
es

tri
s 

ac
tia

 
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 h
or

ne
d 

la
rk

 
C

D
FW

_W
L-

W
at

ch
 

Li
st

 | 
IU

C
N

_L
C

 
M

ar
in

e 
in

te
rti

da
l a

nd
 s

pl
as

h 
zo

ne
 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 | 
M

ea
do

w
 a

nd
 s

ee
p 

C
oa

st
al

 re
gi

on
s,

 c
hi

ef
ly

 fr
om

 
So

no
m

a 
C

ou
nt

y 
to

 S
an

 D
ie

go
 

C
ou

nt
y.

 A
ls

o 
m

ai
n 

pa
rt 

of
 S

an
 

Jo
aq

ui
n 

Va
lle

y 
an

d 
ea

st
 to

 
fo

ot
hi

lls
. S

ho
rt-

gr
as

s 
pr

ai
rie

, "
ba

ld
" 

hi
lls

, m
ou

nt
ai

n 
m

ea
do

w
s,

 o
pe

n 
co

as
ta

l p
la

in
s,

 fa
llo

w
 g

ra
in

 fi
el

ds
, 

al
ka

li 
fla

ts
. 

A
bs

en
t. 

N
o 

su
ita

bl
e 

ha
bi

ta
t 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
su

rv
ey

 a
re

a.
  

Bi
rd

s 
Fa

lc
o 

m
ex

ic
an

us
 

pr
ai

rie
 fa

lc
on

 
C

D
FW

_W
L-

W
at

ch
 

Li
st

 | 
IU

C
N

_L
C

; 
U

SF
W

S_
BC

C
 

G
re

at
 B

as
in

 g
ra

ss
la

nd
 | 

G
re

at
 

Ba
si

n 
sc

ru
b 

| M
oj

av
ea

n 
de

se
rt 

sc
ru

b 
| S

on
or

an
 d

es
er

t s
cr

ub
 | 

Va
lle

y 
an

d 
fo

ot
hi

ll 
gr

as
sl

an
d 

In
ha

bi
ts

 d
ry

, o
pe

n 
te

rra
in

, e
ith

er
 

le
ve

l o
r h

illy
. B

re
ed

in
g 

si
te

s 
lo

ca
te

d 
on

 c
lif

fs
. F

or
ag

es
 fa

r a
fie

ld
, 

ev
en

 to
 m

ar
sh

la
nd

s 
an

d 
oc

ea
n 

sh
or

es
. 

Lo
w

. M
ay

 fo
ra

ge
 o

n-
si

te
; 

N
o 

cl
iff

s 
w

ith
in

 s
ur

ve
y 

ar
ea

.  

Bi
rd

s 
G

ym
no

gy
ps

 
ca

lif
or

ni
an

us
 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 c

on
do

r 
FE

; S
E;

 C
D

F_
S;

 
C

D
FW

_F
P;

 
IU

C
N

_C
R

; 
N

AB
C

I_
R

W
L 

C
ha

pa
rra

l |
 V

al
le

y 
an

d 
fo

ot
hi

ll 
gr

as
sl

an
d 

R
eq

ui
re

 v
as

t e
xp

an
se

s 
of

 o
pe

n 
sa

va
nn

ah
, g

ra
ss

la
nd

s,
 a

nd
 fo

ot
hi

ll 
ch

ap
ar

ra
l i

n 
m

ou
nt

ai
n 

ra
ng

es
 o

f 
m

od
er

at
e 

al
tit

ud
e.

 D
ee

p 
ca

ny
on

s 
co

nt
ai

ni
ng

 c
le

fts
 in

 th
e 

ro
ck

y 
w

al
ls

 
pr

ov
id

e 
ne

st
in

g 
si

te
s.

 F
or

ag
es

 u
p 

to
 1

00
 m

ile
s 

fro
m

 ro
os

t/n
es

t. 

A
bs

en
t. 

U
rb

an
 lo

ca
tio

n 
lik

el
y 

pr
ec

lu
de

s 
th

is
 s

pe
ci

es
 

fro
m

 o
cc

ur
rin

g.
 N

o 
su

ita
bl

e 
ha

bi
ta

t o
n-

si
te

. 

Bi
rd

s 
Ic

te
ria

 v
ire

ns
 

ye
llo

w
-b

re
as

te
d 

ch
at

 
C

D
FW

_S
SC

; 
IU

C
N

_L
C

;  
R

ip
ar

ia
n 

fo
re

st
 | 

R
ip

ar
ia

n 
sc

ru
b 

| 
R

ip
ar

ia
n 

w
oo

dl
an

d 
Su

m
m

er
 re

si
de

nt
; i

nh
ab

its
 ri

pa
ria

n 
th

ic
ke

ts
 o

f w
illo

w
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 b
ru

sh
y 

ta
ng

le
s 

ne
ar

 w
at

er
co

ur
se

s.
 N

es
ts

 
in

 lo
w

, d
en

se
 ri

pa
ria

n,
 c

on
si

st
in

g 
of

 
w

illo
w

, b
la

ck
be

rry
, w

ild
 g

ra
pe

; 
fo

ra
ge

s 
an

d 
ne

st
s 

w
ith

in
 1

0 
fe

et
 o

f 
gr

ou
nd

. 

A
bs

en
t. 

Su
rv

ey
 a

re
a 

ou
ts

id
e 

th
e 

ge
og

ra
ph

ic
al

 
di

st
rib

ut
io

n 
of

 th
e 

sp
ec

ie
s.

 

Bi
rd

s 
La

ni
us

 lu
do

vi
ci

an
us

 
lo

gg
er

he
ad

 
sh

rik
e 

C
D

FW
_S

SC
; 

IU
C

N
_L

C
; 

U
SF

W
S_

BC
C

 

Br
oa

dl
ea

ve
d 

up
la

nd
 fo

re
st

 | 
D

es
er

t 
w

as
h 

| J
os

hu
a 

tre
e 

w
oo

dl
an

d 
| 

M
oj

av
ea

n 
de

se
rt 

sc
ru

b 
| P

in
on

 a
nd

 
ju

ni
pe

r w
oo

dl
an

ds
 | 

R
ip

ar
ia

n 
w

oo
dl

an
d 

| S
on

or
an

 d
es

er
t s

cr
ub

 

Br
ok

en
 w

oo
dl

an
ds

, s
av

an
na

h,
 

pi
ny

on
-ju

ni
pe

r, 
Jo

sh
ua

 tr
ee

, a
nd

 
rip

ar
ia

n 
w

oo
dl

an
ds

, d
es

er
t o

as
es

, 
sc

ru
b 

an
d 

w
as

he
s.

 P
re

fe
rs

 o
pe

n 
co

un
try

 fo
r h

un
tin

g,
 w

ith
 p

er
ch

es
 

fo
r s

ca
nn

in
g,

 a
nd

 fa
irl

y 
de

ns
e 

sh
ru

bs
 a

nd
 b

ru
sh

 fo
r n

es
tin

g.
 

Lo
w

. N
ea

re
st

 o
cc

ur
re

nc
e 

is
 

4.
3 

m
ile

s 
no

rth
 o

f s
ur

ve
y 

ar
ea

, a
t h

ig
he

r e
le

va
tio

n 
th

an
 s

ur
ve

y 
ar

ea
 a

nd
 fr

om
 

20
05

.  

361



 

E-
5 

Ph
yl

og
en

et
ic

 
C

at
eg

or
y 

Sc
ie

nt
ifi

c 
N

am
e 

Co
m

m
on

 N
am

e 
St

at
us

 
G

en
er

al
 H

ab
ita

t 
M

ic
ro

ha
bi

ta
t 

Po
te

nt
ia

l t
o 

O
cc

ur
 

Bi
rd

s 
P

ol
io

pt
ila

 
ca

lif
or

ni
ca

ca
lif

or
ni

ca
 

co
as

ta
l C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 
gn

at
ca

tc
he

r 
FT

; C
D

FW
_S

SC
; 

N
AB

C
I_

YW
L 

C
oa

st
al

 b
lu

ff 
sc

ru
b 

| C
oa

st
al

 s
cr

ub
 

O
bl

ig
at

e,
 p

er
m

an
en

t r
es

id
en

t o
f 

co
as

ta
l s

ag
e 

sc
ru

b 
be

lo
w

 2
50

0 
fe

et
 in

 S
ou

th
er

n 
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

. L
ow

, 
co

as
ta

l s
ag

e 
sc

ru
b 

in
 a

rid
 w

as
he

s,
 

on
 m

es
as

 a
nd

 s
lo

pe
s.

 N
ot

 a
ll 

ar
ea

s 
cl

as
si

fie
d 

as
 c

oa
st

al
 s

ag
e 

sc
ru

b 
ar

e 
oc

cu
pi

ed
. 

Lo
w

. C
N

D
D

B 
re

co
rd

 
1.

7 
m

ile
s 

to
 th

e 
w

es
t, 

in
 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 s

ag
eb

ru
sh

 h
ab

ita
t. 

N
o 

su
ita

bl
e 

ha
bi

ta
t o

n-
si

te
.  

Bi
rd

s 
R

ip
ar

ia
 ri

pa
ria

 
ba

nk
 s

w
al

lo
w

 
ST

; B
LM

_S
, 

IU
C

N
_L

C
 

R
ip

ar
ia

n 
sc

ru
b 

| R
ip

ar
ia

n 
w

oo
dl

an
d 

C
ol

on
ia

l n
es

te
r; 

ne
st

s 
pr

im
ar

ily
 in

 
rip

ar
ia

n 
an

d 
ot

he
r l

ow
la

nd
 h

ab
ita

ts
 

w
es

t o
f t

he
 d

es
er

t. 
R

eq
ui

re
s 

ve
rti

ca
l b

an
ks

/c
lif

fs
 w

ith
 fi

ne
-

te
xt

ur
ed

/s
an

dy
 s

oi
ls

 n
ea

r s
tre

am
s,

 
riv

er
s,

 la
ke

s,
 o

ce
an

 to
 d

ig
 n

es
tin

g 
ho

le
. 

A
bs

en
t. 

N
ea

re
st

 o
cc

ur
re

nc
e 

ov
er

 1
3 

m
ile

s 
aw

ay
 fr

om
 

18
97

 a
nd

 e
xt

irp
at

ed
. 

Su
rro

un
di

ng
 o

cc
ur

re
nc

es
 

ar
e 

al
so

 e
xt

irp
at

ed
.  

Bi
rd

s 
S

et
op

ha
ga

 p
et

ec
hi

a 
ye

llo
w

 w
ar

bl
er

 
C

D
FW

_S
SC

; 
U

SF
W

S_
BC

C
 

R
ip

ar
ia

n 
fo

re
st

 | 
R

ip
ar

ia
n 

sc
ru

b 
| 

R
ip

ar
ia

n 
w

oo
dl

an
d 

R
ip

ar
ia

n 
pl

an
t a

ss
oc

ia
tio

ns
 in

 
cl

os
e 

pr
ox

im
ity

 to
 w

at
er

. A
ls

o 
ne

st
s 

in
 m

on
ta

ne
 s

hr
ub

be
ry

 in
 

op
en

 c
on

ife
r f

or
es

ts
 in

 C
as

ca
de

s 
an

d 
Si

er
ra

 N
ev

ad
a.

 F
re

qu
en

tly
 

fo
un

d 
ne

st
in

g 
an

d 
fo

ra
gi

ng
 in

 
w

illo
w

 s
hr

ub
s 

an
d 

th
ic

ke
ts

, a
nd

 in
 

ot
he

r r
ip

ar
ia

n 
pl

an
ts

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
co

tto
nw

oo
ds

, s
yc

am
or

es
, a

sh
, a

nd
 

al
de

rs
. 

Lo
w

. N
ea

re
st

 o
cc

ur
re

nc
e 

fro
m

 1
97

9,
 7

.3
 m

ile
s 

w
es

t o
f 

su
rv

ey
 a

re
a.

 A
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 
ha

bi
ta

t l
oc

at
ed

 a
dj

ac
en

t t
o 

su
rv

ey
 a

re
a,

 b
ut

 n
ot

 w
ith

in
. 

Bi
rd

s 
V

ire
o 

be
lli

i p
us

ill
us

 
le

as
t B

el
l’s

 v
ire

o 
FE

; S
E;

 
IU

C
N

_N
T;

 
N

AB
C

I_
YW

L 

R
ip

ar
ia

n 
fo

re
st

 | 
R

ip
ar

ia
n 

sc
ru

b 
| 

R
ip

ar
ia

n 
w

oo
dl

an
d 

Su
m

m
er

 re
si

de
nt

 o
f S

ou
th

er
n 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 in

 lo
w

 ri
pa

ria
n 

ar
ea

s 
in

 
th

e 
vi

ci
ni

ty
 o

f w
at

er
 o

r i
n 

dr
y 

riv
er

 
bo

tto
m

s;
 b

el
ow

 2
,0

00
 fe

et
. N

es
ts

 
pl

ac
ed

 a
lo

ng
 m

ar
gi

ns
 o

f b
us

he
s 

or
 

on
 tw

ig
s 

pr
oj

ec
tin

g 
in

to
 p

at
hw

ay
s,

 
us

ua
lly

 w
illo

w
, B

ac
ch

ar
is

, 
m

es
qu

ite
. 

M
od

er
at

e.
 2

01
6 

an
d 

20
10

 
C

N
D

D
B 

re
co

rd
s 

0.
9–

1.
2 

m
ile

s 
no

rth
 o

f s
ur

ve
y 

ar
ea

. O
bs

er
ve

d 
in

 M
ul

ef
at

 
Sc

ru
b 

bo
rd

er
ed

 b
y 

Fr
em

on
t 

C
ot

to
nw

oo
d 

Fo
re

st
 a

nd
 

W
oo

dl
an

d.
 S

ui
ta

bl
e 

ha
bi

ta
t 

on
-s

ite
.  

C
ru

st
ac

ea
ns

 
B

ra
nc

hi
ne

ct
a 

ly
nc

hi
 

ve
rn

al
 p

oo
l f

ai
ry

 
sh

rim
p 

FT
; I

U
C

N
_V

U
 

Va
lle

y 
an

d 
fo

ot
hi

ll 
gr

as
sl

an
d 

| 
Ve

rn
al

 p
oo

l |
 W

et
la

nd
 

En
de

m
ic

 to
 th

e 
gr

as
sl

an
ds

 o
f t

he
 

C
en

tra
l V

al
le

y,
 C

en
tra

l C
oa

st
 

m
ou

nt
ai

ns
, a

nd
 S

ou
th

 C
oa

st
 

m
ou

nt
ai

ns
, i

n 
as

ta
tic

 ra
in

-fi
lle

d 
po

ol
s.

 In
ha

bi
t s

m
al

l, 
cl

ea
r-w

at
er

 
sa

nd
st

on
e-

de
pr

es
si

on
 p

oo
ls

 a
nd

 
gr

as
se

d 
sw

al
e,

 e
ar

th
 s

lu
m

p,
 o

r 
ba

sa
lt-

flo
w

 d
ep

re
ss

io
n 

po
ol

s.
 

A
bs

en
t. 

N
o 

ve
rn

al
 p

oo
ls

 
w

ith
in

 s
ur

ve
y 

ar
ea

. 
N

o 
su

ita
bl

e 
ha

bi
ta

t o
n-

si
te

. 

362



 

E-
6 

Ph
yl

og
en

et
ic

 
C

at
eg

or
y 

Sc
ie

nt
ifi

c 
N

am
e 

Co
m

m
on

 N
am

e 
St

at
us

 
G

en
er

al
 H

ab
ita

t 
M

ic
ro

ha
bi

ta
t 

Po
te

nt
ia

l t
o 

O
cc

ur
 

Fi
sh

 
C

at
os

to
m

us
 

sa
nt

aa
na

e 
Sa

nt
a 

An
a 

su
ck

er
 

FT
; A

FS
_T

H
; 

IU
C

N
_V

U
 

Aq
ua

tic
 | 

So
ut

h 
co

as
t f

lo
w

in
g 

w
at

er
s 

En
de

m
ic

 to
 L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 B

as
in

 
so

ut
h 

co
as

ta
l s

tre
am

s.
 H

ab
ita

t 
ge

ne
ra

lis
ts

, b
ut

 p
re

fe
r s

an
d-

ru
bb

le
-

bo
ul

de
r b

ot
to

m
s,

 c
oo

l, 
cl

ea
r w

at
er

, 
an

d 
al

ga
e.

 

A
bs

en
t. 

N
o 

flo
w

in
g 

w
at

er
 

on
-s

ite
. 2

00
7 

C
N

D
D

B 
oc

cu
rre

nc
e 

bu
ffe

r o
ve

rla
p 

in
 

no
rth

w
es

te
rn

 c
or

ne
r o

f 1
00

-
fo

ot
 d

is
tu

rb
an

ce
 a

re
a 

bu
ffe

r. 

Fi
sh

 
G

as
te

ro
st

eu
s 

ac
ul

ea
tu

s 
w

illi
am

so
ni

 
un

ar
m

or
ed

 
th

re
es

pi
ne

 
st

ic
kl

eb
ac

k 

FE
; S

E;
 A

FS
_E

N
; 

C
D

FW
_F

P 
Aq

ua
tic

 | 
So

ut
h 

co
as

t f
lo

w
in

g 
w

at
er

s 
W

ee
dy

 p
oo

ls
, b

ac
kw

at
er

s,
 a

nd
 

am
on

g 
em

er
ge

nt
 v

eg
et

at
io

n 
at

 th
e 

st
re

am
 e

dg
e 

in
 s

m
al

l S
ou

th
er

n 
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 s
tre

am
s.

 C
oo

l (
<2

4 
de

gr
ee

s 
C

el
si

us
), 

cl
ea

r w
at

er
 w

ith
 

ab
un

da
nt

 v
eg

et
at

io
n.

 

A
bs

en
t. 

En
tir

el
y 

aq
ua

tic
 

sp
ec

ie
s,

 n
o 

ha
bi

ta
t w

ith
in

 
su

rv
ey

 a
re

a.
 

Fi
sh

 
G

ila
 o

rc
ut

tii
 

ar
ro

yo
 c

hu
b 

AF
S_

VU
; 

C
D

FW
_S

SC
; 

U
SF

S_
S 

Aq
ua

tic
 | 

So
ut

h 
co

as
t f

lo
w

in
g 

w
at

er
s 

N
at

iv
e 

to
 s

tre
am

s 
fro

m
 M

al
ib

u 
C

re
ek

 to
 S

an
 L

ui
s 

R
ey

 R
iv

er
 b

as
in

. 
In

tro
du

ce
d 

in
to

 s
tre

am
s 

in
 S

an
ta

 
C

la
ra

, V
en

tu
ra

, S
an

ta
 Y

ne
z,

 
M

oj
av

e 
an

d 
Sa

n 
D

ie
go

 ri
ve

r 
ba

si
ns

. S
lo

w
 w

at
er

 s
tre

am
 

se
ct

io
ns

 w
ith

 m
ud

 o
r s

an
d 

bo
tto

m
s.

 F
ee

ds
 h

ea
vi

ly
 o

n 
aq

ua
tic

 
ve

ge
ta

tio
n 

an
d 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 

in
ve

rte
br

at
es

. 

A
bs

en
t. 

En
tir

el
y 

aq
ua

tic
 

sp
ec

ie
s,

 n
o 

ha
bi

ta
t w

ith
in

 
su

rv
ey

 a
re

a.
 

Fi
sh

 
R

hi
ni

ch
th

ys
 o

sc
ul

us
 

ss
p.

 8
 

Sa
nt

a 
An

a 
sp

ec
kl

ed
 d

ac
e 

AF
S_

TH
; 

C
D

FW
_S

SC
; 

U
SF

S_
S 

Aq
ua

tic
 | 

So
ut

h 
co

as
t f

lo
w

in
g 

w
at

er
s 

H
ea

dw
at

er
s 

of
 th

e 
Sa

nt
a 

An
a 

an
d 

Sa
n 

G
ab

rie
l r

iv
er

s.
 M

ay
 b

e 
ex

tir
pa

te
d 

fro
m

 th
e 

Lo
s 

An
ge

le
s 

R
iv

er
 s

ys
te

m
. R

eq
ui

re
s 

pe
rm

an
en

t 
flo

w
in

g 
st

re
am

s 
w

ith
 s

um
m

er
 

w
at

er
 te

m
ps

 o
f 1

7–
20

 d
eg

re
es

 
C

el
si

us
. U

su
al

ly
 in

ha
bi

ts
 s

ha
llo

w
 

co
bb

le
 a

nd
 g

ra
ve

l r
iff

le
s.

 

A
bs

en
t. 

En
tir

el
y 

aq
ua

tic
 

sp
ec

ie
s,

 n
o 

ha
bi

ta
t w

ith
in

 
su

rv
ey

 a
re

a.
 

In
se

ct
s 

B
om

bu
s 

cr
ot

ch
ii 

C
ro

tc
h 

bu
m

bl
e 

be
e 

SC
E 

N
/A

 
C

oa
st

al
 C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 e
as

t t
o 

th
e 

Si
er

ra
-C

as
ca

de
 c

re
st

 a
nd

 s
ou

th
 

in
to

 M
ex

ic
o.

 F
oo

d 
pl

an
t g

en
er

a 
in

cl
ud

e 
An

tir
rh

in
um

, P
ha

ce
lia

, 
C

la
rk

ia
, D

en
dr

om
ec

on
, 

Es
ch

sc
ho

lz
ia

, a
nd

 E
rio

go
nu

m
. 

Lo
w

. S
ur

ro
un

di
ng

 C
N

D
D

B 
oc

cu
rre

nc
es

 a
re

 2
.4

–
6.

5 
m

ile
s 

an
d 

fro
m

 1
96

0s
 

an
d 

19
70

s.
 P

ha
ce

lia
 a

nd
 

Er
io

go
nu

m
 o

n-
si

te
 b

ut
 

ha
bi

ta
t i

s 
m

ar
gi

na
l. 

N
es

tin
g 

an
d 

ov
er

w
in

te
rin

g 
ha

bi
ta

t 
m

ay
 b

e 
pr

es
en

t. 
 

363



 

E-
7 

Ph
yl

og
en

et
ic

 
C

at
eg

or
y 

Sc
ie

nt
ifi

c 
N

am
e 

Co
m

m
on

 N
am

e 
St

at
us

 
G

en
er

al
 H

ab
ita

t 
M

ic
ro

ha
bi

ta
t 

Po
te

nt
ia

l t
o 

O
cc

ur
 

In
se

ct
s 

D
an

au
s 

pl
ex

ip
pu

s 
po

p.
 1

 
m

on
ar

ch
 - 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 

ov
er

w
in

te
rin

g 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

FC
; U

SF
S_

S 
C

lo
se

d-
co

ne
 c

on
ife

ro
us

 fo
re

st
 

W
in

te
r r

oo
st

 s
ite

s 
ex

te
nd

 a
lo

ng
 th

e 
co

as
t f

ro
m

 n
or

th
er

n 
M

en
do

ci
no

 to
 

Ba
ja

 C
al

ifo
rn

ia
, M

ex
ic

o.
 R

oo
st

s 
lo

ca
te

d 
in

 w
in

d-
pr

ot
ec

te
d 

tre
e 

gr
ov

es
 (e

uc
al

yp
tu

s,
 M

on
te

re
y 

pi
ne

, 
cy

pr
es

s)
, w

ith
 n

ec
ta

r a
nd

 w
at

er
 

so
ur

ce
s 

ne
ar

by
. 

A
bs

en
t. 

C
lo

se
d-

co
ne

 
co

ni
fe

ro
us

 fo
re

st
 n

ot
 w

ith
in

 
su

rv
ey

 a
re

a.
 

In
se

ct
s 

E
up

hy
dr

ya
s 

ed
ith

a 
qu

in
o 

qu
in

o 
ch

ec
ke

rs
po

t 
bu

tte
rfl

y 

FE
 

C
ha

pa
rra

l |
 C

oa
st

al
 s

cr
ub

 
Su

nn
y 

op
en

in
gs

 w
ith

in
 c

ha
pa

rra
l 

an
d 

co
as

ta
l s

ag
e 

sh
ru

bl
an

ds
 in

 
pa

rts
 o

f R
iv

er
si

de
 a

nd
 S

an
 D

ie
go

 
co

un
tie

s.
 H

ills
 a

nd
 m

es
as

 n
ea

r t
he

 
co

as
t. 

N
ee

d 
hi

gh
 d

en
si

tie
s 

of
 fo

od
 

pl
an

ts
 P

la
nt

ag
o 

er
ec

ta
, P

. 
in

su
la

ris
, a

nd
 O

rth
oc

ar
pu

s 
pu

rp
ur

es
ce

ns
. 

A
bs

en
t. 

19
20

 C
N

D
D

B 
oc

cu
rre

nc
e 

6.
7 

m
ile

s 
to

 th
e 

ea
st

 o
f s

ur
ve

y 
ar

ea
, 

ex
tir

pa
te

d.
  

M
am

m
al

s 
A

nt
ro

zo
us

 p
al

lid
us

 
pa

llid
 b

at
 

BL
M

_S
, 

C
D

FW
_S

SC
; 

IU
C

N
_L

C
; 

U
SF

S_
S;

 
W

BW
G

_H
 

C
ha

pa
rra

l |
 C

oa
st

al
 s

cr
ub

 | 
D

es
er

t 
w

as
h 

| G
re

at
 B

as
in

 g
ra

ss
la

nd
 | 

G
re

at
 B

as
in

 s
cr

ub
 | 

M
oj

av
ea

n 
de

se
rt 

sc
ru

b 
| R

ip
ar

ia
n 

w
oo

dl
an

d 
| 

So
no

ra
n 

de
se

rt 
sc

ru
b 

| U
pp

er
 

m
on

ta
ne

 c
on

ife
ro

us
 fo

re
st

 | 
Va

lle
y 

an
d 

fo
ot

hi
ll 

gr
as

sl
an

d 

D
es

er
ts

, g
ra

ss
la

nd
s,

 s
hr

ub
la

nd
s,

 
w

oo
dl

an
ds

 a
nd

 fo
re

st
s.

 M
os

t 
co

m
m

on
 in

 o
pe

n,
 d

ry
 h

ab
ita

ts
 w

ith
 

ro
ck

y 
ar

ea
s 

fo
r r

oo
st

in
g.

 R
oo

st
s 

m
us

t p
ro

te
ct

 b
at

s 
fro

m
 h

ig
h 

te
m

pe
ra

tu
re

s.
 V

er
y 

se
ns

iti
ve

 to
 

di
st

ur
ba

nc
e 

of
 ro

os
tin

g 
si

te
s.

 

Lo
w

. N
ea

re
st

 C
N

D
D

B 
oc

cu
rre

nc
es

 fr
om

 1
93

8 
an

d 
19

42
 4

–2
0 

m
ile

s 
no

rth
 a

nd
 

ea
st

. O
ve

rp
as

s 
ne

ar
by

 
(H

ig
hw

ay
 5

 a
nd

 M
ag

ic
 

M
ou

nt
ai

n 
Pa

rk
w

ay
) 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
ne

ar
by

 ro
os

tin
g 

ha
bi

ta
t. 

M
am

m
al

s 
C

or
yn

or
hi

nu
s 

to
w

ns
en

di
i 

To
w

ns
en

d’
s 

bi
g-

ea
re

d 
ba

t 
BL

M
_S

, 
C

D
FW

_S
SC

; 
IU

C
N

_L
C

; 
U

SF
S_

S;
 

W
BW

G
_H

 

Br
oa

dl
ea

ve
d 

up
la

nd
 fo

re
st

 | 
C

ha
pa

rra
l |

 C
he

no
po

d 
sc

ru
b 

| 
G

re
at

 B
as

in
 g

ra
ss

la
nd

 | 
G

re
at

 
Ba

si
n 

sc
ru

b 
| J

os
hu

a 
tre

e 
w

oo
dl

an
d 

| L
ow

er
 m

on
ta

ne
 

co
ni

fe
ro

us
 fo

re
st

 | 
M

ea
do

w
 a

nd
 

se
ep

 | 
M

oj
av

ea
n 

de
se

rt 
sc

ru
b 

| 
R

ip
ar

ia
n 

fo
re

st
 | 

R
ip

ar
ia

n 
w

oo
dl

an
d 

| S
on

or
an

 d
es

er
t s

cr
ub

 | 
So

no
ra

n 
th

or
n 

w
oo

dl
an

d 
| U

pp
er

 
m

on
ta

ne
 c

on
ife

ro
us

 fo
re

st
 | 

Va
lle

y 
an

d 
fo

ot
hi

ll 
gr

as
sl

an
d 

Th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 in
 a

 w
id

e 
va

rie
ty

 o
f h

ab
ita

ts
. M

os
t c

om
m

on
 

in
 m

es
ic

 s
ite

s.
 R

oo
st

s 
in

 th
e 

op
en

, 
ha

ng
in

g 
fro

m
 w

al
ls

 a
nd

 c
ei

lin
gs

. 
R

oo
st

in
g 

si
te

s 
lim

iti
ng

. E
xt

re
m

el
y 

se
ns

iti
ve

 to
 h

um
an

 d
is

tu
rb

an
ce

. 

Lo
w

. N
ea

re
st

 C
N

D
D

B 
oc

cu
rre

nc
e 

re
co

rd
 is

 fr
om

 
19

42
 a

nd
 1

0.
8 

m
ile

s 
ea

st
 o

f 
su

rv
ey

 a
re

a.
 H

ik
in

g 
th

ro
ug

h 
su

rv
ey

 a
re

a 
co

m
m

on
 w

ith
 

th
e 

bi
ke

/h
ik

e 
pa

th
, u

nl
ik

el
y 

to
 o

cc
ur

 a
s 

ve
ry

 s
en

si
tiv

e 
to

 
hu

m
an

 d
is

tu
rb

an
ce

. 
O

ve
rp

as
s 

ne
ar

by
 (H

ig
hw

ay
 

5 
an

d 
M

ag
ic

 M
ou

nt
ai

n 
Pa

rk
w

ay
) p

ro
vi

di
ng

 n
ea

rb
y 

ro
os

tin
g 

ha
bi

ta
t. 

M
am

m
al

s 
E

ud
er

m
a 

m
ac

ul
at

um
 

sp
ot

te
d 

ba
t 

BL
M

_S
, 

C
D

FW
_S

SC
; 

IU
C

N
_L

C
; 

W
BW

G
_H

 

N
/A

 
O

cc
up

ie
s 

a 
w

id
e 

va
rie

ty
 o

f h
ab

ita
ts

 
fro

m
 a

rid
 d

es
er

ts
 a

nd
 g

ra
ss

la
nd

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
m

ix
ed

 c
on

ife
r f

or
es

ts
. 

Fe
ed

s 
ov

er
 w

at
er

 a
nd

 a
lo

ng
 

w
as

he
s.

 F
ee

ds
 a

lm
os

t e
nt

ire
ly

 o
n 

m
ot

hs
. N

ee
ds

 ro
ck

 c
re

vi
ce

s 
in

 
cl

iff
s 

or
 c

av
es

 fo
r r

oo
st

in
g.

 

Lo
w

. C
N

D
D

B 
oc

cu
rre

nc
e 

2 
m

ile
s 

no
rth

w
es

t o
f s

ur
ve

y 
ar

ea
, f

ro
m

 1
89

0.
 H

is
to

ric
al

. 
O

ve
rp

as
s 

ne
ar

by
 (H

ig
hw

ay
 

5 
an

d 
M

ag
ic

 M
ou

nt
ai

n 
Pa

rk
w

ay
) p

ro
vi

di
ng

 n
ea

rb
y 

ro
os

tin
g 

ha
bi

ta
t. 

 

364



 

E-
8 

Ph
yl

og
en

et
ic

 
C

at
eg

or
y 

Sc
ie

nt
ifi

c 
N

am
e 

Co
m

m
on

 N
am

e 
St

at
us

 
G

en
er

al
 H

ab
ita

t 
M

ic
ro

ha
bi

ta
t 

Po
te

nt
ia

l t
o 

O
cc

ur
 

M
am

m
al

s 
E

um
op

s 
pe

ro
tis

 
ca

lif
or

ni
cu

s 
w

es
te

rn
 m

as
tif

f 
ba

t 
BL

M
_S

, 
C

D
FW

_S
SC

; 
W

BW
G

_H
 

C
ha

pa
rra

l |
 C

is
m

on
ta

ne
 w

oo
dl

an
d 

| C
oa

st
al

 s
cr

ub
 | 

Va
lle

y 
an

d 
fo

ot
hi

ll 
gr

as
sl

an
d 

M
an

y 
op

en
, s

em
i-a

rid
 to

 a
rid

 
ha

bi
ta

ts
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 c
on

ife
r a

nd
 

de
ci

du
ou

s 
w

oo
dl

an
ds

, c
oa

st
al

 
sc

ru
b,

 g
ra

ss
la

nd
s,

 c
ha

pa
rra

l, 
et

c.
 

R
oo

st
s 

in
 c

re
vi

ce
s 

in
 c

lif
f f

ac
es

, 
hi

gh
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

, t
re

es
 a

nd
 tu

nn
el

s.
 

Lo
w

. N
ea

re
st

 o
cc

ur
re

nc
e 

5.
2 

m
ile

s 
so

ut
hw

es
t f

ro
m

 
19

92
, p

re
su

m
ed

 e
xt

an
t. 

O
ve

rp
as

s 
ne

ar
by

 (H
ig

hw
ay

 
5 

an
d 

M
ag

ic
 M

ou
nt

ai
n 

Pa
rk

w
ay

) p
ro

vi
di

ng
 n

ea
rb

y 
ro

os
tin

g 
ha

bi
ta

t. 
 

M
am

m
al

s 
La

si
ur

us
 c

in
er

eu
s 

ho
ar

y 
ba

t 
IU

C
N

_L
C

; 
W

BW
G

_M
 

Br
oa

dl
ea

ve
d 

up
la

nd
 fo

re
st

 | 
C

is
m

on
ta

ne
 w

oo
dl

an
d 

| L
ow

er
 

m
on

ta
ne

 c
on

ife
ro

us
 fo

re
st

 | 
N

or
th

 
co

as
t c

on
ife

ro
us

 fo
re

st
 

Pr
ef

er
s 

op
en

 h
ab

ita
ts

 o
r h

ab
ita

t 
m

os
ai

cs
, w

ith
 a

cc
es

s 
to

 tr
ee

s 
fo

r 
co

ve
r a

nd
 o

pe
n 

ar
ea

s 
or

 h
ab

ita
t 

ed
ge

s 
fo

r f
ee

di
ng

. R
oo

st
s 

in
 d

en
se

 
fo

lia
ge

 o
f m

ed
iu

m
 to

 la
rg

e 
tre

es
. 

Fe
ed

s 
pr

im
ar

ily
 o

n 
m

ot
hs

. 
R

eq
ui

re
s 

w
at

er
. 

Lo
w

. N
ea

re
st

 o
cc

ur
re

nc
e 

11
 m

ile
s 

so
ut

he
as

t a
nd

 fr
om

 
19

04
. O

ve
rp

as
s 

ne
ar

by
 

(H
ig

hw
ay

 5
 a

nd
 M

ag
ic

 
M

ou
nt

ai
n 

Pa
rk

w
ay

) 
pr

ov
id

in
g 

ne
ar

by
 ro

os
tin

g 
ha

bi
ta

t. 

M
am

m
al

s 
Le

pu
s 

ca
lif

or
ni

cu
s 

be
nn

et
tii

 
Sa

n 
D

ie
go

 b
la

ck
-

ta
ile

d 
ja

ck
ra

bb
it 

C
D

FW
_S

SC
 

C
oa

st
al

 s
cr

ub
 

In
te

rm
ed

ia
te

 c
an

op
y 

st
ag

es
 o

f 
sh

ru
b 

ha
bi

ta
ts

 a
nd

 o
pe

n 
sh

ru
b 

/ 
he

rb
ac

eo
us

 a
nd

 tr
ee

 / 
he

rb
ac

eo
us

 
ed

ge
s.

 C
oa

st
al

 s
ag

e 
sc

ru
b 

ha
bi

ta
ts

 in
 S

ou
th

er
n 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
. 

Lo
w

. R
ec

en
t 2

01
5 

C
N

D
D

B 
re

co
rd

 7
.6

 m
ile

s 
ea

st
 o

f 
su

rv
ey

 a
re

a.
 N

ot
es

 s
ay

 
si

gh
tin

gs
 in

 a
nd

 n
ea

r t
he

 
Sa

nt
a 

C
la

ra
 R

iv
er

 m
ai

n 
ch

an
ne

l, 
an

d 
in

 fo
rm

er
 

pa
st

ur
e 

w
ith

 n
on

na
tiv

e 
pl

an
ts

 d
om

in
an

t f
or

m
er

ly
 

us
ed

 a
s 

fa
rm

la
nd

. T
hi

s 
cl

os
el

y 
re

se
m

bl
e 

ha
bi

ta
t 

pr
es

en
t w

ith
in

 th
e 

su
rv

ey
 

ar
ea

, b
ut

 re
co

rd
 is

 d
is

ta
nt

.  

M
am

m
al

s 
M

ac
ro

tu
s 

ca
lif

or
ni

cu
s 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 le

af
-

no
se

d 
ba

t 
BL

M
_S

, 
C

D
FW

_S
SC

; 
IU

C
N

_L
C

; 
W

BW
G

_H
 

R
ip

ar
ia

n 
sc

ru
b 

| S
on

or
an

 d
es

er
t 

sc
ru

b 
D

es
er

t r
ip

ar
ia

n,
 d

es
er

t w
as

h,
 

de
se

rt 
sc

ru
b,

 d
es

er
t s

uc
cu

le
nt

 
sc

ru
b,

 a
lk

al
i s

cr
ub

 a
nd

 p
al

m
 o

as
is

 
ha

bi
ta

ts
. N

ee
ds

 ro
ck

y,
 ru

gg
ed

 
te

rra
in

 w
ith

 m
in

es
 o

r c
av

es
 fo

r 
ro

os
tin

g.
 

A
bs

en
t. 

Su
rv

ey
 a

re
a 

no
t 

ro
ck

y.
 S

an
dy

 s
ub

st
ra

te
. 

C
lo

se
st

 th
in

g 
to

 c
av

es
 is

 th
e 

H
ig

hw
ay

 5
 o

ve
rp

as
s 

ad
ja

ce
nt

 to
 s

ur
ve

y 
ar

ea
.  

M
am

m
al

s 
N

eo
ta

m
ia

s 
sp

ec
io

su
s 

sp
ec

io
su

s 
lo

dg
ep

ol
e 

ch
ip

m
un

k 

 
C

ha
pa

rra
l |

 U
pp

er
 m

on
ta

ne
 

co
ni

fe
ro

us
 fo

re
st

 
Su

m
m

its
 o

f i
so

la
te

d 
Pi

ut
e,

 S
an

 
Be

rn
ar

di
no

, a
nd

 S
an

 J
ac

in
to

 
m

ou
nt

ai
ns

. U
su

al
ly

 fo
un

d 
in

 o
pe

n-
ca

no
py

 fo
re

st
s.

 H
ab

ita
t i

s 
us

ua
lly

 
lo

dg
ep

ol
e 

pi
ne

 fo
re

st
s 

in
 th

e 
Sa

n 
Be

rn
ar

di
no

 M
ts

 a
nd

 c
hi

nq
ua

pi
n 

sl
op

es
 in

 th
e 

Sa
n 

Ja
ci

nt
o 

M
ts

. 

A
bs

en
t. 

Su
rv

ey
 a

re
a 

lo
w

er
 

th
an

 e
le

va
tio

na
l r

an
ge

 o
f t

he
 

sp
ec

ie
s.

  

365



 

E-
9 

Ph
yl

og
en

et
ic

 
C

at
eg

or
y 

Sc
ie

nt
ifi

c 
N

am
e 

Co
m

m
on

 N
am

e 
St

at
us

 
G

en
er

al
 H

ab
ita

t 
M

ic
ro

ha
bi

ta
t 

Po
te

nt
ia

l t
o 

O
cc

ur
 

M
am

m
al

s 
N

eo
to

m
a 

le
pi

da
 

in
te

rm
ed

ia
 

Sa
n 

D
ie

go
 

de
se

rt 
w

oo
dr

at
 

C
D

FW
_S

SC
 

C
oa

st
al

 s
cr

ub
 

C
oa

st
al

 s
cr

ub
 o

f S
ou

th
er

n 
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 fr
om

 S
an

 D
ie

go
 C

ou
nt

y 
to

 S
an

 L
ui

s 
O

bi
sp

o 
C

ou
nt

y.
 

M
od

er
at

e 
to

 d
en

se
 c

an
op

ie
s 

pr
ef

er
re

d.
 T

he
y 

ar
e 

pa
rti

cu
la

rly
 

ab
un

da
nt

 in
 ro

ck
 o

ut
cr

op
s,

 ro
ck

y 
cl

iff
s,

 a
nd

 s
lo

pe
s.

 

Lo
w

. N
ea

re
st

 re
co

rd
 d

is
ta

nt
 

at
 6

.2
 m

ile
s 

so
ut

h 
of

 s
ur

ve
y 

ar
ea

 fr
om

 1
99

2 .
 S

ur
ve

y 
ar

ea
 

no
t r

oc
ky

, a
lth

ou
gh

 d
en

se
 

w
ith

 m
ul

ef
at

 s
hr

ub
. M

os
t 

oc
cu

rre
nc

es
 o

n 
co

as
t a

nd
 

so
ut

h 
of

 th
e 

Sa
n 

G
ab

rie
ls

. 

M
am

m
al

s 
O

ny
ch

om
ys

 to
rri

du
s 

ra
m

on
a 

so
ut

he
rn

 
gr

as
sh

op
pe

r 
m

ou
se

 

C
D

FW
_S

SC
 

C
he

no
po

d 
sc

ru
b 

D
es

er
t a

re
as

, e
sp

ec
ia

lly
 s

cr
ub

 
ha

bi
ta

ts
 w

ith
 fr

ia
bl

e 
so

ils
 fo

r 
di

gg
in

g.
 P

re
fe

rs
 lo

w
 to

 m
od

er
at

e 
sh

ru
b 

co
ve

r. 
Fe

ed
s 

al
m

os
t 

ex
cl

us
iv

el
y 

on
 a

rth
ro

po
ds

, 
es

pe
ci

al
ly

 s
co

rp
io

ns
 a

nd
 

or
th

op
te

ra
n 

in
se

ct
s.

 

A
bs

en
t. 

N
ea

re
st

 re
co

rd
s 

ar
e 

di
st

an
t a

nd
 h

is
to

ric
. 

Fr
om

 y
ea

r 1
90

4 
an

d 
19

30
, 

12
 m

ile
s 

an
d 

17
 m

ile
s 

ea
st

. 

M
am

m
al

s 
Ta

xi
de

a 
ta

xu
s 

Am
er

ic
an

 b
ad

ge
r 

C
D

FW
_S

SC
; 

IU
C

N
_L

C
 

Al
ka

li 
m

ar
sh

 | 
Al

ka
li 

pl
ay

a 
| A

lp
in

e 
| 

Al
pi

ne
 d

w
ar

f s
cr

ub
 | 

Bo
g 

an
d 

fe
n 

| 
Br

ac
ki

sh
 m

ar
sh

 | 
Br

oa
dl

ea
ve

d 
up

la
nd

 fo
re

st
 | 

C
ha

pa
rra

l |
 

C
he

no
po

d 
sc

ru
b 

| C
is

m
on

ta
ne

 
w

oo
dl

an
d 

| C
lo

se
d-

co
ne

 
co

ni
fe

ro
us

 fo
re

st
 | 

C
oa

st
al

 b
lu

ff 
sc

ru
b 

| C
oa

st
al

 d
un

es
 | 

C
oa

st
al

 
pr

ai
rie

 | 
C

oa
st

al
 s

cr
ub

 | 
D

es
er

t 
du

ne
s 

| D
es

er
t w

as
h 

| F
re

sh
w

at
er

 
m

ar
sh

 | 
G

re
at

 B
as

in
 g

ra
ss

la
nd

 | 
G

re
at

 B
as

in
 s

cr
ub

 | 
In

te
rio

r d
un

es
 | 

Io
ne

 fo
rm

at
io

n 
| J

os
hu

a 
tre

e 
w

oo
dl

an
d 

| L
im

es
to

ne
 | 

Lo
w

er
 

m
on

ta
ne

 c
on

ife
ro

us
 fo

re
st

 | 
M

ar
sh

 
an

d 
sw

am
p 

| M
ea

do
w

 a
nd

 s
ee

p 
| 

M
oj

av
ea

n 
de

se
rt 

sc
ru

b 
| M

on
ta

ne
 

dw
ar

f s
cr

ub
 | 

N
or

th
 c

oa
st

 
co

ni
fe

ro
us

 fo
re

st
 | 

O
ld

gr
ow

th
 | 

Pa
ve

m
en

t p
la

in
 | 

R
ed

w
oo

d 
| 

R
ip

ar
ia

n 
fo

re
st

 | 
R

ip
ar

ia
n 

sc
ru

b 
| 

R
ip

ar
ia

n 
w

oo
dl

an
d 

| S
al

t m
ar

sh
 | 

So
no

ra
n 

de
se

rt 
sc

ru
b 

| S
on

or
an

 
th

or
n 

w
oo

dl
an

d 
| U

ltr
am

af
ic

 | 
U

pp
er

 m
on

ta
ne

 c
on

ife
ro

us
 fo

re
st

 | 
U

pp
er

 S
on

or
an

 s
cr

ub
 | 

Va
lle

y 
an

d 
fo

ot
hi

ll 
gr

as
sl

an
d 

M
os

t a
bu

nd
an

t i
n 

dr
ie

r o
pe

n 
st

ag
es

 o
f m

os
t s

hr
ub

, f
or

es
t, 

an
d 

he
rb

ac
eo

us
 h

ab
ita

ts
, w

ith
 fr

ia
bl

e 
so

ils
. N

ee
ds

 s
uf

fic
ie

nt
 fo

od
, f

ria
bl

e 
so

ils
 a

nd
 o

pe
n,

 u
nc

ul
tiv

at
ed

 
gr

ou
nd

. P
re

ys
 o

n 
bu

rro
w

in
g 

ro
de

nt
s.

 D
ig

s 
bu

rro
w

s.
 

Lo
w

. 2
01

5 
C

N
D

D
B 

oc
cu

rre
nc

e 
0.

7 
m

ile
 w

es
t o

f 
su

rv
ey

 a
re

a,
 w

as
 fo

un
d 

in
 

sa
ge

br
us

h 
sc

ru
b;

 n
o 

su
ita

bl
e 

sa
ge

br
us

h 
sc

ru
b 

on
-s

ite
. M

ay
 b

e 
su

ita
bl

e 
fo

ra
gi

ng
 a

re
a 

w
ith

 w
oo

dr
at

 
m

id
de

ns
.  

366



 

E-
10

 

Ph
yl

og
en

et
ic

 
C

at
eg

or
y 

Sc
ie

nt
ifi

c 
N

am
e 

Co
m

m
on

 N
am

e 
St

at
us

 
G

en
er

al
 H

ab
ita

t 
M

ic
ro

ha
bi

ta
t 

Po
te

nt
ia

l t
o 

O
cc

ur
 

M
ol

lu
sk

s 
H

el
m

in
th

og
ly

pt
a 

fo
nt

ip
hi

la
 

So
le

da
d 

sh
ou

ld
er

ba
nd

 

 
N

/A
 

Ai
r-b

re
at

hi
ng

 te
rre

st
ria

l s
na

il.
 

Kn
ow

n 
fro

m
 ty

pe
 lo

ca
lit

y,
 L

itt
le

 
R

oc
k 

C
re

ek
 C

yn
 o

n 
no

rth
 s

id
e 

of
 

Sa
n 

G
ab

rie
ls

; w
es

t t
o 

Sa
nt

a 
C

la
rit

a 
in

 S
ol

ed
ad

 C
yn

; e
as

t t
o 

th
e 

vi
ci

ni
ty

 
of

 B
ig

 R
oc

k 
C

re
ek

; a
nd

 n
or

th
 to

 
El

iz
ab

et
h 

La
ke

 C
yn

 in
 th

e 
Si

er
ra

 
Pe

lo
na

 M
tn

s.
 F

re
qu

en
tly

 fo
un

d 
in

 
rip

ar
ia

n 
ha

bi
ta

t (
sp

rin
gs

, s
ee

ps
, 

al
on

g 
st

re
am

s)
. M

ay
 b

e 
fo

un
d 

in
 

ro
ck

 p
ile

s,
 fl

oo
d-

bo
rn

e 
de

br
is

, o
r 

un
de

r d
ea

d 
yu

cc
as

 w
he

re
 o

th
er

 
co

ve
r i

s 
no

t a
va

ila
bl

e.
 

Lo
w

. C
N

D
D

B 
oc

cu
rre

nc
e 

fro
m

 1
92

1 
2.

1 
m

ile
s 

no
rth

w
es

t o
f s

ur
ve

y 
ar

ea
. 

Su
rv

ey
 a

re
a 

to
o 

xe
ric

; a
re

a 
ad

ja
ce

nt
 (r

ip
ar

ia
n)

 a
re

a 
m

ay
 

be
 s

ui
ta

bl
e 

th
ou

gh
.  

M
ol

lu
sk

s 
H

el
m

in
th

og
ly

pt
a 

tra
sk

ii 
pa

co
im

en
si

s 
Pa

co
im

a 
sh

ou
ld

er
ba

nd
 

 
N

/A
 

Ai
r-b

re
at

hi
ng

 te
rre

st
ria

l s
na

il.
 

Kn
ow

n 
fro

m
 ty

pe
 lo

ca
lit

y,
 P

ac
oi

m
a 

C
an

yo
n 

on
 th

e 
w

es
t s

id
e 

of
 th

e 
Sa

n 
G

ab
rie

l M
ou

nt
ai

ns
. A

dd
iti

on
al

 
sp

ec
im

en
s 

fro
m

 E
liz

ab
et

h 
La

ke
 

C
an

yo
n 

in
 th

e 
Si

er
ra

 P
el

on
a 

M
ou

nt
ai

ns
 m

ay
 m

er
it 

re
vi

ew
. 

Fo
un

d 
m

os
tly

 u
nd

er
 b

ar
k 

an
d 

fra
gm

en
ts

 o
f r

ot
te

n 
lo

gs
. 

A
bs

en
t. 

N
o 

ro
tte

n 
lo

gs
 o

n-
si

te
. C

N
D

D
B 

sh
ow

s 
a 

ye
ar

 
19

44
 re

co
rd

 4
.4

 m
ile

s 
to

 th
e 

no
rth

 a
nd

 a
 y

ea
r 1

96
0 

re
co

rd
 1

2.
1 

m
ile

s 
to

 th
e 

so
ut

he
as

t. 
Bo

th
 h

is
to

ric
 a

nd
 

di
st

an
t. 

 

M
ol

lu
sk

s 
H

el
m

in
th

og
ly

pt
a 

uv
as

an
a 

G
ra

pe
vi

ne
 

sh
ou

ld
er

ba
nd

 

 
N

/A
 

Ai
r-b

re
at

hi
ng

 te
rre

st
ria

l s
na

il.
 

Kn
ow

n 
fro

m
 ty

pe
 lo

ca
lit

y 
al

on
g 

G
ra

pe
vi

ne
 C

re
ek

 in
 C

as
ta

ic
 V

al
le

y,
 

in
 th

e 
vi

ci
ni

ty
 o

f F
or

t T
ej

on
. 

Ad
di

tio
na

l h
is

to
ric

al
 s

pe
ci

m
en

 fr
om

 
ab

ou
t 2

1 
m

ile
s 

so
ut

h-
so

ut
he

as
t o

f 
ty

pe
 lo

ca
lit

y,
 O

ak
 F

la
t R

an
ge

r 
St

at
io

n.
 F

ou
nd

 u
nd

er
 d

ow
ne

d 
oa

k 
lo

gs
 in

 le
af

 li
tte

r, 
in

 b
ru

sh
, a

nd
 in

 
w

oo
dr

at
 n

es
ts

; a
m

on
g 

va
lle

y 
oa

k,
 

ne
ttl

e 
an

d 
po

is
on

 o
ak

 in
 v

al
le

y 
oa

k 
w

oo
dl

an
d 

gr
ad

in
g 

to
 c

ha
pa

rra
l. 

Lo
w

. N
ea

re
st

 re
co

rd
 

14
 m

ile
s 

to
 th

e 
no

rth
 a

nd
 

fro
m

 1
94

1.
 B

ot
h 

di
st

an
t a

nd
 

hi
st

or
ic

. w
oo

dr
at

 n
es

ts
 a

re
 

pr
es

en
t o

n-
si

te
 a

nd
 m

ay
 b

e 
su

ita
bl

e 
ha

bi
ta

t. 

R
ep

til
es

 
A

nn
ie

lla
 s

pp
. 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 le

gl
es

s 
liz

ar
d 

C
D

FW
_S

SC
 

N
/A

 
C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
so

ut
h 

to
 S

an
 

D
ie

go
, w

ith
in

 a
 v

ar
ie

ty
 o

f o
pe

n 
ha

bi
ta

ts
. T

hi
s 

el
em

en
t r

ep
re

se
nt

s 
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 re
co

rd
s 

of
 A

nn
ie

lla
 n

ot
 

ye
t a

ss
ig

ne
d 

to
 n

ew
 s

pe
ci

es
 w

ith
in

 
th

e 
An

ni
el

la
 p

ul
ch

ra
 c

om
pl

ex
. 

Va
rie

ty
 o

f h
ab

ita
ts

; g
en

er
al

ly
 in

 
m

oi
st

, l
oo

se
 s

oi
l. 

Th
ey

 p
re

fe
r s

oi
ls

 
w

ith
 a

 h
ig

h 
m

oi
st

ur
e 

co
nt

en
t. 

Lo
w

. 2
01

1 
C

N
D

D
B 

oc
cu

rre
nc

e 
re

co
rd

 1
.5

 m
ile

s 
up

st
re

am
 o

f S
an

ta
 C

la
ra

 
R

iv
er

. M
oi

st
ur

e 
co

nt
en

t o
f 

so
il 

on
-s

ite
 lo

w
; n

ot
 s

ui
ta

bl
e.

  

367



 

E-
11

 

Ph
yl

og
en

et
ic

 
C

at
eg

or
y 

Sc
ie

nt
ifi

c 
N

am
e 

Co
m

m
on

 N
am

e 
St

at
us

 
G

en
er

al
 H

ab
ita

t 
M

ic
ro

ha
bi

ta
t 

Po
te

nt
ia

l t
o 

O
cc

ur
 

R
ep

til
es

 
A

riz
on

a 
el

eg
an

s 
oc

ci
de

nt
al

is
 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 g

lo
ss

y 
sn

ak
e 

C
D

FW
_S

SC
 

N
/A

 
Pa

tc
hi

ly
 d

is
tri

bu
te

d 
fro

m
 th

e 
ea

st
er

n 
po

rti
on

 o
f S

an
 F

ra
nc

is
co

 
Ba

y,
 s

ou
th

er
n 

Sa
n 

Jo
aq

ui
n 

Va
lle

y,
 

an
d 

th
e 

C
oa

st
, T

ra
ns

ve
rs

e,
 a

nd
 

Pe
ni

ns
ul

ar
 ra

ng
es

, s
ou

th
 to

 B
aj

a 
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

. G
en

er
al

is
t r

ep
or

te
d 

fro
m

 a
 ra

ng
e 

of
 s

cr
ub

 a
nd

 
gr

as
sl

an
d 

ha
bi

ta
ts

, o
fte

n 
w

ith
 

lo
os

e 
or

 s
an

dy
 s

oi
ls

. 

Lo
w

. P
ro

je
ct

 d
is

tu
rb

an
ce

 
ar

ea
 is

 h
ea

vi
ly

 d
is

tu
rb

ed
 

fro
m

 u
se

 a
s 

pr
io

r f
ar

m
la

nd
 

an
d 

cu
rre

nt
ly

 p
av

ed
 s

ta
te

. 
Lo

w
 c

ha
nc

e 
of

 o
cc

ur
rin

g 
in

 
10

0-
fo

ot
 b

uf
fe

r a
re

a 
du

e 
to

 
fra

gm
en

ta
tio

n 
an

d 
ha

bi
ta

t 
do

m
in

at
ed

 b
y 

in
va

si
ve

s.
 

19
46

 C
N

D
D

B 
oc

cu
rre

nc
e 

ov
er

la
pp

in
g 

pr
oj

ec
t a

re
a;

  
1-

m
ile

 a
cc

ur
ac

y.
 

R
ep

til
es

 
A

sp
id

os
ce

lis
 ti

gr
is

 
st

ej
ne

ge
ri 

co
as

ta
l w

hi
pt

ai
l 

C
D

FW
_S

SC
 

N
/A

 
Fo

un
d 

in
 d

es
er

ts
 a

nd
 s

em
i-a

rid
 

ar
ea

s 
w

ith
 s

pa
rs

e 
ve

ge
ta

tio
n 

an
d 

op
en

 a
re

as
. A

ls
o 

fo
un

d 
in

 
w

oo
dl

an
d 

an
d 

rip
ar

ia
n 

ar
ea

s.
 

G
ro

un
d 

m
ay

 b
e 

fir
m

 s
oi

l, 
sa

nd
y,

 o
r 

ro
ck

y.
 

M
od

er
at

e.
 2

01
5 

an
d 

20
16

 
re

co
rd

s 
0.

7 
to

 1
 m

ile
s 

aw
ay

, 
bo

th
 w

es
t a

nd
 n

or
th

ea
st

. 
O

ne
 re

co
rd

s 
st

at
es

 
ob

se
rv

ed
 in

 b
ik

e 
pa

th
 

ad
ja

ce
nt

 to
 ro

ad
; b

ik
e 

pa
th

 
ru

ns
 th

ou
gh

 th
e 

su
rv

ey
 a

re
a 

w
ith

 a
dj

ac
en

t r
ip

ar
ia

n 
ar

ea
 

an
d 

so
ut

h 
si

de
 o

f 1
00

-fo
ot

 
pr

oj
ec

t d
is

tu
rb

an
ce

 a
re

a 
bu

ffe
r i

s 
se

m
i-a

rid
, a

s 
th

is
 

sp
ec

ie
s 

pr
ef

er
s.

 

R
ep

til
es

 
E

m
ys

 m
ar

m
or

at
a 

w
es

te
rn

 p
on

d 
tu

rtl
e 

BL
M

_S
; 

C
D

FW
_S

SC
; 

IU
C

N
_V

U
; 

U
SF

S_
S 

Aq
ua

tic
 | 

Ar
tif

ic
ia

l f
lo

w
in

g 
w

at
er

s 
| 

Kl
am

at
h/

N
or

th
 c

oa
st

 fl
ow

in
g 

w
at

er
s 

| K
la

m
at

h/
N

or
th

 c
oa

st
 

st
an

di
ng

 w
at

er
s 

| M
ar

sh
 a

nd
 

sw
am

p 
| S

ac
ra

m
en

to
/S

an
 J

oa
qu

in
 

flo
w

in
g 

w
at

er
s 

| S
ac

ra
m

en
to

/S
an

 
Jo

aq
ui

n 
st

an
di

ng
 w

at
er

s 
| S

ou
th

 
co

as
t f

lo
w

in
g 

w
at

er
s 

| S
ou

th
 c

oa
st

 
st

an
di

ng
 w

at
er

s 
| W

et
la

nd
 

A 
th

or
ou

gh
ly

 a
qu

at
ic

 tu
rtl

e 
of

 
po

nd
s,

 m
ar

sh
es

, r
iv

er
s,

 s
tre

am
s 

an
d 

irr
ig

at
io

n 
di

tc
he

s,
 u

su
al

ly
 w

ith
 

aq
ua

tic
 v

eg
et

at
io

n,
 b

el
ow

 6
00

0 
ft 

el
ev

at
io

n.
 N

ee
ds

 b
as

ki
ng

 s
ite

s 
an

d 
su

ita
bl

e 
(s

an
dy

 b
an

ks
 o

r g
ra

ss
y 

op
en

 fi
el

ds
) u

pl
an

d 
ha

bi
ta

t u
p 

to
 

0.
5 

km
 fr

om
 w

at
er

 fo
r e

gg
-la

yi
ng

. 

M
od

er
at

e.
 2

01
5 

C
N

D
D

B 
re

co
rd

 o
nl

y 
0.

4 
m

ile
 

do
w

ns
tre

am
. O

pe
n 

riv
er

 
ch

an
ne

l i
s 

ad
ja

ce
nt

 to
 

su
rv

ey
 a

re
a.

 B
ec

au
se

 th
ey

 
ca

n 
tra

ve
l u

pl
an

d 
ha

bi
ta

t u
p 

to
 0

.3
1 

m
ile

s 
fro

m
 w

at
er

 fo
r 

eg
g-

la
yi

ng
, n

or
th

 p
or

tio
ns

 o
f 

th
e 

10
0-

fo
ot

 b
uf

fe
r o

f t
he

 
pr

oj
ec

t d
is

tu
rb

an
ce

 a
re

a 
m

ay
 b

e 
su

ita
bl

e.
 P

ro
je

ct
 

di
st

ur
ba

nc
e 

ar
ea

 n
ot

 
su

ita
bl

e 
be

ca
us

e 
m

os
tly

 
pa

ve
d.

  

368



 

E-
12

 

Ph
yl

og
en

et
ic

 
C

at
eg

or
y 

Sc
ie

nt
ifi

c 
N

am
e 

Co
m

m
on

 N
am

e 
St

at
us

 
G

en
er

al
 H

ab
ita

t 
M

ic
ro

ha
bi

ta
t 

Po
te

nt
ia

l t
o 

O
cc

ur
 

R
ep

til
es

 
P

hr
yn

os
om

a 
bl

ai
nv

illi
i 

co
as

t h
or

ne
d 

liz
ar

d 
BL

M
_S

, 
C

D
FW

_S
SC

; 
IU

C
N

_L
C

 

C
ha

pa
rra

l |
 C

is
m

on
ta

ne
 w

oo
dl

an
d 

| C
oa

st
al

 b
lu

ff 
sc

ru
b 

| C
oa

st
al

 
sc

ru
b 

| D
es

er
t w

as
h 

| P
in

on
 a

nd
 

ju
ni

pe
r w

oo
dl

an
ds

 | 
R

ip
ar

ia
n 

sc
ru

b 
| R

ip
ar

ia
n 

w
oo

dl
an

d 
| V

al
le

y 
an

d 
fo

ot
hi

ll 
gr

as
sl

an
d 

Fr
eq

ue
nt

s 
a 

w
id

e 
va

rie
ty

 o
f 

ha
bi

ta
ts

, m
os

t c
om

m
on

 in
 lo

w
la

nd
s 

al
on

g 
sa

nd
y 

w
as

he
s 

w
ith

 s
ca

tte
re

d 
lo

w
 b

us
he

s.
 O

pe
n 

ar
ea

s 
fo

r 
su

nn
in

g,
 b

us
he

s 
fo

r c
ov

er
, p

at
ch

es
 

of
 lo

os
e 

so
il 

fo
r b

ur
ia

l, 
an

d 
ab

un
da

nt
 s

up
pl

y 
of

 a
nt

s 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

in
se

ct
s.

 

M
od

er
at

e.
 T

hi
s 

ho
rn

ed
 

liz
ar

d 
is

 m
os

t a
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

w
ith

 o
pe

n 
sc

ru
b 

an
d 

gr
as

sl
an

d 
ha

bi
ta

ts
 th

at
 

su
pp

or
t f

ria
bl

e 
so

ils
. N

on
e 

w
er

e 
fo

un
d 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
fie

ld
 

su
rv

ey
s.

 T
he

y 
fe

ed
 a

lm
os

t 
ex

cl
us

iv
el

y 
on

 h
ar

ve
st

er
 

an
ts

 (P
og

on
om

yr
m

ex
 s

pp
.) 

w
hi

ch
 h

av
e 

be
en

 fo
un

d 
on

-
si

te
 in

 lo
w

 n
um

be
rs

. 2
01

5 
C

N
D

D
B 

re
co

rd
 0

.7
 m

ile
 

w
es

t o
f s

ur
ve

y 
ar

ea
. 

R
ep

til
es

 
Th

am
no

ph
is

 
ha

m
m

on
di

i 
tw

o-
st

rip
ed

 
ga

rte
rs

na
ke

 
BL

M
_S

, 
C

D
FW

_S
SC

; 
IU

C
N

_L
C

; 
U

SF
S_

S 

M
ar

sh
 a

nd
 s

w
am

p 
| R

ip
ar

ia
n 

sc
ru

b 
| R

ip
ar

ia
n 

w
oo

dl
an

d 
| W

et
la

nd
  

C
oa

st
al

 C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 fr

om
 v

ic
in

ity
 o

f 
Sa

lin
as

 to
 n

or
th

w
es

t B
aj

a 
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

. F
ro

m
 s

ea
 to

 a
bo

ut
 

7,
00

0 
ft 

el
ev

at
io

n.
 H

ig
hl

y 
aq

ua
tic

, 
fo

un
d 

in
 o

r n
ea

r p
er

m
an

en
t f

re
sh

 
w

at
er

. O
fte

n 
al

on
g 

st
re

am
s 

w
ith

 
ro

ck
y 

be
ds

 a
nd

 ri
pa

ria
n 

gr
ow

th
. 

A
bs

en
t. 

Su
rv

ey
 a

re
a 

no
t 

ro
ck

y 
an

d 
no

 fr
es

h 
w

at
er

 
w

ith
in

 s
ur

ve
y 

ar
ea

. 
N

o 
su

ita
bl

e 
ha

bi
ta

t. 
 

N
/A

 =
 n

ot
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

 
FE

 =
 F

ed
er

al
ly

 li
st

ed
 a

s 
en

da
ng

er
ed

 
FT

 =
 F

ed
er

al
ly

 li
st

ed
 a

s 
th

re
at

en
ed

 
SE

 =
 S

ta
te

 li
st

ed
 a

s 
en

da
ng

er
ed

 
ST

 =
 S

ta
te

 li
st

ed
 a

s 
th

re
at

en
ed

 
SC

E 
= 

St
at

e 
ca

nd
id

at
e 

fo
r l

is
tin

g 
as

 e
nd

an
ge

re
d 

BL
M

_S
 =

 B
ur

ea
u 

of
 L

an
d 

M
an

ag
em

en
t –

 S
en

si
tiv

e 
C

D
FW

_S
SC

 =
 C

D
FW

 –
 S

pe
ci

es
 o

f S
pe

ci
al

 C
on

ce
rn

 
C

D
FW

_F
P 

= 
C

D
FW

 –
 F

ul
ly

 P
ro

te
ct

ed
 

C
D

FW
_W

L 
= 

C
D

FW
 –

 W
at

ch
 L

is
t 

C
D

F_
S 

= 
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f F
or

es
try

 a
nd

 F
ire

 P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

– 
S

en
si

tiv
e 

IU
C

N
_L

C
 =

 In
te

rn
at

io
na

l U
ni

on
 fo

r C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
of

 N
at

ur
e 

(IU
C

N
) –

 L
ea

st
 C

on
ce

rn
 

IU
C

N
_N

T 
= 

IU
C

N
 –

 N
ea

r T
hr

ea
te

ne
d 

IU
C

N
_V

U
 =

 IU
C

N
 –

 V
ul

ne
ra

bl
e 

IU
C

N
_E

N
 =

 IU
C

N
 –

 E
nd

an
ge

re
d 

IU
C

N
_C

R
 =

 IU
C

N
 –

 C
rit

ic
al

ly
 E

nd
an

ge
re

d 
U

SF
S_

S 
= 

U
.S

. F
or

es
t S

er
vi

ce
 –

 S
en

si
tiv

e 
U

SF
W

S_
BC

C
 =

 U
SF

W
S

 B
ird

s 
of

 C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
C

on
ce

rn
 

W
BW

G
_H

 =
 W

es
te

rn
 B

at
 W

or
ki

ng
 G

ro
up

 –
 H

ig
h 

Pr
io

rit
y 

W
BW

G
_M

 =
 W

es
te

rn
 B

at
 W

or
ki

ng
 G

ro
up

 –
 M

ed
iu

m
 P

rio
rit

y 

AF
S_

EN
 =

 A
m

er
ic

an
 F

is
he

rie
s 

So
ci

et
y 

– 
En

da
ng

er
ed

 
AF

S_
TH

 =
 A

m
er

ic
an

 F
is

he
rie

s 
So

ci
et

y 
– 

Th
re

at
en

ed
 

AF
S_

VU
 =

 A
m

er
ic

an
 F

is
he

rie
s 

So
ci

et
y 

– 
Vu

ln
er

ab
le

 
N

AB
C

I_
YW

L 
= 

N
or

th
 A

m
er

ic
an

 B
ird

 C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
In

iti
at

iv
e 

– 
Y

el
lo

w
 W

at
ch

 L
is

t 
N

AB
C

I_
R

W
L 

= 
N

or
th

 A
m

er
ic

an
 B

ird
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

In
iti

at
iv

e 
– 

R
ed

 W
at

ch
 L

is
t 

369



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project APPENDICES  

 
 

APPENDIX D: CULTURAL RESOURCES ASSESSMENT FOR 
BACKCOUNTRY PUMP STATION 

  

370



Cultural Resources Survey for the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Pump Station Project Letter Report 

1 

TECHNICAL MEMORANDUM 
November 5, 2022 

Jennifer Ziv 
Woodard & Curran 
24422 Avenida de la Carlota 
Suite 180 
Laguna Hills, CA 92653 

Re:  Cultural Resources Survey for the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Backcountry Pump 
Station Project Letter Report / SWCA Project No. 62466 

Dear Ms. Ziv: 

At the request of Woodard & Curran, SWCA Environmental Consultants (SWCA) completed a cultural 
resources survey for the proposed Santa Clarita Valley (SCV) Water Agency Backcountry Pump Station 
Project (Project) in Santa Clarita, California. The purpose of the project is to construct a new pump station 
that would supply water to the proposed Backcountry Reservoir located within the Mission Village 
development. This study was completed under the provisions of the California Environmental Quality 
Act (CEQA), including Public Resources Code (PRC) Section 5024.1, Section 15064.5 of the Guidelines, 
and Sections 21083.2 and 21084.1 of the Statutes of CEQA (Governor’s Office of Planning and Research 
1998). PRC Section 5024.1 requires the identification and evaluation of historical resources that may be 
affected by a proposed project. The SCV Water Agency is the lead agency. 

The following report documents the methods and results of a Sacred Lands File (SLF) search through the 
California Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC), a review of site records and reports at the 
California Historical Resources Information System (CHRIS), Native American outreach, and an 
intensive pedestrian survey. The purpose of this study is to determine whether cultural resources are 
located or are likely to be encountered in the Project area, and to aid in avoiding effects to these resources 
during Project implementation. 

STAFF QUALIFICATIONS 

This report was prepared by SWCA archaeologists Michelle Courtney, B.S., David K. Sayre, B.A, and 
Maia Matheu, B.A. Ms. Matheu conducted the archaeological survey for the project. Matthew Behrend, 
M.A., Registered Professional Archaeologist (RPA), and Heather Gibson, Ph.D., RPA, acted as Principal 
Investigator. SWCA’s principal investigator meets the requirements of the Secretary of the Interior’s 
Professional Qualification Standards in Archeology (National Park Service [NPS] 1983.

371



Cultural Resources Survey for the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Pump Station Project Letter Report 

2 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

The proposed project consists of the two main elements: the Backcountry Pump Station and the Magic 
Mountain Pipeline. The Backcountry Pump Station would be located within the incorporated boundaries 
of the city of Santa Clarita, north of Magic Mountain Parkway, south of the Santa Clara River, 
approximately 0.5 mile east of Interstate 5 (Figure A-1). The Backcountry Pump Station site is 
approximately 2 miles east/north-east of the site for the Backcountry Reservoir. The Magic Mountain 
Pipeline follows Magic Mountain Parkway and passes partially through the pump station site. The project 
area is in Township 4 North, Range 17 West, as depicted on the U.S. Geological Survey (USGS) 
Newhall, California, 7.5-minute topographic quadrangle (Figure A-2). 

The pump station site would include a pump building, flow control and pressure reducing station, 
emergency backup generator, fuel tank, and electrical transformer pad. The pump building would house 
the required mechanical and electrical equipment and would space for up to four 450 horsepower pumps.  
The overall dimension of the pump station site is approximately 268 feet by 140 feet. The pump building 
would be constructed with concrete masonry unit (CMU) block walls, with dimensions of approximately 
100 feet by 66 feet, for a total footprint of approximately 6,600 square feet.  

The access road and area surrounding the pump station would be paved with asphalt or concrete, and 
designed consistent with fire code, including, a minimum of 25 feet of clearance provided around the 
pump station building.  

A diesel backup generator would be installed in a generator room within the pump building. Fuel for the 
backup generator would be stored in two tanks (one 7,000 gallons and one 300 gallons). The fuel tanks 
would be installed within containment walls and would be located outside the pump building. 

The existing entrance gate from Magic Mountain Parkway, which is 26 feet wide, would remain in place 
and could accommodate various vehicles during construction and operation of the pump station. 
Perimeter fencing would be installed around the pump station and lighting at the pump station would be 
minimal. Landscaping, which would surround the property to provide privacy and to soften views of the 
pump station. 

The proposed project also includes a turnout (V-9 Turnout Facility) that would be located at the 
Backcountry Pump Station site at the 42-inch discharging pipe. The V-9 turnout would include pressure 
and flow control valves, as well as a flow meter. From the V-9 Turnout facility two distribution pipelines 
would be constructed in Magic Mountain Parkway to tie into existing distribution mains. Specifically, a 
16-inch distribution pipeline would extend approximately 1,920 feet in Magic Mountain Parkway to tie
into the existing 16-inch main in Tourney Road to serve Zone 1, and a 24-inch distribution pipeline would
extend approximately 1,4870 feet in Magic Mountain Parkway to tie into the existing 16-inch main in
Wayne Mills Place to serve Zone IIA-N.

PROJECT LOCATION 
The proposed Project is located within the City of Santa Clarita in Los Angeles County on private lands 
(Figure 1). The Project area is located in an open space, approximately 10 meters from Magic Mountain 
Parkway (Figure 2). The Project area is in Township 4 North, Range 16 West as depicted on the U.S. 
Geological Survey (USGS) Newhall, California, 7.5-minute topographic quadrangle (Figure 3). 

372



Cultural Resources Survey for the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Pump Station Project Letter Report 

3 

REGULATORY FRAMEWORK 

State Regulations and Requirements 

California Environmental Quality Act 
The cultural resources investigation for this Project is consistent with compliance procedures set forth in 
CEQA.  Sections 21083.2 and 21084.1 of the Statutes of CEQA and Public Resources Code (PRC) 
Section 5024.1, Section 15064.5 of the State CEQA Guidelines, were also used as the guidelines for the 
cultural resources study (Governor’s Office of Planning and Research 2014).  PRC Section 5024.1 
requires that any properties that can be expected to be directly or indirectly affected by a proposed project 
be evaluated for California Register of Historical Resources (CRHR) eligibility.  The purpose of the 
register is to maintain listings of the state’s historical resources and to indicate what properties are to be 
protected, to the extent prudent and feasible, from material impairment and substantial adverse change.  
The term “historical resources” includes a resource listed in, or determined to be eligible for listing in, the 
CRHR, a resource included in a local register of historical resources, and any object, building, structure, 
site, area, place, record, or manuscript which a lead agency determines to be historically significant 
(Section 15064.5[a] of the State CEQA Guidelines).  The criteria for listing properties in the CRHR were 
expressly developed in accordance with previously established criteria developed for listing in the NRHP. 
According to PRC Section 5024.1(c)(1–4), a resource may be considered historically significant if it 
retains integrity and meets at least one of the following criteria.  A property may be listed in the CRHR if 
the resource: 

1. Is associated with events that have made a significant contribution to the broad patterns of
California’s history and cultural heritage;

2. Is associated with the lives of persons important in our past;

3. Embodies the distinctive characteristics of a type, period, region or method of installation, or
represents the work of an important creative individual, or possesses high artistic values; or,

4. Has yielded, or may be likely to yield, information important in prehistory or history.

Under CEQA, if an archeological site is not a historical resource but meets the definition of a “unique 
archeological resource” as defined in PRC Section 21083.2, then it should be treated in accordance with 
the provisions of that section.  A unique archaeological resource is defined as follows:  
An archaeological artifact, object, or site about which it can be clearly demonstrated that, without merely 
adding to the current body of knowledge, there is a high probability that it meets any of the following 
criteria:  

1. Contains information needed to answer important scientific research questions and that there is a
demonstrable public interest in that information.

2. Has a special and particular quality such as being the oldest of its type or the best available
example of its type.

3. Is directly associated with a scientifically recognized important prehistoric or historic event or
person.

Resources that neither meet any of these criteria for listing on the CRHR nor qualify as a “unique 
archaeological resource” under CEQA PRC Section 21083.2 are viewed as not significant.  Under CEQA, 
“A nonunique archaeological resource need be given no further consideration, other than the simple 
recording of its existence by the lead agency if it so elects” (PRC Section 21083.2[h]). 

373



Cultural Resources Survey for the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Pump Station Project Letter Report 

4 

Impacts that adversely alter the significance of a resource listed in or eligible for listing in the CRHR are 
considered a significant effect on the environment.  Impacts to historical resources from the proposed 
Project are thus considered significant if the Project physically destroys or damages all or part of a 
resource, changes the character of the use of the resource or physical feature within the setting of the 
resource which contribute to its significance or introduces visual, atmospheric, or audible elements that 
diminish the integrity of significant features of the resource. 

California Health and Safety Code Section 7050.5 
California Health and Safety Code Section (HSC) 7050.5 requires that further excavation or disturbance 
of land, upon discovery of human remains outside of a dedicated cemetery, cease until a county coroner 
makes a report. It requires a county coroner to contact the Native American Heritage Commission 
(NAHC) within 24 hours if the coroner determines that the remains are not subject to his or her authority 
and if the coroner recognizes the remains to be those of Native American origin. 

California Health and Safety Code Section 7052 
HSC 7052 states that the willful mutilation, disinterment, or removal from the place of interment of any 
remains known to be human without the authority of law is a felony. 

California Public Resources Code Section 5097.98 
The Project is subject to California Public Resources Code (PRC) Section 5097.98, which states that if a 
county coroner notifies the NAHC that human remains are Native American and outside the coroner’s 
jurisdiction per HSC Section 7050.5, the NAHC must designate and notify a Most Likely Descendant 
(MLD). The MLD shall complete the inspection of the site within 48 hours of notification and may 
recommend scientific removal and nondestructive analysis of human remains and items associated with 
Native American burials. 

Local Regulations 

City of Santa Clarita General Plan 
The City of Santa Clarita complies with the preservation measures put forth in CEQA for cultural 
resources. The policies, mitigation measures, and management strategies employed by the City of Santa 
Clarita for cultural resources are provided below. These policies and mitigation measures are located 
within Chapter 5 of the General Plan, as well as incorporated in the Preservation of Natural Resources 
policies and Goals of the Open Space and Conservation Element. 

• Policy 10.1 to promote the preservation and rehabilitation of significant historic
structures and architectural amenities through implementation of the Historic
Preservation/Cultural Resources Ordinance.

• Policy 10.2 which considers relocation of valuable historic structures to Heritage Park
whenever they are unavoidably endangered by incompatible development.

• Policy 10.3 to continue to support implementation programs established by the Santa
Clarita Historical Society and others to identify and preserve historical sites.

• Policy 10.4 to establish development guidelines to identify and preserve significant
archeological sites.

• Policy 10.5 to integrate historic sites with recreational and open space areas whenever
possible.

• Policy 10.6 to incorporate historic sites into proposed development whenever possible in
such a manner as to preserve the integrity of the site whenever possible.

374



Cultural Resources Survey for the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Pump Station Project Letter Report 

5 

One Valley One Vision General Plan 
The One Valley One Vision General Plan (OVOVGP) identifies goals, objectives, and policies 
pertaining to historical resources and archeological resources. These goals, objectives, and policies are 
identified below. 

1. Goal CO 5: Protection of historical and culturally significant resources that contribute to
community identity and a sense of history.

a. Objective CO 5.2: Protect and enhance the historic character of Downtown Newhall.
i. Policy CO 5.2.1: In keeping with the Downtown Newhall Specific Plan policies,

ensure that the scale and character of new development is compatible with and
does not detract from the context of historic buildings and block patterns.

ii. Policy CO 5.2.3: Ensure that all aspects of community design in Newhall,
including street furniture, lighting, trash collection and storage areas, seating, and
other accessory structures, are of a design and scale appropriate for the historic
character of the district, while maintaining a sense of authenticity.

b. Objective CO 5.3: Encourage conservation and preservation of Native American cultural
places, including prehistoric, archaeological, cultural, spiritual, and ceremonial sites on
both public and private lands, throughout all stages of the planning and development
process.

i. Policy CO 5.3.2: For any proposed development project that may have a potential
impact on Native American cultural resources, provide notification to California
Native American tribes on the contact list maintained by the Native American
Heritage Commission that have traditional lands located within the City’s
jurisdiction, and consider the input received in the development decision.

ii. Policy CO 5.3.3: Review and consider a cultural resources study for any new
grading or development in areas identified as having a high potential for Native
American resources, and incorporate recommendations into the project approval
as appropriate to mitigate impacts to cultural resources

Santa Clarita Municipal Code 
The Property Development Standards of the City of Santa Clarita includes the requirement that all 
historical points of interest, as identified in the Open Space and Conservation Element of the Santa Clarita 
General Plan, shall be shown on site plans. Any development that would detrimentally affect the 
historical point of interest shall comply with the requirements of City, state, and federal law.  
The purpose of the Historic Preservation Review is to promote the economic and general welfare of the 
City of Santa Clarita by preserving and protecting public and private historic, cultural, and natural 
resources which are of special historic or aesthetic character or interest, or relocating such resources 
where necessary for their preservation and for their use, education, and view by the general public. 
Through historic preservation review, the Director of Community Development shall ensure that the 
Project complies with all of the provisions of the Unified Development Code, the General Plan, specific 
plans and other legislative planning documents. 

ENVIRONMENTAL AND CULTURAL SETTING 

Environmental Setting 
The Project area is situated in the San Gabriel Mountains, which are characterized by rugged hills and 
canyons with some more gently sloping hills and valleys. The Project area is adjacent to Magic Mountain 
Parkway, approximately 0.4 mile east of Interstate 5, and approximately 130 feet south of the riparian 
area of the Santa Clara River. A diverse community of wildlife, including coyotes, mule deer, bobcats, 
raccoons, and skunks as well as numerous smaller species—such as rabbits, squirrels, rats, mice, and 
other rodent species—are present in the San Gabriel Mountains (Mountains Recreation & Conservation 
Authority 

375



Cultural Resources Survey for the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Pump Station Project Letter Report 

6 

2020). Local vegetation communities include chaparral, Joshua Tree woodland, and sagebrush scrub 
community (NPS 2011). 

Cultural Setting 

Prehistoric Overview 

California prehistory is typically divided into three broad temporal periods that reflect similar cultural 
characteristics throughout the state: Paleoindian Period (ca. 9000–6000 B.C.), Archaic Period (6000 
B.C.–A.D. 500), and Emergent or Late Prehistoric Period (A.D. 500–Historic Contact) (Fredrickson
1973, 1974, 1994). The Archaic is further divided into Lower (6000–3000 B.C.), Middle (3000–1000
B.C.), and Upper (1000 B.C.–A.D. 500) Periods, generally governed by climatic and environmental
variables, such as the drying of pluvial lakes at the transition from the Paleoindian to the Lower Archaic.

In southern California, researchers attempting to define local or sub-regional traditions have created 
numerous cultural chronologies using various nomenclatures (Moratto 1984). Building on early studies 
and focusing on data synthesis, Wallace (1955, 1978) and others developed various prehistoric 
chronologies for the southern California coastal region that remain in use today. In general, most recent 
synthesis of the prehistory of the region include the following periods: 

• Paleo-Indian Period/Terminal Pleistocene (12,000 – 10,000 Before Present [B.P.])
• Early Archaic Period/Early Holocene (10,000 to 8,000 B.P.)
• Middle Archaic or Milling Stone Period/Middle Holocene (8,000 to 3,000 B.P.)
• Late Archaic/Late Holocene (3,000 to 1,350 B.P.)
• Late Prehistoric Period/Late Holocene (1,350 B.P. to Spanish Contact [A.D. 1769])

These periods are demarcated by various changes in prehistoric lifeways, including changes in tools and 
technologies, subsistence practices, settlement locations and settlement organization, population size, 
social interactions, and other archaeological indicators. 

Ethnographic Overview 

The Project area lies at the approximate intersection of two ethnographic groups: Tataviam and 
Gabrielino. Below is a brief summary of the two groups. 

TATAVIAM 
The Tataviam traditional territories include the upper reaches of the Santa Clara River drainage east of 
Piru Creek and encompassed the Sawmill Mountains to the north and the southwestern portion of the 
Antelope Valley. There are different hypotheses in regard to the affiliation of the Tataviam language. 
Scholars hypothesize that the Tataviam may have spoken a language that was uncommonly used in 
Southern California, or that they may have spoken a Takic language like their southern neighbors (King 
and Blackburn 1978). As with most languages, the Takic dialects may have been more noticeable at the 
geographic extremes, while in actuality there was likely a continuum of slight sound and synonym shifts 
from one community to the next. One scholar has suggested that the northern edge of Western Tongva 
lands were home to the Tataviam Takic speakers, a related but separate language from Northern Takic 
(Mithun 1999:539). 

GABRIELINO 
The name Gabrielino denotes those people who were administered by the Spanish from San Gabriel 
Mission. The terms Gabrieleno, Tongva, and Kizh are also used for self-designation by contemporary 

376



Cultural Resources Survey for the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Pump Station Project Letter Report 

7 

descendant groups. Gabrielino lands encompassed the greater Los Angeles Basin and three Channel 
Islands: San Clemente, San Nicolas, and Santa Catalina. Their mainland territory was bounded on the 
north by the Chumash at Topanga Creek, the Serrano at the San Gabriel Mountains in the east, and the 
Juaneño on the south at Aliso Creek (Bean and Smith 1978:538; Kroeber 1976:636). The Gabrielino 
established large, permanent villages in the fertile lowlands along rivers and streams and in sheltered 
areas along the coast, stretching from the foothills of the San Gabriel Mountains to the Pacific Ocean 
(McCawley 1996:113–114). The Gabrielino participated in an extensive exchange network, trading 
between islands and mainland and between coast and interior. This burgeoning trade system was 
facilitated by the use of craft specialists and a standard medium of exchange (usually olivella bead 
currency, although barter was common as well), as well as the regular destruction of valuables in 
ceremonies, maintaining a high demand for these goods (Bean and Smith 1978:547; Kroeber 1925:630; 
McCawley 1996:112–115). 

Historic Overview 
Post-Contact history for the state of California is generally divided into three periods: the Spanish period 
(1769-1822), Mexican period (1822-1848), and American period (1848-present). Although there were 
brief visits by Spanish, Russian, and British explorers from 1529 to 1769, the Spanish period in California 
begins with the establishment in 1769 of a settlement at San Diego. Independence from Spain marks the 
beginning of the Mexican period, and the signing of the Treaty of Guadalupe Hidalgo in 1848, ending the 
Mexican-American War, signals the beginning of the American period when California became a territory 
of the United States. 

LOCAL HISTORY 

War in 1846 between Mexico and the United States precipitated the Battle of Chino, a clash between 
resident Californios and Americans in the San Bernardino area. The Mexican-American War ended with the 
Treaty of Guadalupe Hidalgo in 1848, ushering California into its American Period. 

California officially became a state with the Compromise of 1850, which also designated Utah and New 
Mexico (with present-day Arizona) as U.S. Territories (Waugh 2003). Horticulture and livestock, based 
primarily on cattle as the currency and staple of the rancho system, continued to dominate the southern 
California economy through 1850s. The Gold Rush began in 1848, and with the influx of people seeking 
gold, cattle were no longer desired mainly for their hides but also as a source of meat and other goods. 
During the 1850s cattle boom, rancho vaqueros drove large herds from southern to northern California to 
feed that region’s burgeoning mining and commercial boom. Cattle were at first driven along major trails or 
roads such as the Gila Trail or Southern Overland Trail, then were transported by trains when available. 
The cattle boom ended for southern California as neighbor states and territories drove herds to northern 
California at reduced prices. Operation of the huge ranchos became increasingly difficult, and droughts 
severely reduced their productivity (Cleland 2005:102–103). 

In 1781, a group of 11 Mexican families traveled from Mission San Gabriel Arcángel to establish a 
new pueblo called El Pueblo de la Reyna de Los Angeles (The Pueblo of the Queen of the Angels). 
This settlement consisted of a small group of adobe-brick houses and streets and would eventually be 
known as the Ciudad de Los Angeles (City of Angels), which incorporated on April 4, 1850, only two 
years after the Mexican-American War and five months prior to California achieving statehood. 
Settlement of the Los Angeles region continued in the early American Period. The County of Los Angeles 
was established on February 18, 1850, one of 27 counties established in the months prior to California 
acquiring official statehood in the United States. Many of the ranchos in the area now known as Los 
Angeles County remained intact after the United States took possession of California; however, a severe 
drought in the 1860s resulted in many of the ranchos being sold or otherwise acquired by Americans. 
Most of these ranchos were subdivided into agricultural parcels or towns (Dumke 1944). Nonetheless, 

377



Cultural Resources Survey for the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Pump Station Project Letter Report 

8 

ranching retained its importance, and by the late 1860s, Los Angeles was one of the top dairy production 
centers in the country (Rolle 2003). By 1876, Los Angeles County reportedly had a population of 30,000 
persons (Dumke 1944).  

Los Angeles maintained its role as a regional business center, and the development of citriculture in the 
late 1800s and early 1900s further strengthened this status (Caughey and Caughey 1977). These factors, 
combined with the expansion of port facilities and railroads throughout the region, contributed to the 
impact of the real estate boom of the 1880s on Los Angeles (Caughey and Caughey 1977; Dumke 1944). 

By the late 1800s, government leaders recognized the need for water to sustain the growing population in 
the Los Angeles area. Irish immigrant William Mulholland personified the city’s efforts for a stable water 
supply (Dumke 1944; Nadeau 1997). By 1913, the City of Los Angeles purchased large tracts of land in 
the Owens Valley and Mulholland planned and directed the construction of the 240-mile aqueduct that 
brought the valley’s water to the city (Nadeau 1997). A portion of the aqueduct runs north-south 
approximately 1 mile west of the project area. 

Los Angeles continued to grow in the twentieth century, in part due to the discovery of oil in the area and 
its strategic location as a wartime port. The county’s mild climate and successful economy continued to 
draw new residents in the late 1900s, with much of the county transformed from ranches and farms into 
residential subdivisions surrounding commercial and industrial centers. Hollywood’s development into 
the entertainment capital of the world and southern California’s booming aerospace industry were key 
factors in the county’s growth in the twentieth century. 

The City of Santa Clarita was named for the Santa Clara River, named for St. Clare by the Spanish during 
the 1769 Portola expedition. The first gold discovery in the state of California occurred in Santa Clarita 
on March 9, 1842 by Jose Francisco de Garcia Lopez (City of Santa Clarita 2020). On March 12, 1928, 
the St. Francis Dam gave way, sending 38,000 acre-feet of water rushing through the San Francisquito 
Canyon and the Santa Clarita Valley. Considered the greatest civil- engineering disaster in modern U.S. 
history, it was the nation’s second deadliest dam failure resulting in the deaths of over 400 people and 
millions of dollars in property damage (Jackson and Hundley 2004). The City of Santa Clarita was 
incorporated on December 15, 1987, and was the largest city in the history of California to incorporate 
(City of Santa Clarita 2020). 

METHODS AND RESULTS 

Records Search 
On August 27, 2020, SWCA requested a records search from the South Central Coastal Information 
Center (SCCIC) at California State University, Fullerton. The SCCIC is the California Historical 
Resources Information System (CHRIS) information center for Los Angeles County. The records search 
results were received from SCCIC on September 3, 2020 and included records for all previously 
conducted cultural resources surveys and all previously identified cultural resources within the Project 
area and a 1.6-km (0.5-mile) buffer zone. Information regarding previously identified cultural resources 
includes site type, eligibility for listing in the CHR and NRHP, and location. In addition to the records 
search, SWCA researched maps and other readily available information to identify potential cultural 
resources and the sensitivity for cultural reousrces within the Project area. 

Records Search Results 
Results of the records search indicate that 61 previous cultural resource investigations have been 
conducted within a 0.5-mile radius of the Project area. Of these studies, six investigation included a 
portion of the current Project area (Figure 4). Details pertaining to these investigations are listed below in 
Table 1. 

378



Cultural Resources Survey for the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Pump Station Project Letter Report 

9 

Table 1. Previous Cultural Resources Studies within 0.5 mile of the Project area 

Report No. Author/Company Year Study Title Relationship to Project 
area 

LA-00054 Leonard, Nelson N. III/ 
University of California, 
Los Angeles 
Archaeological Survey 

1974 Archaeological Resources of 
the Proposed Castaic Conduit 
System 

Outside (within 0.5 mile) 

LA-00463 McIntrye, Michael J./ 
Northridge Archaeological 
Research Center, CSUN 

1979 Cultural Resource 
Reconnaissance of a Proposed 
Zone Change 6426 Near 
Saugus, Upper Santa Clara 
River Valley, Los Angeles 
County, California 

Outside (within 0.5 mile) 

LA-00508 Foster, John M./ 
Northridge Archaeological 
Research Center, CSUN 

1979 Cultural Resource 
Reconnaissance of a Proposed 
Zone Change 6427 Near 
Saugus, Upper Santa Clara 
River Valley, Los Angeles 
County, Calif. 

Outside (within 0.5 mile) 

LA-00642 Anonymous/ Sikand 
Engineering Associates 

1979 Preliminary Draft Environmental 
Impact Report for Auto 
Expansion Center, Valencia, 
California. Tentative Parcel Map 
11614 

Outside (within 0.5 mile) 

LA-01171 Tartaglia, Louis J./ 
Tartaglia Archaeological 
Consulting 

1982 Cultural Resource Survey 
Tentative Tract No. 34989, 
Located Ne of the Intersection 
of Valencia Boulevard and the 
Golden State Freeway 

Outside (within 0.5 mile) 

LA-01180 Hawthorne, Janice G./ 
NARC 

1981 Cultural Resource Survey for 
Zc-80-065 Valencia, Los 
Angeles, California 

Outside (within 0.5 mile) 

LA-01235 Colby, Susan M./ 
University of California, 
Los Angeles 
Archaeological Survey 

1983 An Archaeological Resource 
Survey and Impact Assessment 
of a 5+ Acre Parcel in Valencia, 
Los Angeles County, California 

Outside (within 0.5 mile) 

LA-01266 Tartaglia, Louis J./ 1983 Cultural Resource Survey of 
Tentative Tract No. 34989 

Outside (within 0.5 mile) 

LA-01317 Tartaglia, Louis J./ 1983 Preliminary Archaeological 
Reconnaissance San 
Francisquito Canyon 

Outside (within 0.5 mile) 

LA-01342 Tartaglia, Louis J./ 1984 Cultural Resources Report San 
Francisquito Canyon 

Outside (within 0.5 mile) 

LA-01419 Romani, John F./ Caltrans 1984 Negative Archaeological Survey 
Report: Additional Ramps to I-5 
Between Magic Mountain 
Parkway and Henry Mayo Drive 
Interchanges, Los Angeles 
County, Ca 

Outside (within 0.5 mile) 

LA-01447 Tartaglia, Louis J./ 1985 Cultural Resource Survey 
Report San Francisquito 
Canyon 

Outside (within 0.5 mile) 

379



Cultural Resources Survey for the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Pump Station Project Letter Report 

10 

Report No. Author/Company Year Study Title Relationship to Project 
area 

LA-02031 McIntyre, Michael J./ 
Northridge Archaeological 
Research Center, CSUN 

1977 Assessment of the Impact on 
Cultural Resources by the 
Proposed Development of the 
Equestrian Estates (W.O. 1020-
83g), Valencia 

Outside (within 0.5 mile) 

LA-02106 Tartaglia, Louis J./ 
Tartaglia Archaeological 
Consulting 

1989 Cultural Resources 
Archaeological Survey 
Tentative Tract No. 44831 

Outside (within 0.5 mile) 

LA-02109 Tartaglia, Louis J./ 
Tartaglia Archaeological 
Consulting 

1989 Addendum Tentative Parcel 
Map No. 44356 Cultural 
Resources Archaeological 
Survey Proposed Zone Change 
6426 Near Saugus, Upper 
Santa Clara River Valley, Los 
Angeles County, California 

Outside (within 0.5 mile) 

LA-02450 Tartaglia, Louis J./ 
Tartaglia, Louis James 

1991 Cultural Resources 
Archaeological Survey - I-5 
Freeway and Valencia Blvd., 
Valencia, California 

Outside (within 0.5 mile) 

LA-02477 Whitney-Desautels, Nancy 
A./ Scientific Resource 
Surveys, Inc. 

1989 Archaeological Assessment 
Reclaimed Water Distribution 
System Los Angeles County, 
California Preliminary Report 

Within 

LA-02503 Romani, John F., Roberta 
S. Greenwood, Portia Lee,
and Gwen Romani/
Greenwood and
Associates; Parsons,
Brinckerhofff, Quade &
Douglas, Inc.

1992 Historic Property Survey Report 
& Archaeological Survey Report 
& Historic Architectural Survey 
Report for the Route 126 
Location Study (easterly 
Extension) From I-5 to SR-14, 
Santa Clarita Valley, Los 
Angeles County, California 07-
la-126-5.8/12.7. Final 

Outside (within 0.5 mile) 

LA-02637 Singer, Clay A., John E. 
Atwood, and Shelley M. 
Gomes/ C.A. Singer & 
Associates, Inc. 

1992 Cultural Resources Survey and 
Impact Assessment for the 
Valencia Water Reclamation 
Plant Stage Iv Solids 
Processing Facilities Near the 
City of Santa Clarita, Los 
Angeles County, California 

Outside (within 0.5 mile) 

LA-02681 Wessel, Richard L./ NARC 1979 Environmental Impact 
Statement Magic Mountain 
Resort Zone Case Number 
6089 (5) 

Outside (within 0.5 mile) 

LA-02950 Anonymous/ Peak & 
Associates, Inc. 

1992 Consolidated Report: Cultural 
Resource Studies for the 
Proposed Pacific Pipeline 
Project 

Outside (within 0.5 mile) 

LA-02951 Gibson, Robert O./ 
Consulting Archaeologist 

1993 Results of Archaeological 
Records Review for the Pacific 
Pipeline Project Emidio Lateral 
Pipeline Kern and Los Angeles 
Counties, Ca 

Outside (within 0.5 mile) 

380



Cultural Resources Survey for the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Pump Station Project Letter Report 

11 

Report No. Author/Company Year Study Title Relationship to Project 
area 

LA-02987 Woods, Clyde M., Andrew 
York, Rebecca Apple, 
Tirzo Gonzalez, Stephen 
Van Wormer, Tom 
Demere, and James H. 
Cleland/ Dames & Moore 

1987 Bicep Transmission Project 
Magunden to Vincent/pardee 
Alternative Corridor Study 
Archaeology, Ethnology, History 
and Paleontology Technical 
Reports (draft) 

Outside (within 0.5 mile) 

LA-02996 Valentine-Maki, Mary/ 
Fugro McClelland (West), 
Inc. 

1993 Cultural Resources Survey for 
the Proposed Santa Clara River 
Horse and Bike Trail Santa 
Clarita, Los Angeles County, 
California 

Within 

LA-03135 Whitley, David S. and 
Joseph M. Simon/ W & S 
Consultants 

1994 Phase 1 Archaeological Survey 
and Cultural Resources 
Assessment for the Southriver 
Project area, Santa Clarita, Los 
Angeles County, California 

Outside (within 0.5 mile) 

LA-03154 Whitley, David S. and 
Joseph M. Simon/ W & S 
Consultants 

1994 Phase 1 Archaeological Survey 
and Cultural Resources 
Assessment for the Ranch 
Road-south Project area, Santa 
Clarita, Los Angeles County, 
California 

Outside (within 0.5 mile) 

LA-03289 Davis, Gene/ Dames & 
Moore 

1990 Mobil M-70 Pipeline 
Replacement Project Cultural 
Resource Survey Report for 
Mobil Corporation 

Outside (within 0.5 mile) 

LA-03297 Maxon, Patrick O./ RMW 
Paleo Associates, Inc. 

1998 Archaeological Monitoring for 
the 184.8 Acre Woodlands, 
Valencia Development, 
Tentative Tract Number 44374, 
Los Angeles County, Santa 
Clarita, California Tentative 
Tract Number 44374, Los 
Angeles County, Santa Clarita, 
California 

Outside (within 0.5 mile) 

LA-03397 Whitley, David S. and 
Joseph M. Simon/ W & S 
Consultants 

1994 Intensive Phase 1 
Archaeological Survey of the 
West Ranch Project area, Los 
Angeles County, California 

Outside (within 0.5 mile) 

LA-03499 Eisentraut, Phyllisa/ 
Dames & Moore 

1994 Metropolitan Water District 
West Valley Project Cultural 
Resources Technical Report 

Outside (within 0.5 mile) 

LA-03690 Wlodarski, Robert J./ 
Historical, Environmental, 
Archaeological, Research, 
Team 

1997 Cultural Resources Evaluation 
City of Santa Clarita Circulation 
Element EIR 

Outside (within 0.5 mile) 

LA-03796 / BioSystems Analysis, Inc. 1989 Technical Report of Cultural 
Resources Studies for the 
Proposed WTG-west, Inc. Los 
Angeles to San Francisco and 
Sacramento, California Fiber 
Optic Cable Project 

Outside (within 0.5 mile) 

381



Cultural Resources Survey for the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Pump Station Project Letter Report 

12 

Report No. Author/Company Year Study Title Relationship to Project 
area 

LA-03895 Pence, Robert L./ 1977 Archaeological Assessment of 
the Proposed Oxnard LNG 
Pipeline Route From La Vista, 
Ventura County, to Quiqley, Los 
Angeles County 

Outside (within 0.5 mile) 

LA-03904 Anonymous/ W & S 
Consultants 

1995 Phase I Archaeological Survey 
and Cultural Resources 
Basement for the Parcel Map 
19091 North Rover Study Area, 
Los Angeles County, California 

Outside (within 0.5 mile) 

LA-03915 Unknown/ W & S 
Consultants 

1996 Phase I Archaeological Survey 
and Cultural Resources 
Assessment of the North 
Valencia Annexation Project 
Study Area, Los Angeles 
County, California 

Outside (within 0.5 mile) 

LA-03933 McLean, Deborah K./ LSA 
Associates, Inc. 

1998 Archaeological Assessment for 
Pacific Bell Mobile Services 
Telecommunications Facility 
La310-03, 24901 

Outside (within 0.5 mile) 

LA-04008 Unknown/ Science 
Applications International 
Corporation 

1996 Cultural Resources 
Investigation Pacific Pipeline 
Emidio Route 

Outside (within 0.5 mile) 

LA-05141 Iverson, Gary/ Caltrans 
District 7 

1998 Negative Archaeological Survey 
Report:17600k 

Outside (within 0.5 mile) 

LA-05526 White, Robert S./ 
Archaeological Associates, 
Ltd. 

1999 Archaeological and 
Paleontological Assessments of 
the Magic Mountain Parkway 
Project (from Tourney Road to 
0.9 Kilometers West of McBean 
Parkway), Santa Clarita, Los 
Angeles County 

Outside (within 0.5 mile) 

LA-05845 Anonymous/ W & S 
Consultants 

1998 Phase I Archaeological Survey 
of the Westridge Off-site 
Drainage Facility Study Area, 
Los Angeles County, California 

Outside (within 0.5 mile) 

LA-05849 Anonymous/ W & S 
Consultants 

1998 Phase I Archaeological Survey 
of the Westridge Project Study 
Area, Los Angeles County, 
California 

Outside (within 0.5 mile) 

LA-05851 Chandler, Evelyn N., Cary 
D. Cotterman, Brenda D.
Smith, and Valerie M. Van
Hemelryck/ Tetra Tech,
Inc.

2000 Cultural Resources Inventory 
for Improvements to Interstate 5 
and Magic Mountain Parkway 
Interchange Los Angeles 
County, California 

Within 

LA-05852 Duke, Curt/ LSA 
Associates, Inc. 

2002 Cultural Resource Assessment 
AT&T Wireless Services Facility 
No. D366d Los Angeles 
County, California 

Outside (within 0.5 mile) 

LA-06861 Maki, Mary K./ Conejo 
Archaeological Consultants 

2002 Record Search Results and 
Recommendations for the M-70 
Pipeline Horizontal Directional 
Drill Project, Santa Clarita, Los 
Angeles County 

Outside (within 0.5 mile) 

382



Cultural Resources Survey for the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Pump Station Project Letter Report 

13 

Report No. Author/Company Year Study Title Relationship to Project 
area 

LA-07889 Schmidt, James J./ 
Compass Rose 
Archaeological, Inc. 

2006 Magic Mountain Parkway & 
Interstate 5 Overhead Facilities 
Relocation Project, Los Angeles 
County 

Outside (within 0.5 mile) 

LA-07986 Harper, Caprice D./ 
BonTerra Consulting 

2006 Cultural Resources Assessment 
for the Castaic Lake Water 
Agency Recycled Water Master 
Plan and the Northwest Spur 
Pipeline, Santa Clarita, Los 
Angeles County, California 

Outside (within 0.5 mile) 

LA-08255 Arrington, Cindy and 
Nancy Sikes/ SWCA 
Environmental 
Consultants, Inc. 

2006 Cultural Resources Final Report 
of Monitoring and Findings for 
the Qwest Network 
Construction Project State of 
California: Volumes I and Ii 

Outside (within 0.5 mile) 

LA-08958 Tsunoda, Koji and Moreno, 
A./ Jones & Stokes 

2007 Archaeological Survey Report 
for Southern California Edison 
Company Saugus-north Oaks 
Fo Cable Project Los Angeles 
County, California (wo#8456-
0639, Jo#6155) 

Within 

LA-09020 Whitley, David S. and 
Joseph M. Simon/ W & S 
Consultants 

2004 Intensive Phase I 
Archaeological Survey of the 
Old Road Study Area, Northern 
Los Angeles County, California 

Outside (within 0.5 mile) 

LA-09022 Whitley, David S., Joseph 
M. Simon, and Robert
Snibley/ W & S
Consultants

2002 Intensive Phase I 
Archaeological Survey of the 
Magic Mountain Entertainment 
Center Project area, Northern 
Los Angeles County, California 

Outside (within 0.5 mile) 

LA-09023 Simon, Joseph M./ W & S 
Consultants 

2004 Intensive Phase I 
Archaeological Survey for the 
Chevron Relocation Project, 
Los Angeles County, California 

Outside (within 0.5 mile) 

LA-09027 Harper, Caprice D./ 
BonTerra Consulting 

2005 Cultural Resource Assessment 
for the Castaic Lake Water 
Agency Recycled Water Master 
Plan and the Northwest Spur 
Pipeline, Santa Clarita, Los 
Angeles County, California 

Outside (within 0.5 mile) 

LA-09860 Gwen Romani/ Compass 
Rose Archaeological, Inc. 

2009 Saugus-Haskell 66 kV 
Deteriorated Pole Replacement 
Project, Los Angeles County, 
CA 

Outside (within 0.5 mile) 

LA-10560 Hunt, Kevin and Richard D. 
Schultz/ SWCA 
Environmental Consultants 

2005 Final Confidential: Cultural 
Resources Study for the Upper 
Santa Clara River Watershed 
Arundo and Tamarisk Removal 
Program Long-term 
Implementation Plan, program 
Environmental Impact 
Report/Environmental 
Assessment, Los Angeles 
County, California 

Within 

383



Cultural Resources Survey for the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Pump Station Project Letter Report 

14 

Report No. Author/Company Year Study Title Relationship to Project 
area 

LA-10578 Fortier, Jana/ ICF Jones & 
Stokes 

2009 TEA21 Rural Roadside 
Inventory: Native American 
Consultation and Ethnographic 
Study Caltrans District 7, 
County of Los Angeles 

Outside (within 0.5 mile) 

LA-11228 Unknown/ Entrix, 
Incorporated 

2004 Environmental Analysis - 
Onshore Component of BHP 
Billiton LNG International Inc. 
Cabrillo Port Project 

Within 

LA-11246 McKenna, Jeanette A./ 
McKenna et al. 

2009 A Class III/Section 106 and 
Phase I CEQA Cultural 
Resources Investigation of the 
Proposed McBean Regional 
Transit Center Park and Ride 
Project area in the City of Santa 
Clarita, Los Angeles County, 
California 

Outside (within 0.5 mile) 

LA-12526 Ehringer, Candace, 
Ramirez, Katherine, and 
Vader, Michael/ ESA 

2013 Santa Clarita Valley Sanitation 
District Chloride TMDL Facilities 
Plan Project, Phase I Cultural 
Resources Assessment 

Outside (within 0.5 mile) 

LA-12662 Simon, Joseph/ W & S 
Consultants 

2014 Intensive Phase I 
Archaeological Survey of VTTM 
53295, Los Angeles County, 
California 

Outside (within 0.5 mile) 

LA-12690 Simon, Joseph/ W & S 
Consultants 

2014 Phase II Archaeological Test 
Excavation and Determination 
of Significance at the Entrada 
Project Site (VTTM 53295) Los 
Angeles County, California 

Outside (within 0.5 mile) 

VN-03153 Ehringer, Candace, 
Ramirez, Katherine, and 
Vader, Michael/ ESA 

2013 Santa Clarita Valley Sanitation 
District Chloride TMDL Facilities 
Plan Project, Phase I Cultural 
Resources Assessment 

Outside (within 0.5 mile) 

The records search also identified 12 previously recorded cultural resources located within 0.5 mile of the 
Project area. Of these resources, none were mapped within portions of the Project area (Figure 5). The 
results are summarized below in Table 2.  

Table 2. Previously Recorded Cultural Resources within 0.5 mile of the Project area 

Primary 
No. Trinomial Temporal 

Affiliation Resource Type Resource 
Description 

Recorded by 
and Year 
Recorded 

Relationship to 
Project area 

P-19-
000823

CA-LAN-
000823 

Prehistoric, 
Protohistoric 

Site 

Village site with burials 

1975 (MD Rosen);  
1989 (MQ Sutton, 
Cal State 
Bakersfield) 

Outside (within 0.5 
mile)  

P-19-
002190

CA-LAN-
002190H 

Historic Site Southern Pacific 
railroad bridge 

1993 (M.Valentine-
Maki, Fugro-
McClelland) 

Outside (within 0.5 
mile)  

384



Cultural Resources Survey for the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Pump Station Project Letter Report 

15 

Primary 
No. Trinomial Temporal 

Affiliation Resource Type Resource 
Description 

Recorded by 
and Year 
Recorded 

Relationship to 
Project area 

P-19-
004830

Historic Site Historic structure 
remains 

2016 (Michael 
Williams, ESA) 

Outside (within 0.5 
mile)  

P-19-
004890

CA-LAN-
004890 

Prehistoric Site Lithic scatter 2018 (Ray Corbett, 
JMA) 

Outside (within 0.5 
mile)  

P-19-
004898

CA-LAN-
004898 

Prehistoric Site Lithic scatter 2019 (Ray Corbett, 
JMA) 

Outside (within 0.5 
mile)  

P-19-
101434

Prehistoric Object, Other Isolate 2018 (Alexander 
New, JMA) 

Outside (within 0.5 
mile)  

P-19-
101440

Prehistoric Object, Other Isolate 2018 (Brandon Lim, 
JMA) 

Outside (within 0.5 
mile)  

P-19-
186541

Historic Object, Site 

Oak of the Golden 
Dream and plaque 

1959 (Philbrook);  
1980 (J. Arbuckle);  
1980 (J. Arbuckle);  
1980 (J. Arbuckle);  
2012 (C. Ehringer, 
ESA);  
2018 (M. Mello, 
AECOM) 

Outside (within 0.5 
mile)  

P-19-
186861

Historic Structure 

Transmission line 

2002 (J. Schmidt, 
Compass Rose);  
2016 (Audry 
Williams, SCE) 

Outside (within 0.5 
mile)  

P-19-
190315

Historic Structure 

Bridge 

2012 (Candace 
Ehringer, ESA);  
2018 (M. Mello, 
AECOM) 

Outside (within 0.5 
mile)  

P-19-
192633

Historic Building, Structure Valencia Water 
Reclamation Plant 

2018 (M. Mello, 
AECOM) 

Outside (within 0.5 
mile)  

P-19-
192643

Historic Structure Bridge 2018 (M. Mello, 
AECOM) 

Outside (within 0.5 
mile)  

Native American Outreach 
On September 22, 2021, SWCA requested a search of the Sacred Lands File from the Native American 
Heritage Commission (NAHC). SWCA received a response from the NAHC dated October 18, 2021, 
stating that the results of the Sacred Lands File search indicate that Native American cultural resources 
are known in the immediate vicinity of the APE. The NAHC indicated that the Fernandeno Tatavian 
Band of Mission Indians may have knowledge of cultural resources in the APE. Under Assembly Bill 52, 
the CEQA the lead agency is responsible for any Native American outreach and consultation that could 
be required for a project. 

Field Methods 
SWCA archaeologist Ms. Matheu conducted an intensive pedestrian survey of the Project Area on August 
27, 2021. The intensive-level survey consisted of systematic surface inspection of all areas with transects 
walked at 15-m intervals or less to ensure that any surface-exposed artifacts and sites could be identified. 
SWCA examined the ground surface for the presence of prehistoric artifacts (e.g., flaked stone tools, 
tool-making debris, stone milling tools); historic artifacts (e.g., metal, glass, ceramics); sediment 
discoloration that might indicate the presence of a cultural midden, roads and trails; and depressions and 
other features that might indicate the former presence of structures or buildings (e.g., post holes, 
foundations). 

385



Cultural Resources Survey for the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Pump Station Project Letter Report 

16 

The Project area was photographed using a digital camera and resource data were recorded with a 
handheld tablet with a submeter-accurate global positioning system (GPS) antenna using the Collector 
for ArcGIS application. All field notes, photographs, and records related to the current study are on file 
at the SWCA Pasadena, California, office.  

Field Results 

SWCA archaeologists conducted an intensive pedestrian survey of the 3.5 acre pump station footprint 
Project area (Figure 6). Ground visibility within the Project area was excellent at approximately 76 to 
100 percent visibility (Figure 7). Most of the Project area was comprised of an asphalt parking lot, 
hindering inspection of sediments underneath; however, the northern edge of the Project area was 
covered in gravel and the western portion contained exposed earth heavily overgrown with desert shrubs 
and grasses (Figure 8 and Figure 9). Sediment in these areas consisted of a compact, brown sandy silt, 
with granitic inclusions and sub-rounded to sub-angular gravels, which are likely consistent with what 
exists underneath the asphalt parking lot. No cultural resources were observed during the survey. 

CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

SWCA conducted a CHRIS records search and of an intensive pedestrian survey within the Project area. 
No cultural resources were identified within the Project site, the surface of which is mostly paved or 
otherwise obscured. The Project site has clearly been subject to past disturbance, including extensive 
grading/leveling and paving, such that any surface manifestations of archaeological resources that might 
once have been present have undoubtedly been destroyed.  SWCA concludes that the likelihood of 
encountering cultural resources during Project construction is low, and no further work is recommended. 

That said, the unanticipated discovery of cultural resources, including buried artifacts, remains a 
possibility. In the event that cultural resources are exposed during construction, work in the immediate 
vicinity of the find must stop until a qualified archaeologist can evaluate the significance of the find. 
Construction activities may continue in other areas. If the discovery is evaluated as significant under 
CEQA, additional work, such as testing or data recovery, may be warranted.  

The discovery of human remains is always a possibility during ground disturbances. State of California 
Health and Safety Code Section 7050.5 states that no further disturbance shall occur until the county 
coroner has made a determination of origin and disposition pursuant to PRC Section 5097.98. The 
county coroner must be notified of the find immediately. If the human remains are determined to be 
prehistoric, the coroner will notify the NAHC, which will determine and notify a Most Likely 
Descendant (MLD). The MLD shall complete the inspection of the site within 24 hours of notification 
and may recommend scientific removal and nondestructive analysis of human remains and items 
associated with Native American burials. 

Sincerely, 

Matthew Behrend, M.A., RPA Michelle Courtney, M.A 
Cultural Resources Project Manager Cultural Resources Assistant Project Manager 

386



Cultural Resources Survey for the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Pump Station Project Letter Report 

17 

REFERENCES CITED 

Bean, Lowell John and Charles R. Smith 

1978 Gabrielino. In the Handbook of North American Indians, Volume 8, California. Edited by 
R.F. Heizer, pp. 538-549. Smithsonian Institution, Washington D.C. 

Caughey, John, and LaRee Caughey 
1977 Los Angeles: Biography of a City. Berkeley: University of California Press. 

City of Santa Clarita 

2020 City of Santa Clarita Community Profile. Available at: https://www.santa-
clarita.com/home/showdocument?id=2132. Accessed August 31, 2020. 

Cleland, Robert Glass 

2005 The Cattle on a Thousand Hills: Southern California, 1850-80. 2d ed. Sixth printing. San 
Marino, California: The Huntington Library. 

Dumke, Glenn S. 

1944 The Boom of the Eighties in Southern California. San Marino, California: Huntington Library 
Publications. 

Godfrey, Anthony 

2005 The Ever-Changing View: A History of the National Forests in California. R5-FR-004. US 
Department of Agriculture, Forest Service. 

Governor’s Office of Planning and Research 

1998 CEQA, California Environmental Quality Act Statutes and Guidelines. Governor’s Office of 
Planning and Research, Sacramento, California. http://ceres.ca.gov/ceqa/rev/approval.html. 

Jackson, Donald C. and Norris Hundley, Jr. 

2004 Privilege and Responsibility: William Mulholland and the St. Francis Disaster. California 
History 82(3): 8-47. 

King, Chester, and Thomas C. Blackburn 

1978 Tataviam. In California, edited by R. F. Heizer, pp. 535-537. Handbook of North American 
Indians, Vol. 8, William C. Sturtevant, general editor. Washington, D.C.: Smithsonian 
Institution. 

Kroeber, Alfred J. 

1976 Handbook of the Indians of California. Reprint originally published in 1925. Bureau of 
American Ethnology Bulletin 78. Dover Publications, Inc., New York, New York. 

McCawley, William 

1996 The First Angelinos: The Gabrielino Indians of Los Angeles. Malki Museum/Ballena Press 
Cooperative Publication, Banning or Novato, California. 

Mithun, Marianne 

1999 The Languages of Native North America. New York: Cambridge University Press. 

387



Cultural Resources Survey for the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Pump Station Project Letter Report 

18 

Moratto, M. J. 

1984 California Archaeology. Coyote Press, Salinas, California. 

Mountains Recreation & Conservation Authority 

2020 Plants & Wildlife. Available at: https://mrca.ca.gov/plants-wildlife/. Accessed August 31, 
2020. 

Nadeau, Remi 
1997 The Water Seekers. Rev. 4th ed. Santa Barbara, California: Crest Publishers. 

National Park Service (NPS) 

1983 Archeology and Historic Preservation; Secretary of the Interior’s Standards and Guidelines. 
Federal Register 48(190):44716–44742. 

2011 Chapter 2: Resource Descriptions. In San Gabriel Watershed and Mountains Special 
Resources Study and Environmental Assessment, pp. 34-32. Available at: 
http://parkplanning.nps.gov/document.cfm?documentID=43639. Accessed August 31, 2020. 

Waugh, John C. 

2003 On the Brink of Civil War: The Compromise of 1850 and How It Changed the Course of 
American History. Wilmington, Delaware: Scholarly Resources, Inc. 

388



ATTACHMENT A 

Figures 

389



 

A-1 

 
Figure 1. Project vicinity map. 

390



 

A-2 

 
Figure 2. Project location map. 

391



 

A-3 

 
Figure 3. Project area map. 

392



 

A-4 

 
Figure 4. Record Search Results (Reports). 

393



 

A-5 

 
Figure 5. Records Search Results (Resources) 

394



 

A-6 

 
Figure 6. Field Results Map 

395



 

A-7 

 
Figure 7. Project overview, view facing north-northwest. 

 
Figure 8. Project overview, view facing south 

396



 

A-8 

  
Figure 9. Project overview, view facing southwest. 

397



Addendum to Mission Village EIR  
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project APPENDICES  

 
 

APPENDIX E: PALEONTOLOGICAL RESOURCES ASSESSMENT 
FOR BACKCOUNTRY PUMP STATION 

 

 

 

398



 

 

 

Paleontological Resources 
Assessment for the  
Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency 
Backcountry Pump Station Project, 
City of Santa Clarita,  
Los Angeles County, California 
NOVEMBER 2022 

PREPARED FOR 

Woodard & Curran 
 

 

PREPARED BY 

SWCA Environmental Consultants 
 

 

399



 

 

  

400



PALEONTOLOGICAL RESOURCES ASSESSMENT FOR THE 
SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY BACKCOUNTRY 

PUMP STATION PROJECT,  
CITY OF SANTA CLARITA,  

LOS ANGELES COUNTY, CALIFORNIA 

Prepared for 

Woodard & Curran 
24422 Avenida de la Carlota 

Suite 180 
Laguna Hills, California 92653 

Attn: Jennifer Ziv 

Prepared by 

Mathew Carson, M.S., Lead Paleontologist 
and 

Russell Shapiro, Ph.D., Principal Investigator 
SWCA Environmental Consultants 
320 North Halstead Street, Suite 120 

Pasadena, California 91107 
(626) 240-0587
www.swca.com

SWCA Project No. 62466 

November 2022 

401



402



Paleontological Resources Assessment for the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Backcountry Pump Station 
Project, City of Santa Clarita, Los Angeles County, California 

i 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
Purpose and Scope: Woodard & Curran retained SWCA Environmental Consultants (SWCA) to conduct 
a paleontological resources assessment for the proposed Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Backcountry 
Pump Station Project (project), located in the city of Santa Clarita, Los Angeles County, California. The 
following study was conducted to analyze any potential impacts the project may have on paleontological 
resources located in the project site to comply with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), 
local regulations, and best practices in paleontological mitigation. This report documents the methods and 
results of a paleontological resources assessment, which included a review of geologic maps, scientific 
literature, and confidential fossil locality records from the Natural History Museum of Los Angeles 
County (NHMLA), which were used to evaluate the likelihood of paleontological resources within the 
project site. 

Dates of Investigation: SWCA received the results of a museum records search from the NHMLA on 
August 15, 2020.   

Summary of Findings: Geologic mapping by Yerkes and Campbell (1995) at a scale of 
1:24,000 indicates that the project area is mapped at the surface as Holocene to late Pleistocene younger 
alluvium (Qal). Although not mapped at the surface within the project area, late Pleistocene terrace 
deposits (Qt) and Pleistocene Saugus Formation (Qs) likely underlie the younger alluvium at depth based 
on their proximity to the project site. The NHMLA records search indicated the museum has several 
localities in undifferentiated Pleistocene-aged sediments and in Pleistocene Saugus Formation within 
vicinity of the project site; however, there are no museum records of fossil localities within the project 
site. A review of the scientific literature provided context for these and other fossil discoveries. Analysis 
of these data allowed the assignment of paleontological sensitivity using the Society of Vertebrate 
Paleontology paleontological potential classes, such that younger alluvium has a Low to High 
paleontological sensitivity, increasing with depth (the transition from Low to High is unknown but may 
be as shallow as 10 feet below ground surface); the underlying terrace deposits and Saugus Formation 
both have a High paleontological sensitivity.  

Conclusions and Recommendations: Ground-disturbing activities would impact sediments at 15 feet 
below ground surface during construction of the pump building and 6 feet below ground surface during 
construction of the 16-inch and 24-inch distribution pipelines. Earthwork activities greater than or equal 
to 10 feet below ground surface would impact sediments of High paleontological sensitivity. Because 
there is High potential for the subsurficial geologic units to preserve fossils, this report contains measures 
designed to reduce potential impacts to less than significant levels. These measures include the following: 
retaining a qualified paleontologist to prepare and implement a Paleontological Monitoring and 
Mitigation Program that includes full-time paleontological monitoring of all excavations that meet or 
exceed 10 feet in depth in previously undisturbed sediments, implementing a Worker Environmental 
Awareness Program, and the salvage and museum curation of any significant fossils encountered during 
project activities. Regulatory compliance and adherence to these measures will reduce impacts of the 
project to paleontological resources to a less-than-significant level as required by CEQA. 

Disposition of Data: This report will be on file with Woodard & Curran and SWCA’s Pasadena office. 

403



Paleontological Resources Assessment for the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Backcountry Pump Station 
Project, City of Santa Clarita, Los Angeles County, California 

ii 

This page intentionally left blank. 

 
  

404



Paleontological Resources Assessment for the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Backcountry Pump Station 
Project, City of Santa Clarita, Los Angeles County, California 

iii 

CONTENTS 
Executive Summary ..................................................................................................................................... i 
1 Introduction .......................................................................................................................................... 1 

2 Project Description and Location ....................................................................................................... 1 
2.1 Construction Activities ................................................................................................................. 5 

3 Professional Standards ......................................................................................................................... 5 

4 Regulatory Setting ................................................................................................................................ 6 
4.1 State Regulations .......................................................................................................................... 7 

4.1.1 California Environmental Quality Act ................................................................................ 7 
4.1.2 Public Resources Code Section 5097.5 .............................................................................. 7 

4.2 Local Regulations ......................................................................................................................... 7 
4.2.1 City of Santa Clarita General Plan ...................................................................................... 7 

5 Methods ................................................................................................................................................. 8 
5.1 Existing Data Analysis ................................................................................................................. 8 
5.2 Paleontological Potential Classification ....................................................................................... 8 

6 Results.................................................................................................................................................... 9 
6.1 Regional Geology ......................................................................................................................... 9 
6.2 Local Geology and Paleontology ................................................................................................ 10 

6.2.1 Saugus Formation (Qs) ..................................................................................................... 10 
6.2.2 Terrace Deposits (Qt) ........................................................................................................ 12 
6.2.3 Younger Alluvium (Qal) ................................................................................................... 12 

6.3 Museum Records Search ............................................................................................................ 12 
6.4 Paleontological Potential of the Local Geology ......................................................................... 13 

7 Impact Assessment ............................................................................................................................. 13 

8 Conclusions and Recommendations ................................................................................................. 15 

9 Literature Cited .................................................................................................................................. 17 
 
 

Appendices 

Appendix A. Natural History Museum of Los Angeles County Paleontological Records Search 
(CONFIDENTIAL) 

 
  

405



Paleontological Resources Assessment for the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Backcountry Pump Station 
Project, City of Santa Clarita, Los Angeles County, California 

iv 

Figures 

Figure 1. Project vicinity within Los Angeles County. ................................................................................. 2 
Figure 2. Project location and aerial view. .................................................................................................... 3 
Figure 3. Project site plotted on the USGS Newhall, California, 7.5-minute topographic quadrangle. ....... 4 
Figure 4. Geologic map of the project site and vicinity. ............................................................................. 11 
Figure 5. Paleontological sensitivity of the geologic units underlying the project site............................... 14 

Tables 
Table 1. NHMLA Fossil Localities near the Project Site ........................................................................... 13 

406



Paleontological Resources Assessment for the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Backcountry Pump Station 
Project, City of Santa Clarita, Los Angeles County, California 

1 

1 INTRODUCTION 
Woodard & Curran retained SWCA Environmental Consultants (SWCA) to conduct a paleontological 
resources assessment for the proposed Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency (SCV Water) Backcountry 
Pump Station Project (project), located in the city of Santa Clarita, Los Angeles County, California 
(Figure 1). The following study was conducted to analyze any potential impacts the project may have on 
paleontological resources located in the project site to comply with the California Environmental Quality 
Act (CEQA), local regulations, and best practices in paleontological mitigation (Murphey et al. 2019). 
This report documents the methods and results of a paleontological resources assessment, which included 
a review of geologic maps, scientific literature, and confidential fossil locality records from the Natural 
History Museum of Los Angeles County (NHMLA), which were used to evaluate the likelihood of 
paleontological resources within the project site. 

SWCA Lead Paleontologist Mathew Carson, M.S., conducted the paleontological resources assessment 
presented herein and authored this report. SWCA Paleontological Principal Investigator Russell Shapiro, 
Ph.D., provided technical review of the report. Natural Resources Director Heather Huerta, M.S., served 
as project manager and provided additional quality assurance/quality control. Figures were generated by 
SWCA Geographic Information System (GIS) Specialists Katie Bonser, B.S., and Marty Kooistra, M.A. 
Copies of the report are on file with SWCA’s Pasadena office. 

2 PROJECT DESCRIPTION AND LOCATION 
The proposed project consists of the Backcountry Pump Station and associated V-9 Turn-out and 
distribution pipelines in Magic Mountain Parkway. The Backcountry Pump Station Project would be 
located within the incorporated boundaries of the city of Santa Clarita, north of Magic Mountain 
Parkway, south of the Santa Clara River, approximately 0.5 mile east of Interstate 5 (Figure 2). The 
Backcountry Pump Station site is approximately 2 miles east/north-east of the site for the Backcountry 
Reservoir. The existing Magic Mountain Pipeline follows Magic Mountain Parkway and passes partially 
through the pump station site. The project area is in Township 4 North, Range 17 West, as depicted on 
the U.S. Geological Survey (USGS) Newhall, California, 7.5-minute topographic quadrangle (Figure 3). 

The pump station site would include a pump building, flow control and pressure reducing station, 
emergency backup generator, fuel tank, and electrical transformer pad. The pump building would house 
the required mechanical and electrical equipment and would space for up to four 450 horsepower pumps.  
The overall dimension of the pump station site is approximately 268 feet by 140 feet. The pump building 
would be constructed with concrete masonry unit (CMU) block walls, with dimensions of approximately 
100 feet by 66 feet, for a total footprint of approximately 6,600 square feet.  

The access road and area surrounding the pump station would be paved with asphalt or concrete, and 
designed consistent with fire code, including, a minimum of 25 feet of clearance provided around the 
pump station building.  

A diesel backup generator would be installed in a generator room within the pump building. Fuel for the 
backup generator would be stored in two tanks (one 7,000 gallons and one 300 gallons). The fuel tanks 
would be installed within containment walls and would be located outside the pump building. 

The existing entrance gate from Magic Mountain Parkway, which is 26 feet wide, would remain in place 
and could accommodate various vehicles during construction and operation of the pump station. 
Perimeter fencing would be installed around the pump station and lighting at the pump station would be 
minimal. Landscaping, which would surround the property to provide privacy and to soften views of the 
pump station. 

407



Paleontological Resources Assessment for the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Backcountry Pump Station 
Project, City of Santa Clarita, Los Angeles County, California 

2 

Figure 1. Project vicinity within Los Angeles County. 

408



Paleontological Resources Assessment for the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Backcountry Pump Station 
Project, City of Santa Clarita, Los Angeles County, California 

3 

Figure 2. Project location and aerial view. 

409



Paleontological Resources Assessment for the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Backcountry Pump Station 
Project, City of Santa Clarita, Los Angeles County, California 

4 

Figure 3. Project site plotted on the USGS Newhall, California, 7.5-minute topographic quadrangle. 

410



Paleontological Resources Assessment for the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Backcountry Pump Station 
Project, City of Santa Clarita, Los Angeles County, California 

5 

The proposed project also includes a turnout (V-9 Turnout Facility) that would be located at the 
Backcountry Pump Station site at the 42-inch discharging pipe. The V-9 turnout would include pressure 
and flow control valves, as well as a flow meter. From the V-9 Turnout facility two distribution pipelines 
would be constructed in Magic Mountain Parkway to tie into existing distribution mains. Specifically, a 
16-inch distribution pipeline would extend approximately 1,920 feet in Magic Mountain Parkway to tie 
into the existing 16-inch main in Tourney Road to serve Zone 1, and a 24-inch distribution pipeline would 
extend approximately 1,4870 feet in Magic Mountain Parkway to tie into the existing 16-inch main in 
Wayne Mills Place to serve Zone IIA-N.

2.1 Construction Activities 
Construction of the pump station would involve site preparation, grading, structural improvements, 
paving, and electrical work. Minimal grading would be required as the site is relatively flat. Excavation 
for the pump station would be to a maximum depth of 15 feet below ground surface. Construction staging 
would occur on the proposed pump station site, and would require storage of equipment, construction 
materials, and stockpiled soil. Construction activities would be restricted to the disturbed site; areas of 
adjacent vegetation would be avoided. There is also potential for landscaping improvements and work to 
improve driveway access to Magic Mountain Parkway in the public right-of-way. 

Construction of the V-9 turnout would be by open cut trenching. To connect the pump station to the 
existing 42-inch water transmission pipeline (Magic Mountain Pipeline), some work may be required in 
public right-of-way in Magic Mountain Parkway. Construction of the 16-inch and 24-inch distribution 
pipelines in Magic Mountain Parkway would be completed by open cut trenching. The trench would have 
maximum depth of 6 feet below ground surface and width of 4 feet (2 feet on either side). All 
construction would take place within the Magic Mountain Parkway right-of-way. Construction staging for 
would be located at the pump station site. 

It is anticipated that in order to make proposed connections to the existing Magic Mountain Pipeline, 
dewatering and discharge into local storm drains along Magic Mountain Parkway would be required. 
Discharges into the storm drain would require a permit from County of Los Angeles Department of 
Public Works (LACDPW) with pre-approved discharge locations. In addition, coordination with the 
California Department of Fish & Wildlife (CDFW) would be required if significant discharges to the 
Santa Clara River, are required.   

3 PROFESSIONAL STANDARDS 
The Society of Vertebrate Paleontology (SVP) has established standard guidelines that outline 
professional protocols and practices for conducting paleontological resource assessments and surveys, 
monitoring and mitigation, data and fossil recovery, sampling procedures, and specimen preparation, 
identification, analysis, and curation (SVP 1995, 2010). Most practicing professional vertebrate 
paleontologists adhere closely to the SVP’s assessment, mitigation, and monitoring requirements as 
specifically provided in its standard guidelines. Most state regulatory agencies with paleontological laws, 
ordinances, regulations, and standards accept and use the professional standards set forth by the SVP. As 
defined by the SVP (2010:11), significant paleontological resources are: 

fossils and fossiliferous deposits, here defined as consisting of identifiable vertebrate 
fossils, large or small, uncommon invertebrate, plant, and trace fossils, and other data that 
provide taphonomic, taxonomic, phylogenetic, paleoecologic, stratigraphic, and/or 
biochronologic information. Paleontological resources are considered to be older than 

411



Paleontological Resources Assessment for the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Backcountry Pump Station 
Project, City of Santa Clarita, Los Angeles County, California 

6 

recorded human history and/or older than middle Holocene (i.e., older than about 
5,000 radiocarbon years). 

Numerous paleontological studies have developed criteria for the assessment of significance for fossil 
discoveries (e.g., Eisentraut and Cooper 2002; Murphey et al. 2019; Scott and Springer 2003). In general, 
these studies assess fossils as significant if one or more of the following criteria apply: 

1. The fossils provide information on the evolutionary relationships and developmental trends
among organisms, living or extinct;

2. The fossils provide data useful in determining the age(s) of the rock unit or sedimentary stratum,
including data important in determining the depositional history of the region and the timing of
geologic events therein;

3. The fossils provide data regarding the development of biological communities or interaction
between paleobotanical and paleozoological biotas;

4. The fossils demonstrate unusual or spectacular circumstances in the history of life; or

5. The fossils are in short supply and/or are in danger of being depleted or destroyed by the
elements, vandalism, or commercial exploitation, and are not found in other geographic locations.

A geologic unit known to contain significant fossils is considered sensitive to adverse impacts if there is a 
high probability that earth-moving or ground-disturbing activities in that rock unit would either disturb or 
destroy fossil remains, directly or indirectly. This definition of sensitivity differs fundamentally from the 
definition for archaeological resources as follows: 

It is extremely important to distinguish between archaeological and paleontological 
(fossil) resource sites when defining the sensitivity of rock units. The boundaries of 
archaeological sites define the areal extent of the resource. Paleontological sites, 
however, indicate that the containing sedimentary rock unit or formation is fossiliferous. 
The limits of the entire rock formation, both areal and stratigraphic, therefore define the 
scope of the paleontological potential in each case. (SVP 1995:23) 

Many archaeological sites contain features visually detectable on the surface. In contrast, fossils are often 
contained within surficial sediments or bedrock and are therefore not observable or detectable unless 
exposed by erosion or human activity. 

In summary, paleontologists cannot know either the quality or quantity of fossils prior to natural erosion 
or human-caused exposure. As a result, even in the absence of fossils on the surface, it is necessary to 
assess the sensitivity of rock units based on their known potential to produce significant fossils elsewhere 
within the same geologic unit (both within and outside the study area), a similar geologic unit, or whether 
the unit in question was deposited in a type of environment known to be favorable for fossil preservation. 
Monitoring by experienced paleontologists greatly increases the probability that fossils will be discovered 
during ground-disturbing activities and that, if these remains are significant, successful mitigation and 
salvage efforts may be undertaken to prevent adverse impacts to these resources. 

4 REGULATORY SETTING 
Paleontological resources are limited, nonrenewable resources of scientific, cultural, and educational 
value and are afforded protection under federal and state laws and regulations. This study satisfies project 
requirements in accordance with state and local regulations and was conducted as a means of 
characterizing the existing conditions consistent with the application of the screening criteria defined in 
Appendix G of the State CEQA Guidelines (as amended December 28, 2018). This analysis also complies 

412



Paleontological Resources Assessment for the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Backcountry Pump Station 
Project, City of Santa Clarita, Los Angeles County, California 

7 

with guidelines and criteria specified by the SVP (2010) and follows best practices in mitigation 
paleontology (Murphey et al. 2019).  

4.1 State Regulations 
4.1.1 California Environmental Quality Act 
CEQA is the principal statute governing environmental review of projects occurring in the state and is 
codified at California Public Resources Code (PRC) Section 21000 et seq. CEQA requires lead agencies 
to determine if a proposed project would have a significant effect on the environment, including 
significant effects on paleontological resources. Guidelines for the Implementation of CEQA, as amended 
December 28, 2018 (Title 14, Chapter 3, California Code of Regulations 15000 et seq.), define 
procedures, types of activities, persons, and public agencies required to comply with CEQA. Section 
VII(f) of the Environmental Checklist (State CEQA Guidelines Appendix G) asks whether a project 
would directly or indirectly destroy a unique paleontological resource and result in impacts to the 
environment. 

4.1.2 Public Resources Code Section 5097.5 
Requirements for paleontological resource management are included in PRC Division 5, Chapter 1.7, 
Section 5097.5, which states the following: 

No person shall knowingly and willfully excavate upon, or remove, destroy, injure or 
deface any historic or prehistoric ruins, burial grounds, archaeological or vertebrate 
paleontological site, including fossilized footprints, inscriptions made by human agency, 
or any other archaeological, paleontological or historical feature, situated on public lands, 
except with the express permission of the public agency having jurisdiction over such 
lands. Violation of this section is a misdemeanor. 

These statutes prohibit the removal, without permission, of any paleontological site or feature from land 
under the jurisdiction of the state or any city, county, district, authority, or public corporation, or any 
agency thereof. Consequently, local agencies are required to comply with PRC Section 5097.5 for their 
own activities, including construction and maintenance, as well as for permit actions (e.g., encroachment 
permits) undertaken by others. PRC Section 5097.5 also establishes the removal of paleontological 
resources as a misdemeanor and requires reasonable mitigation of adverse impacts to paleontological 
resources from developments on public (state, county, city, and district) land. 

4.2 Local Regulations 
4.2.1 City of Santa Clarita General Plan 
The Conservation and Open Space Element of the City of Santa Clarita General Plan (City of Santa 
Clarita 2011) does not explicitly mention paleontological resources. However, Goal CO 5 requires 
“Protection of historical and culturally significant resources that contribute to community identity and a 
sense of history” (City of Santa Clarita 2011). This goal may be applicable to paleontological resources. 

413



Paleontological Resources Assessment for the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Backcountry Pump Station 
Project, City of Santa Clarita, Los Angeles County, California 

8 

5 METHODS 
The following sections present an overview of the methodology used to analyze the potential for 
paleontological resources within the project site. This report conforms to industry standards as developed 
by the SVP (1995, 2010) and best practices in mitigation paleontology (Murphey et al. 2019). 
The purpose of this analysis is to: (1) determine whether any previously recorded fossil localities occur in 
the project site; (2) if so, assess the potential for disturbance of these localities during construction; and 
(3) evaluate the potential of new, or previously unrecorded, fossil localities within the project site.

5.1 Existing Data Analysis 
SWCA conducted an analysis of available existing data pertinent to paleontological resources. This 
analysis included a review of geologic maps, scientific literature, and museum records search results. 
The geologic map used in this analysis includes Yerkes and Campbell (1995) at a scale of 1:24,000 
(GIS from Yerkes and Campbell [1997]). The museum records search was submitted to the NHMLA on 
August 14, 2020. The results of the museum records search were received on August 15, 2020, and are 
incorporated into Section 6 of this report. A copy of the museum records search results from NHMLA is 
also included in a confidential Appendix A. 

5.2 Paleontological Potential Classification 
Paleontological potential is defined as the potential for a geologic unit to produce scientifically significant 
fossils. This is determined by rock type, history of the geologic unit in producing significant fossils, and 
fossil localities recorded from that unit. Paleontological sensitivity is derived from the known fossil data 
collected from the entire geologic unit, not just from a specific survey. In its Standard Procedures for the 
Assessment and Mitigation of Adverse Impacts to Paleontological Resources, the SVP (2010:1–2) defines 
four categories of paleontological sensitivity (potential) for rock units: high, low, undetermined, and no 
potential: 

High Potential. Rock units from which vertebrate or significant invertebrate, plant, or trace fossils 
have been recovered are considered to have a high potential for containing additional significant 
paleontological resources. Rocks units classified as having high potential for producing 
paleontological resources include, but are not limited to, sedimentary formations and some 
volcaniclastic formations (e.g., ash or tephra), and some low-grade metamorphic rocks which contain 
significant paleontological resources anywhere within their geographical extent, and sedimentary rock 
units temporally or lithologically suitable for the preservation of fossils (e.g., middle Holocene and 
older, fine-grained fluvial sandstone, argillaceous and carbonate-rich paleosols, cross-bedded point 
bar sandstone, fine-grained marine sandstone, etc.). Paleontological potential consists of both a) the 
potential for yielding abundant or significant vertebrate fossils or for yielding a few significant 
fossils, large or small, vertebrate, invertebrate, plant, or trace fossils and b) the importance of 
recovered evidence for new and significant taxonomic, phylogenetic, paleoecologic, taphonomic, 
biochronologic, or stratigraphic data. Rock units which contain potentially datable organic remains 
older than late Holocene, including deposits associated with animal nests or middens, and rock units 
which may contain new vertebrate deposits, traces, or trackways are also classified as having high 
potential. 

Low Potential. Reports in the paleontological literature or field surveys by a qualified professional 
paleontologist may allow determination that some rock units have low potential for yielding 
significant fossils. Such rock units will be poorly represented by fossil specimens in institutional 
collections or based on general scientific consensus only preserve fossils in rare circumstances and 

414



Paleontological Resources Assessment for the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Backcountry Pump Station 
Project, City of Santa Clarita, Los Angeles County, California 

9 

the presence of fossils is the exception not the rule, e.g., basalt flows or Recent colluvium. Rock units 
with low potential typically will not require impact mitigation measures to protect fossils. 

Undetermined Potential. Rock units for which little information is available concerning 
their paleontological content, geologic age, and depositional environment are considered to have 
undetermined potential. Further study is necessary to determine if these rock units have high or low 
potential to contain significant paleontological resources. A field survey by a qualified professional 
paleontologist to specifically determine the paleontological resource potential of these rock units is 
required before a paleontological resource impact mitigation program can be developed. In cases 
where no subsurface data are available, paleontological potential can sometimes be determined by 
strategically located excavations into subsurface stratigraphy. 

No Potential. Some rock units have no potential to contain significant paleontological resources, for 
instance high-grade metamorphic rocks (such as gneisses and schists) and plutonic igneous rocks 
(such as granites and diorites). Rock units with no potential require no protection or impact mitigation 
measures relative to paleontological resources. (SVP 2010:1–2) 

6 RESULTS 

6.1 Regional Geology 
The project area is located in the Transverse Ranges geomorphic province, between the Santa Susana 
Mountains to the south and west and the Sierra Pelona Mountains to the north and east. The Transverse 
Ranges consist of a complex series of young, east/west-trending mountain ranges and valleys that 
contradict the general north/south orientation of California’s other mountain ranges, such as the 
Peninsular Ranges and Coastal Ranges (Matti et al. 1992). The Transverse Ranges begin at Point 
Conception in Santa Barbara County and extend in an easterly direction, terminating at the San 
Bernardino Mountains in San Bernardino County. Most of the ranges are bounded to the north and east by 
the San Andreas Fault System, separating the ranges from the Coastal Ranges and Peninsular Ranges. 
Components of the ranges that lie north of the San Andreas Fault are the Tehachapi Mountains and San 
Bernardino Mountains. Most of the tallest peaks are in the eastern portion of the range and include Mount 
San Gorgonio (3,505 meters) and San Bernardino Peak (3,246 meters). The Transverse Ranges are noted 
for being extremely steep. Most of the Transverse Ranges province lies within the California Chaparral 
and Woodlands Ecoregion. The lower elevations are composed of chaparral and scrubland, while the 
higher elevations support conifer forests.  

The Transverse Ranges include a wide variety of geologic units, ranging in age from the Proterozoic to 
the recent (Norris and Webb 1990). In general, a thick sequence of late Mesozoic- and Cenozoic-age 
strata rest uncomfortably on a variety of basement rocks (Namson and Davis 1988). These ranges are 
undergoing active north/south shortening due to faulting (Norris and Webb 1990), which causes a 
significant rise in elevation on an annual scale. These fault-bounded ranges are mainly composed of two 
distinct types of crystalline basement rocks that are separated by thrust faults. The lower type of rocks 
consists of metamorphosed sedimentary and volcanic rocks known as the Pelona Schist. The uppermost 
rock comprises older metamorphic and plutonic rocks that originally formed part of the ancient North 
American continental platform known as Mendenhall Gneiss and gabbro. 

The high rate of uplift has led to a thick package of eroded sediments to accumulate as alluvium along the 
base. Typically, one can differentiate older Pleistocene alluvium (2.8 million years ago to 10,000 years 
ago) from the overlying Holocene alluvium due to the nature of the soil and cements. This alluvium 

415



Paleontological Resources Assessment for the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Backcountry Pump Station 
Project, City of Santa Clarita, Los Angeles County, California 

10 

accumulated as fans, river deposits, and lakes. Along some mountain fronts, the oldest Pleistocene 
deposits may harbor brackish or marine sediments from when sea levels were higher.  

6.2 Local Geology and Paleontology 
The geology in the project area has been mapped by Yerkes and Campbell (1995) at a scale of 1:24,000 
(GIS from Yerkes and Campbell [1997]). The surficial geology of the project area consists of Holocene to 
late Pleistocene younger alluvium (Qal). Approximately 0.5 km northwest of the project area, the 
Pleistocene Saugus Formation (Qs) crops out at the surface, along with smaller outcrops of late 
Pleistocene terrace deposits (Qt), which are also present approximately 400 meters to the south-southwest 
of the project area. The proximity of these units indicate that they may be present in the subsurface of the 
project area at an unknown depth. Geologic and paleontological information about these geologic units is 
summarized below in oldest to youngest geochronological order and is shown in Figure 4. 

6.2.1 Saugus Formation (Qs) 
Based on paleomagnetic studies of Levi and Yeats (1993), the Saugus Formation (Qs) varies in its age 
from 2.5 to 0.2 million years old, suggesting a Pleistocene age. In the vicinity of the project area, the 
Saugus Formation is a terrestrial fluvial deposit consisting of conglomeratic sandstone, muddy siltstone, 
and conglomerate (Yerkes and Campbell 1995). The Saugus Formation is not mapped at the surface 
within the bounds of the project area but is mapped immediately outside of the project area to the north; 
the Saugus Formation likely underlies the younger alluvium (Qal) and/or terrace deposits (Qt) at unknown 
depth within the project area. Numerous fossil localities have yielded horse, rodent, bird, invertebrate, and 
plant fossils in the vicinity of the project area (Axelrod and Cota 1993; Geiger and Groves 1999; Groves 
1991; Oakeshott 1950; Winterer and Durham 1962; Yeats and McLaughlin 1970). 

416



Paleontological Resources Assessment for the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Backcountry Pump Station 
Project, City of Santa Clarita, Los Angeles County, California 

11 

Figure 4. Geologic map of the project site and vicinity. 

417



Paleontological Resources Assessment for the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Backcountry Pump Station 
Project, City of Santa Clarita, Los Angeles County, California 

12 

6.2.2 Terrace Deposits (Qt) 
Late Pleistocene terrace deposits (Qt) consist of interbedded coarse sand, silt, and gravel that are massive 
to poorly bedded and poorly consolidated (Yerkes and Campbell 1995). Terrace deposits are not mapped 
at the surface within the bounds of the project area but are mapped immediately outside of the project area 
to the north and south; terrace deposits likely underlie the younger alluvium at unknown depth within the 
project area. In general, Pleistocene terrestrial alluvial and terrestrial deposits have a rich fossil history in 
southern California (Brattstrom 1961; Jefferson 1991a, 1991b; McDonald and Jefferson 2008; Miller 
1971; Paleobiology Database 2021; Reynolds and Reynolds 1991; Springer et al. 2009; University of 
California Museum of Paleontology 2021). The most common Pleistocene terrestrial mammal fossils 
include the bones of mammoth, bison, deer, and small mammals, but other taxa, including horse, lion, 
cheetah, wolf, camel, antelope, peccary, mastodon, capybara, and giant ground sloth, have been reported 
(Graham and Lundelius 1994), as well as reptiles, snakes, frogs, and salamanders (Hudson and Brattstrom 
1977). These fossils illuminate the striking differences between southern California in the Pleistocene and 
southern California today, and this abundant fossil record has been vital in studies of extinction (e.g., 
Barnosky et al. 2004; Sandom et al. 2014; Scott 2010), ecology (e.g., Connin et al. 1998), and climate 
change (e.g., Roy et al. 1996). 

6.2.3 Younger Alluvium (Qal) 
Holocene to late Pleistocene younger alluvium (Qal) is mapped at the surface and consists of 
unconsolidated gravel, sand, silt, and clay that is uncemented, derived as eroded sediment (Yerkes and 
Campbell 1995) from the surrounding mountains deposited by the Santa Clara River. The depth to the 
underlying geologic units (i.e., terrace deposits and Saugus Formation) is unknown. Late Holocene 
(i.e., less than 5,000 years old) deposits are typically too young to contain significant fossils (SVP 2010); 
however, these deposits typically transition in age to middle to early Holocene (i.e., 5,000 to 10,000 years 
old) or late Pleistocene at shallow depths. The depth of the transition from late Holocene deposits to 
middle to early Holocene deposits is unknown, but possibly 10 feet below ground surface. Middle to early 
Holocene and late Pleistocene alluvial sediments have yielded numerous paleontological resources 
throughout southern California, similar to those recovered from late Pleistocene terrace deposits and 
Pleistocene Saugus Formation (see above). 

6.3 Museum Records Search 
The NHMLA performed a museum records search for paleontological localities within the vicinity of the 
project site. Based on the results of the museum records search, the NHMLA does not contain records of 
paleontological resources from within the project site; however, several fossil localities have been 
recorded within the vicinity of the project site from older alluvium, comparable to the terrace deposits, 
and the Saugus Formation (NHMLA 2020). The results of the museum records search are summarized in 
Table 1. 

418



Paleontological Resources Assessment for the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Backcountry Pump Station 
Project, City of Santa Clarita, Los Angeles County, California 

13 

Table 1. NHMLA Fossil Localities near the Project Site 

Locality Number Approximate Distance 
to the Project Site Formation Taxa Depth 

LACM VP 1262 4.5 km Older alluvium Undifferentiated vertebrates Unknown 

LACM VP 3397 16 km Older alluvium Bison (Bison) Unknown 

LACM VP 6804 3.5 km Saugus Formation Horse (Equidae) Surface 

LACM VP 7989 7.3 km Saugus Formation Bird (Aves), rodent (Rodentia) Unknown 

LACM VP 6063 5.3 km Saugus Formation Horse (Plesippus) Unknown 

Source: NHMLA (2020) 

6.4 Paleontological Potential of the Local Geology 
Based on the results of the analysis of available existing data pertinent to paleontological resources, 
SWCA has classified the paleontological potential (i.e., paleontological sensitivity) of the geologic units 
present at the surface or at depth within the project area using the classification of the SVP (2010) 
(Figure 5). Holocene to late Pleistocene younger alluvium (Qal) is mapped at the surface of the project 
area. Late Holocene (i.e., less than 5,000 years old) deposits are typically too young to contain significant 
fossils (SVP 2010); however, these deposits may transition in age at shallow depths to middle to early 
Holocene (i.e., 5,000 to 10,000 years old) or late Pleistocene, which have yielded numerous 
paleontological resources throughout southern California. The depth of the transition from late Holocene 
deposits to middle to early Holocene deposits is unknown, but possibly 10 feet below ground surface 
based on other excavations near the present project. Therefore, Holocene to late Pleistocene younger 
alluvium (Qal) has a Low to High paleontological sensitivity, increasing with depth. Late Pleistocene 
terrace deposits (Qt) and Pleistocene Saugus Formation (Qs) likely underlie the younger alluvium at 
unknown depths within the project area. Numerous fossil localities have been reported from the Saugus 
Formation. Therefore, the late Pleistocene terrace deposits (Qt) and Pleistocene Saugus Formation (Qs) 
have High paleontological sensitivity.  

7 IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
This paleontological assessment was conducted to analyze any potential impacts this project may have on 
paleontological resources located in the project site to comply with CEQA, local regulations, and best 
practices in paleontological mitigation (Murphey et al. 2019). The project area is immediately underlain 
by Holocene to late Pleistocene younger alluvium (Qal), which are likely underlain by the late Pleistocene 
terrace deposits (Qt) and Pleistocene Saugus Formation (Qs). The depth of the transition from late 
Holocene deposits, which have a Low paleontological sensitivity, to middle to early Holocene deposits 
and older, which have a High paleontological sensitivity, is unknown but possibly 10 feet below ground 
surface. Based on the most recent description of the project, ground-disturbing activities will impact 
sediments at 15 feet below ground surface during construction of the pump building and 6 feet below 
ground surface during construction of the 16-inch and 24-inch distribution pipelines in Magic Mountain 
Parkway. Therefore, project-related ground-disturbing activities may impact sediments of High 
paleontological sensitivity when excavations reach or exceed 10 feet below ground surface. Should fossils 
be encountered in previously undisturbed sediments at depths of 10 feet below ground surface or greater, 
they would be at risk for damage or destruction from construction activities, which would constitute an 
impact under CEQA. 

419



Paleontological Resources Assessment for the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Backcountry Pump Station 
Project, City of Santa Clarita, Los Angeles County, California 

14 

Figure 5. Paleontological sensitivity of the geologic units underlying the project site. 

420



Paleontological Resources Assessment for the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Backcountry Pump Station 
Project, City of Santa Clarita, Los Angeles County, California 

15 

8 CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
While no previously recorded paleontological resources have been identified within the project area, the 
proximity of numerous fossil localities in the vicinity of the project area indicates that younger alluvium 
(at depths greater than 10 feet below ground surface), as well as the underlying terrace deposits and 
Saugus Formation present in the subsurface, have High paleontological sensitivity. Younger alluvium less 
than 10 feet below ground surface is too young to preserve fossils and has a Low paleontological 
sensitivity. Project-related ground-disturbing activities would impact sediments at 15 feet below ground 
surface during construction of the pump building and 6 feet below ground surface during construction of 
the 16-inch and 24-inch distribution pipelines in Magic Mountain Parkway. Therefore, earthwork 
associated with construction of the pump building would impact sediments of High paleontological 
sensitivity at depth. Should fossils be encountered during grading, excavation, or other soil-disturbing 
activities associated with the project, they would be at risk for damage or destruction from construction 
activities and would constitute an impact under CEQA. The implementation of appropriate mitigation 
measures will ensure that should fossils be encountered, they are assessed for significance and, if 
significant, salvaged and curated with an accredited repository. This will reduce the impacts to 
paleontological resources to less-than-significant levels. 

Accordingly, SWCA recommends the mitigation measures outlined below. The mitigation measures have 
been developed in accordance with, and incorporate the performance standards of, the SVP (1995, 2010) 
and industry best practices (Murphy et al. 2019). At the discretion of SCV Water, the mitigation measures 
for paleontological resource may be implemented in concert with those measures established for cultural 
resources including, but not limited to, preparation of a monitoring program, worker training, 
monitoring, and reporting. These measures will reduce impacts to paleontological resources to less-than-
significant levels.   

Pal-1: A Project Paleontologist meeting SVP standards will prepare a Paleontological Resources 
Monitoring and Mitigation Plan (PRMMP). This plan will address specifics of monitoring and 
mitigation and comply with the recommendations of the SVP (2010). The Project Paleontologist will 
also prepare a report of the findings of the monitoring plan after construction is completed.  

Pal-2: The Project Paleontologist will develop a Worker’s Environmental Awareness Program 
(WEAP) to train the construction crew on the legal requirements for preserving fossil resources, as 
well as procedures to follow in the event of a fossil discovery. This training program will be given to 
the crew before ground-disturbing work commences and will include handouts to be given to new 
workers as needed.  

Pal-3: All ground disturbances in the project area that occur in previously undisturbed sediments at 
depths greater than or equal to 10 feet below ground surface, which have the potential to impact older 
sediments of younger alluvium, terrace deposits, and/or Saugus Formation that have High 
paleontological sensitivity, will require monitoring. The uppermost 10 feet of younger alluvium have 
Low paleontological sensitivity; therefore, it is recommended that monitoring begin at approximately 
10 feet below ground surface.  

Monitoring should be conducted by a paleontological monitor who meets the standards of the SVP 
(2010). Monitoring will be conducted in accordance with the PRMMP and under the supervision of 
the Project Paleontologist. The Project Paleontologist may periodically inspect construction activities 
to adjust the level of monitoring in response to subsurface conditions. Full-time monitoring can be 
reduced to part-time inspections or ceased entirely if determined adequate by the Project 
Paleontologist. Paleontological monitoring will include inspection of exposed sedimentary units 
during active excavations within sensitive geologic sediments. The monitor will have authority to 
temporarily divert activity away from exposed fossils to evaluate the significance of the find and, 

421



Paleontological Resources Assessment for the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Backcountry Pump Station 
Project, City of Santa Clarita, Los Angeles County, California 

16 

should the fossils be determined to be significant, professionally and efficiently recover the fossil 
specimens and collect associated data. Paleontological monitors will record pertinent geologic data 
and collect appropriate sediment samples from any fossil localities. 

Pal-4: In the event of a fossil discovery, whether by the paleontological monitor or a member of the 
construction crew, all work will cease within a 50-foot radius of the find while the Project 
Paleontologist assesses the significance of the fossil and documents its discovery. Should the fossil be 
determined significant, it will be salvaged following the procedures and guidelines of the SVP (1995, 
2010). Recovered fossils will be prepared to the point of curation, identified by qualified experts, 
listed in a database to facilitate analysis, and deposited in a designated paleontological curation 
facility. A repository will be identified and a curatorial arrangement will be signed prior to collection 
of the fossils.  

422



Paleontological Resources Assessment for the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Backcountry Pump Station 
Project, City of Santa Clarita, Los Angeles County, California 

17 

9 LITERATURE CITED 
Axelrod, D., and J. Cota. 1993. A further contribution to closed-cone pine (Oocarpae) history. American 

Journal of Botany 80: 743–751. 

Barnosky, A., C. Bell, S. Emslie, H.T. Goodwin, J. Mead, C. Repenning, E. Scott, and A. Shabel. 2004. 
Exceptional Record of Mid-Pleistocene Vertebrates Helps Differentiate Climatic from 
Anthropogenic Ecosystem Perturbations. Proceedings of the National Academy of Sciences 
101:9297–9302. 

Brattstrom, B.H. 1961. Some new fossil tortoises from western North America with remarks on the 
zoogeography and paleoecology of tortoises. Journal of Paleontology 35(3):543–560. 

City of Santa Clarita. 2011. Conservation and Open Space Element, City of Santa Clarita General Plan, 
Approved June 2011. 107 pp. Available at: https://www.codepublishing.com/CA/ 
SantaClarita/html/SantaClaritaGP/6%20-%20Conservation%20and%20Open%20Space%20 
Element.pdf. Accessed September 9, 2021. 

Connin, S., J. Betancourt, and J. Quade. 1998. Late Pleistocene C4 Plant Dominance and Summer 
Rainfall in the Southwestern United States from Isotopic Study of Herbivore Teeth. Quaternary 
Research 50:179–193. 

Eisentraut, P.J., and J.D. Cooper. 2002. Development of a Model Curation Program for Orange County’s 
Archaeological and Paleontological Collections – Final Report. Submitted to the County of 
Orange. 

Geiger, D., and L. Groves. 1999. Review of fossil abalone (Gastropoda: Vetigastropoda: Haliotidae) with 
comparison to recent species. Journal of Paleontology 73: 872–885. 

Graham, R.W., and E.L. Lundelius. 1994. FAUNMAP: A Database Documenting the Late Quaternary 
Distributions of Mammal Species in the United States. Illinois State Museum Scientific Papers 
XXV(1). 

Groves, L. 1991. Paleontology and biostratigraphy of the Plio-Pleistocene Lower Saugus Formation, 
Santa Susana Mountains, Southern California. California State University Northridge: 
unpublished Master’s Thesis. 371 pp. 

Hudson, D., and B. Brattstrom. 1977. A Small Herpetofauna from the Late Pleistocene of Newport Beach 
Mesa, Orange County, California. Bulletin of the Southern California Academy of Sciences 
76:16–20. 

Jefferson, G.T. 1991a. A Catalogue of Late Quaternary Vertebrates from California: Part One, 
Nonmarine Lower Vertebrate and Avian Taxa. Technical Reports No. 5. Los Angeles, California: 
Natural History Museum of Los Angeles County.  

———. 1991b. A Catalogue of Late Quaternary Vertebrates from California: Part Two, Mammals. 
Technical Reports No. 7. Los Angeles, California: Natural History Museum of Los Angeles 
County. 

Levi, S., and R.S. Yeats. 1993. Paleomagnetic constraints on the initiation of uplift on the Santa Susana 
fault, western Transverse Ranges, California. Tectonics 12: 688–702. 

423



Paleontological Resources Assessment for the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Backcountry Pump Station 
Project, City of Santa Clarita, Los Angeles County, California 

18 

McDonald, H.G., and G.T. Jefferson. 2008. Distribution of Pleistocene Nothrotheriops (Xenartha, 
Nothrotheridae) in North America. In Geology and Vertebrate Paleontology of Western and 
Southern North America, edited by X. Wang and L. Barnes, pp. 313–331. Science Series 41. 
Los Angeles, California: Natural History Museum of Los Angeles County. 

Matti, J.C., D.M. Morton, and B.F. Cox. 1992. The San Andreas fault system in the vicinity of the central 
Transverse Ranges province, Southern California. U.S. Geological Survey Open File Report 92-
354, 50 pp. 

Miller, W.E. 1971. Pleistocene Vertebrates of the Los Angeles Basin and Vicinity: exclusive of Rancho 
La Brea. Bulletin of the Los Angeles County Museum of Natural History 10. 

Murphey, P.C., G.E. Knauss, L.H. Fisk, T.A. Deméré, and R.E. Reynolds. 2019. Best practices in 
mitigation paleontology. Proceedings of the San Diego Society of Natural History 47. 

Namson, J., and T.L. Davis. 1988. Structural Transect of the Western Transverse Ranges California: 
Implications for Lithospheric Kinetics and Seismic Risk Evaluation. Geology 16:675–679. 

Natural History Museum of Los Angeles County (NHMLA). 2020. Paleontological resources records 
search for the proposed development at Magic Mountain Pump Station (#62466). Letter report 
received on August 15, 2020. 

Norris, R.M., and R.W. Webb. 1990. Geology of California. Santa Barbara, California: John Wiley & 
Sons, Inc., pp. 169–173. 

Oakeshott, G.B. 1950. Geology of Placerita oil field, Los Angeles County, California. California Journal 
of Mines and Geology 46:43–79. 

Paleobiology Database. 2021. The Paleobiology Database. Available at: https://paleobiodb.org/#/. 
Accessed August 15, 2021. 

Reynolds, R.E., and R.L. Reynolds. 1991. The Pleistocene Beneath our Feet: Near-surface Pleistocene 
Fossils in Inland Southern California Basins. In Inland Southern California: The Last 70 Million 
Years, edited by M.O. Woodburne, R.E. Reynolds, and D.P. Whistler, pp. 41–43. San Bernardino 
County Museum Special Publication 38 (3 and 4).  

Roy, K., J. Valentine, D. Jablonski, and S. Kidwell. 1996. Scales of Climatic Variability and Time 
Averaging in Pleistocene Biotas: Implications for Ecology and Evolution. Trends in Ecology and 
Evolution 11:458–463. 

Sandom, C., S. Faurby, B. Sandel, and J.C. Svenning. 2014. Global Late Quaternary Megafauna 
Extinctions Linked to Humans, not Climate Change. Proceedings of the Royal Society B 
281:20133254. 

Scott, E. 2010. Extinctions, Scenarios, and Assumptions: Changes in Latest Pleistocene Large Herbivore 
Abundance and Distribution in Western North America. Quaternary International 217:225–239. 

Scott, E., and K. Springer. 2003. CEQA and Fossil Preservation in California. Environmental Monitor 
Fall:4-10. Sacramento, California: Association of Environmental Professionals. 

Society of Vertebrate Paleontology (SVP). 1995. Assessment and mitigation of adverse impacts to 
nonrenewable paleontologic resources: standard guidelines. Society of Vertebrate Paleontology 
News Bulletin 163:22–27. 

424



Paleontological Resources Assessment for the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Backcountry Pump Station 
Project, City of Santa Clarita, Los Angeles County, California 

19 

———. 2010. Standard Procedures for the Assessment and Mitigation of Adverse Impacts to 
Paleontological Resources. Available at: https://vertpaleo.org/wp-content/uploads/2021/01/ 
SVP_Impact_Mitigation_Guidelines.pdf. Accessed August 15, 2021.  

Springer, K., E. Scott, J.C. Sagebiel, and L.K. Murray. 2009. The Diamond Valley Lake local fauna: late 
Pleistocene vertebrates from inland southern California. In Papers on Geology, Vertebrate 
Paleontology, and Biostratigraphy in Honor of Michael O. Woodburne, edited by L.B. Albright 
III, pp. 217–236. Museum of Northern Arizona Bulletin 65. 

University of California Museum of Paleontology. 2021. Fossil Locality Database. Available at: 
https://ucmp.berkeley.edu/collections/databases/. Accessed August 15, 2021. 

Winterer, E.L., and D.L. Durham. 1962. Geology of Southeastern Ventura Basin, Los Angeles County, 
California. Shorter Contributions to General Geology. U.S. Geological Survey Professional Paper 
334-H:275–366. 

Yeats, R.S., and W.A. McLaughlin. 1970. Potassium-argon mineral age of an ash bed in the Pico 
Formation, Ventura Basin, California. In Radiometric Dating and Paleontologic Zonation, edited 
by O.L. Bandy, pp. 173–206. Special Paper 124. Boulder, Colorado: Geological Society of 
America. 

Yerkes, R.F., and R.H. Campbell. 1995. Preliminary geologic map of the Newhall 7.5-minute quadrangle, 
Southern California. U.S. Geological Survey, Open-File Report 95-800, scale 1:24,000. 

———. 1997. Preliminary geologic map of the San Fernando 7.5-minute quadrangle, Southern 
California: A Digital Database. U.S. Geological Survey, Open-File Report 97-163, scale 
1:24,000.  

 

425



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

426



 

 

APPENDIX A 
 

Natural History Museum of Los Angeles County  
Paleontological Records Search 

CONFIDENTIAL – NOT FOR PUBLIC RELEASE 
 

 
  

427



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

428



0011633.02 

November 2022 

Mitigation Monitoring and 
Reporting Program 

Backcountry Reservoir and 
Pump Station Project 

Prepared for: 
Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency 

26521 Summit Circle 
Santa Clarita, CA 91350 

With Assistance From: 

24422 Avenida de la Carlota, Suite 180 
Laguna Hills, CA 92653 

949.420.5300 

EXHIBIT B

429



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

430



 
 

Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 1  SCV Water 
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project  November 2022
   

1. MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM 

This Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program (MMRP) for the Backcountry Reservoir Pump 
Station Project (proposed Project) has been prepared in accordance with Public Resources Code 
Section 21081.6 and the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines Section 15097. 
Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency (SCV Water) and its contractors are required to implement the 
adopted mitigation measures in accordance with the Addendum to Mission Village Environmental 
Impact Report (EIR) for the Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project  (Addendum) in 
order to avoid or substantially reduce impacts of the proposed Project to less than significant levels. 
This MMRP will be used by SCV Water to ensure that the mitigation measures identified in the 
Addendum are implemented. 

1.1 Program Background  

As discussed in the Addendum, the Mission Village EIR contains over a hundred mitigation 
measures to reduce environmental impacts of the Mission Village land development project, which 
included development of a water tank at the Backcountry Reservoir site. The mitigation measures 
include relevant and applicable program-level mitigation measures from the Newhall Ranch 
Specific Plan Program EIR as well as project-specific mitigation measures applicable to the 
Mission Village land development project contained in the Mission Village EIR. Several 
mitigation measures are applicable to construction and operation of the proposed Project.  

Many of the mitigation measures in the Mission Village EIR were written to address a large-scale 
residential development requiring various review and approvals from Los Angeles County. Unlike 
the Mission Village development, the proposed Project will be designed and constructed by SCV 
Water in accordance with SCV Water design and construction standards. Therefore, 
implementation actions have been defined for each of the original Mission Village mitigation 
measures to clarify how the mitigation would be implemented for the proposed Project and to 
facilitate proper implementation by SCV Water, but do not constitute a revision to these mitigation 
measures. These implementation actions do not represent a change in the purpose, intent and effect 
of the original mitigation measures. The Addendum specifies applicable mitigation measures, 
extracted verbatim in whole or part from the Mission Village EIR are notated as “MV”, and those 
which tiered from the Newhall Ranch Specific Plan Program EIR are notated as “SP”. SCV Water 
implementation actions are provided for each applicable mitigation measures.  

For ease of use, this MMRP specifies only the SCV Water Implementation Actions, however, the 
applicable mitigation measures from the Mission Village EIR and Newhall Ranch Specific Plan 
Program EIR are included in Attachment A of this MMRP. The MMRP is intended for use by 
SCV Water, as lead agency and designated monitoring and reporting entities as specified in the 
MMRP checklist.   

1.2 Program Administration 

The MMRP shall be administered by SCV Water, and the SCV Water Implementation Actions, 
originating from the mitigation measures of the Mission Village EIR and/or Newhall Ranch 
Specific Plan Program EIR, shall be incorporated into design and construction bid documents and 
construction contracts for the Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project, as applicable, to 

431



 
 

Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 2  SCV Water 
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project  November 2022
   

ensure full implementation. The MMRP shall be maintained by the designated SCV Water Project 
Manager and be available for inspection upon request at SCV Water offices. 

The MMRP implementation checklist has been prepared as two tables: Table 1 contains the 
mitigation/implementing actions specific to the Backcountry Reservoir and Table 2 contains the 
mitigation/implementation actions specific to the Backcountry Pump Station.  

 

432



  M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

on
ito

rin
g 

an
d 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
Pr

og
ra

m
 

 
 

 
 

3 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
   

   
  

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

   
   

   
 

 
SC

V
 W

at
er

 
B

ac
kc

ou
nt

ry
 R

es
er

vo
ir 

an
d 

Pu
m

p 
St

at
io

n 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

   
   

   
  

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
02

2  
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Ta
bl

e 
1:

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

on
ito

rin
g 

an
d 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
Pr

og
ra

m
 C

he
ck

lis
t –

 B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

 R
es

er
vo

ir 
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
 

Im
pa

ct
 S

ta
te

m
en

t(s
) 

Pa
rt

y 
R

es
po

ns
ib

le
 

fo
r I

m
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
an

d 
R

ep
or

tin
g 

R
ev

ie
w

 a
nd

 
A

pp
ro

va
l b

y:
 

M
on

ito
rin

g 
an

d 
R

ep
or

tin
g 

A
ct

io
ns

 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

Sc
he

du
le

 

Ve
rif

ic
at

io
n:

 
St

at
us

/ D
at

e 
C

om
pl

et
ed

/ 
In

iti
al

s 

 A
es

th
et

ic
s 

SC
V

 W
at

er
 Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

A
ct

io
n 

fo
r S

P 
4.

7-
1:

  
In

 d
es

ig
n 

of
 th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 B

ac
kc

ou
nt

ry
 R

es
er

vo
ir 

Pr
oj

ec
t, 

SC
V

 
W

at
er

 sh
al

l c
on

si
de

r a
nd

 in
co

rp
or

at
e 

to
 th

e 
ex

te
nt

 p
os

si
bl

e 
th

e 
D

es
ig

n 
G

ui
de

lin
es

 o
f t

he
 N

ew
ha

ll 
R

an
ch

 S
pe

ci
fic

 P
la

n 
(C

ha
pt

er
 4

) 
an

d 
th

e 
de

si
gn

 th
em

es
 a

nd
 v

ie
w

 c
on

si
de

ra
tio

ns
 li

st
ed

 in
 th

e 
N

ew
ha

ll 
R

an
ch

 S
pe

ci
fic

 P
la

n 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 th
e 

re
se

rv
oi

r a
nd

 
fe

nc
in

g 
bl

en
d 

in
to

 th
e 

la
nd

sc
ap

e,
 a

nd
 a

es
th

et
ic

 tr
ea

tm
en

ts
 a

re
 

in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 to
 so

fte
n 

vi
ew

s o
f t

he
 re

se
rv

oi
r. 

  

Im
pa

ct
 5

.1
a 

– 
H

av
e 

a 
su

bs
ta

nt
ia

l a
dv

er
se

 e
ff

ec
t o

n 
a 

sc
en

ic
 v

is
ta

. 
 Im

pa
ct

 5
.1

c 
– 

 
In

 n
on

-u
rb

an
iz

ed
 a

re
as

, s
ub

st
an

tia
lly

 d
eg

ra
de

 th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

vi
su

al
 c

ha
ra

ct
er

 o
r q

ua
lit

y 
of

 p
ub

lic
 v

ie
w

s 
of

 th
e 

si
te

 a
nd

 it
s s

ur
ro

un
di

ng
s?

 (P
ub

lic
 v

ie
w

s a
re

 
th

os
e 

th
at

 a
re

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
ed

 fr
om

 p
ub

lic
ly

 a
cc

es
si

bl
e 

va
nt

ag
e 

po
in

t).
 If

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t i

s i
n 

an
 u

rb
an

iz
ed

 a
re

a,
 

w
ou

ld
 th

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t c
on

fli
ct

 w
ith

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 z

on
in

g 
an

d 
ot

he
r r

eg
ul

at
io

ns
 g

ov
er

ni
ng

 sc
en

ic
 q

ua
lit

y.
 

 Im
pa

ct
 5

.1
d 

- 
Po

te
nt

ia
l t

o 
cr

ea
te

 a
 n

ew
 so

ur
ce

 o
f s

ub
st

an
tia

l l
ig

ht
 

or
 g

la
re

 w
hi

ch
 w

ou
ld

 a
dv

er
se

ly
 a

ff
ec

t d
ay

 o
r 

ni
gh

tti
m

e 
vi

ew
s i

n 
th

e 
ar

ea
.  

SC
V

 W
at

er
 

SC
V

 W
at

er
 

 
C

on
fir

m
 th

at
 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
m

ea
su

re
 is

 
in

co
rp

or
at

ed
 in

to
 

de
si

gn
 sp

ec
ifi

ca
tio

ns
 

D
es

ig
n 

Ph
as

e 
 

__
__

__
__

__
 

  

A
ir

 Q
ua

lit
y,

 G
re

en
ho

us
e 

G
as

 E
m

is
si

on
s 

SC
V

 W
at

er
 I

m
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
A

ct
io

n 
fo

r 
SP

 4
.1

0-
7:

 S
C

V
 W

at
er

 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

A
ct

io
n 

fo
r 

SP
 4

.1
0-

7:
 T

o 
pr

ev
en

t 
ex

ce
ss

iv
e 

em
is

si
on

s 
of

 c
rit

er
ia

 p
ol

lu
ta

nt
s 

an
d 

gr
ee

nh
ou

se
 g

as
es

 to
 th

e 
ex

te
nt

 
fe

as
ib

le
, S

C
V

 W
at

er
 w

ill
 p

re
pa

re
 b

id
 d

oc
um

en
ts

 sp
ec

ify
in

g 
th

at
  

• 
te

m
po

ra
ry

 t
ra

ff
ic

 c
on

tro
ls

 (
e.

g.
, 

si
gn

ag
e,

 f
la

g 
pe

rs
on

, 
de

to
ur

s)
 b

e 
im

pl
em

en
te

d 
w

he
n 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 h
av

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l t

o 
di

sr
up

t t
ra

ff
ic

 in
 o

rd
er

 to
 m

ai
nt

ai
n 

tra
ff

ic
 fl

ow
 

• 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 th

at
 a

ff
ec

t t
ra

ff
ic

 fl
ow

 b
e 

sc
he

du
le

d 
to

 o
ff

-p
ea

k 
ho

ur
s (

e.
g.

, b
et

w
ee

n 
7:

00
 P

M
 a

nd
 6

:0
0 

A
M

 a
nd

 
be

tw
ee

n 
10

:0
0 

A
M

 a
nd

 3
:0

0 
PM

) 
• 

on
-s

ite
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

tru
ck

s 
m

ay
 n

ot
 id

le
 f

or
 lo

ng
er

 th
an

 2
 

m
in

ut
es

 
• 

us
e 

el
ec

tri
c 

ve
hi

cl
es

 w
he

n 
fe

as
ib

le
  

• 
us

e 
 p

ow
er

 p
ol

es
 in

st
ea

d 
of

 g
as

ol
in

e 
an

d 
di

es
el

-p
ow

er
ed

 
ge

ne
ra

to
rs

 
     

Im
pa

ct
 5

.3
b 

– 
R

es
ul

t i
n 

a 
cu

m
ul

at
iv

el
y 

co
ns

id
er

ab
le

 n
et

 in
cr

ea
se

 
of

 
 a

ny
 c

rit
er

ia
 p

ol
lu

ta
nt

 fo
r w

hi
ch

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

re
gi

on
 is

 n
on

- a
tta

in
m

en
t u

nd
er

 a
n 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 

fe
de

ra
l o

r s
ta

te
 a

m
bi

en
t a

ir 
qu

al
ity

 st
an

da
rd

.  
 Im

pa
ct

 5
.8

a 
– 

 
G

en
er

at
e 

gr
ee

nh
ou

se
 g

as
 e

m
is

si
on

s, 
ei

th
er

 d
ire

ct
ly

 
or

 in
di

re
ct

ly
, t

ha
t m

ay
 h

av
e 

a 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 im
pa

ct
 o

n 
th

e 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t.  
 Im

pa
ct

 5
.8

b 
– 

 
C

on
fli

ct
 w

ith
 a

n 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 p
la

n,
 p

ol
ic

y 
or

 
re

gu
la

tio
n 

ad
op

te
d 

fo
r t

he
 p

ur
po

se
 o

f r
ed

uc
in

g 
th

e 
em

is
si

on
s o

f g
re

en
ho

us
e 

ga
se

s. 
 

SC
V

 W
at

er
 

    C
on

tra
ct

or
 

SC
V

 W
at

er
 

    SC
V

 W
at

er
 

C
on

fir
m

 m
iti

ga
tio

n 
m

ea
su

re
 is

 
in

co
rp

or
at

ed
 in

to
 

co
nt

ra
ct

 d
oc

um
en

ts
  

 C
on

fir
m

 m
ea

su
re

 is
 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

du
rin

g 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 

C
on

tra
ct

in
g/

Pr
e-

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
   C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

__
__

__
__

__
 

    __
__

__
__

_
_  

433



  M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

on
ito

rin
g 

an
d 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
Pr

og
ra

m
 

 
 

 
 

4 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
   

   
  

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

   
   

   
 

 
SC

V
 W

at
er

 
B

ac
kc

ou
nt

ry
 R

es
er

vo
ir 

an
d 

Pu
m

p 
St

at
io

n 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

   
   

   
  

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
02

2  
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
 

Im
pa

ct
 S

ta
te

m
en

t(s
) 

Pa
rt

y 
R

es
po

ns
ib

le
 

fo
r I

m
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
an

d 
R

ep
or

tin
g 

R
ev

ie
w

 a
nd

 
A

pp
ro

va
l b

y:
 

M
on

ito
rin

g 
an

d 
R

ep
or

tin
g 

A
ct

io
ns

 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

Sc
he

du
le

 

Ve
rif

ic
at

io
n:

 
St

at
us

/ D
at

e 
C

om
pl

et
ed

/ 
In

iti
al

s 

B
io

lo
gi

ca
l R

es
ou

rc
es

 

SC
V

 W
at

er
 Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

A
ct

io
n 

fo
r S

P 
4.

6-
35

: S
C

V
 W

at
er

 
sh

al
l p

re
pa

re
 b

id
 d

oc
um

en
ts

 th
at

 sp
ec

ify
 th

at
 a

 q
ua

lif
ie

d 
bi

ol
og

is
t 

w
ill

 c
oo

rd
in

at
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

gr
ad

in
g 

co
nt

ra
ct

or
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

on
-s

ite
 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 a
vo

id
 im

pa
ct

s t
o 

ad
ja

ce
nt

 o
ff

-s
ite

 a
re

as
 

co
nt

ai
ni

ng
 n

at
iv

e 
ve

ge
ta

tio
n.

 T
hi

s m
ay

 in
vo

lv
e 

fla
gg

in
g 

an
d/

or
 

w
or

ke
r e

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l a

w
ar

en
es

s t
ra

in
in

g.
 

 

Im
pa

ct
 5

.4
a 

– 
Po

te
nt

ia
l t

o 
ha

ve
 a

 su
bs

ta
nt

ia
l a

dv
er

se
 e

ff
ec

t, 
ei

th
er

 
di

re
ct

ly
 o

r t
hr

ou
gh

 h
ab

ita
t m

od
ifi

ca
tio

ns
, o

n 
an

y 
sp

ec
ie

s i
de

nt
ifi

ed
 a

s a
 c

an
di

da
te

, s
en

si
tiv

e,
 o

r 
sp

ec
ia

l s
ta

tu
s s

pe
ci

es
 in

 lo
ca

l o
r r

eg
io

na
l p

la
ns

, 
po

lic
ie

s, 
or

 re
gu

la
tio

ns
, o

r b
y 

th
e 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f F
is

h 
an

d 
G

am
e 

or
 U

.S
. F

is
h 

an
d 

W
ild

lif
e 

Se
rv

ic
e.

 

SC
V

 W
at

er
 

   C
on

tra
ct

or
 

SC
V

 W
at

er
 

   SC
V

 W
at

er
 

 

C
on

fir
m

 th
at

 c
on

tra
ct

 
do

cu
m

en
ts

 in
cl

ud
e 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
m

ea
su

re
  

 En
su

re
 b

io
lo

gi
st

 
co

or
di

na
te

s w
ith

 
gr

ad
in

g 
co

nt
ra

ct
or

 to
 

av
oi

d 
im

pa
ct

s t
o 

na
tiv

e 
ve

ge
ta

tio
n 

in
 

of
fs

ite
 a

re
as

 

C
on

tra
ct

in
g 

Ph
as

e 
   C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Ph
as

e 
 

__
__

__
__

__
 

  __
__

__
__

__
 

SC
V

 W
at

er
 Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

A
ct

io
n 

fo
r S

P 
4.

6-
56

: S
C

V
 W

at
er

 
sh

al
l p

re
pa

re
 b

id
 d

oc
um

en
ts

 th
at

 sp
ec

ify
 th

at
 a

t a
ll 

lig
ht

in
g 

al
on

g 
th

e 
pe

rim
et

er
, i

f a
ny

, s
ha

ll 
be

 d
ow

nc
as

t l
um

in
ai

re
s w

ith
 li

gh
t 

pa
tte

rn
s d

ire
ct

ed
 a

w
ay

 fr
om

 th
e 

un
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

ar
ea

s t
o 

av
oi

d 
lig

ht
 

sp
ill

ag
e 

in
to

 w
ild

lif
e 

ha
bi

ta
t. 

Im
pa

ct
 5

.4
a 

– 
Po

te
nt

ia
l t

o 
ha

ve
 a

 su
bs

ta
nt

ia
l a

dv
er

se
 e

ff
ec

t, 
ei

th
er

 
di

re
ct

ly
 o

r t
hr

ou
gh

 h
ab

ita
t m

od
ifi

ca
tio

ns
, o

n 
an

y 
sp

ec
ie

s i
de

nt
ifi

ed
 a

s a
 c

an
di

da
te

, s
en

si
tiv

e,
 o

r 
sp

ec
ia

l s
ta

tu
s s

pe
ci

es
 in

 lo
ca

l o
r r

eg
io

na
l p

la
ns

, 
po

lic
ie

s, 
or

 re
gu

la
tio

ns
, o

r b
y 

th
e 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f F
is

h 
an

d 
G

am
e 

or
 U

.S
. F

is
h 

an
d 

W
ild

lif
e 

Se
rv

ic
e.

 

SC
V

 W
at

er
 

SC
V

 W
at

er
 

 
C

on
fir

m
 th

at
 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
m

ea
su

re
 is

 
in

co
rp

or
at

ed
 in

to
 

de
si

gn
 sp

ec
ifi

ca
tio

ns
 

D
es

ig
n 

Ph
as

e 
 

__
__

__
__

__
 

 

SC
V

 W
at

er
 Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

A
ct

io
n 

fo
r M

V
 4

.3
-5

2:
 S

C
V

 W
at

er
 

sh
al

l p
re

pa
re

 b
id

 d
oc

um
en

ts
 th

at
 sp

ec
ify

 th
at

 th
e 

SW
PP

P 
pr

ep
ar

ed
 

fo
r t

he
 p

ro
po

se
d 

Pr
oj

ec
t s

ha
ll 

in
co

rp
or

at
e 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
m

ea
su

re
s/

re
st

ric
tio

ns
 to

 a
vo

id
 im

pa
ct

s t
o 

ve
ge

ta
tio

n 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
 

an
d 

po
te

nt
ia

l s
pe

ci
al

-s
ta

tu
s p

la
nt

s a
nd

 w
ild

lif
e 

sp
ec

ie
s a

dj
ac

en
t t

o 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n:
 

• 
A

vo
id

 p
la

nt
in

g 
or

 se
ed

in
g 

in
va

si
ve

 sp
ec

ie
s i

n 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
ar

ea
s w

ith
in

 2
00

 fe
et

 o
f n

at
iv

e 
ve

ge
ta

tio
n 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

.  

• 
Th

e 
op

er
at

or
 s

ha
ll 

in
st

al
l 

an
d 

us
e 

fu
lly

 c
ov

er
ed

 t
ra

sh
 

re
ce

pt
ac

le
s t

o 
co

nt
ai

n 
al

l f
oo

d,
 fo

od
 sc

ra
ps

, f
oo

d 
w

ra
pp

er
s, 

be
ve

ra
ge

 c
on

ta
in

er
s, 

an
d 

ot
he

r m
is

ce
lla

ne
ou

s 
tra

sh
. T

ra
sh

 
w

ill
 b

e 
re

gu
la

rly
 p

ic
ke

d 
up

 in
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

ar
ea

s. 

• 
Th

e 
op

er
at

or
 s

ha
ll 

no
t 

pe
rm

it 
pe

ts
 o

n 
or

 a
dj

ac
en

t 
to

 t
he

 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
sit

e 
     

Im
pa

ct
 5

.4
a 

– 
Po

te
nt

ia
l t

o 
ha

ve
 a

 su
bs

ta
nt

ia
l a

dv
er

se
 e

ff
ec

t, 
ei

th
er

 
di

re
ct

ly
 o

r t
hr

ou
gh

 h
ab

ita
t m

od
ifi

ca
tio

ns
, o

n 
an

y 
sp

ec
ie

s i
de

nt
ifi

ed
 a

s a
 c

an
di

da
te

, s
en

si
tiv

e,
 o

r 
sp

ec
ia

l s
ta

tu
s s

pe
ci

es
 in

 lo
ca

l o
r r

eg
io

na
l p

la
ns

, 
po

lic
ie

s, 
or

 re
gu

la
tio

ns
, o

r b
y 

th
e 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f F
is

h 
an

d 
G

am
e 

or
 U

.S
. F

is
h 

an
d 

W
ild

lif
e 

Se
rv

ic
e.

 

SC
V

 W
at

er
 

   SC
V

 W
at

er
/ 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
C

on
tra

ct
or

 

SC
V

 W
at

er
 

   SC
V

 W
at

er
 

 

C
on

fir
m

 th
at

 c
on

tra
ct

 
do

cu
m

en
ts

 in
cl

ud
e 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
m

ea
su

re
  

 En
su

re
 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
du

rin
g 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n  

   

C
on

tra
ct

in
g 

Ph
as

e 
   C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Ph
as

e 
 

__
__

__
__

__
 

   __
__

__
__

__
 

434



  M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

on
ito

rin
g 

an
d 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
Pr

og
ra

m
 

 
 

 
 

5 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
   

   
  

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

   
   

   
 

 
SC

V
 W

at
er

 
B

ac
kc

ou
nt

ry
 R

es
er

vo
ir 

an
d 

Pu
m

p 
St

at
io

n 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

   
   

   
  

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
02

2  
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
 

Im
pa

ct
 S

ta
te

m
en

t(s
) 

Pa
rt

y 
R

es
po

ns
ib

le
 

fo
r I

m
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
an

d 
R

ep
or

tin
g 

R
ev

ie
w

 a
nd

 
A

pp
ro

va
l b

y:
 

M
on

ito
rin

g 
an

d 
R

ep
or

tin
g 

A
ct

io
ns

 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

Sc
he

du
le

 

Ve
rif

ic
at

io
n:

 
St

at
us

/ D
at

e 
C

om
pl

et
ed

/ 
In

iti
al

s 

G
eo

lo
gy

 a
nd

 S
oi

ls
 

SC
V

 W
at

er
 Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

A
ct

io
n 

fo
r M

V
 4

.1
-6

: S
C

V
 W

at
er

 
sh

al
l d

es
ig

n 
th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 P

ro
je

ct
 in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 o
f a

 p
ro

je
ct

-s
pe

ci
fic

 g
eo

te
ch

ni
ca

l r
ep

or
t t

o 
re

du
ce

 se
is

m
ic

-r
el

at
ed

 ri
sk

s. 
 

 

Im
pa

ct
 5

.7
a 

– 
D

ire
ct

ly
 o

r i
nd

ire
ct

ly
 c

au
se

 p
ot

en
tia

l s
ub

st
an

tia
l 

ad
ve

rs
e 

ef
fe

ct
s, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

e 
ris

k 
of

 lo
ss

, i
nj

ur
y,

 o
r 

de
at

h 
in

vo
lv

in
g:

 (i
) R

up
tu

re
 o

f a
 k

no
w

n 
ea

rth
qu

ak
e 

fa
ul

t, 
as

 d
el

in
ea

te
d 

on
 th

e 
m

os
t r

ec
en

t A
lq

ui
st

-P
rio

lo
 

Ea
rth

qu
ak

e 
Fa

ul
t Z

on
in

g 
M

ap
 is

su
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

St
at

e 
G

eo
lo

gi
st

 fo
r t

he
 a

re
a 

or
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

ot
he

r s
ub

st
an

tia
l 

ev
id

en
ce

 o
f a

 k
no

w
n 

fa
ul

t?
 R

ef
er

 to
 D

iv
is

io
n 

of
 

M
in

es
 a

nd
 G

eo
lo

gy
 S

pe
ci

al
 P

ub
lic

at
io

n 
42

; (
ii)

 
St

ro
ng

 se
is

m
ic

 g
ro

un
d 

sh
ak

in
g?

; (
iii

) S
ei

sm
ic

-
re

la
te

d 
gr

ou
nd

 fa
ilu

re
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 li
qu

ef
ac

tio
n?

; (
iv

) 
La

nd
sl

id
es

 

SC
V

 W
at

er
 

SC
V

 W
at

er
 

En
su

re
 d

es
ig

n 
pl

an
s 

ar
e 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 

pr
oj

ec
t g

eo
te

ch
ni

ca
l 

re
po

rt 

D
es

ig
n 

Ph
as

e 
__

__
__

__
__

 

H
az

ar
ds

 a
nd

 H
az

ar
do

us
 M

at
er

ia
ls

, W
ild

fir
e 

SC
V

 W
at

er
 I

m
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
A

ct
io

n 
fo

r 
M

V
 4

.1
8-

3 
an

d 
4.

12
-5

: 
SC

V
 W

at
er

 s
ha

ll 
en

su
re

 t
he

 p
ro

po
se

d 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
pl

an
s 

ad
he

re
 t

o 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 in

 th
e 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 C
od

e 
fo

r V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

Fi
re

 H
az

ar
d 

Se
ve

rit
y 

Zo
ne

s. 
A

dd
iti

on
al

ly
, 

SC
V

 W
at

er
 s

ha
ll 

pr
ep

ar
e 

pr
oj

ec
t b

id
 d

oc
um

en
ts

 th
at

 s
pe

ci
fy

 f
ire

 
pr

ev
en

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s t
ha

t m
us

t b
e 

in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 d
ur

in
g 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

to
 m

in
im

iz
e 

th
e 

ris
k 

of
 w

ild
fir

e.
 M

ea
su

re
s s

ha
ll 

in
cl

ud
e,

 b
ut

 n
ot

 b
e 

lim
ite

d 
to

:  

• 
St

ag
in

g 
ar

ea
s, 

w
el

di
ng

 a
re

as
, o

r 
ar

ea
s 

sl
at

ed
 f

or
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

sh
al

l b
e c

le
ar

ed
 o

f d
rie

d 
ve

ge
ta

tio
n 

or
 o

th
er

 m
at

er
ia

ls
 th

at
 co

ul
d 

ig
ni

te
.  

• 
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

eq
ui

pm
en

t t
ha

t i
nc

lu
de

s 
a 

sp
ar

k 
ar

re
st

or
 s

ha
ll 

be
 

m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

in
 g

oo
d 

w
or

ki
ng

 o
rd

er
. 

In
 a

dd
iti

on
, 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

cr
ew

s s
ha

ll 
ha

ve
 a

 sp
ot

te
r d

ur
in

g 
w

el
di

ng
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 to
 lo

ok
 o

ut
 

fo
r p

ot
en

tia
lly

 d
an

ge
ro

us
 si

tu
at

io
ns

, s
uc

h 
as

 a
cc

id
en

ta
l s

pa
rk

s. 
 

• 
O

th
er

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
eq

ui
pm

en
t s

ha
ll 

be
 k

ep
t i

n 
go

od
 w

or
ki

ng
 

or
de

r a
nd

 u
se

d 
on

ly
 w

ith
in

 c
le

ar
ed

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
zo

ne
s. 

 
• 

C
on

tra
ct

or
s 

sh
al

l 
re

qu
ire

 v
eh

ic
le

s 
an

d 
cr

ew
s 

w
or

ki
ng

 a
t 

th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t s

ite
 to

 h
av

e 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 fu

nc
tio

na
l f

ire
 e

xt
in

gu
is

he
rs

. 
• 

A
re

as
 sh

al
l b

e 
de

si
gn

at
ed

 sm
ok

in
g 

an
d 

no
n-

sm
ok

in
g 

ar
ea

s;
 a

nd
  

• 
W

at
er

 s
ha

ll 
be

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
on

 s
ite

 a
s 

ne
ed

ed
. 

pu
rs

ua
nt

 t
o 

th
e 

C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

. 
    

Im
pa

ct
 5

.9
g 

– 
Ex

po
se

 p
eo

pl
e 

or
 st

ru
ct

ur
es

, e
ith

er
 d

ire
ct

ly
 o

r 
in

di
re

ct
ly

, 
to

 a
 si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 ri
sk

 o
f l

os
s, 

in
ju

ry
 o

r 
de

at
h 

in
vo

lv
in

g 
w

ild
la

nd
 fi

re
s. 

 Im
pa

ct
 5

.2
0b

 –
  

D
ue

 to
 sl

op
e,

 p
re

va
ili

ng
 w

in
ds

, a
nd

 o
th

er
 

fa
ct

or
s, 

ex
ac

er
ba

te
 w

ild
fir

e 
ris

ks
, a

nd
 th

er
eb

y 
ex

po
se

 p
ro

je
ct

 o
cc

up
an

ts
 to

, p
ol

lu
ta

nt
 

co
nc

en
tra

tio
ns

 fr
om

 a
 w

ild
fir

e 
or

 th
e 

un
co

nt
ro

lle
d 

sp
re

ad
 o

f a
 w

ild
fir

e.
 

 Im
pa

ct
 5

.2
0c

-  
R

eq
ui

re
 th

e 
in

st
al

la
tio

n 
or

 m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 o
f 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 in

fr
as

tru
ct

ur
e 

(s
uc

h 
as

 ro
ad

s, 
fu

el
 

br
ea

ks
, e

m
er

ge
nc

y 
w

at
er

 so
ur

ce
s, 

po
w

er
 li

ne
s 

or
 o

th
er

 u
til

iti
es

) t
ha

t m
ay

 e
xa

ce
rb

at
e 

fir
e 

ris
k 

or
 th

at
 m

ay
 re

su
lt 

in
 te

m
po

ra
ry

 o
r o

ng
oi

ng
 

im
pa

ct
s t

o 
th

e 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t?
 

  

SC
V

 W
at

er
, 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
C

on
tra

ct
or

  
    SC

V
 W

at
er

, 
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

C
on

tra
ct

or
 

SC
V

 W
at

er
 

      SC
V

 W
at

er
, 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
C

on
tra

ct
or

 

En
su

re
 b

id
 d

oc
s 

in
cl

ud
e 

fir
e 

pr
ev

en
tio

n 
m

ea
su

re
s t

o 
be

 
im

pl
em

en
te

d 
du

rin
g 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

  En
su

re
 fi

re
 p

re
ve

nt
io

n 
m

ea
su

re
s a

re
 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

du
rin

g 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
  

D
es

ig
n/

C
on

tra
ct

in
g 

Ph
as

e 
     C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Ph
as

e 

__
__

__
__

__
 

      __
__

__
__

__
 

435



M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

on
ito

rin
g 

an
d 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
Pr

og
ra

m
 

 
6 

 
 

SC
V

 W
at

er
 

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

 R
es

er
vo

ir 
an

d 
Pu

m
p 

St
at

io
n 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
02

2  

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
 

Im
pa

ct
 S

ta
te

m
en

t(s
) 

Pa
rt

y 
R

es
po

ns
ib

le
 

fo
r I

m
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
an

d 
R

ep
or

tin
g 

R
ev

ie
w

 a
nd

 
A

pp
ro

va
l b

y:
 

M
on

ito
rin

g 
an

d 
R

ep
or

tin
g 

A
ct

io
ns

 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

Sc
he

du
le

 

Ve
rif

ic
at

io
n:

 
St

at
us

/ D
at

e 
C

om
pl

et
ed

/ 
In

iti
al

s 

H
yd

ro
lo

gy
 

SC
V

 W
at

er
 I

m
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
A

ct
io

n 
fo

r 
M

V
 4

.2
-8

: 
SC

V
 W

at
er

 
sh

al
l e

ns
ur

e 
th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 P

ro
je

ct
 d

ra
in

ag
e 

de
si

gn
 is

 c
on

si
st

en
t w

ith
 

th
e d

ra
in

ag
e a

na
ly

si
s p

re
pa

re
d 

fo
r t

he
 M

is
si

on
 V

ill
ag

e d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
as

 a
pp

ro
ve

d 
by

 L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y,

 a
s w

el
l a

s t
he

 N
ew

ha
ll 

R
an

ch
 

Su
b-

R
eg

io
na

l 
St

or
m

w
at

er
 M

iti
ga

tio
n 

Pl
an

 a
s 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 b
y 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y,

 a
s 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
, t

o 
m

in
im

iz
e 

er
os

io
n 

fr
om

 th
e 

si
te

 
du

rin
g 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

an
d 

to
 m

in
im

iz
e 

w
at

er
 q

ua
lit

y 
im

pa
ct

s 
du

rin
g 

an
d 

af
te

r 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n.
 A

dd
iti

on
al

ly
, t

he
 s

to
rm

 d
ra

in
 s

ys
te

m
 s

ha
ll 

co
nf

or
m

 to
 th

e 
po

lic
ie

s 
an

d 
st

an
da

rd
s 

of
 th

e 
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t o
f P

ub
lic

 W
or

ks
, F

lo
od

 C
on

tro
l D

iv
is

io
n.

 

Im
pa

ct
 5

.1
0c

 –
 

Su
bs

ta
nt

ia
lly

 a
lte

r t
he

 e
xi

st
in

g 
dr

ai
na

ge
 p

at
te

rn
 o

f 
th

e 
si

te
 o

r a
re

a,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

al
te

ra
tio

n 
of

 
th

e 
co

ur
se

 o
f a

 st
re

am
 o

r r
iv

er
 o

r t
hr

ou
gh

 th
e 

ad
di

tio
n 

of
 im

pe
rv

io
us

 su
rf

ac
es

, i
n 

a 
m

an
ne

r w
hi

ch
 

w
ou

ld
: (

i) 
re

su
lt 

in
 su

bs
ta

nt
ia

l e
ro

si
on

 o
r s

ilt
at

io
n 

on
- o

r o
ff

-s
ite

; (
ii)

 su
bs

ta
nt

ia
lly

 in
cr

ea
se

 th
e 

ra
te

 o
r 

am
ou

nt
 o

f s
ur

fa
ce

 ru
no

ff
 in

 a
 m

an
ne

r w
hi

ch
 w

ou
ld

 
re

su
lt 

in
 fl

oo
di

ng
 o

n-
 o

r o
ff-

si
te

; (
iii

) c
re

at
e 

or
 

co
nt

rib
ut

e 
ru

no
ff

 w
at

er
 w

hi
ch

 w
ou

ld
 ex

ce
ed

 th
e 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 o
f e

xi
st

in
g 

or
 p

la
nn

ed
 st

or
m

w
at

er
 d

ra
in

ag
e 

sy
st

em
s o

r p
ro

vi
de

 su
bs

ta
nt

ia
l a

dd
iti

on
al

 so
ur

ce
s o

f 
po

llu
te

d 
ru

no
ff

; o
r (

iv
) i

m
pe

de
 o

r r
ed

ire
ct

 fl
oo

d 
flo

w
s 

SC
V

 W
at

er
 

SC
V

 W
at

er
 

C
on

fir
m

 th
at

 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

 is
 

in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 in
to

 
de

si
gn

 sp
ec

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 

D
es

ig
n 

Ph
as

e 
__

__
__

__
__

_ 

N
oi

se
 

SC
V

 W
at

er
 Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

A
ct

io
n 

fo
r S

P4
.9

-1
 a

nd
 M

V
4.

6-
1:

 
SC

V
 W

at
er

 sh
al

l e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 p
ro

po
se

d 
Pr

oj
ec

t c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
ad

he
re

s t
o 

th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 o
f t

he
 C

ou
nt

y 
of

 L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 
O

rd
in

an
ce

 1
2.

08
.4

40
 “

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
N

oi
se

” 
w

hi
ch

 p
ro

hi
bi

ts
 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 b
et

w
ee

n 
w

ee
kd

ay
 h

ou
rs

 o
f 7

:0
0 

p.
m

. a
nd

 
7:

00
 a

.m
., 

or
 a

t a
ny

 ti
m

e 
on

 S
un

da
ys

 o
r h

ol
id

ay
s. 

Im
pa

ct
 5

.1
3a

 –
  

G
en

er
at

io
n 

of
 a

 su
bs

ta
nt

ia
l t

em
po

ra
ry

 o
r p

er
m

an
en

t 
in

cr
ea

se
 in

 a
m

bi
en

t n
oi

se
 le

ve
ls

 in
 th

e 
vi

ci
ni

ty
 o

f t
he

 
Pr

oj
ec

t i
n 

ex
ce

ss
 o

f s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 e

st
ab

lis
he

d 
in

 th
e 

lo
ca

l g
en

er
al

 p
la

n 
or

 n
oi

se
 o

rd
in

an
ce

, o
r a

pp
lic

ab
le

 
st

an
da

rd
s o

f o
th

er
 a

ge
nc

ie
s 

SC
V

 W
at

er
/ 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
C

on
tra

ct
or

 

SC
V

 W
at

er
 

C
on

fir
m

 th
at

 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
do

es
 n

ot
 

ta
ke

 p
la

ce
 b

et
w

ee
n 

w
ee

kd
ay

 h
ou

rs
 o

f 7
:0

0 
p.

m
. a

nd
 7

:0
0 

a.
m

., 
or

at
 a

ny
 ti

m
e 

on
Su

nd
ay

s o
r h

ol
id

ay
s

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
Ph

as
e 

__
__

__
__

__
_ 

T
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n 

SC
V

 W
at

er
 I

m
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
A

ct
io

n 
M

V
 4

.5
-7

: 
Pr

io
r 

to
 p

ro
je

ct
 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n,

 S
C

V
 W

at
er

 sh
al

l r
eq

ui
re

 it
s c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

co
nt

ra
ct

or
 to

 
pr

ep
ar

e 
an

d 
im

pl
em

en
t a

 T
ra

ff
ic

 C
on

tro
l P

la
n,

 to
 b

e 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
SC

V
 W

at
er

 p
ro

je
ct

 m
an

ag
er

. T
he

 T
ra

ff
ic

 C
on

tro
l P

la
n 

sh
al

l, 
at

 
m

in
im

um
: 

•
Id

en
tif

y 
st

ag
in

g 
lo

ca
tio

ns
 to

 b
e 

us
ed

 d
ur

in
g 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n;

•
Id

en
tif

y 
sa

fe
 in

gr
es

s a
nd

 e
gr

es
s p

oi
nt

s f
ro

m
 st

ag
in

g 
ar

ea
s;

•
Es

ta
bl

is
h 

ha
ul

 
ro

ut
es

 
fo

r 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n-
re

la
te

d 
ve

hi
cl

e
tra

ff
ic

; a
nd

 
•

Id
en

tif
y 

al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

sa
fe

 ro
ut

es
 to

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
pe

de
st

ria
n 

an
d

bi
cy

cl
is

t s
af

et
y 

du
rin

g 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n.

Th
e 

Tr
af

fic
 C

on
tro

l P
la

n 
sh

al
l i

nc
lu

de
 p

ro
vi

si
on

s f
or

 tr
af

fic
 c

on
tro

l 
m

ea
su

re
s 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
ba

rr
ic

ad
es

, 
w

ar
ni

ng
 s

ig
ns

, 
co

ne
s, 

lig
ht

s, 
an

d 

Im
pa

ct
 5

.1
7d

 –
 

R
es

ul
t i

n 
in

ad
eq

ua
te

 e
m

er
ge

nc
y 

ac
ce

ss
. 

SC
V

 W
at

er
, 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
C

on
tra

ct
or

 

SC
V

 W
at

er
, 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
C

on
tra

ct
or

 

SC
V

 W
at

er
 

SC
V

 W
at

er
 

En
su

re
 b

id
 d

oc
s 

re
qu

ire
 th

e 
co

nt
ra

ct
or

 
to

 p
re

pa
re

 a
 T

ra
ff

ic
 

C
on

tro
l P

la
n 

to
 b

e 
im

pl
em

en
te

d 
du

rin
g 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

En
su

re
 m

ea
su

re
s i

n 
tra

ff
ic

 c
on

tro
l p

la
n 

ar
e 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

du
rin

g 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 

D
es

ig
n/

C
on

tra
ct

in
g 

Ph
as

e 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
Ph

as
e 

__
__

__
__

__
 

__
__

__
_ _

__
 

436



M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

on
ito

rin
g 

an
d 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
Pr

og
ra

m
 

 
7 

 
 

SC
V

 W
at

er
 

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

 R
es

er
vo

ir 
an

d 
Pu

m
p 

St
at

io
n 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
02

2  

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
 

Im
pa

ct
 S

ta
te

m
en

t(s
) 

Pa
rt

y 
R

es
po

ns
ib

le
 

fo
r I

m
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
an

d 
R

ep
or

tin
g 

R
ev

ie
w

 a
nd

 
A

pp
ro

va
l b

y:
 

M
on

ito
rin

g 
an

d 
R

ep
or

tin
g 

A
ct

io
ns

 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

Sc
he

du
le

 

Ve
rif

ic
at

io
n:

 
St

at
us

/ D
at

e 
C

om
pl

et
ed

/ 
In

iti
al

s 
fla

g 
pe

rs
on

s, 
to

 
al

lo
w

 
sa

fe
 

ci
rc

ul
at

io
n 

of
 

ve
hi

cl
e,

 
bi

cy
cl

e,
 

pe
de

st
ria

n,
 a

nd
 e

m
er

ge
nc

y 
re

sp
on

se
 tr

af
fic

. 

SC
V

 W
at

er
’s

 p
ro

je
ct

 m
an

ag
er

 sh
al

l c
oo

rd
in

at
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 

em
er

ge
nc

y 
se

rv
ic

es
 (f

ire
, p

ol
ic

e,
 o

r o
th

er
s)

 a
nd

 th
e 

lo
ca

l m
un

ic
ip

al
 

ju
ris

di
ct

io
n 

to
 n

ot
ify

 th
es

e 
en

tit
ie

s r
eg

ar
di

ng
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

sc
he

du
le

, 
pr

oj
ec

t s
iti

ng
, a

nd
 p

ot
en

tia
l d

el
ay

s 
du

e 
to

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n,
 r

oa
dw

ay
s 

an
d 

ac
ce

ss
 p

oi
nt

s f
or

 e
m

er
ge

nc
y 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
nd

 m
in

im
iz

e 
di

sr
up

tio
ns

 
to

 o
r c

lo
su

re
s o

f t
he

se
 lo

ca
tio

ns
. 

.  

437



M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

on
ito

rin
g 

an
d 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
Pr

og
ra

m
 

 
8 

 
 

SC
V

 W
at

er
 

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

 R
es

er
vo

ir 
an

d 
Pu

m
p 

St
at

io
n 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
02

2  

Ta
bl

e 
2:

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

on
ito

rin
g 

an
d 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
Pr

og
ra

m
 C

he
ck

lis
t –

 B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

 P
um

p 
St

at
io

n 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
 

Im
pa

ct
 S

ta
te

m
en

t(s
) 

Pa
rt

y 
R

es
po

ns
ib

le
 

fo
r I

m
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
an

d 
R

ep
or

tin
g 

R
ev

ie
w

 a
nd

 
A

pp
ro

va
l b

y:
 

M
on

ito
rin

g 
an

d 
R

ep
or

tin
g 

A
ct

io
ns

 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

Sc
he

du
le

 

Ve
rif

ic
at

io
n:

 
St

at
us

/ D
at

e 
C

om
pl

et
ed

/ 
In

iti
al

s 

A
ir

 Q
ua

lit
y 

an
d 

G
re

en
ho

us
e 

G
as

 E
m

is
si

on
s 

SC
V

 W
at

er
 I

m
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
A

ct
io

n 
fo

r 
SP

 4
.1

0-
7:

 S
C

V
 W

at
er

 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

A
ct

io
n 

fo
r 

SP
 4

.1
0-

7:
 T

o 
pr

ev
en

t 
ex

ce
ss

iv
e 

em
is

si
on

s 
of

 c
rit

er
ia

 p
ol

lu
ta

nt
s 

an
d 

gr
ee

nh
ou

se
 g

as
es

 to
 th

e 
ex

te
nt

 
fe

as
ib

le
, S

C
V

 W
at

er
 w

ill
 p

re
pa

re
 b

id
 d

oc
um

en
ts

 sp
ec

ify
in

g 
th

at
  

•
te

m
po

ra
ry

 t
ra

ff
ic

 c
on

tro
ls

 (
e.

g.
, 

si
gn

ag
e,

 f
la

g 
pe

rs
on

,
de

to
ur

s)
 b

e 
im

pl
em

en
te

d 
w

he
n 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 h
av

e
po

te
nt

ia
l t

o 
di

sr
up

t t
ra

ff
ic

 in
 o

rd
er

 to
 m

ai
nt

ai
n 

tra
ff

ic
 fl

ow
•

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 th
at

 a
ff

ec
t t

ra
ff

ic
 fl

ow
 b

e 
sc

he
du

le
d

to
 o

ff
-p

ea
k 

ho
ur

s (
e.

g.
, b

et
w

ee
n 

7:
00

 P
M

 a
nd

 6
:0

0 
A

M
 a

nd
be

tw
ee

n 
10

:0
0 

A
M

 a
nd

 3
:0

0 
PM

)
•

on
-s

ite
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

tru
ck

s 
m

ay
 n

ot
 id

le
 f

or
 lo

ng
er

 th
an

 2
m

in
ut

es
•

us
e 

el
ec

tri
c 

ve
hi

cl
es

 w
he

n 
fe

as
ib

le
•

us
e 

 p
ow

er
 p

ol
es

 in
st

ea
d 

of
 g

as
ol

in
e 

an
d 

di
es

el
-p

ow
er

ed
ge

ne
ra

to
rs

Im
pa

ct
 5

.3
b 

– 
R

es
ul

t i
n 

a 
cu

m
ul

at
iv

el
y 

co
ns

id
er

ab
le

 n
et

 in
cr

ea
se

 
of

 
 a

ny
 c

rit
er

ia
 p

ol
lu

ta
nt

 fo
r w

hi
ch

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

re
gi

on
 is

 n
on

- a
tta

in
m

en
t u

nd
er

 a
n 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 

fe
de

ra
l o

r s
ta

te
 a

m
bi

en
t a

ir 
qu

al
ity

 st
an

da
rd

. 

Im
pa

ct
 5

.8
a 

– 
G

en
er

at
e 

gr
ee

nh
ou

se
 g

as
 e

m
is

si
on

s, 
ei

th
er

 d
ire

ct
ly

 
or

 in
di

re
ct

ly
, t

ha
t m

ay
 h

av
e 

a 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 im
pa

ct
 o

n 
th

e 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t 

Im
pa

ct
 5

.8
b 

– 
 

C
on

fli
ct

 w
ith

 a
n 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 p

la
n,

 p
ol

ic
y 

or
 

re
gu

la
tio

n 
ad

op
te

d 
fo

r t
he

 p
ur

po
se

 o
f r

ed
uc

in
g 

th
e 

em
is

si
on

s o
f g

re
en

ho
us

e 
ga

se
s.  

SC
V

 W
at

er
 

C
on

tra
ct

or
 

SC
V

 W
at

er
 

SC
V

 W
at

er
 

C
on

fir
m

 m
iti

ga
tio

n 
m

ea
su

re
 is

 
in

co
rp

or
at

ed
 in

to
 

co
nt

ra
ct

 d
oc

um
en

ts
 

C
on

fir
m

 m
ea

su
re

 is
 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

du
rin

g 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n  

C
on

tra
ct

in
g/

Pr
e-

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 

__
__

__
__

__
 

__
__

__
__

_ 

B
io

lo
gi

ca
l R

es
ou

rc
es

 

SC
V

 W
at

er
 I

m
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
A

ct
io

n 
fo

r 
SP

 4
.6

-3
5:

 S
C

V
 W

at
er

 
sh

al
l p

re
pa

re
 b

id
 d

oc
um

en
ts

 th
at

 s
pe

ci
fy

 th
at

 a
 q

ua
lif

ie
d 

bi
ol

og
is

t 
w

ill
 c

oo
rd

in
at

e 
w

ith
 t

he
 g

ra
di

ng
 c

on
tra

ct
or

 t
o 

en
su

re
 o

n-
si

te
 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 a
vo

id
 i

m
pa

ct
s 

to
 a

dj
ac

en
t 

of
f- s

ite
 a

re
as

 
co

nt
ai

ni
ng

 n
at

iv
e 

ve
ge

ta
tio

n.
 T

hi
s 

m
ay

 i
nv

ol
ve

 f
la

gg
in

g 
an

d/
or

 
w

or
ke

r e
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l a
w

ar
en

es
s t

ra
in

in
g.

 

Im
pa

ct
 5

.4
a 

– 
Po

te
nt

ia
l t

o 
ha

ve
 a

 su
bs

ta
nt

ia
l a

dv
er

se
 e

ff
ec

t, 
ei

th
er

 
di

re
ct

ly
 o

r t
hr

ou
gh

 h
ab

ita
t m

od
ifi

ca
tio

ns
, o

n 
an

y 
sp

ec
ie

s i
de

nt
ifi

ed
 a

s a
 c

an
di

da
te

, s
en

si
tiv

e,
 o

r 
sp

ec
ia

l s
ta

tu
s s

pe
ci

es
 in

 lo
ca

l o
r r

eg
io

na
l p

la
ns

, 
po

lic
ie

s, 
or

 re
gu

la
tio

ns
, o

r b
y 

th
e 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f F
is

h 
an

d 
G

am
e 

or
 U

.S
. F

is
h 

an
d 

W
ild

lif
e 

Se
rv

ic
e.

 

SC
V

 W
at

er
 

G
ra

di
ng

 c
on

tra
ct

or
 

SC
V

 W
at

er
 

SC
V

 W
at

er
 

C
on

fir
m

 th
at

 c
on

tra
ct

 
do

cu
m

en
ts

 in
cl

ud
e 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
m

ea
su

re
  

En
su

re
 b

io
lo

gi
st

 
co

or
di

na
te

s w
ith

 
gr

ad
in

g 
co

nt
ra

ct
or

 to
 

av
oi

d 
im

pa
ct

s t
o 

na
tiv

e 
ve

ge
ta

tio
n 

in
 

of
fs

ite
 a

re
as

 

C
on

tra
ct

in
g 

Ph
as

e 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
Ph

as
e 

__
__

__
__

__
 

__
__

_ _
__

__
 

SC
V

 W
at

er
 Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

A
ct

io
n 

fo
r S

P 
4.

6-
56

: S
C

V
 W

at
er

 
sh

al
l p

re
pa

re
 b

id
 d

oc
um

en
ts

 th
at

 sp
ec

ify
 th

at
 a

t a
ll 

lig
ht

in
g 

al
on

g 
th

e 
pe

rim
et

er
, i

f a
ny

, s
ha

ll 
be

 d
ow

nc
as

t l
um

in
ai

re
s w

ith
 li

gh
t 

pa
tte

rn
s d

ire
ct

ed
 a

w
ay

 fr
om

 th
e 

un
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

ar
ea

s t
o 

av
oi

d 
lig

ht
 

sp
ill

ag
e 

on
to

 w
ild

lif
e 

ha
bi

ta
t.  

Im
pa

ct
 5

.4
a 

– 
Po

te
nt

ia
l t

o 
ha

ve
 a

 su
bs

ta
nt

ia
l a

dv
er

se
 e

ff
ec

t, 
ei

th
er

 
di

re
ct

ly
 o

r t
hr

ou
gh

 h
ab

ita
t m

od
ifi

ca
tio

ns
, o

n 
an

y 
sp

ec
ie

s i
de

nt
ifi

ed
 a

s a
 c

an
di

da
te

, s
en

si
tiv

e,
 o

r 
sp

ec
ia

l s
ta

tu
s s

pe
ci

es
 in

 lo
ca

l o
r r

eg
io

na
l p

la
ns

, 
po

lic
ie

s, 
or

 re
gu

la
tio

ns
, o

r b
y 

th
e 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f F
is

h 
an

d 
G

am
e 

or
 U

.S
. F

is
h 

an
d 

W
ild

lif
e 

Se
rv

ic
e.

 

SC
V

 W
at

er
 

SC
V

 W
at

er
 

C
on

fir
m

 th
at

 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

 is
 

in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 in
to

 
de

si
gn

 sp
ec

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 

D
es

ig
n 

Ph
as

e 
__

__
__

__
__

 

438



M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

on
ito

rin
g 

an
d 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
Pr

og
ra

m
 

 
9 

 
 

SC
V

 W
at

er
 

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

 R
es

er
vo

ir 
an

d 
Pu

m
p 

St
at

io
n 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
02

2  

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
 

Im
pa

ct
 S

ta
te

m
en

t(s
) 

Pa
rt

y 
R

es
po

ns
ib

le
 

fo
r I

m
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
an

d 
R

ep
or

tin
g 

R
ev

ie
w

 a
nd

 
A

pp
ro

va
l b

y:
 

M
on

ito
rin

g 
an

d 
R

ep
or

tin
g 

A
ct

io
ns

 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

Sc
he

du
le

 

Ve
rif

ic
at

io
n:

 
St

at
us

/ D
at

e 
C

om
pl

et
ed

/ 
In

iti
al

s 
SC

V
 W

at
er

 Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
A

ct
io

n 
fo

r M
V

 4
.3

-5
 a

nd
 M

V
 4

.3
-7

: 
A

 p
re

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

re
pt

ile
 su

rv
ey

 sh
al

l b
e 

pe
rf

or
m

ed
 w

ith
in

 fi
ve

 
da

ys
 p

rio
r t

o 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
to

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

if 
an

y 
of

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
sp

ec
ie

s a
re

 p
re

se
nt

: c
oa

st
al

 w
hi

pt
ai

l, 
W

es
te

rn
 p

on
d 

tu
rtl

e,
 o

r c
oa

st
 

ho
rn

ed
 li

za
rd

. I
f a

ny
 o

f t
he

se
 sp

ec
ie

s a
re

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 to
 o

cc
ur

, a
 

bi
ol

og
ic

al
 m

on
ito

r s
ha

ll 
be

 o
n-

si
te

 d
ur

in
g 

al
l c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

ac
tiv

iti
es

.  

Im
pa

ct
 5

.4
a 

– 
Po

te
nt

ia
l t

o 
ha

ve
 a

 su
bs

ta
nt

ia
l a

dv
er

se
 e

ff
ec

t, 
ei

th
er

 
di

re
ct

ly
 o

r t
hr

ou
gh

 h
ab

ita
t m

od
ifi

ca
tio

ns
, o

n 
an

y 
sp

ec
ie

s i
de

nt
ifi

ed
 a

s a
 c

an
di

da
te

, s
en

si
tiv

e,
 o

r 
sp

ec
ia

l s
ta

tu
s s

pe
ci

es
 in

 lo
ca

l o
r r

eg
io

na
l p

la
ns

, 
po

lic
ie

s, 
or

 re
gu

la
tio

ns
, o

r b
y 

th
e 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f F
is

h 
an

d 
G

am
e 

or
 U

.S
. F

is
h 

an
d 

W
ild

lif
e 

Se
rv

ic
e.

 

SC
V

 W
at

er
 

SC
V

 W
at

er
/ 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
C

on
tra

ct
or

 

SC
V

 W
at

er
 

SC
V

 W
at

er
 

C
on

fir
m

 th
at

 c
on

tra
ct

 
do

cu
m

en
ts

 in
cl

ud
e 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
m

ea
su

re
  

En
su

re
 re

pt
ile

 su
rv

ey
 

is
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 w
ith

in
 5

 
da

ys
 p

rio
r t

o 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
an

d 
im

pl
em

en
t f

ol
lo

w
 u

p 
ac

tio
ns

 if
 sp

ec
ie

s a
re

 
fo

un
d.

 

C
on

tra
ct

in
g 

Ph
as

e 

Pr
e-

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
Ph

as
e  

__
__

__
__

__
 

SC
V

 W
at

er
 Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

A
ct

io
n 

fo
r M

V
 4

.3
-1

5:
  A

 
pr

ec
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
bi

rd
 su

rv
ey

 sh
al

l b
e 

pe
rf

or
m

ed
 w

ith
in

 fi
ve

 d
ay

s 
pr

io
r t

o 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
to

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

if 
an

y 
of

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
sp

ec
ie

s 
ar

e 
pr

es
en

t: 
C

oo
pe

r’
s h

aw
k,

 w
hi

te
-ta

ile
d 

ki
te

, o
r l

ea
st

 B
el

l’s
 v

ire
o.

 
If

 a
ct

iv
e 

ne
st

s o
f a

ny
 o

f t
he

se
 sp

ec
ie

s a
re

 p
re

se
nt

, a
 3

00
-f

oo
t b

uf
fe

r 
sh

al
l b

e 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
ar

ou
nd

 th
e 

ne
st

. A
 b

io
lo

gi
ca

l m
on

ito
r s

ha
ll 

be
 

on
-s

ite
 d

ur
in

g 
al

l c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 if

 a
ny

 o
f t

he
se

 sp
ec

ie
s 

oc
cu

r. 
 

Im
pa

ct
 5

.4
a 

– 
Po

te
nt

ia
l t

o 
ha

ve
 a

 su
bs

ta
nt

ia
l a

dv
er

se
 e

ff
ec

t, 
ei

th
er

 
di

re
ct

ly
 o

r t
hr

ou
gh

 h
ab

ita
t m

od
ifi

ca
tio

ns
, o

n 
an

y 
sp

ec
ie

s i
de

nt
ifi

ed
 a

s a
 c

an
di

da
te

, s
en

si
tiv

e,
 o

r 
sp

ec
ia

l s
ta

tu
s s

pe
ci

es
 in

 lo
ca

l o
r r

eg
io

na
l p

la
ns

, 
po

lic
ie

s, 
or

 re
gu

la
tio

ns
, o

r b
y 

th
e 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f F
is

h 
an

d 
G

am
e 

or
 U

.S
. F

is
h 

an
d 

W
ild

lif
e 

Se
rv

ic
e.

 

SC
V

 W
at

er
 

SC
V

 W
at

er
/ 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
C

on
tra

ct
or

 

SC
V

 W
at

er
 

SC
V

 W
at

er
 

C
on

fir
m

 th
at

 c
on

tra
ct

 
do

cu
m

en
ts

 in
cl

ud
e 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
m

ea
su

re
  

En
su

re
 b

ird
 su

rv
ey

 is
 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 w

ith
in

 5
 

da
ys

 p
rio

r t
o 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

an
d 

im
pl

em
en

t f
ol

lo
w

 u
p 

ac
tio

ns
 if

 sp
ec

ie
s a

re
 

fo
un

d.
 

C
on

tra
ct

in
g 

Ph
as

e 

Pr
e-

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
Ph

as
e  

__
__

__
__

__
 

__
__

__
__

__
 

SC
V

 W
at

er
 Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

A
ct

io
n 

fo
r M

V
 4

.3
-5

2:
 S

C
V

 W
at

er
 

sh
al

l p
re

pa
re

 b
id

 d
oc

um
en

ts
 th

at
 sp

ec
ify

 th
at

 th
e 

SW
PP

P 
pr

ep
ar

ed
 

fo
r t

he
 p

ro
po

se
d 

Pr
oj

ec
t s

ha
ll 

in
co

rp
or

at
e 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
m

ea
su

re
s/

re
st

ric
tio

ns
 to

 a
vo

id
 im

pa
ct

s t
o 

ve
ge

ta
tio

n 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
 

an
d 

po
te

nt
ia

l s
pe

ci
al

-s
ta

tu
s p

la
nt

s a
nd

 w
ild

lif
e 

sp
ec

ie
s a

dj
ac

en
t t

o 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n:
 

•
A

vo
id

 p
la

nt
in

g 
or

 se
ed

in
g 

in
va

si
ve

 sp
ec

ie
s i

n 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t
ar

ea
s w

ith
in

 2
00

 fe
et

 o
f n

at
iv

e 
ve

ge
ta

tio
n 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

.

•
Th

e 
op

er
at

or
 s

ha
ll 

in
st

al
l 

an
d 

us
e 

fu
lly

 c
ov

er
ed

 t
ra

sh
re

ce
pt

ac
le

s t
o 

co
nt

ai
n 

al
l f

oo
d,

 fo
od

 sc
ra

ps
, f

oo
d 

w
ra

pp
er

s,
be

ve
ra

ge
 c

on
ta

in
er

s, 
an

d 
ot

he
r m

is
ce

lla
ne

ou
s 

tra
sh

. T
ra

sh
w

ill
 b

e 
re

gu
la

rly
 p

ic
ke

d 
up

 in
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

ar
ea

s.

•
Th

e 
op

er
at

or
 s

ha
ll 

no
t 

pe
rm

it 
pe

ts
 o

n 
or

 a
dj

ac
en

t 
to

 t
he

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

sit
e

Im
pa

ct
 5

.4
a 

– 
Po

te
nt

ia
l t

o 
ha

ve
 a

 su
bs

ta
nt

ia
l a

dv
er

se
 e

ff
ec

t, 
ei

th
er

 
di

re
ct

ly
 o

r t
hr

ou
gh

 h
ab

ita
t m

od
ifi

ca
tio

ns
, o

n 
an

y 
sp

ec
ie

s i
de

nt
ifi

ed
 a

s a
 c

an
di

da
te

, s
en

si
tiv

e,
 o

r 
sp

ec
ia

l s
ta

tu
s s

pe
ci

es
 in

 lo
ca

l o
r r

eg
io

na
l p

la
ns

, 
po

lic
ie

s, 
or

 re
gu

la
tio

ns
, o

r b
y 

th
e 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f F
is

h 
an

d 
G

am
e 

or
 U

.S
. F

is
h 

an
d 

W
ild

lif
e 

Se
rv

ic
e.

 

SC
V

 W
at

er
 

SC
V

 W
at

er
/ 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
C

on
tra

ct
or

 

SC
V

 W
at

er
 

SC
V

 W
at

er
 

C
on

fir
m

 th
at

 c
on

tra
ct

 
do

cu
m

en
ts

 in
cl

ud
e 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
m

ea
su

re
  

En
su

re
 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
du

rin
g 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n  

C
on

tra
ct

in
g 

Ph
as

e 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
Ph

as
e 

__
__

__
__

__
 

__
__

__
__

__
 

439



M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

on
ito

rin
g 

an
d 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
Pr

og
ra

m
 

 
10

  
 

SC
V

 W
at

er
 

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

 R
es

er
vo

ir 
an

d 
Pu

m
p 

St
at

io
n 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
02

2  

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
 

Im
pa

ct
 S

ta
te

m
en

t(s
) 

Pa
rt

y 
R

es
po

ns
ib

le
 

fo
r I

m
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
an

d 
R

ep
or

tin
g 

R
ev

ie
w

 a
nd

 
A

pp
ro

va
l b

y:
 

M
on

ito
rin

g 
an

d 
R

ep
or

tin
g 

A
ct

io
ns

 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

Sc
he

du
le

 

Ve
rif

ic
at

io
n:

 
St

at
us

/ D
at

e 
C

om
pl

et
ed

/ 
In

iti
al

s 

C
ul

tu
ra

l R
es

ou
rc

es
, T

ri
ba

l C
ul

tu
ra

l R
es

ou
rc

es
 

SC
V

 W
at

er
 I

m
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
A

ct
io

n 
fo

r 
M

V
 4

.2
0-

1 
an

d 
SP

 4
.3

-3
: 

In
 th

e e
ve

nt
 th

at
 cu

ltu
ra

l r
es

ou
rc

es
 ar

e 
ex

po
se

d 
du

rin
g 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n,

 
w

or
k 

in
 th

e i
m

m
ed

ia
te

 v
ic

in
ity

 o
f t

he
 fi

nd
 m

us
t s

to
p 

un
til

 a 
qu

al
ifi

ed
 

ar
ch

ae
ol

og
is

t c
an

 ev
al

ua
te

 th
e s

ig
ni

fic
an

ce
 o

f t
he

 fi
nd

. C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 m

ay
 c

on
tin

ue
 in

 o
th

er
 a

re
as

. I
f t

he
 d

is
co

ve
ry

 is
 e

va
lu

at
ed

 
as

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t 

un
de

r 
C

EQ
A

, 
av

oi
da

nc
e,

 t
es

tin
g 

or
 d

at
a 

re
co

ve
ry

 
an

d/
or

 o
th

er
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 m

ea
su

re
s s

ha
ll 

be
 p

ro
vi

de
d.

 

Im
pa

ct
 4

.5
a 

– 
Po

te
nt

ia
l t

o 
ca

us
e 

a 
su

bs
ta

nt
ia

l a
dv

er
se

 c
ha

ng
e 

in
 

th
e 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e 

of
 a

 h
is

to
ric

al
 re

so
ur

ce
 p

ur
su

an
t t

o 
§1

50
64

.5
.

Im
pa

ct
 4

.5
b 

– 
Po

te
nt

ia
l t

o 
ca

us
e 

a 
su

bs
ta

nt
ia

l a
dv

er
se

 c
ha

ng
e 

in
 

th
e 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e 

of
 a

 u
ni

qu
e 

ar
ch

ae
ol

og
ic

al
 re

so
ur

ce
 

pu
rs

ua
nt

 to
 §

15
06

4.
5 

Im
pa

ct
 4

.5
c 

– 
D

is
tu

rb
 a

ny
 h

um
an

 re
m

ai
ns

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 th

os
e 

in
te

rr
ed

 
ou

ts
id

e 
of

 d
ed

ic
at

ed
 c

em
et

er
ie

s. 

Im
pa

ct
 5

.1
8a

 –
 

Po
te

nt
ia

l t
o 

ca
us

e 
a 

su
bs

ta
nt

ia
l a

dv
er

se
 c

ha
ng

e 
in

 
th

e 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nc

e 
of

 a
 tr

ib
al

 c
ul

tu
ra

l r
es

ou
rc

e,
 d

ef
in

ed
 

in
 P

ub
lic

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 C

od
e 

se
ct

io
n 

21
07

4 
as

 e
ith

er
 a

 
si

te
, f

ea
tu

re
, p

la
ce

, c
ul

tu
ra

l l
an

ds
ca

pe
 th

at
 is

 
ge

og
ra

ph
ic

al
ly

 d
ef

in
ed

 in
 te

rm
s o

f t
he

 si
ze

 a
nd

 
sc

op
e 

of
 th

e 
la

nd
sc

ap
e,

 sa
cr

ed
 p

la
ce

, o
r o

bj
ec

t w
ith

 
cu

ltu
ra

l v
al

ue
 to

 a
 C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 N
at

iv
e 

A
m

er
ic

an
 tr

ib
e,

 
an

d 
th

at
 is

: L
ist

ed
 o

r e
lig

ib
le

 fo
r l

is
tin

g 
in

 th
e 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 R

eg
is

te
r o

f H
is

to
ric

al
 R

es
ou

rc
es

, o
r i

n 
a 

lo
ca

l r
eg

is
te

r o
f h

is
to

ric
al

 re
so

ur
ce

s a
s d

ef
in

ed
 in

 
Pu

bl
ic

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 C

od
e 

se
ct

io
n 

50
20

.1
(k

), 
or

 a
 

re
so

ur
ce

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

le
ad

 a
ge

nc
y,

 in
 it

s 
di

sc
re

tio
n 

an
d 

su
pp

or
te

d 
by

 su
bs

ta
nt

ia
l e

vi
de

nc
e,

 to
 

be
 si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 p
ur

su
an

t t
o 

cr
ite

ria
 se

t f
or

th
 in

 
su

bd
iv

is
io

n 
(c

) o
f P

ub
lic

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 C

od
e 

Se
ct

io
n 

50
24

.1
. I

n 
ap

pl
yi

ng
 th

e 
cr

ite
ria

 se
t f

or
th

 in
 

su
bd

iv
is

io
n 

(c
) o

f P
ub

lic
 R

es
ou

rc
es

 C
od

e 
Se

ct
io

n 
50

24
.1

, t
he

 le
ad

 a
ge

nc
y 

sh
al

l c
on

si
de

r t
he

 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nc

e 
of

 th
e 

re
so

ur
ce

 to
 a

 C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 N

at
iv

e 
A

m
er

ic
an

 tr
ib

e.
 

SC
V

 W
at

er
/ 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
C

on
tra

ct
or

 

SC
V

 W
at

er
 

If
 c

ul
tu

ra
l r

es
ou

rc
es

 
ar

e 
di

sc
ov

er
ed

 d
ur

in
g 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n,

 h
al

t 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 a

nd
 c

al
l 

ar
ch

ae
ol

og
is

t t
o 

ev
al

ua
te

 th
e 

fin
d 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
Ph

as
e 

__
__

__
__

__
 

G
eo

lo
gy

 a
nd

 S
oi

ls
 

SC
V

 W
at

er
 Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

A
ct

io
n 

fo
r M

V
 4

.1
-6

: S
C

V
 W

at
er

 
sh

al
l d

es
ig

n 
th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 P

ro
je

ct
 in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 o
f a

 p
ro

je
ct

-s
pe

ci
fic

 g
eo

te
ch

ni
ca

l r
ep

or
t t

o 
re

du
ce

 se
is

m
ic

-r
el

at
ed

 ri
sk

s. 
 

Im
pa

ct
 5

.7
a 

– 
 

D
ire

ct
ly

 o
r i

nd
ire

ct
ly

 c
au

se
 p

ot
en

tia
l s

ub
st

an
tia

l 
ad

ve
rs

e 
ef

fe
ct

s, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

ris
k 

of
 lo

ss
, 

in
ju

ry
, o

r d
ea

th
 in

vo
lv

in
g:

 (i
ii)

 S
ei

sm
ic

-r
el

at
ed

 
gr

ou
nd

 fa
ilu

re
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 li
qu

ef
ac

tio
n.

 

SC
V

 W
at

er
 

SC
V

 W
at

er
 

En
su

re
 d

es
ig

n 
pl

an
s 

ar
e 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 

pr
oj

ec
t g

eo
te

ch
ni

ca
l 

re
po

rt  

D
es

ig
n 

Ph
as

e 
__

__
__

__
__

 

440



M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

on
ito

rin
g 

an
d 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
Pr

og
ra

m
 

 
11

  
 

SC
V

 W
at

er
 

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

 R
es

er
vo

ir 
an

d 
Pu

m
p 

St
at

io
n 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
02

2  

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
 

Im
pa

ct
 S

ta
te

m
en

t(s
) 

Pa
rt

y 
R

es
po

ns
ib

le
 

fo
r I

m
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
an

d 
R

ep
or

tin
g 

R
ev

ie
w

 a
nd

 
A

pp
ro

va
l b

y:
 

M
on

ito
rin

g 
an

d 
R

ep
or

tin
g 

A
ct

io
ns

 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

Sc
he

du
le

 

Ve
rif

ic
at

io
n:

 
St

at
us

/ D
at

e 
C

om
pl

et
ed

/ 
In

iti
al

s 
SC

V
 W

at
er

 Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
A

ct
io

n 
fo

r M
V

 4
.1

-3
 (c

ov
er

s M
V

4.
1-

48
, M

V
 4

.1
-6

6)
: S

C
V

 W
at

er
 sh

al
l d

es
ig

n 
th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 P

ro
je

ct
 in

 
ac

co
rd

an
ce

 w
ith

 th
e 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 o
f a

 p
ro

je
ct

-s
pe

ci
fic

 
ge

ot
ec

hn
ic

al
 re

po
rt 

to
 re

du
ce

 ri
sk

s r
el

at
ed

 to
 e

xp
an

si
ve

 so
ils

. 

Im
pa

ct
 5

.7
d 

– 
 

B
e 

lo
ca

te
d 

on
 e

xp
an

si
ve

 so
il,

 a
s d

ef
in

ed
 in

 T
ab

le
 1

8 
1 

B
 o

f t
he

 U
ni

fo
rm

 B
ui

ld
in

g 
C

od
e 

(1
99

4)
, c

re
at

in
g 

su
bs

ta
nt

ia
l d

ire
ct

 o
r i

nd
ire

ct
 ri

sk
s t

o 
lif

e 
or

 p
ro

pe
rty

 

SC
V

 W
at

er
 

SC
V

 W
at

er
 

En
su

re
 d

es
ig

n 
pl

an
s 

ar
e 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 

pr
oj

ec
t g

eo
te

ch
ni

ca
l 

re
po

rt 

D
es

ig
n 

Ph
as

e 
__

__
__

__
__

 

SC
V

 W
at

er
 Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

A
ct

io
n 

fo
r S

P 
4.

3-
4:

 S
CV

 W
at

er
 

sh
al

l i
m

pl
em

en
t t

he
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 d

ur
in

g 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
of

 
th

e 
B

ac
kc

ou
nt

ry
 P

um
p 

St
at

io
n:

 
•

A
 P

ro
je

ct
 P

al
eo

nt
ol

og
is

t m
ee

tin
g 

So
ci

et
y 

of
 V

er
te

br
at

e
Pa

le
on

to
lo

gy
 (S

V
P)

 st
an

da
rd

s s
ha

ll 
pr

ep
ar

e 
a 

Pa
le

on
to

lo
gi

ca
l

R
es

ou
rc

es
 M

on
ito

rin
g 

an
d 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
Pl

an
 (P

R
M

M
P)

. T
hi

s
pl

an
 sh

al
l a

dd
re

ss
 sp

ec
ifi

cs
 o

f m
on

ito
rin

g 
an

d 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

an
d

co
m

pl
y 

w
ith

 th
e 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 S

V
P 

(2
01

0)
. T

he
Pr

oj
ec

t P
al

eo
nt

ol
og

is
t s

ha
ll 

al
so

 p
re

pa
re

 a
 re

po
rt 

of
 th

e
fin

di
ng

s o
f t

he
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

pl
an

 a
fte

r c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
is

co
m

pl
et

ed
.

•
Th

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t P
al

eo
nt

ol
og

is
t s

ha
ll 

de
ve

lo
p 

a 
W

or
ke

r’
s

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l A
w

ar
en

es
s P

ro
gr

am
 (W

EA
P)

 to
 tr

ai
n 

th
e

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

cr
ew

 o
n 

th
e 

le
ga

l r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 fo

r p
re

se
rv

in
g

fo
ss

il 
re

so
ur

ce
s, 

as
 w

el
l a

s p
ro

ce
du

re
s t

o 
fo

llo
w

 in
 th

e 
ev

en
t o

f
a 

fo
ss

il 
di

sc
ov

er
y.

 T
hi

s t
ra

in
in

g 
pr

og
ra

m
 sh

al
l b

e 
gi

ve
n 

to
 th

e
cr

ew
 b

ef
or

e 
gr

ou
nd

-d
is

tu
rb

in
g 

w
or

k 
co

m
m

en
ce

s a
nd

 w
ill

in
cl

ud
e 

ha
nd

ou
ts

 to
 b

e 
gi

ve
n 

to
 n

ew
 w

or
ke

rs
 a

s n
ee

de
d.

•
A

ll 
gr

ou
nd

 d
ist

ur
ba

nc
es

 in
 th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 P

ro
je

ct
 a

re
a 

th
at

oc
cu

r i
n 

pr
ev

io
us

ly
 u

nd
is

tu
rb

ed
 se

di
m

en
ts

 a
t d

ep
th

s g
re

at
er

th
an

 1
0 

fe
et

 b
el

ow
 g

ro
un

d 
su

rf
ac

e,
 w

hi
ch

 h
av

e 
th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l t

o
im

pa
ct

 o
ld

er
 se

di
m

en
ts

 o
f y

ou
ng

er
 a

llu
vi

um
, t

er
ra

ce
 d

ep
os

its
,

an
d/

or
 S

au
gu

s F
or

m
at

io
n 

th
at

 h
av

e 
H

ig
h 

pa
le

on
to

lo
gi

ca
l

se
ns

iti
vi

ty
, w

ill
 re

qu
ire

 m
on

ito
rin

g.
 T

he
 u

pp
er

m
os

t 1
0 

fe
et

 o
f

yo
un

ge
r a

llu
vi

um
 h

av
e 

Lo
w

 p
al

eo
nt

ol
og

ic
al

 se
ns

iti
vi

ty
;

th
er

ef
or

e,
 it

 is
 re

co
m

m
en

de
d 

th
at

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
be

gi
n 

at
ap

pr
ox

im
at

el
y 

10
 fe

et
 b

el
ow

 g
ro

un
d 

su
rfa

ce
.

•
M

on
ito

rin
g 

sh
al

l b
e 

co
nd

uc
te

d 
by

 a
 p

al
eo

nt
ol

og
ic

al
 m

on
ito

r
w

ho
 m

ee
ts

 th
e 

st
an

da
rd

s o
f t

he
 S

V
P 

(2
01

0)
. M

on
ito

rin
g 

w
ill

be
 c

on
du

ct
ed

 in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
PR

M
M

P 
an

d 
un

de
r t

he
su

pe
rv

is
io

n 
of

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t P

al
eo

nt
ol

og
ist

. T
he

 P
ro

je
ct

Pa
le

on
to

lo
gi

st 
m

ay
 p

er
io

di
ca

lly
 in

sp
ec

t c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
ac

tiv
iti

es
to

 a
dj

us
t t

he
 le

ve
l o

f m
on

ito
rin

g 
in

 re
sp

on
se

 to
 su

bs
ur

fa
ce

co
nd

iti
on

s. 
Fu

ll-
tim

e 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

ca
n 

be
 re

du
ce

d 
to

 p
ar

t-t
im

e
in

sp
ec

tio
ns

 o
r c

ea
se

d 
en

tir
el

y 
if 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 a

de
qu

at
e 

by
 th

e
Pr

oj
ec

t P
al

eo
nt

ol
og

is
t. 

Pa
le

on
to

lo
gi

ca
l m

on
ito

rin
g 

w
ill

in
cl

ud
e 

in
sp

ec
tio

n 
of

 e
xp

os
ed

 se
di

m
en

ta
ry

 u
ni

ts
 d

ur
in

g 
ac

tiv
e

ex
ca

va
tio

ns
 w

ith
in

 se
ns

iti
ve

 g
eo

lo
gi

c 
se

di
m

en
ts

. T
he

 m
on

ito
r

sh
al

l h
av

e 
au

th
or

ity
 to

 te
m

po
ra

ril
y 

di
ve

rt 
ac

tiv
ity

 a
w

ay
 fr

om
ex

po
se

d 
fo

ss
ils

 to
 e

va
lu

at
e 

th
e 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e 

of
 th

e 
fin

d 
an

d,

Im
pa

ct
 5

.7
f  

– 
 

Po
te

nt
ia

l t
o 

di
re

ct
ly

 o
r i

nd
ire

ct
ly

 d
es

tro
y 

a 
un

iq
ue

 
pa

le
on

to
lo

gi
ca

l r
es

ou
rc

e,
 o

r s
ite

, o
r u

ni
qu

e 
ge

ol
og

ic
 

fe
at

ur
e  

SC
V

 W
at

er
 

SC
V

 W
at

er
/ 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
C

on
tra

ct
or

 

SC
V

 W
at

er
 

SC
V

 W
at

er
 

C
on

fir
m

 th
at

 p
al

eo
 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
re

po
rt 

is
 

pr
ep

ar
ed

 a
nd

 w
or

ke
r 

aw
ar

en
es

s t
ra

in
in

g 
is

 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

pr
io

r t
o 

gr
ou

nd
 d

is
tu

rb
an

ce
 

En
su

re
 p

al
eo

 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

is 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

in
 

ac
co

rd
an

ce
 w

ith
 p

al
eo

 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

pl
an

, a
nd

 
co

nd
uc

t f
ol

lo
w

 u
p 

ac
tio

ns
 if

 p
al

eo
 

re
so

ur
ce

s a
re

 
di

sc
ov

er
ed

 

Pr
e-

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
Ph

as
e 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
Ph

as
e 

__
__

__
__

_
_ __

__
__

__
_ 

441



M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

on
ito

rin
g 

an
d 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
Pr

og
ra

m
 

 
12

  
 

SC
V

 W
at

er
 

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

 R
es

er
vo

ir 
an

d 
Pu

m
p 

St
at

io
n 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
02

2  

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
 

Im
pa

ct
 S

ta
te

m
en

t(s
) 

Pa
rt

y 
R

es
po

ns
ib

le
 

fo
r I

m
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
an

d 
R

ep
or

tin
g 

R
ev

ie
w

 a
nd

 
A

pp
ro

va
l b

y:
 

M
on

ito
rin

g 
an

d 
R

ep
or

tin
g 

A
ct

io
ns

 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

Sc
he

du
le

 

Ve
rif

ic
at

io
n:

 
St

at
us

/ D
at

e 
C

om
pl

et
ed

/ 
In

iti
al

s 
sh

ou
ld

 th
e 

fo
ss

ils
 b

e 
de

te
rm

in
ed

 to
 b

e 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

, 
pr

of
es

si
on

al
ly

 a
nd

 e
ff

ic
ie

nt
ly

 re
co

ve
r t

he
 fo

ss
il 

sp
ec

im
en

s a
nd

 
co

lle
ct

 a
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

da
ta

. P
al

eo
nt

ol
og

ic
al

 m
on

ito
rs

 sh
al

l r
ec

or
d 

pe
rti

ne
nt

 g
eo

lo
gi

c 
da

ta
 a

nd
 c

ol
le

ct
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 se

di
m

en
t 

sa
m

pl
es

 fr
om

 a
ny

 fo
ss

il 
lo

ca
lit

ie
s. 

•
In

 th
e 

ev
en

t o
f a

 fo
ss

il 
di

sc
ov

er
y,

 w
he

th
er

 b
y 

th
e

pa
le

on
to

lo
gi

ca
l m

on
ito

r o
r a

 m
em

be
r o

f t
he

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
cr

ew
,

al
l w

or
k 

sh
al

l c
ea

se
 w

ith
in

 a
 5

0-
fo

ot
 ra

di
us

 o
f t

he
 fi

nd
 w

hi
le

th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t P

al
eo

nt
ol

og
is

t a
ss

es
se

s t
he

 si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e 

of
 th

e
fo

ss
il 

an
d 

do
cu

m
en

ts
 it

s d
is

co
ve

ry
. S

ho
ul

d 
th

e 
fo

ss
il 

be
de

te
rm

in
ed

 si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
, i

t s
ha

ll 
be

 sa
lv

ag
ed

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
th

e
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 a
nd

 g
ui

de
lin

es
 o

f t
he

 S
V

P 
(1

99
5,

 2
01

0)
.

R
ec

ov
er

ed
 fo

ss
ils

 sh
al

l b
e 

pr
ep

ar
ed

 to
 th

e 
po

in
t o

f c
ur

at
io

n,
id

en
tif

ie
d 

by
 q

ua
lif

ie
d 

ex
pe

rts
, l

is
te

d 
in

 a
 d

at
ab

as
e 

to
 fa

ci
lit

at
e

an
al

ys
is

, a
nd

 d
ep

os
ite

d 
in

 a
 d

es
ig

na
te

d 
pa

le
on

to
lo

gi
ca

l
cu

ra
tio

n 
fa

ci
lit

y.
 A

 re
po

si
to

ry
 sh

al
l b

e 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

an
d 

a
cu

ra
to

ria
l a

rr
an

ge
m

en
t s

ha
ll 

be
 si

gn
ed

 p
rio

r t
o 

co
lle

ct
io

n 
of

th
e 

fo
ss

ils
.

H
az

ar
ds

 a
nd

 H
az

ar
do

us
 M

at
er

ia
ls

, W
ild

fir
e 

SC
V

 W
at

er
 I

m
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
A

ct
io

n 
fo

r 
M

V
 4

.1
8-

3 
an

d 
4.

12
-5

: 
SC

V
 W

at
er

 s
ha

ll 
en

su
re

 t
he

 p
ro

po
se

d 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
pl

an
s 

ad
he

re
 t

o 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 in

 th
e 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 C
od

e 
fo

r V
er

y 
H

ig
h 

Fi
re

 H
az

ar
d 

Se
ve

rit
y 

Zo
ne

s. 
A

dd
iti

on
al

ly
, 

SC
V

 W
at

er
 s

ha
ll 

pr
ep

ar
e 

pr
oj

ec
t b

id
 d

oc
um

en
ts

 th
at

 s
pe

ci
fy

 f
ire

 
pr

ev
en

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s t
ha

t m
us

t b
e 

in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 d
ur

in
g 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

to
 m

in
im

iz
e 

th
e 

ris
k 

of
 w

ild
fir

e.
 M

ea
su

re
s s

ha
ll 

in
cl

ud
e,

 b
ut

 n
ot

 b
e 

lim
ite

d 
to

:  

•
St

ag
in

g 
ar

ea
s, 

w
el

di
ng

 a
re

as
, o

r 
ar

ea
s 

sl
at

ed
 f

or
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

sh
al

l b
e c

le
ar

ed
 o

f d
rie

d 
ve

ge
ta

tio
n 

or
 o

th
er

 m
at

er
ia

ls
 th

at
 co

ul
d

ig
ni

te
.

•
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

eq
ui

pm
en

t t
ha

t i
nc

lu
de

s 
a 

sp
ar

k 
ar

re
st

or
 s

ha
ll 

be
m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
in

 g
oo

d 
w

or
ki

ng
 o

rd
er

. 
In

 a
dd

iti
on

, 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n
cr

ew
s s

ha
ll 

ha
ve

 a
 sp

ot
te

r d
ur

in
g 

w
el

di
ng

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
 to

 lo
ok

 o
ut

fo
r p

ot
en

tia
lly

 d
an

ge
ro

us
 si

tu
at

io
ns

, s
uc

h 
as

 a
cc

id
en

ta
l s

pa
rk

s.
•

O
th

er
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

eq
ui

pm
en

t s
ha

ll 
be

 k
ep

t i
n 

go
od

 w
or

ki
ng

or
de

r a
nd

 u
se

d 
on

ly
 w

ith
in

 c
le

ar
ed

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
zo

ne
s.

Im
pa

ct
 5

.9
g 

– 
Ex

po
se

 p
eo

pl
e 

or
 st

ru
ct

ur
es

, e
ith

er
 d

ire
ct

ly
 o

r 
in

di
re

ct
ly

, 
to

 a
 si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 ri
sk

 o
f l

os
s, 

in
ju

ry
 o

r 
de

at
h 

in
vo

lv
in

g 
w

ild
la

nd
 fi

re
s. 

Im
pa

ct
 5

.2
0b

 –
  

D
ue

 to
 sl

op
e,

 p
re

va
ili

ng
 w

in
ds

, a
nd

 o
th

er
 fa

ct
or

s, 
ex

ac
er

ba
te

 w
ild

fir
e 

ris
ks

, a
nd

 th
er

eb
y 

ex
po

se
 p

ro
je

ct
 

oc
cu

pa
nt

s t
o,

 p
ol

lu
ta

nt
 c

on
ce

nt
ra

tio
ns

 fr
om

 a
 

w
ild

fir
e 

or
 th

e 
un

co
nt

ro
lle

d 
sp

re
ad

 o
f a

 w
ild

fir
e.

 

Im
pa

ct
 5

.2
0c

-  
R

eq
ui

re
 th

e 
in

st
al

la
tio

n 
or

 m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 o
f 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 in

fr
as

tru
ct

ur
e 

(s
uc

h 
as

 ro
ad

s, 
fu

el
 b

re
ak

s, 
em

er
ge

nc
y 

w
at

er
 so

ur
ce

s, 
po

w
er

 li
ne

s o
r o

th
er

 
ut

ili
tie

s)
 th

at
 m

ay
 e

xa
ce

rb
at

e 
fir

e 
ris

k 
or

 th
at

 m
ay

 
re

su
lt 

in
 te

m
po

ra
ry

 o
r o

ng
oi

ng
 im

pa
ct

s t
o 

th
e 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t?

 

SC
V

 W
at

er
, 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
C

on
tra

ct
or

 

SC
V

 W
at

er
, 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
C

on
tra

ct
or

 

SC
V

 W
at

er
 

SC
V

 W
at

er
 

En
su

re
 b

id
 d

oc
s 

in
cl

ud
e 

fir
e 

pr
ev

en
tio

n 
m

ea
su

re
s t

o 
be

 
im

pl
em

en
te

d 
du

rin
g 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

En
su

re
 fi

re
 p

re
ve

nt
io

n 
m

ea
su

re
s a

re
 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

du
rin

g 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
  

D
es

ig
n/

C
on

tra
ct

in
g 

Ph
as

e 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
Ph

as
e 

__
__

__
__

__
 

__
__

__
__

__
 

442



Attachment A - Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program  SCV Water 
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project November 2022  

ATTACHMENT A 

Applicable Mitigation Measures from the Mission Village EIR 

443



[This page intentionally left blank.] 

444



Attachment A - Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program  SCV Water 
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project November 2022  

Mitigation Measures from Mission Village EIR  
Applicable to Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project 

Visual Qualities 

SP 4.7-1 
In conjunction with the development review process set forth in Chapter 5 of the Specific Plan, all future subdivision maps and other discretionary 
permits which allow construction shall incorporate the Development Guidelines (Specific Plan, Chapter 3) and Design Guidelines (Specific Plan 
Chapter 4), and the design themes and view considerations listed in the Specific Plan (Mission Village Vesting Tentative Tract Map 61105 and the 
applicable related discretionary permits incorporate the Specific Plan Development and Design Guidelines consistent with the requirements of the 
Specific Plan and this mitigation measure). 

Air Quality 

SP 4.10-7 

Prior to the approval of each future subdivision proposed in association with the Newhall Ranch Specific Plan, each of the construction emission 
reduction measures indicated below (and in Tables 11-2 and 11-3 of the SCAQMD’s CEQA Air Quality Handbook, as amended) shall be 
implemented if found applicable and feasible for that subdivision.  

On-Road Mobile Source Construction Emissions 

a. Configure construction parking to minimize traffic interference.

b. Provide temporary traffic controls when construction activities have the potential to disrupt traffic to maintain traffic flow (e.g., signage,
flag person, detours).

c. Schedule construction activities that affect traffic flow to off-peak hours (e.g., between 7:00 PM and 6:00 AM and between 10:00 AM
and 3:00 PM).

d. Develop a trip reduction plan to achieve a 1.5 average vehicle ridership (AVR) for construction employees.

e. Implement a shuttle service to and from retail services and food establishments during lunch hours.

f. Develop a construction traffic management plan that includes the following measures to address construction traffic that has the potential
to affect traffic on public streets:

o Rerouting construction traffic off congested streets;

o Consolidating truck deliveries; and

o Providing  temporary  dedicated  turn  lanes  for movement of construction trucks and equipment on and off of the site.

g. Prohibit truck idling in excess of 2 minutes.

Off-Road Mobile Source Construction Emissions 

h. Use methanol-fueled pile drivers.

i. Suspend use of all construction equipment operations during second stage smog alerts.

j. Prevent trucks from idling longer than 2 minutes

k. Use electricity from power poles rather than temporary diesel-powered generators

l. Use electricity from power poles rather than temporary gasoline-powered generators.

m. Use methanol- or natural gas-powered mobile equipment instead of diesel.

n. Use  propane-  or  butane-powered  on-site  mobile equipment instead of gasoline.

Biota 

SP 4.6-35 
The project biologist shall work with the grading contractor to avoid inadvertent impacts to biological resources outside of the grading area.. 

SP 4.6-56 
All lighting along the perimeter of natural areas shall be downcast luminaries with light patterns directed away from natural areas. 

MV 4.3-5 
Prior to initiating construction for the installation of bridges, storm drain outlets, utility lines, bank protection, trails, and/or other construction 
activities, all construction sites and access roads within the riverbed as well as all riverbed areas within 500 feet of construction sites and access 
roads shall be surveyed at the appropriate season for southwestern pond turtle. Focused surveys shall consist of a minimum of four daytime surveys, 
to be completed between April 1 and June 1. The survey schedule may be adjusted in consultation with CDFG to reflect the existing weather or 
stream conditions. The applicant shall develop a Plan to address the relocation of southwestern pond turtle. The Plan shall include but not be limited 
to the timing and location of the surveys that would be conducted for this species; identify the locations where more intensive efforts should be 
conducted; identify the habitat and conditions in the proposed relocation site(s); the methods that would be utilized for trapping and relocating 
individuals; and provide for the documentation/recordation of the numbers of animals relocated. The Plan shall be submitted to CDFG for approval 
60 days prior to any ground-disturbing activities within potentially occupied habitat. 

If southwestern pond turtles are detected in or adjacent to the project, nesting surveys shall be conducted. Focused surveys for evidence of 
southwestern pond turtle nesting shall be conducted in, or adjacent to, the project when suitable nesting habitat exists within 1,300 feet of occupied 
habitat in an area where project-related ground disturbance will occur (e.g., development, ground disturbance). If both of those conditions are met, 
a qualified biologist shall conduct focused, systematic surveys for southwestern pond turtle nesting sites. The survey area shall include all suitable 
nesting habitat within 1,300 feet of occupied habitat in which project related ground disturbance will occur. This area may be adjusted based on the 
existing topographical features on a case-by-case basis with the approval of CDFG. Surveys will entail searching for evidence of pond turtle nesting, 
including remnant eggshell fragments, which may be found on the ground following nest depredation. 

If a southwestern pond turtle nesting area would be adversely impacted by construction activities, the applicant shall avoid the nesting area. If 
avoidance of the nesting area is determined to be infeasible, the authorized biologist shall coordinate with CDFG to identify if it is possible to 
relocate the pond turtles. Eggs or hatchlings shall not be moved without written authorization from CDFG. 

445



Attachment A - Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program  SCV Water 
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project November 2022  

The qualified biologist shall be present during all activities immediately adjacent to or within habitat that supports populations of southwestern pond 
turtle. Clearance surveys for pond turtles shall be conducted within 500 feet of potential habitat by the authorized biologist prior to the initiation of 
construction each day. The resume of the proposed biologist will be provided to CDFG for approval prior to conducting the surveys. 

MV 4.3-7 
Prior to construction the applicant shall develop a relocation plan for coast horned lizard, silvery legless lizard, coastal western whiptail, rosy boa, 
San Bernardino ringneck snake, and coast patch-nosed snake. The Plan shall include but not be limited to the timing and location of the surveys that 
would be conducted for each species; identify the locations where more intensive efforts should be conducted; identify the habitat and conditions in 
the proposed relocation site(s); the methods that would be utilized for trapping and relocating the individual species; and provide for the 
documentation/recordation of the species and number of the animals relocated. The Plan shall be submitted to CDFG for approval 60 days prior to 
any ground disturbing activities within potentially occupied habitat. 

The Plan shall include the specific survey and relocation efforts that would occur for construction activities that occur both during the activity period 
of the special status species (generally March to November) and for periods when the species may be present in the work area but difficult to detect 
due to weather conditions (generally December through February). Thirty days prior to construction activities in coastal scrub, chaparral, oak 
woodland, riparian habitats, or other areas supporting these species qualified biologists shall conduct surveys to capture and relocate individual coast 
horned lizard, silvery legless lizard, coastal western whiptail, rosy boa, San Bernardino ringneck snake, and coast patch-nosed snake in order to 
avoid or minimize take of these special-status species. The plan shall require a minimum of three (3) surveys conducted during the time of year/day 
when each species is most likely to be observed. Individuals shall be relocated to nearby undisturbed areas with suitable habitat. If construction is 
scheduled to occur during the low activity period (generally December through February) the surveys shall be conducted prior to this period if 
possible and exclusion fencing shall be placed to limit the potential for re-colonization of the site prior to construction. The qualified biologist will 
be present during ground-disturbing activities immediately adjacent to or within habitat that supports populations of these species. Clearance surveys 
for special-status reptiles shall be conducted by a qualified biologist prior to the initiation of construction each day. 

Results of the surveys and relocation efforts shall be provided to CDFG in the annual mitigation status report. Collection and relocation of animals 
shall only occur with the proper scientific collection and handling permits. 

MV 4.3-15 
Within 30 days of ground-disturbing activities associated with construction or grading that would occur during the nesting/breeding season of native 
bird species potentially nesting on the site (typically March through August in the project region, or as determined by a qualified biologist), the 
applicant shall have weekly surveys conducted by a qualified biologist to determine if active nests of bird species protected by the Migratory Bird 
Treaty Act and/or the California Fish and Game Code are present in the disturbance zone or within 300 feet (500 feet for raptors) of the disturbance 
zone. The surveys shall continue on a weekly basis, with the last survey being conducted no more than 7 days prior to initiation of disturbance work. 
If ground-disturbing activities are delayed, then additional pre-disturbance surveys shall be conducted such that no more than 7 days will have 
elapsed between the survey and ground-disturbing activities. 

If active nests are found, clearing and construction within 300 feet of the nest (500 feet for raptors) shall be postponed or halted, at the discretion of 
the biologist in consultation with CDFG, until the nest is vacated and juveniles have fledged, as determined by the biologist, and there is no evidence 
of a second attempt at nesting. In the event that golden eagles establish an active nest in the River Corridor SMA/SEA 23, the buffers will be 
established in consultation with CDFG. Potential golden eagle nesting will be reported to CDFG within 24 hours. Limits of construction to avoid an 
active nest shall be established in the field with flagging, fencing, or other appropriate barriers, and construction personnel shall be instructed on the 
sensitivity of nest areas. The biologist shall serve as a construction monitor during those periods when construction activities will occur near active 
nest areas to ensure that no inadvertent impacts to these nests occur. Results of the surveys shall be provided to CDFG in the annual mitigation status 
report. 

For listed riparian songbirds (least Bell's vireo, southwestern willow flycatcher, yellow-billed cuckoo) USFWS protocol surveys shall be conducted. 
If active nests are found, clearing and construction within 300 feet of the nest shall be postponed or halted, at the discretion of the biologist in 
consultation with CDFG and USFWS, until the nest is vacated and juveniles have fledged, as determined by the biologist, and there is no evidence 
of a second attempt at nesting. If no active nests are observed, construction may proceed. If active nests are found, work may proceed provided that 
construction activity is located at least 300 feet from active nests (or as authorized through the context of the Biological Opinion and 2081b Incidental 
Take Permit). This buffer may be adjusted provided noise levels do not exceed 60 dB(A) hourly Leq at the edge of the nest site as determined by a 
qualified biologist in coordination with a qualified acoustician. 

If the noise meets or exceeds the 60 dB(A) Leq threshold, or if the biologist determines that the construction activities are disturbing nesting activities, 
the biologist shall have the authority to halt the construction and shall devise methods to reduce the noise and/or disturbance in the vicinity. This 
may include methods such as, but not limited to, turning off vehicle engines and other equipment whenever possible to reduce noise, installing a 
protective noise barrier between the nest site and the construction activities, and working in other areas until the young have fledged. If noise levels 
still exceed 60 dB(A) Leq hourly at the edge of nesting territories and/or a no-construction buffer cannot be maintained, construction shall be deferred 
in that area until the nestlings have fledged. All active nests shall be monitored on a weekly basis until the nestlings fledge. The qualified biologist 
shall be responsible for documenting the results of the surveys and the ongoing monitoring and for reporting these results to CDFG and USFWS. 

For coastal California gnatcatcher, the applicant shall conduct USFWS protocol surveys in suitable habitat within the project area and all areas within 
500 feet of access or construction related disturbance areas. Suitable habitats, according to the protocol, include "coastal sage scrub, alluvial fan, 
chaparral, or intermixed or adjacent areas of grassland and riparian habitats." A permitted biologist shall perform these surveys according to the 
USFWS' (1997a) Coastal California Gnatcatcher Presence/Absence Survey Guidelines. If a territory or nest is confirmed, the USFWS and CDFG 
shall be notified immediately. If present, a 500-foot disturbance-free buffer shall be established and demarcated by fencing or flagging. No project 
activities may occur in these areas unless otherwise authorized by USFWS and CDFG. Construction activities in suitable gnatcatcher habitat will be 
monitored by a full-time qualified biologist. The monitoring shall be of a sufficient intensity to ensure that the biologist could detect the presence of 
a bird in the construction area. 

MV 4.3-52 
Construction plans shall include necessary design features and construction notes to ensure protection of vegetation communities and special-status 
plant and aquatic wildlife species adjacent to construction. In addition to applicable erosion control plans and performance under SCAQMD Rule 
403d dust control (SCAQMD 2005), the project stormwater pollution prevention plan (SWPPP) shall include the following minimum BMPs. 
Together, the implementation of these requirements shall ensure protection of adjacent habitats and wildlife species during construction. At a 
minimum, the following measures/restrictions shall be incorporated into the SWPPP, and noted on construction plans where appropriate to avoid 
impacting special-status species during construction: 

• Avoid planting or seeding invasive species in development areas within 200 feet of native vegetation communities.
• The operator shall install and use fully covered trash receptacles to contain all food, food scraps, food wrappers, beverage containers, and

other miscellaneous trash. Trash will be regularly picked up in construction areas.
• The operator shall not permit pets on or adjacent to the construction site.

446



Attachment A - Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program  SCV Water 
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project November 2022  

Cultural Resources 

MV 4.20-1 
Although no other significant cultural resources were observed or recorded, all grading activities and surface modifications must be confined to only 
those areas of absolute necessity to reduce any form of impact on unrecorded (buried) cultural resources that may exist within the confines of the 
project area. In the event that previously undetected archaeological, paleontological, and/or historical resources are found during construction, 
activity in the immediate area of the find shall stop and a qualified archaeologist or paleontologist, as applicable, shall be contacted to evaluate the 
resource(s). If the find is determined to be a historical or unique archaeological resource, as defined by CEQA, contingency funding and a time 
allotment sufficient to allow for implementation of avoidance measures or appropriate mitigation shall be provided. Construction work may continue 
on other parts of the construction site while historical/archaeological mitigation takes place, pursuant to State CEQA Guidelines Section 15064.5(f) 
and Public Resources Code Section 21083.2(i). 

SP 4.3-3 
In the unlikely event that additional artifacts are found during grading within the development area or future roadway extensions, an archaeologist 
will be notified to stabilize, recover, and evaluate such finds. 

Geotechnical and Soil Resources 

MV 4.1-6 
The project shall be designed in accordance will all applicable building codes and standards utilizing the appropriate geotechnical parameters as 
presented in the “Seismicity” section of the R.T. Frankian & Associates report entitled Response to County of Los Angeles Review Sheets and 
Geotechnical Plan Review, Revised Vesting Tentative Tract Map No. 6110,5 (April 29, 2010)) to reduce seismic risks to an acceptable level as 
defined by CGS in Chapter 2 of SP 117a (CGS, 2008). 

MV 4.1-3 
Over-excavation of clay-rich bedding planes of the Saugus Formation or Pico Formation and subsequent placement of a certified fill cap shall be 
conducted to mitigate potential hazards from expansive material, and to reduce potential hazards from potential secondary seismogenic movement 
along bedding planes. 

MV 4.1-48 
A minimum 5- to 8-foot-thick over excavation shall be performed on all cut lots, and transitional lots (transitions between bedrock, fill, terrace 
deposits and alluvium) and a minimum 3 foot-thick over excavation on streets. This over excavation will provide a uniform base for structural 
support of buildings and traffic loads. If on a cut/fill transition lot the maximum depth of fill exceeds 15 feet, then the thickness of the fill cap shall 
be one third of the deepest fill thickness below any proposed structure. If excavation of the native soils (i.e., bedrock) exposes high expansive 
materials, then the lot over excavation shall be deepened to 8 feet. 

MV 4.1-66 
Additional testing for expansive soils shall be performed at the grading plan stage and during finish grading so that appropriate foundation design 
recommendations for expansive soils, if applicable, can be made.  

MV 4.20-1 
Although no other significant cultural resources were observed or recorded, all grading activities and surface modifications must be confined to only 
those areas of absolute necessity to reduce any form of impact on unrecorded (buried) cultural resources that may exist within the confines of the 
project area. In the event that previously undetected archaeological, paleontological, and/or historical resources are found during construction, 
activity in the immediate area of the find shall stop and a qualified archaeologist or paleontologist, as applicable, shall be contacted to evaluate the 
resource(s). If the find is determined to be a historical or unique archaeological resource, as defined by CEQA, contingency funding and a time 
allotment sufficient to allow for implementation of avoidance measures or appropriate mitigation shall be provided. Construction work may continue 
on other parts of the construction site while historical/archaeological mitigation takes place, pursuant to State CEQA Guidelines Section 15064.5(f) 
and Public Resources Code Section 21083.2(i). 

SP 4.3-4 
As part of an inspection testing program, a Los Angeles County Natural History Museum-approved inspector is to be on site to salvage scientifically 
significant fossil remains. The duration of these inspections depends on the potential for the discovery of fossils, the rate of excavation, and the 
abundance of fossils. Geological formations (like the Saugus Formation) with a high potential will initially require full time monitoring during 
grading activities. Geologic formations (like the Quaternary terrace deposits) with a moderate potential will initially require half-time monitoring. 
If fossil production is lower than expected, the duration of monitoring efforts should be reduced. Because of known presence of microvertebrates in 
the Saugus Formation, samples of at least 2,000 pounds of rock shall be taken from likely horizons, including localities 13, 13A, 14, and 23. These 
samples can be stockpiled to allow processing later to avoid delays in grading activities. The frequency of these samples will be determined based 
on field conditions. 

Should the excavations yield significant paleontological resources, excavation is to be stopped or redirected until the extent of the find is established 
and the resources are salvaged. Because of the long duration of the Specific Plan, a reassessment of the paleontological potential of each rock unit 
will be used to develop mitigation plans for subsequent subdivisions. The report shall include an itemized inventory of the fossils, pertinent geologic 
and stratigraphic data, field notes of the collectors and include recommendations for future monitoring efforts in those rock units. Prior to grading, 
an agreement shall be reached with a suitable public, non-profit scientific repository, such as the Los Angeles County Museum of Natural History 
or similar institution, regarding acceptance of fossil collections. 

Greenhouse Gas Emissions 

SP-4.10-7: See mitigation measure text under Air Quality. 

Hazards and Hazardous Materials 

SP 4.18-3 
Each subdivision map and site plan for the proposed Specific Plan shall comply with all applicable building and fire codes and hazard reduction 
programs for Fire Zones 3 and 4 that are in effect at the time of subdivision map and site plan approval. 

MV 4.12-5 
This property is located within the area described by the Forester and Fire Warden as a Fire Zone 4, Very High Fire Hazard Severity Zone (VHFHSZ). 
All applicable fire code and ordinance requirements for construction, access, water mains, fire hydrants, fire flows, brush clearance and fuel 
modification plans, must be met. 

447



Attachment A - Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program  SCV Water 
Backcountry Reservoir and Pump Station Project November 2022  

Hydrology 

MV 4.2-8 
A final developed condition hydrology analysis (LACDPW Drainage Concept Report [DCR] and Final Design Report [FDR]) shall be prepared in 
conjunction with final project design when precise engineering occurs. This final analysis shall confirm that the final project design is consistent 
with this analysis. This final developed condition hydrology analysis shall confirm that the sizing and design of the water quality and hydrologic 
control BMPs control hydromodification impacts in accordance with the Newhall Ranch Sub-Regional Stormwater Mitigation Plan. All elements of 
the storm drain system shall conform to the policies and standards of the LACDPW, Flood Control Division, as applicable. 

Noise 

SP 4.9-1 
All construction activity occurring on the Newhall Ranch Specific Plan site shall adhere to the requirements of the “County of Los Angeles 
Construction Equipment Noise Standards,” County of Los Angeles Ordinance No. 11743, Section 12.08.440 as identified in [Specific Plan Program 
EIR] Table 4.9-3. 

MV 4.6-1 
The project applicant, or its designee, shall not undertake construction activities that can generate noise levels in excess of the County’s Noise 
Ordinance on Sundays or legal holidays. 

Tribal Cultural Resources: 

SP 4.3-3: See mitigation measure text under Cultural Resources. 

MV 4.20-1: See mitigation measure text under Cultural Resources. 

Wildfire 

SP 4.18-3: See mitigation measure text under Hazards and Hazardous Materials. 

MV 4.12-5: See mitigation measure text under Hazards and Hazardous Materials. 

448



M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

on
ito

rin
g 

an
d 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
Pr

og
ra

m
 

 
13

  
 

SC
V

 W
at

er
 

B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

 R
es

er
vo

ir 
an

d 
Pu

m
p 

St
at

io
n 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
02

2  

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
 

Im
pa

ct
 S

ta
te

m
en

t(s
) 

Pa
rt

y 
R

es
po

ns
ib

le
 

fo
r I

m
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
an

d 
R

ep
or

tin
g 

R
ev

ie
w

 a
nd

 
A

pp
ro

va
l b

y:
 

M
on

ito
rin

g 
an

d 
R

ep
or

tin
g 

A
ct

io
ns

 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

Sc
he

du
le

 

Ve
rif

ic
at

io
n:

 
St

at
us

/ D
at

e 
C

om
pl

et
ed

/ 
In

iti
al

s 
•

C
on

tra
ct

or
s 

sh
al

l 
re

qu
ire

 v
eh

ic
le

s 
an

d 
cr

ew
s 

w
or

ki
ng

 a
t 

th
e

pr
oj

ec
t s

ite
 to

 h
av

e 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 fu

nc
tio

na
l f

ire
 e

xt
in

gu
is

he
rs

.
•

A
re

as
 sh

al
l b

e 
de

si
gn

at
ed

 sm
ok

in
g 

an
d 

no
n-

sm
ok

in
g 

ar
ea

s;
 a

nd
•

W
at

er
 s

ha
ll 

be
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

on
 s

ite
 a

s 
ne

ed
ed

. 
pu

rs
ua

nt
 t

o 
th

e
C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts

T
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n 

SC
V

 W
at

er
 I

m
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
A

ct
io

n 
M

V
 4

.5
-7

: 
Pr

io
r 

to
 p

ro
je

ct
 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n,

 S
C

V
 W

at
er

 sh
al

l r
eq

ui
re

 it
s c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

co
nt

ra
ct

or
 to

 
pr

ep
ar

e 
an

d 
im

pl
em

en
t a

 T
ra

ff
ic

 C
on

tro
l P

la
n,

 to
 b

e 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
SC

V
 W

at
er

 p
ro

je
ct

 m
an

ag
er

. T
he

 T
ra

ff
ic

 C
on

tro
l P

la
n 

sh
al

l, 
at

 
m

in
im

um
: 

•
Id

en
tif

y 
st

ag
in

g 
lo

ca
tio

ns
 to

 b
e 

us
ed

 d
ur

in
g 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n;

•
Id

en
tif

y 
sa

fe
 in

gr
es

s a
nd

 e
gr

es
s p

oi
nt

s f
ro

m
 st

ag
in

g 
ar

ea
s;

•
Es

ta
bl

is
h 

ha
ul

 
ro

ut
es

 
fo

r 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n-
re

la
te

d 
ve

hi
cl

e
tra

ff
ic

; a
nd

 
•

Id
en

tif
y 

al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

sa
fe

 ro
ut

es
 to

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
pe

de
st

ria
n 

an
d

bi
cy

cl
is

t s
af

et
y 

du
rin

g 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n.

Th
e 

Tr
af

fic
 C

on
tro

l P
la

n 
sh

al
l i

nc
lu

de
 p

ro
vi

si
on

s f
or

 tr
af

fic
 c

on
tro

l 
m

ea
su

re
s 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
ba

rr
ic

ad
es

, 
w

ar
ni

ng
 s

ig
ns

, 
co

ne
s, 

lig
ht

s, 
an

d 
fla

g 
pe

rs
on

s, 
to

 
al

lo
w

 
sa

fe
 

ci
rc

ul
at

io
n 

of
 

ve
hi

cl
e,

 
bi

cy
cl

e,
 

pe
de

st
ria

n,
 a

nd
 e

m
er

ge
nc

y 
re

sp
on

se
 tr

af
fic

. 

SC
V

 W
at

er
’s

 p
ro

je
ct

 m
an

ag
er

 sh
al

l c
oo

rd
in

at
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 

em
er

ge
nc

y 
se

rv
ic

es
 (f

ire
, p

ol
ic

e,
 o

r o
th

er
s)

 a
nd

 th
e 

lo
ca

l m
un

ic
ip

al
 

ju
ris

di
ct

io
n 

to
 n

ot
ify

 th
es

e 
en

tit
ie

s r
eg

ar
di

ng
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

sc
he

du
le

, 
pr

oj
ec

t s
iti

ng
, a

nd
 p

ot
en

tia
l d

el
ay

s 
du

e 
to

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n,
 r

oa
dw

ay
s 

an
d 

ac
ce

ss
 p

oi
nt

s f
or

 e
m

er
ge

nc
y 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
nd

 m
in

im
iz

e 
di

sr
up

tio
ns

 
to

 o
r c

lo
su

re
s o

f t
he

se
 lo

ca
tio

ns
. 

.  

Im
pa

ct
 5

.1
7d

 –
 

R
es

ul
t i

n 
in

ad
eq

ua
te

 e
m

er
ge

nc
y 

ac
ce

ss
. 

SC
V

 W
at

er
, 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
C

on
tra

ct
or

 

SC
V

 W
at

er
, 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
C

on
tra

ct
or

 

SC
V

 W
at

er
 

SC
V

 W
at

er
 

En
su

re
 b

id
 d

oc
s 

re
qu

ire
 th

e 
co

nt
ra

ct
or

 
to

 p
re

pa
re

 a
 T

ra
ff

ic
 

C
on

tro
l P

la
n 

to
 b

e 
im

pl
em

en
te

d 
du

rin
g 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

En
su

re
 tr

af
fic

 c
on

tro
l 

m
ea

su
re

s a
re

 
im

pl
em

en
te

d 
du

rin
g 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

D
es

ig
n/

C
on

tra
ct

in
g 

Ph
as

e 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
Ph

as
e 

__
__

__
__

__
 

__
__

__
_ _

__
 

449



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

450



Error! Unknown document property name. 

RESOLUTION NO. SCV-XXX 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY  

AUTHORIZING A PURCHASE ORDER TO CANNON CORPORATION FOR 
FINAL DESIGN SERVICES FOR THE BACKCOUNTRY PUMP STATION PROJECT AND 

PURCHASE ORDER TO MICHAEL BAKER INTERNATIONAL, INC. FOR  
FINAL DESIGN SERVICES FOR THE BACK CONTRY RESERVOIR 

WHEREAS, Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency (Agency) determined that proposed 
Backcountry Pump Station and Backcountry Reservoir is needed to increase emergency and 
operational water storage supply in the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency’s west-side zone as 
it continues to work towards meeting its Strategic Plan Objectives B.1: “Plan, design and build 
facilities to meet demand including storage capacity and interconnections between regional and 
retail water systems” and B.2: “Plan and budget for long-term replacements and improvements”; 
and 

WHEREAS, the proposed Backcountry Pump Station and Backcountry Reservoir will include 
installation of a new potable water reservoir, pumping equipment, pipeline connections to 
existing facilities, enclosed building, and various appurtenances; and  

WHEREAS, all requirements of the Public Resources Code and State CEQA Guidelines have 
been satisfied in connection with the preparation of the Addendum to the Mission Village 
Environmental Impact Report (EIR), which is sufficiently detailed so that all the potentially 
significant environmental effects of the Backcountry Pump Station, as well as feasible mitigation 
measures, have been adequately evaluated; and  

WHEREAS, the Agency Board reviewed the Addendum to Mission Village EIR; and 

WHEREAS, the Board, acting as Lead Agency, adopted the Addendum to the Mission Village 
EIR at a regular Board meeting on March 7, 2023; and  

WHEREAS, May 27, 2022, the Agency issued the Request for Proposal (RFP) to several of its on-
call consultants on PlanetBids for final design services for the Backcountry Reservoir and final 
design services for Back Country Pump Staton; and 

WHEREAS, on June 29, 2022, proposals from three (3) consultants were electronically received 
on the Agency’s website page on PlanetBids pursuant to the Agency’s final design services RFP 
for the Backcountry Pump Station project; and 

WHEREAS, on July 7, 2022, proposals from four (4) consultants were electronically received on 
the Agency’s website page on PlanetBids pursuant to the Agency’s final design services RFP for 
the Backcountry Reservoir project; and 

WHEREAS, it is in the Agency’s best interest that the Board of Directors, on behalf of the 
Agency, authorize its General Manager to authorize a purchase order in the amount not-to-
exceed $1,500,000 to Michael Baker International, Inc. for final design services for Backcountry 
Reservoir and a purchase order in the amount not-to-exceed $1,000,000 to Cannon Corporation 
for final design services for Backcountry Pump Station. 

ATTACHMENT 2

451



Error! Unknown document property name. 

NOW, THREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Board of 
Directors does hereby find and determine as follows: 
  

SECTION 1. RECITALS. The Santa Clarita Valley Water Board finds that the foregoing 
recitals are true and correct and are incorporated herein as substantive findings of this 
resolution. 
 

SECTION 2. LOCATION AND CUSTODIAN OF RECORDS. The documents and 
materials associated with the project and that constitute the record of proceedings on which 
these findings are based are located at the offices of the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency, 
27234 Bouquet Canyon Road, Santa Clarita, CA 91350. The Custodian of Record is the Board 
Secretary April Jacobs. 
  
RESOLVED FURTHER that the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency’s Board of Directors authorize 
its General Manager to issue a purchase order to Michael Baker International, Inc. for final design 
services for the Backcountry Reservoir project for an amount not-to-exceed $1,500,000 and 
purchase order to Cannon Corporation for final design services for the Backcountry Pump Station 
project for an amount not-to-exceed $1,000,000. 
 
 
        
 

452



CE
Q

A 
an

d 
Fi

na
l D

es
ig

n 
Se

rv
ic

es
 f

or
 B

ac
kc

ou
nt

ry
 R

es
er

vo
ir

 
an

d 
Ba

ck
co

un
tr

y 
Pu

m
p 

St
at

io
n 

M
ar

ch
 7

, 
20

23

Bo
ar

d 
M

ee
ti

ng

453



2

CE
Q

A 
Ba

ck
gr

ou
nd

N
ew

ha
ll 

Ra
nc

h 
Sp

ec
if

ic
 P

la
n 

EI
R 

•
Ce

rt
if

ie
d 

by
 L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
in

 2
00

3
•

La
rg

e-
sc

al
e 

m
ix

ed
-u

se
 c

om
m

un
it

y 
lo

ca
te

d 
in

 L
os

 A
ng

el
es

Co
un

ty

M
is

si
on

 V
ill

ag
e 

EI
R

•
Ce

rt
if

ie
d 

by
 L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y 
in

 2
01

1
•

Ti
er

ed
 f

ro
m

 t
he

 N
ew

ha
ll 

Ra
nc

h 
Sp

ec
if

ic
 P

la
n 

Pr
og

ra
m

 E
IR

•
M

is
si

on
 V

ill
ag

e 
is

 o
ne

 o
f 

fi
ve

 v
ill

ag
es

 w
it

hi
n 

in
 t

he
 N

ew
ha

ll
Ra

nc
h 

Sp
ec

if
ic

 P
la

n
•

Ad
dr

es
se

d 
w

at
er

w
or

ks
 in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

454



3

A
dd

en
du

m
 t

o 
th

e 
M

is
si

on
 V

ill
ag

e 
EI

R
W

oo
da

rd
 &

 C
ur

ra
n 

pr
ep

ar
ed

 t
he

 A
dd

en
du

m
 t

o 
th

e 
M

is
si

on
 V

ill
ag

e 
EI

R

Th
e 

Ad
de

nd
um

 a
dd

re
ss

es
 p

ot
en

ti
al

 e
nv

ir
on

m
en

ta
l e

ff
ec

ts
 o

f 
th

e 
co

ns
tr

uc
ti

on
 a

nd
 

op
er

at
io

n 
of

 t
he

 p
ro

po
se

d 
Ba

ck
co

un
tr

y 
Re

se
rv

oi
r 

an
d 

Ba
ck

co
un

tr
y 

Pu
m

p 
St

at
io

n 
pr

oj
ec

t 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

tu
rn

-o
ut

 f
ac

ili
ty

 a
nd

 d
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
pi

pe
lin

es
. 

Ba
si

s 
fo

r 
Ad

de
nd

um
 (

Pu
rs

ua
nt

 t
o 

CE
Q

A 
G

ui
de

lin
es

 S
ec

ti
on

 1
51

64
)

•
N

o 
ne

w
 s

ig
ni

fi
ca

nt
 im

pa
ct

s 
re

su
lt

in
g 

fr
om

 t
he

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
of

 t
he

 r
es

er
vo

ir
 a

nd
as

so
ci

at
ed

 p
um

p 
st

at
io

n
•

N
o 

su
bs

ta
nt

ia
l i

nc
re

as
es

 in
 t

he
 s

ev
er

it
y 

of
 a

ny
 p

re
vi

ou
sl

y 
id

en
ti

fi
ed

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l i
m

pa
ct

s

Al
th

ou
gh

 n
ot

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
fo

r 
CE

Q
A 

Co
m

pl
ia

nc
e,

 S
CV

 W
at

er
 p

os
te

d 
th

e 
Ad

de
nd

um
 o

n 
it

s 
w

eb
si

te
 f

ro
m

 N
ov

em
be

r 
30

, 
20

22
. 

St
af

f 
ha

ve
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

no
 c

om
m

en
ts

 r
eg

ar
di

ng
 t

hi
s 

do
cu

m
en

t.
 

455



Sa
nt

a 
Cl

ar
it

a 
Va

lle
y 

W
at

er
 A

ge
nc

y 
Se

rv
ic

e 
A

re
a 

4

Ba
ck

co
un

tr
y 

Re
se

rv
oi

r 
Si

te

Ba
ck

co
un

tr
y 

Pu
m

p 
St

at
io

n 
Si

te

456



5

Ba
ck

co
un

tr
y 

Re
se

rv
oi

r 
Ba

ck
gr

ou
nd

M
ic

ha
el

 B
ak

er
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l,

 In
c.

 p
er

fo
rm

ed
 p

la
nn

in
g 

se
rv

ic
es

 f
or

 t
he

 M
ag

ic
 

M
ou

nt
ai

n 
Re

se
rv

oi
r 

(r
en

am
ed

 B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

 R
es

er
vo

ir
) 

to
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
th

e 
m

ax
im

um
 

at
ta

in
ab

le
 s

to
ra

ge
 v

ol
um

e 
an

d 
pr

ov
id

e 
de

si
gn

 c
ri

te
ri

a 
fo

r 
th

e 
fa

ci
lit

y.
 

457



6

Ba
ck

co
un

tr
y 

Pu
m

p 
St

at
io

n 
Ba

ck
gr

ou
nd

H
yd

ra
ul

ic
 a

na
ly

si
s 

of
 t

he
 S

CV
 W

at
er

 s
ys

te
m

 
sh

ow
ed

 t
ha

t 
a 

pu
m

p 
st

at
io

n 
(t

he
 

Ba
ck

co
un

tr
y 

Pu
m

p 
St

at
io

n)
 is

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 
su

pp
ly

 t
he

 B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

 R
es

er
vo

ir.
 

In
 2

02
0,

 M
ic

ha
el

 B
ak

er
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l,

 In
c.

 
pr

ep
ar

ed
 a

 t
ec

hn
ic

al
 m

em
or

an
du

m
 w

hi
ch

 
id

en
ti

fi
ed

 t
he

 p
um

p 
st

at
io

n 
si

te
 a

nd
 

pr
el

im
in

ar
y 

la
yo

ut

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 in
cl

ud
e:

•
Tu

rn
ou

t 
fa

ci
lit

y 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 f
lo

w
 c

on
tr

ol
 

an
d 

m
et

er
in

g
•

Di
st

ri
bu

ti
on

 p
ip

el
in

es
 t

o 
ti

e 
in

to
 S

CV
 

W
at

er
’s

 e
xi

st
in

g 
di

st
ri

bu
ti

on
 m

ai
ns

 f
or

 
Zo

ne
 II

A-
N

 a
nd

 Z
on

e 
I

458



•
M

ay
 2

7,
 2

02
2:

 R
eq

ue
st

 fo
r P

ro
po

sa
ls

 (R
FP

) o
n 

Pl
an

et
Bi

ds
ad

ve
rti

se
d

•
Ju

ne
 2

9,
 2

02
2:

 T
hr

ee
 (3

) p
ro

po
sa

ls
 re

ce
iv

ed
 (B

ac
kc

ou
nt

ry
 P

um
p 

St
at

io
n)

•
C

an
no

n 
C

or
po

ra
tio

n
•

Le
e 

& 
R

o,
 In

c.
•

M
ic

ha
el

 B
ak

er
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l, 

In
c.

•
Ju

ly
 7

, 2
02

2:
 F

ou
r (

4)
 p

ro
po

sa
ls

 re
ce

iv
ed

 (B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

 R
es

er
vo

ir)
•

C
an

no
n 

C
or

po
ra

tio
n

•
Le

e 
& 

R
o,

 In
c.

•
M

ic
ha

el
 B

ak
er

 In
te

rn
at

io
na

l, 
In

c.
•

M
N

S 
En

gi
ne

er
s,

 In
c.

 
•

Ev
al

ua
tio

n 
Te

am
: E

ng
in

ee
rin

g,
 O

pe
ra

tio
ns

 &
 M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
•

Se
le

ct
io

n 
ba

se
d 

on
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g:

•
R

es
po

ns
iv

en
es

s 
(c

on
fo

rm
an

ce
 a

nd
 c

om
pl

ia
nc

e)
 to

 th
e 

R
FP

 re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

•
Pr

oj
ec

t u
nd

er
st

an
di

ng
•

Pr
oj

ec
t a

pp
ro

ac
h

•
R

es
po

ns
ib

ilit
y 

(re
so

ur
ce

s/
ca

pa
bi

lit
y/

qu
al

ifi
ca

tio
ns

/a
va

ila
bi

lit
y)

 to
 p

er
fo

rm
 th

e 
w

or
k 

•
Sc

op
e 

of
 w

or
k

•
Sc

he
du

le

Ba
ck

co
un

tr
y 

Re
se

rv
oi

r 
an

d 
Ba

ck
co

un
tr

y 
Pu

m
p 

St
at

io
n 

Fi
na

l D
es

ig
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

**
 S

C
V 

W
at

er
’s

 o
bj

ec
tiv

e 
an

d 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

Pl
an

 O
bj

ec
tiv

e 
B.

1:
 “P

la
n,

 d
es

ig
n 

an
d 

bu
ild

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
to

 
m

ee
t d

em
an

d 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

st
or

ag
e 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 a
nd

 in
te

rc
on

ne
ct

io
ns

 b
et

w
ee

n 
re

gi
on

al
 a

nd
 re

ta
il 

w
at

er
 s

ys
te

m
s.

” a
nd

 B
.2

: “
Pl

an
 a

nd
 b

ud
ge

t f
or

 lo
ng

-te
rm

 re
pl

ac
em

en
ts

 a
nd

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

.”

7

459



•
Pr

oj
ec

t M
ee

tin
gs

 a
nd

 W
or

ks
ho

ps
•

D
at

a 
C

ol
le

ct
io

n 
an

d 
R

ev
ie

w
•

Pe
rfo

rm
 T

op
og

ra
ph

ic
al

 s
ur

ve
ys

•
50

%
, 9

0%
, a

nd
 1

00
%

 P
la

ns
, S

pe
ci

fic
at

io
ns

, O
pi

ni
on

s 
of

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
C

os
ts

 a
nd

 N
SF

 
61

-C
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
Li

st
•

Su
rg

e 
An

al
ys

is
•

La
nd

sc
ap

in
g 

an
d 

Irr
ig

at
io

n 
Pl

an
s

•
O

pe
ra

tio
na

l P
la

ns
 

•
C

on
tro

l P
an

el
 F

ab
ric

at
io

n 
an

d 
In

te
gr

at
io

n 
Se

rv
ic

es

Ba
ck

 C
ou

nt
ry

 R
es

er
vo

ir
 a

nd
 B

ac
kc

ou
nt

ry
 P

um
p 

St
at

io
n 

Fi
na

l D
es

ig
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

 S
co

pe
 o

f 
W

or
k

8

460



•A
w

ar
d 

Ph
as

e:
–

Fe
br

ua
ry

 2
, 

20
23

: 
En

gi
ne

er
in

g 
an

d 
O

pe
ra

ti
on

s 
Co

m
m

it
te

e
–

M
ar

ch
 7

, 
20

23
: 

Bo
ar

d 
M

ee
ti

ng
 

•B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

 R
es

er
vo

ir
 F

in
al

 D
es

ig
n 

Ph
as

e:
–

M
ar

ch
 2

02
3:

 N
ot

ic
e 

to
 P

ro
ce

ed
–

M
ar

ch
 2

02
3 

to
 J

an
ua

ry
 2

02
4:

 F
in

al
 D

es
ig

n 
Se

rv
ic

es
–

29
0 

ca
le

nd
ar

 d
ay

s

•B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

 P
um

p 
St

at
io

n 
Fi

na
l D

es
ig

n 
Ph

as
e:

–
M

ar
ch

 2
02

3:
 N

ot
ic

e 
to

 P
ro

ce
ed

–
M

ar
ch

 2
02

3 
to

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
23

: 
Fi

na
l D

es
ig

n 
Se

rv
ic

es
–

17
0 

ca
le

nd
ar

 d
ay

s

9

Ba
ck

 C
ou

nt
ry

 R
es

er
vo

ir
 a

nd
 B

ac
kc

ou
nt

ry
 P

um
p 

St
at

io
n 

Fi
na

l D
es

ig
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

461



Th
at

 t
he

 B
oa

rd
 o

f 
D

ir
ec

to
rs

:
A.

Ap
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

re
so

lu
ti

on
 a

do
pt

in
g 

th
e 

Ad
de

nd
um

 t
o 

th
e 

M
is

si
on

 V
ill

ag
e 

EI
R,

 
ap

pr
ov

in
g 

th
e 

Ba
ck

co
un

tr
y 

Re
se

rv
oi

r 
an

d 
Ba

ck
co

un
tr

y 
Pu

m
p 

St
at

io
n 

pr
oj

ec
ts

, 
an

d 
ad

op
ti

ng
 t

he
 M

it
ig

at
io

n 
M

on
it

or
in

g 
an

d 
Re

po
rt

in
g 

Pr
og

ra
m

 
fo

r 
th

e 
Ba

ck
co

un
tr

y 
Re

se
rv

oi
r 

an
d 

Ba
ck

co
un

tr
y 

Pu
m

p 
St

at
io

n 
pr

oj
ec

ts
; 

an
d 

B.
Ap

pr
ov

e 
a 

re
so

lu
ti

on
 a

ut
ho

ri
zi

ng
 a

 p
ur

ch
as

e 
or

de
r 

to
 M

ic
ha

el
 B

ak
er

 
I n

te
rn

at
io

na
l,

 In
c.

, 
fo

r 
an

 a
m

ou
nt

 n
ot

-t
o-

ex
ce

ed
 $

1,
50

0,
00

0 
fo

r 
fi

na
l 

de
si

gn
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

Ba
ck

co
un

tr
y 

Re
se

rv
oi

r 
pr

oj
ec

t 
an

d 
pu

rc
ha

se
 o

rd
er

 
to

 C
an

no
n 

Co
rp

or
at

io
n 

fo
r 

an
 a

m
ou

nt
 n

ot
-t

o-
ex

ce
ed

 $
1,

00
0,

00
0 

fo
r 

fi
na

l 
de

si
gn

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
Ba

ck
co

un
tr

y 
Pu

m
p 

St
at

io
n 

pr
oj

ec
t.

10

Ba
ck

co
un

tr
y 

Re
se

rv
oi

r 
an

d 
Ba

ck
co

un
tr

y 
Pu

m
p 

St
at

io
n

462



BOARD MEMORANDUM 
 
 
DATE:  February 28, 2023 
  
TO:   Board of Directors 
  
FROM:  Rochelle Patterson 

Chief Financial and Administrative Officer 
 
SUBJECT: Approve Receiving and Filing of December 2022 Monthly and 

Mid-Year Budget Review (FY 2022/23 Q2 Oct – Dec 2022) 
__________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Below is the December 2022 Monthly and FY 2022/23 Second Quarter Financial Summary, 
unaudited (October – December 2022) as actual audit results may vary. This report reviews the 
financing activities for the quarter and compares the FY 2022/23 Budget to actual revenues and 
expenditures for the operating and capital budgets currently recorded.    
 

FY2022/23 Second Quarter Highlights 
 

• Staff completed the FY2021/22 audit work with our outside CPA (Certified Public 
Accountant) firm, LSL (Lance, Soll & Lunghard, LLP). 

• Received and filed the SCV Water Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) 
ended June 30, 2022. 

• Staff completed a Letter of Interest for the Water Infrastructure Finance and Innovation 
Act (WIFIA) program that is administered by the Environmental Protection Agency 
(EPA).   

• Approved the revised Employee Manual Policy No. 40 – Flexible Workplace Program 
• Approved the Employee Manual Policy No.42 — Internship Program  
• Approved two contracts for Microwave Upgrade Project: one for purchasing microwave 

equipment and software from Nokia of America Corporation (Nokia) through a NASPO 
agreement (National Association of State Procurement Officials), and the second with 
Day Wireless Systems for installing the microwave equipment. 

 
FY 2022/23 Mid-Year Budget Review 

 
FY 2022/23 Mid-Year Revenues Summary:  
 

• Total water sales were $47.8 million, which was a reduction of 15% compared to the 
budget of $56.5 million. Actual water sales are lower than budgeted based on 
conservation efforts. Revenues from landscape/irrigation accounts saw one of the 
largest decreases of $3.2 million (mid-year). 

• Misc. and Late Fees/Disconnects are lower than budgeted, in part due to the policy 
changes in the timing of late fees and service disconnections. 

• Property tax (1%) received was $13,520,107 of $11,916,350 budget.  
• Facility/Retail Capacity Fees received were $526,080. The first half of the year has 

started slowly. We are seeing a major decline in development as a result of inflation, 
interest rate increases and the possibility of a recession. 

• Perch Reimbursements O&M & CIP actual is lower than budget based on a delayed 
construction schedule of Saugus Replacement Wells 3 & 4. 

463

ajacobs
Item 6.2

ajacobs
Rochelle Patterson



REVENUES  
FY 2022/23 Midyear Budget Report 

 

  FY 2022/23 
Budget 

Through 
12/31/22 

% of 
Budget 

Operating Revenues 
Water Sales - Residential  $   51,449,640   $   27,745,342  54% 
Water Sales - Commercial         4,926,889          3,243,337  66% 
Water Sales - Industrial         1,615,373             828,951  51% 
Water Sales - Irrigation       19,303,711          8,553,689  44% 
Water Sales - Construction                      -               870,320  0% 
Water Sales - Public Authority & Other         3,473,053          1,159,544  33% 
Water Sales - Fire            669,515             316,390  47% 
Legacy Debt Revenue - VWD         3,603,809          1,766,326  49% 
Legacy Debt Revenue - SCWD         5,873,249          2,717,070  46% 
Water Sales - WWR            297,774             146,172  49% 
Water Sales - Recycled            468,612             216,204  46% 
Misc. Fees and Charges         1,020,000             285,080  28% 
Lab Revenues              23,000               10,660  46% 
Communication & Rental             752,174             373,884  50% 
Property Tax 1%       30,244,543        13,520,107  45% 
Annexation Reimbursements         2,099,650          2,140,287  102% 
Interest Income            650,000          1,006,844  155% 
PERCH Reimbursements - O&M & CIP         8,900,000          1,703,205  19% 
Grants & Reimbursements          6,791,105             220,859  3% 
Facility Capacity/Connection Fees         6,300,000             526,080  8% 

Total Operating Revenues   $ 148,462,098   $   67,350,350  45% 
        
State Water Contract       
Agency-Set Property Tax Revenues  $   36,833,262   $   15,948,646  43% 
Investment Revenue            430,000             502,065  117% 
Total State Water Contract Revenues  $   37,263,262   $   16,450,711  44% 
        

Total Revenues  $ 185,725,360   $   83,801,061  45% 
 
 
 

 

464



  
 
 

REVENUES BY TYPE 
FY 2022/23 Midyear Budget Report 

 

 

$0

$20

$40

$60

$80

$100

$120

$140

$160

$180

$200

 FY 2022/23
Budget

 50% of Budget  Through
12/31/22

M
ill

io
ns

Total Revenues
(in millions) 

Investment Revenues (all)

Other

Facility Capacity Fees

Grants and Reimbursements

Annexation and PERCH
Reimburements

1% Property Tax

SWC Property Tax

Water Sales (all)

$0

$10

$20

$30

$40

$50

$60

$70

$80

$90

$100

 FY 2022/23 Budget  50% of Budget  Through 12/31/22

M
ill

io
ns

Water Sales Revenue
(in millions) 

465



 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

$0

$5

$10

$15

$20

$25

$30

$35

FY 2022/23 Budget 50% of Budget Revenue through 12/31/22

M
ill

io
ns

One Percent Property Tax Revenue
(in millions)

$0

$1

$2

$3

$4

$5

$6

$7

FY 2022/23 Budget 50% of Budget Revenue through 12/31/22

M
ill

io
ns

Facility Capacity Fee Revenue
(in millions)

466



 
 

 
FY 2022/23 Mid-Year Expenses Summary:  

 

• Management expenses are lower due to the timing of legal invoicing, Perchlorate 
Litigation and Legal expenses lower than anticipated, and the Board of Directors' 
election-related expenses being delayed. 

• Water resources expenses are lower than projected as a result of BMPs due to 
lower conservation engagement. 

• Engineering expenses are lower than expected due to professional services billing 
delays, i.e., Master Plan.  

• The principal debt outstanding as of December 31, 2022 is $261,195,489. (Excluding the 
Valencia Water Division – VWD) acquisition interfund loan and 1999A accreted interest). 
Principal payments are typically made in August and Interest payments in February.  

• Capital Project expenditures are lower due to delays in timing (permits, contracts and 
acquisition of materials). 

• Water Quality, Treatment & Maintenance is overbudget due to timing of SCE invoices 
and the reduction in solar credits as the solar fields are not operating at capacity. 

• All other department expenses are within budget. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 $-

 $5

 $10

 $15

 $20

 $25

 $30

 $35

 $40

FY 2022/23 Budget 50% of Budget Revenue through
12/31/22

M
ill

io
ns

State Water Contract Revenue
(in millions) 

467



EXPENSES 
FY 2022/23 Midyear Budget Report 

 
  FY 2022/23 

Budget 
Through 
12/31/22 

% of 
Budget Operating Expenses  

Management  $     5,722,541   $     1,637,443  29% 
Finance, Administration & IT       20,725,318          9,143,477  44% 
Customer Care         2,810,685          1,387,897  49% 
Transmission & Distribution       10,599,865          4,946,706  47% 
Pumping Wells & Storage       14,959,138          7,413,947  50% 
Water Resources         9,584,392          3,301,498  34% 
Source of Supply       12,535,000          5,495,265  44% 
Water Quality, Treatment & Maintenance       11,781,761          6,797,785  58% 
Engineering Services         5,342,361          1,892,337  35% 
Debt Service       33,214,071        23,584,859  71% 
Capital (Pay-go)       75,805,830          9,308,846  12% 
Transfer from Reserves       (54,618,864)                      -    0% 

Total Operating Expenses  $ 148,462,098   $   46,845,283  32% 
        
State Water Contract Expenses       
DWR Variable Charge  $   11,000,000   $     2,874,836  26% 
State Water Contract Payments       24,768,000        12,292,258  50% 
Legal Consulting              15,000                       -    0% 
State Water Contractors/SWPCA Dues            250,000             219,641  88% 
SWC Audit Finance Commit.               33,000               32,406  98% 
Refund of Excess SWC Fixed Chgs        (2,000,000)                      -    0% 
Delta Conveyance         2,413,339                 8,667  0% 
Miscellaneous & Admin expenses            169,000                 5,177  3% 
Contingencies         2,000,000                       -    0% 
          Total State Water Contract Expenses  $   38,648,339   $   15,432,985  40% 
        

Total Expenses  $ 187,110,437   $   62,278,268  33% 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

468



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

$0

$20

$40

$60

$80

$100

$120

$140

$160

$180

$200

 FY 2022/23
Budget

 50% of Budget  Through 12/31/22

M
ill

io
ns

Total Expenses
(in millions)

Operating Expenses Debt Service
Capital (Pay-Go) State Water Contract Expenses

469



Quarterly Finance Highlights 
 
 
Water Production and Sales 
 
Total water produced for retail consumption from October– December 2022 was 12,157 acre-
feet (AF), comprised of 5,413 AF of groundwater and 6,743 AF of surface water. Total water 
sales were 13,814 AF (based on billing date), which is a decrease of 10% from the budgeted 
projection of 15,324 AF for the quarter. Year-to-date total water consumption was 32,620 AF as 
compared to the budget projection of 35,953 AF. 
 

 
 

 
Revenues  
 
Total water sales were $47.8 million, which was a reduction of 15% compared to the budget of 
$56.5 million. Actual water sales are lower than budgeted based on conservation efforts.  
 
Certain revenues and expenses are budgeted based on seasonal trends or expectations. Water 
sales revenues and chemicals were budgeted based on seasonal demand and production 
history, whereas purchased power is budgeted based on a 10-year trend. Typically, a higher 
percentage of revenues are received in the summer months than in the winter months. 
Revenues such as Property Taxes are budgeted in specific months, based on expectation of 
when taxes are due. A majority of taxes are received in December and April of each year.  
 
Revenues 
Overall, FY 2022/23 total revenues (operating and non-operating) of $67,350,350 were 11% 
($8,333,596) under the budget of $75,686,946.  
 

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000

30,000

35,000

40,000

Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget

October November December Year-To-Date

In
 A

cr
e 

Fe
et

Water Sales (AF) 
FY 2022/23

470



 
 
Significant year-to-date changes from the Budget are as follows: 
 

• Water sales are under budget by 15% which consists of the following:  
o Residential water sales under budget by 12% (-$3,638,938) 
o Commercial water sales over budget by 8% ($237,935) 
o Landscaping/Irrigation water sales were under budget by 27% (-$3,221,575) 
o All other water sales were under budget by 10% (-$337,139) 
o The total number of billing connections added through December 2022 for FY 

2022/23, was 639 out of the 1,550 projected for the year. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

$0

$10

$20

$30

$40

$50

$60

$70

$80

Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget

October November December Year-To-Date

M
ill

io
ns

Total Revenues
FY 2022/23

Water Sales Revenues Non-Operating Revenues

471



• Property tax (1%) received was $13,520,107 of $11,916,350 budget.  
 

 
 

• Facility/Retail Capacity Fees received were $526,080. Regional Facility Capacity Fees 
collected were $482,277and $43,803 in Retail Capacity Fees out of a budget of 
$3,150,000.  

 

 
 
 
 
 

$0.0

$3.0

$6.0

$9.0

$12.0

$15.0

Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget

October November December Year-To-Date

M
ill

io
ns

1% Property Taxes Revenues
FY 2022/23

1% Property Taxes

-$0.5

$0.0

$0.5

$1.0

$1.5

$2.0

$2.5

$3.0

$3.5

Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget

October November December Year-To-Date

M
ill

io
ns

Facility Capacity Fee Revenues
FY 2022/23 

472



Fees Received 
 

 
 
Other Miscellaneous revenues (grants, reimbursements, cell leases/rental income and 
investment revenues) received were $5,455,738; approximately 31% over the budget of 
$4,156,109.  
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Total #Connections Total #Connections 

Lennar Homes 46,869$                 5 46,869$              5
KB Homes -$                       0 -$                     0
Tri Pointe Homes -$                       0 63,304$              2
Newhall Land and Farming -$                       0 -$                     0
Toll Brothers, Inc -$                       0 31,560$              6
Richmond American Homes 45,590$                 2 45,590$              2
Williams Homes -$                       0 41,901$              3
Other 233,081$              20 253,053$            21

Total 325,540$              27 482,277$            39

2nd Quarter Year to Date 
Developers 

$0
$2
$4
$6
$8

$10
$12
$14
$16
$18
$20

Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget

October November December Year-To-Date

M
ill

io
ns

Other Revenues 
FY 2022/23

1% Property Taxes Facility Capacity Fees Misc. Revenues

473



Investment Maturities by Fiscal Year  
 
As of December 31, 2022, the Agency has $222,998,321 in short and long-term investments. A 
significant amount ($158.4 million) of the Agency’s investments is held in liquid accounts, such 
as the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF), LA County Pooled Investment Funds (LACPIF), 
US Bank, and Wells Fargo Government Money Market Fund. Long-term investments ($64.6 
million) are held in Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) bonds, Federal National Mortgage 
Association (FNMA or Fannie Mae) and Certificates of Deposit (CD). Over the past couple of 
years, the Agency has invested in long-term investments in an effort to maximize its returns. 
The Agency’s Investment Advisor have begun investing a portion of the liquid investments, as 
well as reinvesting when existing investments mature.   
 
The Agency’s average annual yield is 1.461%, as a majority of the Agency’s investments are 
held in liquid accounts (71%). In December 2022, the Agency’s investment advisor has 
$83,751,993 of assets under management with an average annual yield of 2.9%.   
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

$0

$20

$40

$60

$80

$100

$120

$140

$160

$180

FY 23 FY 24 FY 25 FY 26

M
ill

io
ns

Maturities by Fiscal Year 
as of December 31,2022

474



Capital Improvement Program (Pay-go and Debt-Funded Projects) 
 
In general, expenditures for CIP projects depend on bid timing and contract awards, 
coordination with other agencies, coordination with other projects, staffing levels and other such 
factors. 
 

• The FY 2022/23 Pay-go Budget for Capital Improvement Program (CIP) expenditures 
was $75,805,830. Of that amount, 12% or $9,308,846 in funds have been expended. 

• The FY 2022/23 Debt-Funded Budget for CIP expenditures was $41,981,000. Of that 
amount, 19.9% or $8,372,957 in funds have been expended. 

 

 
 

 
 

 
CIP project details are included at the end of this report. 
 
 

$9,308,846 

$75,805,830 

 $-  $20,000,000  $40,000,000  $60,000,000  $80,000,000

Actual

Budget

CIP Pay-Go 

$8,372,957 

$41,981,000 

$0 $10,000,000 $20,000,000 $30,000,000 $40,000,000 $50,000,000

Actual

Budget

CIP Debt Funded

475



Operating Expenditures 
 
FY 2022/23 Operating Expenditures of $42,016,356 were under budget by 10% ($4,838,695) of 
the $46,855,051 budget.  
 

 

 
 
Significant Activities 
 

• Water Quality, Treatment & Maintenance – Over budget by 19% ($1,103,874) primarily 
due to treatment plant power costs and regulatory fees.  

• Water Resources – Under budget by 30% ($1,418,290) primarily due to conservation 
program expenses being less than expected due to lower program participation. 

• Source of Supply – Under budget by 12% ($762,185) due to core water supply 
payments (BV/RRB – Buena Vista and Rosedale-Rio Bravo Water Districts) paid twice a 
year in December and June  

 
Debt Service 
 
The payment of $23,584,859 was made in the first half of FY2022/23. The principal debt 
outstanding as of December 31, 2022 is $261,195,489. (Excluding the Valencia Water Division 
– VWD) acquisition interfund loan and 1999A accreted interest) 
 
 
 

$0.0
$5.0

$10.0
$15.0
$20.0
$25.0
$30.0
$35.0
$40.0
$45.0
$50.0

Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget

October November December Year-To-Date

M
ill

io
ns

Operating Expenses 
FY 2022/223

Finance, Admin & IT Trans & Distribution Water Quality,Treatment & Maintenance
Management Pumping Wells & Storage Water Resources
Engineering Services Source of Supply Customer Care

476



Capital Improvement Projects: Pay-Go Project List 

 

 
 

  

Project 
Numbers

FY 2022/23
Budget

FY 2022/23
Actual % Committed 

Cost
1 Additional Wells (T7, U4, U6) (includes S1&S2 Wells VOC Treatment & Flextend) 2300420  $     1,400,000  $     385,903 28%  $     500,182 
2 Appurtenance Improvements & Replacements 2301072            410,000           66,655 16%                   -   
3 Asset Management 2302014            200,000                   -   0%                   -   
4 Battery Energy Storage and Solar Project - ESFP 2301184         1,892,652           16,124 1%             3,164 
5 Battery Energy Storage Project - RVWTP 2301185         1,166,446           42,560 4%         166,695 

6 Booster Station/Turnout Improvements & Replacements

2301055, 
2301063, 
2302068         1,050,000         296,112 28%         162,454 

7 Bridgeport Pocket Park 2300190            230,000           38,160 17%                  23 
8 BVRRB Storage and Recovery Program 2300191         2,937,832      1,495,093 51%                   -   
9 Catala PS Pipelines (Bouquet & Central Park) 2302015            280,000           13,833 5%                   -   
10 Catala Pump Station 2302013              20,000           19,121 96%                   -   
11 CIS Software Integration & Upgrade                     -   
12 Deane Pump Station @ Sand Canyon Plaza* 2300068         2,400,000             8,123 0%                   -   
13 Deane Pump Station @ Skyline Ranch* 2300022            750,000           52,549 7%           61,462 
14 Deane SC-6 Pump Station 2301016              50,000                   -   0%                   -   
15 Deane SC-6 Soledad Pipeline 2301017              50,000                   -   0%                   -   
16 Deane Tank (One 2.08 MG Tank) @ Skyline Ranch* 2300010         3,500,000           21,179 1%           62,771 
17 Deane Tank (Second 2.08 MG) @ Skyline Ranch                     -   
18 Deane Tank Site (Existing) Improvements 2301018            275,000                   -   0%                   -   
19 Deane Tanks - One 1.5 MG Tank @ Sand Canyon Plaza* 2300097         1,750,000           86,489 5%         126,157 
20 Deane Zone Disinfection @ Skyline Ranch* 2300600            100,000                   -   0%                   -   
21 Devil's Den Property Solar Project 2300218            100,000                   -   0%                   -   
22 Dickason Pipeline Replacement 2301158         2,300,000           24,829 1%           12,120 
23 Disinfection System Improvements & Replacements 2301046            775,000         153,337 20%           12,299 
24 Dockweiler-Sierra Hwy Pipeline* 2300897            150,000                   -   0%                   -   
25 E Wells (E-14, E-15, E-16, E-17) 2300422            525,000             7,567 1%                   -   
26 Equipment and Vehicle Improvements & Replacements 2301044         1,575,000         500,781 32%         400,965 
27 ERP Software (Finance & Accounting)                     -   
28 ESFP Access Road Automatic Gate                     -   
29 ESFP Improvements & Replacements 2301073            450,000           50,573 11%           16,367 
30 ESFP Standby Generator 2300257              10,000             1,208 12%                   -   
31 ESFP Two 5 MG Tanks Improvements 2301019              50,000                473 1%             1,688 
32 ESIPS Improvements & Replacements 2301076            100,000                   -   0%           50,204 
33 Feasibility Study and Environmental Docs GSP 2302012            150,000                   -   0%                   -   
34 Foothill Feeder Service Connection CLWA-0101T and CLWA-01 Pipe Repair 2302070            175,000                   -   0%                   -   
35 Friendly Valley Booster Station (Crossroads) 2301025              75,000                   -   0%                   -   
36 Friendly Valley Pipeline @ Via Princessa (Crossroads) 2301020              50,000                   -   0%                   -   
37 Friendly Valley Tank (3.25 MG) @ Crossroads 2301026            150,000                   -   0%                   -   
38 Golden Valley Pipeline @ Via Princessa (Crossroads) 2301021              50,000                   -   0%                   -   
39 Golden Valley Road Bore & Jack 2302020            100,000                   -   0%                   -   
40 Golden Valley Tank (1.6 MG) @  Crossroads 2301027              50,000                   -   0%                   -   
41 Honby Pipeline Bottleneck 2300352            500,000           25,084 5%           34,100 
42 Invasive Species Management 2301079            250,000                   -   0%                   -   
43 Laboratory Improvements & Replacements 2301048            400,000           24,442 6%                   -   
44 Market Street Pump Station                     -   
45 Market Street/Shadeland/Maple Street Pipeline                     -   

Capital Pay-Go Projects 

477



Capital Improvement Projects: Pay-Go Project List – continued 
 
 

 
 
 
 
  

Project 
Numbers

FY 2022/23
Budget

FY 2022/23
Actual % Committed 

Cost

46 Meter & Meter Infrastructure Improvements & Replacements
2301043, 
2301221         2,075,000         520,285 25%           72,600 

47 Newhall Tanks 1 and 1A - Tank Upgrades 2301157            700,000           33,750 5%           73,722 
48 N Wells Drainage Improvements Project 2302050            250,000             1,945 1%                   -   
49 Office Furniture - General 2301012              30,000                   -   0%                   -   
50 Office Improvements - Various 2301013            850,000           95,172 11%           12,785 
51 Pipeline Inspection Facility Modifications                     -   
52 Pipeline Relocations/Modifications 2300060         3,214,900           15,618 0%             9,685 

53 Pipelines & Pipeline Improvements & Replacements

2301038, 
2301039, 
2301041, 
2301050, 
2302016, 
2302017, 
2302073         2,100,000         180,901 9%         155,750 

54 Pitchess Pipeline Modifications Project 2301156                9,000                384 4%                   -   
55 Placerita Tanks (Two 1.6 MG Tanks)                     -   
56 Recycled Water Program Phase II, 2B - Vista Cyn Customer Conversion 2301034            295,000           10,635 4%                   -   
57 Recycled Water Program Phase II, 2B - Vista Cyn Distribution 2300076            200,000                   -   0%                   -   
58 Recycled Water Program Phase II, 2C - South End Cust
59 Recycled Water Program Phase II, 2C - South End Distribution 2301023              50,000                   -   0%                   -   
60 Recycled Water Program Phase II, 2D - West Ranch Customer Conversion 2301035            800,000           20,714 3%           46,777 
61 Resiliency Water Master Plan 2300487         1,500,000         275,517 18%         542,485 
62 RVIPS Improvements & Replacements 2301075            125,000           13,060 10%                   -   
63 RVTP Improvements & Replacements (includes Access Gate Improvements) 2301074            675,000         150,366 22%           23,432 
64 RVWTP Sewer Line 2301204            200,000           68,495 34%           23,914 
65 RVWTP Underground Storage Tank Replmt 2300563            225,000         109,221 49%           29,385 
66 S Wells (S6, S7 and S8) 2300437            750,000         199,137 27%           22,135 
67 Sand Canyon Reservoir Expansion 2302049            525,000             6,982 1%                   -   
68 Sand Canyon Sewer Line Relocation 2302028            750,000             7,019 1%           77,930 
69 Santa Clara and Honby Wells 2300434         6,400,000         900,382 14%      1,084,898 
70 Saugus 3 & 4 Replacement Wells (Complete by 7/1/25)                                                                                      2300080       14,200,000         584,357 4%      2,828,792 
71 Saugus Wells (N11, N12, N13) Groundwater Treatment Improvements 2302045            250,000           25,418 10%             2,000 
72 SC-12 Warmuth Pipeline                     -   
73 SCADA Improvements & Replacements 2301049            300,000         182,052 61%           23,289 
74 Sierra Hwy Bridge Expansion Water Pipelines Protection 2301155            154,000           12,015 8%                   -   
75 Smyth Drive Water Line Improvements 2302060              50,000             1,222 2%             5,328 
76 Stair/Ladder Safety Improvements 2300920            100,000             7,126 7%           17,200 
77 System Hydraulic Model                     -   
78 Tank 4 (1.5 MG Tank @Wiley Canyon )                     -   

79 Tanks & Storage Facility Improvements & Replacements 
2301047, 
2301071            840,000         105,524 13%           11,672 

80 Technology Improvements and Replacements 2301033         2,261,000         359,499 16%           29,100 
81 Update Water Conservation and Education Garden 2300571         2,000,000           40,478 2%           17,487 
82 V-9 Improvements 2301028            100,000                   -   0%                   -   
83 Valencia Marketplace Pipeline Replacement 2301029         2,600,000           43,889 2%           43,104 
84 Valley Center Well 2300441         1,100,000      1,045,805 95%           24,718 
85 Vista Cyn Bridge Piping at Soledad/Lost Canyon 2301024            150,000                   -   0%                   -   
86 Warehouse & Surface Improvements & Replacements 2302018            850,000             4,881 1%                   -   
87 Well 205 (Perchlorate) 2300417            615,000           83,711 14%         321,579 
88 Well Q2 (Perchlorate)                     -   

89 Wells & Well Facility Improvements

2301045, 
2301052, 
2301053, 
2302069            976,000         142,565 15%           15,933 

90 Yuba Accord Water 2300679         1,089,000         730,530 67%                   -   

Total CIP - Pay Go Projects  $   75,805,830  $  9,308,846 12%  $  7,126,349 

Capital Pay-Go Projects 

478



Capital Improvement Projects: Debt Funded Project List 
 

 
 
On February 27, 2023, the Finance and Administration Committee considered staff’s 
recommendation to receive and file the December 2022 Monthly and FY 2022/23 Mid-year and 
Second Quarter Financial Report. 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN NEXUS 
 
The preparation and review of this report helps meet SCV Water’s Strategic Plan Strategy E.1: 
“Increase focus on forward looking financial information,” Strategy E.3: “Improve treasury and 
cash management practices,” and Strategy E.4: “Expand Financial & Performance Reporting.” 
 
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 
None. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Finance and Administration Committee recommends that the Board of Directors receive 
and file the December 2022 Monthly and FY 2022/23 Mid-year and Second Quarter Financial 
Report. 

Debt Funded Capital Projects Project 
Numbers

FY 2022/23
Budget

FY 2022/23
Actual % Committed 

Cost
1 Additional Wells (T7, U4, U6) (includes S1&S2 Wells VOC Treatment & Flextend)                    -   
2 As-Needed Regulatory Support for Non-Potable Recycled Water Permitting 2301147          100,000            7,568 8%         73,982 
3 Castaic Conduit 2300016       2,200,000        118,021 5%         25,712 
4 E Wells (E-14, E-15, E-16, E-17)                    -   
5 ESFP Sludge Collection System 2300251     15,000,000     6,673,573 44%    1,165,827 
6 Honby Parallel 2300346          100,000            7,551 8%         19,477 
7 LARC Pipeline* 2300036       1,500,000          49,334 3%         60,372 
8 Magic Mountain Pipeline No. 4 2300389          250,000        153,473 61%           5,084 
9 Magic Mountain Pipeline No. 5 2300045          250,000        105,549 42%           3,785 
10 Magic Mountain Pipeline No. 6 2300051       3,400,000        290,791 9%         19,591 
11 Magic Mountain Reservoir 2300395       3,000,000          45,215 2%         45,647 
12 Magic Mountain Reservoir 2                    -   
13 Mitchell 5A Replacement 2301082          150,000                  -                  -   
14 New Water Banking Program (AVEK/Mid Valley/Rosedale)(Could possibly go to Lrg CAP) 2301081       2,300,000                  -                  -   
15 Newhall Ave Railroad Crossing                    -   
16 Recycled Water Fill Station 2301080       1,000,000          64,784 6%         63,676 
17 Recycled Water Program Phase II, 2A - Central Park 2300468              1,000                  -                  -   
18 Recycled Water Program Phase II, 2B - Vista Canyon Backbone 2300474       2,200,000        553,888 25%       208,896 
19 Recycled Water Program Phase II, 2C - South End Backbone (Grant deadline: April 30, 2025) 2300480       5,975,000          81,451 1%       223,787 
20 S Wells (S6, S7 and S8)                    -   
21 Sand Canyon Reservoir Expansion                    -   
22 Santa Clara and Honby Wells                    -   
23 Saugus Dry Year Reliability Wells 5 & 6 2300493          230,000                  -                  -   
24 Saugus WRP Recycled Water Fill Station 2302030            25,000            3,160 13%         15,000 
25 Sites Reservoir 2300598       1,000,000                  -                  -   
26 Southern Service Area Reservoir                    -   
27 Valley Center Well                    -   
28 Well 201 VOC Groundwater Treatment Improvements 2301146       3,300,000        218,598 7%           2,172 
29 Well E-14 Site Improvements                    -   
30 Well E-16 Site Improvements                    -   

 $ 41,981,000  $ 8,372,957 19.9%  $1,933,007 Total Debt Funded Capital Projects

479



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

480



 

 
 
 

 

 

Monthly Financial 

And Quarterly Report 

With Mid-Year Budget 

Review 
 

 

DECEMBER 2022 
 

Q2 FY 2022/23 
 

 

481



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

482



 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 
Statement of 

Revenues and Expenses 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

483



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

484



S
C

V
 W

a
te

r 

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
R

e
v
e
n

u
e
s
 a

n
d

 E
x
p

e
n

s
e
s

F
o

r 
th

e
 6

th
 P

e
ri

o
d

 E
n

d
in

g
 1

2
.3

1
.2

2

(A
)

(B
)

(C
)

(D
)

(E
)

(F
)

(G
)

(H
)

A
c
tu

a
l

B
u

d
g

e
t

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

P
e
rc

e
n

t
A

c
tu

a
l

B
u

d
g

e
t

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

P
e
rc

e
n

t

O
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
 R

e
v
e
n

u
e
s

(1
)

6,
16

3,
72

1
$ 

   
 

6,
36

4,
06

7
$ 

   
  

(2
00

,3
45

)
$ 

   
   

 
(3

%
)

W
at

er
 S

al
es

47
,2

00
,9

69
$ 

   
 

55
,4

58
,2

96
$ 

   
 

(8
,2

57
,3

27
)

$ 
   

 
(1

5%
)

(1
)

(2
)

24
,3

62
   

   
   

   
24

,4
48

   
   

   
   

 
(8

6)
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

(0
%

)
W

at
er

 S
al

es
 - 

W
W

R
14

6,
17

2
   

   
   

   
14

6,
68

5
   

   
   

   
(5

13
)

   
   

   
   

   
  

(0
%

)
(2

)
(3

)
12

,0
43

   
   

   
   

39
,0

51
   

   
   

   
 

(2
7,

00
8)

   
   

   
   

(6
9%

)
( a

 )
W

at
er

 S
al

es
 - 

R
ec

yc
le

d
21

6,
20

4
   

   
   

   
23

4,
30

6
   

   
   

   
(1

8,
10

2)
   

   
   

   
(8

%
)

(3
)

(4
)

47
,9

80
   

   
   

   
71

,4
00

   
   

   
   

 
(2

3,
42

0)
   

   
   

   
(3

3%
)

( b
 )

M
is

c 
Fe

es
 a

nd
 C

ha
rg

es
28

5,
08

0
   

   
   

   
62

2,
20

0
   

   
   

   
(3

37
,1

20
)

   
   

   
 

(5
4%

)
(4

)
(5

)
6,

24
8,

10
7

$ 
   

 
6,

49
8,

96
5

$ 
   

  
(2

50
,8

59
)

$ 
   

   
 

(4
%

)
T

o
ta

l 
O

p
e
ra

ti
n

g
 R

e
v
e
n

u
e
s

47
,8

48
,4

25
$ 

   
 

56
,4

61
,4

87
$ 

   
 

(8
,6

13
,0

62
)

$ 
   

 
(1

5%
)

(5
)

O
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
 E

x
p

e
n

s
e
s

(6
)

51
,0

27
$ 

   
   

   
46

9,
86

7
$ 

   
   

  
(4

18
,8

40
)

$ 
   

   
 

(8
9%

)
( c

 )
M

an
ag

em
en

t
1,

63
7,

44
3

$ 
   

   
2,

84
7,

24
7

$ 
   

   
(1

,2
09

,8
04

)
$ 

   
 

(4
3%

)
(6

)
(7

)
1,

98
2,

10
9

   
   

 
1,

66
5,

21
1

   
   

  
31

6,
89

8
   

   
   

  
19

%
( d

 )
Fi

na
nc

e,
 A

dm
in

 &
 IT

9,
14

3,
47

7
   

   
   

10
,2

59
,5

95
   

   
 

(1
,1

16
,1

18
)

   
   

 
(1

1%
)

(7
)

(8
)

25
2,

67
3

   
   

   
 

21
9,

19
2

   
   

   
  

33
,4

80
   

   
   

   
 

15
%

( e
 )

C
us

to
m

er
 C

ar
e

1,
38

7,
89

7
   

   
   

1,
37

5,
28

0
   

   
   

12
,6

17
   

   
   

   
 

1%
(8

)
(9

)
79

1,
74

6
   

   
   

 
86

2,
01

5
   

   
   

  
(7

0,
27

0)
   

   
   

   
(8

%
)

Tr
an

s 
&

 D
is

tri
bu

tio
n

4,
94

6,
70

6
   

   
   

5,
25

6,
61

9
   

   
   

(3
09

,9
14

)
   

   
   

 
(6

%
)

(9
)

(1
0)

1,
83

8,
04

0
   

   
 

1,
10

9,
43

5
   

   
  

72
8,

60
5

   
   

   
  

66
%

( f
 )

P
um

pi
ng

 W
el

ls
 &

 S
to

ra
ge

7,
41

3,
94

7
   

   
   

7,
86

3,
04

8
   

   
   

(4
49

,1
01

)
   

   
   

 
(6

%
)

(1
0)

(1
1)

73
2,

79
2

   
   

   
 

76
3,

66
2

   
   

   
  

(3
0,

87
0)

   
   

   
   

(4
%

)
W

at
er

 R
es

ou
rc

es
3,

30
1,

49
8

   
   

   
4,

71
9,

78
8

   
   

   
(1

,4
18

,2
90

)
   

   
 

(3
0%

)
(1

1)
(1

2)
4,

33
1,

04
9

   
   

 
1,

04
3,

46
7

   
   

  
3,

28
7,

58
2

   
   

  
31

5%
( g

 )
S

ou
rc

e 
of

 S
up

pl
y

5,
49

5,
26

5
   

   
   

6,
25

7,
45

0
   

   
   

(7
62

,1
85

)
   

   
   

 
(1

2%
)

(1
2)

(1
3)

1,
56

9,
16

3
   

   
 

91
0,

85
0

   
   

   
  

65
8,

31
3

   
   

   
  

72
%

( h
 )

W
at

er
 Q

ua
lit

y,
 T

re
at

m
en

t &
 M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
6,

79
7,

78
5

   
   

   
5,

69
3,

91
1

   
   

   
1,

10
3,

87
4

   
   

  
19

%
(1

3)
(1

4)
40

4,
81

6
   

   
   

 
40

0,
66

2
   

   
   

  
4,

15
4

   
   

   
   

   
1%

E
ng

in
ee

rin
g 

S
er

vi
ce

s
1,

89
2,

33
7

   
   

   
2,

58
2,

11
2

   
   

   
(6

89
,7

75
)

   
   

   
 

(2
7%

)
(1

4)

(1
5)

11
,9

53
,4

13
$ 

  
7,

44
4,

36
1

$ 
   

  
4,

50
9,

05
2

$ 
   

  
61

%
T

o
ta

l 
O

p
e
ra

ti
n

g
 E

x
p

e
n

s
e
s

42
,0

16
,3

56
$ 

   
 

46
,8

55
,0

51
$ 

   
 

(4
,8

38
,6

95
)

$ 
   

 
(1

0%
)

(1
5)

(1
6)

(5
,7

05
,3

06
)

$ 
   

(9
45

,3
96

)
$ 

   
   

 
(4

,7
59

,9
10

)
$ 

   
 

50
4%

N
e
t 

O
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
 R

e
v
e
n

u
e
s
 (

E
x
p

e
n

s
e
s
)

5,
83

2,
06

9
$ 

   
   

9,
60

6,
43

7
$ 

   
   

(3
,7

74
,3

67
)

$ 
   

 
(3

9%
)

(1
6)

N
o

n
-O

p
e
ra

ti
n

g
 R

e
v
e
n

u
e
s
 a

n
d

 (
E

x
p

e
n

s
e
s
)

(1
7)

15
,7

88
,2

70
$ 

  
12

,5
79

,5
87

$ 
   

3,
20

8,
68

3
$ 

   
  

26
%

( i
 )

N
on

-O
pe

ra
tin

g 
R

ev
en

ue
s 

1
19

,5
01

,9
25

$ 
   

 
19

,2
22

,4
59

$ 
   

 
27

9,
46

6
$ 

   
   

  
2%

(1
7)

(1
8)

(3
,4

24
,9

07
)

   
   

(6
,3

17
,1

53
)

   
   

 
2,

89
2,

24
5

   
   

  
(4

6%
)

( j
 )

C
ap

ita
l I

m
pr

ov
em

en
t P

ro
je

ct
s 

- P
ay

 G
o

(9
,3

08
,8

46
)

   
   

  
(3

7,
90

2,
91

5)
   

   
28

,5
94

,0
69

   
   

(7
5%

)
(1

8)
(1

9)
(3

,2
96

,4
24

)
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
(3

,2
96

,4
24

)
   

   
 

0%
D

eb
t S

er
vi

ce
(2

3,
58

4,
85

9)
   

   
(2

9,
90

9,
65

2)
   

   
6,

32
4,

79
3

   
   

  
(2

1%
)

(1
9)

(2
0)

9,
06

6,
93

9
$ 

   
 

6,
26

2,
43

5
$ 

   
  

2,
80

4,
50

4
$ 

   
  

45
%

N
e
t 

N
o

n
-O

p
e
ra

ti
n

g
 R

e
v
e
n

u
e
s
 a

n
d

 (
E

x
p

e
n

s
e
s
)

(1
3,

39
1,

78
0)

$ 
   

(4
8,

59
0,

10
8)

$ 
   

35
,1

98
,3

28
$ 

   
(7

2%
)

(2
0)

(2
1)

3,
36

1,
63

3
$ 

   
 

5,
31

7,
03

9
$ 

   
  

(1
,9

55
,4

06
)

$ 
   

 
(3

7%
)

In
c
re

a
s
e
 (

D
e
c
re

a
s
e
) 

in
 N

e
t 

P
o

s
it

io
n

(7
,5

59
,7

11
)

$ 
   

  
(3

8,
98

3,
67

1)
$ 

   
31

,4
23

,9
61

$ 
   

(8
1%

)
(2

1)

M
on

th
ly

 C
ha

ng
es

 o
f m

or
e 

th
an

 1
0%

 a
nd

 $
20

,0
00

(a
)

R
ec

yc
le

d 
W

at
er

 s
al

es
 d

ow
n 

du
e 

to
 ra

in
 in

 th
e 

m
on

th
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r
(b

)
La

te
 F

ee
s/

D
is

co
nn

ec
ts

 a
re

 lo
w

er
 th

an
 b

ud
ge

te
d,

 in
 p

ar
t d

ue
 to

 th
e 

po
lic

y 
ch

an
ge

s 
in

 th
e 

tim
in

g 
of

 la
te

 fe
es

 a
nd

 s
er

vi
ce

 d
is

co
nn

ec
tio

ns
.

(c
)

Le
ga

l l
ow

er
 th

an
 e

xp
ec

te
d.

 In
cl

ud
es

 $
17

3K
 N

os
sa

m
an

 re
im

bu
rs

em
en

t f
or

 p
re

vi
ou

s 
ch

ar
ge

s.
(d

)
O

ut
si

de
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

ar
e 

hi
gh

er
 th

an
 b

ud
ge

te
d 

du
e 

to
 ti

m
in

g 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

s.
(e

)
S

al
ar

ie
s,

 B
ur

de
n 

&
 B

en
ef

its
 a

nd
 T

em
po

ra
ry

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
ar

e 
hi

gh
er

 th
an

 b
ud

ge
te

d 
du

e 
to

 re
tir

em
en

t. 
(f)

P
ur

ch
as

ed
 p

ow
er

 o
ve

r b
ud

ge
t i

n 
pa

rt 
du

e 
th

e 
re

du
ce

d 
so

la
r o

ffs
et

 (s
ol

ar
 o

pe
ra

tin
g 

at
 a

pp
ro

x.
 8

5%
) a

nd
 a

 m
id

-y
ea

r E
di

so
n 

ac
cr

ua
l, 

$2
11

K
.

(g
)

C
or

e 
W

at
er

 S
up

pl
ie

s 
pa

id
 in

 D
ec

em
be

r a
nd

 J
un

e 
of

 e
ac

h 
ye

ar
 (b

ud
ge

te
d 

m
on

th
ly

).
(h

)
O

ut
si

de
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

ar
e 

ov
er

 b
ud

ge
t d

ue
 to

 th
e 

tim
in

g 
of

 th
e 

R
eg

ul
at

or
y 

Fe
es

.
(i)

N
on

-O
pe

ra
tin

g 
R

ev
en

ue
s 

ar
e 

hi
gh

er
 th

an
 b

ud
ge

te
d 

du
e 

to
 ti

m
in

g 
of

 a
nn

ex
at

io
n 

re
im

bu
rs

em
en

ts
. 

(j)
Ti

m
in

g 
of

 c
ap

ita
l p

ro
je

ct
s 

va
ry

 fr
om

 m
on

th
 to

 m
on

th

Y
e
a
r-

to
-D

a
te

C
u

rr
e
n

t 
P

e
ri

o
d

1  N
on

-O
pe

ra
tin

g 
R

ev
en

ue
s 

in
cl

ud
e:

 G
ra

nt
s 

&
 R

ei
m

bu
rs

em
en

ts
, 1

%
 P

ro
pe

rty
 T

ax
, C

el
l S

ite
s,

 F
C

F,
 L

ab
 R

ev
en

ue
s,

 In
te

re
st

 In
co

m
e

485



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

486



 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 
Investment Report 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

487



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

488



Operating Account-Incl FCF's,  SWP & CIP XXX-10101 23,312,597$               8.39%

Customer Billing Bank Accounts 101-10105 1,355,247                   0.49%

UBS Cash in Bank 101-10109 9,000                           0.00%

US Bank - Cash with Fiscal Agent 101-102XX 5,705                           0.00%

US Bank Trust Account  (1% Prop Tax) 101-10202 13,093,281                 4.71%

LAIF - Operating 101-11061 74,982,415                 26.98%

LAC Pooled Investment Fund 101-11062 25,900,811                 9.32%

Federal Agency Bonds 101-11064 44,684,835                 16.08%

State and Local Government Bonds 101-11065 16,148,995                 5.81%

Certificates of Deposit 101-11066 3,173,760                   1.14%

Government Money Mkt Fund 101-11067 63,895,540                 22.99%

Commercial Bonds 101-11068 3,000,000                   1.08%

LAIF - CIP 220-11002 8,367,569                   3.01%

277,929,756$            100.00%

Estimated Refundable Developer Deposits: 7,530,407$                 

Portfolio-wide Investments:

Average Yield 1.461%

Rochelle Patterson Amy Aguer
Treasurer/Chief Financial & Administration Officer Controller

Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency

Cash and Investment Summary
12/31/22

All investment actions executed since the last report have been made in full compliance with the Investment Policy, 

and the Agency will meet its expenditure obligations for the next six months as required by Government Code Section 

53646(b)(2) and (3), respectively.

Included 

in totals 

Operating 
Account 8.39%

Customer Billing 
Bank Accounts 

0.49% UBS Cash 
in Bank 

0.0%
US Bank - Cash 

With Fiscal Agent 
0.00%

US Bank Trust Account 
4.71%

LAIF 
26.98%

LACPIF 9.32%

Federal Agency Bonds 
16.08%

State and Local Govt 
Bonds 5.81%

Certificates of Deposit 
1.14%

Govt Money Market 
22.99%

Commercial Bonds 
1.08% LAIF - CIP …

Cash and Investments

489

edill
Rochelle signature

edill
Amy signature



Note Acct # Balance Total % of Total

AGENCY FUNDS

Cash & Sweep Accounts

Operating Account-Incl FCF's, SWP & CIP XXX-10101 23,312,597

Less: Restricted Cash (FCFs, SWP & CIP) 1 2XX-10101 (2,247,861)           

Customer Billing - Northstar Account 101-10105 323,568                

Customer Billing - enQuesta Account 101-10107 1,031,679            

US Bank - Cash with Fiscal Agent 101-102XX 5,705                    

US Bank Trust Account  (1% Prop Tax) 101/204-10202 13,093,281          

UBS Bank Cash 101-10109 9,000                    

Less: Restricted Cash US Bank Accts -SWP 1 204-10202 (322,864)              

Subtotal - Cash & Sweep Accounts Unrestricted 35,205,105$           12.67%

Investments - Unrestricted

Local Agency Investment Fund 101/202/204-11061 74,982,415$        

LAC Pooled Investment Fund 101/204-11062 25,900,811          

Federal Agency Bonds 101-11064 44,684,835          

State and Local Government Bonds 101-11065 16,148,995          

Certificates of Deposit 101-11066 3,173,760            

Government Money Mkt Fund 101/204-11067 63,895,540          

Commercial Bonds 101-11068 3,000,000            

Less: Restricted Investments - FCF 2 202-11061 (9,811,501)           

Less: Restricted Investments - SWP 3 204-11061-11067 (91,243,263)         

Subtotal - Investments Unrestricted 130,731,592$         47.04%

Cash and Investments - Restricted

Facility Capacity Fee Fund - Cash 4 202-10101 -$                      

Facility Capacity Fee Fund - Investments 5 202-11061 9,811,501            

State Water Project - Cash (WF & US Bank) 6 204-10XXX 322,874                

State Water Project - Investments 7 204-11061/11062 91,243,263

Subtotal - Investments Restricted 101,377,638           36.48%

TOTAL AGENCY CASH & INVESTMENTS 267,314,336$         

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT FUNDS

Cash & Sweep Accounts 8 220-10101 2,247,851$          

Local Agency Investment Fund - Restricted 220-11061 8,367,569            

TOTAL CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT FUNDS 10,615,420$           3.82%

TOTAL CASH AND INVESTMENTS 277,929,756$         100.00%

Notes

1 Less: Restricted Cash - FCF's, SWP & CIP 

2 Less: Restricted Investments - FCF's Legacy SCWD

3 Less: Restricted Investments - State Water Project

4 Restricted Cash - FCF's (Regional Legacy)

5 Restricted Investments - FCF's (SCWD Legacy)

6 Restricted Cash - SWP (State Water Project)

7 Restricted Investments - SWP (State Water Project)

8 Restricted Cash - CIP 2020A Bond Proceeds

SCV Water
Consolidated Cash & Investment Summary

12/31/2022

2/21/2023490



12/31/2022  

Agency-wide General Funds Invested:
Purchase Maturity Life Rem. Average

Description Cost Rate Yield Date Date Days Days Interest

1 Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 74,982,415      2.007% 2.007% Various Liquid N/A N/A 125,408

1 LA County Pooled Invest Fund (LACPIF) 25,900,811      2.300% 2.300% Various Liquid N/A N/A 49,643

1 US Bank 1% Trust Account 13,093,281      1.000% 1.000% Various 08/15/23 N/A N/A 10,911

1 Wells Fargo Gov't Money Market 63,895,540      3.470% 3.470% Various Liquid N/A N/A 184,765

4 177,872,048$  0.202% 370,727

State and Local Agency Investment Portfolio

Wells Fargo records these at Par value

1 San Bernardino Com College Dist Bonds 1,050,078.70   1.964% 1.964% 03/22/22 08/01/23 497 213 20,624

1 State of California GO Bonds 1,946,780        2.250% 2.862% 01/25/19 10/01/23 1710 274 43,803         

1 Semitropic Improvement District 1,302,045        2.262% 2.262% 10/30/19 12/01/23 1493 335 29,452         

1 State of California GO Bonds 3,098,130        3.000% 3.000% 05/28/19 04/01/24 1770 457 92,944         

1 San Diego Successor Agency 1,147,938        3.000% 2.052% 10/23/19 09/01/24 1775 610 34,438         

1 L.A. Cnty MET Transp BA Bonds 3,159,800.00   5.130% 5.130% 12/29/21 06/01/25 1,250 883 162,098

1 Univ of Cal Ca Revenues Txbl-Relief 1,270,703.25   3.063% 3.063% 12/29/21 07/01/25 1,280 913 38,922

1 Cal St Txbl-Various Purpose-Bid group 3,173,520.00   2.650% 2.650% 12/29/21 04/01/26 1,554 1187 84,098

8 16,148,995$    3.142% 4,872 506,378

Avg Remaining Life 609 Days

Certificates of Deposit

1 SYNCHRONY Bank - UBS CD 200,000           1.280% 1.280% 04/13/20 04/17/23 1099 107 2,560           

1 BMW Bank North AME - UBS CD 200,000           0.250% 0.250% 11/13/20 05/22/23 920 142 500              

1 Beal Bank USA - WF CD 250,000           0.600% 0.600% 01/05/22 01/03/24 728 368 1,500           

1 First State Bank/NE - WF CD 250,000           0.500% 0.500% 01/12/22 01/12/24 730 377 1,250           

1 TIAA FSB Florida - UBS CD 200,000           0.400% 0.400% 03/31/21 04/09/24 1105 465 800              

1 American National Bk - UBS CD 244,388           0.250% 0.250% 06/08/21 05/21/24 1078 507 611              

1 New York Cmnty Bk - UBS CD 245,000           0.350% 0.350% 06/08/21 06/03/24 1091 520 858              

1 Leader Bank NA MA - UBS CD 244,373           0.250% 0.250% 06/08/21 06/03/24 1091 520 611              

1 Greenstate Credit AI US - UBS CD 245,000           0.450% 0.450% 06/08/21 06/17/24 1105 534 1,103           

1 LUANA Savings Bank- WF CD 250,000           0.250% 0.250% 12/30/20 07/01/24 1279 548 625              

1 Texas Exchange Bank - UBS CD 200,000           0.500% 0.500% 07/22/21 07/30/24 1104 577 1,000           

1 UBS Bank - UBS CD 200,000           0.700% 0.700% 10/14/20 10/28/24 1475 667 1,400           

1 Morgan Stanley PRI NY - UBS CD 245,000           1.640% 1.640% 04/01/20 03/05/25 1799 795 4,018           

1 Sallie Mae Bank - UBS CD 200,000           1.880% 1.880% 11/22/19 11/20/24 1825 690 3,760           

14 3,173,760$      6817 20,595         

      Weighted Avg Yield 0.649% Avg Remaining Life 487 Days

491



Federal Government Agency Investment Portfolio

Wells Fargo records these at Par value

1 FFCB - WF 2,000,560        0.120% 0.120% 02/02/21 01/12/23 709 12 2,401           

1 FFCB - WF 2,000,000        0.180% 0.180% 01/13/21 07/13/23 911 194 3,600           

1 FHLB - UBS 3,000,000        1.250% 1.125% 04/12/22 10/12/23 548 285 37,500         

1 FHLB - UBS 3,000,000        1.800% 1.800% 02/28/22 02/27/24 729 423 54,000         

1 FHLB - WF 2,996,580        2.125% 2.125% 03/25/22 02/28/24 705 424 63,677         

1 FHLB - UBS 2,000,000        1.875% 1.875% 03/14/22 03/14/24 731 439 37,500         

1 FHLB - UBS 2,000,000        1.500% 1.500% 03/25/22 03/28/24 734 453 30,000         

1 FFCB - WF 5,000,000        0.270% 0.270% 01/05/21 04/05/24 1186 461 13,500         

1 FHLB - UBS 200,005           0.750% 0.750% 11/24/21 05/24/24 912 510 1,500           

1 FHLB - UBS 235,000           1.350% 1.350% 02/24/22 05/24/24 820 510 3,173           

1 FHLB - UBS 4,500,000        0.400% 0.400% 06/08/21 08/29/24 1178 607 18,000         

1 FFCB - WF 1,997,700        0.875% 0.875% 11/18/21 11/18/24 1096 688 17,480         

1 FHLB - WF 2,000,000        0.400% 0.400% 02/26/21 11/26/24 1369 696 8,000           

1 FHLB - WF 996,470           3.063% 3.063% 01/03/22 01/13/25 1106 744 30,522         

1 FHLB - WF 2,000,000        0.690% 0.690% 06/10/21 06/10/25 1461 892 13,800         

1 FNMA - WF 3,985,680        0.500% 0.500% 11/12/20 11/07/25 1821 1042 19,928         

1 FNMA - WF 1,992,840        0.500% 0.500% 11/12/20 11/07/25 1821 1042 9,964           

1 FHLB - UBS 280,000           0.500% 5.000% 04/15/21 04/29/26 1840 1215 1,400           

1 FHLB - UBS 1,500,000        0.600% 0.600% 06/09/21 06/30/26 1847 1277 9,000           

1 FHLB - UBS 3,000,000        0.500% 0.500% 06/08/21 06/30/26 1848 1277 15,000         

20 44,684,835$    13191 389,945       

      Weighted Avg Yield 0.894% Avg Remaining Life 660 Days

Commercial Bonds

1 JP Morgan Chase Financial 3,000,000 3.125% 3.125% 05/13/22 05/13/24 731 499 93,750

1 3,000,000$      499 93,750

      Weighted Avg Yield 3.125% Avg Remaining Life 499 Days

Cost

Portfolio-wide Investment Yield 244,879,638
 

      Weighted Avg Yield 0.564%

Liquid Investments - LAIF, LACPIF, WF MM 177,872,048

State and Local Agencies 16,148,995

Certificates of Deposit 3,173,760

Subtotals by Agency
FED AGENCY-FHLMC 0 0%
FED AGENCY-FNMA 5,978,520 13%
FED AGENCY-FFCB 10,998,260 25%
FED AGENCY-FHLB 27,708,055 62%

44,684,835 100%

Commercial Bonds 3,000,000

Agency Account Total 244,879,638
492



 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 
3-Month Cashflow 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

493



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

494



SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY

3 - Month Cash Flow Projection

Cash Flow for February FY23 to April FY23

Checking Investments CIP Fund SWC Capacity Fees

Beginning Balance (estimated): 35,938,000$  131,242,000$     9,975,000$    95,443,000$    9,812,000$      
February

Cash Provided from:
Water Sales 4,570,943      -                     -                 -                   -                  
Water Sales Misc1 51,000           -                     -                 -                   -                  
Recycled Water Sales 39,051           -                     -                 -                   -                  
  Non Operating Income:

Property Taxes 3,387,389      -                     -                 2,062,663        -                  
Capacity Fees -                 -                     -                 -                   466,667           
Interest Earned 54,167           -                     -                 35,833             -                  
Communication/Rental 62,681           -                     -                 -                   -                  
Grants 1,833,598      -                     -                 -                   -                  
Reimbursements 2 1,331,971      -                     -                 -                   -                  
Bond/Loan Proceeds -                 -                     -                 -                   -                  
Other 3 1,917             -                     -                 -                   -                  

Cash Used/Added to/for:
Monthly Expenses (7,106,586)     -                     -                 (216,445)          -                  
DWR Payments -                 -                     -                 (550,000)          -                  
Misc. Water Purchases -                 -                     -                 (1,477,570)       -                  
Debt Service -                 -                     -                 -                   -                  
CIP (6,317,153)     -                     (3,498,417)     -                   -                  
CalPERS UAL -                 -                     -                 -                   -                  
Txfr to/from -                 -                     -                 -                   -                  

Projected Ending Balance Feb 33,846,979$  131,242,000$     6,476,583$    95,297,481$    10,278,667$    
March

Cash Provided from:
Water Sales 4,570,943      -                     -                 -                   -                  
Water Sales Misc 1 51,000           -                     -                 -                   -                  
Recycled Water Sales 39,051           -                     -                 -                   -                  
  Non Operating Income:

Property Taxes 241,956         -                     -                 147,333           -                  
Capacity Fees -                 -                     -                 -                   466,667           
Interest Earned 54,167           -                     -                 35,833             -                  
Communication/Rental 62,681           -                     -                 -                   -                  
Grants 1,833,598      -                     -                 -                   -                  
Reimbursements 2 1,331,971      -                     -                 -                   -                  
Bond/Loan Proceeds -                 -                     -                 -                   -                  
Other 3 1,917             -                     -                 -                   -                  

Cash Used/Added to/for:
Monthly Expenses (7,190,946)     -                     -                 (216,445)          -                  
DWR Payments -                 -                     -                 (550,000)          -                  
Misc. Water Purchases -                 -                     -                 (1,477,570)       -                  
Debt Service -                 -                     -                 -                   -                  
CIP (6,317,153)     -                     (3,498,417)     -                   -                  
Txfr to/from -                 -                     -                 -                   -                  

Projected Ending Balance. Mar 28,526,165$  131,242,000$     2,978,167$    93,236,633$    10,745,333$    

DESCRIPTION RESTRICTEDUNRESTRICTED

495



SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY

3 - Month Cash Flow Projection

Cash Flow for February FY23 to April FY23

Checking Investments CIP Fund SWC Capacity Fees

Beginning Balance (estimated): 35,938,000$  131,242,000$     9,975,000$    95,443,000$    9,812,000$      

DESCRIPTION RESTRICTEDUNRESTRICTED

April

Cash Provided from:
Water Sales 5,480,096      -                     -                 -                   -                  
Water Sales Misc 1 61,200           -                     -                 -                   -                  
Recycled Water Sales 39,051           -                     -                 -                   -                  
  Non Operating Income:

Property Taxes 16,815,966    -                     -                 10,239,647      -                  
Capacity Fees -                 -                     -                 -                   466,667           
Interest Earned 54,167           -                     -                 35,833             -                  
Communication/Rental 62,681           -                     -                 -                   -                  
Grants 47,538           -                     -                 -                   -                  
Reimbursements 2 1,563,371      -                     -                 -                   -                  
Bond/Loan Proceeds -                 -                     -                 -                   -                  
Other 3 1,917             -                     -                 -                   -                  

Cash Used/Added to/for:
Monthly Expenses (8,390,567)     -                     -                 (216,445)          -                  
DWR Payments -                 -                     -                 (660,000)          -                  
Misc. Water Purchases -                 -                     -                 (1,477,570)       -                  
Debt Service -                 -                     -                 -                   -                  
CIP (6,317,153)     -                     (3,498,417)     -                   -                  
Txfr to/from (520,250)        -                     520,250         -                   -                  

Projected Ending Balance Apr 37,424,182$  131,242,000$     -$               101,158,098$  11,212,000$    

Notes: 
1 Water Sales Misc. includes Late Charges, Misc. Retail Charges, Rebates, Drought Offense Fee and Water Sales-One time
2 Reimbursements include Annexation and PERCH Reimbursements - O&M & CIP
3 Other includes Laboratory Revenues and Other Non-Operating Revenue

496



 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 
Debt & Cash Position 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

497



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

498



 

 

This report reviews the Agency’s outstanding principal and debt service on an annual basis, 
cash balances of unrestricted, restricted, and reserve funds as of December 31, 2022, and the 
total current and non-current assets as of June 30, 2022. 

 
DEBT SERVICE 

The outstanding principal debt as of December 31, 2022, is $261,195,489* with an annual debt 
service of $32,214,070. The debt payments are due in August and February of each fiscal year.  

The outstanding principal and annual debt service payments shown in the graph below consists 
of the current outstanding debt and associated payments. It does not include potential future 
debt which may be approved and issued to fund construction projects.  

 

 
 
*The outstanding principal of VWD Acquisition Interfund Loan of $64,634,523 and accreted 
interest from the 1999 CAB is excluded from the outstanding principal balances. 
 
DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE RATIO 
 
The debt-service coverage ratio (DSCR) is a measurement of the Agency's available cash flow 
to pay current debt obligations. The formula for the DSCR is:  
 

DSCR = Net Operating Income ÷ Total Debt Service 

 
A DSCR of less than 1 indicates negative cash flow, typically signifies that an agency will have 
to take on additional debt in order to satisfy current obligations. The Agency’s Debt 
Management Policy prohibits this action. Most businesses use a minimum DSCR ratio of 1.25 
as a benchmark, which indicates that the borrower will be able to pay back the loan with some 
added cushion. The current bond covenants require a DSCR of 1.20. 

 $-

 $20

 $40

 $60

 $80

 $100

 $120

 $140

 $160

 $180

 $200

 $220

 $240

 $260

 $280

M
ill

io
n

s

Outstanding Principal and Annual Debt Service
as of December 31, 2022 

Outstanding Principal Annual Debt Service

499



 

 

   

 
 
The DSCR listed above projects four (4) traditional bond financings to meet the capital needs of the 
Agency, estimated at $375 million over the ten (10) year forecast. This is a forecast only and is subject to 
change. 

 
 

 
CASH POSITION 

As of December 31, 2022, the Agency has:  

• Fully funded reserve balance of 
$113,990,701 as per the agency policy, 
and 
 

• Restricted cash of $111,993,059 which 
includes the Facility/Retail Capacity Fee 
Funds, State Water Project Fund, and 
remaining Bond Proceeds, and 

 

• Unrestricted cash of $51,945,997 to meet 
the Agency’s payment obligations such as 
operating expenses (including debt 
service), payroll expenses, insurance, CIP 
Pay-Go, etc.  

 
 

 

 
 

 

  

0.00

0.50

1.00

1.50

2.00

2.50

3.00

3.50

$0

$50

$100

$150

$200

$250

$300

$350

$400

M
il
li
o

n
s

10Yrs Forecast of Debt Service Coverage 

Revenues O&M Expenses Debt Service DSCR

$112 

$114 

$52 

 $-

 $50

 $100

 $150

 $200

 $250

 $300

Restricted and Unrestricted Cash 
(in millions)

As of December 31, 2022 

Unrestricted
Cash

Reserves

Restricted
Cash

1.25 

Agency’s 

Benchmark 

500



 

 

 

TOTAL ASSETS  

As of June 30, 2022 (audited), the total assets 
consist of:  

• Current Assets including cash and 
restricted funds with a balance of 
$321,682,870, and  
 

• Capital Assets Net of Accumulated 
Depreciation with a balance of 
$777,101,760 from FY2022 ACFR (See 
note 5) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

$777 

$322 

 $-

 $200

 $400

 $600

 $800

 $1,000

 $1,200

Total Assets (in millions )
as of June 30, 2022 

Current Assets
(Including Cash)

Capital Assets Net
of Accumulated
Depreciation

501



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

502



 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 
Facility Capacity Fee 

Revenues 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

503



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

504



SCV WATER

FACILITY CAPACITY FEE REVENUES

FY 2022/23 as of December 31, 2022

$0

$2

$4

$6

Year-to-date Revenue FY 2022/23 Budget

$0.73

$5.60

M
ill

io
n

s

Facility Capacity Annual Revenue

$0.00

$0.50

$1.00

$1.50

$2.00

$2.50

M
ill

io
n

s

Facility Capacity Fees Monthly Sales

FY 2021/22

FY 2022/23

$0.00

$1.00

$2.00

$3.00

$4.00

$5.00

$6.00

$7.00

$8.00

$9.00

M
ill

io
n

s

Facility Capacity Fee Cumulative Revenue

FY 2021/22

FY 2022/23

505



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

506



 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 
Ten Largest Disbursements 

Check Register 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

507



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

508



No. Date Paymt # Supplier_Name Invoice_Description Method Amount

12-21-2022 54759 Pacific Hydrotech Corporation ESFP Washwater Return and Sludge 

Collection Project, Progress Payment 

through 11/20/22

CHECK 1,341,010.50

1           1,341,010.50 

12-14-2022 14008 Semitropic Water Storage 

District

Water Withdrawal - Oct 2022 SCV_ACH 276,112.00

2              276,112.00 

Pipe Stands for N wells SCV_ACH 3,021.43

3/4 IN X 1 IN BALL ANGLE METER 

STOP CTS/PJ BA43-342W-NL

SCV_ACH 2,090.14

Valve Key SCV_ACH 195.64

18 in to 20 in VBIO Pipe Bagging 

Material

SCV_ACH 470.86

8 IN FLANGED GATE VALVE CL150 

EPDM

SCV_ACH 1,449.78

Parts Golden Triangle SCV_ACH 9,923.63

MASTER LOCK (144) SCV_ACH 1,300.86

WELD FLANGES SCV_ACH 1,212.46

6 IN HYMAX COUPLING EPDM SCV_ACH 4,048.32

Pipe Stands for N Wells SCV_ACH 604.29

Repair Hydrant/ Construction Meter 

S/N:9059378

SCV_ACH 365.90

Repair Hydrant/ Construction Meter 

S/N: 8879574

SCV_ACH 365.90

Repair Hydrant/ Construction Meter 

S/N:19805823

SCV_ACH 482.69

Repair Hydrant/ Construction Meter 

S/N:212800033

SCV_ACH 365.90

Repair Hydrant/ Construction Meter S/N 

9088947

SCV_ACH 482.69

8 IN FLANGED GATE VALVE CL150 

EPDM

SCV_ACH 5,678.06

6 IN X 6 HOLE DIP FIRE HYDRANT 

CLOW 850 EPDM S.B.YELLOW

SCV_ACH 15,827.14

1 IN FIP BALL CURB STOP B11-444-NL SCV_ACH 2,262.73

3/4 IN and 1 IN MASTER METERS 

ALLEGRO

SCV_ACH 28,295.52

Master Meter Allegros (159) SCV_ACH 50,300.42

12 IN MJ X FL GATE VALVE CL150 

EPDM

SCV_ACH 2,322.16

Restock Vita D De-Chlor SCV_ACH 11,252.66

8 IN DI PIPE TJ PIPE W/EPDM 

GASKETS

SCV_ACH 3,044.80

6 IN DI PIPE TJ W/EPDM GASKETS SCV_ACH 4,595.58

1-1/2" 3G MS STYLE REGISTER SCV_ACH 432.31

CWFLX 4"X 100'SUCT & DIS HOSE SCV_ACH 2,382.72

8 IN PIPE STEEL CML/BARE SCV_ACH 2,901.76

Safety Cones with Stencil (50) SCV_ACH 1,430.08

Pin for SW-510 Wrenches (24) SCV_ACH 127.62

Parts Pine Street SCV_ACH 8,349.84

Parts Golden Triangle SCV_ACH 2,890.95

16 IN HYMAX COUPLING EPDM SCV_ACH 1,677.56

4 IN x 6 ft Guard Post SCV_ACH 2,161.99

14147

SCV Water
Ten Largest Disbursements

December 1, 2022 to December 31, 2022

Pacific Hydrotech Corporation

Semitropic Water Storage District

Core & Main LP12-28-2022

509



No. Date Paymt # Supplier_Name Invoice_Description Method Amount

SCV Water
Ten Largest Disbursements

December 1, 2022 to December 31, 2022

8 IN MJ X FL GATE VALVE CL150 EPDM SCV_ACH 5,054.63

3/4 FS 3000# THRD CPLG SCV_ACH 30.62

6 IN X 6 HOLE DIP FIRE HYDRANT 

CLOW 850 EPDM S.B.YELLOW

SCV_ACH 2,628.00

V-Bio Wrap 18 - 20" SCV_ACH 501.34

1 IN BALL ANGLE METER STOP BALL 

COMP/CTS BA43-444W-NL

SCV_ACH 1,692.21

2 IN BALL CORP STOP PJ/CTS X IPT 

FB1000-7-NL

SCV_ACH 3,576.05

8 IN BUTTERFLY VALVE FLANGED 

CL150 EPDM

SCV_ACH 9,796.33

4 IN X 2-1/2 IN WHARF HEAD SCV_ACH 1,849.13

2 IN FIP X MIP BLOW-OFF VALVE 

BLA18-777-TA-NL

SCV_ACH 5,037.91

6" & 8" Valve Lids Epoxy Coated SCV_ACH 1,016.16

Blue Marking Chalk Paint # 214 SCV_ACH 850.16

Parts Pine Street SCV_ACH 8,375.21

Parts Golden Triangle SCV_ACH 12,073.63

Meter S/N:9059389 Repair SCV_ACH 354.15

2 IN COUPLING MIP PJ/CTS X C84-77-

NL

SCV_ACH 967.17

1 IN BALL ANGLE METER STOP 

PJ/POLY BA63-444W-NL

SCV_ACH 5,895.36

2 IN BALL CORP STOP PJ/CTS X IPT 

FB1000-7-NL

SCV_ACH 3,576.05

2 IN BALL CORP STOP PJ/CTS X IPT 

FB1000-7-NL

SCV_ACH 2,145.63

Valve Key and Digging Bar for Unit 

#S59

SCV_ACH 588.39

2 IN BALL CORP STOP PJ/CTS X IPT 

FB1000-7-NL

SCV_ACH 2,503.24

2 IN BALL CORP STOP PJ/CTS X IPT 

FB1000-7-NL

SCV_ACH 4,778.56

1 IN APEX PIPE SCV_ACH 4,861.80

6 IN FL GATE VALVE CL150 EPDM SCV_ACH 1,930.38

3              252,396.50 

12-22-2022 14118 So. California Edison Co. Acct-2152 12/10/22 Statement AUTO_DE

BIT

234,927.13

4              234,927.13 

12-21-2022 14072 Evoqua Water Technologies, 

LLC.

Resin Exchange Fill Service Supply of 

PSR2 Plus into One (1) Vessel in Train A

SCV_ACH 220,532.36

5              220,532.36 

12-22-2022 14122 So. California Edison Co. Acct-4924 12/17/22 Statement AUTO_DE

BIT

195,494.59

6              195,494.59 

12-07-2022 54521 Pacific Hydrotech Corporation Santa Clara & Honby Wells PFAS GW 

Treatment Improvements - 

Construction, Progress Payment 

through 10/31/22

CHECK 164,350.00

7              164,350.00 

12-07-2022 13980 BCDI AV Acquisition, Inc. Santa Clara & Honby Wells PFAS GW 

Treatment Improvements Material 

Purchase, Progress Payment through 

10/31/22

SCV_ACH 146,528.09

8              146,528.09 

14147

So. California Edison Co.

Pacific Hydrotech Corporation

BCDI AV Acquisition, Inc.

So. California Edison Co.

So. California Edison Co.

Core & Main LP

Core & Main LP12-28-2022

510



No. Date Paymt # Supplier_Name Invoice_Description Method Amount

SCV Water
Ten Largest Disbursements

December 1, 2022 to December 31, 2022

12-21-2022 54714 Tesoro Del Valle Master 

Homeowners

Landscape Replacement Rebate CHECK 102,975.00

9              102,975.00 

4 IN MJ X FL GATE VALVE CL150 EPDM SCV_ACH 3,302.48

6 IN X 42 IN MJ 6 HOLE F/H BURY SCV_ACH 2,704.66

1 IN X 3/4 IN BUSHING BRASS SCV_ACH 423.04

Parts Golden Triangle SCV_ACH 4,465.95

Parts Golden Triangle SCV_ACH 7,533.37

Parts Golden Triangle SCV_ACH 21,309.85

SCH 80 PVC FITTINGS SCV_ACH 1,692.50

Parts Golden Triangle SCV_ACH 8,520.81

10 IN MJ X FLANGE ADAPTOR CL 153 SCV_ACH 1,629.69

6 IN X 6 HOLE DIP FIRE HYDRANT 

CLOW 850 EPDM S.B.YELLOW

SCV_ACH 13,189.27

14 IN BUTTERFLY VALVE FLANGED 

CL150 EPDM

SCV_ACH 4,276.86

2 IN AIR VAC ARI D-040WS (12) SCV_ACH 10,156.43

3 - (De-Chlorinators / Diffuser) units 

(Used for Flushing Main lines)

SCV_ACH 3,871.80

Parts Pine Street SCV_ACH 4,459.65

Restock Dry Tech Granular Chlorine SCV_ACH 4,683.10

Restock Dry Tec Chlorine SCV_ACH 4,683.10

16 IN X 8 IN MJ X FL TEE SCV_ACH 1,211.00

3" FLGXFLG OL BFV BG SCV_ACH 1,180.63

10                 99,294.19 

3,033,620.36  

7,868,676.28  

39%

12-07-2022 13931 Core & Main LP

Tesoro Del Valle Master Homeowners

Core & Main LP

Total 

Total-All Disbursements Issued During December 2022

Largest Ten Vendor Payments as Compared to Total

511



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

512



 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 
Credit Card Register 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

513



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

514



SCV WATER

CREDIT CARD CHARGES

Paid October to December 2022

Charges Amount

1-800-FLOWERS.COM,INC. 99.61

Sympathy Flowers - C. Suer 99.61

8870 ROYAL 1372.74

Fuses 38.43

Liquid Conduit connector stock for trucks 549.31

Portable cord 108.84

Reference Book, Wrench 58.79

Replacement Lock Handle 248.02

Switch Box, Switch Cover, Seal Tight Conduit. 369.35

ACCURATE TRAILER HITCH & 27.38

(1) Trailer Brake Cable 28" 27.38

ADMIN PRO FORUM CONFER 549

Admin Pro Forum - 10/19-10/20/22 - Registration - T. Bell 549

ADOBE 2913.3

Adobe Govt Licenses 2913.3

ADOBE *CAPTIVATE SUBS 33.99

Monthly Adobe Captivate license fee. 33.99

ADOBE *PS CREATIVE CL 6052.6

Adobe licensing 3026.3

Adobe monthly subscription 3026.3

ADOBE *STOCK 159.98

Adobe photo 79.99

Digital Photo Stock 79.99

ADOBE CAPTIVATE SUBS 67.98

Monthly software renewal for Adobe Captivate. 67.98

ADOBE PS CREATIVE CLD 3026.3

Adobe monthly subscription 3026.3

ADOBE STOCK 79.99

Digital Photo 79.99

ADVANCE AUTO PARTS 28.86

Battery Terminal Kit 28.86

AIM MAIL CENTER # 114 33.95

Mailed Item for Repair 33.95

ALBERTSONS #1360 78.91

Snacks for Birthday and Anniversary Celebrations 78.91

ALBERTSONS #3301 272.17

Cookies and Fruit for Taco Tour 16.47

Health Fair Raffle Prizes 202.81

Ice Cream for Birthday and Anniversary Celebrations - September 2022 at Rockefeller 32.93

Ice Cream for Birthday and Anniversary Celebrations - September 2022 at Water Resources 19.96

AMAZON.COM*H03D60SB1 AMZN 1300

Holiday Gift Cards 1300

1515



SCV WATER

CREDIT CARD CHARGES

Paid October to December 2022

Charges Amount

AMAZON.COM*H06H62VS1 2000

Amazon Gift Cards - Qty of 40 - $50 Amount 2000

AMAZON.COM*H06MC9QK1 1200

Holiday Gift Cards 1200

AMAZON.COM*H09GI6UN1 AMZN 750

Amazon Gift Cards - Qty of 15 - $50 Amount 750

AMAZON.COM*H22N21FX1 AMZN 500

Amazon Gift Cards - Qty of 10 - $50 Amount 500

AMAZON.COM*HT5E13GZ0 AMZN 5750

Employee Thanksgiving Gift Cards 5750

AMAZON.COM*HT65G0890 500

Starbucks Gift Cards - Halloween 500

AMERICAN WATER COLLEGE 349.99

Registration cost for California Introduction to Water Treatment course A. Verbanac 349.99

AMZN MKTP US 448.25

All Staff Holiday Luncheon 108.77

Antenna cable 40.39

Board Meeting Supplies 30.63

Picture Frames for Directors 26.96

Picture Frames for Directors/Resolutions 26.96

Power Inverter for Charging power tools unit #S81 260.48

REFUND - Board Meeting Supplies -30.63

REFUND - Vending Machine Supplies -30.63

Vending Machine Supplies 15.32

APPLE STORE #R462 117.18

Apple accessories for L. Margheritis 117.18

APPLE.COM/BILL 14.99

Jump app for J. Saenz iPad 14.99

AQUA-FLO SUPPLY INC #3 710.12

Parts and Supplies 130.95

PVC bushings and adapters. 77.34

Sump pump, cutter blade, and PVC parts. 501.83

ASSOCIATION OF CALIFORNI 5785

ACWA 2022 Fall Conference - 11/29-12/01/22 - Registration - A. Elhassan 620

ACWA 2022 Fall Conference - 11/29-12/01/22 - Registration - Director Armitage 620

ACWA 2022 Fall Conference - 11/29-12/01/22 - Registration - Director Braunstein 775

ACWA 2022 Fall Conference - 11/29-12/01/22 - Registration - Director Kelly 775

ACWA 2022 Fall Conference - 11/29-12/01/22 - Registration - Director Plambeck 620

ACWA 2022 Fall Conference - 11/29-12/01/22 - Registration - J. Koelewyn 775

ACWA 2022 Fall Conference - 11/29-12/01/22 - Registration - R. Patterson 775

ACWA 2022 Fall Conference - 11/29-12/01/22 - Registration - S. Cole 775

ACWA Webinar - K. Martin 50

2516



SCV WATER

CREDIT CARD CHARGES

Paid October to December 2022

Charges Amount

AUTOMATIONDIRECT.COM 320.29

Modbus communication adapter 320.29

AUTOZONE #4070 133.5

Battery Terminal Protection 15.29

Pair of windshield wipers for Truck N59 61.3

Parts for Unit 56.91

AUTOZONE #4135 274.62

Battery for S4 274.62

AVTECH SOFTWARE INC 699.95

Room Alert software renewal 350

Room Alert upgrade renewal 349.95

AWWA EVENTS 1350

AWWA 2022 Water Quality Technology Conference - D Takashima - 11/13/22 -11/17/22 675

AWWA 2022 Water Quality Technology Conference - R Bye - 11/13/22 -11/17/22 675

AWWA.ORG 64.5

Water Conservation & Efficiency Program Operation & Management Booklet 64.5

B&H PHOTO 800-606-6969 522.32

External audio mic for safety audits 522.32

BB DINER SANTA CLARITA #2 49.3

Lunch Meeting - L Quintero and K Abercrombie - Committee Reports 49.3

BEST BEST AND KRIEGER LLP 75

Form 700 Training - 11/09/22 - Registration - A. Jacobs 75

BEST BUY 00001131 334.98

iPhone Accessories for K. Abercrombie 174.08

Laptop bag for SCADA computer and iPad 109.49

Monitor cable 9.82

Video Adapters 41.59

BEST BUY 00015115 131.36

Video Adapters for Pine Street Senior Utility Moves 131.36

BITLY.COM 348

Bitly annual renewal. 348

BOARD ACCOUNTANCY 280

CPA License Renewal 280

BOB HOPE AIRPORT 29

Hotel Parking - SWC November Meeting 29

BONEFISH GRILL #9203 108.97

OracleWorld Conference Lunch, K.Grass, D.Conner, 73.84

OracleWorld Conference Lunch, M.Wassef 35.13

BOUQUET AUTO PARTS INC 28.45

Oil for Unit 250 28.45

BOX, INC. 1800

File share subscription 600

File sharing subscription 1200

3517



SCV WATER

CREDIT CARD CHARGES

Paid October to December 2022

Charges Amount

BROTHER'S BURGERS 64

Monthly meeting with G. Hermosillo, M. Margheritis, A. Rodriguez, C. Towers and R. Pulido 64

BROWN AND CALDWELL 400

Brown and Caldwell-Job Posting for Engineering Tech Position 200

Recruitment-Job Advertisement/Engineering 200

CALIFORNIA ASSOCIATION OF 990

CAPPO Conference Registration - L. Moncada 495

CAPPO Conference Registration for January 8-11, 2023 - member price 495

CALPERS CVENT 449

CALPERs Educational Forum 2022 - Y. Johnson Registration 449

CAMPWORLD/GANDER/OVERT 408.98

Filter's for Water Station used at public events 408.98

CA-NV SECTION, AWWA 1324

Registration for AWWA Conference - Y.Thierumaran. 649

Webinars, Attendee W. Ayros: Advanced Water Treatment, D3-D4 Review, Introduction to SCADA, SCADA Operations675

CANVA* I03560-24235571 149.9

Canva web based design software. 5 licenses - annual renewal. 149.9

CANYON DISCOUNT MUFFLER 1154.4

2022 Smog Checks 1154.4

CAPIO - CA ASSOCIATION OF 75

CAPIO Membership Due - K. Martin 45

CAPIO Webinar - K. Martin 30

CARLS JR 160 45.92

Meals for crew working leak 45.92

CASA LUPITA RESTAURANT-CL 69.84

Working WWR Project Meeting. Attended by M. Margheritis, C. Towers, C. Nigra, and R. Pulido 69.84

CASANOVA - LAS VEGAS BLVD 129.26

OracleWorld Conference Dinner K.Grass, D.Conner, 91.23

OracleWorld Conference Dinner M.Wassef 38.03

CASEYS #2442 998.89

Credit card fraud - disputing charges - Credit Received 12/15 998.89

CBI*MACRIUM 69.95

Disk Management Utility App 69.95

CDW DIR #DM72049 265.17

Fiber Cables for Communication in Maintenance Trailer 265.17

CHI CHIS PIZZA 181.2

F&A Committee Review 57.34

Lunch Meeting - A. Mantis, L. Pointer, and J. Brison 78.43

Work Lunch with J. Koelewyn 45.43

CHIPOTLE 3840 75

Gift Certificates for Halloween Costume Contest 75

CITIBIK*2 RIDES 13.44

Accidental Personal Purchase, Reimbursed Agency 10/15 13.44

4518



SCV WATER

CREDIT CARD CHARGES

Paid October to December 2022

Charges Amount

CITY NATIONAL PLAZA 120

Parking for the Women's Conference 40

Parking for Training - Women’s Conference 40

Parking while at the Los Angeles County Women's Leadership Conference on 09/01/2022 40

CLICKSEND.COM RECHARGE 120

CLICKSEND ADSS SMS Services 20

Clicksend.com Recharge 40

For SMS Notification Services for ADSS Password Reset App 20

Monthly SMS Recharge Fee 40

CMAA 130

CMAA Membership Renewal for S. Bader 130

CMT SACRAMENTO27680016 45

Taxi from Airport to Hotel 45

CORNER BAKERY 0208 947.1

Drone Training Snacks - Day 1 96.85

Human Resources Meeting: A. Mantis, L. Pointer, J. Joo, J. Brison, M. Aragon. 65

New Hired Director of WR Lunch Meeting 75.97

Operations Department Breakfast 501.38

Resiliency Collaboration Meeting 207.9

COSTCO DELIVERY 653 2403.98

Office Supplies 411.73

Office Supplies 185.9

Office Supplies - Non Taxable 518.62

Office Supplies - Taxable 282.94

Office Supplies Rio Vista 1027.9

Refund for Item not Received -13.02

Refund for missing coffee creamer -10.09

COSTCO WHSE #0447 439.41

Holiday Party Gift Baskets 228.76

Kitchen supplies 41.76

Office Supplies 86.44

Summit Committee Snacks 32.98

Vending Machine Supplies 49.47

CREPES OF BRITTANY! 28.27

Breakfast at MISAC Conference 28.27

CROFT TRAILER SUPPLY INTE 144.5

Brake Cables for Ditch Witch Trailers 144.5

CROWN TROPHY 121.55

Photo & Seating Name Plates for Director Petersen 121.55

CSMFO 1140

Fundamentals of Municipal Revenue Course 200

R Patterson & K Grass CSMFO Conference Registration 940

5519



SCV WATER

CREDIT CARD CHARGES

Paid October to December 2022

Charges Amount

CURB SVC WASHINGTON 22.6

KHTS DC Trip - Taxicab 22.6

CURRENCY CONVERSION FEE 3.38

Clicksend Remittance Fee 0.8

CLICKSEND SMS Delivery Services 0.2

Currency Conversion Fee 0.2

Online Course: Excel Pivot Tables 1.09

PayPal Processing fee for AWA Drinking Water Regulation Seminar 2023 1.09

CVS/PHARMACY #09636 578.12

Covid Home Test Kits for Agency Close Contacts 262.79

Covid-19 self test kits for the water education department 315.33

CVS/PHARMACY #09722 262.79

Covid Home Test Kits for Agency Close Contacts 262.79

DANA INN&MARINA REST 87.68

CAPIO Conference Meal 87.68

DANA SAFETY SUPPLY CA 1489.56

Upfitting materials: center consoles and phone holders for new vehicles 1489.56

DAPPER DANS CARWASH 170.7

Car Wash #N55 21

Monthly Car Wash Charge 59.85

Monthly Car Wash Pass 89.85

DNH*DOMAIN HOSTING SRVCS 617.91

Dedicated server quarterly renewal. 599.97

Monthly domain name hosting. 17.94

DNH*GODADDY.COM 343.86

GoDaddy Deluxe Hosting renewal for valenciawater.com 143.88

SSL certificate renewal 199.98

DNH*SUCURI WEBSITE SECURI 29.97

Agency Website Maintenance 29.97

DRI* 360.26

Desk Monitor Arm - A. Elhassan 360.26

DRI*UPRINTING 613.98

U Printing - Refrigerator Magnets 613.98

DROPBOX SIGN YEARLY 480

Annual Drop Box (Hello Sign) Renewal 480

DUKES ENERGY CENTER 8

Meal,  D. Takashima and R.Bye at AWWA Conference 8

EAGLE 35.11

Meal,  D. Takashima and R.Bye at AWWA Conference 35.11

EB 2022 ECONOMIC OUTL 125

2022 Economic Outlook Forecast - 09/09/22 - Registration - Director Colley 125

6520



SCV WATER

CREDIT CARD CHARGES

Paid October to December 2022

Charges Amount

EB CITY OF SANTA CLAR 245

State of the City - 10/27/22 - Registration - D Conner 35

State of the City - 10/27/22 - Registration - Director Gutzeit 35

State of the City - 10/27/22 - Registration - Director Martin 35

State of the City - 10/27/22 - Registration - Directors Cooper & Kelly 70

State of the City - 10/27/22 - Registration - K. Grass 35

State of the City - 10/27/22 - Registration - K. Martin 35

EB NAFA AUTO SHOW MEE 60

NAFA LA Auto Show Registration 60

EGG PLANTATION 91.65

Bought Crew Breakfast for Exercise Valves 91.65

EIG 1454.88

Bluehost online 347.88

Constant Contact - Digital News 369

Constant Contact - digital publication 369

Constant Contact - eNews 369

ENTERPRISE RENT-A-CAR 618.2

Special Board Meeting - Facilities Tour 618.2

EPIC-LA 8225.6

Building Plan Check Fee for LARC project 2300036 881.6

Fitzgerald Avenue County Permit 623

Frost Lane County Permit 623

Hawthorne Place County Permit 623

Joyce Place County Permit 623

Lewis Way County Permit 623

Los Angeles Co. Permit (Fire Engineering - Building Plan Check Unit - Site Plan Review – Water & Access) for LARC Ranch. Project No. 230036491

Quincy Street County Permit 623

Sagecrest County Permit 623

Shakespeare Lane County Permit 623

Southern Oaks Drive County Permit 623

Wilde Avenue County Permit 1246

ESRI 2737

ESRI IMGIS Conference - D. Burleson 200

ESRI IMGIS Conference - J. Huerta 200

GIS Pro Training - R. Vasilopulos 2337

ETRAILER CORPORATION 122.85

(4) Trailer Brake Cables 28" 122.85

EUCI 2985

Remote Connection: Fundamentals of Water Recycling March 1-2, 2023 O. Moreno 1195

Remote Connection: Strategic Planning for Water and Wastewater Utilities November 15 - K. Fowler and D. Forrand1790

EWING IRRIGATION PRD 125 32.54

Tools for Water Lines by Guard Shack 32.54

7521



SCV WATER

CREDIT CARD CHARGES

Paid October to December 2022

Charges Amount

FASTFRAME 559 201.38

Director Photo Framed - Director Petersen 201.38

FIBERTRONICS INC. 223.86

Fiber Optic Cable Termination Components 223.86

FIRST WATCH - 0024 47.11

Meal,  D. Takashima and R.Bye at AWWA Conference 47.11

FLAVORS OF THE ISLE 29.79

Meal,  D. Takashima and R.Bye at AWWA Conference 29.79

FLOWERS AND MORE 136.88

Sympathy Flowers - S. Bernstein 136.88

FOOTHILL ELECTRIC MO 354.18

Pump Rebuild Parts, Motor Bearings 54.18

Rebuild Sample Pump Labor 300

FS *TOPALT 99.95

vCARD Import/Export Utility Tool 99.95

GIFTSHOPHYATTREGENCYWASHI 4.18

KHTS DC Trip - Lunch 4.18

GIH*GLOBALINDUSTRIALEQ 655.45

Drone shelve. 174.04

Drone shelving unit. 481.41

GLADSTEIN NEANDROSS & AS 50

ACT Expo Registration 50

GRAC.ORG 600

Webinar - R. Viergutz 100

Webinar - R. Viergutz and N. Pitois 500

GRAINGER 1684.89

RVWTP Sample Pump; requested by L.Margheritis 1304.79

Sump Pump 380.1

GRAND PANDA 114.96

Lunch for Crew 114.96

GYROMANIA 33.69

Exit Interview B. Payne and J. Moreno 33.69

HABIT SNTA CLRTA #22 119.3

Oak Plain Service Leak Bought Crew Dinner 119.3

HARBOR FREIGHT TOOLS 459 198.15

Parts and Supplies 186.14

Wire Wheel, Face Shield, Abrasive Tool 12.01

HILTON HOTELS 3751.36

AWWA Water Quality Technology Conference - D. Takashima 1623.1

AWWA Water Quality Technology Conference - R. Bye 1623.1

D. Burleson one night stay for ESRI Conference 252.58

J. Huerta one night stay for ESRI Conference 252.58

8522



SCV WATER

CREDIT CARD CHARGES

Paid October to December 2022

Charges Amount

HIRSCH PIPE & SUPPLY 013 35.31

(2) Wax Rings and Gaskets 35.31

HOBBY-LOBBY #716 82.06

Supplies for Employee Activity Committee - Agency Holiday Party 82.06

HOLIDAY INN EXPRESS COST 1223.16

Hotel for Cla Val School - D. Schanfarber 407.72

Hotel for Cla Val School - K. Pourghahreman 407.72

Hotel for Cla Val School - P. Pliego 407.72

HOMEDEPOT.COM 4126.63

GPS trackers for gens 624.76

Milwaukee Batteries and charger , and work light For S-33 217.91

Milwaukee Battery & Charger Plus Free Light 217.91

Open End Wrenches 71.22

Tools for Water Treatment Dept, Order Requested by R. Pulido and J. Hithe 2994.83

HOOK BURGER - VALENCIA 110.54

June Rose Court Leak Lunch for Crew 110.54

HOTEL MISSION DE ORO 181.5

SWC's Meeting Lodging First Night 181.5

HOTEL PACIFIC 209.26

Accidental Personal Purchase, reimbursed Agency 209.26

HULASISLANDGRILL 64.08

Dinner MSIAC Conference 64.08

HYATT REGENCY SACRAMENTO 180.1

Hotel Stay for the SWC's November Meeting 180.1

HYATT REGENCY SAN FRANCI 2010.82

Hotel in San Francisco for AVEVA World convention. 1571.6

Meals charged to room. 159.22

Parking for 4 nights. 280

HYATT REGENCY WASHNGTN F 140.4

KHTS DC Trip - Breakfast with Director Martin 140.4

IN *ELCO MOTOR YACHTS, LL 282.22

Battery charger. 282.22

IN N OUT BURGER 107 36.08

Dinner for crew working late at the Sand Canyon Night Job 36.08

IN N OUT BURGER 171 234.44

Bought Crew Dinner for Leak at Nathan Hills 104.19

Crew Dinner for Oak Pluma Court Leak 75.23

Dinner for Crew working on Leak 55.02

IN N OUT BURGER 381 57.1

Dinner for crew working late on leak at Hemming Way 57.1

INORGANIC VENTURES, INC. 711.59

Custom standard for Lab Dept.; requested by J.Koelewyn 711.59

9523



SCV WATER

CREDIT CARD CHARGES

Paid October to December 2022

Charges Amount

INTERNATIONAL E-Z UP, IN 586.92

10 x 10 EZ Up Canopies for work crew trucks 586.92

INTERNATIONAL PUBLIC MAN 895

IPMA-HR Developing Competencies for HR Success- J.Joo 895

ISP SUPPLIES, LLC 210.86

Fiber Communication Parts for Rio Vista Maintenance Trailer 210.86

JIMMY DEANS 432.2

Staff Meeting 432.2

JJ KELLER & ASSOCIATES I 229.03

CDL Driver Training Materials 229.03

JL WINGERT COMPANY 157.41

Filters for Chemical Pots 157.41

JOBSEEKER/EMPLOYER SVC 50

COC Job Fair Entrance Fee 50

JOES AUTO PARKS 756 S H 8

Parking Ticket Fee for ManageEngine Conference in Downtown LA 8

JOHNSTONE SUPPLY VALENCIA 1971.76

A/C Air Handler Repair Parts 68.51

A/C Filters at Rio Vista 459.81

Air Filters for Filter Deck at Rio Vista 218.1

Air Filters for Rio Vista 78.18

Filters 8.72

Filters for Modular 121.53

Filters for Rio Vista 39.66

Rio Vista Air Handler filters 977.25

KNOCKBACK NATS 30.51

Meal,  D. Takashima and R.Bye at AWWA Conference 30.51

KNOX COMPANY INC 542.03

Gate and Key Switch Boxes 542.03

LA COCINA BAR & GRILL GOL 60.45

Ribbon Cutting Staff Dinner 60.45

LA CONVENTION CENTER 25

Parking for Fleet meeting with OEMs at LA Convention Center 25

LADY DI'S COOKIES 443.34

4 dozen cookies 79.96

Cookies and Brownie for Birthday Celebrations for October Golden Triangle 69.47

October 2022 Birthday & Anniversary Cookies for Water Resources 45.6

October 2022 Birthday and Anniversary Celebrations - Pine Street Cookies 59.97

October Birthday and Anniversary Celebrations Treats 68.4

October Birthday and Anniversary Celebrations Treats Rio Vista 119.94

LANGUAGE LINE, INC. 134.3

Language Translation 134.3

10524



SCV WATER

CREDIT CARD CHARGES

Paid October to December 2022

Charges Amount

LAS DELICIAS GOLDEN VALL 932.65

Operations Department Lunch 679.38

Safety tailgate and team building 205.5

Utility Worker interviews 47.77

LAX SMARTPARKING 139.99

KHTS DC Trip - Parking 139.99

LAZY DOG RESTAURANT 5 166.36

Ops Admin lunch 166.36

LGO MARKETPLACE PHX 40.54

Meal,  D. Takashima and R.Bye at AWWA Conference 40.54

LINDE GAS & EQUIP 465.88

Welding rod 465.88

LINE-X OF SANTA CLARITA 2285.89

Lightbar for V85 Deposit 600

Lightbar for V85 Part 2 779.29

Line-X for New Truck 250 906.6

LORMAN BUSINESS CENTER 559.2

Lorman Education Services Annual Membership renewal for J. Yim. 559.2

LOUIE LINGUINI'S 96.56

Dinner 10/3/22 96.56

LOWES #01510 4398.21

 Wire nuts, Hanging Kit, and Quake Putty for Board Member Pictures 86.12

2 - Outside light fixtures for Maintenance trailer 177.32

2 Pairs of Scissors for Truck #I58 31.71

3 - sets of blinds for Y.Thierumaran's Office 205.24

3/4" tubing 33.9

Air Handler for Rio Vista 232.14

Batteries for Pressure Transducer Calibrator 43.52

Blank Plates, Counter Sink, Velcro 51.86

Blinds for Window 200.91

Cable Channels for conference room 144.35

CR2430 Batteries 26.19

Discharge Hose Sump pump screws and hose clamps 212.01

Dolly and tie straps. 90.86

Electrical at Rio Vista 42.6

Employee Meeting Supplies 217.4

Epoxy for Sealing Leak 9.81

Extension drill bits for SCADA install Maintenance Office 147.76

Furniture Dollies (2) 76.61

Glue Fittings for Portable Bathroom 21.31

Graphite for Froze Lock 28.4

Grinder for B&G Department 171.83

Grinders 175.16

11525



SCV WATER

CREDIT CARD CHARGES

Paid October to December 2022

Charges Amount

Hand tools and case. 154.76

Hose, buckets, and rags. 305.99

Impact Bits for Gate at Rio Vista 10.93

Label Maker for B&G Department 97.37

Painting Extension Pole 40.49

Painting Supplies 122.95

Parts and Supplies 355.76

RVIPS UPS [6] outlet extension cords 26.25

RVIPS UPS 20 A 125 VAC CORD CAPS 24.16

RVWTP Ozone Nitrogen Compressor 48.63

Sump Pump Extension Cord SPTF 174.63

Surge Protection Plug Strip 53.09

Tie Down Straps 29.54

Tools and Parts 142.33

Water Connection for Portable Bathroom at Guard Shack 13.12

Wire Brushes to clean Air Vents 25.34

Wire for Rio Vista Handler 134.66

Zip ties Ratchet and socket extensions tie downs 211.2

LYFT *1 RIDE 09-10 17.99

Vehicle drop off 17.99

LYFT *1 RIDE 09-28 14.68

Vehicle drop off 14.68

LYFT *CANCEL FEE 4.75

KHTS DC Trip - Lyft 4.75

LYFT *RIDE MON 1PM 12.82

KHTS DC Trip - Lyft 12.82

LYFT *RIDE MON 9PM 15.99

KHTS DC Trip - Lyft 15.99

LYFT *RIDE SUN 3PM 42.37

KHTS DC Trip - Lyft 42.37

LYFT *RIDE TUE 8PM 20.59

KHTS DC Trip - Lyft 20.59

LYFT RIDE FRI 9AM 21.18

Vehicle pickup and drop off 21.18

LYFT RIDE SAT 12PM 19.49

Lyft airport to hotel 19.49

LYFT RIDE SUN 10AM 18.73

Vehicle pickup and drop off 18.73

LYFT RIDE SUN 5PM 16.73

Vehicle pickup and drop off 16.73

LYFT RIDE THU 11AM 19.31

Lyft hotel to airport 19.31

12526



SCV WATER

CREDIT CARD CHARGES

Paid October to December 2022

Charges Amount

LYFT RIDE WED 8AM 18.83

Vehicle pickup and drop off 18.83

MAGLITE 40.28

Flashlight 40.28

MAPLEWOOD KITCHEN AND BAR 39.66

Meal,  D. Takashima and R.Bye at AWWA Conference 39.66

MCMASTER-CARR 4295.3

Brass Washers, Shrink Tubing 136.71

Chop saw blades 1089.94

Drill Bits and Cam Lock 71.98

Enclosure, Conduit Adapter, Aluminum Plate. 228.43

Fire Hose 278.07

Float Switch 75.03

Horizontal Mount Float 75.01

Horizontal Mount Float - Return Credit -75.03

Horizontal Mount Float Switch 75.01

Horizontal Mount Float Switch - Return Credit -75.01

Hose and Nozzles 297.51

Hose Clamps 100.93

Lay Flat Hose and Clamps 806.16

Replacement Rivet Gun 209.43

Sanding Disc and Cutoff Wheels 267.16

Splicing Tape, Threaded Rod, Hardware, Folding Rule 263.12

Third Hand Solder Station, Head Lamp 151.73

Valve Slings 205.02

Vertical-Mount Float Switch 114.1

MCNICHOLS COMPANY 323.52

Stainless steel fabric for reservoir vents 323.52

MFG EDGE/PUMPCATALOG.C 615.88

Sample Pump 615.88

MISAC 1100

Conference Refund -675

MISAC Annual Renewal 1000

MISAC conference registration for J. Thomas. 775

MSFT * E0800KDEHA 16.5

Scvwa.site subscription. 16.5

MSFT * E0800KR7EF 16.5

Subscription For scvwa.site 16.5

MSFT * E0800L53D7 16.5

Microsoft 365 License Subscription 16.5

13527



SCV WATER

CREDIT CARD CHARGES

Paid October to December 2022

Charges Amount

NAFA FLEET MGMT ASSOC 2131

NAFA CAFM Class 1600

NAFA Event on New Regulations 32

NAFA Membership Dues FY 2023 499

NAPA AUTO PARTS 148.91

Shutdown Solenoid 148.91

NATIONAL TRUCK EQUIPMENT 690

NTEA Subscription 690

NEWARK US 00000075 119.31

Fiber Optic Black Box Patch Cables 119.31

NEWHALL VALENCIA LOCK & 39.49

2 Building Keys 5.8

2 Keys for B&G 10.95

4 - keys, 1 - box of key tags 22.74

O'CONNOR PHOTOGRAPHY COR 82.13

Headshot for Director Petersen 82.13

OCT WATER QUALITY ACADEMY 800

3-Day Water Treatment Certification Test Prep, Grade 5 for B. Zvara 800

OFFICE DEPOT #2263 127.64

2023 Weekly/Monthly Planner 29.55

Laminated Posters for Events 36.46

Supplies for Valley Center Ribbon Cutting 61.63

OHIO POWER TOOLS 1795.66

Portable Pump 437.98

Power Tools 437.98

Tools for Truck 919.7

OLD FISHERMAN'S GROTTO 67.85

Lunch MSIAC Conference 67.85

OLEUMTECH CORPORATION 3072.08

 Radio parts and material for Water Factory install. 1808.7

Radio parts and material for Water Factory install. 1263.38

O'REILLY AUTO PARTS 3797 38.31

Phone Holder for Truck #I67 38.31

OSISOFT LLC 200

Hands on workshop fees 400

Refund of canceled training session. -200

PADDLE.NET* PRINTBLCAL 129.95

Printable Cal application for A. Jacobs annual renewal. 129.95

PANERA BREAD #204229 O 6332.88

Executive Staff Meeting 1599.12

Food for Safety Incident Command System Course 3063.14

Incident Command System Course 596.54

Safety Training 1074.08

14528



SCV WATER

CREDIT CARD CHARGES

Paid October to December 2022

Charges Amount

PARTY CITY 1517 41.62

Employee Appreciation Taco Lunch Supplies 16.43

Tablecloths for Taco Tour Event 25.19

PATTONS METAL WORKING SOL 332.88

Steel tubing 332.88

PAYPAL 508

AWA - California Division of Drinking Water Regulations Seminar 2023 43

AWA Virtual Training - J.Yim 33

AWA Virtual Training - S.Bader 33

AWA Virtual Training GM Water Briefing for J. Yim. 33

AWA Virtual Training GM Water Briefing for S. Bader. 33

CCWUC Virtual Training - J. Yim 33

DocuSign Subscription 300

PETE'S DISCOUNT AUTO 276.58

Truck Battery Unit #S43 276.58

PIHRA 1910

PHIRA-J. Joo membership renewal and register for PIHRA event, 2022 Employment Law Updates 429

PIHRA Event and Membership for M. Aragon 459

PIHRA Renewal Membership for A. Mantis 175

PIHRA Renewal Membership for J. Brison 150

PIHRA Streaming Event for A. Mantis 209

PIHRA-Register for Event, 2022 Employment Law Update for L. Pointer 209

Registration for PIHRA Event-2022 Employment Law Update for J. Brison 279

PLUM STREET CAFE 25.45

Lunch at AWWA Conference 25.45

PORTOLA HOTEL AND SPA 2132.82

Hotel for MISAC Conference 1066.41

Portola Hotel 1066.41

PRINTBOSS 308.54

Checks for Account Payable 308.54

PRSA 385

APR Test - L. Gallegos 385

RADWELL INTERNATIONAL 133.41

Heatsink Fans 133.41

RALPHS #0147 161.06

Board Meeting Supplies 77.61

Employee Appreciation Taco Lunch Supplies 39.53

Vending Machine Supplies 43.92

RATTLERS BAR B QUE - 1 426.82

Employee Appreciation Lunch for Turbidity Event 324.3

Lunch Meeting with A. Elhassan 54.71

Lunch Meeting, L. Gallegos and K. Martin 47.81

15529



SCV WATER

CREDIT CARD CHARGES

Paid October to December 2022

Charges Amount

REPUBLIC SERVICES TRASH 3206.14

Trash Service 27234 Bouquet Canyon Rd 20 Cu Yd 8/1/22-8/31/22 604.62

Trash Service 27234 Bouquet Canyon Rd 40 Cu Yd 10/01/22-10/31/22 275.67

Trash Service 27234 Bouquet Canyon Rd 40 Cu Yd 8/1/22-8/31/22 878.96

Trash Service 27234 Bouquet Canyon Rd 40 Cu Yd Invoice #0902-011261849 853.21

Trash Service27234 Bouquet Canyon Rd 20 Cu Yd 10/01/22-10/31/22 115.18

Trash Service27234 Bouquet Canyon Rd 20 Cu Yd Invoice #0902-011261849 115.18

Trash Service32700 N Lake Hughes Rd 3 Cu Yd 9/1/22-9/30/22 363.32

ROYAL TANDOOR 36.74

Lunch Meeting - New Engineer First Day - W. Lei J. Yim 36.74

RSTUDIO PBC 117

Online Customer Rate Calculator 117

S & S DONUT AND BAKE SHOP 154

Breakfast Donuts for ADSS Training Workshop 112

Breakfast Donuts for ADSS Workshop for Field Team 42

S&S DONUTS BAKE SHOP IN 36

Water Systems - Safety Meeting 36

SAGE SOFTWARE INC 2152

Sage 300 Annual Renewal 2152

SAMMY GS 138.36

GIS Group dinner at ESRI Conference 138.36

SAMS CLUB #4824 1090.67

Board Meeting Supplies 87.67

Committee Snacks 31.46

Drinks for Monthly Operations Lunch Meeting 42.54

Halloween Spooky Bag Supplies 729.02

Vending Machine Supplies 199.98

SAMS FLAMING GRILL CANYON 175.02

Dinner for Crew working on Leak 67.85

Dinner for crew working on leak at 20127 Fair Weather 107.17

SAMS FLAMING GRILL COPPER 253.37

Bought Crew Dinner for working on leak at Hyssop Lane 109.45

Rosedale Elementary Leak Bought crew dinner 143.92

SAMSCLUB #4824 1311.29

3-day ICS class for Supervisors and Managers -Snacks & Drinks. 20 students plus instructor for all three days220.71

Board Meeting Supplies 292.24

E&O Committee Snacks 42.34

Supplies/materials 341.45

Vending Machine Supplies 414.55

SAN FERNANDO VALLEY BUSIN 49.95

Subscription to SFV Business Journal for K. Jacob. 49.95

16530



SCV WATER

CREDIT CARD CHARGES

Paid October to December 2022

Charges Amount

SAN FRANCISCO BAY COFFEE 66.58

Office Supplies for Water Resources Department 66.58

SANTA CLARITA BEARING COM 70.35

5 Bearing Belts 70.35

SANTA CLARITA VALLEY CHAM 45

SCV Chamber of Commerce Nov Mixer - 11/16/22 - Registration - Director Kelly 15

SCV Chamber of Commerce Oct Mixer - 10/19/22 - Registration - Director Cooper 15

SCV COC Oct Business After Hours Mixer - 10/19/22 - Registration - Director Kelly 15

SANTA CLARITA VALLEY E 500

SCV Education Foundation Touch-A-Truck Sponsorship 500

SCHOONERS PATIO GRILLE SA 87

Team Building with Water Systems Department 87

SD MISSION BAY LODGING 2484.15

Hotel Stay CAPIO conference - K. Martin 838.05

Hotel Stay CAPIO Conference - L. Gallegos 838.05

Hotel Stay CAPIO Conference - L. Gibson 808.05

SHARKEY'S 111.07

Recruitment-Lunch for panelist for Utility Worker interviews. 111.07

SHELL OIL10007109019 71.17

ESRI IMGIS trip gasoline on Agency Vehicle. Vehicle gas card was not accepted. 71.17

SHERMANSDELIPALMSPRINGCAU 97.56

GIS Group Lunch at ESRI Conference 97.56

SMART AND FINAL 468 521.45

Kitchen supplies 114.2

Office Supplies 18.07

Office Supplies for Pine Street 123.7

September Birthday and Anniversary Treats- Golden Triangle 47.62

September Department Meeting Drinks 32.17

Supplies 69.56

Vending Machine/Kitchen Supplies Pine Street 116.13

SMART AND FINAL 483 874.15

Cookies, Soda, and Supplies for Taco Tour Event 395.49

Employee Activity Meeting Snacks 50.83

Kitchen Supplies for Rockefeller 418.42

Soda for Taco Tour 9.41

SMARTDRAW SOFTWARE LLC 357

SmartDraw for HR 357

SOUTHWES 3142.78

AWWA Water Quality Technology Conference - D. Takashima 1003.46

AWWA Water Quality Technology Conference - R. Bye 1003.46

Flight to AWWA Conference - Y. Thierumaran 283.95

State Water Contractors Meeting - 11/16-11/17/22 - Airfare - M. Stone 571.96

Airfare for December SWC Meeting 279.95

17531



SCV WATER

CREDIT CARD CHARGES

Paid October to December 2022

Charges Amount

SP ANKER US 1751.91

External Battery Pack 1751.91

SP RAM MOUNTS 3057.81

Tablet holders for new vehicles 772.03

Vehicle Tablet Mount 276.93

Vehicle Tablet Mounts 2008.85

SP SHOPMAXTOOL 214.49

Milwaukee Hand Pump 214.49

SP WISDOMSUPPLYCO. 89.56

2023 Calendar Planner 89.56

SPENCER'S RESTAURANT 294.2

Group lunch and dinner at ESRI Conference 294.2

SPUDNUTS DONUTS 240.58

Bought crew Donuts for Rochelle Drive Repair Leak 23.03

Golden Triangle Safety Tailgate Snacks 79.02

Rockefeller Safety Tailgate Snacks 36.38

Safety Meeting Snacks at Rockefeller 34.76

Safety meeting snacks at Rockefeller for FCSR total of 15 attendees 28.39

Water Systems/Quality Safety Meeting Snacks 39

SQ *CREWS DCA LLC 5.49

KHTS DC Trip - Lunch 5.49

SQ *DONUT QUEEN 44.54

Donuts for Safety Meeting 20.5

Snacks for safety tailgate meeting. 24.04

SQ *FARM 81.22

GIS Group Lunch at ESRI Conference 81.22

SQ *KUPCAKE KITCHEN 1023.75

Board Meeting Supplies 114

Cupcakes for Birthdays and Anniversaries at Rockefeller 148.5

Monthly Birthday and Anniversary Celebration at Pine Street 168

November Birthday & Anniversary Celebration - Rio Vista 267

November Birthday and Anniversary at Golden Triangle 148.5

November Birthday and Anniversary Celebrations 78.75

November Birthday and Anniversary Snacks - Summit Circle 99

SQ *LAPTOPEMT 187.5

Repair Monochloramine analyzer control board. 187.5

SQ *LILS BAGELS 12.51

Meal,  D. Takashima and R.Bye at AWWA Conference 12.51

SQ *RICK BENTLEY 150

Solar Panel Brackets 150

SQ *STEVENSON DONUT & BAK 56

Customer Care Meeting 56

18532



SCV WATER

CREDIT CARD CHARGES

Paid October to December 2022

Charges Amount

SQ *UVC 13.18

KHTS DC Trip - Taxicab 13.18

SQ *WATERWISEPRO TRAINING 75

Registration Fee for WaterWisePro: Maintenance & Construction Expo 2022, for Operator: E. Lugo. One day only attendee.75

STAPLES DIRECT 2456.06

APC SmartUPS unit for E&I Dept.; requested by D.Hoffman 1916.24

APC UPS Replacement Battery Cartridge 539.82

STARBUCKS II 120.02

OracleWorld Conference - Breakfast M. Wassef 17.32

OracleWorld Conference Breakfast D.Conner, K.Grass 79.95

OracleWorld Conference Breakfast K.Grass, D.Conner, 16.43

OracleWorld Conference Breakfast M.Wassef 6.32

STARBUCKS STORE 02208 12.45

Meal,  D. Takashima and R.Bye at AWWA Conference 12.45

STARBUCKS STORE 20227 60

Coffee for Ribbon Cutting Valley Center 20

Coffee for Valley Center Ribbon Cutting 40

STARLINK INTERNET 330

Monthly satellite internet at Pine St 110

Monthly satellite internet at Pine St. 110

Monthly satellite internet at Pine Street 110

STONEFIRE GRILL - 1 378.93

DDW site inspection visit 39.17

Department retirement lunch for R. Hensley. 339.76

STONEFIRE GRILL - 1 - ECO 97.05

Lunch for Utility Worker interviews 97.05

SUNDANCE CAFE 108.86

Oracle World Conference Dinner - K. Grass, D. Conner 85.44

Oracle World Conference Dinner - M. Wassef 23.42

SURVEYMONK* T 43438300 99

Subscription to conduct Agency Halloween Voting Polls 99

SWA*EARLYBRD 50

Early Bird Check-in on flight for AWWA Conference - Y. Thierumaran. 25

Early Bird Check-in on flight from AWWA Conference - Y. Thierumaran. 25

SWEETWATER SOUND 1095

Portable P.A. System for internal/external agency use 1095

TACOS Y BURRITOS EL PATO 159.1

Bought Crew Lunch working on leak at Ivrea Place 159.1

THE BLIND PIG - OH 40.43

Meal,  D. Takashima and R.Bye at AWWA Conference 40.43

19533



SCV WATER

CREDIT CARD CHARGES

Paid October to December 2022

Charges Amount

THE HOME DEPOT #0653 1405.79

A/C air handler repaired at Rio Vista 41.54

Brass Fittings 31.59

Cleaning supply ESFP Ozone Room 54.73

Cordless vacuum for B&G 141.26

Drill Bit Set for VARIDESK / Curved Monitor install 18.36

Electric Tools 108.41

Hang Pictures at Pine Street 27.34

Lithium Instrument Batteries, Mounting Pad, Velcro 33.86

Paint for Office at Summit Circle 54.66

Parts for Chemical Room at Rio Vista 49.28

Picks to get broken key out of lock 9.82

Pipe Repair Parts for Sand Canyon Pump Station 31.25

Rio Vista Paint and Electrical Supplier 37.21

RVMSO TRAILER COM UPGRADE/SCADA 21

Storage containers for safety vests 69.99

Suppliers for Office at Summit Circle 71.18

Supplies for Employee Activity Committee - Holiday Activities 61.99

Tools and locks for vehicle lifts 105.24

Tools for crew truck 177.93

Turbo Fan and Extensions Cord 174.07

Washing Supplies for Solar Panels at Pine Street 48.16

Water line and fittings to repair ice machine 36.92

THE HOME DEPOT #1055 2420.86

18"x3/4" high pressure SS line to repair sample pump line at Sand Canyon Reservoir Pump 28.42

Battery Adapter 108.41

Cleaning Supplies for ESFP Ozone Room 106.17

Electrical Stock for Truck 195.02

ESFP Ozone room and Building  Bug Control 123.07

Fan for conference room 54.73

Filter for Rio Vista 25.68

Flashlights For B&G 47

Fleet vehicles gate at Summit Circle 69.32

Interment Pliers for Truck #i67 39.26

Parts and Supplies 69.87

Parts and Supplies for Rockefeller Lobby 50.16

Pest chaser and power strip for gate openers 36.54

Rags, Gloves, 3m pads 143.12

Rebar 10.91

Rio Vista Electrical Supplies 285.87

Rio Vista power supply for main door 184.44

Scope Camera for Air Ducts 130.31

Screws for Emergency Radio 6.04

20534



SCV WATER

CREDIT CARD CHARGES

Paid October to December 2022

Charges Amount

Shop vac filters 77.57

Small Tools for Unit 47.54

Supplies for Rockefeller Lobby 67.89

Supplies to build games for Employee Holiday party 166.41

Tools and Materials 347.11

THE HOME DEPOT 1055 2832.36

10 foot ladder for B&G 279.52

10 foot ladder for B&G department 272.66

Battery for Power Tools 346.02

Cleaning gear 250.47

Grease Gun 250.76

Grinder and Blower 435.81

Grinder Tool 274.9

Hose and Hose Clamps 236.14

Replace Rachett Batteries 217.91

Small tools 82.45

Small tools and hardware for repairs 98.14

Water hose 87.58

THE HOME DEPOT 638 219.4

Replace batteries for power tools 219.4

THE HOME DEPOT 653 879.69

Light Stand, Extension Cord 203.09

Parts and Supplies 327.41

Power Tools 256.15

Summit Circle lights 93.04

THE LOCAL CON A CVG 23.9

Breakfast at AWWA Conference R. Bye and D. Takashima 23.9

THE SANDS HOTEL & SPA 319.34

ACWA 2022 Fall Conference - 11/29-12/01/22 - Hotel - A. Elhassan 319.34

THE TROPICALE RESTAURANT 156.06

GIS Group dinner at ESRI Conference 156.06

THE UPS STORE 6401 11.97

Ship meter 11.97

TOMATO JOES PIZZA EXPRESS 178.06

Lunch for Halloween 178.06

TOPPERS PIZZA PLACE VALEN 380.55

Board Tour - Lunch Meeting G. Hermosillo, M. Reyes, and K. Abercrombie 38.18

Lunch for Drone Training 155.49

Lunch for Quarterly Operators Meeting on 10/4/22 134.25

Welcome New Employee Lunch 52.63

21535



SCV WATER

CREDIT CARD CHARGES

Paid October to December 2022

Charges Amount

TRAININNGSONLINE 218

Excel Pivot Training 109

Online Course: Excel Pivot Tables 109

TST* COPPER & FLAME 35.78

Meal,  D. Takashima and R.Bye at AWWA Conference 35.78

TST* KABUKI - VALENCIA 41.64

Lunch meeting - New Engineer first day 41.64

TST* MARSTON'S 396.84

Customer Care Meeting 396.84

TST* NOTHING BUNDT CAKES 356.5

August Birthday and Anniversary treats for Golden Triangle 75

Birthday and Anniversary Celebration - August 2022 Pine Street 100

Director Meeting Supplies 181.5

TST* PHO LANG THANG 41.4

Meal,  D. Takashima and R.Bye at AWWA Conference 41.4

TST* VINCENZOS 335.24

Dinner for Crew working on Leak 103.82

Meal for Operations Department 231.42

ULINE 822.82

Push Carts for ESFP 822.82

UNITED 735.2

Flight to Monterey / MISAC Conference 735.2

UPS 55.54

Ship Gas Meter for Repairs 55.54

URBANE CAFE VALENCIA # 262.81

Lunch for Training 262.81

USA BLUE BOOK 745.03

D-color tablets. 745.03

USA CD VALENCIA 24 1078.68

Air Filters 426.27

Filters for Modular 537.17

Pleated HVAC Filters 115.24

USPS PO 0569500155 33.48

Certified Letter per K. Jacob Request 15.7

Certified Mail Agency - General Liability 14.24

Postage 3.54

VALLEY INDUSTRIAL ASSOCIA 40

VIA CEO Forum 40

VENETIAN/PALAZZO FRT DES 2506.41

OracleWorld Conference - D Conner Hotel 753.98

OracleWorld Conference - K Grass Hotel 998.45

OracleWorld Conference - M Wassef Hotel 753.98

22536



SCV WATER

CREDIT CARD CHARGES

Paid October to December 2022

Charges Amount

VENETIAN/PALAZZO ROOM RS 1201.84

Oracle conference hotel - 1st night deposit - K. Grass 300.46

Oracle conference hotel - 1st night deposit, D. Conner 300.46

Oracle conference hotel - 1st night deposit, M. Wassef 300.46

Oracle conference hotel room - 1st night deposit, S. Patterson 300.46

VERIZON WIRELESS 234.71

Phone Accessories 234.71

VERIZONWRLSS 74923.48

CIMIS 10/11/22-11/10/22 38.01

CIMIS 8/11/22-9/10/22 38.01

CIMIS 9/11/22-10/10/22 38.01

Equipment 10/11/22-11/10/22 16498.75

Equipment 8/11/22-9/10/22 6320.58

Equipment 9/11/22-10/10/22 5614.81

Services 10/11/22-11/10/22 15965.92

Services 8/11/22-9/10/22 15116.19

Services 9/11/22-10/10/22 15293.2

VONS #2111 60.39

Birthday & Anniversary Celebration September 2022 Pine Street 60.39

VONS #3138 48.34

Supplies 48.34

VONS #3325 70.69

Board Meeting Supplies 22.55

Drone Training Snacks - Day 2 26.56

Vending Machine Supplies 21.58

VOX TECHNOLOGIES 897

Vibration module for Sand Canyon Pump Station 897

VZWRLSS*IVR VB 2371.42

Telemetry 07/24/22-8/23/22 Invoice #9914256292 793.58

Telemetry 08/24/22-9/23/22 Invoice #9916612192 793.58

Telemetry 09/24/22-10/23/22 Invoice #9918984196 784.26

WAHLBURGER 105.64

GIS Group Lunch at ESRI Conference 105.64

WAL-MART #3523 37.5

Snacks for Employee Activity Meeting 37.5

WALMART.COM 11.92

Halloween Spooky Bag Refund -35.12

Halloween Spooky Bag Supplies 47.04

WALMART.COM AA 32.96

(2) 5-Gallon Water Jugs for RV Maintenance/Supervisor trailer. 32.96

WEATHERTECH 143.88

Floor Mats for N58 143.88

23537



SCV WATER

CREDIT CARD CHARGES

Paid October to December 2022

Charges Amount

WESTERN BAGEL TOO #4 92

Bagels for Thanksgiving Breakfast with Department 92

WESTERN STATES INDUSTRIA 2603.3

RVIPS Ozone Detruct. Valve Replacement; requested by L. Margheritis. 2603.3

WINCHELL'S DONUTS #9171 51.82

Refreshments for telematics installation 6AM-6PMJesus, mechanic, and 3 installers 51.82

WM SUPERCENTER #3523 64.13

September Birthday and Anniversary Treats 32.34

Tablecloths for Taco Tour Event 31.79

WM SUPERCENTER #5162 11.92

Halloween Spooky Bag Supplies 11.92

WPONCALL.COM 147

GSA Website Maintenance 147

WPY*WATERISAC 250

H2OSecCon Conference Registration 50

WaterISAC Conference for Cybersecurity 50

WaterISAC online seminar - H2O SecCon (security conference). Registration for C. Perez and for J.Thomas 100

WaterISAC Water Security Online Conference registration. 50

WWW COSTCO COM 105.43

Office Supplies for Water Resources 105.43

WWW.ATBATT.COM 129.22

Fleet Vehicle gate at Summit Circle 129.22

YARDBIRD LAS VEGAS 154.12

OracleWorld Conference Dinner, K.Grass, D.Conner 97.85

OracleWorld Conference Dinner, M.Wassef 56.27

YELLOW CAB OF SACRAMENTO 46.2

Taxi from Hotel to Airport 46.2

YM CAREERS 399

Recruitment- Water Conservation Specialist I or II Job Advertisement 399

ZEPPOLA CAFE LAS VEGAS 32.84

OracleWorld Conference K.Grass, 18.24

OracleWorld Conference M.Wasseff 14.6

Grand Total $267,268.97

24538



 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 
Director Stipends 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

539



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

540



D
ire

ct
or

 K
at

hy
e 

Ar
m

ita
ge

 
D

ire
ct

or
 B

et
h 

B
ra

un
st

ei
n 

D
at

e 
M

ee
tin

g 
Am

ou
nt

D
at

e 
M

ee
tin

g 
Am

ou
nt

11
/3

0/
22

AC
W

A 
20

22
 F

al
l C

on
fe

re
nc

e 
$2

39
.0

0
12

/0
1/

22
AC

W
A 

20
22

 F
al

l C
on

fe
re

nc
e 

$2
39

.0
0

12
/0

1/
22

AC
W

A 
20

22
 F

al
l C

on
fe

re
nc

e 
$2

39
.0

0
12

/0
6/

22
R

eg
ul

ar
 B

oa
rd

 M
ee

tin
g

$2
39

.0
0

12
/0

6/
22

R
eg

ul
ar

 B
oa

rd
 M

ee
tin

g
$2

39
.0

0
12

/1
2/

22
R

es
ch

ed
ul

ed
 F

in
an

ce
 a

nd
 A

dm
in

is
tra

tio
n 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 M

ee
tin

g
$2

39
.0

0
12

/1
2/

22
R

es
ch

ed
ul

ed
 F

in
an

ce
 a

nd
 A

dm
in

is
tra

tio
n 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 M

ee
tin

g
$2

39
.0

0
12

/1
5/

22
Pu

bl
ic

 O
ut

re
ac

h 
an

d 
Le

gi
sl

at
io

n 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 M
ee

tin
g

$2
39

.0
0

12
/1

4/
22

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 M
ee

tin
g 

of
 th

e 
Sp

ec
ia

l D
is

tri
ct

s 
of

 N
or

th
 L

A 
C

ou
nt

y 
$0

.0
0

12
/2

0/
22

R
eg

ul
ar

 B
oa

rd
 M

ee
tin

g
$2

39
.0

0
12

/1
4/

22
W

at
er

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 a

nd
 W

at
er

sh
ed

 C
om

m
itt

ee
 M

ee
tin

g
$2

39
.0

0
12

/2
0/

22
R

eg
ul

ar
 B

oa
rd

 M
ee

tin
g

$2
39

.0
0

St
ip

en
d 

To
ta

l 
$1

,4
34

.0
0

St
ip

en
d 

To
ta

l 
$1

,1
95

.0
0

To
ta

l P
ai

d 
D

ay
s 

6
To

ta
l P

ai
d 

D
ay

s
5

To
ta

l M
ee

tin
gs

 
7

To
ta

l M
ee

tin
gs

5

D
ire

ct
or

 E
d 

C
ol

le
y

D
ire

ct
or

 W
ill

ia
m

 C
oo

pe
r 

D
at

e 
M

ee
tin

g 
Am

ou
nt

D
at

e 
M

ee
tin

g 
Am

ou
nt

12
/0

1/
22

AC
W

A 
20

22
 F

al
l C

on
fe

re
nc

e
$2

39
.0

0
12

/1
4/

22
W

at
er

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 a

nd
 W

at
er

sh
ed

 C
om

m
itt

ee
 M

ee
tin

g
$2

39
.0

0
12

/0
6/

22
R

eg
ul

ar
 B

oa
rd

 M
ee

tin
g

$2
39

.0
0

12
/1

9/
22

Ag
en

da
 P

la
nn

in
g 

M
ee

tin
g

$2
39

.0
0

12
/1

2/
22

R
es

ch
ed

ul
ed

 F
in

an
ce

 a
nd

 A
dm

in
is

tra
tio

n 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 M
ee

tin
g

$2
39

.0
0

12
/2

0/
22

R
eg

ul
ar

 B
oa

rd
 M

ee
tin

g
$2

39
.0

0
12

/1
4/

22
W

at
er

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 a

nd
 W

at
er

sh
ed

 C
om

m
itt

ee
 M

ee
tin

g
$2

39
.0

0
12

/2
0/

22
U

SC
VJ

PA
 M

ee
tin

g
$0

.0
0

12
/2

0/
22

R
eg

ul
ar

 B
oa

rd
 M

ee
tin

g
$2

39
.0

0
12

/2
0/

22
Sp

ec
ia

l D
ev

il's
 D

en
 W

at
er

 D
is

tri
ct

 B
oa

rd
 M

ee
tin

g
$0

.0
0

12
/2

0/
22

Sp
ec

ia
l D

ev
il's

 D
en

 W
at

er
 D

is
tri

ct
 B

oa
rd

 M
ee

tin
g

$0
.0

0

St
ip

en
d 

To
ta

l 
$1

,1
95

.0
0

St
ip

en
d 

To
ta

l 
$7

17
.0

0
To

ta
l P

ai
d 

D
ay

s
5

To
ta

l P
ai

d 
D

ay
s

3
To

ta
l M

ee
tin

gs
6

To
ta

l M
ee

tin
gs

5

D
ire

ct
or

 J
ef

f F
or

d 
D

ire
ct

or
 M

ar
ia

 G
ut

ze
it 

D
at

e 
M

ee
tin

g 
Am

ou
nt

D
at

e 
M

ee
tin

g 
Am

ou
nt

12
/0

1/
22

AC
W

A 
20

22
 F

al
l C

on
fe

re
nc

e 
$2

39
.0

0
12

/0
6/

22
R

eg
ul

ar
 B

oa
rd

 M
ee

tin
g

$2
39

.0
0

12
/0

6/
22

R
eg

ul
ar

 B
oa

rd
 M

ee
tin

g
$2

39
.0

0
12

/0
7/

22
LA

 C
ou

nt
y 

Bo
uq

ue
t C

re
ek

 R
es

to
ra

tio
n 

Pu
bl

ic
 M

ee
tin

g 
$2

39
.0

0
12

/0
8/

22
En

gi
ne

er
in

g 
an

d 
O

pe
ra

tio
ns

 C
om

m
itt

ee
 M

ee
tin

g
$2

39
.0

0
12

/1
2/

22
R

es
ch

ed
ul

ed
 F

in
an

ce
 a

nd
 A

dm
in

is
tra

tio
n 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 M

ee
tin

g
$2

39
.0

0
12

/1
4/

22
W

at
er

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 a

nd
 W

at
er

sh
ed

 C
om

m
itt

ee
 M

ee
tin

g
$2

39
.0

0
12

/1
4/

22
W

at
er

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 a

nd
 W

at
er

sh
ed

 C
om

m
itt

ee
 M

ee
tin

g
$2

39
.0

0
12

/2
0/

22
R

eg
ul

ar
 B

oa
rd

 M
ee

tin
g

$2
39

.0
0

12
/2

0/
22

R
eg

ul
ar

 B
oa

rd
 M

ee
tin

g
$2

39
.0

0
12

/2
0/

22
U

SC
VJ

PA
 M

ee
tin

g
$0

.0
0

12
/2

0/
22

Sp
ec

ia
l D

ev
il's

 D
en

 W
at

er
 D

is
tri

ct
 B

oa
rd

 M
ee

tin
g

$0
.0

0

St
ip

en
d 

To
ta

l 
$1

,1
95

.0
0

St
ip

en
d 

To
ta

l
$1

,1
95

.0
0

To
ta

l P
ai

d 
D

ay
s

5
To

ta
l P

ai
d 

D
ay

s
5

To
ta

l M
ee

tin
gs

7
 

To
ta

l M
ee

tin
gs

5

D
IR

EC
TO

R
S 

ST
IP

EN
D

S 
PA

ID
 IN

 J
AN

U
AR

Y 
20

23
Fo

r t
he

 M
on

th
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 2
02

2

541



D
ire

ct
or

 R
. J

. K
el

ly
D

ire
ct

or
 G

ar
y 

M
ar

tin

D
at

e 
M

ee
tin

g 
Am

ou
nt

D
at

e 
M

ee
tin

g 
Am

ou
nt

12
/0

1/
22

AC
W

A 
20

22
 F

al
l C

on
fe

re
nc

e 
$2

39
.0

0
12

/0
1/

22
AC

W
A 

20
22

 F
al

l C
on

fe
re

nc
e 

$2
39

.0
0

12
/0

6/
22

R
eg

ul
ar

 B
oa

rd
 M

ee
tin

g
$2

39
.0

0
12

/0
6/

22
R

eg
ul

ar
 B

oa
rd

 M
ee

tin
g

$2
39

.0
0

12
/0

7/
22

LA
 C

ou
nt

y 
Bo

uq
ue

t C
re

ek
 R

es
to

ra
tio

n 
Pu

bl
ic

 M
ee

tin
g 

$2
39

.0
0

12
/0

7/
22

LA
 C

ou
nt

y 
Bo

uq
ue

t C
re

ek
 R

es
to

ra
tio

n 
Pu

bl
ic

 M
ee

tin
g 

$2
39

.0
0

12
/1

2/
22

R
es

ch
ed

ul
ed

 F
in

an
ce

 a
nd

 A
dm

in
is

tra
tio

n 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 M
ee

tin
g

$2
39

.0
0

12
/0

8/
22

En
gi

ne
er

in
g 

an
d 

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 C

om
m

itt
ee

 M
ee

tin
g

$2
39

.0
0

12
/1

5/
22

Pu
bl

ic
 O

ut
re

ac
h 

an
d 

Le
gi

sl
at

io
n 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 M

ee
tin

g
$2

39
.0

0
12

/0
9/

22
D

C
A 

Bo
ar

d 
of

 D
ire

ct
or

s 
Br

ie
fin

g 
$2

39
.0

0
12

/2
0/

22
R

eg
ul

ar
 B

oa
rd

 M
ee

tin
g

$2
39

.0
0

12
/1

3/
22

VI
A 

M
on

th
ly

 In
st

al
la

tio
n 

Lu
nc

he
on

$2
39

.0
0

12
/2

0/
22

Sp
ec

ia
l D

ev
il's

 D
en

 W
at

er
 D

is
tri

ct
 B

oa
rd

 M
ee

tin
g

$0
.0

0
12

/1
3/

22
C

ity
 o

f S
an

ta
 C

la
rit

a 
C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il 
M

ee
tin

g
$0

.0
0

12
/1

5/
22

D
C

A 
Bo

ar
d 

of
 D

ire
ct

or
s 

M
ee

tin
g 

$2
39

.0
0

12
/1

5/
22

Pu
bl

ic
 O

ut
re

ac
h 

an
d 

Le
gi

sl
at

io
n 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 M

ee
tin

g
$0

.0
0

12
/1

9/
22

Ag
en

da
 P

la
nn

in
g 

M
ee

tin
g

$2
39

.0
0

12
/2

0/
22

R
eg

ul
ar

 B
oa

rd
 M

ee
tin

g
$2

39
.0

0
12

/2
0/

22
U

SC
VJ

PA
 M

ee
tin

g
$0

.0
0

St
ip

en
d 

To
ta

l 
$1

,4
34

.0
0

St
ip

en
d 

To
ta

l 
$2

,1
51

.0
0

To
ta

l P
ai

d 
D

ay
s

6
To

ta
l P

ai
d 

D
ay

s
9

To
ta

l M
ee

tin
gs

7
To

ta
l M

ee
tin

gs
 

12

D
ire

ct
or

 P
io

tr 
O

rz
ec

ho
w

sk
i 

D
ire

ct
or

 K
en

 P
et

er
se

n

D
at

e 
M

ee
tin

g 
Am

ou
nt

D
at

e 
M

ee
tin

g 
Am

ou
nt

12
/0

8/
22

En
gi

ne
er

in
g 

an
d 

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 C

om
m

itt
ee

 M
ee

tin
g

$2
39

.0
0

12
/0

6/
22

R
eg

ul
ar

 B
oa

rd
 M

ee
tin

g
$2

39
.0

0
12

/1
5/

22
Pu

bl
ic

 O
ut

re
ac

h 
an

d 
Le

gi
sl

at
io

n 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 M
ee

tin
g

$2
39

.0
0

12
/0

8/
22

En
gi

ne
er

in
g 

an
d 

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 C

om
m

itt
ee

 M
ee

tin
g

$2
39

.0
0

12
/1

9/
22

Ag
en

da
 P

la
nn

in
g 

M
ee

tin
g

$2
39

.0
0

12
/1

2/
22

R
es

ch
ed

ul
ed

 F
in

an
ce

 a
nd

 A
dm

in
is

tra
tio

n 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 M
ee

tin
g

$2
39

.0
0

12
/2

0/
22

R
eg

ul
ar

 B
oa

rd
 M

ee
tin

g
$2

39
.0

0
12

/1
9/

22
O

ne
-o

n-
O

ne
 M

ee
tin

g 
w

ith
 G

en
er

al
 M

an
ag

er
$2

39
.0

0
12

/2
0/

22
U

SC
VJ

PA
 M

ee
tin

g
$0

.0
0

12
/2

0/
22

R
eg

ul
ar

 B
oa

rd
 M

ee
tin

g
$2

39
.0

0
12

/2
1/

22
O

ne
-o

n-
O

ne
 M

ee
tin

g 
w

ith
 G

en
er

al
 M

an
ag

er
$2

39
.0

0  

St
ip

en
d 

To
ta

l 
$1

,1
95

.0
0

St
ip

en
d 

To
ta

l 
$1

,1
95

.0
0

To
ta

l P
ai

d 
D

ay
s

5
To

ta
l P

ai
d 

D
ay

s
5

To
ta

l M
ee

tin
gs

 fo
r J

un
e 

w
ith

 A
dd

iti
on

al
 M

ay
 M

ee
tin

gs
6

To
ta

l M
ee

tin
gs

5

D
ire

ct
or

 L
yn

ne
 P

la
m

be
ck

D
at

e 
M

ee
tin

g 
Am

ou
nt

12
/1

/2
2

AC
W

A 
20

22
 F

al
l C

on
fe

re
nc

e
$2

39
.0

0
12

/6
/2

2
R

eg
ul

ar
 B

oa
rd

 M
ee

tin
g

$2
39

.0
0

12
/7

/2
2

LA
 C

ou
nt

y 
Bo

uq
ue

t C
re

ek
 R

es
to

ra
tio

n 
Pu

bl
ic

 M
ee

tin
g 

$2
39

.0
0

12
/8

/2
2

En
gi

ne
er

in
g 

an
d 

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 C

om
m

itt
ee

 M
ee

tin
g

$2
39

.0
0

12
/1

2/
23

AC
W

A 
D

em
ys

tif
yi

ng
 C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
St

ra
te

gi
es

 fo
r D

iv
er

se
 C

om
m

. 
$2

39
.0

0
12

/1
4/

23
O

ne
-o

n-
O

ne
 M

ee
tin

g 
w

ith
 G

en
er

al
 M

an
ag

er
$2

39
.0

0
12

/1
5/

22
Pu

bl
ic

 O
ut

re
ac

h 
an

d 
Le

gi
sl

at
io

n 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 M
ee

tin
g

$2
39

.0
0

12
/2

0/
23

R
eg

ul
ar

 B
oa

rd
 M

ee
tin

g
$2

39
.0

0

St
ip

en
d 

To
ta

l 
$1

,9
12

.0
0

To
ta

l P
ai

d 
D

ay
s

8
To

ta
l M

ee
tin

gs
8

TO
TA

L 
PA

ID
 D

AY
S

62
TO

TA
L 

M
EE

TI
N

G
S

73
TO

TA
L 

ST
IP

EN
D

S
$1

4,
81

8.
00

542



 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 
Director Reimbursements 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

543



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

544



C
A

 G
o

v
t.

 C
o

d
e
 S

e
c
ti

o
n

 5
3
0
6
5
.5

 

L
is

t 
o

f 
R

e
im

b
u

rs
e
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
"
In

d
iv

id
u

a
l 

C
h

a
rg

e
s
"
 =

 $
1
0
0
 o

r 
m

o
re

A
n

n
u

a
l 
D

is
c
lo

s
u

re
 f

o
r 

F
is

c
a
l 
Y

e
a
r 

2
2
/2

3
A

P
 T

ra
n

s
a
c
ti

o
n

s
 U

p
d

a
te

d
 a

s
 o

f:
  
1
2
/3

1
/2

0
2
2
 

D
IR

E
C

T
O

R
S

P
- 

C
a
rd

 (
V

IS
A

) 
T

ra
n

s
a
c

ti
o

n
s

 U
p

d
a

te
d

 a
s

 o
f:

  
1
2
/3

1
/2

2
 *

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

P
C

a
rd

 t
ra

n
s

a
c

ti
o

n
s

 a
ff

e
c

t 
J

a
n

u
a

ry
 c

a
s

h
. 

D
a
te

R
e
c
ip

ie
n

t 
o

f 
R

e
im

b
u

rs
e
m

e
n

t
R

e
a
s
o

n
 f

o
r 

R
e
im

b
u

rs
e
m

e
n

t
 A

m
o

u
n

t 

1
2

/0
1

/2
2

C
o
ll

ey
, 
E

d
w

ar
d

 
A

C
W

A
 2

0
2
2
 F

al
l 

C
o
n
fe

re
n
ce

 I
n
d
ia

n
 W

el
ls

, 
C

A
 1

1
/2

9
/2

2
-1

2
/1

/2
2
  
- 

T
ra

v
el

 E
x
p
en

se
s 

(M
il

ea
g
e,

 P
ar

k
in

g
)

2
2
3
.1

4
  

  
  

  
  

1
2

/0
1

/2
2

C
o
ll

ey
, 
E

d
w

ar
d

 
A

C
W

A
 2

0
2
2
 F

al
l 

C
o
n
fe

re
n
ce

 I
n
d
ia

n
 W

el
ls

, 
C

A
 1

1
/2

9
/2

2
-1

2
/2

1
/2

2
 E

x
p
en

se
s 

(L
o
d
g
in

g
, 

M
ea

ls
)

3
2
5
.4

5
  

  
  

  
  

1
2

/0
1

/2
2

M
ar

ti
n

, 
G

ar
y

A
C

W
A

 2
0
2
2
 F

al
l 

C
o
n
fe

re
n
ce

 I
n
d
ia

n
 W

el
ls

, 
C

A
 1

1
/2

7
/2

2
-1

2
/0

1
/2

2
 T

ra
v
el

 E
x
p
en

se
s 

(M
il

ea
g
e)

1
9
3
.7

6
  

  
  

  
  

1
2

/0
1

/2
2

M
ar

ti
n

, 
G

ar
y

A
C

W
A

 2
0
2
2
 F

al
l 

C
o
n
fe

re
n
ce

 I
n
d
ia

n
 W

el
ls

, 
C

A
 1

1
/2

7
/2

2
-1

2
/0

1
/2

2
 E

x
p
en

se
s 

(L
o
d
g
in

g
, 

M
ea

ls
)

1
,0

9
9
.7

1
  

  
  
 

1
2

/0
1

/2
2

F
o
rd

, 
Je

ff
A

C
W

A
 2

0
2
2
 F

al
l 

C
o
n
fe

re
n
ce

 I
n
d
ia

n
 W

el
ls

 ,
 C

A
 1

1
/2

9
/2

2
-1

2
/1

/2
2
 E

x
p
en

se
s 

(L
o
d
g
in

g
, 

M
ea

ls
)

5
2
6
.3

3
  

  
  

  
  

1
2

/0
1

/2
2

F
o
rd

, 
Je

ff
A

C
W

A
 2

0
2
2
 F

al
l 

C
o
n
fe

re
n
ce

 I
n
d
ia

n
 W

el
ls

 ,
 C

A
 1

1
/2

9
/2

2
-1

2
/1

/2
2
 T

ra
v
el

 E
x
p
en

se
s 

(M
il

ea
g
e)

1
9
2
.5

0
  

  
  

  
  

1
2

/0
1

/2
2

P
la

m
b

ec
k
, 
L

y
n

n
e

A
C

W
A

 2
0
2
2
 F

al
l 

C
o
n
fe

re
n
ce

 I
n
d
ia

n
 W

el
ls

, 
C

A
 1

1
/2

9
/2

2
-1

2
/1

/2
2
 E

x
p
en

se
s 

(L
o
d
g
in

g
, 

M
ea

ls
)

1
,1

3
6
.8

5
  

  
  
 

1
2

/0
1

/2
2

P
la

m
b

ec
k
, 
L

y
n

n
e

A
C

W
A

 2
0
2
2
 F

al
l 

C
o
n
fe

re
n
ce

 I
n
d
ia

n
 W

el
ls

, 
C

A
 1

1
/2

9
/2

2
-1

2
/1

/2
2
 T

ra
v
el

 E
x
p
en

se
s 

(M
il

ea
g
e)

2
1
7
.5

0
  

  
  

  
  

1
2

/0
1

/2
2

K
el

ly
, 
R

.J
.

A
C

W
A

 2
0
2
2
 F

al
l 

C
o
n
fe

re
n
ce

 I
n
d
ia

n
 W

el
ls

, 
C

A
 1

1
/2

9
/2

2
-1

2
/1

/2
2
 E

x
p
en

se
s 

(L
o
d
g
in

g
)

7
1
1
.4

8
  

  
  

  
  

1
2

/0
1

/2
2

K
el

ly
, 
R

.J
.

A
C

W
A

 2
0
2
2
 F

al
l 

C
o
n
fe

re
n
ce

 I
n
d
ia

n
 W

el
ls

, 
C

A
 1

1
/2

9
/2

2
-1

2
/1

/2
2
 T

ra
v
el

 E
x
p
en

se
s 

(M
il

ea
g
e)

2
2
2
.5

0
  

  
  

  
  

1
2

/0
1

/2
2

C
o
o
p

er
, 
W

il
li

am
A

C
W

A
 B

o
ar

d
 M

ee
ti

n
g
 S

ac
ra

m
en

to
, 
C

A
 1

1
/1

7
/2

2
-1

1
/1

8
/2

2
 E

x
p
en

se
 (

L
o
d
g
in

g
)

1
8
8
.7

6
  

  
  

  
  

1
2

/0
1

/2
2

C
o
o
p

er
, 
W

il
li

am

A
C

W
A

 B
o
ar

d
 M

ee
ti

n
g
 S

ac
ra

m
en

to
, 
C

A
 1

1
/1

7
/2

2
-1

1
/1

8
/2

2
 T

ra
v
el

 E
x
p
en

se
 (

A
ir

fa
re

, 
M

il
ea

g
e,

 P
ar

k
in

g
, 

G
ro

u
n
d
 T

ra
n
sp

o
rt

at
io

n
 -

 U
b
er

)
6
4
9
.8

0
  

  
  

  
  

1
2

/2
9

/2
2

G
u

tz
ei

t,
 M

ar
ia

 
P

-C
A

R
D

 (
V

IS
A

) 
- 

2
0
2
3
 U

W
I 

S
p
ri

n
g
 W

at
er

 C
o
n
fe

re
n
ce

 -
 0

2
/2

2
/2

3
-0

2
/2

4
/2

0
2
3
 E

x
p
en

se
 (

L
o
d
g
in

g
)

2
1
0
.4

8
  

  
  

  
  

1
2

/2
9

/2
2

M
ar

k
s,

 D
ir

k
P

-C
A

R
D

 (
V

IS
A

) 
- 

F
ra

m
ed

 P
h
o
to

2
0
1
.3

8
  

  
  

  
  

6
,0

9
9
.6

4
  
  
 

545



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

546



FY
 2

02
2/

23

M
id

 Y
ea

r B
ud

ge
t R

ev
ie

w
 

Se
co

nd
 Q

ua
rt

er
 F

in
an

ci
al

 R
ep

or
t 

(O
ct

ob
er

 –
D

ec
em

be
r 2

02
2)

B
oa

rd
 o

f D
ire

ct
or

s 
M

ee
tin

g
M

ar
ch

 7
, 2

02
3

547



FY
20

22
/2

3 
Se

co
nd

 Q
ua

rt
er

 H
ig

hl
ig

ht
s

•
St

af
f c

om
pl

et
ed

 th
e 

FY
20

21
/2

2 
au

di
t w

or
k 

w
ith

 o
ur

 o
ut

si
de

 C
PA

 (C
er

tif
ie

d 
Pu

bl
ic

 A
cc

ou
nt

an
t) 

fir
m

, L
SL

 (L
an

ce
, S

ol
l &

 L
un

gh
ar

d,
 L

LP
).

•
R

ec
ei

ve
d 

an
d 

Fi
lle

d 
th

e 
SC

V 
W

at
er

 A
nn

ua
l C

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 F
in

an
ci

al
 R

ep
or

t (
AC

FR
) e

nd
ed

 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

02
2.

•
St

af
f c

om
pl

et
ed

 a
 L

et
te

r o
f I

nt
er

es
t f

or
 th

e 
W

at
er

 In
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
Fi

na
nc

e 
an

d 
In

no
va

tio
n 

Ac
t 

(W
IF

IA
) p

ro
gr

am
 th

at
 is

 a
dm

in
is

te
re

d 
by

 th
e 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

Ag
en

cy
 (E

PA
). 

•
Ap

pr
ov

ed
 th

e 
re

vi
se

d 
Em

pl
oy

ee
 M

an
ua

l P
ol

ic
y 

N
o.

 4
0 

–
Fl

ex
ib

le
 W

or
kp

la
ce

 P
ro

gr
am

•
Ap

pr
ov

ed
 th

e 
Em

pl
oy

ee
 M

an
ua

l P
ol

ic
y 

N
o.

42
 —

In
te

rn
sh

ip
 P

ro
gr

am
.

•
Ap

pr
ov

ed
 tw

o 
co

nt
ra

ct
s 

fo
r M

ic
ro

w
av

e 
U

pg
ra

de
 P

ro
je

ct
: o

ne
 fo

r p
ur

ch
as

in
g 

m
ic

ro
w

av
e 

eq
ui

pm
en

t a
nd

 s
of

tw
ar

e 
fro

m
 N

ok
ia

 o
f A

m
er

ic
a 

C
or

po
ra

tio
n 

(N
ok

ia
) t

hr
ou

gh
 a

 N
AS

PO
 

ag
re

em
en

t (
N

at
io

na
l A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 
of

 S
ta

te
 P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t O

ffi
ci

al
s)

, a
nd

 th
e 

se
co

nd
 w

ith
 D

ay
 

W
ire

le
ss

 S
ys

te
m

s 
fo

r i
ns

ta
llin

g 
th

e 
m

ic
ro

w
av

e 
eq

ui
pm

en
t.

2

548



FY
20

22
/2

3 
M

id
-Y

ea
r B

ud
ge

t R
ev

ie
w

FY
 2

02
2/

23
 M

id
-Y

ea
r R

ev
en

ue
s 

Su
m

m
ar

y:
•

To
ta

l w
at

er
 s

al
es

 w
er

e 
$4

7.
8 

m
illi

on
•

Ap
pr

ox
. 5

2%
 a

t m
id

-y
ea

r
•

M
is

c.
 a

nd
 L

at
e 

Fe
es

/D
is

co
nn

ec
ts

 w
er

e 
$2

85
,0

00
•

Ap
pr

ox
. 2

8%
 a

t m
id

-y
ea

r
•

Pr
op

er
ty

ta
x 

(1
%

) r
ec

ei
ve

d 
w

as
 $

13
,5

20
,1

07
•

Ap
pr

ox
. 4

5%
 a

t m
id

-y
ea

r
•

Fa
ci

lit
y/

R
et

ai
l C

ap
ac

ity
 F

ee
s 

re
ce

iv
ed

 w
er

e 
$5

26
,0

80
•

Ap
pr

ox
. 8

%
 a

t m
id

-y
ea

r
•

Pe
rc

h 
R

ei
m

bu
rs

em
en

ts
 O

&M
 &

 C
IP

 w
er

e 
$1

,7
03

,2
05

•
Ap

pr
ox

. 1
9%

 a
t m

id
-y

ea
r

•
D

el
ay

ed
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
sc

he
du

le
 o

f S
au

gu
s 

R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t W
el

ls
 3

 &
 4

3

549



FY
 2

02
2/

23
 M

id
-Y

ea
r R

ev
en

ue
s 

Su
m

m
ar

y 

4

$0$2
0

$4
0

$6
0

$8
0

$1
00

$1
20

$1
40

$1
60

$1
80

$2
00

 F
Y 

20
22

/2
3 

Bu
dg

et
 5

0%
 o

f B
ud

ge
t

 T
hr

ou
gh

 1
2/

31
/2

2

Millions

To
ta

l R
ev

en
ue

s
(in

 m
ill

io
ns

) 

In
ve

st
m

en
t R

ev
en

ue
s 

(a
ll)

O
th

er
Fa

ci
lit

y 
C

ap
ac

ity
 F

ee
s

G
ra

nt
s 

an
d 

R
ei

m
bu

rs
em

en
ts

An
ne

xa
tio

n 
an

d 
PE

R
C

H
 R

ei
m

bu
re

m
en

ts
1%

 P
ro

pe
rty

 T
ax

SW
C

 P
ro

pe
rty

 T
ax

W
at

er
 S

al
es

 (a
ll)

550



FY
20

22
/2

3 
M

id
-Y

ea
r B

ud
ge

t R
ev

ie
w

R
ev

en
ue

s 
by

 T
yp

e 

5

$0$2
0

$4
0

$6
0

$8
0

$1
00

 F
Y 

20
22

/2
3 

Bu
dg

et
 5

0%
 o

f B
ud

ge
t

 T
hr

ou
gh

 1
2/

31
/2

2

Millions

W
at

er
 S

al
es

 R
ev

en
ue

(in
 m

ill
io

ns
) 

$0$5$1
0

$1
5

$2
0

$2
5

$3
0

$3
5

FY
 2

02
2/

23
 B

ud
ge

t
50

%
 o

f B
ud

ge
t

R
ev

en
ue

 th
ro

ug
h 

12
/3

1/
22

Millions

O
ne

 P
er

ce
nt

 P
ro

pe
rt

y 
Ta

x 
R

ev
en

ue
(in

 m
ill

io
ns

)

$0$1$2$3$4$5$6$7

FY
 2

02
2/

23
 B

ud
ge

t
50

%
 o

f B
ud

ge
t

R
ev

en
ue

 th
ro

ug
h 

12
/3

1/
22

Millions

Fa
ci

lit
y 

C
ap

ac
ity

 F
ee

 R
ev

en
ue

(in
 m

ill
io

ns
)

 $
-

 $
5

 $
10

 $
15

 $
20

 $
25

 $
30

 $
35

 $
40

FY
 2

02
2/

23
 B

ud
ge

t
50

%
 o

f B
ud

ge
t

R
ev

en
ue

 th
ro

ug
h 

12
/3

1/
22

Millions

St
at

e 
W

at
er

 C
on

tr
ac

t R
ev

en
ue

(in
 m

ill
io

ns
) 

551



FY
 2

02
2/

23
 M

id
-Y

ea
r R

ev
en

ue
s 

Su
m

m
ar

y 

6

O
pe

ra
tin

g 
R

ev
en

ue
s

FY
 2

02
2/

23
 B

ud
ge

t
Th

ro
ug

h 
12

/3
1/

22
%

 o
f B

ud
ge

t
W

at
er

 S
al

es
 -

R
es

id
en

tia
l

$ 
  5

1,
44

9,
64

0 
$ 

  2
7,

74
5,

34
2 

54
%

W
at

er
 S

al
es

 -
C

om
m

er
ci

al
4,

92
6,

88
9 

3,
24

3,
33

7 
66

%
W

at
er

 S
al

es
 -

In
du

st
ria

l
1,

61
5,

37
3 

82
8,

95
1 

51
%

W
at

er
 S

al
es

 -
Irr

ig
at

io
n

19
,3

03
,7

11
 

8,
55

3,
68

9 
44

%
W

at
er

 S
al

es
 -

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n
-

87
0,

32
0 

0%
W

at
er

 S
al

es
 -

Pu
bl

ic
 A

ut
ho

rit
y 

& 
O

th
er

3,
47

3,
05

3 
1,

15
9,

54
4 

33
%

W
at

er
 S

al
es

 -
Fi

re
66

9,
51

5 
31

6,
39

0 
47

%
Le

ga
cy

 D
eb

t R
ev

en
ue

 -
VW

D
3,

60
3,

80
9 

1,
76

6,
32

6 
49

%
Le

ga
cy

 D
eb

t R
ev

en
ue

 -
SC

W
D

5,
87

3,
24

9 
2,

71
7,

07
0 

46
%

W
at

er
 S

al
es

 -
W

W
R

29
7,

77
4 

14
6,

17
2 

49
%

W
at

er
 S

al
es

 -
R

ec
yc

le
d

46
8,

61
2 

21
6,

20
4 

46
%

M
is

c 
Fe

es
 a

nd
 C

ha
rg

es
1,

02
0,

00
0 

28
5,

08
0 

28
%

La
b 

R
ev

en
ue

s
23

,0
00

 
10

,6
60

 
46

%
C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
& 

R
en

ta
l 

75
2,

17
4 

37
3,

88
4 

50
%

Pr
op

er
ty

 T
ax

 1
%

30
,2

44
,5

43
 

13
,5

20
,1

07
 

45
%

An
ne

xa
tio

n 
R

ei
m

bu
rs

em
en

ts
2,

09
9,

65
0 

2,
14

0,
28

7 
10

2%
In

te
re

st
 In

co
m

e
65

0,
00

0 
1,

00
6,

84
4 

15
5%

PE
R

C
H

 R
ei

m
bu

rs
em

en
ts

 -
O

&M
 &

 C
IP

8,
90

0,
00

0 
1,

70
3,

20
5 

19
%

G
ra

nt
s 

& 
R

ei
m

bu
rs

em
en

ts
 

6,
79

1,
10

5 
22

0,
85

9 
3%

Fa
ci

lit
y 

C
ap

ac
ity

/C
on

n 
Fe

es
6,

30
0,

00
0 

52
6,

08
0 

8%
To

ta
l O

pe
ra

tin
g 

R
ev

en
ue

s 
$ 

14
8,

46
2,

09
8 

$ 
  6

7,
35

0,
35

0 
45

%

552



FY
 2

02
2/

23
 M

id
-Y

ea
r S

W
C

 R
ev

en
ue

s 
Su

m
m

ar
y 

7

St
at

e 
W

at
er

 C
on

tr
ac

t
FY

 2
02

2/
23

 B
ud

ge
t

Th
ro

ug
h 

12
/3

1/
22

%
 o

f B
ud

ge
t

Ag
en

cy
-S

et
 P

ro
pe

rty
 T

ax
 R

ev
en

ue
s

$ 
  3

6,
83

3,
26

2 
$ 

  1
5,

94
8,

64
6 

43
%

In
ve

st
m

en
t R

ev
en

ue
43

0,
00

0 
50

2,
06

5 
11

7%

To
ta

l S
ta

te
 W

at
er

 C
on

tr
ac

t R
ev

en
ue

s
$ 

  3
7,

26
3,

26
2 

$ 
  1

6,
45

0,
71

1 
44

%

553



FY
20

22
/2

3 
M

id
-Y

ea
r B

ud
ge

t R
ev

ie
w

FY
 2

02
2/

23
 M

id
-Y

ea
r E

xp
en

se
s 

Su
m

m
ar

y:
•

M
an

ag
em

en
t e

xp
en

se
s 

–
29

%
 a

t m
id

-y
ea

r
•

Pe
rc

hl
or

at
e 

Li
tig

at
io

n 
an

d 
Le

ga
l e

xp
en

se
s 

lo
w

er
 th

an
 a

nt
ic

ip
at

ed
•

W
at

er
re

so
ur

ce
s 

ex
pe

ns
es

–
34

%
 a

tm
id

-y
ea

r
•

Lo
w

er
 c

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

en
ga

ge
m

en
t

•
En

gi
ne

er
in

g 
ex

pe
ns

es
 –

35
%

 a
tm

id
-y

ea
r

•
Pr

of
es

si
on

al
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

bi
llin

g 
de

la
ys

, i
.e

., 
M

as
te

r P
la

n
•

C
ap

ita
l P

ro
je

ct
 e

xp
en

di
tu

re
s 

(P
ay

-g
o)

-1
8%

 a
t m

id
-y

ea
r

•
D

el
ay

s 
in

 ti
m

in
g 

(p
er

m
its

, c
on

tra
ct

s 
an

d 
ac

qu
is

iti
on

 o
f m

at
er

ia
ls

)
•

W
at

er
 Q

ua
lit

y,
 T

re
at

m
en

t &
 M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 –

m
id

-y
ea

r i
s

ov
er

 b
ud

ge
t b

y 
8%

•
Ti

m
in

g 
of

 S
C

E 
in

vo
ic

es
 a

nd
 th

e 
re

du
ct

io
n 

in
 s

ol
ar

 c
re

di
ts

•
Al

l o
th

er
 d

ep
ar

tm
en

t e
xp

en
se

s 
ar

e 
w

ith
in

 b
ud

ge
t

8

554



FY
 2

02
2/

23
 M

id
-Y

ea
r E

xp
en

se
s 

Su
m

m
ar

y 

9

$0$2
0

$4
0

$6
0

$8
0

$1
00

$1
20

$1
40

$1
60

$1
80

$2
00

 F
Y 

20
22

/2
3 

Bu
dg

et
 5

0%
 o

f B
ud

ge
t

 T
hr

ou
gh

 1
2/

31
/2

2

Millions

To
ta

l E
xp

en
se

s
(in

 m
ill

io
ns

)

St
at

e 
W

at
er

 C
on

tra
ct

 E
xp

en
se

s

C
ap

ita
l (

Pa
y-

G
o)

D
eb

t S
er

vi
ce

O
pe

ra
tin

g 
Ex

pe
ns

es

555



FY
 2

02
2/

23
 M

id
-Y

ea
r E

xp
en

se
s

Su
m

m
ar

y 

10

FY
 2

02
2/

23
 B

ud
ge

t
Th

ro
ug

h 
12

/3
1/

22
%

 o
f 

B
ud

ge
t

O
pe

ra
tin

g 
Ex

pe
ns

es
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t

$ 
   

 5
,7

22
,5

41
 

$ 
   

 1
,6

37
,4

43
 

29
%

Fi
na

nc
e,

 A
dm

in
is

tra
tio

n 
& 

IT
20

,7
25

,3
18

 
9,

14
3,

47
7 

44
%

C
us

to
m

er
 C

ar
e

2,
81

0,
68

5 
1,

38
7,

89
7 

49
%

Tr
an

sm
is

si
on

 &
 D

is
tri

bu
tio

n
10

,5
99

,8
65

 
4,

94
6,

70
6 

47
%

Pu
m

pi
ng

 W
el

ls
 &

 S
to

ra
ge

14
,9

59
,1

38
 

7,
41

3,
94

7 
50

%

W
at

er
 R

es
ou

rc
es

9,
58

4,
39

2 
3,

30
1,

49
8 

34
%

So
ur

ce
 o

f S
up

pl
y

12
,5

35
,0

00
 

5,
49

5,
26

5 
44

%

W
at

er
 Q

ua
lit

y,
 T

re
at

m
en

t &
 M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
11

,7
81

,7
61

 
6,

79
7,

78
5 

58
%

En
gi

ne
er

in
g 

Se
rv

ic
es

5,
34

2,
36

1 
1,

89
2,

33
7 

35
%

D
eb

t S
er

vi
ce

33
,2

14
,0

71
 

23
,5

84
,8

59
 

71
%

C
ap

ita
l (

Pa
y-

go
)

75
,8

05
,8

30
 

9,
30

8,
84

6 
12

%

Tr
an

sf
er

 fr
om

 R
es

er
ve

s 
(c

ar
ry

ov
er

 fr
om

 p
re

vi
ou

s 
ye

ar
)

(5
4,

61
8,

86
4)

-
0%

To
ta

l O
pe

ra
tin

g 
Ex

pe
ns

es
$ 

14
8,

46
2,

09
8 

$ 
  4

7,
07

9,
09

2 
32

%

556



FY
 2

02
2/

23
 M

id
-Y

ea
r S

W
C

 E
xp

en
se

s
Su

m
m

ar
y 

11

FY
 2

02
2/

23
 B

ud
ge

t
Th

ro
ug

h 
12

/3
1/

22
%

 o
f B

ud
ge

t
St

at
e 

W
at

er
 C

on
tr

ac
t E

xp
en

se
s

D
W

R
 V

ar
ia

bl
e 

C
ha

rg
e

$ 
  1

1,
00

0,
00

0 
$ 

   
 2

,8
74

,8
36

 
26

%

St
at

e 
W

at
er

 C
on

tra
ct

 P
ay

m
en

ts
24

,7
68

,0
00

 
12

,2
92

,2
58

 
50

%

Le
ga

l C
on

su
lti

ng
15

,0
00

 
-

0%

St
at

e 
W

at
er

 C
on

tra
ct

or
s/

SW
PC

A 
D

ue
s

25
0,

00
0 

21
9,

64
1 

88
%

SW
C

 A
ud

it 
Fi

na
nc

e 
C

om
m

it.
 

33
,0

00
 

32
,4

06
 

98
%

R
ef

un
d 

of
 E

xc
es

s 
SW

C
 F

ix
ed

 C
hg

s
(2

,0
00

,0
00

)
-

0%

D
el

ta
 C

on
ve

ya
nc

e
2,

41
3,

33
9 

8,
66

7 
0%

M
is

ce
lla

ne
ou

s 
& 

Ad
m

in
 e

xp
en

se
s

16
9,

00
0 

5,
17

7 
3%

C
on

tin
ge

nc
ie

s
2,

00
0,

00
0 

-
0%

To
ta

l S
ta

te
 W

at
er

 C
on

tr
ac

t E
xp

en
se

s
$ 

  3
8,

64
8,

33
9 

$ 
  1

5,
43

2,
98

5 
40

%

557



R
ev

en
ue

s 
(2

nd
Q

ua
rt

er
)

12

$0$1
0

$2
0

$3
0

$4
0

$5
0

$6
0

$7
0

$8
0

A
ct

ua
l

B
ud

ge
t

A
ct

ua
l

B
ud

ge
t

A
ct

ua
l

B
ud

ge
t

A
ct

ua
l

B
ud

ge
t

O
ct

ob
er

N
ov

em
be

r
D

ec
em

be
r

Ye
ar

-T
o-

D
at

e

Millions
To

ta
l R

ev
en

ue
s

FY
 2

02
2/

23

W
at

er
 S

al
es

 R
ev

en
ue

s
N

on
-O

pe
ra

tin
g 

R
ev

en
ue

s

558



W
at

er
Sa

le
s 

(A
F)

13

0

5,
00

0

10
,0

00

15
,0

00

20
,0

00

25
,0

00

30
,0

00

35
,0

00

40
,0

00

A
ct

ua
l

B
ud

ge
t

A
ct

ua
l

B
ud

ge
t

A
ct

ua
l

B
ud

ge
t

A
ct

ua
l

B
ud

ge
t

O
ct

ob
er

N
ov

em
be

r
D

ec
em

be
r

Ye
ar

-T
o-

D
at

e

In Acre Feet

W
at

er
 S

al
es

 (A
F)

 
FY

 2
02

2/
23

559



W
at

er
Sa

le
s 

R
ev

en
ue

14

560



1%
 P

ro
pe

rt
y 

Ta
x 

R
ev

en
ue

s

15

$0
.0

$3
.0

$6
.0

$9
.0

$1
2.

0

$1
5.

0

A
ct

ua
l

B
ud

ge
t

A
ct

ua
l

B
ud

ge
t

A
ct

ua
l

B
ud

ge
t

A
ct

ua
l

B
ud

ge
t

O
ct

ob
er

N
ov

em
be

r
D

ec
em

be
r

Ye
ar

-T
o-

D
at

e

Millions

1%
 P

ro
pe

rt
y 

Ta
xe

s 
R

ev
en

ue
s

FY
 2

02
2/

23

1%
 P

ro
pe

rt
y 

Ta
xe

s

561



Fa
ci

lit
y/

R
et

ai
l C

ap
ac

ity
 F

ee
s

16

-$
0.

5

$0
.0

$0
.5

$1
.0

$1
.5

$2
.0

$2
.5

$3
.0

$3
.5

A
ct

ua
l

B
ud

ge
t

A
ct

ua
l

B
ud

ge
t

A
ct

ua
l

B
ud

ge
t

A
ct

ua
l

B
ud

ge
t

O
ct

ob
er

N
ov

em
be

r
D

ec
em

be
r

Ye
ar

-T
o-

D
at

e

Millions

Fa
ci

lit
y 

C
ap

ac
ity

 F
ee

 R
ev

en
ue

s
FY

 2
02

2/
23

 

562



Fe
es

 R
ec

ei
ve

d

17

To
ta

l 
#C

on
ne

ct
io

ns
 

To
ta

l 
#C

on
ne

ct
io

ns
 

Le
nn

ar
 H

om
es

 
46

,8
69

$  
    

    
    

   
5

46
,8

69
$  

    
    

    
5

KB
 H

om
es

 
-

$  
    

    
    

    
    

 
0

-
$  

    
    

    
    

   
0

Tr
i P

oi
nt

e 
Ho

m
es

 
-

$  
    

    
    

    
    

 
0

63
,3

04
$  

    
    

    
2

Ne
w

ha
ll 

La
nd

 an
d 

Fa
rm

in
g 

-
$  

    
    

    
    

    
 

0
-

$  
    

    
    

    
   

0
To

ll 
Br

ot
he

rs
, I

nc
 

-
$  

    
    

    
    

    
 

0
31

,5
60

$  
    

    
    

6
Ri

ch
m

on
d 

Am
er

ica
n 

Ho
m

es
 

45
,5

90
$  

    
    

    
   

2
45

,5
90

$  
    

    
    

2
W

ill
ia

m
s H

om
es

 
-

$  
    

    
    

    
    

 
0

41
,9

01
$  

    
    

    
3

Ot
he

r 
23

3,
08

1
$  

    
    

    
20

25
3,

05
3

$  
    

    
  

21
To

ta
l

32
5,

54
0

$  
    

    
    

27
48

2,
27

7
$  

    
    

  
39

2n
d 

Qu
ar

te
r

Ye
ar

 to
 D

at
e 

De
ve

lo
pe

rs
 

563



O
th

er
 R

ev
en

ue
s 

18

$0$2$4$6$8$1
0

$1
2

$1
4

$1
6

$1
8

$2
0

Ac
tu

al
Bu

dg
et

Ac
tu

al
Bu

dg
et

Ac
tu

al
Bu

dg
et

Ac
tu

al
Bu

dg
et

O
ct

ob
er

N
ov

em
be

r
D

ec
em

be
r

Ye
ar

-T
o-

D
at

e

Millions
O

th
er

 R
ev

en
ue

s 
FY

 2
02

2/
23

1%
 P

ro
pe

rt
y 

Ta
xe

s
Fa

ci
lit

y 
C

ap
ac

ity
 F

ee
s

M
is

c.
 R

ev
en

ue
s

564



In
ve

st
m

en
t M

at
ur

iti
es

 b
y 

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 

19

$0$2
0

$4
0

$6
0

$8
0

$1
00

$1
20

$1
40

$1
60

$1
80

FY
 2

3
FY

 2
4

FY
 2

5
FY

 2
6

Millions

M
at

ur
iti

es
 b

y 
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

r 
as

 o
f D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
20

22

565



C
ap

ita
l I

m
pr

ov
em

en
t P

ro
gr

am
  

20

$9
,3

08
,8

46
 $7

5,
80

5,
83

0 

 $
-

 $
20

,0
00

,0
00

 $
40

,0
00

,0
00

 $
60

,0
00

,0
00

 $
80

,0
00

,0
00

A
ct

ua
l

B
ud

ge
t

C
IP

 P
ay

-G
o 

$8
,3

72
,9

57
 $4

1,
98

1,
00

0 

$0
$1

0,
00

0,
00

0
$2

0,
00

0,
00

0
$3

0,
00

0,
00

0
$4

0,
00

0,
00

0
$5

0,
00

0,
00

0

A
ct

ua
l

B
ud

ge
t

C
IP

 D
eb

t F
un

de
d

566



O
pe

ra
tin

g 
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

s

21

$0
.0

$5
.0

$1
0.

0
$1

5.
0

$2
0.

0
$2

5.
0

$3
0.

0
$3

5.
0

$4
0.

0
$4

5.
0

$5
0.

0

A
ct

ua
l

B
ud

ge
t

A
ct

ua
l

B
ud

ge
t

A
ct

ua
l

B
ud

ge
t

A
ct

ua
l

B
ud

ge
t

O
ct

ob
er

N
ov

em
be

r
D

ec
em

be
r

Ye
ar

-T
o-

D
at

e

Millions

O
pe

ra
tin

g 
Ex

pe
ns

es
 

FY
 2

02
2/

22
3

Fi
na

nc
e,

 A
dm

in
 &

 IT
Tr

an
s 

& 
D

is
tri

bu
tio

n
W

at
er

 Q
ua

lit
y,

Tr
ea

tm
en

t &
 M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
M

an
ag

em
en

t
Pu

m
pi

ng
 W

el
ls

 &
 S

to
ra

ge
W

at
er

 R
es

ou
rc

es
En

gi
ne

er
in

g 
Se

rv
ic

es
So

ur
ce

 o
f S

up
pl

y
C

us
to

m
er

 C
ar

e

567



D
eb

t S
er

vi
ce

22

 $
-

 $
20

 $
40

 $
60

 $
80

 $
10

0
 $

12
0

 $
14

0
 $

16
0

 $
18

0
 $

20
0

 $
22

0
 $

24
0

 $
26

0
 $

28
0

Millions

O
ut

st
an

di
ng

 P
rin

ci
pa

l a
nd

 A
nn

ua
l D

eb
t S

er
vi

ce
as

 o
f D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

02
2 

O
ut

st
an

di
ng

 P
rin

ci
pa

l
A

nn
ua

l D
eb

t S
er

vi
ce

568



C
as

h 
Po

si
tio

n

23

$1
6.

0 $3
1.

4 
$4

2.
4 

$1
8.

2 $6
.0

 

R
es

er
ve

s 
Fu

nd
in

g 
(in

 M
ill

io
ns

)  
FY

20
22

/2
3

C
ap

ita
l R

es
er

ve
s

Em
er

ge
nc

y/
D

is
as

te
r R

es
er

ve
s

O
pe

ra
tin

g 
R

es
er

ve
s

R
ev

en
ue

 R
at

e 
St

ab
ili

za
tio

n 
R

es
er

ve
s

W
at

er
 S

up
pl

y 
R

el
ia

bi
lit

y 
R

es
er

ve
s

$1
12

 

$1
14

 

$5
2 

 $
-

 $
50

 $
10

0

 $
15

0

 $
20

0

 $
25

0

 $
30

0

R
es

tr
ic

te
d 

an
d 

U
nr

es
tr

ic
te

d 
C

as
h 

(in
 M

ill
io

ns
) a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
02

2 

U
nr

es
tr

ic
te

d
C

as
h

R
es

er
ve

s

R
es

tr
ic

te
d

C
as

h

569



O
th

er
 It

em
s

24


St

at
em

en
to

fR
ev

en
ue

s
an

d
Ex

pe
ns

es
fo

rt
he

m
on

th
of

D
ec

em
be

r,
an

d
YT

D


In

ve
st

m
en

tR
ep

or
t


3

-M
on

th
C

as
hf

lo
w


D

eb
t&

C
as

h
Po

si
tio

n


Fa

ci
lit

y
C

ap
ac

ity
Fe

e
R

ev
en

ue
s


Te

n
La

rg
es

tD
is

bu
rs

em
en

ts
–

C
he

ck
R

eg
is

te
r


C

re
di

tC
ar

d
R

eg
is

te
r


D

ire
ct

or
St

ip
en

ds


D

ire
ct

or
R

ei
m

bu
rs

em
en

ts

570



R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
n

25

Th
at

 th
e 

Bo
ar

d 
of

 D
ire

ct
or

s 
re

ce
iv

e 
an

d 
fil

e 
th

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 2

02
2 

M
on

th
ly

 a
nd

 F
Y 

20
22

/2
3 

M
id

-
Ye

ar
 B

ud
ge

t R
ev

ie
w

 (S
ec

on
d 

Q
ua

rte
r F

in
an

ci
al

 
R

ep
or

t).

571



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

572



BOARD MEMORANDUM 

OVERVIEW 

At the Agency Board meeting on January 17, 2023, General Counsel Tom Bunn gave an 
overview of AB 2449, which went into effect on January 1, 2023 and is in effect until January 1, 
2026 unless extended by statute. AB 2449 amends certain portions of Govt. Code Section 
54953 of the Brown Act relating to teleconference participation by directors during public 
meetings.  

As discussed at the Board meeting, AB 2449 authorizes a local agency to use teleconferencing 
for Board members (1) without having to post agendas at remote locations and (2) without 
having to make remote locations open to the public, if certain conditions are met. The criteria 
that must be met are as follows:   

• At least a quorum of the members of the Board must participate from a single physical
location (posted on the agenda) within the Agency boundary that is open to the public.

• The agency must provide two-way remote access.
• The agency must allow for remote and in person public comment and the agenda must

provide information on how to do so.
• If the remote technology does not work, the Board may not take action.
• The Board member must participate by both audio and video.

Board members may only participate remotely under two specific circumstances: (1) just cause 
or (2) emergency circumstances.  As a reminder, “just cause” is defined as any one of the 
following circumstances:  

• childcare or caregiving of a child, parent, grandparent, grandchild, sibling, spouse, or
domestic partner that requires them to participate remotely;

• a contagious illness that prevents a member from attending in person;
• a need related to a physical or mental disability; or
• travel while on business of the legislative body.
• no Board approval is required, but the member must notify the Board at the earliest

opportunity possible, including at the start of a regular meeting, of their need to
participate remotely;

• this provision may be used by a member up to 2 times per calendar year.

“Emergency circumstances” is defined as a physical or family medical emergency that prevents 
a member from attending in person. Directors must request Board approval to participate 
remotely pursuant to this justification and it must be approved at a Board meeting by the Board.  
Directors also must provide a general description of the circumstances relating to the director’s 

DATE: February 28, 2023 

TO: Board of Directors 

FROM: Thomas Bunn and Joseph Byrne 
General Counsel 

SUBJECT: Discussion of AB 2449 – Brown Act and Possible Amendment to the SCV Water 
Board Policies and Procedures Manual 

573

ajacobs
Item 6.3



need to appear remotely at the given meeting (no medical information must be disclosed).  
There is no specific limit on the number of times the “emergency circumstances” may be used, 
but overall combined, the two provisions (“just cause” and “emergency circumstances”) may not 
be used by a Director for more than three consecutive months or 20 percent of the regular 
meetings for the local agency within a calendar year. For the Agency, this would be a maximum 
of 4 times per year.   
 
DISCUSSION 
 
At the January 17, 2023 Agency Board meeting, Counsel was asked whether (1) the Agency is 
required to allow a director to attend a meeting by teleconference, if “just cause” or “emergency 
circumstances” exist; and (2) any changes are required to the Board policies and procedures 
manual.  
 
As to the first question, technically the answer is no.  As Legal Counsel pointed out at the Board 
meeting, AB 2449 says the legislative body may use teleconferencing without the agenda-
posting and open-to-the-public requirements if just cause or emergency circumstances are 
present.  This is also true of all teleconferencing for Board meetings under historical Brown Act 
provisions.  The Board has the option of whether to allow teleconferencing or not.  However, 
because the Agency allows Directors to participate remotely per our existing policy, and the 
policy is seemingly intended for circumstances that AB 2449 contemplates, we think it would be 
inconsistent, and possibly problematic from an accommodation standpoint, to allow 
teleconferencing under the policy but not allow it under AB 2449.   
 
Regarding the second question about whether our policies and procedures must be amended, 
the answer is also technically no.  The policies and procedures manual reads as follows:  
 

Directors may participate in Board meetings by teleconference with Board approval, at 
the request of the Board president, or by approval of the Board President if 
circumstances are such that obtaining Board approval is not practicable. Unless 
requested by the Board President, Directors wishing to participate in a Board meeting 
using teleconference shall submit a written request to the Board President that indicates 
why it is important for them to attend by teleconference. The Board President shall place 
the item on the next Board agenda for consideration. It is the Board’s preference that 
Directors participate in Board meetings in person. Any teleconferenced meeting shall 
comply with all of the requirements of the Brown Act. 

 
The clause allowing “approval of the Board President if circumstances are such that obtaining 
Board approval is not practicable” is inconsistent with AB 2449’s mandate that teleconferences 
in emergency circumstances require approval of the Board. However, the last sentence of the 
policy provides that any teleconferenced meeting shall comply with all of the requirements of the 
Brown Act. This would include Board approval in emergency circumstances. Thus, no changes 
to the policy are required. 

However, again, because the Agency allows Directors to participate remotely per our existing 
policy, we believe it might be confusing to leave the policy as is and it would be better to clarify.  
As a result, we recommend amending the policies to add the following sentence after the 
paragraph above: 
 

“Directors may participate in a Board meeting remotely for just cause or due to 
emergency circumstances pursuant to the provisions of Government Code section 
54953(f).”  

574



This addition would make it explicit that remote participation under AB 2449 is allowed, that the 
process is as provided for in the statute, and that this policy is separate from the existing policy 
as it relates to teleconferencing under the historical provisions of the Brown Act.  

RECOMMENDATION 

That the Board of Directors approve an amendment to the Board Policies and Procedures to 
add the following sentence to the end of Section III(A)(1):  “Directors may participate in a Board 
meeting remotely for just cause or due to emergency circumstances pursuant to the provisions 
of Government Code section 54953(f).”  

Attachment

575



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

576



14 
SCVWA Board Procedures Manual, March 7, 2023October 18, 2022  III. BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS  
 
 

III.  BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS 

A. Board Meetings 

1. Quorum and Voting 

Seven (7) or more Directors constitute a quorum of the Board.  No Board meeting may be 
called to order nor may any action be taken without the presence of a quorum.  As the number of 
Directors reduces consistent with Sections 9 and 10 of the Act, a majority of the number of 
authorized Director positions shall constitute a quorum of the Board. 

The Board shall act, at properly noticed Board meetings, only by ordinance, resolution, or 
motion.  Adoption of any ordinance, resolution, or motion requires an affirmative vote by a 
majority of the Board unless the action being taken specifically requires otherwise.  Directors 
should vote (yes, no, or abstain) on all proposed Board actions unless a Director declares the 
matter to be a conflict of interest prior to discussion of the subject, in which case the affected 
Director should recuse him or herself from discussing and/or voting on the matter and leave the 
room until after the discussion, vote and disposition of the matter is concluded (Political Reform 
Act, Government Code §§87100-87105). 

Voting on ordinances shall be by roll call vote, with the yes’s and no’s recorded in the 
minutes.  When conducting a roll call vote, the Secretary shall call for the vote of each Director 
and for the vote of the President last.   

Voting on resolutions and motions may be by voice or electronic system vote, ruled upon 
as either passing or failing by the President.  The President or the Board Secretary shall 
announce if an action was unanimous and if it was not, which Directors voted against the action.  
On demand of any Director, a roll call vote shall be called to confirm the ruling of the President 
as to the outcome of a voice or electronic system vote. 

Directors may participate in Board meetings by teleconference with Board approval, 
at the request of the Board president, or by approval of the Board President if 
circumstances are such that obtaining Board approval is not practicable.  Unless requested 
by the Board President, Directors wishing to participate in a Board meeting using 
teleconference shall submit a written request to the Board President that indicates why it is 
important for them to attend by teleconference.  The Board President shall place the item 
on the next Board agenda for consideration.  It is the Board’s preference that Directors 
participate in Board meetings in person.  Any teleconferenced meeting shall comply with 
all of the requirements of the Brown Act. Directors may participate in a Board meeting 
remotely for just cause or due to emergency circumstances pursuant to the provisions of 
Government Code section 54953(f). 

2. Regular Board Meetings 

(a) Meeting Schedule 
 

577



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

578



 
SCVWA Board Procedures Manual, March 7, 2023October 18, 2022  
 
 
 
 
 

 

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 

FOR THE 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

OF THE 

SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY 
(SCV WATER) 

March 7, 2023 October 18, 2022 

Adopted:  January 2, 2018 
 
Updated:  July 17, 2018 
 
Updated:  April 2, 2019 
 
Updated:  August 20, 2019 
 
Updated: March 1, 2022 
 
Updated: October 18, 2022 
 
Updated: March 7, 2023 
 

 

 

579

ajacobs
Item 6.4



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

580



 

24 
SCVWA Board Procedures Manual, October 18, 2022 IV. ORGANIZATIONAL POLICIES 
 
 

F.  Ethics and Fair Employment Training for Directors 

 Every Agency Director shall receive two (2) hours of training in general ethics 
principles, ethics and fair employment (sexual harassment) laws relevant to his or her position in 
public service every two years.  Incoming Directors shall receive such training as soon as is 
practicable; usually within his or her first year, and then every two (2) years thereafter 
(Government Code §52335(b); 12,900 et seq). 
 

An Agency Director who serves on more than one agency board satisfies such 
requirements if he or she receives the training once every two (2) years (Government Code 
§53235.1(c); 12,900 et seq). 
 

All Directors who participate in such training shall be given a proof of participation form 
by the provider and shall submit a copy to the Board Secretary.  This form shall state the 
following: 
 

 The date of the training; and 
 The person or company who provided the training 

(Government Code §52335.2(a)(1) & (2); 12,900 et seq) 

The Agency shall record participants’ participation in its records, which must be retained 
for five (5) years.  These records are public records subject to disclosure under the California 
Public Records Act (Government Code §6250 et seq; AB 1234, Government Code §§53232 – 
53232.3; 12,900 et seq.). 

G. Directors’ Compensation and Expense Reimbursement 

1. Board Meetings and Committee Meetings 

Each Director may claim and receive up to the Board authorized Per Diem payment (Per 
Diem) for attendance at each regular, adjourned regular, special or adjourned special meeting of 
the Board.  A Director may also claim and receive Per Diem for attendance at meetings of those 
standing or special Committees to which the Director has been appointed, including meetings 
with staff in connection with such committee meetings if required and at the request of the 
committee chair.  At the next regular Board meeting, Directors shall provide a report, orally or in 
writing, of attendance at such meetings or events in which Per Diem and/or expenses are 
provided. 

2. Conferences, Meetings and Events 

Subject to specific approval of the Board and pursuant to this Section G, Directors may 
claim and receive Per Diem for each day’s attendance at conferences, meetings, events, or other 
authorized activities relevant to the business of the Agency. Authorized conferences, meetings, 
events, and activities constitute the performance of official duties for which compensation and 
reimbursement may be provided and may include, but are not limited to, educational conferences 
and similar gatherings, meetings of other public agencies or organizations that involve 
discussions of specific interest to the Agency, attendance at Agency-related ceremonial 

581



 

25 
SCVWA Board Procedures Manual, October 18, 2022 IV. ORGANIZATIONAL POLICIES 
 
 

functions, or formal appearances before or meetings with administrative, regulatory agencies, 
legislators, and their staff.   Directors are encouraged to educate themselves about current issues, 
policies and best practices that are relevant to the business of the Agency.  The Board Secretary 
shall provide the Board with information regarding relevant conferences, meetings and events.     

Unless specifically approved by the Board or otherwise provided in this Section G, 
Director compensation and/or expense reimbursement for attendance at conferences, meetings, 
or events relevant to the business of the Agency shall be in accordance with the below categories 
and corresponding rules and restrictions.  Participation in meetings or events related to Agency 
business, including meetings with staff, at the request of the General Manager, Board President 
or the Board is not subject to the below rules and restrictions and Directors may claim and 
receive Per Diem and expense reimbursement.    

 
Category 1 – Multi-Day Events.  Directors may receive Per Diem payments and 

expenses for up to three (3) multi-day events per fiscal year.  A “multi-day event” is a 
conference, meeting or event that takes place over two or more days and requires at least one 
night’s lodging at Agency expense.  The following are preapproved multi-day events for which 
Board approval is not required to attend.  

 
 Association of California Water Agencies (ACWA) Conferences and Events  
 ACWA/JPIA Conferences and Events  
 California Special Districts Association Conferences and Events 
 California Water Policy Conference 
 KHTS Sacramento Event 
 National Water Resources Association Conferences and Events 
 Urban Water Institute Conferences 
 WaterReuse Conference 
 Water Education Foundation Events 
 
A multi-day event not appearing on the above pre-approved list may be attended and Per 

Diem and expenses may be paid subject to advance approval of the Board.  When deciding 
whether to approve such a request, the Board shall take into account the cost of the multi-day 
event and the benefit to the Agency.  Attendance at any such multi-day event shall count towards 
the Category 1 limit of three (3) per fiscal year unless the Board makes a specific exemption.   

 
Directors who attend pre-approved multi-day events as part of his or her authorized role 

on the governing Board or a Committee of the host organization may attend and receive Per 
Diem payments and expenses for such multi-day events and such will not count towards the 
Category 1 limit of three (3) multi-day events per fiscal year, provided that attendance for a 
Committee shall not exceed the number of days required for such Committee meeting.  

 
Category 2 – Single-Day Events.  Directors may receive Per Diem payments and 

expenses for up to twelve (12) single-day events per fiscal year.  A “single-day event” is a 
conference, meeting, or event that occurs on one day, regardless of the duration of the event 

582



 

26 
SCVWA Board Procedures Manual, October 18, 2022 IV. ORGANIZATIONAL POLICIES 
 
 

during that day, and requires no more than one night’s lodging at Agency expense. The 
following are preapproved single-day events for which Board approval is not required. 

 
 ACWA Events 
 ACWA Region 8 Events 
 Alliance for Water Efficiency Events 
 Association of Ventura Water Agencies Meetings 
 BizFed Meetings 

 Building Industry Association Meetings 

 California Special Districts Association Conferences and Events 

 County Economic Outlook Meeting 
 Integrated Regional Water Management Meetings 
 Legal Seminars 
 Public Officials Night Event 
 Santa Clara River Watershed Meetings 
 SCV Chamber of Commerce Events and Meetings 

 Service Organization Events and Meetings, such as the Rotary Club of Santa Clarita 

 Southern California Water Coalition Events 
 Southern California Water Dialogue Events 
 State of the City Luncheon 
 State of the County Luncheon 
 Urban Water Institute Events 
 Valley Industry Association Events and Meetings 

 Valley Industry and Commerce Association Events and Meetings 

 Water Education Foundation Events 

A single-day event not appearing on the above pre-approved list may be attended and Per 
Diem and expenses may be paid subject to advance approval of the Board.  When deciding 
whether to approve such a request, the Board shall take into account the cost of the single-day 
event and the benefit to the Agency.  Attendance at any such single-day event shall count 
towards the Category 2 limit of twelve (12) per fiscal year unless the Board makes a specific 
exemption or no Per Diem is paid as described below.   

 
Directors who attend a pre-approved single-day event as part of his or her authorized role 

on the governing Board or a Committee of the host organization may attend and receive Per 
Diem payments and expenses for such single-day event and such will not count towards the 
Category 2 limit of twelve (12) single-day events per fiscal year, provided that attendance for a 
Committee shall not exceed the number of days required for such Committee meeting.  

 
In addition, Directors may attend approved single-day events within the Agency service 

area at the expense of the Agency without such event counting towards the Category 2 limit of 
twelve (12) single-day events per fiscal year if the Director does not request and does not receive 
Per Diem for attending such event.    

 

583



 

27 
SCVWA Board Procedures Manual, October 18, 2022 IV. ORGANIZATIONAL POLICIES 
 
 

3. Restrictions and Conditions 
 
 Per Diem payments may be claimed only for attendance at meetings of the Board or for 
each day’s service rendered as a member of the Board.  The Board shall determine in advance if 
a particular activity constitutes a meeting for the purpose of a Director claiming and receiving a 
Per Diem payment.  As reasonably necessary, days spent traveling to and from an authorized 
event shall be considered compensable days of service. 

 
No Director shall receive more than one Per Diem payment for any one day regardless of 

the number of meetings attended and/or events of service to the Board performed during that 
day.  

 
No Director shall receive more than ten (10) Per Diem payments in any one calendar 

month for any combination of meeting attendance or service rendered as a member of the Board. 
 
A Director-elect shall not be entitled to any Per Diem payments for traveling to or 

attending any meeting or conferences prior to assuming office. 
 
Directors who attend an out-of-state conference or meeting as part of his or her 

authorized role on the governing Board or a Committee of the host organization may attend and 
receive Per Diem payments and expenses for such out-of-state conference or meeting and such 
will not count towards the Category Section G (2) limits, provided that attendance for a 
Committee shall not exceed the number of days required for such Committee meeting.  Directors 
may not attend any other out-of-state conference, meeting or event without the prior approval of 
the Board or at the request of the Board President in connection with Agency business. 

 
If a Director becomes aware of a conference, meeting, or event that requires Board 

approval after the conclusion of the most recent Board meeting and the conference, meeting, or 
event is taking place prior to the next Board meeting, the Director may only attend with the 
approval of the Board President.  Unless subsequently determined by the Board, attendance at 
any such conference, meeting, or event shall count towards the corresponding category limits 
established above.  

 
Directors may not serve on a board or committee of another organization on behalf of the 

Agency without the prior approval of the Board.   
 
Directors who attend authorized events are attending as representatives of the Agency 

and not in their personal capacities and are expected to identify themselves as Directors of the 
Agency.  

 
4. Directors’ Compensation Rate 

Pursuant to Section 13(c) of the Act, Directors are authorized to receive compensation 
equal to the amount authorized for Castaic Lake Water Agency Directors as of December 31, 
2017, which is $228.15, for each day’s attendance at meetings of the Board, or for each day’s 

584



BOARD MEMORANDUM 
 
 

              
 
The Water Resources and Watershed Committee met at 5:30 PM on Wednesday, February 8, 
2023 at the Engineering Services Section (ESS) Boardroom located at 26521 Summit Circle, 
Santa Clarita, CA 91350. In attendance were Committee Chair Piotr Orzechowski, Directors 
William Cooper, Dirk Marks and Gary Martin. Staff members present were Assistant General 
Manager Steve Cole, Director of Water Resources Ali Elhassan, Senior Water Resources & 
Data Scientist Najwa Pitois, Executive Assistant Eunie Kang, Information Technology 
Technician I Jonathan Thomas. Attending virtually were Sustainability Manager Matt Dickens 
and Water Resources Planner Sarah Fleury, and members of the public were present. A copy of 
the agenda is attached. 
 
Item 2:  Public Comment – There was public comment. 
 
Item 3:  Water Resources Director’s Report 
 

3.1 Presentation of GoldSim Model – Najwa Pitois provided a comprehensive synopsis 
of the GoldSim Model development. Staff and Committee studied the methodology 
conceptual framework of reliability modeling and examples of analytical capabilities of 
the new GoldSim Model. Committee recommended creating further data assessment 
scenarios and review at a future committee meeting.  

 
Staff’s presentation is available at: https://www.yourscvwater.com/sites/default/files/SCVWA/committee-
meetings/2023/WRW/WRW-Committee-PPT-Item-3.1-GoldSim%20Model-020823.pdf. 
 

3.2 Status of Water Supplies – Sarah Fleury gave an overview of the status of water 
supply management. Staff and Committee discussed water storage levels at Lake 
Oroville and San Luis Reservoir and future State Water Project Contractors allocation.  

 
Staff’s presentation is available at: https://www.yourscvwater.com/sites/default/files/SCVWA/committee-
meetings/2023/WRW/WRW-Committee-PPT-Item-3.2-Status%20of%20Water-Supplies-020823.pdf. 
 

3.3  Staff Activities – Ali Elhassan provided a summary of staff activities. 
 

• Ongoing staff development on long and short-term water supply planning.   
• Ongoing collaboration with AVEK on drafting a MOU regarding banking 

Phase 2 Project.  

DATE: February 9, 2023 

TO: Board of Directors 

FROM: Steve Cole  
Assistant General Manager 

SUBJECT: February 8, 2023 Water Resources and Watershed Committee Meeting Recap 
Report 

585

https://www.yourscvwater.com/sites/default/files/SCVWA/committee-meetings/2023/WRW/WRW-Committee-PPT-Item-3.1-GoldSim%20Model-020823.pdf
https://www.yourscvwater.com/sites/default/files/SCVWA/committee-meetings/2023/WRW/WRW-Committee-PPT-Item-3.1-GoldSim%20Model-020823.pdf
https://www.yourscvwater.com/sites/default/files/SCVWA/committee-meetings/2023/WRW/WRW-Committee-PPT-Item-3.2-Status%20of%20Water-Supplies-020823.pdf
https://www.yourscvwater.com/sites/default/files/SCVWA/committee-meetings/2023/WRW/WRW-Committee-PPT-Item-3.2-Status%20of%20Water-Supplies-020823.pdf
ajacobs
Item 8.1



• Coordination with UCWD on drafting an Agreement for deliveries of State 
Water Project water supplies.  

• Internal staff management on State Water Contractors participation.  
 
Item 4:  Sustainability Manager’s Report 
 

4.1 Presentation of Conservation Long-Term Framework – AB 1668 and SB 606 – 
This agenda item was postponed until the next committee meeting. 

 
4.2  Presentation of Completed Water Conservation and Education Experience 

Design – Staff and Committee reviewed the project design, objectives, and cost 
estimates. The Committee recommended an evaluation of the value and benefits of 
the project and consider at a future committee meeting.   
 

Staff’s presentation is available at: 
https://www.yourscvwater.com/sites/default/files/SCVWA/committee-meetings/2023/WRW/WRW-
Committee-PPT-Item-4.2-%20Completed-Water-Conservation-and-Education-Experience-Design-
020823.pdf. 
 
Item 5:  Committee Planning Calendar – Staff and the Committee reviewed the Planning 
Calendar. 
 
Item 6:  Adjournment – The meeting adjourned at 8:02 PM. 
 
The meeting recording is available on the SCV Water Agency website or by clicking the following link:  
https://www.yourscvwater.com/sites/default/files/SCVWA/committee-
meetings/2023/WRW/WRW-Recording_020823.mp3. 
 
Attachment 
 

 
 

586

https://www.yourscvwater.com/sites/default/files/SCVWA/committee-meetings/2023/WRW/WRW-Committee-PPT-Item-4.2-%20Completed-Water-Conservation-and-Education-Experience-Design-020823.pdf
https://www.yourscvwater.com/sites/default/files/SCVWA/committee-meetings/2023/WRW/WRW-Committee-PPT-Item-4.2-%20Completed-Water-Conservation-and-Education-Experience-Design-020823.pdf
https://www.yourscvwater.com/sites/default/files/SCVWA/committee-meetings/2023/WRW/WRW-Committee-PPT-Item-4.2-%20Completed-Water-Conservation-and-Education-Experience-Design-020823.pdf
https://www.yourscvwater.com/sites/default/files/SCVWA/committee-meetings/2023/WRW/WRW-Recording_020823.mp3
https://www.yourscvwater.com/sites/default/files/SCVWA/committee-meetings/2023/WRW/WRW-Recording_020823.mp3
ajacobs
Matt Stone



 
 
 
 
 
Date: February 1, 2023 
 
To: Water Resources and Watershed Committee 
 Piotr Orzechowski, Chair  
 William Cooper 
 Dirk Marks  
 Gary Martin  
  
From: Steve Cole, Assistant General Manager  
 
The Water Resources and Watershed Committee meeting is scheduled on Wednesday, 
February 8, 2023 at 5:30 PM at 26521 Summit Circle, Santa Clarita, CA 91350 in the 
Engineering Services Section (ESS) Boardroom. Members of the public may attend in 
person or virtually. To attend this meeting virtually, please see below. 
 

IMPORTANT NOTICES  
 

This meeting will be conducted in person at the address listed above. As a convenience to the 
public, members of the public may also participate virtually by using the Agency’s Call-In 
Number 1-833-568-8864, Webinar ID: 160 210 7316 or Zoom Webinar by clicking on the 
link https://scvwa.zoomgov.com/j/1602107316. Any member of the public may listen to the 
meeting or make comments to the Committee using the call-in number or Zoom Webinar link 
above. However, in the event there is a disruption of service which prevents the Agency from 
broadcasting the meeting to members of the public using either the call-in option or internet-
based service, this meeting will not be postponed or rescheduled but will continue without 
remote participation. The remote participation option is being provided as a convenience to the 
public and is not required. Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting in person.   
 
Attendees should be aware that while the Agency is following all applicable requirements and 
guidelines regarding COVID-19, the Agency cannot ensure the health of anyone attending a 
Committee meeting. Attendees should therefore use their own judgment with respect to 
protecting themselves from exposure to COVID-19. 
 
Members of the public unable to attend this meeting may submit comments either in writing to 
ekang@scvwa.org or by mail to Eunie Kang, Executive Assistant, Santa Clarita Valley Water 
Agency, 26501 Summit Circle, Santa Clarita, CA 91350. All written comments received before 
4:00 PM the day of the meeting will be distributed to the Committee members and posted on the 
Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency website prior to the start of the meeting. Anything received 
after 4:00 PM the day of the meeting, will be made available at the meeting, if practicable, and 
will posted on the SCV Water website the following day. All correspondence with comments, 
including letters or emails, will be posted in their entirety. 
  

587



Feb 1, 2023 
Page 2 of 3 

MEETING AGENDA 

ITEM PAGE 
 

1.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE   

2.  PUBLIC COMMENTS – Members of the public may comment as to 
items within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Agency that are not 
on the Agenda at this time. Members of the public wishing to 
comment on items covered in this Agenda may do so at the time 
each item is considered. (Comments may, at the discretion of the 
Committee Chair, be limited to three minutes for each speaker.) 

 

3.     Water Resources Director’s Report   

 3.1 Presentation of GoldSim Model  

 3.2 Status of Water Supplies   

 3.3 Staff Activities  

4.     Sustainability Manager’s Report   

 4.1 Presentation of Conservation Long-Term Framework – AB 1668 
and SB 606 

 

 4.2 Presentation of Completed Water Conservation and Education 
Experience Design  

 

5.   *  Committee Planning Calendar  1 

6.  Adjournment   

*    Indicates Attachment 
        Indicates Handout 

 
NOTICES: 

 
Any person may make a request for a disability-related modification or accommodation needed 
for that person to be able to participate in the public meeting by telephoning Eunie Kang, 
Executive Assistant, at (661) 297-1600, or in writing to ekang@scvwa.org or by mail to  
Eunie Kang, Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency, 26501 Summit Circle, Santa Clarita, CA 91350. 
Requests must specify the nature of the disability and the type of accommodation requested.  
A telephone number or other contact information should be included so that Agency staff may 
discuss appropriate arrangements. Persons requesting a disability-related accommodation 
should make the request with adequate time before the meeting for the Agency to provide the 
requested accommodation. 
 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.5, non-exempt public records that relate to open 
session agenda items and are distributed to a majority of the Committee less than seventy-two 

588



Feb 1, 2023 
Page 3 of 3 

(72) hours prior to the meeting will be available for public inspection at the Santa Clarita Valley 
Water Agency, located at 27234 Bouquet Canyon Road, Santa Clarita, CA 91350, during 
regular business hours. When practical, these public records will also be made available on the 
Agency’s Internet Website, accessible at http://www.yourscvwater.com. 
 
 
Posted on February 1, 2023                           

589



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

590



BOARD MEMORANDUM 
 
 

              
 
The Public Outreach and Legislation Committee met at 5:30 PM on Thursday, February 16, 
2023, at the Engineering Services Section (ESS) Boardroom located at 26521 Summit Circle, 
Santa Clarita, CA 91350. In attendance were Committee Chair Maria Gutzeit, Directors Kathye 
Armitage and Beth Braunstein. Staff members present were Steve Cole Assistant General 
Manager, Communications Manager Kathie Martin and Public Affairs Specialist II Laura 
Gallegos. Attending virtually were Consultant Geoff Bowman from Van Scoyoc Associate, 
Consultant Dennis Albiani and Annalee Akin from California Advocates, Consultant Hunt Braly 
from Poole Shaffery, and members of the public were present. A copy of the Agenda is 
attached. 
 
Item 2:  Public Comment – There was public comment. 
 
Item 3:  Legislative Consultant Reports – Staff and the Committee reviewed the federal 
legislative report by Geoff Bowman, state legislative report by Dennis Albiani, and Annalee Akin 
and local legislative report by Hunt Braly.  
 
Item 4:  Discussion of Crisis Communication Plan – Staff presented the development and 
purpose of the Crisis Communication Plan. The Committee reviewed and provided comments.  
It is a living document that will require annual staff review to ensure the information remains 
current. It will serve as an appendix to the SCV Water Emergency Response Plan.  
 
Item 5:  Communications Manager Activities – Kathie Martin provided a summary of current 
staff activities.  

• Communications Manager recruitment opened on February 8 and application deadline is 
on March 13.  

• Water Matters Webinar – After the Storms is scheduled on March 1. 
• Water Academy registration is now closed. We received 40 applicants. There will be a 

screening process to select 20-25 applicants with diverse backgrounds. Due to the large 
response the event will be relocated to the SCV Water Agency’s Pine Street training 
room.  

• Bridgeport Pocket Park Project – construction is underway. Outreach will develop 
engagement opportunities as the park nears completion. A few current engagement 
developments are ribbon cutting event scheduled in the month of September, Bridgeport 
school’s faculties and students – Adopt a Tree and School Journaling, and onsite 
neighborhood workshop, signage/QR Code – self education guide and landscape 
classes.  

 

DATE: February 17, 2023 

TO: Board of Directors 

FROM: Steve Cole  
Assistant General Manager 

SUBJECT: February 16, 2023 Public Outreach and Legislation Committee Meeting Recap 
Report 

591

ajacobs
Item 8.2



Feb 17, 2023 
Page 2 of 3 

 
 

Item 6:  Committee Planning Calendar – Staff and Committee reviewed the Planning 
Calendar. 
 
Item 7:  Adjournment – The meeting adjourned at 6:53 PM. 
 
The meeting recording is available on the SCV Water Agency website or by clicking the following link:  
https://www.yourscvwater.com/sites/default/files/SCVWA/committee-meetings/2023/POL/POL-
Recording_021623.mp3. 
 
Attachment  
 

592

https://www.yourscvwater.com/sites/default/files/SCVWA/committee-meetings/2023/POL/POL-Recording_021623.mp3
https://www.yourscvwater.com/sites/default/files/SCVWA/committee-meetings/2023/POL/POL-Recording_021623.mp3
ajacobs
Matt Stone



   
 

 

27234 BOUQUET CANYON ROAD •  SANTA CLARITA,  CALIFORNIA 91350-2173 •  661 297•1600 •  FAX 661 297•1611 
webs i t e  address :  www.yourscvwate r . com 

 
 
  
 

 
Date: February 9, 2023 
 
To: Public Outreach and Legislation Committee 
 Maria Gutzeit, Chair 
 Kathye Armitage 
 Beth Braunstein  
 Ed Colley  
 
From: Steve Cole, Assistant General Manager  
 
The Public Outreach and Legislation Committee meeting is scheduled on Thursday, 
February 16, 2023 at 5:30 PM at 26521 Summit Circle, Santa Clarita, CA 91350 in the 
Engineering Services Section (ESS) Boardroom. Members of the public may attend in 
person or virtually. To attend this meeting virtually, please see below. 
 

IMPORTANT NOTICES  
 

This meeting will be conducted in person at the addresses listed above. As a convenience to 
the public, members of the public may also participate virtually by using the Agency’s Call-In 
Number 1-833-568-8864, Webinar ID: 161 290 3232 or Zoom Webinar by clicking on the 
https://scvwa.zoomgov.com/j/1612903232. Any member of the public may listen to the 
meeting or make comments to the Committee using the call-in number or Zoom Webinar link 
above. However, in the event there is a disruption of service which prevents the Agency from 
broadcasting the meeting to members of the public using either the call-in option or internet-
based service, this meeting will not be postponed or rescheduled but will continue without 
remote participation. The remote participation option is being provided as a convenience to the 
public and is not required. Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting in person. 
 
Attendees should be aware that while the Agency is following all applicable requirements and 
guidelines regarding COVID-19, the Agency cannot ensure the health of anyone attending a 
Committee meeting. Attendees should therefore use their own judgment with respect to 
protecting themselves from exposure to COVID-19. 
 
Members of the public unable to attend this meeting may submit comments either in writing to 
ekang@scvwa.org or by mail to Eunie Kang, Executive Assistant, Santa Clarita Valley Water 
Agency, 26501 Summit Circle, Santa Clarita, CA 91350. All written comments received before 
4:00 PM the day of the meeting will be distributed to the Committee members and posted on the 
Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency website prior to the start of the meeting. Anything received 
after 4:00 PM the day of the meeting, will be made available at the meeting, if practicable, and 
will be posted on the SCV Water website the following day. All correspondence with comments, 
including letters or emails, will be posted in their entirety. 
 
 
 
 

 

593

https://scvwa.zoomgov.com/j/1612903232
mailto:edill@scvwa.org


Feb 9, 2023  
Page 2 of 2 
 

MEETING AGENDA 

ITEM PAGE 
 

1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

2. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Members of the public may comment as to 
items within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Agency that are not 
on the Agenda at this time. Members of the public wishing to 
comment on items covered in this Agenda may do so at the time 
each item is considered. (Comments may, at the discretion of the 
Committee Chair, be limited to three minutes for each speaker.) 

 

3. * Legislative Consultant Report  

 3.1  Van Scoyoc Associates (10 minutes) 1 

 3.2 California Advocates (10 minutes) 5 

 3.3 Poole & Shaffery (5 minutes)  25 

4. * Discussion of Crisis Communication Plan (15 minutes) 29 

5. * Communications Manager’s Report (5 minutes)  53 

6. * Committee Planning Calendar  63 

7. Adjournment  

*    Indicates Attachment 
   Indicates Handout 

 
NOTICES: 

 
Any person may make a request for a disability-related modification or accommodation needed 
for that person to be able to participate in the public meeting by telephoning Eunie Kang, 
Executive Assistant, at (661) 297-1600, or in writing to Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency at 
26501 Summit Circle, Santa Clarita, CA 91350. Requests must specify the nature of the 
disability and the type of accommodation requested. A telephone number or other contact 
information should be included so that Agency staff may discuss appropriate arrangements. 
Persons requesting a disability-related accommodation should make the request with adequate 
time before the meeting for the Agency to provide the requested accommodation. 
 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.5, non-exempt public records that relate to open 
session agenda items and are distributed to a majority of the Committee less than seventy-two 
(72) hours prior to the meeting will be available for public inspection at the Santa Clarita Valley 
Water Agency, located at 27234 Bouquet Canyon Road, Santa Clarita, CA 91350, during 
regular business hours. When practical, these public records will also be made available on the 
Agency’s Internet Website, accessible at http://www.yourscvwater.com. 
 
Posted on February 9, 2023 

594

http://www.yourscvwater.com/


 

BOARD MEMORANDUM 
 
 

              
 
The rescheduled Finance and Administration (F&A) Committee met at 5:30 PM on Monday, 
February 27, 2023 in the Board Room of the Rio Vista Water Treatment Plant. In attendance 
were Chair Ken Petersen and Directors Kathye Armitage and Maria Gutzeit. Staff members in 
attendance included Controller Amy Aguer, Senior Financial Analyst Darine Conner, 
Management Analyst II Erika Dill, Administrative Services Manager Kim Grass, Chief Engineer 
Courtney Mael, Orlando Moreno, Brent Payne, General Manager Matt Stone, IT Technician I 
Jonathan Thomas, Customer Service Manager Kathleen Willson and myself. Agency’s Bond 
Counsel Jon Guz of Stradling Yocca presented. Additional SCV Water staff and members of the 
public were present. A copy of the agenda is attached. 
 
Item 1:  Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Item 2:  Public Comment – There was no public comment. 
 
Item 3:  Recommend Adopting a Resolution to Declare Intent to Reimburse Capital 
Expenditures for a Groundwater Treatment Project Using Incentive Grant and Loan 
Funds from the State Water Resources Control Board to Comply with Internal Revenue 
Service Regulations – Staff presented this item and discussed it with the Committee. It was 
unanimously agreed to have the item placed on the Consent Calendar for the March 7, 2023 
regular Board meeting. 
 
Item 4:  Review Ratepayer Assistance Pilot Program – Staff presented this item and 
discussed it with the Committee who unanimously agreed to place it as an action item for the 
April 18, 2023 regular Board meeting.  
 
Item 5:  Recommend Approval of a Revised Debt Management Policy – Staff presented this 
item and answered a few questions for the Committee. They agreed to unanimously place the 
item on the Consent Calendar for the March 7, 2023 regular Board meeting. 
 
Item 6:  Recommend Approval of a Resolution Authorizing (1) the Issuance of One or 
More Series of Revenue Bonds by the Upper Santa Clara Valley Joint Powers Authority; 
(2) the Execution of Certain Documents; and (3) Certain Other Actions – Jon Guz from 
Stradling Yocca made a presentation about the documents and resolutions that would need to 
be adopted to begin the bond financing process. The Committee unanimously agreed to have 
the item placed as an action item at the April 4, 2023 regular Board meeting. 
 

DATE: February 28, 2023 

TO: Board of Directors 

FROM: Rochelle Patterson 
Chief Financial and Administrative Officer 

SUBJECT: February 27, 2023 Rescheduled Finance and Administration Committee 
Meeting Recap Report 

595

ajacobs
Rochelle Patterson

ajacobs
Item 8.3



 

Item 7:  Review FY 2023/24 and FY 2024/25 Biennial Budget Calendar – Staff presented this 
informational item for the Committee. 
 
Item 8:  Recommend Receiving and Filing of December 2022 Financial Report and 
Mid-Year FY 2022/23 Budget Review (2nd Quarter) – Staff presented this report and the 
Committee unanimously agreed to have it placed as an action item for the March 7, 2023 
regular Board meeting. 
 
Item 9:  Committee Planning Calendar – Staff briefly stated that the Chiller Replacement item 
for the March Committee may be moved to a future date. 
 
Item 10:  Requests for Future Agenda Items – None at this time. 
 
Item 11:  General Report on Finance and Administration Activities – Staff had no items on 
which to report. 
 
Item 12:  Adjournment – The meeting was adjourned at 7:15 PM. 
 
The meeting recording is available on the SCV Water Website or by clicking the following link: 
https://www.yourscvwater.com/sites/default/files/SCVWA/committee-meetings/2023/FA/Feb-27-
23-Committee-Meeting-Recording.mp3 
 
RP 
 
Attachment 

596

https://www.yourscvwater.com/sites/default/files/SCVWA/committee-meetings/2023/FA/Feb-27-23-Committee-Meeting-Recording.mp3
https://www.yourscvwater.com/sites/default/files/SCVWA/committee-meetings/2023/FA/Feb-27-23-Committee-Meeting-Recording.mp3
ajacobs
Matt Stone



 

 

27234 BOUQUET CANYON ROAD •  SANTA CLARITA,  CALIFORNIA 91350 -2173 •  661 297•1600  •  FAX 661 297•1611  
webs i t e  address :  www. yourscvwate r . com 

 
 
  
 
 
 
Date: February 21, 2023 
 
To: Finance and Administration Committee 
 Ken Petersen, Chair 
 Kathye Armitage 
 Ed Colley 
 Maria Gutzeit 
 
From: Rochelle Patterson 

Chief Financial and Administrative Officer 
 
The Finance and Administration Committee is rescheduled for Monday, February 27, 2023  
at 5:30 PM at 27234 Bouquet Canyon Road, Santa Clarita, CA 91350 in the Board Room 
and the teleconference site listed below. Members of the public may attend in person or 
virtually. To attend this meeting virtually, please see below. 
 

IMPORTANT NOTICES 
 

This meeting will be conducted in person at the address listed above. As a convenience to the 
public, members of the public may also participate virtually by using the Agency’s Call-In 
Number 1-(833)-568-8864, Webinar ID: 161 448 9516 or Zoom Webinar by clicking on the 
link https://scvwa.zoomgov.com/j/1614489516. Any member of the public may listen to the 
meeting or make comments to the Committee using the call-in number or Zoom Webinar link 
above. However, in the event there is a disruption of service which prevents the Agency from 
broadcasting the meeting to members of the public using either the call-in option or internet-
based service, this meeting will not be postponed or rescheduled but will continue without 
remote participation. The remote participation option is being provided as a convenience to the 
public and is not required. Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting in person. 
 
Attendees should be aware that while the Agency is following all applicable requirements and 
guidelines regarding COVID-19, the Agency cannot ensure the health of anyone attending a 
Committee meeting. Attendees should therefore use their own judgment with respect to 
protecting themselves from exposure to COVID-19. 
 
Members of the public unable to attend this meeting may submit comments either in writing to 
edill@scvwa.org or by mail to Erika Dill, Management Analyst II, SCV Water, 27234 Bouquet 
Canyon Road, Santa Clarita, CA 91350. All written comments received before 3:00 PM the day 
of the meeting will be distributed to the Committee members and posted on the SCV Water 
website prior to the start of the meeting. Anything received after 3:00 PM the day of the meeting 
will be made available at the meeting, if practical, and will be posted on the SCV Water website 
the following day. All correspondence with comments, including letters or emails, will be posted 
in their entirety. 
 
 

5 597

https://scvwa.zoomgov.com/j/1614489516
mailto:edill@scvwa.org
edill
Rochelle signature



February 21, 2023 
Page 2 of 3 

MEETING AGENDA

ITEM PAGE

1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

2. * PUBLIC COMMENTS – Members of the public may comment as to
items within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Agency that are not
on the Agenda at this time. Members of the public wishing to
comment on items covered in this Agenda may do so at the time each
item is considered. (Comments may, at the discretion of the
Committee Chair, be limited to three minutes for each speaker.)

3. * Recommend Adopting a Resolution to Declare Intent to Reimburse
Capital Expenditures for a Groundwater Treatment Project Using
Incentive Grant and Loan Funds from the State Water Resources
Control Board to Comply with Internal Revenue Service Regulations

9 

4. * Review Ratepayer Assistance Pilot Program 19 

5. * Recommend Approval of a Revised Debt Management Policy 25 

6. * Recommend Approval of a Resolution Authorizing (1) the Issuance
of One or More Series of Revenue Bonds by the Upper Santa
Clara Valley Joint Powers Authority; (2) the Execution of Certain
Documents; and (3) Certain Other Actions

41 

7. * Review FY 2023/24 and FY 2024/25 Biennial Budget Calendar 181 

8. * Recommend Receiving and Filing of December 2022 Financial
Report and Mid-Year FY 2022/23 Budget Review (2nd Quarter)

December 2022 Check Registers Link:
https://yourscvwater.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/02/Check-
Register-December-2022.pdf

183 

9. * Committee Planning Calendar 267 

10. Requests for Future Agenda Items

11. General Report on Finance and Administration Activities

12. Adjournment

* Indicates attachments
 To be distributed

6 598

https://yourscvwater.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/02/Check-Register-December-2022.pdf
https://yourscvwater.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/02/Check-Register-December-2022.pdf


February 21, 2023 
Page 3 of 3 
 
 

 

 

 

NOTICES: 

 
Any person may make a request for a disability-related modification or accommodation needed 
for that person to be able to participate in the public meeting by telephoning Erika Dill, 

Management Analyst II at (661) 297-1600, or writing to SCV Water at 27234 Bouquet Canyon 
Road, Santa Clarita, CA 91350. Requests must specify the nature of the disability and the type 
of accommodation requested. A telephone number or other contact information should be 
included so that Agency staff may discuss appropriate arrangements. Persons requesting a 
disability-related accommodation should make the request with adequate time before the 
meeting for the Agency to provide the requested accommodation. 
 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.5, non-exempt public records that relate to open 
session agenda items and are distributed to a majority of the Committee less than seventy-two 
(72) hours prior to the meeting will be available for public inspection at SCV Water, located at 
27234 Bouquet Canyon Road, Santa Clarita, California 91350, during regular business hours. 
When practical, these public records will also be made available on the Agency’s Internet 

Website, accessible at http://www.yourscvwater.com. 
 

Posted on February 21, 2023. 

7 599

http://www.yourscvwater.com/
edill
Matt Stone



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

8 600



 
BOARD MEMORANDUM 

 
 

 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS (CIP) CONSTRUCTION 
 

Project Contractor Contract 
Amount 

Scheduled 
Completion 

Notes 

Vista Canyon 
Recycled Water 
Tank (Phase 2B) 

Pacific Tank 
and 
Construction, 
Inc. 

$3,906,870 3/15/2023 

Construction is 98% 
complete. Project 
closeout in progress. 
Tank scheduled to be 
filled by February 17, 
2023. 

Vista Canyon 
Recycled Water 
Main Extension 
(Phase 2B) 

Ferreira 
Construction 
Co., Inc. 

$2,752,982 3/31/2023 
Construction is 
complete. Project 
closeout in progress.  

Commerce Center 
Pipeline 

FivePoint/Blois 
Construction, 
Inc. 

$892,002.72 4/1/2023 Construction is 99% 
complete. 

Magic Mountain 
Pipeline Phase 4 

FivePoint/Toro 
Enterprises $3,297,013.56 5/1/2023 Construction is 98% 

complete. 

Magic Mountain 
Pipeline Phase 5 

FivePoint/Toro 
Enterprises $3,269,978.85 5/1/2023 Construction is 94% 

complete. 

Magic Mountain 
Pipeline Phase 6A 

FivePoint/Toro 
Enterprises $7,168,844.85 5/1/2023 Construction is 88% 

complete. 

Magic Mountain 
Pipeline Phase 6B 

FivePoint/ 
Leatherwood 
Construction 

$4,568,687.07 5/1/2023 Construction is 92% 
complete. 

Newhall Tanks 1 
and 1A – Tank 
Upgrades  

Paso Robles 
Tanks, Inc. $299,500 5/18/2023 

Construction submittals 
are in progress. 
Contractor mobilizing 
on March 6, 2023. 

DATE: February 21, 2023 

TO: Board of Directors 

FROM: Courtney Mael 
Chief Engineer 

SUBJECT: Engineering Services Section Report 

              

601

ajacobs
Item 9.1

ajacobs
Courteny Mael



Bridgeport Pocket 
Park 

C.S. Legacy 
Construction, 
Inc. 

$373,147.60 6/16/2023 Construction is 26% 
complete. 

Santa Clara & 
Honby Wells 
Material Purchase 

Aqueous Vets $814,050 8/16/2023 
Vessels and pre-filters 
have been delivered to 
the site. 

Santa Clara & 
Honby Wells - Site 
Construction 

Pacific 
Hydrotech 
Corporation  

$8,486,950 8/16/2023 Construction is 15% 
complete. 

Saugus #3 & #4 
Wells Construction 
(Replacement 
Wells) 

Zim Industries, 
Inc. $12,751,494 8/27/2023 Construction is 20% 

complete. 

ESFP Washwater 
Return 
Improvements 

Pacific 
Hydrotech 
Corporation 

$17,526,700 11/30/2023 Construction is 45% 
complete. 

Deane Tank 
(concrete) at 
Skyline Ranch 

Pacific 
Hydrotech 
Corporation 

$3,123,943 
(SCV Water 
Fair Share) 

12/29/2023 Construction submittals 
are in progress.  

Deane Pump 
Station @ Skyline 
Ranch 

Pacific 
Hydrotech 
Corporation 

$381,645 
(SCV Water 
Fair Share) 

12/29/2023 Construction submittals 
in progress. 

Pitchess Pipeline 
Modifications 

LA County 
Metropolitan 
Transportation 
Authority 

$159,000 5/01/2024 
Pipeline construction 
work is scheduled to 
occur in January 2024. 

Well 201 VOC 
Treatment 
Improvements 

Pacific 
Hydrotech 
Corporation 

$7,726,700 4/12/2024 

Notice To Proceed was 
issued to Contractor. 
Construction submittals 
in progress. 

 

  

602



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS (CIP) PLANNING AND DESIGN 
 

1. Backcountry (fka Magic Mountain) Reservoir and Pump Station – Addendum to the 
Mission Village Environmental Impact Report (EIR) for the Backcountry Pump Station 
and Reservoir has been posted on the Agency’s website. The final design 
authorizations for the reservoir and pump station are scheduled for the March 7, 2023 
Board meeting. 
 

2. Castaic Conduit Bypass Pipeline – Design is 90% complete. Permits are being 
secured for the project.  

 
3. Catala Pump Station and Pipelines – The Board of Directors authorized planning 

services on December 20, 2022. Planning is in progress. 
 

4. Deane Pump Station @ Sand Canyon Plaza – Plans have been approved. Board of 
Directors approved fair share funding and execution of developer agreement. 
Construction is scheduled to start in April 2023. 
 

5. Deane Tank @ Sand Canyon Plaza (CIP is SCV Water Fair Share) – Agency reviewed 
30% Plans for new 1.57 MG prestressed concrete tank. Awaiting 60% plans.  

 
6. E Wells (E-14, E-15, E-16, and E-17) PFAS Groundwater Treatment Improvements – 

Planning is in progress. 
 

7. Foothill Feeder Service Connection CLWA-01/01T Pipe Repair – Staff will be 
requesting project funding authorization at the February 21, 2023 Board meeting. 
 

8. Honby Parallel Pipeline Phase 2 – The Board of Directors adopted the Addendum to 
the EIR on June 1, 2021. Design is in progress and staff is securing permits from the 
California Department of Fish and Wildlife and the Los Angeles Regional Water Quality 
Control Board.  
 

9. Honby Tank Pipeline Bottleneck – Planning is complete. CEQA is in progress. 
 

10. Master Plan – Planning is in progress. 
 

11. Pipeline Inspection: Castaic Conduit Pipeline Reaches 3 & 4 – Planning is in progress. 
 

12. Pipeline Inspection: Magic Mountain Pipeline Phases 1, 2, & 3 – Planning is in 
progress. 
 

13. Pipeline Replacement: Abdale St, Maplebay Ct, & Beachgrove Ct Pipelines – Design 
is in progress. 
 

14. Pipeline Replacement: Dickason Drive Water Line Improvements –  Staff is planning to 
take this project to the March 2, 2023 Engineering and Operations Committee meeting 
and March 21, 2023 Board meeting for construction contract award approval. 

 
15. Pipeline Replacement: McBean Parkway – Design is in progress. 

 
16. Pipeline Replacement: RVWTP Sewer line – Planning is in progress. 

 
17. Pipeline Replacement: Sand Canyon Sewer Line – CEQA evaluation is in progress. 

 
603



18. Pipeline Replacement: Smyth Drive Pipeline – Design is in progress. 
 

19. Pipeline Replacement: Valencia Marketplace Pipeline – Design is in progress. 
 

20. Recycled Water Central Park (Phase 2A) – The project’s Mitigated Negative 
Declaration (MND) and Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program (MMRP) was 
adopted by the CLWA Board of Directors on December 13, 2017. Design is on-hold 
pending resolution of recycled water permitting and regulatory issues. 
 

21. Recycled Water Fill Station – Easements are being secured for the site. 
 

22. Recycled Water South End (Phase 2C) – Newhall County Water District, as the CEQA 
Lead Agency, certified the recirculated MND on August 10, 2017. The project MND/IS 
was adopted by the CLWA Board of Directors on August 23, 2017. Grant application 
for a Proposition 1 Grant was submitted the week of December 2, 2019. The Board of 
Directors adopted the Addendum to the MND on June 1, 2021 and authorized 
additional design services on August 3, 2021. Final design is in progress.  
 

23. Replacement Wells (Saugus Wells 3 and 4: Site and Equipment Design) – The Board 
of Directors authorized design services on August 4, 2020, and design is in progress.  
 

24. RVWTP Diesel Underground Storage Tank (UST) Replacement – 100% Design review 
is in progress.  
 

25. Sand Canyon Reservoir Expansion – Kickoff meeting with Lee+Ro occurred on 
February 7, 2023.  
 

26. Saugus Wells (N11, N12, N13) Groundwater Treatment Improvements – Planning is in 
progress. Project kickoff meeting was held on January 17, 2023. 
 

27. Sierra Highway Bridge Expansion Water Pipelines Protection – Design is in progress. 
The City of Santa Clarita plans to advertise the SCV Water Pipelines Protection work 
under a separate bid item for the Sierra Highway Bridge Widening project.  
 

28. S Wells PFAS Groundwater Treatment and Disinfection Facility – Preliminary design 
and landscape concept is complete. Final MND/IS in progress.  Agency awarded $5 
million in grant funding from the Bureau of Reclamation. Staff is preparing several 
applications for additional potential grant funding opportunities.  

 
29. T7, U4, and U6 Wells PFAS Groundwater Treatment Improvements, New RVIPS 

Disinfection Facility, and Saugus 1 and 2 VOC Improvements – 90% plans are in 
progress. Staff is preparing several applications for potential grant funding 
opportunities. 
 

30. Well 205 Perchlorate Treatment Improvements – Final design is in progress. 

604



 D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T 
PR

O
JE

C
TS

 –
 D

ES
IG

N,
 C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

TI
O

N
, A

N
D

 IN
SP

EC
TI

O
N 

 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
D

ev
el

op
er

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

Si
ze

 
In

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 
(E

st
im

at
ed

 a
t B

ui
ld

-o
ut

) 
Sc

he
du

le
 

St
at

us
 

Ai
dl

in
 H

ills
 

(T
ra

ct
 5

27
96

) 
Le

nn
ar

  

10
2 

D
w

el
lin

g 
U

ni
ts

 
 

2 
ta

nk
s,

 1
 p

um
p 

st
at

io
n,

 
±7

,6
70

’ o
f p

ot
ab

le
 

pi
pe

lin
es

, a
nd

 9
 p

ub
lic

 fi
re

 
hy

dr
an

ts
. 

TB
D

 
 

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f 6

0%
 w

at
er

 p
ip

el
in

e 
pl

an
s 

an
d 

30
%

 ta
nk

 a
nd

 p
um

p 
st

at
io

n 
pl

an
s 

is
 c

om
pl

et
ed

. 

C
as

ta
ic

 H
ig

h 
Sc

ho
ol

 
R

as
m

us
se

n 

25
0,

00
0 

Sq
ua

re
 F

ee
t 

2 
m

ile
s 

of
 p

ip
el

in
es

, 1
 

ta
nk

, a
nd

 1
 p

um
p 

st
at

io
n.

 
Fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

w
er

e 
co

ns
tru

ct
ed

 to
 

m
ee

t s
ch

ed
ul

ed
 s

ch
oo

l o
pe

ni
ng

 
in

 fa
ll 

20
19

. 

Pr
oj

ec
t c

lo
se

ou
t i

n 
pr

og
re

ss
. 

C
ol

le
ge

 o
f t

he
 

C
an

yo
ns

 (C
O

C
) 

N
ew

 P
ar

ki
ng

 
St

ru
ct

ur
e 

fo
r 

Va
le

nc
ia

 
C

am
pu

s 

R
el

oc
at

io
n 

of
 1

6”
 w

at
er

 
lin

e 
(a

pp
ro

xi
m

at
el

y 
1,

01
5’

). 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
is

 c
om

pl
et

e 
an

d 
pi

pe
lin

e 
is

 in
 o

pe
ra

tio
n.

 
Pr

oj
ec

t c
lo

se
ou

t i
n 

pr
og

re
ss

. 

D
oc

kw
ei

le
r 

93
 S

in
gl

e 
Fa

m
ily

 U
ni

ts
 

1,
40

0’
 o

f o
ffs

ite
 p

ip
el

in
e,

 
3,

60
0 

fe
et

 o
f o

ns
ite

 
pi

pe
lin

e.
 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
co

m
pl

et
e.

  
C

lo
se

ou
t a

nd
 N

ot
ic

e 
of

 C
om

pl
et

io
n 

is
 

in
 p

ro
ce

ss
. 

La
nd

m
ar

k 
Vi

lla
ge

 (T
ra

ct
 

53
10

8)
 

Fi
ve

Po
in

t 

14
44

 D
w

el
lin

g 
U

ni
ts

 
3.

5 
m

ile
s 

of
 p

ip
in

g 
pr

es
su

re
 re

du
ci

ng
 s

ta
tio

n,
 

2M
G

 Z
on

e 
IA

 T
an

k,
 a

nd
 2

 
H

w
y 

12
6 

cr
os

si
ng

s.
 

TB
D

 
D

es
ig

n 
is

 o
n 

ho
ld

. 

605



 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

D
ev

el
op

er
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
Si

ze
 

In
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 

(E
st

im
at

ed
 a

t B
ui

ld
-o

ut
) 

Sc
he

du
le

 
St

at
us

 

M
is

si
on

 V
illa

ge
 

(F
iv

eP
oi

nt
) 

40
55

 D
w

el
lin

g 
U

ni
ts

 
11

.5
 m

ile
s 

of
 n

ew
 

pi
pe

lin
e,

 1
 p

re
ss

ur
e 

re
du

ci
ng

 s
ta

tio
n 

(T
el

em
ar

k 
(fo

rm
er

ly
 

Pe
te

rs
en

), 
2 

bo
os

te
r 

st
at

io
ns

 (T
el

em
ar

k 
(fo

rm
er

ly
 P

et
er

se
n)

 
po

ta
bl

e 
& 

re
cy

cl
ed

). 
1 

bo
os

te
r s

ta
tio

n 
up

gr
ad

e 
(M

ag
ic

 M
tn

.),
 a

nd
 3

 ta
nk

s 
(T

el
em

ar
k 

(fo
rm

er
ly

 
Pe

te
rs

en
) p

ot
ab

le
 &

 
re

cy
cl

ed
 ta

nk
s 

an
d 

M
ag

ic
 

M
tn

. T
an

k 
N

o.
 2

 p
ot

ab
le

). 

Te
le

m
ar

k 
(fo

rm
er

ly
 P

et
er

se
n)

 
Ta

nk
s 

an
d 

Bo
os

te
r S

ta
tio

ns
 

de
si

gn
 to

 b
e 

co
m

pl
et

e 
by

 J
un

e 
20

23
. 

D
es

ig
n:

 T
o 

da
te

, a
 to

ta
l o

f 5
2 

po
ta

bl
e/

re
cy

cl
ed

 d
is

tri
bu

tio
n 

pi
pe

lin
e 

de
si

gn
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 fo

r 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n.
 T

el
em

ar
k 

(fo
rm

er
ly

 
Pe

te
rs

en
) p

ot
ab

le
 a

nd
 re

cy
cl

ed
 w

at
er

 
bo

os
te

r s
ta

tio
ns

 a
re

 a
t 1

00
%

 d
es

ig
n 

co
m

pl
et

io
n.

 T
el

em
ar

k 
Ta

nk
s 

at
 7

5%
 

de
si

gn
 c

om
pl

et
io

n.
 P

ha
se

 3
B 

an
d 

2B
-1

 
w

at
er

 d
is

tri
bu

tio
n 

pi
pe

lin
e 

pl
an

 s
et

s 
ar

e 
un

de
r r

ev
ie

w
. R

et
ai

ni
ng

 w
al

l d
es

ig
n 

on
 

th
e 

M
ag

ic
 M

ou
nt

ai
n 

Ta
nk

 N
o.

 2
 s

ite
 is

 
in

 p
ro

gr
es

s.
 

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n:
 P

ha
se

s 
1A

, 1
B,

 1
C

, 1
D

, 
an

d 
in

-tr
ac

t p
ot

ab
le

 w
at

er
 p

ip
el

in
es

 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
ar

e 
co

m
pl

et
e,

 a
nd

 
re

cy
cl

ed
 w

at
er

 p
ip

el
in

es
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

is
 

at
 9

0%
 c

om
pl

et
io

n.
 W

el
l 2

06
/2

07
 p

ip
e 

re
lo

ca
tio

n 
pr

oj
ec

t i
n 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n.

 
M

ag
ic

 M
ou

nt
ai

n 
Bo

os
te

r S
ta

tio
n 

U
pg

ra
de

 is
 in

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n.
 N

ot
ic

es
 o

f 
C

om
pl

et
io

n 
ar

e 
be

in
g 

ex
ec

ut
ed

 fo
r 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

pr
oj

ec
ts

. 
 

N
ee

dh
am

 
R

an
ch

 
Tr

am
m

el
l C

ro
w

 
C

o.
 

2,
55

0,
00

0 
Sq

ua
re

 F
ee

t 
In

du
st

ria
l a

nd
 

C
om

m
er

ci
al

 

4 
m

ile
s 

of
 p

ip
el

in
es

, 1
 

pu
m

p 
st

at
io

n,
 2

 ta
nk

s,
 1

 
di

si
nf

ec
tio

n 
bu

ild
in

g,
 a

nd
 

2 
pr

es
su

re
 re

du
ci

ng
 

st
at

io
ns

. 

Ph
as

e 
1 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

is
 

su
bs

ta
nt

ia
lly

 c
om

pl
et

e.
 P

ha
se

 2
 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
is

 s
ub

st
an

tia
lly

 
co

m
pl

et
e.

 T
an

k 
7 

an
d 

7A
 is

 
co

m
pl

et
e.

 D
is

in
fe

ct
io

n 
Bu

ild
in

g 
an

d 
Pu

m
p 

St
at

io
n 

up
gr

ad
es

 to
 b

e 
co

m
pl

et
e 

by
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

02
3.

 

Ta
nk

 7
A 

is
 9

5%
 c

om
pl

et
e.

 P
in

e 
St

re
et

 
Pi

pe
lin

e 
is

 u
nd

er
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n.

 P
um

p 
st

at
io

n 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
pl

an
s 

an
d 

ch
em

ic
al

 
bu

ild
in

g 
pl

an
s 

ar
e 

ap
pr

ov
ed

. 

606



 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

D
ev

el
op

er
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
Si

ze
 

In
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 

(E
st

im
at

ed
 a

t B
ui

ld
-o

ut
) 

Sc
he

du
le

 
St

at
us

 

Sa
dd

le
 P

ea
k 

C
an

yo
n 

(T
ic

k 
C

an
yo

n)
 

54
8 

si
ng

le
 

fa
m

ily
 u

ni
ts

 
2 

ta
nk

s,
 1

 p
um

p 
st

at
io

n,
 

6.
3 

m
ile

s 
of

 p
ip

el
in

e.
 

TB
D

 
30

%
 p

ip
el

in
e 

pl
an

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

re
vi

ew
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

Ag
en

cy
. 3

0%
 ta

nk
 a

nd
 

pu
m

p 
st

at
io

n 
pl

an
s 

in
 re

vi
ew

. 

Sa
nd

 C
an

yo
n 

Pl
az

a 
12

9 
Si

ng
le

 
Fa

m
ily

 U
ni

ts
, 

45
1 

M
ul

ti-
Fa

m
ily

 U
ni

ts
, 

14
0 

Be
d 

Se
ni

or
 L

iv
in

g,
 

C
om

m
er

ci
al

 

1 
ta

nk
, 1

 p
um

p 
st

at
io

n,
 

1,
70

0’
 o

f o
ffs

ite
 p

ip
el

in
e,

 
an

d 
8,

50
0’

 o
f o

ns
ite

 
pi

pe
lin

e.
 

D
ev

el
op

er
 h

as
 c

om
m

en
ce

d 
m

as
s 

gr
ad

in
g 

at
 th

e 
si

te
. O

ffs
ite

 
Pi

pe
lin

e 
an

d 
N

ew
 S

an
d 

C
an

yo
n 

Pl
az

a 
Pu

m
p 

St
at

io
n 

to
 s

ta
rt 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

in
 A

pr
il 

20
23

.  

O
ffs

ite
 p

ip
el

in
e 

pl
an

s 
ar

e 
ap

pr
ov

ed
. 

St
af

f p
re

pa
rin

g 
de

lta
 re

vi
si

on
s.

 P
um

p 
st

at
io

n 
pl

an
s 

ar
e 

ap
pr

ov
ed

. 3
0%

 p
la

ns
 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 fo

r n
ew

 D
ea

ne
 T

an
k.

 6
0%

 
In

-T
ra

ct
 P

la
ns

 in
 re

vi
ew

. 

Sh
er

iff
 S

ta
tio

n 
C

ity
 o

f S
an

ta
 

C
la

rit
a 

44
,3

00
 S

qu
ar

e 
Fe

et
 

1 
m

ile
 o

f p
ip

el
in

e.
 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
of

 m
ai

n 
pi

pe
lin

e 
is

 
co

m
pl

et
e 

w
ith

 te
m

po
ra

ry
 b

yp
as

s 
cr

os
si

ng
 o

ve
r L

AD
W

P 
aq

ue
du

ct
. 

Th
e 

pe
rm

an
en

t u
nd

er
cr

os
si

ng
 

w
ill 

be
 b

id
 th

is
 fa

ll 
an

d 
co

ns
tru

ct
ed

 in
 e

ar
ly

 2
02

3.
  

St
af

f a
re

 w
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 c
on

su
lta

nt
 to

 
fin

al
iz

e 
de

si
gn

 p
la

ns
/s

pe
cs

 a
nd

 
pr

ep
ar

e 
bi

d 
do

cu
m

en
ts

 fo
r L

AD
W

P 
aq

ue
du

ct
 u

nd
er

cr
os

si
ng

. S
ta

ff 
ar

e 
w

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 th

e 
C

ity
 to

 c
on

fir
m

 tr
af

fic
 

co
nt

ro
l r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

. 

607



 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

D
ev

el
op

er
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
Si

ze
 

In
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 

(E
st

im
at

ed
 a

t B
ui

ld
-o

ut
) 

Sc
he

du
le

 
St

at
us

 

Sp
rin

g 
C

an
yo

n 
(T

ra
ct

 4
80

86
) 

49
2 

D
w

el
lin

g 
U

ni
ts

 
1 

ta
nk

, 1
 p

um
p 

st
at

io
n,

 
an

d 
1 

pr
es

su
re

 re
du

ci
ng

 
va

lv
e,

 M
am

m
ot

h 
La

ne
 

up
gr

ad
es

 a
nd

 li
ft 

st
at

io
n 

up
gr

ad
es

.  

M
am

m
ot

h 
La

ne
 u

pg
ra

de
s 

m
us

t 
be

 c
om

pl
et

e 
pr

io
r t

o 
co

m
m

en
ce

m
en

t o
f d

ev
el

op
m

en
t. 

D
es

ig
n 

pl
an

s 
fo

r i
n-

tra
ct

 p
ip

el
in

es
, 

ta
nk

s 
an

d 
pu

m
p 

st
at

io
n 

w
er

e 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 

an
d 

is
su

ed
 in

 J
ul

y 
20

20
. S

ta
ff 

is
 

w
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 d
ev

el
op

er
 a

nd
 c

on
su

lta
nt

 
to

 a
dd

re
ss

 C
ou

nt
y 

st
an

da
rd

s 
fo

r s
ew

er
 

lif
t s

ta
tio

n 
up

gr
ad

es
 in

 o
rd

er
 to

 tr
an

sf
er

 
ow

ne
rs

hi
p 

to
 th

e 
C

ity
 o

f S
an

ta
 C

la
rit

a.
 

R
ev

ie
w

 a
nd

 c
om

m
en

ts
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

on
 1

st
 

dr
af

t M
em

or
an

du
m

 o
f U

nd
er

st
an

di
ng

 
(M

O
U

) b
et

w
ee

n 
th

e 
Ag

en
cy

 a
nd

 th
e 

C
ity

 fo
r t

ra
ns

fe
r o

f s
ew

er
 li

ft 
st

at
io

n 
fa

ci
lit

y.
 

Sk
yl

in
e 

R
an

ch
 

Tr
iP

oi
nt

e 
(T

ra
ct

 
60

92
2)

 

12
20

 D
w

el
lin

g 
U

ni
ts

 
17

 m
ile

s 
of

 p
ip

el
in

es
, 3

 
pu

m
p 

st
at

io
ns

, a
nd

 4
 

ta
nk

s.
 

Ph
as

e 
1 

pi
pe

lin
es

, p
um

p 
st

at
io

n 
an

d 
ta

nk
s 

ar
e 

on
lin

e.
 P

ha
se

 2
 

D
ea

ne
 p

um
p 

st
at

io
n 

an
d 

N
im

bu
s/

D
ea

ne
 ta

nk
 a

re
 in

 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
fo

r c
om

pl
et

io
n 

by
 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
02

3.
 P

ha
se

 3
 S

ky
lin

e 
Pu

m
p 

St
at

io
n 

an
d 

D
is

in
fe

ct
io

n 
to

 
be

 c
on

st
ru

ct
ed

 b
y 

se
co

nd
 q

ua
rte

r 
20

24
. 

 C
on

su
lta

nt
 s

ub
m

itt
ed

 1
00

%
 p

la
ns

 fo
r 

N
im

bu
s/

Sk
yl

in
e 

Zo
ne

 P
um

p 
St

at
io

n;
 

st
af

f r
ev

ie
w

 in
 p

ro
gr

es
s.

 C
on

su
lta

nt
 is

 
pr

ep
ar

in
g 

60
%

 p
la

ns
 fo

r d
is

in
fe

ct
io

n 
fa

ci
lit

y 
at

 N
im

bu
s 

D
ea

ne
 T

an
k 

si
te

. 

Te
so

ro
 

H
ig

hl
an

ds
 

69
6 

Si
ng

le
 

Fa
m

ily
 U

ni
ts

, 9
 

M
ul

ti-
Fa

m
ily

 
U

ni
ts

, 2
 a

cr
es

 
of

 C
om

m
er

ci
al

  

2 
ta

nk
s,

 1
 p

um
p 

st
at

io
n,

 
an

d 
64

,0
00

’ o
f p

ip
el

in
e.

 
Ph

as
e 

1 
an

d 
Ph

as
e 

2 
Pi

pe
lin

e 
su

bs
ta

nt
ia

lly
 c

om
pl

et
e.

 T
es

or
o 

3 
Ta

nk
s 

to
 b

e 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 b
y 

Ap
ril

 
20

23
. Z

on
e 

3 
pu

m
p 

st
at

io
n 

to
 b

e 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 b
y 

Ju
ly

 2
02

3.
 

Ta
nk

 3
/3

A 
is

 u
nd

er
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n.

 
Ph

as
e 

3 
-5

 w
at

er
 p

ip
el

in
es

 a
re

 u
nd

er
 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n.

 P
um

p 
st

at
io

n 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
in

 p
ro

gr
es

s.
 P

ha
se

 6
-8

 
pl

an
s 

ar
e 

ap
pr

ov
ed

.  
 

608



 

Vi
st

a 
C

an
yo

n 
(T

ra
ct

 6
91

64
) 

JS
B 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 

11
00

 D
w

el
lin

g 
U

ni
ts

 
5 

m
ile

s 
of

 p
ot

ab
le

 a
nd

 
re

cy
cl

ed
 p

ip
el

in
es

. 
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

of
 P

ha
se

 1
 P

ot
ab

le
 

an
d 

R
ec

yc
le

d 
W

at
er

 S
ys

te
m

s 
ar

e 
co

m
pl

et
e.

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
of

 P
ha

se
 

2 
sy

st
em

s 
ar

e 
co

m
pl

et
e 

ex
ce

pt
 

fin
al

 ti
e-

in
s.

 

D
ev

el
op

er
 to

 s
ub

m
it 

sc
he

du
le

 to
 

co
ns

tru
ct

 fi
na

l t
ie

-in
s 

fo
r p

ot
ab

le
 

sy
st

em
. S

ta
ff 

is
 c

oo
rd

in
at

in
g 

w
ith

 
de

ve
lo

pe
r o

n 
fin

al
 p

re
pa

ra
tio

ns
 p

rio
r t

o 
br

in
gi

ng
 w

at
er

 fa
ct

or
y 

on
lin

e 
an

d 
st

ar
t 

re
cy

cl
ed

 w
at

er
 s

er
vi

ce
 to

 c
er

ta
in

 
cu

st
om

er
s 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
Vi

st
a 

C
an

yo
n 

Tr
ac

t. 
 

 

609



 

RIGHT OF WAY – CELL SITES 
 

1. Bouquet Tank Site – T- Mobile has constructed fences around sector antennas. 
Carrier is also working on plans to install an emergency generator at this location. 
Agency has received deposit of $10,000 and is waiting on reviewed plans to be 
updated by T-Mobile. 

 
2. Castaic Tank 1A – Verizon is redesigning the wireless structure. Agency has received 

deposit of $10,000 and is reviewing plans. 
 

3. Catala Tank Site – DISH Wireless has identified this location as a potential new cell 
site. Agency has received deposit of $10,000 and is reviewing plans. AT&T has also 
identified this location as a potential new site. Agency is working with carrier on deposit 
letter. T-Mobile has identified this existing site for upgrades. Agency has received 
deposit of $10,000 and is reviewing plans. 
 

4. Commerce Center Tank Site – AT&T has identified this location as a potential new cell 
site. Agency has received deposit of $10,000 and is reviewing plans. 

 
5. Honby Tank Site – T-Mobile has identified this existing site for upgrades. Agency is 

working with carrier on deposit letter and review of plans. DISH wireless has identified 
this location as a potential new cell site. Agency has received deposit of $10,000 and 
is reviewing plans. 

 
6. Live Oaks Tank Site – AT&T has identified this location as a potential new cell site. 

Agency has received deposit of $10,000 and is reviewing plans. 
 

7. Newhall Tank 2 Site – Agency is waiting on T-Mobile carrier plans to relocate 
decommissioned Sprint equipment off the tank due to T-Mobile’s acquisition of Sprint. 
Agency is waiting on carrier plans from AT&T and Verizon to install emergency 
generators. 
 

8. Princess Tank Site – Verizon has identified this site for emergency generator 
installation. Agency is working with carrier on a deposit letter. 
 

9. Skyblue Tank Site – Verizon has requested an access agreement for this site to 
resolve access issues. Agency is working with carrier on a license agreement.  

 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS (CIP) MISCELLANEOUS 
 

• Fire Flow Tests – In January 2023, staff processed 19 fire flow requests.   
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

610



 

FACILITY CAPACITY FEES (FCFs) AND CONNECTION FEES 
 

 

 
Month Regional Distribution Total 
July 2022 $31,560 $0 $31,560 
August 2022 $52,376 $0 $52,376 
September 2022 $72,801 $18,693 $91,494 
October 2022 $239,618 $1,320 $240,938 
November2022 $54,473 $0 $54,473 
December 2022 $274,410 $23,790 $298,200 
January 2023 $147,290 0 $147,290 
FY 2022/23 to Date $872,528 $43,803 $916,331 

FY 2022/23 Budget $5,500,000 $1,000,000 $6,500,000 

611

ajacobs
Matt Stone



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

612



 

BOARD MEMORANDUM 
 
 

               
 
FINANCE & ADMINISTRATION (F&A) 
 
Key Accomplishments/Activities: 
 
Staff worked with auditors Lance, Soll & Lunghard, LLP (LSL) and prepared and submitted the 
annual State Controller’s Office Financial Transaction Reports for SCV Water, Devil’s Den, SCV 
Groundwater Sustainability Agency, and Upper Santa Clara Valley JPA. These were due by 
January 31, 2023. 
 
Staff successfully filed year-end 1099’s. These were due January 31, 2023. 
 
Staff reconciled the year-end payroll reporting such as W-2’s, Quarterly Payroll Tax Returns, 
and Annual Payroll Tax Returns. These were due by January 31, 2023. 
 
Staff received approval of two contracts for the Microwave Upgrade Project: one for purchasing 
microwave equipment and software from Nokia of America Corporation (Nokia) through a 
NASPO agreement (National Association of State Procurement Officials), and the second with 
Day Wireless Systems for installing the microwave equipment.  
 
Additionally, staff received approval to establish an HRA (Health Reimbursement Arrangement) 
for retired employees as well as to proceed with a project for a Meter Device Management 
System which will allow for near real-time meter reads of water usage. 
 
Significant Upcoming Items: 
 
Staff is working with the Agency’s Municipal Advisor (Fieldman, Rolapp & Associates) and Bond 
Counsel (Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth) in developing legal documents for review by the 
F&A Committee, Agency Board and the Upper Santa Clara Valley Joint Powers Authority for the 
upcoming 2023 bond issue. 
 
Staff is developing a pilot program for ratepayer assistance. 
 
Staff is working with other departments to answer questions on actuals throughout the year in 
preparation for the FY 2023/24 and FY 2024/25 Budget. 
 

DATE: February 21, 2023 

TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM: Rochelle Patterson 
Chief Financial and Administrative Officer 

SUBJECT: Finance, Administration, and Information Technology Services Section Report 

613

ajacobs
Item 9.2

ajacobs
Rochelle Patterson



 

Staff, following the Grant Management Policy and Procedures, are continuing to validate 
processes to ensure that the Agency will be in full compliance with Federal Single Audit 
requirements. The Agency has successfully obtained significant Federal grant funding. 
Therefore, a Fiscal Year 2022/23 single audit will be required as part of our annual, external 
financial audit. 
 
Staff has been working with Cintas and are finalizing the discussions for uniform services. Staff 
is working with legal on an addendum to the Omnia co-op contract; once completed a quote is 
expected for uniform services, including building mat services from Cintas, by end of January 
2023. 
 
Ongoing: Staff continues to work with Engineering, Operations, and Water Resources to refine 
the Project Financial Management module. Progress continues to bring Oracle modules and 
reports up to the appropriate levels. 
 
Ongoing: Staff continues to review and approve Certificates of Insurance (COIs), ensuring that 
insurance limits conform with the Agency’s insurance requirements. 
 
Ongoing: Staff continues to assist with training in Oracle’s procurement module with 
applications such as requisitions, purchase orders, and contract agreements. 
 
CUSTOMER SERVICE 
 
Key Accomplishments/Activities: 
 
Ongoing: Work related to the expansion of the Agency’s Automated Metering Infrastructure 
(AMI) continues. Customer Care and Field Services actively collaborate on the replacement, 
installation and reassignment of AMI meters and the strategic placement of its communication 
structure so as to optimize the technology.   
 
Staff has received Board approval to implement the Smartworks Meter Data Management 
System (MDMS). Agency staff and the implementation vendor, Systems & Software (S&S) are 
assembling implementation teams and in process of scheduling the project kickoff call. Once 
kicked off, the project will require 8-10 months to complete.   
 
Staff is conducting targeted, verbal outreach to all residential customers who have had their 
water service disconnected for nonpayment more than once since the Agency resumed shutoffs 
last Spring. In contrast to our outreach efforts during and post COVID which focused mostly on 
accounts receivables, the objective of this outreach is to educate and empower customers so 
they may manage their water accounts more effectively. Staff analyzes and develops custom 
talking points for each account based on account history and activity. Once each assessment is 
complete and applicable tools and strategies have been identified, staff contacts the customer 
to share practical, technical and/or financial resources that may help to mitigate future shutoffs. 
Thus far, the response has been positive and customers have been receptive. 
 
The Agency received its first payment and “pledge” from LIHWAP (Low Income Water 
Assistance Program). Program information remains available on all customer bills, the public 
website, the customer portal login page and as part of the Call Center’s on-hold messaging. 
 

614



 

A new Customer Service Representative I is currently being onboarded into the department as a 
result of vacancy due to a recent retirement.  
 
Staff continues to work diligently with all customers to avoid disconnection for nonpayment, and 
if unable to pay, resolve their overdue balances through amortization agreements. Prior to 
shutoff, two courtesy reminder calls are being broadcast to customers that are subject to 
disconnection for nonpayment. There were 3,226 accounts subject to disconnection in January 
2023. Of those, 1,080 remained overdue within one week of their scheduled shutoff date and 
subsequently received one or more courtesy reminder calls. A total of 251 accounts remained 
unresolved by their scheduled shutoff date and were disconnected for nonpayment.  
 
Significant Upcoming Items: 
 
Staff continues to work with Systems and Software to further refine workflows related to the new 
enQuesta v.6 platform, online customer portal and mobile work order solution.   
 
Staff continues to work with the Conservation department to expand the Agency’s WaterSMART 
Targets (WST) to Santa Clarita Division (SCWD) residential customers. This is a multi-
departmental project as it requires support from the IT, GIS and Communications departments. 
 
Staff continues to coordinate closely with Field Services on the AMI Meter Changeout Program. 
Phase II is scheduled to begin April 3, 2023 in the Tesoro service area. As per the 
communication plan, a direct mailer will be executed to approximately 1200 customers the first 
week of March 2023. The postcard contains information on AMI, the changeout program and 
timeline as well as a QR code and link to the Agency’s AMI page located on the public website.   
 
Effort is underway to add a Quick Response Code (QRC) to all customer bills and Overdue 
Notices (ODNs). It is staff’s opinion that the addition of a QRC on these documents will enhance 
customer service, increase electronic bill pay and facilitate overall payment processing.  
 
Staff from the Customer Care and Field Service departments are scheduled to conduct a site 
visit at Truckee Meadows Water Authority (TMWA) on March 22-23, 2023. TMWA operates the 
same billing platform, customer portal and mobile work order solution as those the Agency 
recently converted and upgraded. Further, TMWA deployed the Smartworks MDMS last year. 
Staff looks forward to seeing these integrations operate in real-time and hopes to leverage 
TMWA’s implementation experience and lessons learned prior to the kickoff of our own 
implementation. The agenda includes tabletop and field time.   
 
Staff participated in a kickoff call with the Communications, Water Quality, Education and 
Conservations departments regarding the upcoming KHTS Home and Garden Show. Customer 
Care will help staff the booth at Central Park on April 29-30, 2023. 
 
Staff is developing Customer Care’s FY 2023/24 & 2024/25 budget.  
 
HUMAN RESOURCES (HR) 
 
Key Accomplishments/Activities: 
 
Staff is currently recruiting for (1) Assistant Engineer, (1) Buyer, (1) Communications Manager, 
(1) Field Services Supervisor, (1) Finance Manager, and (3) Utility Workers. 
 

615



 

Staff is preparing to recruit for (1) Limited Duration Field Services Worker I and (1) Limited 
Duration Utility Worker I, and (1) Recycled Water Coordinator Technician. 
 
Staff completed onboarding for (1) Customer Service Representative I. 
 
Staff completed internal transfer onboarding for (1) Water Conservation Specialist II. 
 
Staff continues to attend and support the monthly Safety Committee meetings conducted in 
Microsoft TEAMS. 
 
Staff attended the ACWA/JPIA’s January 18, 2023 webinar – Conducting Effective and 
Engaging Interviews. 
 
Staff attended the ACWA/JPIA’s Virtual Human Resources Group meeting on February 15, 
2023.  Topics included Managing Leaves of Absence and Living Happier and Healthier with 
Gratitude. 
 
Staff continues to be collaborating with consultants to perform various classification and base 
compensation studies for the Recycled Water Coordinator, SCADA Technicians, Fleet & 
Warehousing Mechanics, and Utility Workers classification series.  
 
Staff is updating any applicable Employee Manual policies required to reflect new 2023 
employment law regulations.  
 
Staff completed the first phase of compliance with the Affordable Care Act (ACA) and the forms 
have been mailed to all eligible employees. Staff started to gathering data to file with IRS to 
comply with ACA federal requirements.   
 
Staff continues to participate in the weekly Covid-19 Team meetings with management and 
manages the positive Covid-19 cases. There was a slight decrease in positive cases in the 
month of February 2023. 
 
Staff is preparing for the annual AFLAC open enrollment season for March 1, 2023. AFLAC 
presentations will be available to all eligible staff virtually. 
 
Staff posted to all Agency locations the updated Federal and California Employment Posters. 
 
Significant Upcoming Items: 
 
Staff plans to provide training on the new Internship Policy for supervisors.  
 
Staff plans to develop a soft skills training program for employees. Examples of soft skills are 
leadership, teamwork, communication, problem-solving, work ethic, flexibility/adaptability and 
interpersonal skills. 
 
Staff plans to provide training for supervisors and for all employees regarding prevention of 
sexual harassment.  
 
Staff plans to survey other agencies and create a list for management/supervisory training.  
 

616



 

Staff is partnering with the Technology Services department to implement an HR SharePoint 
page in which employees can access answers to the most-asked HR questions and policies.  
 
TECHNOLOGY SERVICES 
 
Key Accomplishments/Activities: 
 
The IT team successfully serviced 209 tickets and 24 fielded hotline calls for the month of 
January 2023. 
 
The GIS team participated in a GIS workshop to explore future technologies and project 
planning.  
 
The IT team completed an upgrade to the Agency document manage system. 
 
The Tech Services team participated in a multi-day online cybersecurity water/wastewater 
workshop. 
 
Significant Upcoming Items: 
 
The cybersecurity team will be kicking off a phishing campaign, encouraging the use of the new 
phishing button which allow users to report suspicious emails. 
 
Ongoing: Tech Services has completed a restructure of the Agency intranet. The team is 
currently meeting with each department to help them transition into their respective space and 
provide additional user training.   
 
Ongoing: Cybersecurity is in process of deploying an increased password-complexity campaign. 
This will be a multi-month project as it will involve user education and implementation. The 
campaign involves short educational videos.   
 
Ongoing: The GIS team will be deploying a beta version of a water systems web application that 
will be hosted in SharePoint. 
 
Ongoing: The IT team is supporting a project with Customer Care and their contractor to deploy 
and configure a new meter data management system. 
 
Ongoing: The GIS team is working on integrating GIS with the Agency’s Customer Information 
System (CIS) for a self-serve water consumption data extraction web application for internal 
Agency use, and is hosted in SharePoint. 
 
Ongoing: The IT team is in the process of moving on-premise file servers to a cloud server 
environment.  
 
Ongoing: The IT team is moving imaging and update server from on-premises to cloud. This 
would streamline management of remote devices.  
 
 
 
 
 

617



 

FLEET AND WAREHOUSE 
 
Key Accomplishments/Activities: 
 
Staff completed ongoing maintenance and repairs on vehicles and equipment. 
 
Significant Upcoming Items: 
 
Staff is developing action plans for proposed and adopted regulations. 
 
Staff is working on an internship partnership with College of the Canyons’ Automotive Internship 
Program, Galpin Ford, and SCV Water. The first student was selected and is currently being 
trained. 
 
Staff is working to establish a pilot with Goodyear Tires for tire monitoring using telematics data. 
 
Staff is working to establish a government account to purchase tires directly. 
 
Staff is preparing to apply for grants for electric vehicle charging stations. 
 
Staff is working on installing the first Level 2 charging stations for electric vehicles. 
 
Staff is working with a consultant on a classification study for a mechanic position series. 
 
Staff is working on analyzing data from the telematics devices. 
 
Staff is working on standardizing office and custodial supplies. 
 
BUILDINGS AND GROUNDS (B&G) 
 
Key Accomplishments/Activities: 
 
Staff completed the instalation of ADA operators/push plates at the main entrance of Rio Vista 
and Rockefeller.  
 

 
 

618



 

Significant Upcoming Items: 
 
Ongoing: Staff is reviewing options for the chiller replacement at the Rio Vista location. Proposals 
are being submitted to replace exiting unit with a higher efficiency, quiet operation, expandability, 
and redundancy modular chiller.  
 
Staff is planning to remove dead trees around Rio Vista in serveral locations. 
 
Staff is working on lighting upgrades (LED lights) for the warehouse at Pine St., as well as for 
offices and common areas at Rockefeller. 
 
Staff is working on the installation of I-Wave devices in the HVAC system to scrub/clean the air 
quality at the Pine Street administration building. 
 
Staff will be retrofitting approximately 20 eyewash stations at the Rio Vista and Earl Schmidt 
Plants. B&G will assist the Safety department on this project to bring eyewash stations to 
compliance. 
 
Staff is reviewing options to remedy erosion issue inside Solar Panel Farm at Rio Vista Plant.  
 
 
RP 

619

ajacobs
Matt Stone



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

620



 
BOARD MEMORANDUM 

 
 

               
 
The Treatment, Distribution, Operations and Maintenance Section (TDOMS) provides reliable and high-
quality water through rigorous preventative maintenance programs and timely response to corrective 
action maintenance. Routine inspections and maintenance of each facility is part of the overarching goal 
of TDOMS. Below is a discussion on these activities for the month of January 2023. 
 
TREATMENT OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE 
 
Monthly corrective and preventative maintenance work orders were completed at the following locations: 
 

- Rio Vista Water Treatment Plant (RVWTP) 
- Rio Vista Intake Pump Station (RVIPS) 
- Earl Schmidt Filtration Plant (ESFP)  
- Earl Schmidt Intake Pump Station (ESIPS) 
- Saugus Perchlorate Treatment Facility (SPTF) 
- Castaic and Pitchess Pipelines 
- Recycled Water Pump Station 
- Rio Vista Valve Vault No. 1 
- Saugus Well 1 
- Sand Canyon Reservoir 
- Sand Canyon Pump Station (SCPS) 

 
Preventative and Corrective Maintenance Work Order Summary 

 
Work Orders January 2023 FYTD 2022/23 
Corrective Maintenance 14 192 
Preventative Maintenance 64 546 
Key Action Items Completed: 

- ESFP – Ozone Generator #2 & #3; installed Ozone Analyzers 
- ESFP – Repair Ozone Generator Tubes on Ozone Generator #2 
- RVWTP/ESFP – Efficiency Testing on Ozone Generator #1, #2, #3 

 
Work in Progress – Treatment 

- SPTF – NH3 Flow meter; waiting for parts  
- ESFP – Filter Gallery Conduit Repair 
- ESFP – Install 480H Ozone Analyzer for Generator 1 
- ESFP – Nitrogen/Generator Dryer (Dryer is completed, waiting on new replacement nitrogen 

compressor) 
- RVWTP & ESFP – Filter Media Replacement  

DATE: February 14, 2023 

TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM: Keith Abercrombie  
Chief Operating Officer 

SUBJECT: Treatment, Distribution, Operations and Maintenance Section Report 

621

ajacobs
Item 9.3

ajacobs
Keith Abercrombie



Completed Work 
- ESFP – Ozone Generator #2 & #3; installed Ozone Analyzers 
- ESFP – Repair Ozone Generator Tubes on Ozone Generator #2 
- RVWTP/ESFP – Efficiency Testing on Ozone Generator #1, #2, #3 

 
DISTRIBUTION OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE 

General operational and maintenance activities include: 

• Valve exercising 
• Fire hydrant maintenance 
• Air and vacuum valve maintenance 
• Blow off maintenance 
• Meter reading 
• Meter change-outs 
• Control valve maintenance 

 
Work in Progress 

- SC-2 Gravity – Above ground construction complete. Scheduling SC-2 suction line abandonment.   
- Vasquez Pipeline – Researching easement. Andel Engineering is surveying for easement, as well 

as creating water plans 
 

Completed Work 
- Interconnection between the NWD and SCWD Systems on Old Wiley Cyn Rd 
- Decoro Drive Pipeline Replacement 
- West Newhall Interconnection (VWD and NWD) on Vista Ridge/Wiley Cyn  
- Ridge Route Road Phase 2 Pavement Repair 
- The Old Road Pavement Repair 
- Mammoth Booster Station 3 Suction and Discharge Pipeline Replacement – Pipeline construction 

complete, working on asphalt restoration  
 
Meter Change-out Summary 
NWD 
Meter Size January 2023 Quantity FYTD 2022/23 

3/4" 42 82 
1”  1 

1 1/2"  4 
2”  11 

SCWD 
Meter Size January 2023 Quantity FYTD 2022/23 

3/4" 32 118 
1” 6 34 

1 1/2"  1 
2”  7 

VWD 
Meter Size January 2023 Quantity FYTD 2022/23 

3/4" 1 50 
1”  1 

1 1/2" 2 8 
2”  8 

 
 
 

622



Distribution System Leak Summary 
 
NWD – Approx. 9,679 Service Connections 
Leak Type January 2023 FYTD 2022/23 
Service Leaks 4 13 
Main Leaks  3 

SCWD – Approx. 31,218 Service Connections 
Leak Type January 2023 FYTD 2022/23 
Service Leaks 5 82 
Main Leaks 1 5 

VWD – Approx. 29,974 Service Connections 
Leak Type January 2023 FYTD 2022/23 
Service Leaks 6 44 
Main Leaks  2 

 
PRODUCTION OPERATIONS AND WATER SYSTEMS 

In addition to the general operation and maintenance of the production facilities, there are a variety of 
other projects within the Production and Water Systems. 
 
Work in Progress 

- Cal Arts Booster Station, B64 motor failure – Pump and motor received. Electrical equipment work 
in progress, pump installed December 2022, however, not operating properly, awaiting vendor  

- Well160 pump failure – Work completed, well back in service to lake October 12, 2022, water 
quality sample results still pending to return well to domestic service as lake is too full to run well 
to sample 

- Tank mixers to be installed at North Oaks tanks in February 2023 
- Castaic Disinfection Facility (CDF) upgrades – New chemical tanks, chemical pumps and 

electrical / SCADA upgrades. Equipment is on order, work to begin in mid-February 
- McBean Booster Pump 78 pump and motor failure – Purchase Order for replacement issued 

December 12, 2022 
- Valve replacements of non-functioning valves at Newhall Booster 5, SC-1, SC-3, Sunset Pointe 

Booster, N-3, and Rainbow Glen Booster – underway  
- Sand Canyon Pump Station Rehab – Pump ordered December 6, 2022 for Pump 3 
- Mitchell 5B Well Rehab – Brush/bail/chemical rehab work underway, Weber Water Resources 

performing work 
- Newhall Booster 2 Pump 3 failure – Quotes solicited and purchase order issued 
- Saugus Well 2 Rehab – Rehab options being evaluated, specifications in progress 
- Ball Field Disinfection Facility (BFDF) – Install a meter head cabinet for remote mounted heads. 

Parts received end of January, to be installed in February 
 

Completed Work 
- Saugus Well 2 Rehab – Motor replacement completed, well video and casing integrity study 

completed in January 2022, well back in-service April 5, 2022 
- Tank mixers installed at Live Oak and Placerita Tanks 
- Carnegie Booster Station – Meter, pump and motor replacement completed, pump 19 – 

Replacement for broken suction valve, received, work completed in September 2022 
- Seismic Valves – Equipment installed and operational at Hasley, Mountain View and Westridge 

tanks 
- Tank mixer installation at Fairway Tank completed November 16, 2022 
- SC-5 pump failure – Pump installed. Completed November 28, 2022 
- Tank mixer installation at Friendly Valley Tanks 2/4 completed December 21, 2022 

 

623



WATER QUALITY 

Water Quality Complaints 
 
NWD 
Type of Complaint January 2023 # of Complaints FYTD 2022/23 
Hardness   
Odor  1 
Taste   
Color  1 
Air   
Suspended Solids   
Totals   2 

SCWD 
Type of Complaint January 2023 # of Complaints FYTD 2022/23 
Hardness   
Odor 1 3 
Taste   
Color  7 
Air   
Suspended Solids  4 
Totals  1 14 

VWD 
Type of Complaint January 2023 # of Complaints FYTD 2022/23 
Hardness 1 1 
Odor   
Taste  1 
Color  7 
Air   
Suspended Solids   
Totals  1 9 

 
Heterotrophic Plate Count Samples 
 
NWD 

Total # of HPCs Collected January 2023 # of HPCs Collected FYTD 2022/23 
1 7 

SCWD 
Total # of HPCs Collected January 2023 # of HPCs Collected FYTD 2022/23 

7 25 
VWD 

Total # of HPCs Collected January 2023 # of HPCs Collected FYTD 2022/23 
7 23 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

624



PERCHLORATE CONTAMINATION PROGRAM MANAGEMENT  
 
As a result of the detection of perchlorate at Well V-201, modifications are being made to the Department 
of Toxic Substances Control (DTSC) Remedial Action Plan (RAP) and the perchlorate project DDW 97-
005 Engineering Report. A perchlorate removal facility has been constructed and resumption of Well V-
201 service will occur following receipt of permit from State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) 
Division of Drinking Water (DDW). 
 
In late December 2017, perchlorate was detected at Well V-205 just above the maximum contaminant 
level for drinking water of 6 ppb. A confirmation sample taken in March 2018 indicated a level of 8.1 ppb. 
The well was previously taken out of service in 2012. Design of a treatment system is underway.  
 
In May 2019, for the first time since 2005, perchlorate was detected in Alluvial Aquifer Well Q-2 at the 
maximum contaminant level of 6 μg/L. No drinking water quality standards were violated, but the well was 
removed immediately from service. Design and construction of treatment system has been completed. 
The well will return to service upon permit approval by DDW.  
 
PFAS  
 
In May 2019, initial sampling for PFAS substances occurred and results were received. One well (Valley 
Center) exceeded Division of Drinking Water Interim Response Level of 70 ng/L and was shut off. Other 
wells exceeded the Interim Notification Levels for PFOS and PFOA. This information was presented to 
the SCV Water Board on June 4, 2019. PFAS sampling for the second quarter was done in August 2019 
with results received in September and October 2019. In February 2020, the State Water Resources 
Control Board Division of Drinking Water issued new response levels; 10 parts per trillion (ppt) for 
perfluorooctanoic acid (PFOA) and 40 ppt for perfluorooctanesulfonic acid (PFOS.) 
 
SCV Water has taken 20 wells out of service due to PFAS. Three (3) were returned to service in late 
2020 (N, N7, N8) with the completion of the first PFAS Treatment System. One (1) additional well (Valley 
Center) was returned to service in October 2022 with completion of the second PFAS Treatment System. 
 
WATER QUALITY LABORATORY  
 
The laboratory continues to analyze compliance PFAS samples. Work is continuing on the new laboratory 
regulation requirements that were adopted in 2021. 

625



 

626



627



 

628



 

629



SAFETY/EMERGENCY/RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
A safe and healthful work environment is a critical component to the mission and values of SCV Water. 
Throughout the reporting month, several routine safety related training, inspections, and various other 
items were completed. The Safety Department continues to integrate health and safety programs for SCV 
Water. Some of the items completed and currently in progress are as follows: 
 
Work in Progress 

- Noise Assessment was completed in July 2022. This assessment is being reviewed and the 
Hearing Conservation Plan is being evaluated and revised based in part on this assessment. 
Staff audiograms are scheduled for February 2023 

- Ammonia RMP revalidation documents received from consultants. Staff are reviewing and 
completing the recommended actions and incorporating them into RMP 

- Revise and update Safety Manual 
- Revise Injury and Illness Prevention Program and train all staff in 2023 

 
Inspections 

- Monthly safety inspections of all remote locations and facilities were conducted in January 
2023 

- UST Monthly Designated Operator inspection took place at Rio Vista in January 2023 
- Kone Crane conducted quadrennial load test on overhead crane at Rio Vista Intake Pump 

Station January 2023 
- Valley Center Well CUPA inspection was conducted in January 2023 
- Seismic bracing at ESFP in ammonia pump room ventilation system was completed in 

January 2023  
 

Incident Data 
- The agency did not have any recordable incidents for the month of January 2023 
 

Safety Training 
- Tailgate meetings took place at GT, Pine, RV and Rockefeller in January 2023 
- New Hire Safety and Emergency Training took place in January 2023 
- Asbestos Pipe training took place at GT in January 2023 
- FA/CPR/AED training took place at Pine in January 2023 
 

Safety Compliance 
- Fall protection equipment replacements and recertifications (Ongoing) 
- Respirator Medical Evaluations and Fit Testing (Annual and New Hire) 
- Hazardous waste disposal at the treatment plants and Pine was completed in January 2023 

 
Safety Awards / Grants 

- FEMA/CalOES Covid Disaster Grant #4482DR-CA 
o Pending final FEMA Review and extension approved thru March 31, 2023 

 
Safety Committee 

- The next Safety Committee meeting will be held on February 22, 2023 
-  

630

ajacobs
Matt Stone



 
 

open,0Betorched   BOARD MEMORANDUM 
 
 

               
 
Key Accomplishments 
 
Water Resources  
 
• Staff is participating in the County’s Safe Clean Water Program (Measure W) Monitoring and 

Metrics Study. This study is designed to develop program metrics and monitoring criteria through 
stakeholder involvement, technical research, and modeling. Staff has attended several meetings 
and the effort is anticipated to continue with three or more meetings through July 2023. 
 

• Staff participated in a public outreach meeting to present the current status of the Bouquet Canyon 
Restoration Project on Wednesday December 7, 2022, at 6:00 PM at the Grace Baptist Church 
(22833 Copper Hill Dr, Santa Clarita, CA  91350). Los Angeles County Public Works (LACPW) is on 
schedule to submit a grant request to the California Wildlife Conservation Board (WCB) in early 
2023. 

 
• Staff finalized the 2021 SCV Water Report (report available at:  

https://www.yourscvwater.com/sites/default/files/SCVWA/your-water/plans-and-reports/water-
report/2021-SCV-Water-Report-012723.pdf.  Staff worked with Luhdorff and Scalmanini to compile 
information with the intention of fully transitioning report preparation from consultants to SCV Water 
staff for future reporting cycles.  

 
Sustainability & Conservation 

 
• Sustainability/Conservation staff coordinated and facilitated the monthly Sustainable Water Action 

Taskforce meeting. 
 

• Staff, with support from Engineering and external consultants, completed design of the Water 
Conservatory Garden and Education Experience.  

 
• Staff, in collaboration with USC’s Dornsife Public Exchange, completed the online customer survey 

component of the Conservation Communication study. Initial results note that approximately 2,000 
customers participated in the online survey.  

 
• Staff completed curation of internal Agency comments for the SCV Water’s Draft Sustainability Plan.  

 

DATE: February 20, 2023 

TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM: Steve Cole  
Assistant General Manager   

SUBJECT: Water Resources and Outreach Section Report 

631

https://www.yourscvwater.com/sites/default/files/SCVWA/your-water/plans-and-reports/water-report/2021-SCV-Water-Report-012723.pdf
https://www.yourscvwater.com/sites/default/files/SCVWA/your-water/plans-and-reports/water-report/2021-SCV-Water-Report-012723.pdf
ajacobs
Item 9.4



2 
 

• Staff participated in a collaboration effort with other water agencies and the US EPA to improve utility 
and function of the EPA’s Portfolio Manager Water Score Tool for Multifamily Apartments.  

• Staff met with members of the Sunset Heights HOA board to provide education on SCV Water 
rebates and water use efficiency opportunities for the HOA’s common landscape irrigation areas.  
 

• Sustainability and Conservation staff conducted and participated in the Agency’s quarterly Green 
Team Meeting.  

 
• Staff, with consultant support, coordinated inspection and troubleshooting of four (4) inverters located 

at Castaic II (upper field) of the PV array at the Rio Vista Water Treatment Plant. Repairs are 
scheduled for February 2023. 
 

Outreach, Legislation and Grants 
   

• With support from the EmpAct Committee, the Agency’s All Staff Meeting and fifth anniversary 
celebration was held on February 1, 2023, which included the premier of a 5th Anniversary Video, 
featuring 30 Agency employees 
 

• Staff shared the new Crisis Communications Plan with the Public Outreach and Legislation 
Committee. 
 

• A press release was issued, announcing the award of a $5 million federal grant for the S-Wells PFAS 
drought resiliency project.  
 

• On behalf of the Santa Clarita Valley Groundwater Sustainability Agency (SCV-GSA), on 
December 15, 2022, staff submitted an application to DWR for $5.3M in funding under the 2021 
Sustainable Groundwater Management (SGM) Grant Program (SGMA Implementation Grant – 
Round 2).  If successful, the grant will fund installation of monitoring wells, a domestic well survey 
and other GSP implementation activities. 

 
• On January 29, 2023, staff submitted an application under DWR’s Prop 1 Round 2 Integrated 

Regional Water Management (IRWM) Grant program.  The $10.9M grant application, on behalf of 
Upper Santa Clara River (USCR) IRWM, includes funding requests of $3.37M for SCV Water 
projects (Sand Canyon Sewer Line Relocation and T&U Wells PFAS Treatment Facilities), as well as 
funding for other USCR IRWM members’ projects. 

 

632



3 
 

WATER RESOURCES 
 
Water Demands 
 

 
Note:    The graph above shows historical annual retail water demands.   
 
2023 Operation Details 
 
• Outlook for continued La Nina conditions is 76% from December 2022 through February 2023. 

 
• The initial 2023 SWP Table A Allocation was set at 5% in December 2022. In January 2023, the 

allocation was increased to 30%. 
 

• 2023 demands have decreased with higher than average precipitation early this winter. Demands 
without mandated conservation, are now estimated at 69,200. Due to wet hydrology improving 
conditions locally and statewide, recovery from the Rosedale and Semitropic banking programs 
have been paused for January-March 2023. 
 

• A Status of Water Supply Update was presented at the February 8, 2023 Water Resources and 
Watershed Committee meeting. Slides provided below show updated snowpack information, local 
precipitation, reservoir conditions and updated operating plan scenarios. 

 

633



4 
 

 
 

 
 

634



5 
 

 
 

 
 

635



6 
 

 
 

  Groundwater Sustainability Plan Implementation 
 
• At its January 9, 2023 Board Meeting, the GSA was updated on the Bouquet Canyon Creek 

Restoration (which is being led by Los Angeles County), presented with an overview of the Salt 
and Nutrient Management Plan, and provided a quarterly update on GSP implementation including 
discussion about filling data gaps and groundwater flowmodel calibration and anticipated 
adjustments to GDE Triggers to align them more closely with observed conditions.  

 
Significant Upcoming Items 

 
• Staff met with Antelope Valley East Kern Water Agency to discuss the development of AVEK’s 

High Desert Water Bank Phase 2. Staff is working with AVEK and other partners to develop a 
Memorandum of Understanding to guide participation. 
 

• At the December 8, 2021 Water Resources and Watershed Committee meeting, staff presented 
two transfer/exchange programs available to SCV Water in partnership with Irvine Ranch Water 
District. Staff was directed to negotiate terms for both a Short-term Drought Relief transfer program 
and a Long-term unbalanced exchange program. The Short-term agreement was approved by the 
Board at its May 17, 2022 meeting and executed thereafter. Staff has been meeting with Rosedale 
Rio Bravo and Irvine Ranch Water District to determine the best path for a Long-Term agreement.  
 

• Staff continues to work with Woodard and Curran to refine the Online New Drop database. Reporting 
features, QA/QC, and dashboards will be improved as the tool is used by Water Resources and 
Customer Service staff. Customized reports continue to be developed to assist staff in completing 
quarterly reports to the Regional Board for the Agency’s recycled water permit. Staff is also 
continuing to work with the Sanitation District to determine average wastewater flows from new 
developments as part of an ongoing process to perfect New Drop flow estimates. Additionally, 
improvements continue to be made to the online database with the help of Customer Care 
Department feedback. A QA/QC process is being conducted on the New Drop database to ensure 

636



7 
 

that every drop is captured in the quarterly reports. This task will be completed before the end of FY 
2022/23. Staff also plans to integrate the New Drop database into the Customer Service database 
once all customer accounts have been moved into a single accounting system to improve efficiencies 
and reduce data input errors. Five additional members of the Customer Service team are being cross 
trained to assist with data entry and quality assurance. Lastly, the annual and quarterly reports for 
the existing recycled water permit will be submitted in March 2023.  
 

• Staff, including SCV Water’s IT and Operations staff, have been working with consultants to survey 
all SCV Water wellheads so that groundwater elevations are referenced to the most up to date 
reference point elevations, and to incorporate groundwater elevation data into a new web-based 
data management system (DMS). Use of this web based DMS allows SCV Water to have more 
efficient access to up to date groundwater elevation plots for the GSP wells including those needed 
for Groundwater Sustainability Plan compliance. At this stage, this new DMS is focused on GSP 
wells, but it can be scaled up to include other SCV Water wells at a later date, if warranted. 
 

• Staff has completed the transition of SCV Water’s Excel based MBK Water Supply Reliability Model 
to the GoldSim platform.  A PowerPoint presentation was prepared and presented at the February 8, 
2023 Water Resources and Watershed Committee to illustrate the value and range of analysis that 
can be performed with the new GoldSim model. Currently, staff is analyzing how DWR manages 
carryover storage of Article 56 to better represent these rules in the GoldSim model. Following 
revision of Article 56 rules, staff will prepare additional scenarios to be presented to the Water 
Resources and Watershed Committee for input and feedback. These scenarios will involve the 
evaluation of potential investment decisions that will have to be made by the Agency in the near-
term, such as continued participation in Sites Reservoir planning and participation in the AVEK 
banking program. 

 
• As part of GSP implementation, two adjacent groundwater recharge sites have been selected on the 

east end of the Santa Clara River Basin for inclusion in the recharge feasibility study being 
conducted with the help of GSI technical consultants. The geophysical portion of the fieldwork was 
completed in mid-January 2022 and a summary report was received on March 30, 2022. A 
delineation and biological assessment to determine permitting requirements was completed the week 
of June 1, 2022, and a draft report was received on August 11, 2022. Staff met with CDFW personnel 
on November 18, 2022 to discuss the findings of the delineation report and next steps. A CDFW 
notification package was submitted on January 17, 2023. After a minimum 60-day review period an 
agreement will be drafted and the infiltration and borehole testing can be completed at the Pinetree 
location. 
 

• Staff continues engagement in a data management effort to identify opportunities for streamlining 
certain data collection and post-processing efforts. This project is primarily focused on all data 
flowing to the Water Resources team. Data collection efforts are underway to gain an understanding 
of the extent of information collected by the various departments, the reports that each department 
generates, and existing methods/tools used for data organization within the Agency.  
 

• Staff is collaborating with Provost and Pritchard and Thomas Harder & Company to analyze 
alternative land uses for the Devil’s Den property to maximize the property’s value to the Agency 
including leases for solar generation and long-term agricultural leases.  

 
• Staff has received a formal request for a Water Supply Verification (WSV) from the City of Santa 

Clarita for the Sand Canyon Village project and is awaiting signed documentation and project 
information from the developer to prepare the Verification. Staff is also working on the WSV for the 
Tesoro Del Valle project, although a formal request for this has not been submitted by the City. 

637



8 
 

 
• The Sites Reservoir Authority received a response to its water rights application from the State Water 

Resources Control Board. The Board requested additional information regarding water availability 
should future Delta Water Quality Control Plans being considered by the Board were enacted. 

 
• In order to maximize the beneficial uses of recycled water and adhere to pending and/or future 

environmental requirements, staff work is working with Woodard and Curran to develop a Scope of 
Work (SOW) to include in a future RFP for an update to SCV Water’s Recycled Water Master Plan. A 
draft SOW was received on January 10, 2023 and is under review by staff. A revised second draft 
scope is expected in March 2023. 

 
LEGISLATIVE/GOVERNMENT AFFAIRS  
 
• SCV Water hosted the quarterly luncheon of the Special Districts Association of North Los Angeles 

County on January 25, 2023. There were 30 people in attendance. 
 
• A briefing has been scheduled on April 5, 2023, for the legislative representatives serving our area. 

Staff will provide an overview of challenges and priorities.  
 

Upcoming Sponsorships and Event Participation 
 
• Urban Water Institute Spring Conference – February 22-24, 2023 
• KHTS Sacramento Trip – March 20-21, 2023 

 
Community Events 
 
• JCI Get Real Adulting 101 – March 18, 2023 
• Valencia Public Library – Water Conservation Team Presentation – April 3, 2023 
• CSUN Nursing Students Presentation by Jeff Koelewyn – April 20, 2023 
• KHTS SCV Home and Garden Show – April 29-30, 2023 

 
OUTREACH – Social/Digital Media & Education 
 
Staff continues to share water news, conservation tips, featured plants and job openings on our social 
media and e-news channels.  
 

Outlet Description Notable Activity Audience 

Facebook 
Social media 

Across all three platforms in January: 1.100 
Instagram    Total Engagement:  1,389 (all outlets)  1,609 
Twitter    Total Impressions:  40,392 (all outlets)  1,250 
Website yourSCVwater.com Total users in December 2022 14,041 
 Top visited pages: Residential rebates was the second most 

visited page in December and January.   

Water Currents Customer e-newsletter Open rate for January 2023 – 49% (Average 
industry open rate: 21.64%)   16,467 

 

638



9 
 

Public 
Education -

2023 
Activity 

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec  2023  2022 

Education 
(virtual)**               

Students  958             958  6,178 
Teachers  76             76  312 

Garden 
Classes 
(virtual and 
in-person**) 

35** 
                520 

* Data not yet available 
 
Significant Ongoing or Upcoming Items 

 
• Staff has received 40 applications for the first Water Academy, planned for March/April 2023. Staff 

will select up to 25 to participate in this pilot session. Topics, speakers and collateral material have 
been identified, and the staff is working on the presentations. presentations. 
 

• The new website is anticipated to launch on February 27, 2023. 
 

• Staff has updated drought key messaging for winter/spring 2023, which focuses on: debunking 
drought myths, taking advantage of the rain by turning off sprinklers, switching to sustainable 
landscapes, as well as available rebates and resources. Staff is implementing this messaging into 
various outreach tools (i.e., paid advertising, social media, and video content). 
 

• Inclusive Engagement training is scheduled for February 22, 2023. Consultants will lead the team 
through the new draft engagement guide. 
 

• Water Matters: After the Storms is scheduled for March 1 at 6 p.m. Staff will give updates on our 
water supply, project, and conservation updates. This is part of a new quarterly virtual webinar 
series. 

 
• As California’s ongoing drought and Governor Newsom’s Executive Order N-7-22 have rendered the 

development of Rosedale Phase 2 Wells Project infeasible at this time. Staff is investigating the 
possibility of moving BOR WaterSmart DRP Program grant funding ($1.46M) to an alternate project 
within the Rosedale area which develops dry year water supply recovery (the same benefit as the 
grant funded project).  

 
• Staff will submit a request for funding to Congressman Mike Garcia’s office for consideration under 

the FY2024 Community Project Funding Program (Earmarks).  The Appropriations Committee has 
not yet issued guidance for these Earmark requests. 

 
SUSTAINABILITY & WATER CONSERVATION 
  
Status of SCV Water Drought Response 
 
This section includes a condensed version of monthly drought updates and includes an overview of 
current regulatory status, State Water Resource Control Board monthly conservation reports, SCV Water 
monthly conservation performance relative to 2020’s consumption and the Governor’s 15% of 2020 

639



10 
 

voluntary conservation request, and monthly and cumulative conservation trends compared to the same 
metrics.  
 
Regulatory Overview (No Updates for January 2023) 

Entity/Agency Regulatory Status Notes 

 
 
Governor 
Newsom 

• Voluntary 15% v. 2020 Call (July 8, 2021) 
• Statewide Drought Emergency Declaration (October 

19, 2021) 
• EO N-7-22 directs the SWRCB to require Stage/Level 

2 Water Shortage Response implementation and for 
the Water Board consider defining and prohibiting the 
watering of non-functional turf. (March 28, 2022) 

• April 1, 2021 (2 Counties) 
• May 10, 2021 (Extended to 41 

Counties) 
• July 8, 2021 (Extended to 50 

Counties) 
• October 19, 2021 (Extended to 

Statewide) 
 
 
State Water 
Resources 
Control 
Board 

• Monthly Conservation Performance Reporting (July 
2021) 

• Adopted Emergency Regulations (January 4, 2022) 
• Adopted Emergency Regulations which require 

implementation of Stage 2 water shortage response 
measures and bans the irrigation of non-functional turf 
with potable water (May 24, 2022). 

• Emergency regulations include 
water waste restrictions and 
provisions specific to HOA CCR 
implementation. 

• SCV Water preparing Non-
Functional Turf engagement and 
education initiative to promote “Turn 
it off, Cap it, or Convert it!” 

 
 
SCV Water 

• Stage 2 – WSCP (4/26/2022) 
• Stage 2 – Water Conservation and Water Supply 

Shortage Ordinance (4/26/2022) 
• Stage 1 – WSCP (11/16/2021) 
• Stage 1 – Water Conservation and Water Supply 

Shortage Ordinance (Ordinance)(11/16/2021) 

• WSCP includes strategies which 
prioritize education and incentive to 
achieve up to 20% conservation. 

• Stage 2 of Ordinance includes water 
waste restrictions.  

• Stage 2 of Ordinance also included 
watering restrictions to 3 days per 
week, two 5-minute cycles, and 
morning and evening watering. 

 
State Water Resources Control Board (Monthly Conservation Reporting) 

Month Year Statewide South Coast SCV Water 

July 2021 -1.8% -0.2% +5.1% 
August 2021 -4.9% -3.1% +.44% 
September 2021 -3.9% -4.2% -4.3% 
October 2021 -13.2% -12.2% -11.7% 
November 2021 -7.1% +0.7% +2.6% 
December 2021 -15.7% -18.4% -28.9% 
January 2022 +2.6% +1.7% -4.2% 
February 2022 -0.5% -0.2% +6.8% 
March 2022 +18.9% +26.9% +56.3% 
April 2022 +17.6% +25.6% +47.4% 
May 2022 -3.1% -2.2% -4.76% 
June 2022 -7.7% -5.9% -8.2% 
July 2022 -10.4% -8.6% -9.4% 
August 2022 -10.5% -9.7% -10.1% 
September 2022 -10.9% -11.9% -17.2% 
October 2022 -12.6% -14.4% -14.1% 
November 2022 -14.3% -13.9% -23.2% 
December 2022 -17.1% -20.3% -36.3% 
January 2023   -29.8% 

Cumulative Savings -6.0%%% -4.9%% -6.3% 
Note:  1. The State Water Resources Control Board conservation reporting data has a one to two-month lag. This table includes most 

recent data as reported on the Board’s website.  
 2. Monthly drought conservation statistics adjusted following a production meter correction (Feb. 17, 2023) 
 

640



11 
 

SCV Water – Monthly Conservation Performance (Current Production v. 2020 and 15% of 2020 
Target in Acre Feet) 
 
SCV Water - Drought Performance v. 2020 (2022 & 2023) 

 
 
SCV Water – Monthly and Cumulative Conservation Performance Trends (In Percent) 

 

641



12 
 

 
 
 
 

642

ajacobs
Matt Stone



En
gi

ne
er

in
g 

an
d 

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 C

om
m

itt
ee

 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 C

al
en

da
r

FY
 2

02
2/

23

Ite
m

July 7 Comm

July 19 Board

Aug  2 Board

Aug 4 Comm

Aug 16 Board

Sept 1 Comm

Sept 6 Board

Sept  20 Board

Oct 4 Board

Oct 6 Comm

Oct 18 Board

Nov 1 Board

Nov 3 Comm

Nov 15 Board

Dec 6 Board

Dec 8 Comm

Dec 20 Board

Jan 3 Board

Jan 5 Comm

Jan 17 Board

Feb 2 Comm

Feb 7 Board

Feb 21 Board

March 2 Comm

March 7 Board

March 21 Board

April 4 Board

April 6 Comm

April 18 Board

May 2 Board

May 4 Comm

May 16 Board

Jun 1 Comm

June 6 Board

June 20 Board

July 4 Board

1
M

on
th

ly
 C

om
m

itt
ee

 P
la

nn
in

g 
C

al
en

da
r

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

P
P

P
P

2
C

IP
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

St
at

us
 R

ep
or

t
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
P

P
P

P
3

M
on

th
ly

 O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 a

nd
 P

ro
du

ct
io

n 
R

ep
or

t
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
P

P
P

P
4

Th
ird

 P
ar

ty
 F

un
de

d 
Ag

re
em

en
ts

 Q
ua

rte
rly

 R
ep

or
t

C
C

C
P

5
Q

ua
rte

rly
 S

af
et

y 
Pr

og
ra

m
 P

re
se

nt
at

io
n

C
C

C
P

6
R

ea
l P

ro
pe

rty
 A

ct
iv

ity
 R

ep
or

t
C

P
7

An
nu

al
 S

af
et

y 
Pr

og
ra

m
 U

pd
at

e 
(F

Y 
21

-2
2)

C
8

C
ha

pt
er

 8
 A

gr
ee

m
en

t P
ro

pe
rti

es
 

T
T

9
R

ev
ie

w
 P

ro
po

se
d 

FY
 2

02
3/

24
 M

aj
or

 C
ap

ita
l P

ro
je

ct
s

P

10

R
ec

om
m

en
d 

Ap
pr

ov
al

 o
f (

1)
 a

 R
es

ol
ut

io
n 

fo
r C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

C
on

tra
ct

 w
ith

 P
ac

ifi
c 

H
yd

ro
te

ch
 C

or
po

ra
tio

n 
an

d 
(2

) a
 

Pu
rc

ha
se

 O
rd

er
 to

 H
az

en
 a

nd
 S

aw
ye

r f
or

 E
ng

in
ee

rin
g 

Se
rv

ic
es

 D
ur

in
g 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
an

d 
(3

) a
 P

ur
ch

as
e 

O
rd

er
 to

 
M

W
H

 C
on

st
ru

ct
or

s 
fo

r C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
M

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 
In

sp
ec

tio
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

 fo
r t

he
 S

an
ta

 C
la

ra
 a

nd
 H

on
by

 W
el

ls
 

PF
AS

 G
ro

un
dw

at
er

 T
re

at
m

en
t P

ro
je

ct

C
C

11
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
Ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f A
ut

ho
riz

in
g 

SC
V 

W
at

er
 to

 
Ex

ec
ut

e 
a 

Q
ui

tc
la

im
 D

ee
d 

– 
Pa

rti
al

 R
el

ea
se

 o
f E

as
em

en
t 

to
 W

al
-M

ar
t R

ea
l E

st
at

e 
Bu

si
ne

ss
 T

ru
st

 
C

C

12

R
ec

om
m

en
d 

Au
th

or
iz

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 G
en

er
al

 M
an

ag
er

 to
 

Ex
ec

ut
e 

a 
Pu

rc
ha

se
 O

rd
er

 A
m

en
dm

en
t t

o 
Ke

nn
ed

y 
Je

nk
s 

fo
r A

dd
iti

on
al

 E
ng

in
ee

rin
g 

Se
rv

ic
es

 D
ur

in
g 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
an

d 
a 

Pu
rc

ha
se

 O
rd

er
 A

m
en

dm
en

t t
o 

M
N

S 
En

gi
ne

er
s 

fo
r 

Ad
di

tio
na

l C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
M

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 In
sp

ec
tio

n 
Se

rv
ic

es
 fo

r t
he

 V
al

le
y 

C
en

te
r W

el
l P

FA
S 

G
ro

un
dw

at
er

 
Tr

ea
tm

en
t P

ro
je

ct

C
C

13

R
ec

om
m

en
d 

Ap
pr

ov
al

 to
 A

ut
ho

riz
e 

G
en

er
al

 M
an

ag
er

 to
 

En
te

r i
nt

o 
Ag

re
em

en
t w

ith
 T

er
ra

Ve
rd

e 
En

er
gy

 fo
r L

on
g-

Te
rm

 O
pe

ra
tio

n/
Pr

ev
en

ta
tiv

e 
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 o

f t
he

 A
ge

nc
y’

s 
Ph

ot
ov

ol
ta

ic
 A

ss
et

s

C
C

14
C

en
tra

l P
ar

k 
Le

as
e 

In
fo

rm
at

io
na

l P
re

se
nt

at
io

n
C

C

15

R
ec

om
m

en
d 

Ap
pr

ov
al

 o
f a

 R
es

ol
ut

io
n 

Au
th

or
iz

in
g 

a 
Pu

rc
ha

se
 O

rd
er

 to
 K

en
ne

dy
/J

en
ks

 C
on

su
lta

nt
s 

fo
r 

In
sp

ec
tio

n 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

fo
r t

he
 C

as
ta

ic
 C

on
du

it 
Pi

pe
lin

e 
R

ea
ch

es
 3

 &
 4

 P
ro

je
ct

C
C

16
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
Ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f a
 R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
Au

th
or

iz
in

g 
a 

Pu
rc

ha
se

 O
rd

er
 to

 H
az

en
 &

 S
aw

ye
r f

or
 P

la
nn

in
g 

Se
rv

ic
es

 
fo

r t
he

 M
as

te
r P

la
n 

Pr
oj

ec
t

C
C

17

R
ec

om
m

en
d 

Ap
pr

ov
al

 o
f a

 R
es

ol
ut

io
n 

Ad
op

tin
g 

In
iti

al
 

St
ud

y-
M

iti
ga

te
d 

N
eg

at
iv

e 
D

ec
la

ra
tio

n 
U

nd
er

 th
e 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l Q
ua

lit
y 

Ac
t a

nd
 a

 R
es

ol
ut

io
n 

Au
th

or
iz

in
g 

a 
Pu

rc
ha

se
 O

rd
er

 to
 K

en
ne

dy
/J

en
ks

 C
on

su
lta

nt
s 

fo
r F

in
al

 
D

es
ig

n 
Se

rv
ic

es
 fo

r t
he

 W
el

l 2
05

 G
ro

un
dw

at
er

 T
re

at
m

en
t 

Pr
oj

ec
t

C
C

18
Su

rp
lu

s 
La

nd
 A

ct
 In

fo
rm

at
io

na
l P

re
se

nt
at

io
n 

C

19

R
ec

om
m

en
d 

Ap
pr

ov
al

 o
f a

 P
ur

ch
as

e 
O

rd
er

 to
 C

iv
ilt

ec
, I

nc
. 

fo
r C

ha
ng

e 
O

rd
er

 N
o.

 1
 fo

r F
in

al
 D

es
ig

n 
Se

rv
ic

es
 fo

r N
ew

 
D

ea
ne

 Z
on

e 
Ta

nk
 a

t S
an

d 
C

an
yo

n 
Pl

az
a 

– 
D

es
ig

n 
Pr

es
tre

ss
ed

 C
on

cr
et

e 
Ta

nk
 In

st
ea

d 
of

 W
el

de
d 

St
ee

l T
an

k 

C
C

20
W

ire
le

ss
 C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 R

en
ta

l P
ro

gr
am

 In
fo

rm
at

io
na

l 
Pr

es
en

ta
tio

n 
C

21

R
ec

om
m

en
d 

Au
th

or
iz

in
g 

th
e 

G
en

er
al

 M
an

ag
er

 to
 E

xe
cu

te
 

a 
C

on
tra

ct
 w

ith
 T

riP
oi

nt
e 

H
om

es
 H

ol
di

ng
s,

 In
c.

 fo
r S

C
V 

W
at

er
’s

 F
ai

r S
ha

re
 C

os
ts

 fo
r t

he
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

of
 a

 2
.0

8 
M

G
 P

re
st

re
ss

ed
 C

on
cr

et
e 

Ta
nk

 fo
r t

he
 D

ea
ne

 Z
on

e,
 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Q
ua

lit
y 

As
su

ra
nc

e 
an

d 
C

on
tro

l 
Te

st
in

g,
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

In
sp

ec
tio

ns
, a

nd
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Se

rv
ic

es
 D

ur
in

g 
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

C
C

P 
- P

la
nn

ed
 

T-
Te

nt
at

iv
e

C
-C

om
pl

et
ed

Pa
ge

 1
 o

f 4

643

tbell
9.5



En
gi

ne
er

in
g 

an
d 

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 C

om
m

itt
ee

 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 C

al
en

da
r

FY
 2

02
2/

23

Ite
m

July 7 Comm

July 19 Board

Aug  2 Board

Aug 4 Comm

Aug 16 Board

Sept 1 Comm

Sept 6 Board

Sept  20 Board

Oct 4 Board

Oct 6 Comm

Oct 18 Board

Nov 1 Board

Nov 3 Comm

Nov 15 Board

Dec 6 Board

Dec 8 Comm

Dec 20 Board

Jan 3 Board

Jan 5 Comm

Jan 17 Board

Feb 2 Comm

Feb 7 Board

Feb 21 Board

March 2 Comm

March 7 Board

March 21 Board

April 4 Board

April 6 Comm

April 18 Board

May 2 Board

May 4 Comm

May 16 Board

Jun 1 Comm

June 6 Board

June 20 Board

July 4 Board

22
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
Ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f T
ec

hn
ic

al
 R

ev
is

io
n 

to
 th

e 
Bo

ar
d 

of
 D

ire
ct

or
s 

Po
lic

ie
s 

an
d 

Pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 R

eg
ar

di
ng

 G
en

er
al

 
M

an
ag

er
 A

ut
ho

rit
y 

to
 T

ra
ns

fe
r E

as
em

en
ts

C
C

23
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
Ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f a
 C

on
tra

ct
 to

 C
on

du
ct

 a
 P

ilo
t-

Sc
al

e 
Ev

al
ua

tio
n 

of
 F

ou
r A

lte
rn

at
iv

e 
Ad

so
rb

en
ts

 fo
r P

FA
S 

R
em

ov
al

 fr
om

 S
C

VW
A 

G
ro

un
dw

at
er

C
C

24
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
Ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f a
 R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
fo

r a
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

C
on

tra
ct

 w
ith

 P
as

o 
R

ob
le

s 
Ta

nk
 fo

r t
he

 N
ew

ha
ll 

Ta
nk

s 
1 

an
d 

1 
A 

– 
Ta

nk
 U

pg
ra

de
s 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

C
C

25

R
ec

om
m

en
d 

Ap
pr

ov
al

 to
 A

ut
ho

riz
e 

th
e 

G
en

er
al

 M
an

ag
er

 
to

 E
xe

cu
te

 a
 C

on
tra

ct
 w

ith
 G

S 
Sa

nd
 C

an
yo

n 
fo

r R
en

t, 
LL

C
 

fo
r S

C
V 

W
at

er
’s

 F
ai

r S
ha

re
 C

os
t t

o 
C

on
st

ru
ct

 th
e 

Sa
nd

 
C

an
yo

n 
Pl

az
a 

Pu
m

p 
St

at
io

n,
 In

cl
ud

in
g 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
Q

ua
lit

y 
As

su
ra

nc
e 

an
d 

C
on

tro
l T

es
tin

g,
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

In
sp

ec
tio

ns
, a

nd
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Se

rv
ic

es
 D

ur
in

g 
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

C
C

26

R
ec

om
m

en
d 

Ad
op

tin
g 

a 
R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
Au

th
or

iz
in

g 
th

e 
G

en
er

al
 M

an
ag

er
 to

 A
pp

ly
 fo

r G
ra

nt
 F

un
di

ng
 U

nd
er

 th
e 

20
22

 U
rb

an
 C

om
m

un
ity

 D
ro

ug
ht

 R
el

ie
f P

ro
gr

am
 a

nd
 

Ex
ec

ut
e 

a 
G

ra
nt

 A
gr

ee
m

en
t w

ith
 th

e 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t o
f W

at
er

 
R

es
ou

rc
es

 fo
r t

he
 S

au
gu

s 
W

el
ls

 3
 &

 4
 (R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t 

W
el

ls
) W

el
l E

qu
ip

m
en

t a
nd

 S
ite

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
t P

ro
je

ct
 a

nd
 

S 
W

el
ls

 P
FA

S 
an

d 
D

is
in

fe
ct

io
n 

Fa
ci

lit
ie

s

C
C

27

R
ec

om
m

en
d 

Ap
pr

ov
al

 to
 A

ut
ho

riz
e 

th
e 

G
en

er
al

 M
an

ag
er

 
to

 E
xe

cu
te

 a
 C

on
tra

ct
 w

ith
 T

riP
oi

nt
e 

H
om

es
 IE

-S
D

, I
nc

.  
fo

r S
C

V 
W

at
er

’s
 F

ai
r S

ha
re

 C
os

t t
o 

C
on

st
ru

ct
 th

e 
Sk

yl
in

e 
R

an
ch

 D
ea

ne
 P

um
p 

St
at

io
n,

 In
cl

ud
in

g 
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Q
ua

lit
y 

As
su

ra
nc

e 
an

d 
C

on
tro

l T
es

tin
g,

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
In

sp
ec

tio
ns

, a
nd

 E
ng

in
ee

rin
g 

Se
rv

ic
es

 D
ur

in
g 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 

C
C

28
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
Ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f a
 R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
Au

th
or

iz
in

g 
a 

Pu
rc

ha
se

 O
rd

er
 to

 L
ee

 &
 R

o 
In

c.
 fo

r P
la

nn
in

g 
Se

rv
ic

es
 fo

r 
th

e 
C

at
al

a 
Pu

m
p 

St
at

io
n 

an
d 

Pi
pe

lin
es

 P
ro

je
ct

C
C

29

R
ec

om
m

en
d 

Ap
pr

ov
al

 o
f a

 R
es

ol
ut

io
n 

Au
th

or
iz

in
g 

a 
Pu

rc
ha

se
 O

rd
er

 to
 H

az
en

 a
nd

 S
aw

ye
r f

or
 P

la
nn

in
g 

Se
rv

ic
es

 fo
r t

he
 S

au
gu

s 
W

el
ls

 (N
11

, N
12

, N
13

) 
G

ro
un

dw
at

er
 T

re
at

m
en

t I
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 P

ro
je

ct

C
C

30
Ad

op
tio

n 
of

 L
oc

al
 H

az
ar

d 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

Pl
an

C

31

R
es

ol
ut

io
n 

of
 th

e 
Bo

ar
d 

of
 D

ire
ct

or
s 

of
 th

e 
Sa

nt
a 

C
la

rit
a 

Va
lle

y 
W

at
er

 A
ge

nc
y 

Au
th

or
iz

in
g 

a 
Pu

rc
ha

se
 O

rd
er

 to
 L

ee
 

+
R

o,
 In

c.
 fo

r P
la

nn
in

g 
Se

rv
ic

es
 fo

r t
he

 S
an

d 
C

an
yo

n
R

es
er

vo
ir 

Ex
pa

ns
io

n 
Pr

oj
ec

t, 
an

d 
Fi

nd
in

g 
th

at
 th

e 
Au

th
or

iz
at

io
n 

is
 N

ot
 a

 P
ro

je
ct

 S
ub

je
ct

 to
 C

EQ
A

C
C

32

R
ec

om
m

en
d 

Fi
nd

in
g 

th
at

 th
e 

Ap
pr

ov
al

 o
f (

1)
 a

 R
es

ol
ut

io
n 

fo
r C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

C
on

tra
ct

 w
ith

 P
ac

ifi
c 

H
yd

ro
te

ch
 

C
or

po
ra

tio
n 

an
d 

(2
) a

 P
ur

ch
as

e 
O

rd
er

 to
 K

en
ne

dy
 J

en
ks

 
fo

r E
ng

in
ee

rin
g 

Se
rv

ic
es

 D
ur

in
g 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
an

d 
(3

) a
 

Pu
rc

ha
se

 O
rd

er
 to

 M
KN

 C
PM

, L
LC

 fo
r C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

M
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 In

sp
ec

tio
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

 fo
r t

he
 W

el
l 2

01
 

G
ro

un
dw

at
er

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 P
ro

je
ct

 is
 E

xe
m

pt
 fr

om
 C

EQ
A 

pu
rs

ua
nt

 to
 C

EQ
A 

G
ui

de
lin

es
 S

ec
tio

n 
15

30
1,

 a
nd

 
al

te
rn

at
iv

el
y,

 S
ec

tio
n 

15
30

3,
 a

nd
 A

ut
ho

riz
e 

Ap
pr

ov
al

 o
f t

he
 

Pu
rc

ha
se

 O
rd

er
s

C
C

P 
- P

la
nn

ed
 

T-
Te

nt
at

iv
e

C
-C

om
pl

et
ed

Pa
ge

 2
 o

f 4

644



En
gi

ne
er

in
g 

an
d 

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 C

om
m

itt
ee

 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 C

al
en

da
r

FY
 2

02
2/

23

Ite
m

July 7 Comm

July 19 Board

Aug  2 Board

Aug 4 Comm

Aug 16 Board

Sept 1 Comm

Sept 6 Board

Sept  20 Board

Oct 4 Board

Oct 6 Comm

Oct 18 Board

Nov 1 Board

Nov 3 Comm

Nov 15 Board

Dec 6 Board

Dec 8 Comm

Dec 20 Board

Jan 3 Board

Jan 5 Comm

Jan 17 Board

Feb 2 Comm

Feb 7 Board

Feb 21 Board

March 2 Comm

March 7 Board

March 21 Board

April 4 Board

April 6 Comm

April 18 Board

May 2 Board

May 4 Comm

May 16 Board

Jun 1 Comm

June 6 Board

June 20 Board

July 4 Board

33

R
ec

om
m

en
d 

Ap
pr

ov
al

 o
f (

1)
 a

 R
es

ol
ut

io
n 

fo
r a

 D
ep

os
it 

to
 

M
et

ro
po

lit
an

 W
at

er
 D

is
tri

ct
 o

f S
ou

th
er

n 
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 a
nd

 (2
) a

 
Pu

rc
ha

se
 O

rd
er

 to
 M

et
ro

po
lit

an
 W

at
er

 D
is

tri
ct

 o
f S

ou
th

er
n 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 fo

r P
la

nn
in

g 
an

d 
En

gi
ne

er
in

g 
Se

rv
ic

es
 fo

r t
he

 
Fo

ot
hi

ll 
Fe

ed
er

 S
er

vi
ce

 C
on

ne
ct

io
n 

C
LW

A-
01

 P
ip

e 
R

ep
ai

r 
Pr

oj
ec

t W
hi

ch
 is

 E
xe

m
pt

 F
ro

m
 C

EQ
A 

Pu
rs

ua
nt

 to
 C

EQ
A 

G
ui

de
lin

es
 S

ec
tio

n 
15

30
1,

 a
nd

 A
lte

rn
at

iv
el

y,
 S

ec
tio

n 
15

30
3,

 a
nd

 A
ut

ho
riz

e 
Ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f t
he

 D
ep

os
it

C
C

34

R
ec

om
m

en
d 

Ap
pr

ov
al

 o
f (

1)
 a

 R
es

ol
ut

io
n 

Ap
pr

ov
in

g 
th

e 
Ad

de
nd

um
 to

 th
e 

M
is

si
on

 V
illa

ge
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l I

m
pa

ct
 

R
ep

or
t, 

Ap
pr

ov
in

g 
th

e 
Ba

ck
co

un
try

 R
es

er
vo

ir 
an

d 
Ba

ck
co

un
try

 P
um

p 
St

at
io

n 
Pr

oj
ec

ts
, a

nd
 A

do
pt

in
g 

th
e 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

on
ito

rin
g 

an
d 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
Pr

og
ra

m
 U

nd
er

 th
e 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l Q

ua
lit

y 
Ac

t P
ur

su
an

t t
o 

C
EQ

A 
G

ui
de

lin
es

 S
ec

tio
n 

15
16

4 
fo

r t
he

 B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

 P
um

p 
St

at
io

n 
an

d 
Ba

ck
co

un
try

 R
es

er
vo

ir 
Pr

oj
ec

ts
; a

nd
 a

 (2
) 

R
es

ol
ut

io
n 

Au
th

or
iz

in
g 

a 
Pu

rc
ha

se
 O

rd
er

 to
 C

an
no

n 
C

or
p.

 
fo

r F
in

al
 D

es
ig

n 
Se

rv
ic

es
 fo

r t
he

 B
ac

kc
ou

nt
ry

 P
um

p 
St

at
io

n 
Pr

oj
ec

t a
nd

 a
 P

ur
ch

as
e 

O
rd

er
 to

 M
ic

ha
el

 B
ak

er
 

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l, 
In

c.
 fo

r F
in

al
 D

es
ig

n 
Se

rv
ic

es
 fo

r t
he

 
Ba

ck
co

un
try

 R
es

er
vo

ir 
Pr

oj
ec

t

C
P

35

R
ec

om
m

en
d 

Ap
pr

ov
al

 o
f A

do
pt

in
g 

a 
R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
Au

th
or

iz
in

g 
SC

V 
W

at
er

 to
 E

xe
cu

te
 th

e 
Ag

re
em

en
t S

et
tli

ng
 

R
ea

l P
ro

pe
rty

 R
ig

ht
s 

Be
tw

ee
n 

SC
V 

W
at

er
 a

nd
 W

oo
ds

id
e 

05
S,

 L
P 

an
d 

R
eq

ui
re

d 
C

EQ
A 

Fi
nd

in
g

P
P

36
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
Ap

pr
ov

al
 to

 C
on

tra
ct

 fo
r R

em
ov

al
 a

nd
 

R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t o
f O

ne
 F

ilt
er

 M
ed

ia
 a

t E
SF

P 
an

d 
R

VW
TP

P
P

37
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
Ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f t
he

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t o
f 1

,1
55

 m
et

er
s 

as
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 A
M

I M
et

er
 R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t P

ro
gr

am
P

P

38

R
ec

om
m

en
d 

Ap
pr

ov
al

 o
f (

1)
 A

do
pt

in
g 

a 
R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
fo

r a
 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
C

on
tra

ct
 w

ith
 J

 V
eg

a 
En

gi
ne

er
in

g,
 In

c.
, (

2)
 a

 
Pu

rc
ha

se
 O

rd
er

 to
 F

ilip
pi

n 
En

gi
ne

er
in

g 
fo

r C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
M

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 In
sp

ec
tio

n 
Se

rv
ic

es
 fo

r t
he

 D
ic

ka
so

n 
W

at
er

 L
in

e 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 P

ro
je

ct
 a

nd
 (3

) F
in

di
ng

 th
at

 th
e 

C
on

tra
ct

 A
gr

ee
m

en
t i

s 
Ex

em
pt

 fr
om

 C
EQ

A 
Pu

rs
ua

nt
 to

 
C

EQ
A 

G
ui

de
lin

es
 S

ec
tio

n 
15

28
2,

 a
nd

 A
lte

rn
at

iv
el

y,
 

Se
ct

io
n 

15
30

2

P
P

39
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
Ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f A
do

pt
in

g 
a 

R
es

ol
ut

io
n 

Aw
ar

di
ng

 
a 

C
on

tra
ct

 fo
r P

um
p 

an
d 

M
ot

or
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 a

t W
el

ls
 N

7 
an

d 
N

8
P

P

40

R
ec

om
m

en
d 

Au
th

or
iz

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 G
en

er
al

 M
an

ag
er

 to
 

Ex
ec

ut
e 

a 
Pu

rc
ha

se
 O

rd
er

 A
m

en
dm

en
t t

o 
H

az
en

 a
nd

 
Sa

w
ye

r, 
In

c.
, f

or
 A

dd
iti

on
al

 E
ng

in
ee

rin
g 

Se
rv

ic
es

 fo
r t

he
 

N
ew

 T
7,

 U
4 

an
d 

U
6 

W
el

ls
 P

FA
S 

Tr
ea

tm
en

t, 
Sa

ug
us

 1
 a

nd
 

2 
W

el
ls

 V
O

C
 T

re
at

m
en

t a
nd

 D
is

in
fe

ct
io

n 
Fa

ci
lit

y 
at

 th
e 

Ex
is

tin
g 

R
io

 V
is

ta
 In

ta
ke

 P
um

p 
St

at
io

n 
Fo

r W
hi

ch
 th

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t i
s 

Ex
em

pt
 F

ro
m

 C
EQ

A 
Pu

rs
ua

nt
 to

 C
EQ

A 
G

ui
de

lin
es

 S
ec

tio
n 

15
30

1

P
P

41
D

is
cu

ss
io

n 
of

 S
ta

ffi
ng

 C
on

si
de

ra
tio

ns
P

42

R
ec

om
m

en
d 

Ap
pr

ov
al

 o
f R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
Au

th
or

iz
in

g 
SC

V 
W

at
er

 to
 E

xe
cu

te
 W

at
er

 S
er

vi
ce

 A
gr

ee
m

en
ts

 w
ith

 th
e 

Lo
s 

An
ge

le
s 

R
es

id
en

tia
l C

om
m

un
ity

 a
nd

 L
ily

 o
f t

he
 V

al
le

y 
M

ob
ile

 V
illa

ge

P
P

43
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
Au

th
or

iz
at

io
n 

fo
r t

he
 G

en
er

al
 M

an
ag

er
 to

 
Ex

ec
ut

e 
a 

Pu
rc

ha
se

 O
rd

er
 A

m
en

dm
en

t f
or

 A
dd

iti
on

al
 

D
es

ig
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

 fo
r S

au
gu

s 
W

el
ls

 3
 &

 4
 P

ro
je

ct
P

P

44
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
Ap

pr
ov

al
  A

w
ar

di
ng

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
C

on
tra

ct
 fo

r 
th

e 
Sa

ug
us

 W
el

l 2
 R

eh
ab

ilit
at

io
n 

Pr
oj

ec
t

P
P

P 
- P

la
nn

ed
 

T-
Te

nt
at

iv
e

C
-C

om
pl

et
ed

Pa
ge

 3
 o

f 4

645



En
gi

ne
er

in
g 

an
d 

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 C

om
m

itt
ee

 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 C

al
en

da
r

FY
 2

02
2/

23

Ite
m

July 7 Comm

July 19 Board

Aug  2 Board

Aug 4 Comm

Aug 16 Board

Sept 1 Comm

Sept 6 Board

Sept  20 Board

Oct 4 Board

Oct 6 Comm

Oct 18 Board

Nov 1 Board

Nov 3 Comm

Nov 15 Board

Dec 6 Board

Dec 8 Comm

Dec 20 Board

Jan 3 Board

Jan 5 Comm

Jan 17 Board

Feb 2 Comm

Feb 7 Board

Feb 21 Board

March 2 Comm

March 7 Board

March 21 Board

April 4 Board

April 6 Comm

April 18 Board

May 2 Board

May 4 Comm

May 16 Board

Jun 1 Comm

June 6 Board

June 20 Board

July 4 Board

45
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
Ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f R
es

ol
ut

io
n 

Aw
ar

di
ng

 
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

C
on

tra
ct

 fo
r P

ip
el

in
e 

to
 L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

R
es

id
en

tia
l C

om
m

un
ity

P
P

46

R
ec

om
m

en
d 

Ap
pr

ov
al

 o
f R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
to

 A
dp

op
t t

he
  

M
iti

ga
te

d 
N

eg
at

iv
e 

D
ec

la
ra

tio
n 

an
d 

M
M

R
P,

  a
nd

 a
w

ar
d 

fin
al

 e
ng

in
ee

rin
g 

co
nt

ra
ct

 fo
r t

he
 S

 W
el

ls
 P

FA
S 

Tr
ea

tm
en

t 
an

d 
D

is
in

fe
ct

io
n 

Pr
oj

ec
t

P
P

47

R
ec

om
m

en
d 

Ad
op

tin
g 

a 
R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
Au

th
or

iz
in

g 
th

e 
G

en
er

al
 M

an
ag

er
 to

 E
xe

cu
te

 a
 R

ei
m

bu
rs

ab
le

 A
gr

ee
m

en
t 

w
ith

 th
e 

C
ity

 o
f S

an
ta

 C
la

rit
a 

fo
r t

he
 S

ie
rra

 H
ig

hw
ay

 B
rid

ge
 

Ex
pa

ns
io

n 
W

at
er

 P
ip

el
in

es
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
Pr

oj
ec

t 

P
P

48

Ap
po

ve
 a

 R
es

ol
ut

io
n 

Au
th

or
iz

in
g 

 th
e 

G
en

er
al

 M
an

ag
er

 to
 

Ap
pl

y 
fo

r G
ra

nt
 F

un
di

ng
 u

nd
er

 th
e 

Bu
re

au
 o

f 
R

ec
la

m
at

io
n'

s 
W

at
er

SM
AR

T 
D

ro
ug

ht
 R

es
po

ns
e 

Pr
og

ra
m

 
fo

r t
he

 S
 W

el
ls

 P
FA

S 
an

d 
D

is
in

fe
ct

io
n 

Fa
cl

iti
es

.  

P
P

49

R
ec

om
m

en
d 

Ap
pr

ov
al

 o
f R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
Aw

ar
di

ng
 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
C

on
tra

ct
 a

nd
 P

ur
ch

as
e 

O
rd

er
s 

fo
r 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
M

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 In
sp

ec
tio

n 
Se

rv
ic

es
 a

nd
 

En
gi

ne
er

in
g 

Se
rv

ic
es

 D
ur

in
g 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
fo

r R
VW

TP
 

U
ST

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t P
ro

je
ct

P
P

50
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
Ap

pr
ov

al
 to

 F
un

d 
C

on
tra

ct
or

 C
ha

ng
e 

O
rd

er
s 

in
 E

xc
es

s 
of

 A
pp

ro
ve

d 
10

%
 C

on
tin

ge
nc

y,
 fo

r t
he

 P
ha

se
 2

B 
R

ec
yc

le
d 

W
at

er
 T

an
ks

P
P

51
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
Ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
of

 N
ew

 S
an

d 
C

an
yo

n 
Pl

az
a 

1.
5 

M
G

 T
an

k 
(D

ea
ne

 Z
on

e)
 a

nd
 C

os
t 

Sh
ar

in
g 

Ag
re

em
en

t w
ith

 D
ev

el
op

er
P

P

52

R
ec

om
m

en
d 

Au
th

or
iz

in
g 

th
e 

G
en

er
al

 M
an

ag
er

 to
 A

pp
ly

 fo
r 

G
ra

nt
 F

un
di

ng
 U

nd
er

 th
e 

Fe
de

ra
l B

ur
ea

u 
of

 R
ec

la
m

at
io

n 
FY

20
23

 W
at

er
Sm

ar
t W

at
er

 E
ne

rg
y 

Ef
fic

ie
nc

y 
G

ra
nt

 
Pr

og
ra

m
 (W

EE
G

) f
or

 th
e 

Ph
as

e 
2 

Au
to

m
at

ed
 M

et
er

in
g 

In
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t

P
P

P 
- P

la
nn

ed
 

T-
Te

nt
at

iv
e

C
-C

om
pl

et
ed

Pa
ge

 4
 o

f 4

646



Fi
na

nc
e 

an
d 

Ad
m

in
is

tra
tio

n 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 C

al
en

da
r

FY
 2

02
2/

23

Ite
m

July 5 Board

July 18 Comm

Aug 2 Board

Aug 15 Comm (Q4)

Sept 6 Board

Sept 19 Comm

Sept 20 Board

Oct 4 Board

Oct 24 RESCHED Comm

Nov 1 Board 

Nov 15 Board 

Nov 21 Comm (Q1)

Dec 6 Board

Dec 12 RESCHED Comm

Dec 20 Board

Jan 3 Board

Jan 23 RESCHED Comm

Feb 7 Board

Feb 27 RESCHED Comm (Q2)

Mar 7 Board

Mar 20 Comm

Mar 21 Board

April 4 Board

April 17 Comm

April 18 Board

May 2 Board

May 15 Comm (Q3)

June 6 Board

June 19 Comm

1
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
Ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f R
es

ol
ut

io
n 

Au
th

or
iz

in
g 

Ju
ly

 2
02

2 
W

at
er

 S
up

pl
y 

C
on

tra
ct

 P
ay

m
en

t 
(c

on
se

nt
)

C

2

R
ec

om
m

en
d 

Ap
pr

ov
al

 o
f R

es
ol

ut
io

ns
 S

et
tin

g 
Sa

nt
a 

C
la

rit
a 

Va
lle

y 
W

at
er

 A
ge

nc
y 

Ta
x 

R
at

e 
fo

r F
Y 

20
22

/2
3 

an
d 

R
eq

ue
st

in
g 

Le
vy

 o
f T

ax
 b

y 
Lo

s 
An

ge
le

s 
C

ou
nt

y 
an

d 
Ve

nt
ur

a 
C

ou
nt

y 
(c

on
se

nt
)

C

3
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
Ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f R
ev

is
ed

 A
ge

nc
y 

C
la

ss
ifi

ca
tio

n 
Pl

an
 a

nd
 P

os
iti

on
 C

on
tro

l
C

4
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
Ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f R
ev

is
ed

 C
ap

ita
liz

at
io

n 
Po

lic
y 

fo
r F

ix
ed

 A
ss

et
s

C

5
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
R

ec
ei

vi
ng

 a
nd

 F
ilin

g 
of

 A
pr

il 
20

22
 

M
on

th
ly

 F
in

an
ci

al
 R

ep
or

t (
co

ns
en

t)
C

6
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
Ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f a
 R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
Au

th
or

iz
in

g 
FY

 2
02

2/
23

 W
at

er
 S

up
pl

y 
C

on
tra

ct
 P

ay
m

en
ts

 
(c

on
se

nt
)

C
C

7
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
Ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f a
 C

on
tra

ct
 A

m
en

dm
en

t 
w

ith
 R

ob
er

t D
. N

ie
ha

us
, I

nc
. f

or
 R

at
ep

ay
er

 
Ad

vo
ca

te
 S

er
vi

ce
s

C
C

8
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
Ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f a
 C

on
tra

ct
 w

ith
 C

ha
nd

le
r 

As
se

t M
an

ag
em

en
t, 

In
c.

 fo
r A

s-
N

ee
de

d 
In

ve
st

m
en

t 
Ad

vi
so

ry
 S

er
vi

ce
s

C
C

9
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
R

ec
ei

vi
ng

 a
nd

 F
ilin

g 
of

 M
ay

 2
02

2 
M

on
th

ly
 F

in
an

ci
al

 R
ep

or
t (

co
ns

en
t)

C
C

10
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
Ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f a
 R

ev
is

ed
 C

us
to

m
er

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
Po

lic
y

C
C

11
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
Ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f a
 R

ev
is

ed
 D

eb
t 

M
an

ag
em

en
t P

ol
ic

y
C

C

12
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
Ap

pr
ov

al
 to

 C
om

pl
et

e 
Le

tte
r o

f 
In

te
re

st
 F

or
m

 fo
r t

he
 E

PA
's

 W
IF

IA
 P

ro
gr

am
C

C

13
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
Ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f a
 R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
Ad

ju
st

in
g 

Em
pl

oy
er

's
 C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 fo

r C
al

PE
R

S 
M

ed
ic

al
 

In
su

ra
nc

e
C

C

14
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

 U
pd

at
e

C

15
Fl

ee
t a

nd
 W

ar
eh

ou
se

 U
pd

at
e

C

16
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
R

ec
ei

vi
ng

 a
nd

 F
ilin

g 
of

 J
un

e 
20

22
 

M
on

tly
 a

nd
 F

Y 
20

21
/2

2 
Fo

ur
th

 Q
ua

rte
r F

in
an

ci
al

 
R

ep
or

t
C

C

C
 =

 C
om

pl
et

ed
 It

em
P 

= 
Pl

an
ne

d 
Ite

m
Pa

ge
 1

 o
f 5

647



Fi
na

nc
e 

an
d 

Ad
m

in
is

tra
tio

n 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 C

al
en

da
r

FY
 2

02
2/

23

Ite
m

July 5 Board

July 18 Comm

Aug 2 Board

Aug 15 Comm (Q4)

Sept 6 Board

Sept 19 Comm

Sept 20 Board

Oct 4 Board

Oct 24 RESCHED Comm

Nov 1 Board 

Nov 15 Board 

Nov 21 Comm (Q1)

Dec 6 Board

Dec 12 RESCHED Comm

Dec 20 Board

Jan 3 Board

Jan 23 RESCHED Comm

Feb 7 Board

Feb 27 RESCHED Comm (Q2)

Mar 7 Board

Mar 20 Comm

Mar 21 Board

April 4 Board

April 17 Comm

April 18 Board

May 2 Board

May 15 Comm (Q3)

June 6 Board

June 19 Comm

17
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
Ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f a
 R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
Ad

op
tin

g 
a 

R
ev

is
ed

 In
ve

st
m

en
t P

ol
ic

y 
- (

An
nu

al
ly

 a
do

pt
ed

 v
ia

 
re

so
) (

co
ns

en
t)

C
C

18
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
Ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f a
 R

ev
is

ed
 C

la
ss

ifi
ca

tio
n 

Pl
an

, P
os

iti
on

 C
on

tro
l a

nd
 J

ob
 D

es
cr

ip
tio

ns
C

C

19
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
Ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f a
 R

ev
is

ed
 E

m
pl

oy
ee

 
M

an
ua

l P
ol

ic
y 

N
o.

 1
3 

- H
ol

id
ay

s
C

C

20
Fl

ex
ib

le
 W

or
kp

la
ce

 P
ro

gr
am

 P
ol

ic
y 

- S
ta

tu
s 

U
pd

at
e

C

21
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
R

ec
ei

vi
ng

 a
nd

 F
ilin

g 
of

 J
ul

y 
20

22
 

M
on

th
ly

 F
in

an
ci

al
 R

ep
or

t (
co

ns
en

t)
C

C

22
R

ev
ie

w
 S

tra
te

gi
c 

Pl
an

 S
tra

te
gy

 U
pd

at
es

 - 
Al

l D
ep

ts
C

23
Ap

pr
ov

e 
a 

R
ev

is
ed

 C
O

VI
D

-1
9 

Su
pp

le
m

en
ta

l P
ai

d 
Si

ck
 a

nd
 E

m
er

ge
nc

y 
Ad

m
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

Le
av

e 
Po

lic
y 

to
 

C
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 S
B 

15
2 

C

24
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
Ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f a
 R

ev
is

ed
 E

m
pl

oy
ee

 
M

an
ua

l P
ol

ic
y 

N
o.

 1
8 

- O
th

er
 B

en
ef

its
C

C

25
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
Ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f C
on

tra
ct

 R
en

ew
al

 o
f 

En
te

rp
ris

e 
G

IS
 S

of
tw

ar
e 

Li
ce

ns
e 

Ag
re

em
en

t w
ith

 
ES

R
I

C
C

26
D

is
cu

ss
 P

ay
-G

o,
 D

eb
t P

ro
je

ct
io

ns
 a

nd
 F

ut
ur

e 
R

at
e 

Im
pa

ct
 S

ce
na

rio
s

C

27
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
R

ec
ei

vi
ng

 a
nd

 F
ilin

g 
of

 A
ug

us
t 2

02
2 

M
on

th
ly

 F
in

an
ci

al
 R

ep
or

t (
co

ns
en

t)
C

C

C
 =

 C
om

pl
et

ed
 It

em
P 

= 
Pl

an
ne

d 
Ite

m
Pa

ge
 2

 o
f 5

648



Fi
na

nc
e 

an
d 

Ad
m

in
is

tra
tio

n 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 C

al
en

da
r

FY
 2

02
2/

23

Ite
m

July 5 Board

July 18 Comm

Aug 2 Board

Aug 15 Comm (Q4)

Sept 6 Board

Sept 19 Comm

Sept 20 Board

Oct 4 Board

Oct 24 RESCHED Comm

Nov 1 Board 

Nov 15 Board 

Nov 21 Comm (Q1)

Dec 6 Board

Dec 12 RESCHED Comm

Dec 20 Board

Jan 3 Board

Jan 23 RESCHED Comm

Feb 7 Board

Feb 27 RESCHED Comm (Q2)

Mar 7 Board

Mar 20 Comm

Mar 21 Board

April 4 Board

April 17 Comm

April 18 Board

May 2 Board

May 15 Comm (Q3)

June 6 Board

June 19 Comm

28
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
Ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f a
 R

ev
is

ed
 E

m
pl

oy
ee

 
Po

lic
y 

N
o.

 4
0 

- F
le

xi
bl

e 
W

or
kp

la
ce

 P
ro

gr
am

 P
ol

ic
y

C
C

29
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
Ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f a
 R

ev
is

ed
 C

us
to

m
er

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
Po

lic
y 

C
C

30
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
Ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f a
 C

on
tra

ct
 R

en
ew

al
 w

ith
 

Sy
st

em
s 

& 
So

ftw
ar

e,
 In

c.
 fo

r e
nQ

ue
st

a 
C

us
to

m
er

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
Sy

st
em

 M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 a
nd

 S
up

po
rt

C
C

31
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
Ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f E
m

pl
oy

ee
 M

an
ua

l N
o.

 4
2 

- 
In

te
rn

sh
ip

 P
ro

gr
am

C
C

32
Fl

ee
t a

nd
 W

ar
eh

ou
se

 U
pd

at
e

C

33
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
R

ec
ei

vi
ng

 a
nd

 F
ilin

g 
of

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
22

 M
on

th
ly

 a
nd

 F
Y 

20
22

/2
3 

Fi
rs

t Q
ua

rte
r 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l R
ep

or
t (

no
t c

on
se

nt
)

C
C

34
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
R

ec
ei

vi
ng

 a
nd

 F
ilin

g 
of

 S
C

V 
W

at
er

 
An

nu
al

 C
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 F

in
an

ci
al

 R
ep

or
t (

AC
FR

) 
en

de
d 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
02

2
C

C

35
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
Ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f C
on

tra
ct

 a
nd

 M
at

er
ia

ls
 fo

r 
M

ic
ro

w
av

e 
U

pg
ra

de
 P

ro
je

ct
C

C

36
O

ve
rv

ie
w

 a
nd

 D
is

cu
ss

io
n 

of
 B

ill 
Pa

y 
O

pt
io

ns
C

37
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
Ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f a
 C

on
tra

ct
 w

ith
 S

&S
 a

nd
 

As
so

ci
at

ed
 C

os
ts

 fo
r M

et
er

 D
ev

ic
e 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Sy
st

em
 P

ro
je

ct
C

C

38
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
Ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f a
 R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
Es

ta
bl

is
hi

ng
 

a 
H

ea
lth

 R
ei

m
bu

rs
em

en
t A

rra
ng

em
en

t (
H

R
A)

 w
ith

 
IG

O
E 

fo
r R

et
ire

d 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s

C
C

39
D

is
cu

ss
 Im

pl
em

en
tin

g 
a 

C
re

di
t C

ar
d 

Pr
oc

es
si

ng
 

Fe
e

C

40
C

on
tin

ue
d 

D
is

cu
ss

io
n 

of
 R

at
ep

ay
er

 A
ss

is
ta

nc
e 

Pr
og

ra
m

s
C

41
R

ev
ie

w
 F

in
an

ci
ng

 P
la

n 
O

pt
io

ns
 a

nd
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
Fi

na
nc

in
g 

Sc
he

du
le

 (P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

an
d 

Su
bj

ec
t t

o 
C

ha
ng

e)
C

C

42
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
R

ec
ei

vi
ng

 a
nd

 F
ilin

g 
of

 O
ct

ob
er

 2
02

2 
M

on
th

ly
 F

in
an

ci
al

 R
ep

or
t (

co
ns

en
t)

C
C

43
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
R

ec
ei

vi
ng

 a
nd

 F
ilin

g 
of

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

22
 M

on
th

ly
 F

in
an

ci
al

 R
ep

or
t (

co
ns

en
t)

C
C

C
 =

 C
om

pl
et

ed
 It

em
P 

= 
Pl

an
ne

d 
Ite

m
Pa

ge
 3

 o
f 5

649



Fi
na

nc
e 

an
d 

Ad
m

in
is

tra
tio

n 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 C

al
en

da
r

FY
 2

02
2/

23

Ite
m

July 5 Board

July 18 Comm

Aug 2 Board

Aug 15 Comm (Q4)

Sept 6 Board

Sept 19 Comm

Sept 20 Board

Oct 4 Board

Oct 24 RESCHED Comm

Nov 1 Board 

Nov 15 Board 

Nov 21 Comm (Q1)

Dec 6 Board

Dec 12 RESCHED Comm

Dec 20 Board

Jan 3 Board

Jan 23 RESCHED Comm

Feb 7 Board

Feb 27 RESCHED Comm (Q2)

Mar 7 Board

Mar 20 Comm

Mar 21 Board

April 4 Board

April 17 Comm

April 18 Board

May 2 Board

May 15 Comm (Q3)

June 6 Board

June 19 Comm

44

R
ec

om
m

en
d 

Ad
op

tin
g 

a 
R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
to

 D
ec

la
re

 
In

te
nt

 to
 R

ei
m

bu
rs

e 
C

ap
ita

l E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s 
fo

r a
 

G
ro

un
dw

at
er

 T
re

at
m

en
t P

ro
je

ct
 U

si
ng

 In
ce

nt
iv

e 
G

ra
nt

 a
nd

 L
oa

n 
Fu

nd
s 

fro
m

 th
e 

St
at

e 
W

at
er

 
R

es
ou

rc
es

 C
on

tro
l B

oa
rd

 to
 C

om
pl

y 
w

ith
 In

te
rn

al
 

R
ev

en
ue

 S
er

vi
ce

 R
eg

ul
at

io
ns

P
P

45
R

ev
ie

w
 R

at
ep

ay
er

 A
ss

is
ta

nc
e 

Pi
lo

t P
ro

gr
am

P
P

46
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
Ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f a
 R

ev
is

ed
 D

eb
t 

M
an

ag
em

en
t P

ol
ic

y
P

P

47

R
ec

om
m

en
d 

Ap
pr

ov
al

 o
f a

 R
es

ol
ut

io
n 

Au
th

or
iz

in
g 

(1
)t

he
 Is

su
an

ce
 o

f O
ne

 o
r M

or
e 

Se
rie

s 
of

 R
ev

en
ue

Bo
nd

s 
by

 th
e 

U
pp

er
 S

an
ta

 C
la

ra
 V

al
le

y 
Jo

in
t 

Po
w

er
s 

Au
th

or
ity

; (
2)

 th
e 

Ex
ec

ut
io

n 
of

 C
er

ta
in

 
D

oc
um

en
ts

; a
nd

 (3
) C

er
ta

in
 O

th
er

 A
ct

io
ns

 (a
ls

o 
U

SC
VJ

PA
 A

pr
il 

4)

P
P

48
R

ev
ie

w
 F

Y 
20

23
/2

4 
an

d 
FY

 2
02

4/
25

 B
ud

ge
t 

C
al

en
da

r
P

49
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
R

ec
ei

vi
ng

 a
nd

 F
ilin

g 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 
20

22
 F

in
an

ci
al

 R
ep

or
t a

nd
 M

id
-Y

ea
r F

Y 
20

22
/2

3 
Bu

dg
et

 R
ev

ie
w

 (2
nd

 Q
ua

rte
r)(

no
t c

on
se

nt
)

P
P

C
 =

 C
om

pl
et

ed
 It

em
P 

= 
Pl

an
ne

d 
Ite

m
Pa

ge
 4

 o
f 5

650



Fi
na

nc
e 

an
d 

Ad
m

in
is

tra
tio

n 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 C

al
en

da
r

FY
 2

02
2/

23

Ite
m

July 5 Board

July 18 Comm

Aug 2 Board

Aug 15 Comm (Q4)

Sept 6 Board

Sept 19 Comm

Sept 20 Board

Oct 4 Board

Oct 24 RESCHED Comm

Nov 1 Board 

Nov 15 Board 

Nov 21 Comm (Q1)

Dec 6 Board

Dec 12 RESCHED Comm

Dec 20 Board

Jan 3 Board

Jan 23 RESCHED Comm

Feb 7 Board

Feb 27 RESCHED Comm (Q2)

Mar 7 Board

Mar 20 Comm

Mar 21 Board

April 4 Board

April 17 Comm

April 18 Board

May 2 Board

May 15 Comm (Q3)

June 6 Board

June 19 Comm

50
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
Ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f V
al

en
ci

a 
R

et
ai

l C
ap

ac
ity

 
Fe

e
P

P

51
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
Ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f R
ev

is
ed

 P
os

iti
on

 C
on

tro
l 

(a
nn

ua
l)

P
P

52
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
Ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f a
 P

ro
po

se
d 

Em
pl

oy
ee

 
Sa

la
ry

 A
dj

us
tm

en
t (

C
O

LA
) f

or
 F

Y 
20

23
/2

4
P

P

53
R

ev
ie

w
 A

nn
ua

l L
is

t o
f P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l S

er
vi

ce
s 

C
on

tra
ct

s 
(c

on
se

nt
)

P
P

54
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
Ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f A
w

ar
di

ng
 a

 C
on

tra
ct

 fo
r 

R
io

 V
is

ta
 C

hi
lle

r R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t
P

P

55
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
Ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f A
w

ar
di

ng
 a

 C
on

tra
ct

 to
 

C
in

ta
s 

fo
r U

ni
fo

rm
 S

er
vi

ce
s

P
P

56
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

 U
pd

at
e

P

57
Fl

ee
t a

nd
 W

ar
eh

ou
se

 U
pd

at
e

P

58
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
R

ec
ei

vi
ng

 a
nd

 F
ilin

g 
of

 J
an

ua
ry

 2
02

3 
M

on
th

ly
 F

in
an

ci
al

 R
ep

or
t (

co
ns

en
t)

P
P

59
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
Ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f a
 R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
Ad

op
tin

g 
th

e 
FY

 2
02

3/
24

 a
nd

 F
Y 

20
24

/2
5 

Bi
en

ni
al

 B
ud

ge
t

P
P

60
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
R

ec
ei

vi
ng

 a
nd

 F
ilin

g 
of

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

23
 

M
on

th
ly

 F
in

an
ci

al
 R

ep
or

t (
co

ns
en

t)
P

P

61
Ap

pr
ov

e 
a 

R
es

ol
ut

io
n 

Ad
op

tin
g 

th
e 

Ap
pr

op
ria

tio
n 

of
 

Al
l A

s-
Ye

t U
na

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
d 

Fu
nd

s 
fo

r F
Y 

20
22

/2
3 

(c
on

se
nt

)
P

P

62
Ap

pr
ov

e 
a 

R
es

ol
ut

io
n 

Ad
op

tin
g 

th
e 

Ap
pr

op
ria

tio
n 

Li
m

it 
fo

r F
Y 

20
23

/2
4 

(c
on

se
nt

)
P

P

63
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
Ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f a
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
O

ffi
ci

al
 

St
at

em
en

t
P

P

64
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

 U
pd

at
e

P

65
Fl

ee
t a

nd
 W

ar
eh

ou
se

 U
pd

at
e

P

66
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
R

ec
ei

vi
ng

 a
nd

 F
ilin

g 
of

 M
ar

ch
 2

02
2 

an
d 

FY
 2

02
2/

23
 T

hi
rd

 Q
ua

rte
r F

in
an

ci
al

 R
ep

or
t 

(n
ot

 c
on

se
nt

)
P

P

67
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
R

ec
ei

vi
ng

 a
nd

 F
ilin

g 
of

 A
pr

il 
20

22
 

M
on

th
ly

 F
in

an
ci

al
 R

ep
or

t (
co

ns
en

t)
P

C
 =

 C
om

pl
et

ed
 It

em
P 

= 
Pl

an
ne

d 
Ite

m
Pa

ge
 5

 o
f 5

651



[This page intentionally left blank.] 

652



         PUBLIC OUTREACH AND LEGISLATION COMMITTEE         
AGENDA PLANNING CALENDAR FY 2022-2023 

 
 
 
 
July 5, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 

1. Approve Legislative Advocacy Contract Renewal  
2. Presentation: Drought Messaging Action Plan  

 
July 21, 2022 Committee Meeting 

1. Legislative Consultant Reports 
2. Discussion of Draft Board Resolution and Initial Implementation Action from the Engagement Gap 

Analysis  
3. Presentation: Overview of School Education Program  
4. Communications Manager Activities: 

• Legislative Tracking 
• Grant Status Report 
• Sponsorship Tracking FY 2022/23 
• Committee Planning Calendar FY 2022/23 

 
August 2, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 

1. Approve a Resolution Adopting the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency In Support of Inclusive 
Communications & Engagement 
 

August 18, 2022 Committee Meeting 
1. Legislative Consultant Reports 
2. Communications Manager Activities: 

• Social Media Quarterly Report  
• Legislative Tracking 
• Grant Status Report 
• Sponsorship Tracking FY 2022/23 
• Committee Planning Calendar FY 2022/23 

 
September 15, 2022 Committee Meeting  

1. Legislative Consultant Reports 
2. Communications Manager Activities: 

• Legislative Tracking 
• Grant Status Report 
• Sponsorship Tracking FY 2022/23 
• Committee Planning Calendar FY 2022/23 

 
October 20, 2022 Committee Meeting  

1. Legislative Consultant Reports 
2. Discussion of Jerry Gladbach Scholarship and/or Internship  
3. Discussion of Water Academy Pilot Session 
4. Agency’s New Website Status Report  
5. Communications Manager Activities: 

• Legislative Tracking 
• Grant Status Report 
• Sponsorship Tracking FY 2022/23 
• Committee Planning Calendar FY 2022/23 

 
November 17, 2022 Committee Meeting 

1. Legislative Consultant Reports 
2. Discussion of Jerry Gladbach Scholarship 

653



 

3. Communications Manager Activities: 
• Social Media Quarterly Report  
• Legislative Tracking 
• Grant Status Report 
• Sponsorship Tracking FY 2022/23 
• Committee Planning Calendar FY 2022/23 

 
December 6, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 

1. Discussion of Jerry Gladbach Scholarship 
 
December 15, 2022 Committee Meeting  

1. Legislative Consultant Reports 
2. Discussion of the 2023 Legislative Platform and Advocacy Process 
3. Communications Manager Activities: 

• Legislative Tracking 
• Grant Status Report 
• Sponsorship Tracking FY 2022/23 
• Committee Planning Calendar FY 2022/23 

 
January 3, 2023 Regular Board Meeting 

1. Adoption of the 2023 Legislative Platform 
 
January 19, 2023 Committee Meeting  

1. Legislative Consultant Reports 
2. Outreach 2022 Year in Review  
3. Communications Manager’s Report  

 
February 16, 2023 Committee Meeting  

1. Legislative Consultant Reports 
2. Discussion of Crisis Communication Plan  
3. Communications Manager’s Report  

 
March 16, 2023 Committee Meeting  

1. Legislative Consultant Reports 
2. Discussion of Staffing Consideration  
3. Discussion of FY 2023/24 and FY 2024/25 Public Outreach Operating Budget  
4. Communications Manager’s Report  

 
April 20, 2023 Committee Meeting    

1. Legislative Consultant Reports 
2. Communications Manager’s Report  

 
May 18, 2023 Committee Meeting  

1. Legislative Consultant Reports 
2. Communications Manager’s Report  

 
June 15, 2023 Committee Meeting  

1. Legislative Consultant Reports 
2. Communications Manager’s Report 

654



         WATER RESOURCES AND WATERSHED COMMITTEE 
AGENDA PLANNING CALENDAR FY 2022-2023 

July 5, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 
1. Recommend Adoption of a Resolution Approving the SB 610 Water Supply Assessment for the Wiley

Canyon Mixed-Use Development

July 13, 2022 Committee Meeting 
1. Recommend Authorizing the General Manager to Enter into an Agreement with GSI Water Solutions, Inc.

for the First Year of Groundwater Sustainability Plan Implementation
2. Water Resources Director Report:

• Status of Upper Santa Clara River Salt and Nutrient Management Plan
3. Sustainability Manager Report:

• Status of Drought Response and Performance

July 19, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 
1. Status of Recycled Water Program

August 2, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 
1. Recommend Authorizing the General Manager to Enter into an Agreement with GSI Water Solutions, Inc.

for the First Year of Groundwater Sustainability Plan Implementation

August 10, 2022 Committee Meeting 
1. Recommend Adoption of a Resolution Authorizing the General Manager to Apply for Grant Funding

Under the WaterSmart Water Energy Efficiency Grant Program and Execute a Grant Agreement with the
Federal Bureau of Reclamation

2. Water Resources Director Report:
• Status of Groundwater Recharge Feasibility Studies
• Devil’s Den Semi-Annual Report

3. Sustainability Manager Report:
• Update on Conservation Activities and Performance
• Status of Drought Response and Performance

August 16, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 
1. Recommend Adoption of a Resolution Authorizing the General Manager to Apply for Grant Funding

Under the WaterSmart Water Energy Efficiency Grant Program and Execute a Grant Agreement with the

September 14, 2022 Committee Meeting 
1. Recommend Adoption of a Resolution Approving the SB 610 Water Supply Assessment for the

Shadowbox Studios Development
2. Recommend Authorizing the General Manager to Execute a Construction Contract for Bridgeport Pocket

Park
3. Update on Water Operating Plan and Water Conservation Response Actions
4. Water Resources Director Report:

• Update on Water Resiliency Plan Initiative Activities
• Status of Water Supply and Water Banking Programs

5. Sustainability Manager Report:
• Update on Conservation Activities and Performance

October 12, 2022 Committee Meeting 
1. Recommend Adoption of a Resolution Approving the SB 610 Water Supply Assessment for the

Shadowbox Studios Development
2. Water Resources Director Report:

• Status of Water Supply and Water Banking Programs
3. Sustainability Manager Report:

655



 

• Status of Drought Response and Performance 
• Update on Conservation Activities and Performance 

 
October 18, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 

1. Recommend Adoption of a Resolution Approving the SB 610 Water Supply Assessment for the 
Shadowbox Studios Development 

2. Update on Water Operating Plan and Water Conservation Response Actions  
 
November 9, 2022 Committee Meeting 

1. Introduction of New Water Resources Director  
2. Recommend Authorizing the General Manager to Execute a Construction Contract for Bridgeport Pocket 

Park 
3. Recommend Adoption of a Resolution Authorizing SCV Water Agency to Apply for and Execute a Grant 

Agreement on Behalf of the SCV-GSA with the California Department of Water Resources for a 
Sustainable Groundwater Management Grant  

4. Water Resources Manager Report: 
• Staff Activities  

5. Sustainability Manager Report: 
• Status of Drought Response and Performance 
• Update on Conservation Activities and Performance 

 
November 15, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 

1. Recommend Authorizing the General Manager to Execute a Construction Contract for Bridgeport Pocket 
Park 

 
December 14, 2022 Committee Meeting  

1. Recommend Adoption of a Resolution Authorizing the General Manager to Submit an Application for a 
Proposition 1, Round 2 Integrated Regional Water Management Implementation Grant and Execute a 
Grant Agreement with the California Department of Water Resources  

2. Water Resources Manager Report: 
• Status of Water Supplies  

3. Sustainability Manager Report: 
• Status of Drought Response and Performance 

 
December 20, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 

1. Recommend Adoption of a Resolution Authorizing SCV Water Agency to Apply for and Execute a Grant 
Agreement on Behalf of the SCV-GSA with the California Department of Water Resources for a 
Sustainable Groundwater Management Grant 

 
January 3, 2023 Regular Board Meeting 

1. Recommend Adoption of a Resolution Authorizing the General Manager to Submit an Application for a 
Proposition 1, Round 2 Integrated Regional Water Management Implementation Grant and Execute a 
Grant Agreement with the California Department of Water Resources  

 
January 11, 2023 Committee Meeting  

1. Water Resources Manager Report: 
• Status of Water Supplies  

2. Sustainability Manager Report: 
• Status of Drought Response and Performance 
• Update on Conservation Activities and Performance  

 
February 8, 2023 Committee Meeting  

1. Water Resources Manager Report: 
• Presentation of GoldSim Model  
• Status of Water Supplies  

2. Sustainability Manager Report: 
• Presentation on Completed Water Conservation and Education Experience Design  

656



 

March 8, 2023 Committee Meeting  
1. Recommend Authorizing the General Manager to Enter into an Agreement with United Water 

Conservation District to Coordinate Deliveries of State Water Project Water Supplies  
2. Discussion of Staffing Consideration 
3. Water Resources Manager Report: 

• Devil’s Den Semi-Annual Report  
• Status of Water Supplies 

4. Sustainability Manager Report: 
• Presentation of Conservation Long-Term Framework – AB 1668 and SB 606 

 
March 21, 2023 Regular Board Meeting 

1. Recommend Authorizing the General Manager to Enter into an Agreement with United Water 
Conservation District to Coordinate Deliveries of State Water Project Water Supplies  

 
April 12, 2023 Committee Meeting  

1. Recommend Adoption of Sustainability Action Plan  
2. Recommend Approval of a Resolution Adopting Recycled Water Rules and Regulations 
3. Recommend Authorizing the General Manager to Enter into a MOU with Antelope Valley-East Kern Water 

District to Fund Planning Costs for a Portion of the Proposed Phase 2 Proposed High Desert Water Bank 
4. Discussion of FY 2023/24 and FY 2024/25 Water Resources Operating Budget and Minor and Major 

Capital  
5. Water Resources Manager Report: 

• Status of Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA) Implementation 
• Status of Water Supplies  

6. Sustainability Manager Report: 
• Status of Drought Response and Performance 
• Update on Conservation Activities and Performance 

 
May 2, 2023 Regular Board 

1. Recommend Adoption of Sustainability Action Plan  
2. Recommend Approval of a Resolution Adopting Recycled Water Rules and Regulations 
3. Recommend Authorizing the General Manager to Enter into a MOU with Antelope Valley-East Kern Water 

District to Fund Planning Costs for a Portion of the Proposed Phase 2 Proposed High Desert Water Bank 
 
May 17, 2023 Committee Meeting 

1. Recommend Adopting a Resolution Authorizing Creation of a Standby Charge for the Tesoro Del Val 
Annexation Area  

2. Water Resources Manager Report: 
• Status of Water Supplies  

3. Sustainability Manager Report: 
• Status of Drought Response and Performance 

 
June 6, 2023 Regular Board Meeting 

1. Recommend Adopting a Resolution Authorizing Creation of a Standby Charge for the Tesoro Del Val 
Annexation Area  

 
June 14, 2023 Committee Meeting  

1. Water Resources Manager Report: 
• Status of Water Supplies  

2. Sustainability Manager Report: 
• Status of Drought Response and Performance 

 

657



[This page intentionally left blank.] 

658



Director AB 1234 Report 

March 7, 2023 

 

Director name: Gary Martin 

Meetings attended: Urban Water Institute Board Meeting and Spring Conference   

Date of meetings: February 22-24, 2023.   

Location: Palm Springs, California    

SCV Water Board Meeting to be presented at: March 7, 2023 

 

On February 22-24, 2023, I attended the Urban Water Institute (UWI) Board Meeting and Spring Conference 

held at the Palm Springs Hilton. The following is a summary of the Board of Directors Meeting and points of 

interest of the various conference sessions: 

 

February 22 

 

Board of Directors meeting (attached is the meeting agenda): 

I. Welcome and introductions by Executive Director Ane Deister, who was standing in for Board Chair Andree 

Lee, who was delayed due to flight cancellations. A board quorum was declared and the agenda was approved. 

Also discussed was an overview of the August, 2022 in-person conference. 

II. The minutes from the August 24, 2022 Board Meeting were approved. 

III. The financial report was provided by John Thornton and Stacy Davis. The End of Year financial report was 

approved for accept and file, and the 2023 Proposed Budget was approved. An update report was received on 

memberships and sponsorships. The overall financial health of the UWI is good, as 2022 showed a +$32,319 

change in the profits/loss statement. The current reserve level is $187,000 in accordance with policy. The 

reserve covers 3 months operating costs and cancellation costs for the spring and fall conferences. 

IV. An update on current board members was received, announcing new board member Jeff Mosher of Santa 

Ana Watershed Project Authority and new member Paul Redverds Brown Inc. 

V. An update on the August 2022 Annual Conference was provided by Stacy Davis, who reported 169 

attendees and 30 sponsors, with a net proceeds of $119,666. 

VI. An update was received on the 2023 Spring Conference indicating 179 attendees and 26 sponsorships, with 

combined proceeds of $138,870. 

VII. New Business was discussed by Ane Deister, Andree Lee and John Thornton. Items discussed were a 

planned Executive Committee effort to develop specific operating policies, discussion of potential membership 

dues increase, and the planned August, 2023 conference in San Diego. Input was provided by board members 

for theme, general topics, and speaker for the San Diego conference. 

VIII. Chairwoman Andree Lee provided The Chair’s Report, indicating a plan to convene a task force to assess 

current organizational operations, structure and design. The focus will be on an effort to streamline 

operations, clarify roles and responsibilities, and to consider updates and improvements. 

IX. Ane Deister provided the Executive Director’s Report. 

X. An “Open Topic” discussion was held. 

XI. The next board meeting will be held on August 23, 2023 at the San Diego conference. 

XII. The meeting was adjourned 

 

Conference Sessions 

 

1:00 & 1:10 PM 

 Opening Remarks and Introductions from Board Chair Andree Lee 

 Welcome to Palm Springs by Mayor Grace Elena Gardner 

 

  
659

ajacobs
Item 11.1



1:25 PM Opening Keynote: Alex Tardy, Warning Coordination and Senior Meteorologist, NOAA 

 “Sets the stage for the ‘elephant in the room’ – is there enough water to go around” 

Points of Interest: 

 Reviewed sources of water and stated need for supply diversification. 

 The 2012 – 2016 drought was the worst on record due to many related factors. 

 On November 1, 2022, there was only a 40% chance of getting normal rainfall in California. 

 From 12/26/22 to 1/17/23 19 total atmospheric river tracks hit California with massive rain and snow. 

 The “sweet spot” for forecasting storms is 7 to 14 days out. 

 January 2023 has been a very good for Southern California. 

 Low temperatures will help insure snow pack will last longer. 

 The water year is not matching up with La Nina & El Nino; there is something going on that we don’t 

understand. La Nina conditions with El Nino rainfall?? 

 Sierra Snowpack on track to be the snowiest on record. 

 

1:55 PM Response: Is The Drum Beating? 

Is there any water left? How bad is it? When supplies are limited – who gets what; who is left behand? 

(See attached agenda for panel members and moderator) 

Points of Interest: 

 Craig Miller discussed “Solve the Water Crisis Coalition Mission:” education, enhanced awareness, set 

the stage for a statewide solution, make water supply a top state priority. 

 Question: How do we replace supply losses in dry years? 

 Answer: We need an infusion of capital projects / infrastructure to move water around the state. 

 27 members in the coalition; we need long-term solutions that span over legislative / election cycles.   

 Devin Upadhyay stated that from an economic point of view, price indicates a supply/demand 

imbalance, but that there is more than enough water to do around. 

 Jason Philips discussed water operations in the central valley making the following points: the 

California water shortage is real, it’s a self-inflicted drought, there are solutions but they will be 

difficult. 

 Jason added: we use more water than is available by 2 – 4 million AF, GW overdraft will end when 

SGMA enforcement begins, wells in the central valley are drying up. 

 Jason further added: First flush rules are horrible and we need to make the public aware of this, 

environmental groups firmly believe that we’ve over-developed farm land, we need to be able to get 

more water through the Delta to store in the south. 

 Craig said “throwing small buckets of money in many places does not work!” 

 Mark Gold agrees with this point. 

 Dave Pedersen said that we need to make changes to things that are not working well; better water 

supply planning for the entire state; better modeling is a must. 

 Mark Gold said that we’ve had record a-lot-of-things but we don’t have the infrastructure and tools to 

deal with them. 

John Ruetten addressed climate change and supply reliability in California. 

 The panel pointed out that agriculture use is not the largest user of water; more water is used for 

environmental purposes that anything else. Urban use only represents 10%!  

 

3:45 PM Who is Beating the Drum; Who is Listening? 

The water industry has been beating the drum to sound a warning of a systemic water shortage. Can anyone 

hear the warning outside the water Industry? What is it going to take to convince the business community to 

advocate for and invest in the infrastructure necessary for the State’s economic future? 

(See attached agenda for panel members and moderator) 

Points of interest: 
660



 Adrian Covert stated that there is a correlation between GDP and water consumption ranging from 

$108,000 to $504,000 per AF. Also, Housing production in the Bay area lags the country in general, and 

that if water crisis worsens, housing production will fall further.  

 Randall Lewis stated that people in his industry need to help water managers do their job by increasing 

business advocacy for water. 

 Darcy Burke suggested a trust formula whereby T = (I=SV) x (C+R), where T=trust, I=integrity, 

SV=shared values, C=credibility, and R=reliability. Darcy also said that we don’t tell our story. Darcy 

also suggested that “outreach” is 1-way, and “engagement” is 2-way. She also compared price (what 

you pay) and water service (what you get).     

 Randy Fiorini said that State and Federal agencies have not made significant investments in water 

infrastructure projects.  

 Larry Dick stated that droughts don’t end with one rainfall and emphasized that our government often 

leaves out the environmental component of water consumption. When considered, it shows that 

urban use is only about 10% of the total. 

 Glen Farrel agreed that legislators in Sacramento are not investing in water infrastructure. 

 

February 23 

 

8:15 AM Colorado River Update Report – Bill Hassencamp, MWD Manager Colorado River Resources. 

Points of interest: 

 Reviewed recent news stories criticizing CA over Colorado water. 

 Assertions not true / misrepresents the true picture. 

 The 6-state proposal throws all previous agreements in the trash. 

 Reviewed the evaporation proposal and discussed basin characteristics. 

 Discussed the history of basin lines between upper and lower. 

 Reviewed that Colorado River Compact of 1922, and 1944 amendment; 7.5 MAF for upper, 8.5 MAF 

for lower, and 1.5 MAF for Mexico, for a total of 17.5 MAF. 

 Discussed the 2003 Quantification Settlement Agreement and the 2007 Interim Storage Guidelines. 

 Also discussed the 2019 7-states CR Draft Contingency Plan. 

 Stated that supply programs at risk under the 6-state proposal putting 821,000 AF at risk. 

 MWD focus is on solutions, not cuts. 

 Concluded the presentation stating that his goal was to get the message out, not the misleading news 

that is being reported. 

 

9:00 AM Who’s on Beat, Who’s off beat, Who’s Not Part of the Beat. 

Featuring the need for and current state of the relationship between city and county decision makers and water 

agency decision makers. 

(See attached agenda for panel members and moderator) 

 Points of interest: 

 Mayors of the City of Rialto, City of Riverside and the City of Canyon Lake discussed their relationships 

and interaction with water agencies. All had good relationships and valued the work done by the 

agencies. 

   

10:30 AM Bridging the Current Beat – Segue to the New Beat. 

Considering the current beat in DC and how it may change the beat of the future and facing the reality of an 

apparent beat to remove California farmlands from production – what is the national security risk? 

(See attached agenda for panel members and moderator) 

Points of interest: 

 
661



Moderator Jason Philips 

Began the panel discussion by emphasizing that the biggest users of water in California are environmental, 

agriculture and urban in that order. 

 

Eric Sapirstein 

 It’s a bigger picture than climate change. 

 Food production and delivery responsible for 1/3 of all greenhouse gasses. 

 There is a shrinking resource and increasing demand for food due to various factors. 

 The Federal response is the farm bill, of which 76% is for nutrition. 

 Farm bill drivers include nutrition, crop insurance, climate impacts, technology, and emerging 

concerns. 

 Of importance is managing uncertainties, including soil health, forecasting, precision technology, 

biotech, forestry/wildfire, water quality. 

 

Geoff Vanden Heuval 

 Average cow milk is 87% water. 

 45% of CA milk is made into cheese. 

 Only 14% of milk is sold as liquid. 

 There are 1.7 million milking cows in CA. 

 400,000 AF of water is used to grow alfalfa. 

 Alfalfa prices are up 50% in recent years. 

 SGMA implementation will result in total cut of 1.5 MAF. 

 Herd size will be reduced by 10% by 2040. 

 The fix is to be able to move wet year water supply from the north to massive storage in the central 

valley. 

 Environmentally friendly diversions in the Delta is key to this effort. 

 Subsurface diversions are a better way to divert water without harming fish. 

 

Randy Fiorini 

 New Beat #1: Improved conveyances moving water from north to south is necessary. 

 New Beat #2: Increase off-stream groundwater storage. 

 New Beat #3; Modernize regulations.  

 

1:15 PM Changing the Beat – Innovations Underway Today and New Ways to Meet the Water Deficit 

Challenge. 

Climate change has made water supplies unpredictable. How do we take ownership of our water supply future? 

Hear how local agencies are developing new, drought resistant supplies through innovation and collaboration. 

(See attached agenda for panel members and moderator)      

 

Rick Shintaku 

 Discussed Doheny Ocean Desal Project. 

 Other discussion items were recycled water, brackish groundwater recovery, water use efficiency, and 

water loss control. 

 Projects and plans provide water reliability for seismic risks. 

 Reduces dependency on imported water from MWD, 

 Doheny will supply 5 MGD. 

 Discussed 2007 engineering feasibility study, subsurface intake and existing ocean outfall. 

 The project has public acceptance as 63% of customers willing to accept a $15/month increase to 

support the Doheny project. 662



 The project will be on line by 2028. 

 

Keith Lilley 

 Discussed LA County Water Plan. 

 LA County FCD to utilize dams and spreading grounds to capture 200,000 AF / year. 

 Also discussed Safe Clean Water Program (Measure “W”) efforts to capture storm water across the 

County. 

 Discussed project highlights, implementation process, steering committee membership. 

 101 projects approved for $1.2 billion. 

 

Tom Francis 

 Discussed the Bay Area Regional Reliability Partnership (BARR). 

 Formed in 2014 with the Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) in 2019 and mended in 2022. 

 Significant efforts include Drought Contingency Plan and Shared Water Access Program. 

 Drought mitigation measures selected through studies. 

 Categories include initiatives, storage, treatment, supply operations. 

 

Jennifer West 

 Discussed water reuse and new goals of 800k AF by 2030 and 1.8 MAF by 2040. 

 Discussed 2019-2021 recycled water use categories. 

 Potable reuse existing capacity of 88,700 AF with planned 436,000 AF. 

 Discussed their Direct Potable Reuse Adoption Timeline 12/31/23 adoption. 

 

2:30 PM Update from MWD Board Chair 

Adan Ortega, Chair of the Board at MWD will share the latest information – what’s on deck, what may be 

changing. 

(See attached agenda for panel members and moderator) 

Points of interest: 

 As indicated, Mr. Ortega provided an update on MWD activities. One key point mentioned was support 

of the Delta Conveyance Project to protect against seismic vulnerability of the Delta. 

 

3:15 PM Communication That Changes the Beat 

This panel will explore how to break through the noise and reach a broader audience with high impact 

messaging and innovative tools. Panelists also will provide helpful advice to meet your local challenges. 

(See attached agenda for panel members and moderator)  

Points of interest: 

 

Sarah Macdonald 

 “You cannot NOT communicate” 

 When our voice is reliable, responsive, visionary, and our tone is confident, relatable, our customers 

feel assured, understood and inspired. 

 

Jennifer Persike 

 Effective communication requires breaking new ground. 

 Connect through driven communications grounded in your values and beliefs. Defines who you are. 

 Values is the lens to focus your communications. 

 Key takeaways – grabs attention, helps find common ground, connects with audience, resonates at 

deeper level, builds authenticity and equals leadership. 

 Always be forthright!   
663



February 24 

 

9:00 AM General Managers Panel 

General Managers from Northern and Southern California discuss how they set priorities around what needs to 

be changed, and how to do it. 

(See attached agenda for panel members and moderator) 

Points of interest: 

 

Paul Helliker, San Juan Water District 

 Discussed impact of sea level rise, air temperature rise, precipitation and drought. 

 Discussed North American Water and Power Alliance (NAWAPA) system map. 

 Colorado River Basin Study and imports into the system. 

 Comparison of MWD water supply alternatives. 

 

Matt Stone 

 Told SCV Water story. 

 Where our water comes from. 

 Discussed Mission, Vision and Goals. 

 Presented the PFAS timeline and actions taken. 

 PFAS impacts and drought response, and advantages of “One Agency.” 

 Showed (or tried to) the 5 year anniversary video. 

 

Greg Thomas, Elsinore Valley MWD 

 Strategic Plan 2021 – 2026 

 Mission, Vision and Values Statement 

 Strategy map; graphic depiction of how all the elements tie unto each other. 

 

Robb Grantham, Rancho Water 

 Discussed “About Rancho Water.” 

 Talked about in region groundwater banking program, 150,000 AF expansion program. 

 Recycled water program. 

 Regional storage and supply programs. 

 

10:00 AM Infrastructure LA 

Description of an innovative effort underway to facilitate cross agency and cross discipline collaboration, 

communication, partnership and cooperation. The new organization brings together and coordinates funding 

opportunities, regional planning and regional messaging outreach among water, power, transportation, 

broadband, EV and feeds into regional efforts on workforce development, equity and resiliency. 

(See attached agenda for panel members and moderator) 

Points of interest: 

 Ray Tremblay provided the background of the program. 

 Funding from the Federal Infrastructure bill. 

 Called “InfrastructureLA” 

 Goals and objectives – coordinated collaboration, community-based approach, equitable, etc. 

 Planning for large-scale water reuse. 

 Move to projects that address community development. 

 Draft Water Committee Goals. 

 ILA Project Scoring Criteria. 

 
664



10:45 AM Lightning Water Solutions 

An invigorating and interesting discussion of brainstorming ideas to address today’s challenging water 

problems: water resources, water quality, water economics, water politics, climate change, wildfires, and 

energy. And maybe more! Our thought leader panel will hear from you and others – ideas you may have to 

solve or start to solve some of these massive concerns, and in an open forum, bounce ideas back and forth.  

(See attached agenda for panel members and moderator) 

Points of interest: 

 

Peer 

 The current status quo will not last. 

 Provided an interesting “Value of the Land” example of out-of-the-box thinking; Palo Verde land along 

the Colorado River is valued at $18,000 / acre and is used for agriculture. If you buy that land and stop 

using CR water for irrigation it translates to $186/AF for the water saved, according to Peer’s 

calculations. 

   

I found the conference to be interesting and informative and I appreciate being able to attend. 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

     

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

     

 

 

665



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

666



667



668



669



670



671



672


	Information Sheet 
	Agenda
	Item 5.1
	Item 5.2
	Item 5.3
	Item 6.1
	Item 6.2
	Item 6.3
	Item 6.4
	Item 8.1
	Item 8.2
	Item 8.3
	Item 9.1
	Item 9.2
	Item 9.3
	Item 9.4
	Item 9.5
	Item 11.1



